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vileges of the Library until the return of the book or full

compensation is made therefor to the satisfaction of the Trustees.
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party violating this provision, shall be liable to pay a sum not

exceeding the value of the book, or to replace the volume by a

new one, at the discretion of the Trustees or Executive Committee,

and shall be liable to be suspended from all use of the Library till

any order of the Trustees or Executive Committee in the premises
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In the District Court of the United States,

Northern District of California,

Southern Division.

No. 2758-K in Equity

THE REPUBLIC SUPPLY COMPANY OF
CALIFORNIA, a corporation,

Complainant,

vs.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY OF
CALIFORNIA, a corporation.

Defendant.

WILLIAM C. McDUFFIE, as ancillary receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration,

Complainant,

vs.

WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST (JO.,

a corporation.

Defendant.

ANCILLARY BILL OF COMPLAINT
By leave of court first had and obtained, William

C. McDuffie, as ancillary receiver for Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, brings this

his bill of complaint against Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation, and alleges as fol-

lows :

I.

That complainant. The Republic Supply Com-
pany of California, is a corporation duly organized
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and existing under the laws of the State of Cali-

fornia ; that its office and principal place of business

is in the City of Los Angeles, State of California,

and that it is a citizen and resident of the State of

California. [1*]

II.

That defendant, Richfield Oil Com]3anY of Cali-

fornia, is a corporation duly organized and exist-

ing under the laws of the State of Delaware; that

its office and principal place of business is in the

City of Los Angeles, State of California, and that

it is a citizen and resident of the State of Delaware.

III.

That defendant, Wells Fargo Bank & L^nion

Trust Co., is a corporation duly organized and ex-

isting under and by virtue of the laws of the State

of California ; that its principal place of business is

in the City and County of San Francisco, State of

California, and that it is a citizen and resident of

said State of California.

IV.

That on January 15, 1931, said The Republic Sup-

ph^ Company of California, a corporation, filed an

action numbered S-125-J in the District Court of

the United States in and for the Southern District

of California, Central Di^dsion, against said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation. That

said bill of complaint alleged that said complainant

"Page numbering appearing at the foot of page of original certifieil

Transcript of Eeeord.
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was a California corporation and the said defend-

ant was a Delaware corporation. That said bill of

complaint further alleged that said defendant was

indebted to said complainant in a sum in excess of

$275,000 upon an unsecured open book account for

goods, wares and merchandise sold and delivered

by said complainant to said defendant. That said

l)ill of complaint further alleged that certain other

creditors were pressing said defendant for pay-

ment of their claims and threatening attachments,

executions, seizures and forced sales of the property

of said defendant, with the necessary consequence

that said defendant would be compelled to cease

its business and that its assets, if sacrificed, might

not realize an amount sufficient to pay the credi-

tors of said defendant in full. That said bill of

complaint prayed that the rights of all creditors of

said defendant be determined and that meanwhile

a receiver be appointed of all of the property and

assets of said defendant and continue to carry on

the business conducted by said defendant, and that

an injunction [2] issue against said defendant, its

creditors, stockholders and all persons claiming or

acting l)y, through or under them, to restrain them

from interfering in any manner with said receiver

or taking possession of the property and assets of

said defendant and carrying on and conducting its

business.

That said defendant formally appeared and filed

its answer to said bill of complaint, admitting the
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allegations of said bill and consenting to the relief

demanded. That upon the same day that the action

was commenced, said Court appointed William C.

McDuffie as receiver for Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, with the powers and

duties as to such receivership more fully set forth

in the order appointing said receiver, which was

duly signed by the Honorable William P. James,

United States District Judge then presiding in said

Court, at 9:40 A. M. on January 15, 1931, a copy

of which order is hereunto annexed, marked Ex-

hibit "A" and made a part hereof. That pursuant

to said order, said William C. McDuffie, on said

15th day of January, 1931, duly qualified as such

receiver and ever since has been and is now the duly

appointed, qualified and acting receiver for said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation.

Y.

That thereafter, and on said 15th day of January,

1931, in the action of The Republic Supply Com-

pany of California, a corporation, Complainant, v.

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

Defendant, duly filed in the District Court of the

United States in and for the Northern District

of California, Southern Division, No. 2758-K, said

William C. McDuffie was appointed ancillary re-

ceiver l)y the Honorable Frank H. Kerrigan, United

States District Judge in and for said Northern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division, of all the

property, assets and business of said defendant in

the Northern District of California. That a copy of

said order appointing said William C. McDuffie such
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ancillary receiver is hereunto annexed, marked Ex-

hibit "B" and made a x^art hereof. That pursuant

to said order, and on the 20th day of January, 1931,

said William C. McDuffie filed his oath of office

with the Clerk of the United States District Court

in said District and duly qualified as such ancillary

receiver and ever since said time has been and is

now the duly appointed, qualified and acting ancil-

lary receiver of and for said [3] Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, within said

Northern District of California.

VI.

That on or about the 12th day of July, 1930,

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, by authorization of its Board of Directors,

borrowed from said defendant, Wells Fara:o Bank

& Union Trust Co., a corporation, the sum of

$625,000 and at that time made, executed and de-

liA^ered to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., or order, its promissory note in the principal

sum of $625,000, with interest thereon at the rate

of six per cent (6%) per annum, paya]:le ninety

(00) days after date. That no agreement of auv

kind for collateral or as security for the repayment

of said amount was executed then and there by said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corpora-

tion, to or for the benefit of said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co., a corporation.

YII.

That thereafter, and on or about the montli of

August, 1930, an agreement was entered into by
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and between said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, and said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co., a corporation, whereby said

Eichfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

agreed to deposit with said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation, for collection, drafts

drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of California

on certain of its customers residing in foreign coun-

tries, which drafts were drawn for payment of cer-

tain shipments of commodities by said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, to said cus-

tomers. That it was then and there further agreed

by and between said Richfield Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, and said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co., a corporation, that said ar-

rangement for the collection of said foreign drafts

by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. was

separate and distinct from any other financial trans-

actions between said parties.

That pursuant to said agTeement, said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, there-

after deposited with said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation, certain of its

foreign drafts for collection, [4] among which were

the following drafts deposited on or about Octo-

ber 8, 1930:

Draft No. 103005, dated October 8, 1930,

drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, on Birla Brothers, Ltd.,

at Calcutta, India, in the sum of $63,950, pay-

able at 180 days sight

;
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Draft No. 103006-B, dated October 8, 1930,

drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, on Birla Brothers, Ltd.,

at Calcutta, India, in the sum of $55,900.75,

payable at 180 days sight.

That each of said drafts was thereafter duly

accepted for payment by said draw^ee and there-

after became due and payable on May 14, 1931.

That in addition to the two drafts hereinabove

set forth, said Richfield Oil Company of California,

a corporation, thereafter deposited with said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, for

collection, its draft drawn on Birla Brothers, Ltd.,

Calcutta, India, in the sum of $23,607.50, which

said draft matures for payment on August 19, 1931.

VIII.

That thereafter, and during the months of Octo-

ber and November, 1930, said Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California, a corporation, borrowed from

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a cor-

poration, the sums of approximately $155,000, the

repayment of which was secured by all said foreign

drafts and/or the proceeds thereof of Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, then de-

posited with said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., a corporation, and all future foreign drafts

and/or the proceeds thereof that might thereafter

be placed by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, with said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co., a corporation, for collection.
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That at the times said sums aggregating approxi-

mately $155,000 were so advanced by said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, it

was again then and there agreed by said Bank
witli said Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, that these loans were and would be

considered by said Bank and by said Richfield Oil

Comx^any of California, a corporation, entirely dis-

tinct and separate and apart from any and all other

financial transactions between said parties.

That thereafter, and prior to the 15th day of

January, 1933, the whole of said sums aggregating

approximately $155,000 so borrowed by said Rich-

field [5] Oil Company of California, a corporation,

from said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, on said drafts and secured thereby,

was repaid to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, by said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, and said

Bank now has no claim for said sum or any part

thereof, or upon any of said drafts so deposited

for collection or the proceeds thereof.

IX.

That after the appointment and qualification of

said William C. McDuffie as receiver for said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, as

aforesaid, and on or about the 28th day of March,

1931, said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, filed with said receiver its proof of

claim, which alleged that said
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"Richfield Oil Company of California, a corpo-

ration, was on the 15th day of January, 1931,

and at the time of the appointment of the Re-

ceiver herein and still is, justly and truly in-

debted to said claimant in the sum of Six Hun-

dred Thirty-six Thousand One Hundred Eighty-

nine and 95/100 Dollars ($636,189.95) :

The basis of said debt is as follows:

Moneys loaned by claimant to said Richfield

Oil Company of California at its special in-

stance and request, evidenced by promissory

note dated July 12, 1930, copy of which said

promissory note is attached hereto marked Ex-

hibit 'A' and made a part hereof;

Interest on said promissory note from No-

vember 30, 1930, to March 16, 1931, at the rate

of six per cent (6%) per annum, and accruing

interest until paid

;

Moneys paid liy claimant at the special in-

stance and request of said Richfield Oil Com-

pan,v of California for attorneys fees and prep-

aration of indenture on behalf of creditor banks

in the sum of $91.28, together with interest

thereon from the 11th day of February, 1931,

to the 16th day of March, 1931, at the rate of

six per cent (6%) per annum, and accruing- in-

terest until paid

;

Moneys paid by claimant at the special in-

stance and request of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California for legal expenses in the

sum of $56.39, together with interest thereon



vs. William C. McDuffie 11

from the 4th day of March, 1931, to the 16th

day of March, 1931, at the rate of six per cent

(6%) per annum, and accruing interest until

paid;

That there are no offsets or counterclaims to

said debt ; no notes or other evidences of indebt-

edness have been taken or received except those

of which copies are hereto attached; no Judg-

ment has been rendered for such indebtedness

or any part thereof ; and no claim to preference

in payment from the receiversliip estate is

made;

That no securities are held hj said claimant

for said indebtedness." [6]

That no note or other evidence of indebtedness,

other than a copy of said note dated July 12, 1930

in the principal sum of $625,000, was attached to

said proof of claim.

X.

That said two foreign drafts dated October 8,

1930, hereinabove set forth in paragraph VII here-

of, became due and payable by said drawee on the

14th day of May, 1931, and at said time, said

drawee, Birla Brothers, Ltd., paid to Nederlandsche

Handel Maatschappij, at Calcutta, India, the cor-

respondent bank of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, the full amount of the

proceeds of each of said drafts, amounting to the

sum of $119,850.75, which said sum is now in the

course of transmittal by mail from said Neder-

landsche Handel Maatschappij to said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation.
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XI.

That said Welk Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, without right in law or equity, now

claims a lien on each of said drafts and the i3ro-

ceeds thereof, and further claims the right and

threatens to apply said proceeds, when received

from its said correspondent bank, towards the pay-

ment of the unsecured indebtedness owing it from

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, evidenced by said promis.sory note dated

July 12, 1930 in the sum of $625,000, plus accrued

interest.

XII.

That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, without right in law or equity fur-

ther claims a lien on the following drafts and the

proceeds thereof:

Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Ricardo Velas-

ques in the sum of $1,219 maturing April 15,

1931

;

Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Bueno & Co. in

the sum of $2,441, of which $1,500 matured on

January 10, 1931;

Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Sociedad Auto-

maviliania Colombiana in the sum of $779.10,

which matured January 25, 1931, but which

maturity date was extended by said Richfield

Oil Company of California to February 13,

1931; [7]
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Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Ito Bergonzali

in the sum of $53.45, maturing January 15,

1931.

That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, has already applied towards the pay-

ment of said unsecured indebtedness owing to it

from said Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, evidenced by said promissory note

dated July 12, 1930, part of the proceeds of said

last mentioned drafts, and threatens to so apply the

remainder of said i3roceeds, when received by it

from its correspondent bank or banks.

XIII.

That pursuant to said order of the District Court

of the United States in and for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, Central Division, hereto an-

nexed and marked Exhibit "A", appointing said

William C. McDuffie receiver for said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, and pursu.-

ant to said order of the District Court of the United

States in and for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, hereto annexed and

marked Exhibit "B", appointing said William C.

McDuffie ancillary receiver for said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, said receiver

was authorized forthwith to take and have complete

exclusive control, possession and custody of all the

property and assets owned by or under the control

of or in the possession of said Richfield Oil Com-
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pany of California, a corporation, real, personal

and mixed, of every kind, character and descrip-

tion, within the Ninth Judicial District, and all

persons, firms and corporations were forthwith or-

dered to deliver to said receiver all of said property

and assets of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corjDoration.

That payment by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, to said William C. Mc-

Duffie, as receiver for said Richfield Oil Company

of California, a corporation, of the proceeds of all

of said drafts is imperative and essential for the

continued operations of the business of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, by

said receiver pursuant to the orders of said Courts;

that said receiver is the true o^ATier of the proceeds

of said drafts, and said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, has no right, title or

interest in or to the same or any part thereof. [8]

WHEREFORE, said William C. McDuf!ie, an-

cillary receiver and complainant herein, prays for

relief as follows:

1. That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., a corporation, be ordered and directed to forth-

with deliver to William C. McDuffie, ancillary re-

ceiver, complainant herein, the proceeds of each of

the two foreign drafts set forth in paragraph VII

hereof immediately upon their receipt by said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, from

said Nederlandsche Handel Maatschappij, without

any right of offset or claim thereupon.
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2. That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., a corporation, be ordered and directed to forth-

with pay over to said William C. McDuffie, an-

cillary receiver, complainant herein, the proceeds

of said foreign draft in the sum of $23,607.50, de-

posited with it for collection hy said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, drawn on

Birla Brothers, Ltd., at Calcutta, India, and matur-

ing on August 19, 3931, immediately upon its receipt

by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a

corporation, from said Nederlandsche Handel Maat-

schappij, and the proceeds of all other foreign

drafts deposited with it for collection by said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation,

without any right of offset or claim thereupon.

3. That temporarily and during the pendency of

this suit, an injunction be issued against said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, and

all of its officers, agents and employees, and all

other persons claiming or acting by, through or un-

der it, or any or all of them, to restrain them from

disposing of any of said drafts or the proceeds

thereof, and that said complainant may have such

other and further relief in the premises as the needs

of the case may require and as may be agreeable

to equity.

4. That this Honorable Court give to complain-

ant herein, as receiver, such further directions and

instructions relating to the possession of all of said

drafts and the proceeds thereof as may by the Court

be deemed just and equitable.
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5. That a writ of subpoena be granted to said

complainant to be directed to said defendant, Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, in

this proceeding, requiring said defendant to be and

appear before this [9] Honorable Court within the

time required by law and the practice of this Court,

and then and there full, true, direct and perfect

answer make to all and singular the i)remises, and,

further, to j)erform and abide by such further order,

direction and decree thereof as to this court shall

seem meet.

GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN,
Solicitors for Complainant,

William C. McDuffie, as ancillary receiver of Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation.

[10]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco.—ss.

Ward Sullivan, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says:

That he is a member of the firm of Gregory, Hunt
& Melvin, the solicitors for William C. McDuffie,

ancillary receiver and complainant herein; that he

has read the foregoing bill of complaint and knows

the contents thereof, and that the same is true of

his own knowledge, except as to the matters therein

stated on information and belief and as to those mat-

ters he believes it to be true ; that affiant makes this

verification on behalf of said William C. McDuffie,

ancillary receiver and complainant herein, for the

reason that said William C. McDuffie is absent from
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the City and County of San Francisco, where affiant

has his offices.

WARD SULLIVAN.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day

of May, 1931.

[Seal] HALLIE L. LANFAR,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California. [11]

EXHIBIT "A"

ORDER APPOINTING RECEIVER

This case came on to be heard at this term and

was argued by counsel, and thereupon, upon con-

sideration thereof, the Court being fully advised in

the premises,

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DE-
CREED as follows:

1. William C. McDuffie is hereby appointed re-

ceiver of all the property, assets and business

owned by or under the control or in the possession

of the defendant, Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, real, personal and mixed, of whatsoever

kind and description, within the jurisdiction of

this court, including all lands, buildings, plants,

warehouses, pipe lines, refineries, tanks, ships,

shipping facilities, wharves, docks and dockage fa-

cilities, and appurtenances, owned, controlled,

leased or operated by said defendant, and all raw
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materials, materials in process of mamifacture,

finished materials, inventory, stock in trade, equip-

ment, tools, machinery, furniture, supplies, mer-

chandise and books of account, records, and other

books, papers and accounts, cash on hand, in bank,

or on deposit, things in action, credits, stocks,

bonds, securities, deeds, leases, contracts, bills and

accounts receivable, and all rents, issues and profits

and income accruing and to accrue from said as-

sets, property and business, with authority to take

possession of said assets and property and to con-

tinue said business as a going concern.

2. The defendant, its officers and employees, and

any persons acting under its direction, shall deliver

to the receiver any and all of the aforesaid proper-

ties, real, personal or mixed, in their possession or

under their control.

3. All creditors, stockholders, and all persons

claiming or acting by, through or under them, and

all sheriffs and marshals and other officers, agents,

attorneys, proctors, representatives, servants and

employees, and all other persons, associations and

corporations are hereby enjoined and restrained

from instituting or prosecuting any action at law,

or suit, or proceeding in equity or admiralty against

ihe defendant, in any court of law or equity or

admiralty, or before any association, organization

or arbitration board, or arbitration by referee or

umpire, or other court or tribu.nal. or othervvdse. or

from executing or issuing, or causing the execution

or issuance, or the issuing out of any court of any
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writ, process, summons, attachment, subpoena,

replevin or other proceeding for the purpose of im-

pounding or taking possession of or interfering

with any of the aforesaid pro]3erty owned by or in

the xDossession or under the control of said defend-

ant, or of the receiver, or o\\aied hy the defendant

and in the possession of any of its officers, agents or

employees, and all sheriffs, marshals and other offi-

cers and their deputies, representatives and ser-

vants, and all other persons, associations and cor-

porations are hereby enjoined and restrained from

removing, transferring, disposing of or attempting

in any way to remove, transfer or dispose of, or

in any way to interfere with any of the property,

assets or effects in the possession of the defendant

or of the receiver, and from doing any act or thing

whatsoever to interfere with the j^ossession and

management by the receiver of the property and

assets, or the lousiness of the defendant, or in any

way to interfere with the receiver in the discharge

of any of Ins duties, or to interfere in any manner

with the administration and disposition in this suit

of the property and affairs of the defendant.

4. Said receiver is hereby authorized forwith to

take and liave complete exclusive control, posses-

sion and custody of all of the property and assets

o\\med by or under the control of or in the posses-

sion of the defendant, real, personal and mixed of

every kind, character and description within the

Ninth Judicial Circuit, and all persons, firms and

corporations, including the defendant, its officers,



20 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

agents and employees, shall forthwith deliver to

the receiver all property and assets of the defend-

ant, or in its possession, or under its control, and

the defendant, its officers, agents and employees- are

hereby directed upon the request of the receiver to

endorse, transfer, set over and deliver to the re-

ceiver any and all shares or certificates of stock,

notes, bills of exchange or other documents, or

nuuiiments of title outstanding in the name of or in

the possession or under the control of the defend-

ant, or as to which the defendant has any interest,

and to execute and deliver powers of attorney and

proxies authorizing the receiver to vote on such

shares of stock or certificates, and the receiver is

hereby authorized to vote in person or by proxy

any and all shares of stock standing in the name of

the defendant.

5. The receiver is hereby authorized until the

further order of this court to continue, manage and

operate the l^usienss of the defendant, with full

power and authority to carry on, manage and

operate the business and properties of the defend-

ant, and to buy and sell merchandise and supplies

for cash or on credit as may be deemed advisable by

said receiver, and to the extent that the receiver

may determine that it is for the best interests of

the receivership estate so to do, to perform and

fulfill the contracts and obligations of the defendant,

and to enter into new contracts incidental to the

operation of its business, and to appoint and em-

ploy such managers, agents, employees, servants.
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accountants, attorneys and counsel as may in the

judgment of the receiver be advisable or necessary

in the management, conduct, control or custody of

the receivership estate, and the receiver is herel^y

authorized to make such payments and disljurse-

ments out of the property and assets of the de-

fendant in his possession as may be needful or

proper for the preservation and operation of the

Ijroperties and business of the defendant, to issue

such receivers' certificates for the purpose of meet-

ing the obligations of said defendant as may be au-

thorized from time to time by this court.

6. The receiver is hereby authorized to receive

and collect rents, income and j^rofits of any of the

properties of the defendant, whether the same are

now due or shall hereafter become due and payable,

and to do such things, enter into such agreements,

and employ such agents in connection with the

management, care, preservation and operation of

the properties of the defendant as the receiver may
deem advisable, and to incur such expenses and

make such disbursements as may in the judgment

of the receiver be [12] necessary or advisable, in-

cluding all bills and accrued charges for electric

light and power, gas, water, insurance, freight and

carriage charges on goods in transit, telephone

charges, taxes and charges of the nature thereof,

lawfully incurred or imposed upon the property

]irior to the receivership, and all claims for accrued

wages, salaries and expenses of officers, agents and

employees for services rendered prior to the date
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of tliis order but remaining unpaid at the date

hereof, to the end that the operation of the business

of the defendant may not be interfered with or in-

terrupted.

7. The receiver is hereby authorized and em-

powered to institute, prosecute and defend, com-

promise, adjust, intervene in or become a party to

such suits, actions, proceedings at law, in equity or

in admiralty, including ancillary proceedings in

State or Federal Courts as may in the judgment of

the receiver be necessary or proper for the protec-

tion, maintenance and preservation of the property

and assets of the defendant and the conduct of its

business, or the carrying out of the terms and pro-

visions of this order, and likewise to defend, com-

promise and adjust, or otherwise dispose of, any

and all suits, actions and proceedings instituted

against him as receiver or against the defendant,

and also to appear in and conduct the prosecution

or defense of any action, suit or proceeding or to

adjust or compromise any action, suit or proceed-

ing now pending in any court by or against the de-

fendant where such prosecution, defense or other

disposition of such action, suit or proceeding will

in the judgment of the receiver be advisable or

proper for the protection of the property and as-

sets of the defendant, and in his discretion to com-

pound and settle with all debtors of the defendant,

with persons having possession of its property or

in any way responsible at law or in equity to the

defendant upon such terms and in such manner as
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the receiver shall deem just and beneficial to the de-

fendant and its creditors.

8. The receiver is hereby given a period of six

(6) months from the date hereof within which to

arrive at a determination as to what contracts in-

cluding leases of the defendant the receiver should

affirm or disaffirm and within that time to make his

election in that respect ; the Court reserves the right

if so advised from time to time to extend or dimin-

ish the time so granted to the receiver within which

to make such election.

9. The receiver shall retain possession and con-

tinue to discharge the powers and duties aforesaid

until the further order of this Court in the premises

;

but shall from time to time apply to this Court for

such other and further orders and directions as he

may deem necessary or advisable for the due admin-

istration of the receivership; and the receiver is

hereby vested, in addition to the powers aforesaid,

with all the general powers of receivers in cases of

tills kind, subject to the direction of this Court, and

the receiver shall from time to time or when di-

rected by the Court render to the Court reports of

his proceedings and accountings with respect to all

moneys received and disbursed by him or his agents.

10. The bond of the receiver in the sum of

Three Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars,

conditioned that he will well and truly perform the

duties of his office and duly account for all moneys

and property which may come into his hands and

abide and perform all things which he shall be di-
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rected to do by this Court, with sufficient sureties to

be approved by a Judge of this Court, shall be forth-

with filed in the office of the Clerk of this Court.

11. A copy of this order shall, within ten (10)

days from the date hereof, be published in two is-

sues of the Los Angeles Daily Journal, a newspaper

of general circulation, printed and iDublished in the

City of Los Angeles, State of California.

Dated: January 15, 1931.

WM. P. JAMES,
United States District Judge.

Filed Jan. 15, 1931. R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk.

By Edmund L. Smith, Deputy Clerk. [13]

EXHIBIT "B"

This cause came on to l)e heard at this term on

motion of the Plaintiff for the appointment of an

Ancillary Eeceiver of the property owned by or

under the control of or in the possession of De-

fendant and located within the jurisdiction of this

Court, and upon reading the verified bill of com-

plaint and verified answer in this cause, the bill of

complaint and answer filed hy the Plaintiff and

Defendant in the District Court of the United

States for the Southern District of California, Cen-

tral Division, and the order of the District Court

of the United States for the Southern District of

California. Central Division, thereunder, made

January 15, 1931, appointing William C. McDuffie
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receiver, and after hearing counsel and it appearing

that said William C. McDuffie was appointed re-

ceiver upon the bill filed in and upon the order of

said Court, of the properties belonging to, or under

the control of, or in the possession of defendant,

Richfield Oil Company of California, located within

the jurisdiction of said Court, and that said Re-

ceiver has filed therein the bond required by said

original order.

It is ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED
that this Court take ancillary jurisdiction and that

William C. McDuffie be, and he is hereby, ap-

pointed Ancillary Receiver of the Richfield Oil

Company of California, a Delaware corporation, the

defendant above named, in and for the United

States Judicial District of the Northern District

of California, Southern Division, wdth all rights,

powers, privileges and authorities conferred upon

him by the order of the District Court of the United

States, for the Southern District of California,

Central Division, appointing the said William C.

McDuffie as Receiver, dated the 15th day of Jan-

uary, 1931, or by any subsequent order of said Dis-

trict Court of the United [14] States, for the South-

ern District of California, Central Division,

whether heretofore or hereafter made, and that said

William C. McDuffie is hereby authorized to per-

form any and all acts and take any and all steps in

the jurisdiction of this Court which the said Re-

ceiver has been or may be hereafter authorized to

take as Receiver in the jurisdiction of the District
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Court of the United States, for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, Central Division.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the said William C. McDuffie is

authorized to act as Receiver herein without tak-

ing any further oath of office or executing any fur-

ther bond.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the defendant, its agents and em-

ployees, and all other persons, including creditors

of the defendant, are hereby requested and com-

manded forthwith to deliver all property of every

nature belonging to the defendant, or under its con-

trol, or in its x)ossession, to the said Ancillary Re-

ceiver.

And it is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED
AND DECREED that the said defendant and each

and every of its agents and employees, and all

creditors of the defendant, and all marshals, sheriffs,

constables, and all deputies and servants, and all

other officers, and, generally, all persons, firms and

corporations whatsoever, are hereby enjoined from

removing, transferring, disposing of, or attempting

to remove, transfer or dispose of, or in any way
interfere with any of the properties of the defend-

ant, or from doing anything whatsoever of any na-

ture to interfere with the possession and control of

the said ancillary receiver of the property of said

defendant.

And it is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED
AND DECREED that all creditors, stockholders
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and all persons claiming or acting by, through or

under them, and all sheriffs and marshals and other

officers, agents, attorneys, proctors, representatives,

servants and employees, and all other persons, as-

sociations and corporations, are hereby enjoined

and restrained from instituting or prosecuting any

action at law or suit or proceeding in equity or

admiralty against the said defendant in any court

of law or equity or admiralty, or before any asso-

ciation, organization or arbitration board, or arbi-

tration by referee or umpire or other court or

tribunal, or otherwise, or from executing or issuing,

or causing the execution or issuance, or the issuing

out of any court of any writ, process [15] summons,

attachment, subpoena, replevin or other proceeding,

for the purpose of impounding or taking posses-

sion of or interfering with any property owned by

or under the control of or in the possession of said

defendant or of said Receiver; and all sheriffs,

marshals and other officers and their deputies, rep-

resentatives and servants, and all other persons, as-

sociations and corporations, are hereby enjoined

and restrained from removing, transferring, dis-

posing of or attempting in any way to remove,

transfer, dispose of or in any way to interfere with

any property, assets or effects in the possession of

the defendant or of the Receiver, or owned by the

defendant or under its control or in its possession or

in the possession or control of any of its officers,

agents or employees, and from doing any act or

thing whatsoever to interfere with the possession
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and management by the Receiver of the property

and assets of the defendant, or in any way to in-

terfere with the Receiver in the discharge of his

duties, or in carrying on the business of said de-

fendant, or to interfere in any manner with the ad-

ministration and disposition in this suit of the

proj)erty and affairs of the defendant.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the said Ancillary Receiver shall

have leave to apply to this Court for further orders

and authority at any time hereafter as may be

deemed by this Court proper and shall comply with

all orders of the court of original jurisdiction.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the said William C. McDuffie file

in this court certified copies of all orders affecting

the property of said defendant within this district

made by the District Court of the United States,

for the Southern District of California, Central

Division, in said original cause for the information

of the Court and all others interested.

Dated : January 15th, 1931.

FRANK H. KERRIGAN,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 23, 1931. [16]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ANSWER AND DEFENSES OF DEFENDANT
WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST
CO. TO ANCILLARY BILL OF COM-
PLAINT.

Comes now Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

defendant named in the ancillary bill of complaint

of AVilliam C. McDuffie as ancillary receiver of

Riclitield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

and answering said ancillary bill of complaint ad-

mits, denies and avers as follows, to-wit:

I.

Admits the allegations set forth in Paragraphs I,

II and III, of said ancillary bill of complaint. [17]

II.

Admits the taking and existence of the proceed-

ings for the appointment of William C. McDuffie as

Receiver of the property and assets of Richfield Oil

Company of California as a corporation set forth in

Paragraph IV of said ancillary bill of complaint,

but denies the jurisdiction of the Court to make
the appointment of said Receiver and denies that

said William C. McDuffie ever since the 15th day of

January, 1931, or from any time subsequent or

13rior thereto has been and/or now is the duly or

otherwise properly appointed and/or qualified

and/or acting Receiver for said Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California, a corporation, or of the assets

or property thereof.
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III.

Admits the taking and existence of the proceed-

ings for the appointment of William C. McDuffie

as Receiver of the property and assets of Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation as set

forth in Paragraph V of said ancillary bill of com-

plaint, but denies that since the 20th day of Janu-

ary, 1931, or any time subsequent or prior thereto,

said William C. McDuffie has been and/or now is

the duly or otherwise properly appointed and/or

qualified and/or acting ancillary receiver of or for

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, within said Northern District of Cali-

fornia, or elsewhere, or of the assets or property

thereof.

IV.

Admits the allegations set forth in Paragraph VI
of said ancillary bill of complaint with respect to

the borrowing by said defendant Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, from said de-

fendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., of

the sum of $625,000, and admits that no agreement

for collateral or [18] security for the repayment

of said amount was executed at said time l)y said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

to or for the benefit of said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation. l)ut avers in this

respect that subsequently, to-wit, in the months of

October, November and December of 1930 and Jaini-

ary of 1931, certain collateral security was de-

posited with said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust
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Co. as more particularly hereinafter set forth, as

security for certain indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, including?

said indebtedness of $625,000 in said ParagTaph YI
of said ancillary bill of complaint referred to.

V.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph VII of

said ancillary bill of complaint, said defendant de-

nies that said agreement was as set forth in said

Paragraph VII, and specifically denies that said

agreement for the deposit of certain foreign drafts

by Richfield Oil Company of California with said

defendant, was only for the pur]3ose of collection

and/or was separate and/or distinct from any other

financial transaction or transactions between said

parties and denies that said foreign drafts were

deposited only for collection and denies that each

of said drafts No. 103005 and No. 103006-B were

duly accepted for payment by the drawees thereof

and admits that the same became due and payable

on May 14, 1931, and admits that the draft last

referred to in said Paragraph VII, in the sum of

$23,607.50, matures for payment on August 19, 1931.

AVith respect to the agreement u.nder which said

drafts were deposited defendant avers that the only

agreement between said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. and said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, wdth respect to the deposit

[19] of said drafts and the collection and dispo-

sition of the proceeds thereof, Avas as set forth in

two certain written contracts each designated ''Ac-
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ceptance Agreement", duly executed by said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, and

addressed to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

prior to the receipt or acceptance of said drafts,

said Acceptance Agreements being dated respec-

tively October 4th and November 28th, 1930, and

being for the establishment of credits in favor of

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corpora-

tion, in the amounts respectively of $150,000 and

$5000; that true copies of said Acceptance AgTee-

ments, being the sole contract between said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation and

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. with

respect to the deposit of said drafts, and the collec-

tion thereof and the disposition of the proceeds

thereof, are hereto attached and expressly made a

part hereof, said Acceptance Agreement dated Octo-

ber 4, 1930 being designated and marked Exhibit

"A" and said Acceptance Agreement dated Novem-

ber 28, 1930, being designated and marked Ex-

hibit "B".

VI.

Defendant admits that in the months of October

and November, 1930, said Richfield Oil Company
of California, a corporation, borrowed from said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. the sum of

aiDproximately $155,000, repayment of which was

secured by certain foreign drafts and the proceeds

thereof, then or thereafter deposited with said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. by said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, and in
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this respect defendant avers that $150,000 of said

sum was borrowed pursuant to Acceptance Agree-

ment Exhibit "A" and $5000 was borrowed pur-

suant to Acceptance Agreement Exhibit "B" and

that the drafts dej)osited by said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of [20] California, a corporation, with said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. were to be

held and collected and the proceeds thereof held and

disposed of, pursuant to the terms, conditions and

covenants of said Acceptance Agreements and, as

therein set forth, as security for the amount ]:>or-

rowed iTuder said Acceptance Agreements and like-

wise as security for any other liability of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, to

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., whether

existing at the time of the execution of said Agree-

ments respectively or at the time of the deposit of

said drafts respectively, or thereafter contracted

or owing.

Defendant denies that at the time said sums ag-

gregating approximately $155,000 or any part

thereof were advanced by said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., or at any time, it was again, or

at all, then or there, or at any time, agreed by said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. with said

Richfield Oil Company of California, or with any

person or party in behalf of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, that said loans or any thereof

were and/or would l^e considered by said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. and/or by said

Richfield Oil Company of California as entirely or
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at all distinct aud/or separate and/or apart from

any and/or other financial or other transaction or

transactions between said parties.

Defendant admits that said sum aggregating ap-

proximately $155,000 borrowed from said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. by said Richfield

Oil Company of California, pursuant to said Ac-

ceptance Agreements, was repaid, but denies that

said defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. now has no claim upon or to any of said drafts

deposited pursuant to said Acceptance Agreements,

or to the proceeds, or any thereof, of said drafts

[21] and in this respect defendant avers that pur-

suant to the express terms of said Agreements Ex-

hibits "A" and "B" and likewise pursuant to the

provisions of the laws of the State of California

with res^Dect to a banker's lien, defendant has a lien

and claim upon said drafts and all thereof and/or

the proceeds collected upon said drafts and to be

hereafter collected upon said drafts, as security for

any and all unpaid indebtedness from said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, to

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

VII.

With respect to the allegations set forth in Para-

graph IX of said ancillary bill of complaint, de-

fendant admits that defendant. Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co., filed, on or about the 28th day

of March, 1931, its Proof of Claim with said Wil-

liam C. McDuffie as Receiver for said Richfield Oil
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Company of California, a corporation, averring in

this respect, however, that said claim was filed

without consenting to the jurisdiction of said Wil-

liam C. McDuffie as said purported receiver for said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

and without waiving the rights of said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. to attack the jurisdiction

of said Receiver to require the filing of claims or to

act upon or decide the same, or to liquidate or con-

tinue the business of said Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, or to retain and dispose

of the assets and properties thereof.

Defendant admits that said claim embodied the

language purportedly quoted therefrom in Para-

gra^Dh IX of said ancillary lull of complaint and

further admits that no note or other evidence of

indebtedness, other than a copy of said note dated

July 12, 1931, in the principal sum of $625,000, was

attached to said Proof [22] of Claim. Further in

this respect said defendant avers that at the time

of the preparation of said Claim the information

therefor was compiled and delivered to said de-

fendant by its Note Department; that said Note

Department was then and now is a separate Depart-

ment of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

;

that the Foreign Department of said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. was likewise then and now

is a separate Department of said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. ; that said Note Department, at

the time of filing said Claim, kept and still does
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keep, records of loans from and indebtedness to

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. evi-

denced by promissory notes, and had not at that

time and has now, no records in its Department of

collateral or other security deposited with said

Foreign Department or with any of the other

separate Departments of said Wells Fargo Bank &

Union Trust Co.; that therefore, through inad-

vertence and lack of knowledge, by said Note De-

partment, said claim stated that there were no off-

sets or counterclaims to the indebtedness set forth

in said claim, and no claim to preference in pay-

ment and further stated that no securities were held

by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. for

said indebtedness, whereas at said time the truth and

the facts Avere and now are, that there were and now

are certain collateral securities in the possession of

Wells Fargo Bank S: Union Trust Co., and par-

ticularly of its said Foreign Department, as se-

curity for all of the said indebtedness of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, to

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., being

more particularly, the drafts and/or proceeds

thereof, referred to in said ancillary bill of com-

plaint and more specifically hereinafter referred to.

That prior to the filing of said Claim, to-wit: on

or about the 16th day of January, 1931, in response

to a [23] telegraphic request from said William C.

McDuffie to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. requesting the restoration of said cash balances
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upon which said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. had prior thereto exercised its banker's lien,

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. duly

informed said Receiver by telegram and otherwise

that it would restore and did restore to said Wil-

liam C. McDuffie as Receiver, the balance in the

checking account at Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, expressly stating, however, that said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. was holding certain

collections, to-wit: said drafts, as security for ac-

ceptances and advising said Receiver that said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. continued to re-

serve all of its rights under said agreements, and /or

its banker's lien against said collections as security

for all indebtedness of said Richfield Oil Company
of California to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. Said information was transmitted to said

Receiver on or about the 16th day of January,

1931, and at all times subsequent thereto said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. has maintained and

so advised ^said Receiver, that it claimed said drafts

and/or the proceeds thereof, as security for the in-

debtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, to it, except only that at the request of said

Receiver said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. subsequently remitted the sum of $1956.52 on

account of jDartial collection received upon a certain

draft known as the Bueno & Co. draft hereinafter

more specifically referred to.
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Upon the discovery of the inadvertence of its

Note Department with respect to the preparation of

said claim hereinbefore referred to, said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. forthwith, to-wit : on

or about the 19th day of May, 1931, prepared a [24]

written amendment to claim, a true copy of which

Amendment to Claim is attached hereto and marked

Exhibit "C" and by reference made a part hereof;

there was attached to and made a part of said

Amendment to Claim as Exhibits ''A", "B" and

"C" thereof respectively, a true cop}^ of the Proof

of Claim of AYells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

hereinbefore referred to and true copies of said

Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and "B" to

this Answer; said Amendment to Claim, including

said exhibits thereto, was duly presented to said

William C. McDuffie, as Receiver of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, on May 20, 1931, but

said William C. McDuffie refused to accept the

same. Thereupon, forthwith, said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. prepared and filed in the Dis-

trict Court of the United States in and for the

Southern District of California, Central Division,

in the jiroceedings in which said receivershii^ of

said Richfield Oil Company of California was pend-

ing, its verified Petition for an order to show cause

why the ReceiA^er should not be compelled to re-

ceive said Amendment to Claim. Subsequently,

after negotiations betAveen the Attorneys for said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. and the

Attorneys for said Receiver, it was stipulated that
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said Amendment to Claim, including the exhibits

thereto, should be filed, without prejudice to the

Receiver's right to subsequently reject the same, or

to make any objections to its contents, and the

time and manner of filing thereof, and thereafter,

on to-wit: the 29th day of May, 1931, it was duly

and regularly ordered by the Honorable William

P. James, United States District Judge for the

United States District Court, Southern District of

California, Central Division, in the proceedings

there pending, that said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. be authorized to file its Amendment to

Proof of Claim, including the exhibits thereto, and

that said William C. McDuffie as Receiver [25]

be instructed to receive and accept the same for

filing. A true copy of said order is attached hereto,

marked Exhibit "D" and by express reference made

a part hereof.

YIII.

With respect to the allegations set forth in Para-

graph X of said ancillary bill of complaint said

defendant admits that said drafts dated October 8,

1930, and referred to more specifically in Paragraph

VII of said ancillary bill of complaint, became due

and payable by the drawee thereof on the 14th day

of May, 1931, and admits that said drafts were at

said time by the drawee thereof paid to Neder-

landsche Handel Maatschappij, at Calcutta, India,

but in this respect avers that payment thereof to

defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

was not made until the 10th day of June, 1931, at
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which time the net proceeds of said drafts, to-wit:

the sum of $119,512.54, were received in San Fran-

cisco, California, by defendant Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. and applied against the out-

standing indebtedness of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California to it.

IX.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph XI of

said ancillary bill of complaint said defendant ad-

mits that it claims a lien upon each of said drafts

referred to in Paragraph VII of said ancillary bill

of complaint but denies that said claim is without

right in law or in equity and admits that it claims

a lien upon said drafts and the proceeds thereof

and the right to apply the proceeds thereof as and

when received by it from its correspondent bank,

toward the payment of the unsecured indebtedness

owing to it from said Richfield Oil Company of

California, as evidenced by said promissory note

dated July 12, 1930, in the sum of $625,000, plus

accruing interest, and in this respect said defendant

avers that said drafts and each of them, and the [26]

proceeds thereof, were received by it pursuant to

said Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and

"B", and under the provisions of the laws of the

State of California with reference to banker's liens,

as security not alone for the sum of $155,000 ad-

vanced pursuant to said Acceptance Agreements,

but as security for any and all indel)tedness of said
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Richfield Oil Compaii}^ of California to said defend-

ant bank, whether existing at the time of the deposit

of said drafts or the execution of said Agreements

or at any time thereafter existing.

X.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph XII of

said ancillary bill of complaint said defendant ad-

mits that it claims a lien upon the drafts set forth

in said Paragraph XII and the proceeds thereof,

but denies that said claim to a lien is without right

in law or in equity and in this respect defendant

avers as follows:

With respect to the second draft referred to in

said Paragraph XII of said ancillary bill of com-

plaint, to-wit: the draft drawn by Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, on Bueno &

Co., in the sum of $2,441.00, defendant avers that

at the request of William C. McDuffie as Receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California, a corpo-

ration, it transmitted to him the sum of $1956.54 on

account of the proceeds of said draft received by

it, with the express understanding and agreement

however, that the transmittal of said proceeds was

for the convenience of said William C. McDuffie

and without waiver of any of the rights of said

defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

pursuant to said Acceptance Agreements and/or

under its banker's lien, with respect to the balance

of said draft, or of any other of said drafts, or the

proceeds thereof.
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Further answering the allegations of Paragraph

XII of said ancillary bill of complaint, said de-

fendant admits that it has already applied toward

the payment of said indebtedness [27] owing it

from said Richfield Oil Company of California,

evidenced by said promissory note dated July 12,

1930, denying however, that said indebtedness was

unsecured, part of the proceeds of said last men-

tioned drafts and intends, unless precluded by the

order of this Court, to apply the remainder of the

proceeds of said drafts as and when received by it

upon the collection thereof, to the payment of said

indebtedness. In this respect defendant avers that

it has received and applied the proceeds of said

drafts and of the drafts mentioned in Paragraph

VII of said ancillary bill of complaint, i^ursuant to

the terms, conditions and covenants of said Accept-

ance Agreements Exhibits "A" and "B", and pur-

suant to its banker's lien, in the following amounts

and as follows:

Amount
Drawee Amount Date Paid Received

Bueno & Co. $2441.00 May 11,1391 (Bal) $ 4!i9.06

Ricardo Velasques 1219.00 May 19, 1931 1245.11

Birla Bros. (Drafts Nos.

103005 and 103006-B) 119,850.75 June 10, 1931 119,512.54

Total amount received and credited against said indebt-

edness of Richfield Oil Co. of California herein-

before referred to $121,226.71
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XI.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph XIII of

said ancillary bill of complaint, said defendant de-

nies that said Receiver was at any time authorized

forthwith or at any time to take and/or have com-

plete, exclusive or any control or possession or

custody of all or any of the property and/or as-

sets owned by or under the control of or in the

possession of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, real, personal or mixed,

or of any kind or character or description, within

the Ninth Judicial District or elsewhere, and

denies that all persons and/or firms and/or cor-

porations were ever validly or properly, or with

[28] due or any proper authorization, forthwith

or at any time, ordered to deliver to said Re-

ceiver all or any of the property or assets of said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

and in that respect defendant expressly avers that

said District Court in and for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, Central Division, was without

jurisdiction or authority to make said order marked

Exhibit "A" to complainant's ancillary bill of

complaint, or any valid or proper order appointing'

s?id William V. McDuffie or any other person Re-

ceiver for said Richfield Oil Company of California,

a corporation, and denies that said District Court

of the United States in and for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division, had juris-

diction or authority to make said order marked

Exhibit "B" to complainant's ancillary bill of com-

plaint, or any valid or proper order appointing
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said William C. McDuffie or any other person an-

cillary receiver for said Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation.

Further answering the allegations of Paragraph

XIII of said ancillary bill of complaint, defendant

denies that the payment by said defendant Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to said William

C. McDuffie as Receiver for said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, or otherwise, of

the proceeds or any thereof, of all or any of said

drafts, is imperative or essential for the continued

or other operations of the business of said Rich-

field Oil (^ompany of California by said Receiver

pursuant to the order or orders of said Court or

(^ourts, or pursuant to any order or any authority,

and in this respect defendant further avers that

said Receiver has no authority or jurisdiction to

continue the business of said corporation.

Defendant denies that the Receiver is the true

owner or the owner, or has any claim to the pro-

ceeds of said drafts or any thereof or to said drafts

and denies that said Wells Fargo Bank [29] &
Union Trust Co. has no right or title or interest in

or to the same or any thereof or any part thereof

and in this respect defendant expressly avers that

upon the dej^osit of said drafts by it i3ursuant to

said two Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and

''B" said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

held said drafts and each thereof and the proceeds

thereof, as security for any and all indebtedness of

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-
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poration, to it, including said indebtedness evi-

denced by said promissory note dated July 12,

1930 in the amount of $625,000 with accruing in-

terest thereon, and that irrespective of said Agree-

ments Exhibits "A" and "B", said defendant held

said drafts and/or the proceeds thereof at all times

subsequent to the maturity of said indebtedness of

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., to-wit: the 10th day of September, 1930, pur-

suant to the banker's lien of said defendant as

created by the laws and statutes of the State of

California with the right to apply said drafts

and/or the proceeds thereof against said matured

indebtedness and that upon the collection of said

drafts said defendant, Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., had and has the right, pursuant to said

Agreements and pursuant to its said banker's lien,

to apply the proceeds thereof on account of the

matured and unpaid indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, to it.

And for a FURTHER, SEPARATE AND
SECOND DEFENSE to said ancillary bill of com-

plaint, said defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., admits, denies and avers as follows, to-

wit:

I.

Said defendant avers that the above entitled

Court is without jurisdiction to determine the ques-
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tion herein presented [30] as to the ownership of

the drafts referred to in said bill of comj)laint

and/or the proceeds thereof.

II.

Said defendant avers that the Order of the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Southern

District of California, Central Division, purx3ort-

edly appointing said William C. McDuffie as Re-

ceiver of said Richfield Oil Company of California,

a corporation, and/or of the assets and properties

thereof, was improper and unauthorized and made

without proper jurisdiction of said Court in said

proceedings and furthermore, that the Order of

the District Court of the United States for the

Northern District of California, Southern Division,

purportedly appointing said William C. McDuffie

as ancillary Receiver of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, and/or of the

assets and properties thereof, was improper and un-

authorized and made without proper jurisdiction of

said Court in said proceedings.

III.

Said defendant avers further that said Receiver

has no right or authority, nor any jurisdiction to

liquidate the affairs of said Richfield Oil Company

of California, a corporation, or to continue the

business of said corporation, nor has said Receiver

any right or authority to fix the time for the pre-

sentation of claims against said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, or to pass upon

the validity of said claims, or to pay the same, or
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to preclude the filing of said claims or of amend-

ments to claims, and specifically that said Receiver

had and has no jurisdiction to require said AYells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to file its said

claim in said receivership proceedings, or to deny

to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. the

right to file an amendment to said claim or to deny

to said Wells Fargo Bank & [31] Union Trust Co.

its right to claim said drafts and/or the proceeds

thereof as security for said indebtedness of said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

to defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

on account of the alleged delay in presenting the

claim thereto or on account of the alleged waiver

by the filing of said defendant's claim against said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

or for any reason.

In this respect defendant further avers that any

order of the a])ove entitled Court or of the United

States District Court for the Northern District of

California, Southern Division, purporting to give

to said Receiver, or to said ancillary Receiver, the

right to fix a time for the presentation of claims,

and/or the right to pass upon and/or reject said

claims, and /or to determine the validity or in-

validity thereof and/or to determine what security

if any said defendant or other claimants may or

might have as securing the indebtedness of said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

to it or them, was and is without jurisdiction and

made and given in excess of and without the juris-

diction of said Courts or either thereof.



48 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

WHEREFORE, said defendant, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., prays:

I.

That complainant take nothing by his said ancil-

lary bill of complaint.

II.

That the relief sought by complainant in his said

ancillary bill of complaint be denied.

III.

That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

be authorized and permitted to retain said drafts

and/or the proceeds [32] thereof and to apply the

same against the indebtedness of said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, to it, or that

said complainant be found to be without any right,

title or interest in or claim to said drafts and/or

the proceeds thereof, and that said AVells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. be found to be the owner

of said drafts and/or the proceeds thereof, for the

purpose of securing the indebtedness of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, to

it, and for the purpose of applying the proceeds of

said drafts, as and w^hen received by it, against the

unpaid and matured inde])tedness of said Richfield

Oil Comj^any of California, a corporation, to it.

IV.

That said defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. recover from said complainant its costs

of suit herein incurred.
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V.

That defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. have such other and further relief as to

this court shall seem meet.

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE
AND McAULIFFE,

Solicitors for Defendant, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. [33]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Julian Eisenbach being duly sworn, desposes and

says: That he is an officer, to-wit: Vice-President

of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a cor^Dora-

tion, and as such is authorized to and does make

this verification for and on behalf of said corpora-

tion; that he has read the foregoing Answer and

knows the contents thereof; that the same is true

of his own knowledge except as to the matters which

are therein stated on information or belief and as

to those matters he believes the same to be true

JULIAN EISENBACH.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 24th day

of July, 1931.

(Seal) JENNIE DAGGETT,
Notary Pul)lic in and for the City and

County of San Francisco, State of

California.

My Commission Expires Feb. 29, 1932. [34]
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EXHIBIT "A"

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT
(Arising out of importation or exportation of goods)

To AVELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST
CO., SAN FRANCISCO.

Dear Sirs:

We hand you herewith, for acceptance, the fol-

lo^Ying drafts:

Number Date Covering following Amount

Oct. 6 Merchandise $150,000

Marks Numbers Description

Payable in San Francisco to the order of Ourselves

It is agreed that the proceeds of the above will

be used for financing the actual goods under con-

sideration, and the proceeds of the sale of the goods

shall be applied to liquidate the acceptance.

In consideration of your acceptance of the said

draft or drafts the undersigned, jointly and

severally, agree to pay you at the time of the ac-

ceptance a commission of per cent, and

further agree to pay you the amount of the said

draft or drafts at your office one day before ma-

turity. We waive all liability on your part in case

the goods are not according to contract, either in

description, quality, or quantity, or in any other
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respect. All bills of lading, warehouse receipts and

other documents of title and all money and goods

held by you as security for any such acceptance

shall also be held by you as security for any other

lial)ility from us to you whether then existing or

thereafter contracted and bind ourselves to furnish

you prior to with ship-

ping documents covering this merchandise or with

exchange arising out of the transaction being

financed by the credit.

We further agree to give and furnish you on de-

mand additional security or to make payment on

account in amounts and character satisfactory to

you. If we fail to comply with any such demand

or in ease of our insolvency, assignment, bank-

ruptcy, or failure in business, all our obligations and

liabilities direct or indirect to you whether arising

hereunder or otherwise shall forthwith become due

and payable without demand or notice. All goods

represented by bills of lading, warehouse receipts or

other documents of title, pledged with you as secur-

ity for your acceptances hereunder, shall be at all

times covered by us hj certiticates of insurance un-

der open policies to your order or by specific policies

payable to you as your interest may appear, to an

amount sufficient to cover your advances or obliga-

tions hereunder, and you are to have specific claim

and lien on such policies and their proceeds to the

amount of your interest in the goods thereby in-

sured. [35]
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Tlie undersigned hereby consents to any renewal

and extension of time of payment of any draft,

drafts or other indebtedness that may be granted

by you, and do also consent that the securities set

forth in said acceptance agreement may be ex-

changed or surrendered from time to time without

notice to or further assent from the undersigned,

and that the undersigned will remain bound by

this guarantee, notwithstanding such changes,

guarantees, renewals and extensions.

Upon our failure to comply with any of the terms

hereof or upon the non-pa}Tiient by us of this or

any other liability to you when due or at any other

time or times thereafter then in such case all obli-

gations and liabilities direct and contingent from

us to you whether arising hereunder or otherwise

sliall at your election forthwith become due and pay-

able without demand or notice and we hereby give

to you full power and authority to sell, assign,

transfer and deliver the whole or any part of the

se^^urities, bills of lading or documents of title or

the goods represented thereby or of any securities

substituted therefor or added thereto at any

broker's board or at any public or private sale with

or without notice or advertisement at your option

and do further agree that you may become a pur-

chaser at such sale if at any broker's board or at

public auction and hold the property or security so

2:>urchased a^ your own property absolutely free

from any claim of or in the right of ourselves. In
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case of any sale or other disposition of the whole

or any part of the security or property aforesaid,

you may apply the proceeds of such sale or disposi-

tion to the payment of all legal or other costs and

expenses of collection, sale and delivery and of all

expenses incurred in protecting the security or other

property or the value thereof, as hereinafter pro-

vided and may apply the residue of such proceeds to

the payment of this or of any then existing liability

of ours to you whether then payable or not, re-

turning the overplus to us and in case of any de-

ficiency we agree to pay to you the amount thereof

forthwith with legal interest. You may also upon

any such non-payment apply the balances of all our

deposit accounts in the same way that you are

authorized to apply the proceeds of any sale of the

security or property hereunder.

You may pay taxes, charges, assessments, liens

or insurance premiums upon the security or any

part of it, or otherwise protect the value thereof or

of the loroperty represented thereby, and may
charge against us all expenditures so incurred; l^ut

you shall be under no duty or liability with respect

to the protection or collection of any security held

hereunder or of any income thereon, nor with re-

spect to the i^rotection of preservation of any rights

pertaining thereto, beyond the safe custody of such

security. We hereby agree that if, in your opinion,

the market value of the security hereby or here-

after pledged to secure this obligation, after de-
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ductiug all charges against the same is at any time

less than the amount thereof and per

centum thereof added thereto ^Ye ^Yill upon demand,

deposit satisfactory additional security so that the

market value of the security pledged hereunder,

after deducting all charges, shall always equal the

amount of this obligation plus such additional per-

centage.

We hereby agree to indemnify you against any

lia])ility or resiDonsibility for the correctness,

validity, or genuineness of any documents or any

signatures or endorsements thereon representing

goods which you hold, purchase or sell under this

engagement, or for the description, quantity,

quality or value of the property declared therein,

or of any insurance certificates or policies, and

against any general loss or charges or other ex-

penses incurred accruing with respect to such goods

through delay in transmission of shipping docu-

ments or through any other cause, which charges

and other expenses we agree to pay. We further

agree that no delay on [36] your part in exercising

any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver of

such rights or of any right under this obligation.

EICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA,

(Seal) By R. W. McKEE,
By W. E. HART,

Treasurer.

Dated: October 4, 1930. [37]
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EXHIBIT "B"

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT
(Arising out of importation or exportation of goods)

To WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST
CO., SAN FRANCISCO.

Dear Sirs:

We hand you herewith, for acceptance, the fol-

lowing drafts:

Number Date Covering following Amount
Nov. 24 Merchandise $5000.00

Marks Numbers Description

Payable in San Francisco to the order of Ourselves

It is agreed that the proceeds of the above will

be used for financing the actual goods under con-

sideration, and the proceeds of the sale of the goods

shall be applied to liquidate the acceptance.

In consideration of your acceptance of the said

draft or drafts the undersigned, jointly and

severally, agree to pay you at the time of the ac-

ceptance a commission of per cent, and

further agree to pay you the amount of the said

draft or drafts at your office one day before ma-

turity. We waive all liability on your part in case

the goods are not according to contract, either in

description, quality, or quantity, or in any other

respect. All bills of lading, warehouse receipts and
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other documents of title and all money and goods

held by you as security for any such acceptance

shall also be held by you as security for any other

liability from us to you whether then existing or

thereafter contracted and bind ourselves to furnish

you prior to with ship-

ping documents covering this merchandise or with

exchange arising out of the transaction being

financed by the credit.

We further agree to give and furnish you on de-

mand additional security or to make payment on

account in amounts and character satisfactory to

you. If we fail to comply with any such demand

or in case of our insolvency, assignment, bank-

ruptcy, or failure in business, all our obligations and

liabilities direct or indirect to you whether arising

hereunder or otherwise shall forthwith become due

and payable without demand or notice. All goods

represented by bills of lading, warehouse receipts or

other documents of title, pledged with you as secur-

ity for your acceptances hereunder, shall be at all

times covered by us by certificates of insurance un-

der open policies to your order or by specific policies

payable to you as your interest may appear, to an

amount sufficient to cover your advances or obliga-

tions hereunder, and you are to have specific claim

and lien on such policies and their proceeds to the

amount of your interest in the goods thereby in-

sured. [38]

The undersigned hereby consents to any renewal
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and extension of time of pajanent of any draft,

drafts or other indebtedness that may be granted

by you, and do also consent that the securities set

forth in said acceptance agreement may be ex-

changed or surrendered from time to time without

notice to or further assent from the undersigned,

and that the undersigned will remain bound by

this guarantee, notwithstanding such changes,

guarantees, renewals and extensions.

Upon our failure to comply with any of the terms

hereof or upon the non-payment by us of this or

any other liability to you when due or at any other

time or times thereafter then in such case all obli-

gations and liabilities direct and contingent from

us to you whether arising hereunder or otherwise

shall at your election forthwith become due and pay-

able without demand or notice and we hereby give

to you full power and authority to sell, assign,

transfer and deliver the whole or any part of the

securities, bills of lading or documents of title or

the goods represented thereby or of any securities

substituted therefor or added thereto at any

broker's board or at any public or private sale with

or without notice or advertisement at your option

and do further agree that you may become a pur-

chaser at such sale if at any broker's board or at

public auction and hold the property or security so

purchased as your own property absolutely free

from any claim of or in the right of ourselves. In

case of any sale or other disposition of the whole
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or any part of the security or property aforesaid,

you may apply the proceeds of such sale or disposi-

tion to the payment of all legal or other costs and

expenses of collection, sale and delivery and of all

expenses incurred in protecting the security or other

property or the value thereof, as hereinafter pro-

vided and may apply the residue of such proceeds to

the payment of this or of any then existing liability

of ours to you whether then payable or not, re-

turning the overplus to us and in case of any de-

ficiency we agree to pay to you the amount thereof

forthwith with legal interest. You may also upon

any such non-payment apply the balances of all our

deposit accounts in the same way that you are

authorized to apply the proceeds of any sale of the

security or property hereunder.

You may pay taxes, charges, assessments, liens

or insurance premiums upon the security or any

part of it, or otherwise protect the value thereof or

of the property represented thereby, and may
charge against us all expenditures so incurred; but

you shall be under no duty or liability with respect

to the protection or collection of any security held

hereunder or of any income thereon, nor with re-

spect to the protection of preservation of any rights

pertaining thereto, beyond the safe custody of such

security. We hereby agree that if, in your opinion,

the market value of the security hereby or here-

after pledged to secure this obligation, after de-

ducting all charges against the same is at any time
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less than the amount thereof and per

centum thereof added thereto we will upon demand,

deposit satisfactory additional security so that the

market value of the security pledged hereunder,

after deducting all charges, shall always equal the

amount of this obligation plus such additional per-

centage.

We hereby agree to indemnify you against any

liability or responsibility for the correctness,

validity, or genuineness of any documents or any

signatures or endorsements thereon representing

goods which you hold, purchase or sell under this

engagement, or for the description, quantity,

quality or value of the property declared therein,

or of any insurance certificates or policies, and

against any general loss or charges or other ex-

penses incurred accruing with respect to such goods

through delay in transmission of shipping docu-

ments or through any other cause, which charges

and other expenses we agree to pay. We further

agree that no delay on [39] your part in exercising

any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver of

such rights or of any right under this obligation.

EICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFOENIA,

(Seal) By J. F. WALLACE,
By B. B. WILSON.

Treasurer.

Dated: November 25, 1930. [40]
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EXHIBIT "C"

AIMENDMENT TO PROOF OF CLAIM.

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

On the 19tli day of May, 1931, came F. I. Ray-

mond, of and in said State and City and County,

and made oath and says he is authorized to make

this proof.

That affiant is Vice-President and Cashier of

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corpora-

tion organized and existing under and by virtue of

the laws of the State of California, ^Yith its prin-

cipal place of business in the (Uty and County of

San Francisco, claimant herein, and verified this

amendment to proof of claim for the following

reasons

;

That claimant has no Treasurer and that of all

its officers the duties of affiant correspond most

nearly to those of Treasurer;

That as set forth in the verified claim of claimant

filed with the Receiver herein on the 30th day of

March, 1931, a copy of which claim is hereunto an-

nexed, marked Exhibit "A" [41] and made a part

hereof, Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration was, on the 15th day of January, 1931,

and at the time of the appointment of the Receiver

herein, and still is, justly and truly indebted to

said claimant in the sum of $636,189.95

;

That the basis of said indebtedness is for moneys

loaned by claimant to said Richfield Oil Company



vs. WiUiam C. McBuffie 61

of California at its special instance and request,

evidenced by a promissory note dated July 12,

1930, a copy of which said promissory note is at-

tached to said verified claim hereinbefore referred

to, as Exhibit "A" thereof, together with interest

thereon from November 30, 1930, at the rate of six

per cent per annum and accruing interest, and also

for certain moneys paid by claimant at the special

instance and request of said Richfield Oil Company

of California for and in behalf of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, all as more particularly

set forth in said verified claim. Exhibit ^'A", to

which reference is hereby made for the particulars

of said claim;

That at the time of the preparation of said claim

the information therefor was compiled and delivered

to affiant by the Note Department of said claimant,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. ; said Note

Dex^artment was then and now is, a separate De-

partment of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. ; the Foreign Department likewise was then

and now is a separate Department of said Claimant,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.; said Note

Department at that time kept and does still keep

records of loans from and indebtedness to said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., evidenced

by promissory notes, and had not at that time and

has now no records in its Department of collateral

or other security deposited with said Foreign De-

partment or with [42] any of the other separate
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Departments of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co.;

That therefore, through inadvertence and lack of

knowledge by said Note Department said claim,

Exhibit "A", stated that there were no offsets or

counterclaims to the debt set forth in said claim

and no claim to preference in payment from the re-

ceivership estate was made, and further stated that

no securities were held by said claimant for said

indebtedness whereas at said time the truth and

the facts were and now are, that unknown to said

Note Department there were and now are certain

collateral securities in the possession of said For-

eign Department as security for all of the said in-

debtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., claimant herein, more particularly as follovrs,

to-wit

:

On or about the 14th day of October, 1930,

and prior to the appointment of the Receiver

herein, said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation delivered to claimant,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and

particularly to its said Foreign Department, a

certain Acceptance Agreement in the amount

of $150,000.00, a cop.y of which said Agreement

is annexed hereto, marked Exhibit "B" and

by reference made a part hereof.

On or about the 28th day of November, 1930,

and prior to the appointment of the ReceiA^er

herein, said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-
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fornia, a corporation, delivered to claimant,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and

particularly to its Foreign Department, a cer-

tain Acceptance Agreement in the amount of

$5,000.00, a copy [43] of which said Agreement

is attached hereto, marked Exhibit ''(-" and by

reference made a part hereof.

Pursuant to the terms of said Agreements here-

inbefore referred to and prior to the appointment

of a Receiver herein, said Richfield Oil Company,

a corporation, delivered to claimant, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., and particularly to its

Foreign Department, certain drafts drawn by it

upon the following persons and for the following

amounts and upon the following terms:

RICARDO VALASQUES, Twelve Hundred

Nineteen Dollars ($1219.00), maturing April

15, 1931

;

BUENO & CO. Twenty-four Hundred Forty-

one Dollars ($2441.00), Fifteen Hundred Dol-

lars ($1500.00) of which matured on January

10, 1931

;

SOC^EDAD AUTOMAVILIANIA COLOM-
BIANA, Seven Hundred Seventy-nine and

10/100 ($779.10) Dollars, which matured Jan-

uary 25, 1931, but which maturity date was

extended by said Richfield Oil Company of

California to February 13, 1931;

ITO BERGONZALI, Fifty-three and Forty-

five one-hundredths Dollars ($53.45), matur-

ing January 15, 1931

;
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BIRLA BROS., Fifty-five Tliousand Nine

Hundred and 75/100 Dollars ($55,900.75), ma-

turing May 14, 1931

;

BIRLA BROS., Sixty-three Thousand Nine

Hundred Fifty Dollars ($63,950.00), maturing

May 14, 1931;

BIRLA BROS., Twenty-three Thousand Six

Hundred Seven and 50/100 Dollars ($23,-

607.50), maturing August 19, 1931.

Pursuant to the terms of said Agreements, Ex-

hibits "B" and "C", and particularly the pro-

visions thereof providing that the security deposited

thereunder should be held by said Bank not alone

as security for the Acceptances referred to in said

Agreements, but also as security for any other lia-

lulity of said Richfield Oil Company of (California

to claimant, Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

whether then existing or thereafter [44] contracted,

and pursuant likewise to the laws and statutes of

the State of California with respect to the ])anker's

lien of claimant and particularly Section 3054 of

the Civil Code, claimant asserts a lien upon said

drafts and upon all moneys heretofore paid by, or

in behalf of the drawees named in said drafts (ex-

cept as hereinafter set forth) and upon any and all

moneys which may hereafter be paid b}^, or in be-

half of the drawees of said drafts and claim is

hereby made by claimant against the receivership

estate for the balance of said indebtedness to claim-

ant remaining unpaid after crediting the moneys
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last hereinabove referred to, paid or to be paid by

the drawees of said drafts:

That there has been paid on account of said

drafts

:

The principal amount of the draft of Ri-

cardo Velasquez, to-wit: the sum of $1219.00,

together with $27.63 interest due thereon,

against which there was a collection charge of

$1.52, making the net sum of $1245.11 collected.

The principal amount of the draft of Bueno

& Co. to-wit : the sum of $2441.00, against which

there was a collection charge of $15.42, making

the net sum of $2425.58 collected.

Of said principal sum of $2441.00 claimant has

remitted to the Receiver of Richfield Oil Company

of California the sum of $1956.52 (being the sum

of $1970.00 collected on account of said draft, less

collection charges of $13.48) pursuant to the re-

quest of said Receiver hereinafter set forth. Said

sum of $1245.11 collected on the draft of said

Ricardo Velasquez and said sum of $469.06 (being

the sum of $471.00, the balance on account of the

draft of Bueno c^^ Co., less the sum of $1.94 col-

lection charges) have been claimed and applied by

claimant pursuant to said Agreements marked Ex-

hibits "B" and '^C" and pursuant to said banker's

lien hereinbefore referred to and said moneys are

held as a credit against the indebtedness of said

Richfield Oil Company of California to claimant.

[45]
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With respect to said drafts hereinbefore referred

to, said Exhibits "B" and "C" and said banker's

lien, claimant sets forth the following further facts

:

Upon receiving notice on or about the 15th day

of January, 1931, that Wm. V. McDuffie had been

appointed as Eeceiver of Richfield Oil Company

of California claimant, in exercise of its banlvcr's

lien, applied the balance of moneys on deposit or on

hand of Richfield Oil Company of California in the

possession of claimant, on account of the then past

due indebtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of

California to claimant;

On or about the 16th day of January, 1931, said

Receiver telegraphed to claimant as follows:

''As receiver I am ordered by Federal Court

to take over all assets including cash in l)anks

stop While you have undoubted right of off-

set, such right if exercised will seriously cripple

receivers operations. It is necessary therefore

to request that all l}anks restore to receiver full

cash l)alance stop Please therefore transfer

such funds to a new account on your books in

my name as receiver evidence of my authority

and signature cards mil follow by mail stop

Local banks have indicated they will acquiesce

in this program."

In response thereto claimant replied to said Re-

ceiver as follows:

"Replying telegram we are willing to restore

into vour name as Receiver Richfield 's balance
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in checking account provided we are notified

by you that all company's banks have taken

similar action Stop We are holding certain

collections as security for acceptance Please

understand that we continue to reserve all our

rights for bankers lien against these collec-

tions."

By said last named telegram claimant expressly

reserved its right to exercise its lien against said

collections held as security for acceptances, includ-

ing said drafts hereinbefore referred to. Said res-

ervation has at no time subsequently ])een waived

or withdrawn by claimant; except that claimant

subsequently remitted to the Receiver the sum of

$1956.54 on account of tlie Bueno & Co. draft here-

inbefore referred to. [46]

No part of the security heretofore referred to

(except said sum of $1956.54 on account of said

Bueno & Co. draft remitted to said Receiver as

aforesaid) held by claimant is in any manner

waived and with the exception of the security here-

tofore referred to no other security is held hy

said claimant for said indebtedness;

That as hereinbefore mentioned affiant and the

Note Department of claimant at the time of the

execution and filing of claimant's claim, had no

knowledge of said securities so held by the Foreign

Department of claimant and through inadvertence,
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therefore, failed to include said securities in claim-

ant's statement of claim.

F. I. RAYMOND,
Affiant

AVELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO. a corporation.

Claimant.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of May, 1931.

[Seal] AGNES M. COLE,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California. [47]

EXHIBIT ''D"

ORDER.

Upon the reading and filing of the petition of

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. for an

order authorizing the petitioner to file herein its

Amendment to Proof of Claim and instructing Wm.
C. McDuffie, Receiver herein, to receive and ac-

cept the same and upon the reading and filing of

the stipulation of counsel in reference to tlie mat-

ters in said petition mentioned, and good cause

appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. is hereby authorized to

file its Amendment to its verified Proof of Claim

herein and AYm. C. McDuffie, Receiver herein, is
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hereby instructed to receive and accept the same

for filing.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that

the receipt and acceptance for filing of said Amend-
ment to Proof of Claim by the said Wm. C. Mc-

Duffie, as Receiver herein, shall be without preju-

dice to the rejection thereof and/or the making of

any objection by said Receiver or any other person

to its contents or the time and manner of the filing

thereof, and without prejudice to the rights of

the said Wm. C. McDuffie, as such Receiver, or

Richfield Oil Company of California in the cause

now pending in the United States District Court,

Northern District of California, [48] Southern

Division, entitled, ''The Republic Supply Company
of California, a corporation, complainant, vs. Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation,

defendant—Wm. C. McDuffie, Ancillary Receiver

for Richfield Oil Company of California, vs. Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.," being cause in

Equity No. 2758-K in the files of the Clerk of said

Court.

Done in open Court at Los Angeles, California,

this 29 day of May, 1931.

WILLIAM P. JAMES,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Due service of the within Answer

of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and re-

ceipt of a copy thereof are hereby admitted this

25th day of July, 1931.

GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN,
Attorneys for Complainant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 25, 1931. [49]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ANCILLARY AMENDED BILL OF
COMPLAINT

By leave of court first had and obtained, William

C. McDuffie, as ancillary receiver for Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, brings this

his amended bill of complaint against Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, and alleges

as follows:

I.

That complainant, The Republic Supply Com-

pany of California, is a corporation duly organized

and existing under the laws of the State of Cali-

fornia ; that its office and principal place of business

is in the City of Los Angeles, State of California,

and that it is a citizen and resident of the State of

California.

II.

That defendant, Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, is a corporation duly organized and exist-

ing under the laws of the State of Delaware ; that its

[50] office and principal place of business is in the

City of Los Angeles, State of California, and that

it is a citizen and resident of the State of Delaware.

III.

That defendant, Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., is a corporation duly organized and ex-

isting under and by virtue of the laws of the State

of California ; that its principal place of business is

in the City and County of San Francisco, State of
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California, and that it is a citizen and resident of

said State of California.

IV.

That on January 15, 1931, said The Republic Sup-

ply Company of California, a corporation, filed an

action numbered S-125-J in the District Court of

the United States in and for the Southern District

of California, Central Division, against said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation. That

said bill of complaint alleged that said complainant

was a California corporation and the said defend-

ant was a Delaware corporation. That said bill of

complaint further alleged that said defendant was

indebted to said complainant in a sum in excess of

$275,000 upon an unsecured open book account for

goods, wares and merchandise sold and delivered

by said complainant to said defendant. That said

bill of complaint further alleged that certain other

creditors were pressing said defendant for pay-

ment of their claims and threatening attachments,

executions, seizures and forced sales of the property

of said defendant, with the necessary consequence

that said defendant would be compelled to cease

its business and that its assets, if sacrificed, might

not realize an amount sufficient to pay the credi-

tors of said defendant in full. That said bill of

complaint prayed that the rights of all creditors of

said defendant be determined and that meanwhile

a receiver be appointed of all of the property and

assets of said defendant and continue to carry on
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the business conducted by said defendant, and that

an injunction issue against said defendant, its

creditors, stockholders and all persons claiming or

acting by, through or under them, to restrain them

from interfering in any manner wdth said receiver

or taking possession of the property and assets of

said defendant and carrying on and conducting its

business. [51]

That said defendant formally appeared and filed

its answer to said bill of complaint, admitting the

allegations of said bill and consenting to the relief

demanded. That upon the same day that the action

was conunenced, said Court appointed William C.

McDuffie as receiver for Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, with the powers and

duties as to such receivership more fully set forth

in the order appointing said receiver, which was

duly signed by the Honorable William P. James,

United States District Judge then presiding in said

Court, at 9:40 A. M. on January 15, 1931, a copy

of which order is hereunto annexed, marked Ex-

hibit "A" and made a part hereof. That pursuant

to said order, said William C. McDuffie, on said

15th day of January, 1931, duly qualified as such

receiver and ever since has been and is now the duly

appointed, qualified and acting receiver for said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation.

V.

That thereafter, and on said 15th day of January,

1931, in the action of The Republic Supply Com-
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pany of California, a corporation, Complainant, v.

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation.

Defendant, duly filed in the District Court of the

United States in and for the Northern District

of California, Southern Division, No. 2758-K, said

William C. McDuffie was appointed ancillary re-

ceiver by the Honorable Frank H. Kerrigan, United

States District Judge in and for said Northern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division, of all the

property, assets and business of said defendant in

the Northern District of California. That a copy of

said order appointing said William C. McDuffie such

ancillary receiver is hereunto annexed, marked Ex-

hibit "B" and made a part hereof. That pursuant

to said order, and on the 20th day of January, 1931,

said William C. McDuffie filed his oath of office

with the Clerk of the United States District Court

in said District and duly qualified as such ancillary

receiver and ever since said time has been and is

now the duly appointed, qualified and acting ancil-

lary receiver of and for said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, within said

Northern District of California. [52]

VI.

That on or about the 12th dav of Jnlv, 1^)30,

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, by authorization of its Board of Directors,

borrowed from said defendant, Wells Fars^o Bank

& Union Trust Co., a corporation, the sum of

$625,000 and at that time made, executed and de-
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livered to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., or order, its promissory note in the principal

sum of $625,000, with interest thereon at the rate

of six per cent (6%) per annum, payable ninety

(90) days after date. That no agreement of any

kind for collateral or as security for the repayment

of said amount was executed then and there by said

Richfield Oil ComjDany of California, a corpora-

tion, to or for the benefit of said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co., a corporation.

VII.

That thereafter, and on or about the month of

August, 1930, an agreement was entered into by

and between said Richfield Oil Comi)any of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, and said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co., a corporation, whereby said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

agreed to deposit with said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation, for collection, drafts

drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of California

on certain of its customers residing in foreign coun-

tries, which drafts were drawn for payment of cer-

tain shipments of commodities by said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, to said cus-

tomers. That it was then and there further agreed

by and between said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, and said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co., a corporation, that said ar-

rangement for the collection of said foreign drafts

by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. was
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separate and distinct from any other financial trans-

actions between said parties.

That pursuant to said agreement, said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, there-

after deposited with said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation, certain of its

foreign drafts for collection, among which were
the following drafts deposited on or about Octo-

ber 8, 1930:

Draft No. 103005, dated October 8, 1930,

drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, on Birla Brothers, Ltd.,

at Calcutta, India, in the sum of $63,950, pay-

able at 180 days sight; [53]

Draft No. 103006-B, dated October 8, 1930,

drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, on Birla Brothers, Ltd.,

at Calcutta, India, in the sum of $55,900.75,

paj^able at 180 days sight.

That in addition to the two drafts hereinabove

set forth, said Richfield Oil Company of California,

a corporation, thereafter, and on or al)out January 8,

1931, dei3osited with said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, for collection, its draft No.

13107 drawn on Birla Brothers, Ltd., at Calcutta,

India, in the sum of $23,607.50, payable at 180 days

sight, and which became due upon the 19th day of

August, 1931.
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VIII

That thereafter and during the months of Oc-

tober and November, 1930, said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, and said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation,

made and entered into an agreement that drafts

drawn on said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

by said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, and payable to said Richfield Oil Company

of California, duly endorsed, would be endorsed and

accepted for payment by said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., termed "Banker's Acceptances,"

and that such acceptances would be sold up to the

amount of $155,000 and the proceeds thereof, less

discoimts, should be credited to the account of

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

at said bank; that in said agTeement it was further

understood and agreed that the proceeds of said

Banker's Acceptances were to be used for financing

the exportation of certain goods and commodities

then under consideration, and that the proceeds of

the sale thereof should be applied to liquidate said

acceptances, and that such acceptances were to be

payable ninety (90) days after the date of each

thereof, and were to be based upon drafts of Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation,

drawn upon its responsible foreign customers for

shipments of such goods and commodities, and

which said drafts were to be slightly in amount

and of a maturity shorter than the Banker's Ac-

ceptances for the payment of which before ma-
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tiirity such drafts were respectively reserved and

marked

That pursuant to such agreement, and on or about

the 8th day of October, 1930, there were delivered

to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. l)y

said [54] Richfield Oil Company of California two

drafts drawn upon Birla Brothers, Ltd., of Cal-

cutta, India, one numbered 103004 in the amount

of $63,950, due and payable at sight, and the other

numbered 103006A in the amount of $55,900.76, also

due and payable at sight, amounting in all to the

sum of $119,850.76; that thereafter and pursuant

to said agreement, nine Banker's Acceptances as

aforesaid, in the total amount of $115,000, all due

January 6, 1931, were executed, negotiated and sold

by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. and

the proceeds thereof, less the amount of discounts

thereon, were credited to the commercial deposit

account of Richfield Oil Company of California at

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. ; that

thereafter and pursuant to said agreement, other

and additional foreign drafts were deposited under

the terms of said agreement and Banker's Accept-

ances in the aggregate amount of $40,000 were ne-

gotiated and sold and the proceeds deposited to

the deposit account of said Richfield Oil Company

of California at said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., as aforesaid; that thereafter, and on the

20th day of February, 1931, the total amount of

said Banker's Acceptances so negotiated as afore-

said, in the sum of $155,000, was fully paid and
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discharged b}^ the application of the proceeds of

said drafts drawn upon customers arising out of

the exportation of goods and commodities as afore-

said.

That at the time of making said agreement it

was understood and agreed by and between Rich-

field Oil Company of California and Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., that the proceeds of the

sale of said goods covered by said foreign drafts

so deposited pursuant to such agreement as the

basis for said Banker's Acceptances should be re-

served for and applied to the liquidation of said

Banker's Acceptances before the due date thereof,

and that any surplus arising therefrom should be

held separate and apart from any and all other

financial obligations or transactions of Richfield

Oil Company of California to or with the Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

IX
That at the time of the appointment and qualifi-

cation of William C. McDuffie as receiver for Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, said

Richfield Oil Company of California had borrowed,

without security, from [55] and was indebted to

certain commercial banks in various parts of the

United States in an amount exceeding ten million

dollars, including said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. upon an unsecured note in the amount of

approximately $625,000; that in each of said banks,

including said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., said Richfield Oil Company of California main-
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tained a commercial deposit account and deposited

therein moneys and the proceeds of collections of

checks and drafts, and issued its checks and drafts

thereon in the ordinary course of business.

That at or about the time of the appointment

and qualification of William C. McDuffie as receiver

for Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, it was agreed by and between said re-

ceiver and each of said banks, including said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., that each of said

banks would transfer such balances so held in the

name of Richfield Oil Company of California to

that of William C. McDuffie as its receiver, and

would carry on and conduct said commercial ac-

counts in the ordinary course of business as afore-

said, and would not exercise any claim of a banker's

lien upon said balances and collections, in order to

enable said receiver to carry on and transact the

affairs of said Richfield Oil Company of California

for the benefit of the creditors thereof, including

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and all

others interested in said company, until the term-

ination of such receivership.

That thereupon and thereafter all of said drafts,

pursuant to said agreement, transferred said bal-

ances to the credit of said receiver and have since

continued to carry on and conduct said commercial

deposit accounts with said receiver as the same had

been conducted with said Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, as aforesaid, and have

refrained from asserting any claim of banker's
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lien or set-off against said balances and collections

therein.

That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

in violation of its said agreement by and with said

receiver and with said other banks, on the 9th day

of May, 1931, notified said Richfield Oil Company

of California that it proposed to apply the pro-

ceeds of the collection of the drafts hereinbefore

mentioned in paragraph VII hereof to its said pre-

existing unsecured obligation amounting to ap-

proximately $625,000 ; that by so doing a preference

in the payment of its said [56] obligation over that

of said other banks and creditors of Richfield Oil

Company of California similarly situated would be

accomplished, to the detriment of said estate under

the control of said receiver and all persons in-

terested therein, and an unjust and inequitable

advantage would be taken over the other banks and

creditors of said corporation, all -of which said

banks have fully performed and complied with the

terms and conditions of said agreement.

That said receiver, in the interest of all of said

other creditors of said Richfield Oil Company of

California, and acting under and pursuant to the

orders of this Honorable Court, demanded the

restoration and repayment to his account of said

moneys so sought to be applied by said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. as aforesaid, and

that said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

then and there refused and still refuses so to do.
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X
That pursuant to its agreement with said William

C. McDuffie, Receiver, and said other banks, said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. credited the

balances of Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, to said Receiver's account and con-

tinued to make collections of checks and drafts and

to make deposits of the proceeds thereof in the

ordinary course of business, crediting the same to

the account of said Receiver in said bank until the

9th day of May, 1931, as hereinbefore alleged, when,

in violation of its said agreement made and exe-

cuted as aforesaid, said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. notified said William C. McDuffie, Re-

ceiver, that it intended to apply to the partial liqui-

dation of its unsecured obligation of approximately

$625,000 the proceeds of said three drafts described

in paragraph VII hereof, then in course of collec-

tion as aforesaid.

That thereupon, and on or about the 13th day of

May, 1931, said Receiver revoked and withdrew

the power and authority of said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. to collect and receive the pro-

ceeds of said drafts in this paragraph mentioned,

and notified said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. and its agent and correspondent at Calcutta,

India, that the authority of said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. and of its correspondent and

agent to collect and receive the proceeds of said

tw^o drafts maturing May 14, 1931, in the amount

of $119,850.76, [57] was revoked and withdrawn;
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that notwithstanding such revocation and with-

drawing of such authority, said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. did, without right or authority,

present and collect said drafts, and applied the

proceeds thereof to the liquidation in part of its

said unsecured obligation of approximately $625,000

hereinbefore mentioned, in violation of the terms of

its said agreement and without any right, warrant

or authority w^hatsoever.

XI
That after the appointment and qualification of

said William C. McDuffie as receiver for said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, as

aforesaid, and on or about the 28th day of March,

1931, said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, filed with said receiver its proof of

claim, which alleged that said

"Richfield Oil Company of California, a corpo-

ration, was on the 15th day of January, "1931,

and at the time of the appointment of the Re-

ceiver herein and still is, justly and trulv in-

debted to said claimant in the sum of Six Hun-

dred Thirty-six Thousand One Hundred Eightv-

nine and 95/100 Dollars ($636,189.95);

The basis of said del)t is as follows:

Moneys loaned by claimant to said Richfield

Oil Company of California at its special in-

stance and request, evidenced by promissory

note dated July 12, 1930, copy of which said

promissory note is attached hereto marked Ex-

hibit 'A' and made a part hereof;
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Interest on said promissory note from No-

vember 30, 1930, to March 16, 1931, at the rate

of six per cent (6%) per annum, and accruing

interest until paid;

Moneys paid by claimant at the special in-

stance and request of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California for attorneys fees and prep-

aration of indenture on behalf of creditor banks

in the sum of $91.28, together with interest

thereon from the 11th day of February, 1931,

to the 16th day of March, 1931, at the rate of

six per cent (6%) jyer annum, and accruing in-

terest until paid

;

Moneys paid by claimant at the special in-

stance and request of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California for legal expenses in the

sum of $56.39, together with interest thereon

from the 4th day of March, 1931, to the 16th

day of March, 1931, at the rate of six per cent

(6%) per annum, and accruing interest until

paid;

That there are no offsets or counterclaims to

said debt ; no notes or other evidences of indebt-

edness have been taken or received except those

of which copies are hereto attached; no Judg-

ment has been rendered for such indebtedness

or any part thereof ; and no claim to preference

in payment from the receivership estate is

made;

That no securities are held by said claimant

for said indebtedness." [58]
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That no note or other evidence of indebtedness,

other than a copy of said note dated July 12, 1930

in the principal sum of $625,000, was attached to

said proof of claim.

XII.

That said two foreign drafts dated October 8,

1930, hereinabove set forth in paragraph VII here-

of, became due and payable by said drawee on the

14th day of May, 1931, and at said time, said

drawee, Birla Brothers, Ltd., paid to Nederlandsche

Handel Maatschappij, at Calcutta, India, the cor-

respondent bank of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, the full amount of the

proceeds of each of said drafts, amounting to the

sum of $119,850.75, which said sum is now in the

course of transmittal by mail from said Neder-

landsche Handel Maatschappij to said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation.

XIII.

That said WelLs Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, without right in law or equity, now

claims a lien on each of said drafts and the pro-

ceeds thereof, and further claims the right and

threatens to apply said proceeds, when received

from its said correspondent bank, towards the pay-

ment of the unsecured indebtedness owing it from

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, evidenced by said promissory note dated

July 12, 1930 in the sum of $625,000, plus accrued

interest.
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XIV.
That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, without right in law or equity fur-

ther claims a lien on the following drafts and the

proceeds thereof, which were deposited by said

Richfield Oil Company of California therein for

collection in the ordinary course of business:

Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Ricardo Velas-

ques in the sum of $1,219 maturing April 15,

1931;

Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Bueno & Co. in

the sum of $2,441, of which $1,500 matured on

January 10, 1931;

Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Sociedad Auto-

maviliania Colombiana in the sum of $779.10,

which matured January 25, 1931, but which

maturity date was extended by said Richfield

Oil Company of California to February 13,

1931;

Draft drawn by Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, on Ito Bergonzali

in the sum of $53.45, maturing January 15,

1931. [59]

That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, has already applied towards the pay-

ment of said unsecured indebtedness owing to it

from said Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, evidenced by said promissory note

dated July 12, 1930, part of the proceeds of said



86 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

last mentioned drafts, and threatens, in violation of

its said agreements, to so apply tlie remainder of

said proceeds, when received by it from its cor-

respondent bank or banks.

XV.
That pursuant to said order of the District Court

of the United States in and for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, Central Division, hereto an-

nexed and marked Exhibit "A", appointing said

William C. McDuffie receiver for said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, and pursu-

ant to said order of the District Court of the United

States in and for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, hereto annexed and

marked Exhibit "B", appointing said William C.

McDuffie ancillary receiver for said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, said receiver

was authorized forthwith to take and have complete

exclusive control, possession and custody of all the

property and assets owned by or under the control

of or in the possession of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, real, personal

and mixed, of every kind, character and descrip-

tion, within the Ninth Judicial District, and all

persons, firms and corporations were forthwith or-

dered to deliver to said receiver all of said property

and assets of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation.

That payment by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, to said William C. Mc-

Duffie, as receiver for said Richfield Oil Company



vs. William C. McDuffie 87

of California, a corporation, of the proceeds of all

of said drafts is imperative and essential for the

continued operations of the business of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, by

said receiver pursuant to the orders of said Courts

;

that said receiver is the true owner of the proceeds

of said drafts, and said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, has no right, title or

interest in or to the same or any part thereof. [60]

WHEREFORE, said William C. McDuffie, an-

cillary receiver and complainant herein, prays for

relief as follows:

1. That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., a corporation, be ordered and directed to forth-

with deliver to AYilliam C. McDuffie, ancillary re-

ceiver, complainant herein, the proceeds of each of

the two foreign drafts set forth in paragraph VII
hereof immediately upon their receipt by said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, from

said Nederlandsche Handel Maatschappij, without

any right of offset or claim thereupon.

2. That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., a corporation, be ordered and directed to forth-

with pay over to said William C. McDuffie, an-

cillary receiver, complainant herein, the proceeds

of said foreign draft in tlie sum of $23,607.50, de-

posited with it for collection by said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, drawn on

Birla Brothers, Ltd., at Calcutta, India, and matur-

ing on August 19, 1931, immediately upon its receipt
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by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a

corporation, from said Nederlandsehe Handel Maat-

schappij, and the proceeds of all other foreio-n

drafts deposited with it for collection by said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation,

without any right of offset or claim thereupon.

3. That temporarily and during the pendency of

this suit, an injunction be issued against said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, and

all of its officers, agents and employees, and all

other persons claiming or acting by, through or un-

der it, or any or all of them, to restrain them from

disposing of any of said drafts or the proceeds

thereof, and that said complainant may have such

other and further relief in the premises as the needs

of the case may require and as may be agreeable

to equity.

4. That this Honorable Court give to complain-

ant herein, as receiver, such further directions and

instructions relating to the possession of all of said

drafts and the proceeds thereof as may by the Court

be deemed just and equitable.

5. That a writ of subpoena be granted to said

complainant to be directed to said defendant. Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, in

this proceeding, requiring said defendant to be and

appear before this [61] Honorable Court within the

time required by law and the practice of this Court,

and then and there full, true, direct and perfect

answer make to all and singular the premises, and,

further, to perform and abide by such further order.
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direction and decree thereof as to this court shall

seem meet.

GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN,
Solicitors for Complainant,

William C. McDuffie, as ancillary receiver of Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation.

[62]

State of California

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Ward Sullivan, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says:

That he is a member of the firm of Gregory,

Hunt & Melvin, the solicitors for William C.

McDuffie, ancillary receiver and complainant here-

in; that he has read the foregoing amended bill of

complaint and knows the contents thereof, and that

the same is true of his own knowledge, except as to

the matters therein stated on information and be-

lief and as to those matters he believes it to be true

;

that affiant makes thi^ verification on behalf of

said William C. McDuffie, ancillary receiver and

complainant herein, for the reason that said

William C. McDuffie is absent from the City and

County of San Francisco, where affiant has his

offices.

WARD SULLIVAN

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 28th day

of November, 1931.

[Seal] GRACE SONNTAG
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California. [63]
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EXHIBIT "A"

ORDER APPOINTING RECEIVER

This case came on to be heard at this term and

was argued by counsel, and thereupon, upon con-

sideration thereof, the Court being fully advised in

the premises,

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DE-

CREED as follows:

1. William C. McDuffie is hereby appointed re-

ceiver of all the property, assets and business

owned by or under the control or in the possession

of the defendant, Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, real, personal and mixed, of whatsoever

kind and descrii^tion, within the jurisdiction of

this court, including all lands, buildings, plants,

warehouses, pipe lines, refineries, tanks, ships,

shipping facilities, wharves, docks and dockage fa-

cilities, and appurtenances, owned, controlled,

leased or operated by said defendant, and all raw

materials, materials in process of manufacture,

finished materials, inventory, stock in trade, equip-

ment, tools, machinery, furniture, supplies, mer-

chandise and books of account, records, and other

books, papers and accounts, cash on hand, in bank,

or on deposit, things in action, credits, stocks,

bonds, securities, deeds, leases, contracts, bills and

accounts receivable, and all rents, issues and profits

and income accruing and to accrue from said as-

sets, property and business, with authority to take

possession of said assets and property and to con-



vs. William C. McDuffie 91

tinue said business as a going concern.

2. The defendant, its officers and employees, and

any persons acting under its direction, shall deliver

to the receiver any and all of the aforesaid proper-

ties, real, personal or mixed, in their possession or

under their control.

3. All creditors, stockholders, and all persons

claiming or acting by, through or under them, and

all sheriffs and marshals and other officers, agents,

attorneys, proctors, representatives, servants and

employees, and all other persons, associations and

corporations are hereby enjoined and restrained

from instituting or prosecuting any action at law,

or suit, or proceeding in equity or admiralty against

the defendant, in any court of law or equity or

admiralty, or before any association, organization

or arbitration board, or arbitration by referee or

umpire, or other court or tribunal, or otherwise, or

from executing or issuing, or causing the execution

or issuance, or the issuing out of any court of any

writ, process, summons, attachment, subpoena,

replevin or other proceeding for the purpose of im-

pounding or taking possession of or interfering

with any of the aforesaid property owned by or in

the possession or imder the control of said defend-

ant, or of the receiver, or owned by the defendant

and in the possession of any of its officers, agents or

employees, and all sheriffs, marshals and other offi-

cers and their deputies, representatives and ser-

vants, and all other persons, associations and cor-

porations are hereby enjoined and restrained from



92 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

removing, transferring, disposing of or attempting

in any way to remove, transfer or dispose of, or

in any way to interfere with any of the property,

assets or effects in the possession of the defendant

or of the receiver, and from doing any act or thing

whatsoever to interfere with the possession and

management by the receiver of the property and

assets, or the business of the defendant, or in any

way to interfere with the receiver in the discharge

of any of his duties, or to interfere in any manner

with the administration and disposition in this suit

of the property and affairs of the defendant.

4. Said receiver is hereby authorized forwith to

take and have complete exchisive control, posses-

sion and custody of all of the property and assets

owned by or under the control of or in the posses-

sion of the defendant, real, personal and mixed of

every kind, character and description within the

Ninth Judicial Circuit, and all persons, firms and

corx^orations, including the defendant, its officers,

agents and employees, shall forthwith deliver to

the receiver all property and assets of the defend-

ant, or in its possession, or under its control, and

the defendant, its officers, agents and employees are

hereby directed upon the request of the receiver to

endorse, transfer, set over and deliver to the re-

ceiver any and all shares or certificates of stock,

notes, bills of exchange or other documents, or

muniments of title outstanding in the name of or in

the possession or under the control of the defend-

ant, or as to which the defendant has any interest.
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and to execute and deliver powers of attorney and

proxies authorizing the receiver to vote on such

shares of stock or certificates, and the receiver is

hereby authorized to vote in person or by proxy

any and all shares of stock standing in the name of

the defendant.

5. The receiver is hereby authorized until the

further order of this court to continue, manage and

operate the business of the defendant, with full

power and authority to carry on, manage and

operate the business and properties of the defend-

ant, and to buy and sell merchandise and supplies

for cash or on credit as may be deemed advisable by

said receiver, and to the extent that the receiver

may determine that it is for the best interests of

the receivership estate so to do, to perform and

fulfill the contracts and obligations of the defendant,

and to enter into new contracts incidental to the

operation of its business, and to appoint and em-

ploy such managers, agents, employees, servants,

accountants, attorneys and counsel as may in the

judgment of the receiver be advisable or necessary

in the management, conduct, control or custody of

the receivership estate, and the receiver is hereby

authorized to make such payments and disburse-

ments out of the property and assets of the de-

fendant in his possession as may be needful or

proper for the preservation and operation of the

properties and business of the defendant, to issue

such receivers' certificates for the purpose of meet-
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ing the obligations of said defendant as may be au-

thorized from time to time by this court.

6. The receiver is hereby authorized to receive

and collect rents, income and profits of any of the

properties of the defendant, whether the same are

now due or shall hereafter become due and payable,

and to do such things, enter into such agreements,

and employ such agents in connection with the

management, care, preservation and operation of

the properties of the defendant as the receiver may
deem advisable, and to incur such expenses and

make such disbursements as may in the judgment

of the receiver be [64] necessary or advisable, in-

cluding all bills and accrued charges for electric

light and power, gas, water, insurance, freight and

carriage charges on goods in transit, telephone

charges, taxes and charges of the nature thereof,

lawfully incurred or imposed upon the property

prior to the receivership, and all claims for accrued

wages, salaries and expenses of officers, agents and

employees for services rendered prior to the date

of this order but remaining unpaid at the date

hereof, to the end that the operation of the business

of the defendant may not be interfered with or in-

terrupted.

7. The receiver is hereby authorized and em-

powered to institute, prosecute and defend, com-

promise, adjust, intervene in or become a party to

such suits, actions, proceedings at law, in equity or

in admiralty, including ancillary proceedings in
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State or Federal Courts as may in the judgment of

the receiver be necessary or proper for the protec-

tion, maintenance and preservation of the property

and assets of the defendant and the conduct of its

business, or the carrying out of the terms and pro-

visions of this order, and likewise to defend, com-

promise and adjust, or otherwise dispose of, any

and all suits, actions and proceedings instituted

against him as receiver or against the defendant,

and also to appear in and conduct the prosecution

or defense of any action, suit or proceeding or to

adjust or compromise any action, suit or proceed-

ing now pending in any court by or against the de-

fendant where such prosecution, defense or other

disposition of such action, suit or proceeding will

in the judgment of the receiver be advisable or

proper for the protection of the property and as-

sets of the defendant, and in his discretion to com-

pound and settle with all debtors of the defendant,

with persons having possession of its property or

in any way responsible at law or in equity to the

defendant upon such terms and in such manner as

the receiver shall deem just and beneficial to the de-

fendant and its creditors.

8. The receiver is hereby given a period of six

(6) months from the date hereof within which to

arrive at a determination as to what contracts in-

cluding leases of the defendant the receiver should

affirm or disaffirm and within that time to make his
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election in that respect ; the Court reserves the right

if so advised from time to time to extend or dimin-

ish the time so granted to the receiver within which

to make such election.

9. The receiver shall retain possession and con-

tinue to discharge the powers and duties aforesaid

until the further order of this Court in the premises

;

but shall from time to time apply to this Court for

such other and further orders and directions as he

may deem necessary or advisable for the due admin-

istration of the receivership ; and the receiver is

hereby vested, in addition to the powers aforesaid,

with all the general powers of receivers in cases of

this kind, subject to the direction of this Court, and

the receiver shall from time to time or when di-

rected by the Court render to the Court reports of

his proceedings and accountings with respect to all

moneys received and disbursed by him or his agents.

10. The bond of the receiver in the sum of

Three Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars,

conditioned that he will well and truly perform the

duties of his office and duly account for all moneys

and property which may come into his hands and

alude and perform all things which he shall be di-

rected to do by this Court, with sufficient sureties to

be approved by a Judge of this Court, shall be forth-

with filed in the office of the Clerk of this Court.

11. A copy of this order shall, within ten (10)

days from the date hereof, be published in two is-

sues of the Los Angeles Daily Journal, a newspaper



vs. William C. McDuffie ^7

of general circulation, printed and published in the

City of Los Angeles, State of California.

Dated: January 15, 1931.

WM. P. JAMES,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 15, 1931. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By Edmund L. Smith, Deputy

Clerk. IGd']

EXHIBIT "D"

This cause came on to be heard at this term on

motion of the Plaintiff for the appointment of an

Ancillary Receiver of the property owned by or

under the control of or in the possession of De-

fendant and located within the jurisdiction of this

Court, and upon reading the verified bill of com-

plaint and verified answer in this cause, the bill of

complaint and answer filed by the Plaintiff and

Defendant in the District Court of the United

States for the Southern District of California, Cen-

tral Division, and the order of the District Court

of the United States for the Southern District of

California, Central Division, thereunder, made

January 15, 1931, appointing William C. McDuffie

receiver, and after hearing counsel and it appearing

that said William C. McDuffie was appointed re-

ceiver upon the bill filed in and upon the order of

said Court, of the properties belonging to, or under

the control of, or in the possession of defendant,

Richfield Oil Company of California, located within
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the jurisdiction of said Court, and that said Re-

ceiver has filed therein the bond required by said

original order.

It is ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED
that this Court take ancillary jurisdiction and that

William C. McDuffie be, and he is hereby, ap-

pointed Ancillary Receiver of the Richfield Oil

Company of California, a Delaware corporation, the

defendant above named, in and for the United

States Judicial District of the Northern District

of California, Southern Division, with all rights,

powers, privileges and authorities conferred upon

him by the order of the District Court of the United

States, for the Southern District of California,

Central Division, appointing the said William C.

McDuffie as [,66^ Receiver, dated the 15th day of

January, 1931, or by any subsequent order of said

District Court of the United States, for the South-

ern District of California, Central Division,

whether heretofore or hereafter made, and that said

William C. McDuffie is hereby authorized to per-

form any and all acts and take any and all steps in

the jurisdiction of this Court which the said Re-

ceiver has been or may be hereafter authorized to

take as Receiver in the jurisdiction of the District

Court of the United States, for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, Central Division.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the said William C. McDuffie is

authorized to act as Receiver herein without tak-
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ing any further oath of office or executing any fur-

ther bond.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the defendant, its agents and em-

ployees, and all other persons, including creditors

of the defendant, are hereby requested and com-

manded forthwith to deliver all property of every

nature belonging to the defendant, or under its con-

trol, or in its possession, to the said Ancillary Re-

ceiver.

And it is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED
AND DECREED that the said defendant and each

and every of its agents and employees, and all

creditors of the defendant, and all marshals, sheriffs,

constables, and all deputies and servants, and all

other officers, and, generally, all persons, firms and

corporations whatsoever, are hereby enjoined from

removing, transferring, disposing of, or attempting

to remove, transfer or dispose of, or in any way

interfere with any of the properties of the defend-

ant, or from doing anything whatsoever of any na-

ture to interfere with the possession and control of

the said ancillary receiver of the property of said

defendant.

And it is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED
AND DECREED that all creditors, stockholders

and all persons claiming or acting by, through or

under them, and all sheriffs and marshals and other

officers, agents, attorneys, proctors, representatives,

servants and employees, and all other persons, as-
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sociations and corporations, are hereby enjoined

and restrained from instituting or prosecuting any

action at law or suit or proceeding in equity or

admiralty against the said defendant in any court

of law or equity or admiralty, or before [67] any

association, organization or arbitration board, or

arbitration by referee or umpire or other court or

tribunal, or otherwise, or from executing or issuing,

or causing the execution or issuance, or the issuing

out of any court of any writ, process, summons,

attachment, subpoena, replevin or other proceeding,

for the purpose of impounding or taking posses-

sion of or interfering with any property owTied by

or under the control of or in the possession of said

defendant or of said Receiver; and all sheriffs,

marshals and other officers and their deputies, rep-

resentatives and servants, and all other persons, as-

sociations and corporations, are hereby enjoined

and restrained from removing, transferring, dis-

posing of or attempting in any way to remove,

transfer, dispose of or in any way to interfere with

any property, assets or effects in the possession of

the defendant or of the Receiver, or owned by the

defendant or under its control or in its possession or

in the possession or control of any of its officers,

agents or employees, and from doing any act or

thing whatsoever to interfere with the possession

and management by the Receiver of the property

and assets of the defendant, or in any way to in-

terfere with the Receiver in the discharge of his
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duties, or in carrying on the business of said de-

fendant, or to interfere in any manner with the ad-

ministration and disposition in this suit of the

property and affairs of the defendant.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the said Ancillary Receiver shall

have leave to apply to this Court for further orders

and authority at any time hereafter as may be

deemed by this Court proper and shall comply with

all orders of the court of original jurisdiction.

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that the said William C. McDuffie file

in this court certified copies of all orders affecting

the property of said defendant within this district

made by the District Court of the United States,

for the Southern District of California, Central

Division, in said original cause for the information

of the Court and all others interested.

Dated : January 15th, 1931.

FRANK H. KERRIGAN,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 15, 1931. Walter B. Mail-

ing, Clerk. By C. W. Calbreath, Deputy Clerk. [68]

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a copy of the within An-

cillary Amended Bill of Complaint is hereby ad-

mitted this 1st day of December, 1931.

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE &
McAULIFFE

Solictors for Defendant, Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 1, 1931. [69]



102 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ANSWER AND DEFENSES OF DEFENDANT
WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST
CO. TO ANCILLARY AMENDED BILL OF
COMPLAINT.

Comes now WeUs Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

defendant named in the ancillary amended bill of

complaint of William C. McDuffie as ancillary re-

ceiver of Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, and answering said ancillary amended

bill of complaint admits, denies and avers as fol-

lows, to-wit:

I.

Admits the allegations set forth in Paragraphs I,

II and III, of said ancillary amended bill of com-

plaint.

II.

Admits the taking and existence of the proceed-

ings for the appointment of William C. McDuffie as

Receiver of the property and [70] assets of Rich-

field Oil Company of California a corporation as

set forth in Paragraph V of said ancillary amended

bill of complaint, l^ut denies the jurisdiction of

the Court to make the appointment of said Re-

ceiver and denies that said William C. McDufBe

ever since the 15th day of January, 1931, or from

any time subsequent or prior thereto has been

and/or now is the duly or otherwise properly ap-

pointed and/or qualified and/or acting Receiver

for said Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, or of the assets or property thereof.
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III.

Admits the taking and existence of the proceed-

ings for the appointment of William C. McDuffie

as Receiver of the property and assets of Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation as set

forth in Paragraph V of said ancillary amended

bill of complaint, l3ut denies that since the 20th day

of January, 1931, or any time subsequent or prior

thereto, said William C. McDuffie has been and/or

now is the duly or otherwise properly appointed

and/or qualified and/or acting ancillary receiver of

or for said Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, within said Northern District of Cali-

fornia, or elsewhere, or of the assets or property

thereof.

IV.

Admits the allegations set forth in Paragraph VI
of said ancillary amended bill of complaint with re-

spect to the borrowing by said defendant Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, from said

defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., of

the sum of $625,000, and admits that no agreement

for collateral or as security for the repayment

of said amount was executed at said time by said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

to or for the benefit of said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation, [71] but avers in

this respect that subsequently, to-wit, in the months

of October, November and December of 1930 and

January of 1931, certain collateral security was de-

posited with said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust



104 Wells Fargo Bank etc, Co.

Co. as more particularly hereinafter set forth, as

security for certain indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, including

said indebtedness of $625,000 in said Paragrapli VI
of said ancillary amended bill of complaint re-

ferred to.

V.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph VII of

said ancillary amended bill of complaint, said de-

fendant denies that said agreement was as set forth

in said Paragraph VII, and specifically denies tliat

said agreement for the deposit of certain foreign

drafts by Richfield Oil Company of California with

said defendant, was only for the purpose of collection

and/or was separate and/or distinct from any other

financial transaction or transactions between said

parties and denies that said foreign drafts were

deposited only for collection and denies that eaeli

of said drafts No. 103005 and No. 103006-B were

duly accepted for payment by the drawees thereof

and admits that the same became due and payable

on May 14, 1931, and admits that the draft last

referred to in said Paragraph VII, in the sum of

$23,607.50, matures for payment on August 19, 1931.

With respect to the agreement under which said

drafts were deposited defendant avers that the only

agreement between said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. and said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, with respect to the deposit

of said drafts and the collection and disposi-

tion of the proceeds thereof, was as set forth in

two certain written contracts each designated "Ac-
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ceptance Agreement", duly executed b}^ said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, and

addressed to Wells [72] Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. prior to the receipt or acceptance of said drafts,

said Acceptance Agreements being dated respec-

tively October 4th and November 28th, 1930, and

being for the establishment of credits in favor of

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corpora-

tion, in the amounts respectively of $150,000 and

$5000; that true copies of said Acceptance Agree-

ments, being the sole contracts between said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation and

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. with

respect to the deposit of said drafts, and the collec-

tion thereof and the disposition of the proceeds

thereof, are hereto attached and expressly made a

part hereof, said Acceptance Agreement dated Octo-

ber 4, 1930 being designated and marked Exhibit

"A" and said Acceptance Agreement dated Novem-

ber 28, 1930, being designated and marked Ex-

hibit ^'B".

VI.

Defendant denies that in the months of October

and November 1930, or either thereof or at any

time, said Richfield Oil Company of California a

corporation, and/or said Wells Fargo Bank &

Union Trust Co., a corporation, made or entered

into any agreement with respect to drafts drawn

on said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. by

said Richfield Oil Company of California, except

only said Acceptance Agreements exhibits ''A" and
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''B", and denies that said Richfield Oil Company

of California and/or said Wells Fargo Bank &

Union Trust Co. made or entered into any agTee-

nient at any time relating to foreign or other drafts

and/or banker's acceptances other than said Ac-

ceptance Agreements exhibits "A" and "B", and

denies that any agreement was entered into whereby

said banker's acceptances in the amount of $155,000

or in any amount, were to be based upon drafts or

any thereof, of Richfield Oil Company of Califor-

nia, a corporation, drawn upon responsible foreign

customers of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia for shipment of [73] goods and/or com-

modities and/or that said drafts were to be slightly

greater in amount, or of a maturity shorter than

said Banker's Acceptances and in this resi^ect de-

fendant avers that the only agTcements with respect

to Banker's Acceptances and/or said drafts, are

Acceptance Agreements exhibits "A" and "B",

wherein and whereby it is agreed that all drafts

drawn by Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, upon its foreign customers, were to be

applied in repayment of said Banker's Acceptances

and/or other indebtedness or liability of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, to

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., with-

out any restriction upon the maturity of said drafts

and/or the amount thereof and/or the proceeds

thereof.

Defendant denies that pursuant to any agTee-

ment as set forth in paragraph VIII of said



vs. William C. McDuffie 107

amended ancillary bill of complaint any drafts were

deposited with Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. or that said drafts Nos. 103004 or 103006B or

any other drafts referred to in said paragraph VIII

or at all, were deposited pursuant to any such

agreement and in this respect defendant avers that

any and all drafts deposited with defendant by said

Richfield Oil Company of California, including

said drafts Nos. 103004 or 103006B were deposited

pursuant to said Acceptance AgTeements Exhibits

"A" and ''B", as were likewise other and addi-

tional drafts drawn by said Richfield Oil Company
of California upon its foreign customers.

Defendant admits that said sum aggregating

$155,000 borrowed from said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co. by said Richfield Oil Company of

California pursuant to said Acceptance Agree-

ments Exhibits "A" and ^'B" was repaid. De-

fendant denies that any agreement was entered into

wherein or whereby it was understood and/or

agreed between Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia and/or Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. that the proceeds of the sale [74] of said or any

goods covered by said foreign or other drafts should

be reserved for and/or applied to the liquidation of

said Banker's Acceptances before the due date

thereof, or that any surplus arising therefrom

should be held separate or apart from any or all

other financial obligations or transactions of Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, to

or with said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.
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a corporation, and in this respect defendant avers

that the agreement of said Richfield Oil Company

of California, a corporation, and said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., with respect to the de-

posit of said foreign drafts and the application of

the proceeds thereof and the proceeds of the sale

of goods covered hy said foreign drafts, is set forth

in said Acceptance Agreements Exhihits "A" and

^'B", wherein and whereby it is provided that said

drafts and the proceeds thereof and the proceeds of

the sale of goods covered thereby, shall be security

not alone for the repayment of said moneys bor-

rowed upon said so-called Banker's Acceptances,

but likewise as securit,v for any and all other lia-

bility of said Richfield Oil Company of California

to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

whether existing at the time of the deposit of said

drafts or thereafter contracted, all as set forth in

said Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and

VII.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph IX of

said amended ancillary bill of complaint, defendant

having no information or belief sufficient to enable

it to answer and placing its denial upon that

ground, denies that Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia had borrowed, with or without security or

otherwise, from and/or Avas indebted to certain or

any commercial or other banks in various parts of

the United States or elsewhere, in amount exceed-

ing ten million dollars, or in an}^ amount, except
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only the sum of approximately [75] $625,000 bor-

rowed from said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. as herein elsewhere set forth, and admits that

said sum of $625,000 was so borrowed from said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. but denies

that said sum was borrowed without security, aver-

ring in this respect that although no security was

expressly provided for said loan at the time of the

making thereof, security was subsequently there-

after obtained, to-wit, the security of said foreign

drafts, the proceeds thereof and the proceeds of the

sale of the goods covered thereby as set forth in

said Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and

Having no information or belief sufficient to en-

al)le it to answer and placing its denial upon that

ground, defendant denies that in each or any of said

banks said Richfield Oil Company of California

maintained a commercial deposit or other accoimt

and /or deposited moneys therein and/or the pro-

ceeds of collections of checks and/or drafts and/or

issued its checks and/or drafts thereon in the

ordinary course of business, but admits that said

Richfield Oil Company of California maintained a

commercial deposit account with said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co.

Having no information or belief sufficient to en-

able it to answer and placing its denial upon that

ground, defendant denies that at or about the time

of the appointment and/or qualification of William

C. McDuffie as Receiver of said Richfield Oil Com-
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pany of California, a corporation, it was agreed by

and/or between said Receiver and/or each or any of

said banks, or said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. that each or any of said banks would

transfer such or any balance held in the name of

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

to that of AVilliam C. McDuffie as its Receiver, or

would carry on and/or conduct such commercial

accounts in the ordinary course of business and/or

Avould not exercise any claim of [76] banker's lien

upon said balances and/or collections for the benefit

of creditors of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation and/or of others interested in

said corporation or at all, until the termination of

such receivership or at all, and in this respect de-

fendant avers that the only agTeement ever entered

into between said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. and said receiver with respect to the account of

said Richfield Oil Company of California with said

defendant Bank, and the conduct or transfer there-

of, arose out of an exchange of telegTams as follows

:

On or about the 16th day of January, 1931, said

Receiver telegraphed to said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co. as follows:

"As receiver I am ordered by Federal CouA't

to take over all assets including cash in banks

stoiD While you have undoubted right of off-

set, such right if exercised will seriously cripple

receivers operations. It is necessary therefore

to request that all banks restore to receiver full

cash balance stop Please therefore transfer such
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funds to a new account on j^our books in my
name as receiver evidence of my authority and

signature cards will follow by mail stop Local

banks have indicated they will acquiesce in this

program. '

'

and in reply thereto said defendant Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. telegraphed to said Re-

ceiver as follows

:

''Replying telegram we are willing to restore

into your name as Receiver Richfield 's balance

in checking account provided we are notified

by you that all company's banks have taken

similar action (Stop) We are holding certain

collections as security for acceptances Please

understand that we continue to reserve all our

rights for bankers lien against these collec-

tions."

No other agreement except said agreement re-

sulting from the exchange of said telegrams here-

inbefore referred to was entered into between said

Receiver and said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. with reference to the bank balance of

said Richfield Oil Company of California and/or

the proceeds of any collections or drafts or from

the sale of goods represented by drafts and in and

by said [77] agreement said defendant Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. expressly reserved its right

to apply the proceeds of said drafts and/or the pro-

ceeds of the sale of goods represented by said

drafts, as against any indebtedness owing from
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said Richfield Oil Company of California to said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and fur-

ther in this respect defendant avers that any

agreement to not apply the bank deposit or other

assets in its possession as against the indebtedness

of said Richfield Oil Company of California, ^Yas

made gratuitously and without consideration and is

of no legal force or effect.

Defendant admits that it notified said Richfield

Oil Company of California on or about the 9th day

of May, 1931, that it proposed to apply the proceeds

of the collection of the drafts in paragraph VII of

said amended ancillary bill of complaint mentioned,

to the pre-existing obligation of said Richfield Oil

Company of California in the amount of $625,000

more or less, but denies that said notification was in

violation of any agreement with said Richfield Oil

Company of California and/or with other banks, or

of any agreement, and denies that said ]^re-existing

obligation was unsecured, averring in this respect

that the same was secured by collateral including

drafts and proceeds of drafts in the possession or

under the control of said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., and in this respect defendant fur-

ther avers that said Receiver of Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California was aware throughout the en-

tire time of his receivership and for several months

prior to May 9, 1931, that said AVells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. reserved the right and intended

to apply the proceeds of said drafts and/or of the

sale of the goods represented thereby, in reduction
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of said Richfield Oil Company of California's pre-

existing indebtedness to it.

Defendant denies that in the aiDplication of said

drafts [78] against said indebtedness any prefer-

ence was created in favor of said Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. oyer that of other banks and^or

creditors of Richfield Oil Company of California

similarly or otherwise situated, and denies that any

such preference would be accomplished thereby or

that any such preference or any preference was or

would be accomplished thereby to the detriment of

said estate or otherwise or to the detriment of per-

sons interested therein or otherwise.

Defendant denies that the application of said

drafts gave defendant an unjust or inequitable

advantage over other banks and/or creditors and

denies that by said application of said proceeds an

unjust or inequitable advantage would be taken over

other banks and/or creditors of said Richfield Oil

Company of California, and having no information

or belief sufficient to enable it to answer and placing

its denial upon that ground, denies that all of said

defendant banks or any thereof have fully per-

formed and/or complied with the terms and condi-

tions of any agreement with said Receiver, and de-

nies that any such agreement was entered into.

Defendant denies that said Receiver in the in-

terests of any other creditors of Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, or acting under or pursuant

to the order of the court, demanded the restoration
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or repayment to his account of said moneys so

sought to be applied by said Wells Fargo Bank &

Union Trust Co. as aforesaid.

Defendant admits that said Receiver requested

the restoration and repayment of said moneys

which this defendant applied or stated that it would

apply against said unsecured indebtedness, but

denies that said Receiver in making such demand

was acting in the interest of the other creditors

of said Richfield Oil Company of California, or

at all.

Defendant admits that said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust [79] Co. has refused and still re-

fuses to restore the proceeds of said drafts except

as otherwise herein set forth.

VIII.

Answering the allegations of paragraph X of

said amended ancillary bill of complaint, defend-

ant denies that there was any agreement with said

William C. McDuffie, Receiver, and/or with any

other banks, for the crediting of the balances of

Richfield Oil Company of California to said Re-

ceiver's account; admits that certain of the ])al-

ances in the commercial account of said Richfield

Oil Company of California with said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. were transferred gra-

tuitously and without consideration to said Re-

ceiver ; admits that said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. continued to make collections of checks

and drafts and to make deposits of the proceeds
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thereof in the ordinary course of business, but

denies that the collection of any foreign drafts,

except as elsewhere herein set forth, were applied

to the account of said Receiver and admits that

on or about the 9th day of May, 1931, said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., in pursuance of

its previous notification and advice to said Re-

ceiver, advised him that it intended to apply to

the partial liquidation of its unsecured obligation

in excess of $625,000, the proceeds of three drafts

and other drafts described in paragraph VII of

said amended ancillary bill of complaint, then in

course of collection, and the proceeds of other

foreign drafts held or deposited with it pursuant

to said Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and

^'B", but denies that said action was in violation

of any agreement and denies that there was any

agreement between said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co. and said William C. McDuffie,

Receiver, with reference to said drafts, the pro-

ceeds thereof and/or the proceeds of the sale of

goods represented by said drafts, except only Ex-

hibits ''A" and "B".

Defendant denies that on or about the 13th day

of May, 1931, [80] or at any time, said Receiver

revoked or withdrew the power and authority of

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to collect

and /or receive the proceeds of said drafts in para-

graph X of said amended ancillary bill of com-

pLnint mentioned and denies that said Receiver
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notified said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. and/or its agent and/or correspondent at Cal-

cutta, India, or elsewhere that the authority of

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. and/or of

its correspondent and/or agent to collect and/or

receive the proceeds of two certain drafts maturing

May 14, 1931, or of any drafts, in the amount of

$119,850.76, or in any amount, was revoked and/or

withdrawn; admits that said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. did present and collect said

drafts and did apply the proceeds thereof in liqui-

dation in part of said unsecured indebtedness in

excess of $625,000 hereinbefore mentioned, but

denies that said action was without right or au-

thority, denies that said action was in violation

of the terms of any agreement, denies that there

was any agreement with respect thereto and denies

that said action was without right, warrant or

authority.

IX.

With respect to the allegations set forth in Par-

agraph XI of said amended ancillary bill of com-

plaint, defendant admits that defendant Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. filed, on or about the

28th day of March, 1931, its Proof of Claim with

said William C. McDuffie as Receiver for said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, aver-

ring in this respect, however, that said claim was

filed without consenting to the jurisdiction of said

William C. McDuffie as said purported receiver for
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said Richfield Oil ComiDany of California, a cor-

poration, and without waiving the rights of said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to attack the

jurisdiction of said Receiver to require the filing of

claims or to [81] act upon or decide the same, or to

liquidate or continue the business of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, or to re-

tain and dispose of the assets and properties thereof.

Defendant admits that said claim embodied the

language purportedly quoted therefrom in Para-

graph XI of said amended ancillary bill of com-

plaint and further admits that no note or other evi-

dence of inde]3tedness, other than a copy of said note

dated July 12, 1931, in the principal sum of

$625,000, w^as attached to said Proof of Claim.

Further in this respect said defendant avers that

at the time of the preparation of said Claim the

information therefore was compiled and delivered

to said defendant by its Note Department ; that said

Note Department was then and now is a separate

Department of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. ; that the Foreign Department of said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. was like-

wise then and now is a separate Department of said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.; that said

Note Department, at the time of filing said Claim,

kept and still does keep, records of loans from and

indebtedness to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. evidenced by promissory notes, and had

not at that time and has now, no records in its

Department of collateral or other security deposited
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with said Foreign Department or with any of the

other separate Departments of said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. ; that therefore, through

inadvertence and lack of know^ledge by said Note

Department, said claim stated that there were no

offsets or counterclaims to the indebtedness set forth

in said claim, and no claim to preference in pay-

ment and further stated that no securities were

held by said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

for said indebtedness whereas at said time the truth

and the facts were and now are, that there were

and now are certain collateral securities in the pos-

session of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

and x^articularly of its [82] said Foreign Depart-

ment, as security for all of the said indebtedness of

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., being more particularly, the drafts and/or pro-

ceeds thereof, referred to in said ancillary bill of

complaint and more specifically hereinafter re-

ferred to.

That prior to the filing of said claim, to-wit: on

or about the 16th day of January, 1931, in response

to a telegraphic request from said William C. Mc-

Duffie to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. requesting the restoration of said cash balances

upon which said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. had prior thereto exercised its banker's lien,

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. duly in-

formed said Receiver by telegram and otherwise

that it would restore and did restore to said Wil-
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liam C. McDiiffie as Receiver, the balance in the

checking account at Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, expressly stating, however, that said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. was holding certain

collections, to-wit: said drafts, as security for ac-

ceptances and advising said Receiver that said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. continued to

reserve all of its rights under said agreements,

and/or its banker's lien against said collections as

security for all indebtedness of said Richfield Oil

Company of California to said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. Said information was trans-

mitted to said Receiver on or about the 16th day of

Jainiary, 1931, and at all times subsequent thereto

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. has

maintained and so advised said Receiver, that it

claimed said drafts and/or the proceeds thereof, as

security for the indebtedness of said Richfield Oil

Company of California, to it, except only that at

the request of said Receiver said Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. subsequently remitted the sum

of $1956.52 on account of partial collection received

upon a certain [83] draft known as the Bueno &

Co. draft hereinafter more specifically referred to.

Upon the discovery of the inadvertence of its

Note Department with respect to the preparation

of said claim hereinbefore referred to, said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. forthwith, to-wit:

on or about the 19th day of May, 1931, prepared a
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written amendment to claim, a true copy of which

Amendment to Claim is attached hereto and marked

Exhibit " C " and by reference made a part hereof

;

there was attached to and made a part of said

Amendment to Claim as Exhibits "A", "B" and

"C" thereof respectively, a true copy of the Proof

of Claim of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

hereinbefore referred to and true copies of said

Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and "B" to

this Answer; said Amendment to Claim including

said exhibits thereto, was duly presented to said

William C. McDuffie, as Receiver of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, on May 20, 1931, but

said William C. McDuffie refused to accept the

same. Thereupon, forthwith, said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. prepared and filed in the

District Court of the United States in and for the

Southern District of California, Central Division,

in the proceedings in which said receivership of

said Richfield Oil Company of California was pend-

ing, its verified Petition for an order to show cause

why the Receiver should not be compelled to re-

ceive said Amendment to Claim. Subsequently,

after negotiations between the Attorneys for said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. and the At-

torneys for said Receiver, it was stipulated that said

Amendment to Claim, including the exhibits thereto,

should he filed, without prejudice to the Receiver's

right to subsequently reject the same, or to make

any objections to its contents, and the time and man-

ner of filing thereof, and thereafter, on to-wit: the
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29tli (lay of May, 1931, it was duly and regularly

ordered by the Honorable [84] William P. James,

United States District Judge for the United States

District Court, Southern District of California, Cen-

tral Division, in the proceedings there pending, that

said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. be au-

thorized to tile its Amendment to Proof of Claim,

including the exhibits thereto, and that said Wil-

liam C. McDuffie as Receiver be instructed to re-

ceive and accept the same for filing. A true copy

of said order is attached hereto, marked Exhibit

"D" and by express reference made a part hereof.

X.

With respect to the allegations set forth in Para-

graph XII of said amended ancillary bill of com-

plaint said defendant admits that said drafts dated

October 8, 1930, and referred to more specifically in

Paragraph VII of said amended ancillary bill of

complaint, became due and payable by the drawee

thereof on the 14th day of May, 1931, and admits

that said drafts were at said time by the drawee

thereof, paid to Nederlandsche Handel Maat-

schappij, at Calcutta, India, but in this respect

avers that payment thereof to defendant Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. was not made until

the 10th day of June, 1931, at which time the net

proceeds of said drafts, to-wit: the sum of $119,-

512.54, w^ere received in San Francisco, California,

bv defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.
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and applied against the outstanding indebtedness

of said Richfield Oil Company of California to it.

XI.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph XIII of

said amended ancillary bill of complaint said de-

fendant admits that it claims a lien upon each of

said drafts referred to in Paragraph VII of said

amended ancillary bill of complaint but denies that

said claim is without right in law or in equity and

admits that it claims a lien [85] upon said drafts

and the proceeds thereof and the right to apply the

proceeds thereof as and when received by it from

its correspondent bank, toward the payment of the

unsecured indebtedness owing to it from said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, as evidenced by

said promissory note dated July 12, 1930, in the

sum of $625,000, plus accruing interest, and in this

respect said defendant avers that said drafts and

each of them, and the proceeds thereof, were re-

ceived by it pursuant to said Acceptance Agree-

ments Exhibits "A" and "B", and under the pro-

visions of the laws of the State of California with

reference to banker's liens, as security not alone for

the sum of $155,000 advanced pursuant to said Ac-

ceptance Agreements, but as security for any and

all indebtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of

California to said defendant bank, whether existing

at the time of the deposit of said drafts or the

execution of said Agreements or at any time there-

after existing.
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XII.

Ansvceriiig the alleg'atioiis of Paragraph XIV of

said amended ancillary hill of complaint said de-

fendant admits that it claims a lien npoii the drafts

set forth in said Paragraph XIV and the pro-

ceeds thereof, hut denies that said claim to a lien

is without right in law or in equity and in this

respect defendant avers as follows:

Defendant denies that said drafts, or any there-

of, were deposited hy said Richfield Oil Company

of California for collection in the ordinary course

of business, but in this respect avers that said drafts

in Paragraph XIV set forth and all thereof, were

deposited with said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. in accordance with and pursuant to the

terms, conditions and covenants of Acceptance

Agreements Exhibits "A" and "B''.

With respect to the second draft referred to in

said [86] Paragraph XIV of said amended ancil-

lary bill of complaint, to-wit: the draft drawn by

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

on Bueno & Co., in the sum of $2,441.00, defendant

avers that at the request of William C. McDu.ffie as

Receiver of Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, it transmitted to him the sum of $1,-

956.54 on account of the proceeds of said draft re-

ceived by it, with the express understanding and

agreement, however, that the transmittal of said

proceeds was for the convenience of said William C.

McDuffie and without waiver of any of the rights of

said defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust
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Co., pursuant to said Acceptance Agreements and/or

under its banker's lien, with respect to the l)alance

of said draft, or of any other of said drafts, or

the proceeds thereof.

Further answering the allegations of Paragraph

XIY of said amended ancillary bill of complaint,

said defendant admits that it has already applied

toward the payment of said indebtedness owing it

from said Eichfield Oil Company of California, evi-

denced by said promissory note dated July 12, 1930,

denying however, that said indebtedness was unse-

cured, part of the proceeds of said last mentioned

drafts and intends, unless precluded by the order

of this CoTirt, to apply the remainder of tlie |)ro-

ceeds of said drafts as and when received hv it

upon the collection thereof, to the payment of said

indebtedness. In this respect defendant avers that

it has received and applied the proceeds of said

drafts and of the drafts mentioned in Paragraph

VII of said amended ancillary bill of complaint,

pursuant to the terms, conditions and covenants of

said Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and

"B", and pursuant to its banker's lien, in the fol-

lowing amounts and as follows: [87]

Amount
Drawee Amount Date Paid Received

Bueno & Co. $2441.00 May 11, 1391 (Bal) $ 460.06

Ricardo Velasques 1219.00 May 19, 1931 1245.11

Birla Bros. ('Drafts Nos.

103005 and 103006-B) 119,850.75 June 10, 1931 119,512.54

Total amount received and credited against said indebt-

edness of Richfield Oil Co. of California herein-

before referred to $121,226.71
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XIII.

Answering the allegations of Paragraph XV of

said amended ancillary bill of complaint, said de-

fendant denies that said Receiver was at any time

authorized forthwith or at any time to take and/or

have complete, exclusive or any control or posses-

sion or custody of all or any of the property and/or

assets owned by or under the control of or in the

possession of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, real, personal or mixed, or

of any kind or character or description, within the

Ninth Judicial District or elsewhere, and denies

that all persons and/or firms and/or corporations

were ever validly or properly, or with due or

any proper authorization, forthwith or at any time,

ordered to delivei' to said Receiver all or any of

the property or assets of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, and in that re-

spect defendant expressly avers that said District

Court in and for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, Central Division, was without jurisdiction

or authority to make said order marked Exhil^it

'^A" to complainant's amended ancillary bill of

comi)laint, or any valid or proper order appointing

said William C. McDuffie or any other person Re-

ceiver for said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation, and denies that said District

Court of the United States in and for the Northern

District of California, Southern [88] Division, had

jurisdiction or authority to make said order marked

Exhibit "B" to complainant's amended ancillary
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bill of complaint, or any valid or proper order

appointing said AVilliam C. McDuffie or any other

person ancillary receiver for said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation.

Further answering the allegations of Paragraph

XV of said amended ancillary bill of complaint,

defendant denies that the payment by said defend-

ant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to said

William C. McDuffie as Receiver for said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, or other-

wise, of the proceeds or any thereof, of all or any

of said drafts, is imperative or essential for the

continued or other operations of the business of

said Richfield Oil Company of California by said

Receiver pursuant to the order or orders of said

Court or Courts, or pursuant to any order or any

authority, and in this respect defendant further

avers that said Receiver has no authority or juris-

diction to continue the business of said corporation.

Defendant denies that the Receiver is the true

owner or the owner, or has any claim to the pro-

ceeds of said drafts or any thereof or to said drafts

and denies that said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. has no right or title or interest in or

to the same or any thereof or any part thereof and

in this respect defendant expressly avers that upon

the deposit of said drafts by it pursuant to said

two Acceptance Agreements Exhibits "A" and "B"
said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. held

said drafts and each thereof and the proceeds

thereof, as security for any and all indebtedness of

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-
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poration, to it, including said indebtedness evi-

denced by said promissory note dated July 12, 1930

in the amount of $625,000 with accruing interest

thereon, and that irrespective of said Agreements

Exhibits ''A" and "B", said defendant held said

drafts and/or proceeds thereof at [89] all times

subsequent to the maturity of said indebtedness of

said Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., to-wit: the 10th day of September, 1930, pur-

suant to the banker's lien of said defendant as cre-

ated by the laws and statutes of the State of Cali-

fornia with the right to apply said drafts and/or

the proceeds thereof against said matured indebt-

edness and that upon the collection of said drafts

said defendant. Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., had and has the right, pursuant to said Agree-

ments and pursuant to its said banker's lien, to

apply the proceeds thereof on account of the ma-

tured and unpaid indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, to it.

And for a FURTHER, SEPARATE AND
SECOND DEFENSE to said amended ancillary

bill of complaint, said defendant Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co., admits, denies and avers as fol-

lows, to-wit:

I.

Said defendant avers that the above entitled

Court is without jurisdiction to determine the ques-

tion herein presented as to the ownership of the

drafts referred to in said amended ancillary bill of

complaint and/or the proceeds thereof.
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II.

Said defendant avers that the Order of the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Southern

District of California, Central Division, purport-

edly appointing said William C. McDuffie as Re-

ceiver of said Richfield Oil Company of California,

a corporation, and/or of the assets and properties

thereof, was improper and unauthorized and made

without proper jurisdiction of said Court in said

proceedings and furthermore, that the Order of

the District [90] Court of the United States for the

Northern District of California, Southern Division,

purportedly appointing said William C. McDuffie

as ancillary Receiver of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, and/or of the

assets and properties thereof, was improper and un-

authorized and made without proper jurisdiction of

said Court in said proceedings.

III.

Said defendant avers further that said Receiver

has no right or authority, nor any jurisdiction to

liquidate the affairs of said Richfield Oil Company

of California, a corporation, or to continue the

business of said corporation, nor has said Receiver

any right or authority to fix the time for the pre-

sentation of claims against said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, or to pass upon

the validity of said claims, or to pay the same, or

to preclude the filing of said claims or of amend-
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ments to claims, and specifically that said Receiver

had and has no jurisdiction to require said Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to file its said

claim in said receivership proceedings, or to deny

to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. the

right to file an amendment to said claim or to deny

to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

its right to claim said drafts and/or the proceeds

thereof as security for said indebtedness of said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

to defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

on account of the alleged delay in presenting the

claim thereto or on account of the alleged waiver

by the filing of said defendant's claim against said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

or for any reason.

In this respect defendant further avers that any

order of the above entitled Court or of the United

States District Court for the Northern District of

California, Southern Division, purporting [91] to

give to said Receiver, or to said ancillary Receiver,

the right to fix a time for the presentation of claims,

and/or the right to pass upon and/or reject said

claims, and/or to determine the validity or in-

validity thereof and/or to determine what security

if any said defendant or other claimants may or

might have as securing the indebtedness of said

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

to it or them, was and is without jurisdiction and

made and given in excess of and without the juris-

diction of said Courts or either thereof.



130 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

WHEEEFORE, said defendant, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., prays

:

I.

That complainant take nothing by his said

amended ancillary l)ill of complaint.

II.

That the relief sought by complainant in his said

amended ancillary bill of complaint be denied.

III.

That said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

be authorized and permitted to retain said drafts

and/or the proceeds thereof and to apply the

same against the indebtedness of said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, to it, or that

said complainant be found to be without any right,

title or interest in or claim to said drafts and/or

the proceeds thereof, and that said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. be found to be the owner

of said drafts and/or the proceeds thereof, for the

purpose of securing the indebtedness of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation, to

it, and for the purpose of applying the proceeds of

said drafts, as and when received by it, against the

unpaid and matured indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, a corporation, to it. [92]

IV.

That said defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. recover from said complainant its costs

of suit herein incurred.
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V.

That defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union
Trust Co. have such other and further relief as to

this court shall seem meet.

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE
AND McAULIFFE,

Solicitors for Defendant, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. [93]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Julian Eisenbach being duly sworn, deposes and

says: That he is an officer, to-wit: Vice-President

of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corpora-

tion, and as such is authorized to and does make

this verification for and on behalf of said corpora-

tion; that he has read the foregoing Answer and

knovvs the contents thereof; that the same is true

of his own knowledge except as to the matters which

are therein stated on information or belief and as

to those matters he believes the same to be true

JULIAN EISENBACH.

STi]:)Scribed and sworn to before me this 14th day

of January, 1932.

(Seal) JENNIE DAGGETT,
Notary Public in and for the City and

County of San Francisco, State of

California.

My Commission Expires Feb. 29, 1932. [94]
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EXHIBIT "A"

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT
(Arising out of importation or exportation of goods)

To WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST
CO., SAN FRANCISCO.

Dear Sirs:

A¥e hand you herewith, for acceptance, the fol-

lowing drafts:

Number Date Covering following Amount

Oct. 6 Merchandise $150,000

Marks Numbers Description

Payable in San Francisco to the order Ourselves

It is agreed that the proceeds of the above will

be used for financing the actual goods under con-

sideration, and the proceeds of the sale of the goods

shall be applied to liquidate the acceptance.

In consideration of your acceptance of the said

draft or drafts the undersigned, jointly and

severally, agree to pay you at the time of the ac-

ceptance a commission of per cent, and

further agree to pay you the amount of the said

draft or drafts at your office one day before ma-

turity. We waive all liability on your part in case

the goods are not according to contract, either in

description, quality, or quantity, or in any other

respect. All bills of lading, warehouse receipts and
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other documents of title and all money and goods

held by you as security for any such acceptance

shall also be held by you as security for any other

liability from us to you whether then existing or

thereafter contracted and bind ourselves to furnish

you prior to with ship-

ping documents covering this merchandise or with

exchange arising out of the transaction being

financed by the credit.

We further agree to give and furnish you on de-

mand additional security or to make payment on

account in amounts and character satisfactory to

you. If we fail to comply with any such demand

or in case of our insolvency, assignment, bank-

ruptcy, or failure in business, all our obligations and

liabilities direct or indirect to you whether arising

hereunder or otherwise shall forthwith become due

and payable without demand or notice. All goods

represented by bills of lading, warehouse receipts or

other documents of title, pledged with you as secur-

ity for your acceptances hereunder, shall be at all

times covered by us by certificates of insurance un-

der open policies to your order or by specific policies

payable to you as your interest may appear, to an

amount sufficient to cover your advances or obliga-

tions hereunder, and you are to have specific claim

and lien on such policies and their proceeds to the

amount of your interest in the goods thereby in-

sured. [95]

The undersigned hereby consents to any renewal

and extension of time of payment of any draft,



134 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

drafts or other indebtedness that may be granted

by you, and do also consent that the securities set

forth in said acceptance agreement may be ex-

changed or surrendered from time to time without

notice to or further assent from the imdersigned,

and that the undersigned will remain bound hy

this guarantee, notwithstanding such changes,

guarantees, renewals and extensions.

Upon our failure to comply with any of the terms

hereof or upon the non-payment by us of this or

any other liability to you when due or at any other

time or times thereafter then in such case all obli-

gations and liabilities direct and contingent from

us to you whether arising hereunder or other^\dse

shall at your election forthwith l)ecome due and pay-

able without demand or notice and we hereby give

to you full power and authority to sell, assic^n,

transfer and deliver the whole or any part of the

securities, bills of lading or documents of title or

the goods represented thereby or of any securities

substituted therefor or added thereto at any

broker's board or at any public or private sale with

or without notice or advertisement at your option

piicl do further agree that you may become a pur-

chaser at such sale if at any broker's board or at

pul)lic auction and hold the property or security so

purchased as your owm property absolutely free

from any claim of or in the right of ourselves. In

case of any sale or other disposition of the whole

or any part of the security or property aforesaid,

you may apply the proceeds of such sale or disposi-
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tion to the payment of all legal or other costs and

expenses of collection, sale and delivery and of all

expenses incurred in protecting the security or other

property or the value thereof, as hereinafter pro-

vided and may apply the residue of such proceeds to

the payment of this or of any then existing liahility

of ours to you whether then payable or not, re-

turning the overplus to us and in case of any de-

ficiency we agree to pay to you the amount thereof

forthwith with legal interest. You may also upon

any such non-payment apply the balances of all our

deposit accounts in the same way that you are

authorized to apply the proceeds of any sale of the

security or property hereunder.

You may pay taxes, charges, assessments, liens

or insurance premiums upon the security or any

part of it, or otherwise protect the value thereof or

of the property represented thereby, and may
charge against us all expenditures so incurred; but

you shall be under no duty or liability with respect

to the protection or collection of any security held

hereunder or of any income thereon, nor with re-

spect to the protection of preservation of any rights

pertaining thereto, beyond the safe custody of such

security. We hereby agree that if, in your opinion,

the market value of the security hereby or here-

after pledged to secure this obligation, after de-

ducting all charges against the same is at any time

less than the amount thereof and per

centum thereof added thereto we will upon demand,

deposit satisfactory additional security so that the
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market value of the security pledged hereunder,

after deducting all charges, shall always equal the

amount of this obligation plus such additional per-

centage.

We hereby agree to indemnify you against any

liability or responsibility for the correctness,

validity, or genuineness of any documents or any

signatures or endorsements thereon representing

goods which you hold, purchase or sell under this

engagement, or for the description, quantity,

quality or value of the property declared therein,

or of any insurance certificates or policies, and

against any general loss or charges or other ex-

penses incurred accruing with respect to such goods

through delay in transmission of shipping docu-

ments or through any other cause, which charges

and other expenses we agree to pay. We further

agree that no delay on [96] your part in exercising

any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver of

such rights or of any right under this obligation.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA,

By R. W. McKEE,
By W. E. HART,

Treasurer.

Dated : October 4, 1930. [37]
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EXHIBIT "B"

ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT
(Arising out of importation or exportation of goods)

To WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST
CO., SAN FRANCISCO.

Dear Sirs:

We hand you herewith, for acceptance, the fol-

lowing drafts:

Number Date Covering following Amount

Nov. 24 Merchandise $5000.00

Marks Numbers Description

Payable in San Francisco to the order of Ourselves

It is agreed that the proceeds of the above will

be used for financing the actual goods under con-

sideration, and the proceeds of the sale of the goods

shall be applied to liquidate the acceptance.

In consideration of your acceptance of the said

draft or drafts the undersigned, jointly and

severally, agree to pay you at the time of the ac-

ceptance a commission of per cent, and

further agree to pay you the amount of the said

draft or drafts at your office one day before ma-

turity. We waive all liability on your part in case

the goods are not according to contract, either in

description, quality, or quantity, or in any other

respect. All bills of lading, warehouse receipts and
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other documents of title and all money and goods

held by you as security for any such acceptance

shall also be held by you as security for any other

liability from us to you whether then existing or

thereafter contracted and bind ourselves to furnish

you prior to with ship-

ping documents covering this merchandise or with

exchange arising out of the transaction being

financed by the credit.

We further agree to give and furnish you on de-

mand additional security or to make payment on

account in amounts and character satisfactory to

you. If we fail to comply with any such demand

or in case of our insolvency, assignment, bank-

ruptcy, or failure in business, all our obligations and

liabilities direct or indirect to you whether arising

hereunder or otherwise shall forthwith become due

and payable without demand or notice. All goods

represented by bills of lading, warehouse receipts or

other documents of title, pledged with you as secur-

ity for your acceptances hereunder, shall be at all

times covered by us by certificates of insurance un-

der open policies to your order or by specific policies

payable to you as your interest may appear, to an

amount sufficient to cover your advances or obliga-

tions hereunder, and you are to have specific claim

and lien on such policies and their proceeds to the

amount of your interest in the goods thereby in-

sured. [98]

The undersigned hereby consents to any renewal
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and extension of time of payment of any draft,

drafts or other indebtedness that may be granted

by you, and do also consent that the securities set

forth in said acceptance agreement may be ex-

changed or surrendered from time to time without

notice to or further assent from the undersigned,

and that the undersigned will remain bound by

this guarantee, notwithstanding such changes,

guarantees, renewals and extensions.

Upon our failure to comply with any of the terms

hereof or upon the non-payment by us of this or

any other liability to you when due or at any other

time or times thereafter then in such case all obli-

gations and liabilities direct and contingent from

us to you whether arising hereunder or otherwise

shall at your election forthwith become due and pay-

able without demand or notice and we hereby give

to you full power and authority to sell, assign,

transfer and deliver the whole or any part of the

securities, bills of lading or documents of title or

the goods represented thereby or of any securities

substituted therefor or added thereto at any

broker's board or at any public or private sale with

or without notice or advertisement at your option

and do further agree that you may become a pur-

chaser at such sale if at any broker's board or at

public auction and hold the property or security so

purchased as your own property absolutely free

from any claim of or in the right of ourselves. In

ease of anv sale or other disposition of the whole
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or any part of the security or property aforesaid,

you may apply the proceeds of such sale or disposi-

tion to the payment of all legal or other costs and

expenses of collection, sale and delivery and of all

expenses incurred in protecting the security or other

property or the value thereof, as hereinafter pro-

vided and may apply the residue of such proceeds to

the payment of this or of any then existing liability

of ours to you whether then payable or not, re-

turning the overplus to us and in case of any de-

ficiency we agree to pay to you the amount thereof

forthwith with legal interest. You may also upon

any such non-payment apply the balances of all our

deposit accounts in the same way that you are

authorized to apply the proceeds of any sale of the

security or property hereunder.

You may pay taxes, charges, assessments, liens

or insurance premiums upon the security or any

part of it, or otherwise protect the value thereof or

of the property represented thereby, and may
charge against us all expenditures so incurred; but

you shall be under no duty or liability with respect

to the protection or collection of any security held

hereunder or of any income thereon, nor with re-

spect to the protection of preservation of any rights

pertaining thereto, beyond the safe custody of such

security. We hereby agree that if, in your opinion,

the market value of the security hereby or here-

after pledged to secure this obligation, after de-

ducting all charges against the same is at any time
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less than the amount thereof and per

centum thereof added thereto we will upon demand,

deposit satisfactory additional security so that the

market value of the security pledged hereunder,

after deducting all charges, shall always equal the

amount of this obligation plus such additional per-

centage.

We hereby agree to indemnify you against any

liability or responsibility for the correctness,

validity, or genuineness of any documents or any

signatures or endorsements thereon representing

goods which you hold, purchase or sell under this

engagement, or for the description, quantity,

quality or value of the property declared therein,

or of any insurance certificates or policies, and

against any general loss or charges or other ex-

penses incurred accruing with respect to such goods

through delay in transmission of shipping docu-

ments or through any other cause, which charges

and other expenses we agree to pay. We further

agree that no delay on [99] your part in exercising

any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver of

such rights or of any right under this obligation.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA,

By J. F. WALLACE,
Vice President

By B. B. WILSON.
Assistant Secretary

Dated : November 28, 1930. [100]
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EXHIBIT "C"

A^IENDMENT TO PROOF OF CLAIM.

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

On the 19tli day of May, 1931, came F. I. Ray-

mond, of and in said State and City and County,

and made oath and says he is authorized to make

this proof.

That affiant is Vice-President and Cashier of

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corpora-

tion organized and existing under and by virtue of

the laAYS of the State of California, with its prin-

cipal place of business in the City and County of

San Francisco, claimant herein, and verified this

amendment to proof of claim for the following

reasons

;

That claimant has no Treasurer and that of all

its officers the duties of affiant correspond most

nearly to those of Treasurer;

That as set forth in the verified claim of claimant

filed with the Receiver herein on the 30th day of

March, 1931, a copy of which claim is hereunto an-

nexed, marked Exhibit "A" [101] and made a part

hereof, Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration was, on the 15th day of January, 1931,

and at the time of the appointment of the Receiver

herein, and still is, justly and truly indebted to

said claimant in the sum of $636,189.95

;

That the basis of said indebtedness is for moneys

loaned by claimant to said Richfield Oil Company
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of California at its special instance and request,

evidenced by a promissory note dated July 12,

1930, a copy of which said promissory note is at-

tached to said verified claim hereinbefore referred

to, as Exhibit "A" thereof, together with interest

thereon from November 30, 1930, at the rate of six

per cent per annum and accruing interest, and also

for certain moneys paid by claimant at the special

instance and request of said Richfield Oil Company
of California for and in behalf of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, all as more particularly

set forth in said verified claim. Exhibit "A", to

which reference is hereby made for the particulars

of said claim;

That at the time of the preparation of said claim

the information therefor was compiled and delivered

to affiant by the Note Department of said claimant.

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. ; said Note

Department was then and now is, a separate De-

partment of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. ; the Foreign Department likewise was then

and now is a separate Department of said Claimant,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. ; said Note

Department at that time kept and does still keep

records of loans from and indebtedness to said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., evidenced

by promissory notes, and had not at that time and

has now no records in its Department of collateral

or other security deposited with said Foreign De-

partment or with [102] any of the other separate
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Departments of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co.

;

That therefore, through inadvertence and lack of

knowledge by said Note Department said claim,

Exhibit "A", stated that there were no offsets or

counterclaims to the debt set forth in said claim

and no claim to preference in payment from the re-

ceivership estate was made, and further stated that

no securities were held by said claimant for said

indebtedness whereas at said time the truth and

the facts were and now are, that unknown to said

Note Department there were and now are certain

collateral securities in the possession of said For-

eign Department as security for all of the said in-

debtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., claimant herein, more particularly as follows,

to-wit

:

On or about the 14th day of October, 1930,

and prior to the appointment of the Receiver

herein, said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a corporation delivered to claimant.

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and

particularly to its said Foreign Department, a

certain Acceptance Agreement in the amount

of $150,000.00, a copy of which said Agreement

is annexed hereto, marked Exhibit *'B" and

by reference made a part hereof.

On or about the 28th day of November, 1930,

and prior to the appointment of the Receiver

herein, said Richfield Oil Company of Call-
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fornia, a corporation, delivered to claimant,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and

particularly to its Foreign Department, a cer-

tain Acceptance Agreement in the amount of

$5,000.00, a copy [103] of which said Agreement

is attached hereto, marked Exhibit ^'C" and by

reference made a part hereof.

Pursuant to the terms of said Agreements here-

inbefore referred to and prior to the appointment

of a Receiver herein, said Eichfield Oil Company,

a corporation, delivered to claimant, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., and particularly to its

Foreign Department, certain drafts drawn by it

upon the following persons and for the following

amounts and upon the following terms:

RICARDO VELASQUES, Twelve Hundred

Nineteen Dollars ($1219.00), maturing April

15, 1931;

BUENO & CO. Twenty-four Hundred Forty-

one Dollars ($2441.00), Fifteen Hundred Dol-

lars ($1500.00) of which matured on January

10, 1931

;

SOCIEDAD AUTOMAVILIANIA COLOM-
BIANA, Seven Hundred Seventy-nine and

10/100 ($779.10) Dollars, which matured Jan-

uary 25, 1931, but which maturity date was

extended by said Richfield Oil Company of

California to February 13, 1931;

ITO BERGONZALI, Fifty-three and Forty-

five one-hundredths Dollars ($53.45), matur-

ing January 15, 1931

;
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BIRLA BROS., Fifty-five Thousand Nine

Hundred and 75/100 Dollars ($55,900.75), ma-

turing May 14, 1931

;

BIRLA BROS., Sixty-three Thousand Nine

Hundred Fifty Dollars ($63,950.00), maturing

May 14, 1931;

BIRLA BROS., Twenty-three Thousand Six

Hundred Seven and 50/100 Dollars ($23,-

607.50), maturing August 19, 1931.

Pursuant to the terms of said Agreements, Ex-

hibits "B" and "C", and particularly the pro-

visions thereof providing that the security deposited

thereunder should be held by said Bank not alone

as security for the Acceptances referred to in said

Agreements, but also as security for any other lia-

bility of said Richfield Oil Company of California

to claimant. Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

whether then existing or thereafter [104] contracted,

and pursuant likewise to the laws and statutes of

the State of California with respect to the banker's

lien of claimant and particularly Section 3054 of

the Civil Code, claimant asserts a lien upon said

drafts and upon all moneys heretofore paid by, or

in behalf of the drawees named in said drafts (ex-

cept as hereinafter set forth) and upon any and all

moneys which may hereafter be paid by, or in be-

half of the drawees of said drafts and claim is

hereby made by claimant against the receivership

estate for the balance of said indebtedness to claim-

ant remaining unpaid after crediting the moneys
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last hereinabove referred to, paid or to be paid by

the drawees of said drafts:

That there has been paid on account of said

drafts

:

The principal amount of the draft of Ri-

cardo Velasquez, to-wit: the sum of $1219.00,

together with $27.63 interest due thereon,

against which there was a collection charge of

$1.52, making the net sum of $1245.11 collected.

The principal amount of the draft of Bueno

& Co. to-wit : the sum of $2441.00, against which

there was a collection charge of $15.42, making

the net sum of $2425.58 collected.

Of said principal sum of $2441.00 claimant has

remitted to the Receiver of Richfield Oil Company

of California the sum of $1965.52 (being the sum

of $1970.00 collected on account of said draft, less

collection charges of $13.48) pursuant to the re-

quest of said Receiver hereinafter set forth. Said

sum of $1245.11 collected on the draft of said

Ricardo Velasquez and said sum of $469.06 (being

the sum of $471.00, the balance on account of the

draft of Bueno & Co., less the sum of $1.94 col-

lection charges) have been claimed and applied by

claimant pursuant to said Agreements marked Ex-

hibits "B" and ''C" and pursuant to said banker's

lien hereinbefore referred to and said moneys are

held as a credit against the indebtedness of said

Richfield Oil Company of California to claimant.

[105]
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"With respect to said drafts hereinbefore referred

to, said Exhibits '^B" and ''C" and said banker's

lien, claimant sets forth the following further facts

:

Upon receiving notice on or about the 15th day

of January, 1931, that Wm. C. McDuffie had been

appointed as Receiver of Richfield Oil Company

of California claimant, in exercise of its banker's

lien, applied the balance of moneys on deposit or on

hand of Richfield Oil Company of California in the

possession of claimant, on account of the then past

due indebtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of

California to claimant;

On or about the 16th day of January, 1931, said

Receiver telegraphed to claimant as follows:

''As receiver I am ordered by Federal Court

to take over all assets including cash in banks

stop While you have undoubted right of off-

set, such right if exercised will seriously cripple

receiver operations. It is necessary therefore

to request that all banks restore to receiver full

cash balance stop Please therefore transfer

such funds to a new account on your books in

my name as receiver evidence of my authority

and signature cards will follow by mail stop

Local banks have indicated they will acquiesce

in this program."

In response thereto claimant replied to said Re-

ceiver as follows

:

"Replying telegram we are willing to restore

into your name as Receiver Richfield 's balance
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in checking account provided we are notified

by you that all company's banks have taken

similar action Stop We are holding certain

collections as security for acceptance Please

understand that we continue to reserve all our

rights for bankers lien against these collec-

tions.

''to'

By said last named telegram claimant expressly

reserved its right to exercise its lien against said

collections held as security for acceptances, includ-

ing said drafts hereinbefore referred to. Said res-

ervation has at no time subsequently been waived

or withdrawn by claimant; except that claimant

subsequently remitted to the Receiver the sum of

$1956.54 on account of the Bueno & Co. draft here-

inbefore referred to. [106]

No part of the security heretofore referred to

(except said sum of $1956.54 on account of said

Bueno & Co. draft remitted to said Receiver as

aforesaid) held by claimant is in any manner

waived and with the exception of the security here-

tofore referred to no other security is held by

said claimant for said indebtedness;

That as hereinbefore mentioned affiant and the

Note Department of claimant at the time of the

execution and filing of claimant's claim, had no

knowledge of said securities so held by the Foreign

Department of claimant and through inadvertence,
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therefore, failed to include said securities in claim-

ant's statement of claim.

F. I. RAYMOND,
Affiant

WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO. a corporation,

Claimant.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of May, 1931.

[Seal] AGNES M. COLE,

Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California. [107]



vs. William C. McDuffie 151

EXHIBT "A"

(To Amendment to Proof of Claim)

In the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Southern District of California,

Central Division.

In Equity-

No. S—125—

J

THE REPUBLIC SUPPLY COMPANY OF
CALIFORNIA, a corporation.

Complainant,

vs.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY OF CALI-
FORNIA, a corporation.

Defendant.

PROOF OF CLAIM

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

On the 28th day of March, 1931, came F. I. RAY-
MOND, of and in the said State and County, and

made oath and says he is authorized to make this

proof.

The Affiant is Vice President and Cashier of

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corpora-

tion organized and existing under and by virtue of

the laAvs of the State of California, with its prin-

cipal place of business in the City and County of

San Francisco, claimant herein, and verified this

Proof of Claim for the following reasons:
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That claimant has no Treasurer and of all its

officers the duties of Affiant correspond most nearly

to those of Treasurer;

That the defendant Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, was on the 15th day of

January, 1931, and at the time of the appointment

of the Receiver herein and still is, justly [108] and

truly indebted to said claimant in the sum of Six

Hundred Thirty-six Thousand One Hundred

Eighty-nine and 95/100 Dollars ($636,189.95) ;

The basis of said debt is as follows

:

Moneys loaned by claimant to said Richfield

Oil Company of California at its special in-

stance and request, evidenced l)y promissory

note dated July 12, 1930, copy of which said

promissory note is attached hereto marked Ex-

hibit "A" and made a part hereof;

Interest on said promissory note from No-

vember 30, 1930, to March 16, 1931, at the rate

of six per cent (6%) per annum, and accruing

interest until paid;

Moneys paid by claimant at the special in-

stance and request of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California for attorneys fees and

13reparation of indenture on behalf of creditor

banks in the sum of $91.28, together with in-

terest thereon from the 11th day of February,

1931, to the 16th day of March, 1931, at the rate

of six per cent (6%) per annum, and accruing

interest imtil paid

;
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Moneys paid by claimant at the special in-

stance and request of said Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California for legal expenses in the

sum of $56.39, together with interest thereon

from the 4th day of March, 1931, to the 16th

day of March, 1931, at the rate of six per cent

(6%) per annum, and accruing interest until

paid;

That there are no offsets or counterclaims to said

debt; no notes or other evidences of indebtedness

have been taken or received except those of which

copies are hereto attached; no Judgment has been

rendered for such indebtedness or any part thereof

;

and no claim to preference in payment from the

receivership estate is made;

That no securities are held by said claimant for

said indebtedness.

F. I. EAYMOND,
Affiant.

AYELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO., a corporation.

Claimant.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 28th day

of March, 1931.

[Seal] DAISY CROTHERS WILSON,
Notary Public in and for the City and

County of San Francisco, State of Cali-

fornia. [109]
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EXHIBIT "A"

(To Proof of Claim)

No. D47304

$625,000. San Francisco, Calif., July 12, 1930

Ninety days after date, for value received, RICH-
FIELD OIL COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA a

Corporation, promises to pay WELLS FARGO
BANK & UNION TRUST CO., 4 Montgomery

St., San Francisco, SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-
FIVE THOUSAND Dollars, in United States

Gold Coin of the present standard of weight and

fineness, with interest thereon in like gold coin from

date hereof until paid, at the rate of 6 per cent per

annum, payable monthly, and if not so paid to be-

come part of the principal and bear the like rate of

interest, and in the event of commencement of suit

to enforce payment of this note, such attorney's

fees as the Court may adjudge reasonable.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA,

By R. W. McKEE, By G. P. LYONS,
Vice President. Assistant Secretary. [110]

EXHIBIT ''D"

ORDER.

Upon the reading and filing of the petition of

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. for an

order authorizing the petitioner to file herein its
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Amendment to Proof of Claim and instructing Wm.
C. McDuffie, Receiver herein, to receive and ac-

cept the same and upon the reading and filing of

the stipulation of counsel in reference to the mat-

ters in said petition mentioned, and good cause

appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. is hereby authorized to

file its Amendment to its verified Proof of Claim

herein and Wm. C. McDuffie, Receiver herein, is

hereby instructed to receive and accept the same

for filing.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that

the receipt and acceptance for filing of said Amend-

ment to Proof of Claim by the said Wm. C. Mc-

DufQe, as Receiver herein, shall be without preju-

dice to the rejection thereof and/or the making of

any objection by said Receiver or any other person

to its contents or the time and manner of the filing

thereof, and without prejudice to the rights of

the said Wm. C. McDuffie, as such Receiver, or

Richfield Oil Company of California in the cause

now pending in [111] the United States District

Court, Northern District of California, Southern

Division, entitled, "The Republic Supply Company

of California, a corporation, complainant, vs. Rich-

field Oil Company of California, a corporation,

defendant—Wm. C. McDuffie, Ancillary Receiver

for Richfield Oil Company of California, vs. Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.," being cause in

Equity No. 2758-K in the files of the Clerk of said

Court.
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Done in open Court at Los Angeles, California,

this 29 day of May, 1931.

WILLIAM P. JAMES,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Receipt of a cop}^ of the within

Answer and Defenses of Defendant is herehy ad-

mitted this 15th day of January, 1932.

GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN,
Attorneys for Wm. C. McDuffie as Ancillary

Receiver, etc.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 15, 1932. [112]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

NORCROSS, District Judge:

Complainant Receiver's bill of complaint prays

for relief requiring defendant Wells Fargo Bank

&: Union Trust Co. to pay over to him as receiver

the proceeds of certain foreign drafts collected by

said defendant, totaling the sum of $144,758.79, to-

gether with interest and costs. To the bill of com-

plaint defendant bank sets up the right to, and the

assertion of, a bankers lien upon the proceeds of

said drafts, also the right to the same under the

terms of certain acceptance agreements.

On July 12, 1930, Richfield Oil Company gave its

note to defendant in the principal sum of $625,-

000.00, payable ninety days after date, with interest

at 6% per annum. The note covered a prior note
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then due, and provided for an additional [113] loan

which was placed on deposit to the credit of the Oil

Company in its general checking account.

In August or September, 1930, Mr. Richard L.

Hall came to San Francisco with a view of taking

up with the Foreign Department of defendant bank

the matter of the bank handling Richfield collec-

tions from foreign consignees and extending credit

thereon. Hall testified that, although he had the

title of Export Manager of Richfield Oil Company,

he was not directly employed by that company. His

relationship with the company, he stated "was to

form and organize an export department for Rich-

field under joint account with the Richfield Oil",

under which arrangement he had been acting for

three or four years and until his "resignation"

September 1, 1931. The financial interest of Hall

in the matter appears to be that he was negotiating

sales in foreign territory for the Richfield Company

upon a commission basis. At this first meeting with

officials of defendant bank, Mr. Hall was accom-

panied by Homer E. Pope, an official in the Foreign

Department of the Richfield Company whose par-

ticular duty was to watch foreign collections. Hall

had conferences with Mr. Gilstrap and Mr. Hell-

man of the Foreign Department of defendant bank,

and thereafter with Mr. Lipman, President of the

bank. During a conference with Gilstrap, the lat-

ter suggested the use of acceptances rather than the

discount of drafts on customers; that "prime paper
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not exceeding ninety days could be handled" at a

saving. Hall testified that upon that occasion he

asked Gilstrap "to remember that any transactions

were to be considered separate from other trans-

actions of the Richfield Company—the entire trans-

actions, monetary, the collection of drafts for

* * * the Foreign Department." Concerning a

conversation with President Lipman, Hall testified

:

"He (Lipman) said that he would give a

further line of credit based on foreign drafts to

$150,000 or $200,000 or [114] thereabouts and

see how it would work out. I then made it par-

ticularly strong to Mr. Lipman as to my posi-

tion as manager of the Foreign Department,

that I would continue to give my very careful

attention to the drafts of the Foreign Depart-

ment for tw^o reasons; that I had a personal

interest in the collections of the Department,

and that I wanted it considered to be a separate

transaction from any of the obligations or any

transactions other than those of the Foreign

Department—Richfield obligations and mine.

Lipman then said, 'That is good' or 'That is ex-

cellent.'
"

Hall also quoted Lipman as saying:

"I have accommodated Richfield a great deal,

hnt on an acceptance basis, based on your for-

eign collections, Mr. Hall, we will extend fur-

ther credit under the acceptance form."
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Mr. LijDman testified, concerning the conversation

with Hall:

"The conversation was quite short, and it

seems to me that as the conversation came to

an end he said something to this effect; That

he represented the Foreign Department and

not the general treasury relations of the com-

pany and he did not want the two mixed up.

He wanted them kept separately."

Mr. Frederick J. Hellman, Vice President of

defendant bank, and in charge of its Foreign De-

partment, accompanied Hall to the office of Presi-

dent Lipman. Concerning the conversation with

Lipman, Hellman testified:

"As I remember it, we then stood up and

w^ere going out the door, and Mr. Hall said to

Mr. Lipman, 'Mr. Lipman, I want it under-

stood'—no not that. He said 'You must realize

that I am not in the financial end of the busi-

ness ; that I am only the manager of the foreign

department, and I mil have to get the consent

of my superiors to put this credit through.'

He further said that he knew we were giving

them a credit of $625,000, and that if this ac-

ceptance credit was going to interfere with the

loan downstairs, he knew they would not con-

sent to it, and he wanted the acceptance credits

separate from the loan downstairs."
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On cross-examination, to the question:

''Q. He wanted to have the acceptances con-

sidered separate from the $625,000—didn't he

make that statement?—Helhnan replied:

"A. That is the essence of the statement if

it was not the statement."

Helhnan further testified:

"I believe Mr. Lipman said to Mr. Hall,

'We will advance you $150,000, $200,000, $250,-

000 on your foreign collections.' He made it

quite clear—he said to Mr. Hall that this credit

was to remain in force until it was cancelled by

either side, that we did not know whether it

would work out or not; we did [115] not know

what kind of foreign collections they were

handling, and if it did not work out we re-

served the right to cancel the credit."

On or just prior to October 1st, Hall telephoned

to Gilstrap advising that Richfield had decided to

avail itself of the acceptance credit and requesting

that the necessary forms for executions be sent to

Los Angeles. This request was complied with by

letter of transmittal dated October 1, 1930, reading:

"In accordance with your request made by

telephone today, we enclose forms of accept-

ances and acceptance agreements. We have

completed one specimen acceptance and one

specimen acceptance agreement for your guid-

ance. We understood that our Mr. Eisenbach
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has discussed the use of these acceptances with

your treasurer Mr. B. W. McKee. If you re-

quire any further information please do not

hesitate to call upon us."

On October 6, 1930, Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope re-

turned to San Francisco, bringing with them the ac-

ceptance agreement executed by the Vice President

and Treasurer of Richfield Company of date Octo-

ber 4th, and also fourteen signed acceptances in the

amount of $150,000, and delivered the same to Mr.

Gilstrap. The acceptance agreement as executed, so

far as material, reads:

"ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT"
(arising out of importation or exporta-

tion of goods).

"To WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO.—SAN FRANCISCO.

Dear Sirs:

We hand you herewith for acceptance, the

following drafts: Number Date

Oct. 6, covering following merchandise

Amount $150,000.00 pay-

able in San Francisco to the order of ourselves.

"It is agreed that the proceeds of the above

will be used for financing the actual goods un-

der consideration, and the proceeds of the sale

of the goods shall be applied to liquidate the

acceptance.

"In consideration of your acceptance of the

said draft or drafts the undersigned, * * *

agree to pay you * * * the amount of the said
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draft or drafts at your office one day before

maturity. * * * All l)ills of lading, warehouse

receipts and other documents of title and all

money and goods held by you as security for

any such acceptance shall also be held by you

as security for any other liability from us to

you whether then existing or [116] thereafter

contracted and ])ind ourselves to furnish you

prior to with shipping

documents covering this merchandise or with

exchange arising out of the transaction being

financed by the credit. * * *

u* * * ^Tp further agree that no delay

on your part in exercising any right hereunder

shall operate as a waiver of such rights or of

any right under this obligation."

The matter of the blanks in the acceptance agree-

ment came up for discussion at this time. The tes-

timony of Mr. GilstrajD which does not appear to

be controverted, was:

"That the acceptance agreement did not

stipulate * * * the exact amount for which

each acceptance was drawn because we did not

know, nor did they, * * * in what amount the

acceptances would be issued, and when they

would be issued. * * * Likewise, no mention

could be made * * * of the collections which

were the security for this particular credit,

because, * * * neither they nor we knew exactly

what collections would later be sent us. * * *

I explained to Mr. Pope that this one agree-

ment was expected to be a blanket one."
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At the said time the defendant bank issued its

receipt to the Eichfield Company for "signed and

blank indorsed acceptance forms on this bank, all

dated October 6th; four at $5,000.00 each, eight at

$10,000.00 each and two at $25,000.00 each," a total

of $150,000.00.

Hall and Pope returned to Los Angeles on the

night of October 6th, and on the following night

Hall returned to San Francisco, bringing with him

drafts and documents covering a shipment to Birla

Bros., and three letters of date October 7th. All

these letters and documents were delivered by Hall

to Gilstra]3 on the morning of October 8th. One of

these letters was from G. P. Lyons, Comptroller,

and reads:

"We are sending by Mr. Hall, documents

coveirng a shipment to Birla Brothers, Ltd.,

Calcutta, India. Will you please release against

shipment $115,000.00 worth of acceptances

made payable at 90 days sight."

One of the other two letters reads:

"We are enclosing the following enumerated

documents covering shipment going forward

to Calcutta, India per the M/S 'SILVER
HAZEL':

1. Our draft #103004 amounting to $63,-

950.00 drawn at sight on Birla Brothers,

Ltd.

2. Our draft #103005 amounting to $63,

950.00 drawn at 180 [117] days sight on

Birla Brothers, Ltd.
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3. Our invoice #930112 in tlie amount of

$127,900.00.

4. Insurance policy in triplicate.

5. Three originals Bill of Lading.

Provided these documents are found to be in

order, please forward them to your corresx^ond-

ent bank at Calcutta, requesting them to notify

you immediately by wire of non-acceptance or

non-payment of Draft at maturity."

(Signed) EICHFIELD OIL COMPANY,
B. D. Blanchard,

Assistant Manager,

Foreign Department. '

'

The other letter with the same address, signature

and concluding paragraph reads:

"We are enclosing the following docimients

covering shipments going forward to Calcutta

and Bombay, per the M/S 'SILVER RAY':

1. Our Draft #103006-A amounting to $55,-

900.76 drawn at sight on Birla Brothers,

Ltd. at Calcutta.

2. Our draft #103006-B amounting to $55,-

900.75 drawn at 180 days sight D/A on

Birla Brothers, Ltd. at Calcutta." * * *

(Note: Items 3 to 12 refer to invoices, in-

surance policies and bills of lading.)

Of the drafts receipted for on October 6th, the

bank, as of date October 8, 1930, accepted nine

thereof in the aggregate amount of $115,000.00; on

October 15th, it accepted one in the sum of

$5,000.00; on October 21st, one in the sum of $10,-
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000.00, and on November 28th, three in the amount

of $20,000.00. On November 24, 1930, an "Accept-

ance Agreement" in similar form to that of date

October 4, 1930, was executed by the Richfield Com-

pany in the amount of $5,000.00. An additional

ninety day sight draft was dated and accepted as

of that date.

A letter of date October 21, 1930, from defend-

ant ])ank to the Richfield Company, referring to

the sight draft as of that date, states: "We have

ear-marked same against your collection No. 46483

on La Paz, Bolivia," which was a sight draft on

the [118] consignee for the amount of $11,031.14.

From October 8th, 1930, to January 15th, 1931,

inclusive in addition to the four drafts on Birla

Bros. Ltd., heretofore mentioned, the Richfield

Company deposited wtih the defendant bank drafts

on foreign consignees in the aggregate amount of

$101,458.10. This amount is inclusive of two drafts

on Birla Bros. Ltd., Calcutta, deposited with the

bank January 8, 1931; one at sight for $11,107.50

and the other at 180 days sight for $23,607.50.

The total of such drafts on other consignees was

$64,221.55.

On December 16, 1930, a letter from the defend-

ant bank to the Richfield Company acknowledges

receipt from its Calcutta correspondent of the com-

pany's two sight drafts on Birla Bros. Ltd. in the

amount of $119,850.76, and advises the Company

that the amount, less charges and commissions, has

been applied "in anticipation of maturing accept-

ances."
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A letter from the bank of date January 3, 1931,

advises Richfield Company of the collection of draft

for $11,031.14, "and net proceeds applied in antici-

pation of acceptances."

On January 15, 1931, plaintiff was appointed and

qualified as receiver for the Richfield Oil Company.

At the time of his appointment the unsecured in-

debtedness of the Richfield Company to various

banks throughout the country was approximately

ten million dollars.

On the day following his appointment the re-

ceiver held a conference with representatives of a

number of creditor banks at Los Angeles. The re-

ceiver testified concerning this conference:

"I told the bankers at this meeting that the

conditions were such that if they felt it was

necessary to seize these balances I, as receiver,

should not carry on and that the receivership

nmst be immediately terminated and it would

he necessary to go immediately into bank-

ruptcy.

"I told them that it was not only necessary

that I have the balances restored, but that I

have their assurance that the [119] normal flow

of business would be allowed to go on. Collec-

tions were coming in, of course. If they merely

restored my balances it would be obvious that

it would be impossible to carry on the business

if collections were seized. I asked them if they

would not restore to me all funds that might be

available. I particularly brought to their at-

tention that, after all, the receivership was
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created to protect the state and to carry it on,

and without funds it was utterly impossible to

carry on the estate."

At the conclusion of the meeting a telegram was

prepared by some of the bankers present in coopera-

tion with the receiver to be sent by the receiver to

creditor banks not represented at the meeting. The

telegram reads:

''As receiver I am ordered by Federal Court

to take over all assets including cash in banks.

While you have undoubted right to offset, such

right if asserted will seriously cripple re-

ceiver's operations. It is necessary therefore

to request that all banks restore to receiver full

cash balances. Please therefore transfer such

funds to a new account on your books in my
name as receiver. Evidence of my authority

and signature cards will follow by mail. Local

banks have indicated they will acquiesce in this

program. '

'

Mr. Edward J. Nolan, an executive of the Bank

of America, the largest bank creditor, and who was

one of those present at the meeting with the re-

ceiver, at the suggestion of the receiver called Mr.

Eisenbach of defendant bank by telephone. Con-

cerning this phone conversation Nolan testified, "I

tried to pass it to Mr. Eisenbach just what took

place at the meeting."

To the telegram of the receiver Mr. Eisenbach

replied the same day by wire, reading

:

"Replying telegram we are willing to re-

store into your name as receiver Richfield 's
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balance in checking account provided we are

notified by you that all company's banks have

taken similar action. We are holding certain

collections as security for acceptances please

understand that we continue to reserve all our

rights for bankers lien against these collec-

tions."

On January 17, 1931, Eisenbach wrote to the re-

ceiver, in which letter attention was called to the

fact that no reply had been received "to our tele-

gram of January 16", and after quoting the tele-

gram, said

:

"Pending notification by you that all of the

company's [120] banks have restored to the re-

ceiver the company's cash balances, we have

taken no action towards such restoration on

our part."

To this letter the receiver rej^lied by telegram of

date January 22nd, as follows:

"All banks have now expressed their wil-

lingness to replace Eichfield Oil Company's

offset balances of January 15th to the credit

of receiver. Will therefore greatly appreciate

your at once transferring such sums to my
credit advising me the amoimt by wire collect.

Wish express appreciation your cooperation as

these funds will be of great assistance."

To the receiver's telegram, Eisenbach, by tele-

gram, replied:

"Answering wire have today placed to your
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credit Richfield Oil Companys offset balance

of January fifteenth amount forty thousand

eight hundred seventy four dollars seven cents."

Letters from the bank to the receiver of dates

January 26, 28, February 2, 3, 4, 13, acknowledge

payment of several drafts on foreign consignees

and the application of the proceeds in anticipation

of acceptances in the amount of $25,000.00 due

February 26, 1931.

A letter from the defendant bank to the receiver

of date February 26, 1931, acknowledges receipt of

payments on three certain drafts on foreign con-

signees totaling $7,760.81, also that partial payment

on another draft in the sum of $1,500.00 has lieen

received. The letter then proceeds to say:

"From the four months above mentioned,

the sum of $1499.70 has been taken to meet the

balance due on acceptances maturing today.

The remainder of the proceeds we are holding

in accordance with the notice given you by our

wire of January 16."

On March 3, a letter to the bank by Mr. Pagen for

the receiver, states:

"Referring to your letter of February 26

* * * and referring to your telegram of

January 16, I beg to inform you that all banks

transferred the total amount of deposit to the

credit of Richfield Oil Company of California

on January 15th, 1931, to the credit of Wil-
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\\[\\\\ V. McDuffie, receiver, i will therefore

;i|)l»i-(M'inle il if you will kindly credit the re-

iii.iiiHlcr <»r I lie proceeds as mentioned above,

j|^771!).")S, lo llie credit of Richfield Oil Com-

pany ol' California, William C. McDuffie, Re-

ceiver, and advise as soon as this transfer has

Itccn niadc."" [I'-^l]

In reply lo the lettei' last a))ove (pioled Mr. (Jil-

sli'ap, in a lelicr of date March r)tli, wrote:

"In accordance wiili your request, we are

ci'tvlilin.ti: the accounl ol* WMlliam C McDuffie,

lu'ceiver, KMchfield Oil ('Ompany of California,

wilh I lie sum of Ji<7749.r)8.

"W'c are also creditinj^ Ihis account with

-tl KOSU.f)!, rcpi'(>senl injj; proceeds of collection

No. VMm of the K'ichfiehl Oil Company of

Calirornia, particulars as ])er memorandum at-

lached.''

On iMai'cli "), IJ)!)!, Ihe unpaid ])alance of the

iolal aniounl of \\\v hank's acceptances, aggregating

$ir)r),()0().()() was paid.

0\' (l)-ai'ls on I'oi-eiti^n consignees deposited by

Riclitield Companx- with defendant bank subsequent

<o \\\c acc(>ptanc(> agreement of October 6, 1930,

and pi'ior lo Hie receivership, there was collected

b\- llu> d(d'(Midant bank ilie amount due on six

lluM-eor lotaling $5,278.99, the net proceeds, of

which .tr>,2r)r).86 was credited to the account of the

Ixichliidd Company.
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Of ten drafts on foreign consignees deposited ])y

Richfield Company between October 11, 1930 and

January 15, 1931, botli dates inclusive, in the ag-

gregate amount of |26,011.81, and which were col-

lected by the bank between March 5 and April 22,

1931, ])ot]i dates inclusive, the net proceeds thereof,

$25,996.08, were credited to the account of the Re-

ceiver.

The drafts on foreign consignees upon which a

])ankers lien or security under acceptance agree-

ments is claimed on the net proceeds thereof, are

four in number. On two drafts on Birla Bros. Ltd.,

deposited October 7, 1930, paid June 16, 1931, net

amount $119,512.54; draft on the same consignee

deposited January 8th and paid September 10,

1931, not amount $23,532.08; Ricardo Volozquez, de-

posited December 27, 1930, paid May 18, 1931, net

amount $1,245.11, and balance of draft on Bueno y
Cia paid May 11, 1931, net amount $469.06, a total

of $144,758.79. Of the last mentioned draft, Bueno

y Cia, the original draft was for $2441.00 delivered

to the bank on October 11, 1930, upon whicli

$1500.00 was paid February 24, 1931, and [122]

applied on ])ank acceptances; a second installment

in the amount of $470.00 was paid April 7 and cre-

dited to the account of the receiver.

On March 30, 1931, defendant bank fded with tlie

receiver verified proof of claim in the amount, as

of that date, $636,189.95, which in the main covers

the principal of the note of July 12, 1930, with ac-
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criied interest. The claim as filed concluded with

the statement: "That no securities are held by said

claimant for said indebtedness.''

On May 29, 1931, defendant bank, in pursuance

of an order of court, filed an amendment to its proof

of claim. The order of court provided that the filing

of sucli amendment shall be without prejudice to

the * * * making of any objection * * * to its con-

tents * * * and without prejudice * * * in the cause

now pending"—this cause.

The affidavit of F. I. Raymond, Vice President

and Cashier of defendant bank, being a part of the

amended claim, among other matters, avers:

"That at the time of the preparation of said

claim the information therefor was compiled

and delivered to affiant by the Note Depart-

ment of said claimant, * * * separate depart-

ment; the Foreign Department was then and

now is a separate department of claimant

* * * ; said Note Department * * * had not at

the time and has now no records * * * of col-

lateral or other security deposited with the said

Foreign Department or with any of the other

separate departments * * *

;

"That therefore, through inadvertence and

lack of knowledge by said Note Department

said claim * * * stated that there were no off-

sets or counterclaims to the debt set forth in

said claim * * * and further stated that no

securities were held by said claimant for said

indebtedness whereas at said time the truth
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and the facts were and now are * * * certain

collateral secnrities in the possession of said

Foreign Department as secnrity for all of the

said indebtedness * * * more particularv as

follows:"

Here follows a reference to the two acceptance

agreements of date October 4th and November 24,

1930, for $150,000.00 and $5,000.00 respectively, the

drafts npon which bankers liens are claimed; the

telegram received from the receiver on Jannary 16,

1931, and the reply thereto of same date and copies

of the same [123] are attached as exhil)its to the

amended claim.

It is the contention of complainant receiver that

the defendant bank is withont right to assert a

bankers lien or other claim npon the proceeds of

the drafts in question for the reason that it was

agreed between the bank and Richfield Company that

collections on foreign drafts should be deemed to

be separate and apart from other business and

financial obligations of the Richfield Company with

the bank, and for the further reason that by its

telegram of January 16, 1931, it waived any such

asserted lien.

It is defendant's contention that the drafts, the

proceeds of which are in quetsion as to whether

the same may be applied upon the general indebted-

ness of Richfield Company, were deposited in pur-

suance of the acceptance agreement as security not

alone for the acceptances issued thereunder, ])ut like-

wise as expressed in such agreement, for "any
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other liabilities," and that the written agreement

may not be varied by an oral agreement to the

effect that all foreign drafts shonld be kept "sep-

arate and apart" from other transactions, and that

there has been no waiver of defendant's rights.

The acceptance agreement relied npon is not an

instrument complete in itself. To determine what

the actual agreement between the parties was resort

must be had to other written instruments and cor-

respondence, and their connection or relation to

the agreement explained l)y parol.

There is no conflict in the testimony respecting

the fact that when Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope called

upon the representatives of the Foreign Depart-

ment of the defendant bank the statement was made

by Mr. Hall to the effect that foreign drafts were

to l)e regarded separate and apart from the other

financial transactions between the Richfield Com-

pany and the bank, and that this statement was

later repeated at the conference l^etween Hall and

[124] President Lipman. While witnesses were not

in accord respecting their recollections of certain

details discussed at this first interview, there is, as

stated, no conflict with respect to the statement

made by Mr. Hall. It is not disputed that Mr. Gil-

strap suggested the use of acceptances rather than

the discount of drafts, and Mr. Hall quoted Presi-

dent Lipman as saying "We will extend further

credit under the acceptance form." The testimony

of witnesses for defendant, however, fails to dis-

close any direct statement to Mr. Hall that his
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suggested condition could not or would not be car-

ried out. That there was such an oral agreement

is satisfactorily established. The terms of an ex-

ecuted written agreement cannot be varied by a

13rior or contemporaneous oral agreement. We are

here, however, dealing with a contract which in its

entirety was not reduced to writing. The accept-

ance agreements, in the form executed, by them-

selves are unintelligible; that is, it cannot be ascer-

tained therefrom what drafts are referred to; what

merchandise is covered thereby; what transactions

are financed by the credit, or what exchange based

thereon. As explained by Mr. Gilstrap, neither

party knew in what amount or when the accept-

ances would be issued, and "likewise no mention

could be made * * * of the collections which were

the security for this particular credit." It is neces-

sary to resort to the testimony to determine what

drafts constituted the basis for acceptances issued.

Not all drafts deposited with the bank could be or

were so considered. So far as the issuance of ac-

ceptances was concerned it quite conclusively ap-

pears that, as stated by Mr. Gilstrap, they were

to be based upon "prime paper not exceeding ninety

days." In addition to the 180 day sight drafts, a

number of other drafts were not considered avail-

able for acceptances. The question here involved

is,—were such drafts security for acceptances

which, primarily at [125] least, were based on other

drafts, and more particularly, as expressed in the

acceptance agreement, security "for any other
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liability"? It is clear that the drafts which were

not considered as a basis for acceptances, were

subject to the oral agreement, and that they were

not security fo rthe general indebtedness of the

Eichfield Company to the bank under the pro-

visions of the acceptance agreements.

It is plaintiff's contention that under the oral

agreement to keep separate and apart the foreign

business from that of other business with the bank,

all drafts on foreign consignees other than those

used as a ])asis for acceptances were deposited for

collection merely, and that such drafts were not

only not subject to the acceptance agreement, but

the oral agreement constituted a waiver of any

bankers lien on the proceeds of such drafts. In

reply to this contention, particularly as it relates to

the two Birla Bros. 180 days sight drafts deposited

October 8, 1930, coiuisel for defendant call atten-

tion to the letter of Comptroller Lyons of date

October 7th, in which it is stated: "We are send-

ing by Mr. Hall, documents covering a shipment,"

etc., and the two accompanying letters signed by

the assistant manager of the Foreign Department,

in which are mentioned not only the invoices and

bills of lading, but the sight and 180 days sight

drafts. It is contended that these letters show the

latter drafts to be also "security under the accept-

ance agreement." It is instructive to consider what,

if any, security was or could be afforded by the 180

days sight drafts. If the sight drafts were paid

upon presentation, the acceptances issued on ac-
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count of that shipment would be fully covered. If

they were not so paid the bank would be compelled

to rely on its authority to sell the merchandise

constituting the shipment of which it held the in-

voices and bills of lading. In that event the 180

days sight drafts would be worthless [126] paper.

As testified by Mr. Gilstrap, it was "the collections

which were the security for this particular credit."

The subsequent conduct of the parties supports

the contention of plaintiff that it was understood

and agreed between the Richfield Company and de-

fendant that transactions between the Foreign De-

partments of the two companies were to be regarded

as separate and distinct from other transactions,

the effect of w^hich was a waiver upon the part of

defendant of any bankers lien on collections upon

foreign drafts otherwise than in respect to accept-

ances based on such transactions. Both prior and

su])sequent to the receivership collections upon for-

eign drafts which were not a basis for acceptances

were deposited to the credit of the checking ac-

count of the Richfield Company. Drafts aggregating

more than $30,000 were so deposited. The letters

of defendant bank of February 26th and March

5th, and that of Mr. Pagen for the receiver of

March 3, 1931 are significant. As a result of that

correspondence not only was the balance of $7749.58

remaining after all acceptances had been paid,

placed to the credit of the receiver, but in addition

thereto a further collection received in the sum of

$11,082.51. There is no comment in the letter of
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Gilstrap of March 5th, advising the receiver of these

deposits, in reference to the expression in his letter

of February 26th—"The remainder of the proceeds

we are holding in accordance with the notice given

you by our wire of January 16."

Much argument has been advanced by counsel for

both parties respecting the meaning of a portion

of said wire of January 16th—"We are holding

certain collections as security for acceptances please

understand that we continue to reserve all our

rights for bankers lien against these collections."

Counsel for plaintiff contend that the plain mean-

ing of this expression is that certain of the collec-

tions only were [127] being held as security for

acceptances, and that all others, including those

involved in this suit, were not so held. It is further

contended that it was the understanding acquiesced

in by all creditor banks that such collections were

to be deposited to the credit of the receiver; and

the action of Security-First National Bank of Los

Angeles, the only other bank handling foreign

drafts, in so depositing collections on six such

drafts totaling $152,524.03, is cited in support of

the contention that such was the understanding.

It is urged by counsel for defendant that the

Avord "certain" as used in the telegram, is not a

word of limitation, and that the expression "all

our rights for bankers lien" is comprehensive, and

applies to the collections here involved; that the

only waiver of lien referred to in either the tele-

gram of the receiver or the reply thereto of date
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January 16tli was in relation to the balance in

checking acconnt.

In the view the court takes of this case it is un-

necessary to determine whether the exchange of

telegrams of January 16th would constitute a

waiver upon the part of defendant bank of all lien

rights otherwise than as security for acceptances.

It is the conclusion of the court that there was

such waiver growing out of the understanding be-

tween the parties in relation to collections on for-

eign drafts and acceptances based thereon, that the

transactions between the foreign departments of

the two contracting parties be kept separate and

distinct from other financial transactions. What-

ever otherwise might be said to be the effect of

defendants' wire of January 16th, it is not incon-

sistent with the view that defendant had long be-

fore waived its rights of lien in respect to the col-

lections involved in this suit. Reynes v. Dumont,

130 U. S. 354; Union Bank & Trust Co. v. Loble,

20 F (2d) 124; Buckner v. Leon & Co., 204 Cal.

225; Campbell v. Miller, 205 Cal. 22; Blahnik v.

Small Farms Imp. Co., 181 Cal. 379 ; Savings Bank

V. Ashbury [128] 117 Cal. 96 ; Smith v. Smith, 200

S. W. (Tex.) 545.

Complainant is entitled to a decree as prayed in

his bill of complaint requiring defendant to pay

over to him as such receiver the proceeds of certain

foreign drafts described in the complaint collected

by defendant and totaling the sum of $144,758.79.

It is ordered that a decree be entered accordingly.
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The respective parties may submit proposed find-

ings, conclusions and form of decree.

Dated this lltli day of March, 1933.

FRANK H. NORCROSS
District Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed, Mar. 13, 1933 [129]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
OF LAW.

The above entitled action came on regularly for

trial on July 6, 1932, before the above entitled

court, sitting without a jury, a jury having been

specifically waived by the parties hereto, Honor-

able Frank H. Norcross presiding, Messrs. Gregory,

Hunt & Melvin and Sullivan, Roche, Johnson &
Barry apearing as counsel for complainant William

C. McDuffie, as ancillary receiver of Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, and Messrs.

Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe appearing as

counsel for defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., a corporation, and evidence both oral and

documentary having been introduced on behalf of

the parties and the matter having been thereafter

submitted to the court for decision and the court

being fully advised in the premises now renders

herein its findings of fact and conclusions of law:
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FINDINGS OF FACT.

The court finds as follows, to-wit:

I.

Complainant The Eepublic Supply Company of

California is a California [130] corporation, having

its principal place of business in Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia, and is a citizen and resident of said state.

11.

Defendant Richfield Oil Company of California

is a Delaware corporation, having its principal

place of business in Los Angeles, California, and

is a citizen and resident of the State of Delaware.

III.

Defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

is a California corporation, having its principal

place of business in San Francisco, California, and

is a citizen and resident of said state.

IV.

On January 15, 1931, in an action commenced in

the District Court of the United States, in and

for the Southern District of California, Central

Division, and entitled "The Republic Supply

Company of California, a corporation. Complain-

ant, V. Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation. Defendant, In Equity No. S-125-J,

said court made and entered its order appointing

William C. McDuffie receiver of all the property,

assets and business of said Richfield Oil Company
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of California, and ever since said time William C.

McDuffie has ])een and now is the duly appointed,

qualified and acting receiver for said Richfield Oil

Company of California, authorized by said order

to take forthwith and have complete, exclusive

control, possession and custody of all the property

and assets, of every kind, character and descrip-

tion, within the Ninth Judicial Circuit, owned by

or under the control or in the possession of said

Richfield Oil Company of California, and all per-

sons, firms and corporations by said order were

forthwith directed to deliver to said receiver all of

said property and assets of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California.

V.

Thereafter and on said 15th day of January,

1931, in an action commenced in the District Court

of the United States, in and for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division, and entitled

"The Republic Supply Company of California, a

corporation. Complainant, v. Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, a corporation, Defendant", In

Equity No. 2758-K, said court made and entered

its [131] order appointing said William C. McDuffie

ancillary receiver of all the property, assets and

business of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia in said Northern District of California;

thereafter and on January 20, 1931, said William

C. McDuffie didy qualified as STich ancillary receiver

and ever since said time has been and now is the

duly appointed, qualified and acting ancillary re-
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ceiver of and for said Richfield Oil Company of

California within said Northern District of Cali-

fornia, authorized by said order to take forthwith

and have complete, exclusive control, possession and

custody of all the property and assets, of every

kind, character and description, within said North-

ern District of California, owned by or under the

control or in the possession of said Richfield Oil

Company of California, and all persons, firms and

corporations by said order were forthwith directed

to deliver to said ancillary receiver all of said

property and assets of said Richfield Oil Company
of California.

VI.

On or about July 12, 1930, said Richfield Oil

Company of California became indebted to said

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. in the sum
of $625,000.00, and at said time made, executed and

delivered to said bank its promissory note, without

security, evidencing said indebtedness, payable

ninety days after date, with interest thereon at the

rate of six per cent per annum. At said time no

agreement of any kind for collateral or as security

for the repayment of said amount was executed by

said Richfield Oil Company of California to or for

the benefit of said bank.

VII.

Thereafter and during the month of August,

1930, an oral agreement was entered into between

said Richfield Oil Company of California and said
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defendant bank whereby said Eichfield Oil Com-

pany of California agreed to deposit with said

bank, for collection only, drafts dra^^^l by said

Eichfield Oil Company of California on certain of

its customers residing in foreign countries, which

drafts were drawn for payment of certain ship-

ments of commodities hy said Eichfield Oil Com-

pany of California to said customers. It was then

and there further orally agreed by and between

said Eichfield Oil Company of California and said

bank that the collection of said foreign drafts by

said bank should be entirely separate and [132]

apart from all other financial obligations and trans-

actions theretofore or thereafter to be conducted

in the ordinary course of business, l)etween said

parties.

YIII.

Pursuant to and under and in reliance upon said

agreement of August, 1930, said Eichfield Oil Com-

pany of California thereafter deposited with said

bank, for collection only, and not as security for

the payment of the alcove or any indebtedness ow-

ing from said Eichfield Oil Company of California

to said bank, the following drafts:

Draft No. 103005, dated October 8, 1930,

drawn by said Eichfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia on Birla Bros., Ltd. at Calcutta, India,

in the sum of $63,950.00, and payable at 180

days sight.

Draft No. 103006B, dated October 8, 1930,

drawn by said Eichfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia on Birla Bros., Ltd. at Calcutta, India,
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in the sum of $55,900.75, and payable at 180

days sight.

Draft No. 13107, dated January 8, 1931,

drawn by said Eichtield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia on Birla Bros., Ltd. at Calcutta, India,

in the sum of $23,607.50, and payable at 180

days sight.

Draft No. 123014, dated December 27, 1930,

drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia on Ricardo Velazquez, in the sum of

$1219.00.

IX.

On or about the maturity thereof draft numbered

103005, dated October 8, 1930, in the sum of $63,-

950.00, hereinabove and in finding VIII hereof

more particularly described, was paid in full by

said drawee thereof and thereafter and on or about

June 10, 1931, the net proceeds of said draft were

received by defendant bank at San Francisco,

California.

On or about the maturity thereof draft numbered

103006B, dated October 8, 1930, in the sum of

$55,900.75, hereinabove and in finding VIII hereof

more particularly described, was paid in full by

said drawee thereof and thereafter and on or about

June 10, 1931, the net proceeds of said draft were

received by defendant bank at San Francisco, Cali-

fornia. Said aggregate net proceeds of said two

last mentioned drafts so received by defendant

bank amounted to $119,512.54.
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On or about the maturity thereof draft numbered

13107, dated January 8, 1931, in the sum of $23,-

607.50, hereinabove and in finding VIII hereof

more [133] particularly described, was paid in full

by said drawee thereof and thereafter and on or

about September 10, 1931, the net proceeds of said

draft, amounting to $23,532.08, were received by

defendant bank at San Francisco, California.

On or about the maturity thereof draft numbered

123014, dated December 27, 1930, in the sum of

$1219.00, hereinabove and in finding VIII hereof

more particularly described, was paid in full by

said drawee thereof and thereafter and on or about

May 18, 1931, the net proceeds of said draft,

amounting to $1245.11, were received by defendant

bank at San Francisco,. California.

X.

Included in the drafts set forth in the amended

bill of comx^laint herein is one numbered 103023,

in the principal sum of $779.10, dra\ATi by said

Eichfield Oil Company of California on Sociedad

Automoviliaria, w^hich has never been paid by said

drawee.

XI.

Included in the drafts set forth in the amended

bill of complaint herein is one numbered 13103, in

the principal sum of $53.45, drawn by Richfield

Oil Company of California on Ito Bergonzali,

which has never been paid by said drawee.
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XII.

Thereafter and during the month of October,

1930, said Richfield Oil Company of California and

said bank made and entered into an agreement

that drafts drawn on said bank by said Richfield

Oil Company of California and payable to said

Richfield Oil Company of California, duly en-

dorsed, which said drafts were termed "banker's

acceptances", would be endorsed and accepted for

payment by said bank and that such acceptances,

to an amount aggregating $155,000.00, would l)e

sold and negotiated by said bank, and that the net

proceeds thereof, less discounts, should be credited

to the account of said Richfield Oil Company of

California at said bank. At said time it was further

agreed that such acceptances would be payable

ninety days after the date of each thereof and

would be based upon and secured only hj such

drafts of Richfield Oil Company of California

drawn upon its responsible foreign customers for

shipment of commodities as were slightly greater

in amount and of a maturity shorter than the

banker's acceptances, for the payment of which,

before maturity, such drafts were respectively

reserved. [134]

XIII.

At or about the time of the making of said

agreement of October, 1930, for the issuance by

defendant bank of said banker's acceptances and

for the purpose of securing said acceptances to

the amount of $150,000.00, said Richfield Oil Com-
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pany of California on October 4, 1930, executed

and delivered to defendant bank a printed docu-

ment prepared by defendant bank and designated

"acceptance agreement"; on November 28, 1930,

a second printed document prepared by defendant

bank, in the same form as the first, was executed

and delivered by said Richfield Oil Company of

California to defendant bank for the purpose of

securing additional banker's acceptances aggregat-

ing the sum of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00).

Said acceptance agreements are marked respec-

tively Plaintiff's Exhibits 16 and 38 and are hereby

made a part hereof by reference.

XIV.

Each of the acceptance agreements above referred

to was incomplete on its face in that the drafts

constituting the security for the issuance of l^ank-

er's acceptances under each of said agreements

were not designated or identified in any manner

whatsoever, parol evidence being necesasry to de-

termine what drafts constituted the subject matter

of each of said acceptance agreements.

XV.
A certain draft No. 103012, in the principal sum

of $2,441.00, drawn by said Richfield Oil Company

of California on Buena Y Cia and included in the

ancillary amended bill of complaint herein, was

deposited with defendant bank by said Richfield

Oil Company of California under and pursuant to

the terms and conditions of said written acceptance
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agreement dated Octoljer 4, 1930, ])ut said draft

was not inclnded under said oral agreement entered

into during the month of August, 1930, between

Richfield Oil Company of California and defendant

bank.

XVI.
Thereafter and pursuant to said agreement of

October, 1930, hereinabove and in finding XII
hereof particularly referred to, said bank negotiated

and sold said banker's acceptances aggregating the

sum of $155,000.00 and deposited the net proceeds

thereof to the account of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California. Said banker's acceptances

were secured only by foreign drafts of said Rich-

field Oil [135] Company of California of an aggre-

gate amount slightly in excess of the amount of said

banker's acceptances so issued, and, excepting as

to draft No. 103012 hereinabove in finding XV
mentioned, having a maturity shorter than the

maturity of said banker's acceptances. Xone of

said foreign drafts herein in this finding referred

to is involved in or constitutes the subject matter

of this litigation. Thereafter and on or about

February 26, 1931, the total amount of said bank-

er's acceptances, so negotiated as aforesaid, in the

sum of $155,000.00, was fully paid and discharged.

XVII.

Excepting as to said draft No. 103012 herein-

above and in finding XV hereof referred to, only

those foreign drafts drawn by Richfield Oil Com-
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pany of California, the proceeds of which could

be and actually were received by defendant bank

at San Francisco at least one day before the ma-

turity date of the acceptances secured thereby,

were the subject matter of the acceptance agree-

ment dated October 4, 1930, and the supplemental

acceptance agreement dated November 28, 1930;

all other foreign drafts drawn by Richfield Oil

Company of California, including those set forth

in finding VIII hereof, were deposited wdth de-

fendant bank by said Eichfield Oil Company of

California for collection only and formed the sub-

ject matter of the oral agreement made and entered

into between said parties during the month of

August, 1930.

XVIII.

At the time of the appointment and qualification

of said William C. McDuffie as receiver for Rich-

field Oil Company of California, to-wit, on Janu-

ary 15, 1931, said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia was indebted to certain banks throughout

the United States in an amount of approximately

$10,000,000.00, including said defendant bank upon

the aforesaid indebtedness of $625,000.00 due upon

the above described promissory note dated July

12, 1930; in each of said banks said Richfield Oil

Company of California maintained a deposit ac-

count w^hich it nsed in the ordinary course of

business.

XIX.

At or about the time of the appointment and

qualification of said receiver, it was agreed by and
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between said receiver and each of said banks, in-

[136] chiding defendant bank, that each of said

banks would forthwith transfer the deposit account

so held by it in the name of Richfield Oil Company
of California, to that of William C. McDuffie as its

receiver, and would carry on and conduct said

account in the ordinary course of business and

would not exercise any claim of banker's lien upon

said account, including collections, except such col-

lections as were security for acceptances thereto-

fore issued by defendant bank ; such agreement was

made in order to enable said receiver to carry on

and transact the affairs of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California for the benefit of the creditors

thereof until the termination of said receivership.

XX.
Thereupon and thereafter all of said banks, pur-

suant to said agreement, transferred said accounts

to the credit of said receiver and all except de-

fendant bank have since continued to carry on and

conduct said accounts as the same had been con-

ducted in the ordinary course of business with

said Richfield Oil Company of California and have

refrained from asserting any banker's lien or right

of set-off against said accounts and collections

therein.

XXI.

Said AVells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., in

violation of its said agreement by and with said

receiver and with said other banks, has applied
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the proceeds of the collection of the four drafts

set forth and described in finding VIII hereof, to

its preexisting unsecured promissory note, dated
July 12, 1930, of approximately $625,000.00; said

receiver of Richfield Oil Company of California

has heretofore demanded of deefndant bank re-

storation and repayment to his account of the pro-

ceeds of said drafts, but said defendant bank has

refused and still refuses so to do.

XXII.
On or about March 30, 1931, defendant bank filed

with William C. McDuffie, as receiver for Richfield

Oil Company of California, its proof of claim, duly

verified, alleging that said Richfield Oil Company
of California at that time was indebted to claimant

in the sum of $636,189.95, which in the main cov-

ered the principal sum of said promissory note

dated July 12, 1930, plus accrued interest thereon,

and also included two claims for small sums not

involved in this [137] litigation. Said verified

claim as filed by said bank concluded with the state-

ment "that no securities are held by said claimant

for said indebtedness".

Thereafter and on or about the 19tli day of May,

1931, after first having obtained leave of Court,

defendant filed with said William C. McDuffie as

receiver of Richfield Oil Company of California its

amendment to Proof of Claim, wherein it was set

forth by said defendant that the drafts hereinabove

mentioned were held as security for the general
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indebtedness of Richfield Oil Company of California

to said defendant.

XXIII.
Both prior and subsequent to the date of said

receivership, j^i'oceeds of foreign drafts drawn by

Richfield Oil Company of California and deposited

by it with defendant bank for collection only and

not as security for acceptances issued by defendant

bank, were deposited by defendant bank to the

credit of said Richfield Oil Company of California

and/or its receiver, without any claim of right of

offset or banker's lien on the part of said defendant

bank.

XXIV.
None of the drafts more particularly set forth

in finding VIII hereof, the proceeds of which are

the subject matter of this action were deposited

by said Richfield Oil Company of California with

defendant bank under or by virtue of the terms or

provisions of said written contract designated

"acceptance agreement", dated October 4, 1930,

executed by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia and addressed to defendant l^ank, nor were

any of said drafts deposited by said Richfield Oil

Company of California with defendant bank under

or by virtue of the terms or provisions of said

supplemental acceptance agreement entered into

between said parties and dated November 28, 1930;

nor were any of said drafts subject to or controlled

by any of the terms or provisions of either of said

acceptance agreements.
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CONCLUSIONS OF LAW.

I.

The above entitled court lias jurisdiction of the

subject matter of and the parties to the above en-

titled action.

II.

Defendant bank has never at any time acquired

a valid lien against any of [138] the drafts set forth

and described in finding VIII of the findings of fact

herein, or the proceeds of any of said drafts.

III.

By said oral agreement and understanding en-

tered into between said Richfield Oil Company of

California and defendant bank during the month

of August, 1930, said defendant bank did waive

any and all of its lien rights, statutory or other-

wise, with respect to the drafts set forth and more

particularly described in finding VIII of the find-

ings of fact herein, and the proceeds of each

thereof, and it did not thereafter by any act acquire

any such lien right theretofore waived, or other-

wise.

IV.

Defendant bank by its said oral agreement en-

tered into with said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia during the month of August, 1930, and by

its conduct both prior and subsequent to the deposit

of said foreign drafts set forth and described in

finding VIII of the findings of fact herein, the net

proceeds of which are now the subject matter of
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this litigation, did waive its right of offset or

banker's lien respecting all of said drafts and did

fnrther waive its right to apply the proceeds of

said drafts or any thereof toward said or any in-

debtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia to it.

V.

Drafts numbered 103005, 103006B, 13107 and

123014, hereinabove particularly described in find-

ing VIII of the findings of fact herein, were not

deposited in the ordinary course of Inisiness by said

Richfield Oil Comi^any of California with defend-

ant bank, but were deposited with said bank imder

a special agreement and for a special purpose, and

constituted a specific deposit or trust.

VI.

Defendant bank, by its said oral agreement en-

tered into with Richfield Oil Company of California

during the month of August, 1930, and by its sub-

sequent acts and course of conduct, dealt with said

Richfield Oil Company of California and its re-

ceiver under circumstances inconsistent with the

exercise by it of a right of set-off or banker's lien,

with respect to said drafts described in finding

VIII of the findings of fact herein or their pro-

ceeds, or any thereof. [139]

VII.

Defendant bank is entitled to retain the sum of

$469.06, representing the net proceeds of draft
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No. 103012, which was in the principal sum of

$2,441.00, drawn by said Richfield Oil Company of

California on Buena Y Cia and complainant Wil-

liam C. McDuffie, as ancillary receiver for Rich-

field Oil Company of California, has no right, title

or interest in or to the same or any part thereof.

VIII.

Complainant William C. McDuffie, as ancillary

receiver for said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, is the true owner of the net proceeds of

said drafts numbered 103005, 103006B, 13107 and

123014, more particularly described in finding

VIII of the findings of fact herein, aggregating

the sum of $144,289.73, and defendant Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. has no right, title or in-

terest in or to the same or any part thereof.

IX.

Complainant William C. McDuffie, as ancillary

receiver of Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, is entitled to a judgment and decree

herein for the sum of $144,289.73, representing the

net proceeds of drafts numbered 103005, 103006B,

13107 and 123014, more particularly described in

finding VIII of the findings of fact herein, together

with interest on the net proceeds of each of said

drafts, at the rate of seven per cent per annum,

from the date the net proceeds of each of said

drafts were received by defendant bank at San

Francisco, California, all as set forth in finding IX

of the findings of fact herein, which said interest to
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date anioimts to the sum of Nineteen Thousand and
Sixteen and 12/100 Dollars ($19,016.12), together

with said complainant's costs of suit herein.

Let judgment and the decree of this court be

entered accordingly.

Dated : May 12th, 1933.

FRANK H. NORCROSS
Judge.

Approved as to form as provided in Rule 22

:

Solicitors for Defendant Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 13th 1933 [140]
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In the District Court of the United States, North-

ern District of California, Southern Division.

No. 2758-K

In Equity.

THE REPUBLIC SUPPLY COMPANY OF
CALIFORNIA, a corporation,

Complainant,

vs.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY OF CALIFOR-
NIA, a corporation.

Defendant.

WILLIAM C. McDUFFIE, as ancillary receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation,

Complainant,

vs.

WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST CO.,

a corporation.

Defendant.

DECREE

This cause came on to be heard on July 6, 1932,

and thereafter was argued by counsel; and there-

upon, upon consideration thereof, IT WAS OR-

DERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED as fol-

lows, viz:

That defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. be and it is hereby ordered, directed

and required to pay over forthwith to complainant
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William C. McDuffie, as ancillary receiver of Rich-

field Oil Company of California, the sum of One
Hundred Sixty-Three Thousand Three Hundred
Five and 85/100 Dollars ($163,305.85), in lawful

money of the United States of America, repre-

senting the net proceeds of four certain drafts

numbered 103005, 103006B, 13107 and 123014,

amounting to the sum of One Hundred Forty-four

Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-nine and 73/100

Dollars ($144,289.73), collected by defendant bank

for the account of said complainant, together [141]

with interest on the net proceeds of each of said

drafts, at the rate of seven per cent (1%) per

annum, computed from the respective dates the net

proceeds of each thereof were received by de-

fendant bank at San Francisco, California, which

said interest in the aggregate to date amounts to

the sum of Nineteen Thousand Sixteen and 12/100

Dollars ($19,016.12), together with complainant's

costs of suit herein amounting to the sum of

Dollars ($ ).

Dated: May 12, 1933.

FRANK H. NORCROSS,
District Judge.

Approved as to form as provided in Rule 22:

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE & McAULIFFE
Solicitors for Defendant Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co.

[Endorsed]: Filed and entered May 13th, 1933.

[142]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ENGROSSED STATEMENT OF EVIDENCE
REQUIRED BY EQUITY RULE 75.

BE IT REMEMBERED That the above entitled

cause came on regularly for trial before the above

entitled Court sitting in equity on the 6th day of

July, 1932, upon the issues formed ])y the ancillary

amended bill of complaint and the answer thereto,

[143] Theodore J. Roche, Esq. and Messrs.

Gregory, Hunt and Melvin, by T. T. C. Gregory,

Esq. and Ward Sullivan, Esq. appearing as counsel

for complainant, and Messrs. Heller, Ehrman,

White & McAuliffe, by Lloyd W. Dinkelspiel, Esq.

appearing as counsel for defendant. Counsel for

])oth parties stiiDulated that a trial by jury be

waived.

COMPLAINANT'S CASE.

Complainant offered in evidence a copy of the

bill of complaint filed in the case of Republic

Supply Company of California, a corporation, v.

Richfield Oil Company of California, a corporation,

filed with the Clerk of the United States District

Court in and for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, on January 15, 1931; a copy of the answer

filed in said case by the Richfield Oil Company of

California ; a copy of the Order appointing William

C. McDuffie as receiver of Richfield Oil Company of

California ; a copy of the bill of complaint filed in
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the District Court of the United States, Northern
District of California, Southern Division, in the

case of Republic Supply Company, a corporation,

versus Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation ; a copy of the answer filed in that case

by Richfield Oil Company of California, a corpora-

tion; a copy of the Order made by said Court ap-

pointing William C. McDuffie as ancillary receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California; and the

oath of office taken by said William C. McDuffie.

These documents were received in evidence and

stipulation was made that they should be deemed to

have been read in evidence without the necessity

of marking them as exhibits. Said documents were

the pleadings and the Orders in the case in which

loetition was made for the appointment of a re-

ceiver and an ancillary receiver for Richfield Oil

Company of California, consent to which appoint-

ments was made in said answers and the appoint-

ments made by the Court in said Orders. It was

stipulated between counsel that a copy of said Order

appointing William C. McDuffie receiver of [144]

Richfield Oil Company of California was sent to

defendant. Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

on January 15, 1931, and was received by said bank

on January 16, 1931, and further that at the re-

quest of said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

an additional certified copy of said Order was sent

it a day or so later.
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WILLIAM C. McDUFFIE
was then called as a witness by the complainant
and testified as follows:

Direct Examination:

I reside at Pasadena, California, and have re-

sided there for about ten or eleven years. My
occupation is that of receiver of Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California, and I have been such receiver

since the 15th of January, 1931. During the period

from the 24th day of December, 1930, until the

]5th day of January, 1931, I was president of the

Richfield Oil Company of California. Prior to the

24th day of December, 1930, I was president of

Pacific Western Oil Company and had no connec-

tion with Richfield Oil Company of California.

During the latter part of 1930, and the first six

weeks of 1931, the offices of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany were at 555 South Flower Street, Los An-

geles. The Richfield Oil Company prior to the time

that I was appointed receiver was engaged in all

phases of the oil business; producing, piping oil,

the finding of oil, retail sales, wholesale sales, of all

products; and this liusiness continued after I ))e-

came receiver. At the time I became receiver of

the Richfield Oil Company it had what is known as

an export or foreign department, the manager of

which was Mr. Hall. Mr. Hall had been manager

during the time that I was president of Richfield

Oil Company and before my appointment as its

receiver, and he continued as such during the

greater part of 1931. At the time that I became
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receiver of Richfield Oil Company it was exporting

its commodities and products and had been doing

so during the time that I acted as its president

and before that time to my knowledge. During

this period of time, Richfield Oil Company had

customers in foreign countries to which its goods

and commodities were sold and shipped, [145] and

that situation continued after I was appointed re-

ceiver, and has continued down to the present time.

At the time of my appointment as receiver, I wrote

a letter to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

in which it was stated that a copy of the Order

appointing me as receiver was being sent, but I

do not know that it was attached to the letter at

the time I signed it.

A letter was introduced in evidence by complain-

ant and was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 1. Said letter was written on

the letterhead of Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia and was dated Los Angeles, January 15,

1931, and was addressed to Wells Fargo Bank &

Union Trust Co., Market and Montgomery Streets,

San Francisco, California, and was in the words

and figures following, to-wit:

"I was this morning, by order of the United

States District Court of California, appointed

receiver of Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, a Delaware corporation, and am en-

closing herewith a copy of said order.
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It is my desire to open an account with your

l)ank to be entitled 'Richfield Oil Company of

California, William C. McDuffie, Receiver',

and to authorize the following persons to sign

checks drawn on the account in the manner
hereinafter specified.

(Then followed names of the parties.)

In opening the account of Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California, William C. McDuffie, Re-

ceiver, 23lease transfer the balance appearing

to the credit of the Richfield Oil Company of

California at the close of business January 14,

1931, to the credit of the account 'Richfield Oil

Company of California, William C. McDuffie,

Receiver', and forward closing statement to-

gether with all cancelled checks for the ac-

count of the Richfield Oil Compam^ of Cali-

fornia, to me at the address mentioned in the

preceding paragraph. Please confirm, by wire,

the amount of balance transferred.

Yours very truly,

WILLIAM C. McDUFFIE."

Said witness testified further as follows:

I had had no business with the Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. immediately prior to my
appointment as receiver. The Richfield Oil Com-

pany had had some business relations with the

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to my
knowledge. [146]
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On January 14, 1931, immediately prior to the

date of my appointment as receiver, a meeting was
held in my office in the Richfield Oil Company's
building at Los Angeles, attended by the bankers

interested in the Richfield Oil Company.

At this meeting Security First National Bank
of Los Angeles was represented by Mr. Hardacre

and Mr. Rude; the Bank of America was repre-

sented by Mr. Nolan; the California Bank by Mr.

Page; Citizens National Bank of Los Angeles was

represented by Mr. Herbert Ivey and Mr. L. O. Ivey

;

the Chemical Bank of New York was represented

by Mr. Darling. There was a Chicago bank repre-

sented by Mr. Buchanan and I don't know whether

he represented the Continental or another Chicago

bank; the American Trust Company was repre-

presented by Mr. Hill. I do not think the First

Seattle Dexter-Horton National Bank was re-

presented.

(The foregoing testimony, commencing with

the words, "At this meeting" was objected to

by counsel for defendant on the ground that

it was incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial

and not binding on defendant. Objection was

overruled and exception noted.)

Prior to the date of my appointment as receiver,

Richfield Oil Company of California was indebted

to banks in California and elsewhere in a total

amount of slightly in excess of Ten Million Dollars.

This indebtedness was unsecured.



206 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

(Testimony of William C. McDuffie.)

(It was here stipulated between counsel that the

statement that the total indebtedness was unsecured

should not be taken as a concession as against de-

fendant of its contention that the indebtedness of

Richfield Oil Company to it was secured by certain

foreign drafts and the collections thereof as

claimed in this action.)

At the time that I was appointed receiver, there

was an outstanding indebtedness due from Rich-

field Oil Company to Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. My remembrance was that it was Six

[147] Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars. To

my knowledge this indebtedness was not secured

aside from the claim here made by the defendant

1)ank. The Ten Million Dollar indebtedness to which

I have referred includes the Six Hundred and

Twenty-five Thousand Dollars due to Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. Richfield Oil Company

w^as indebted likewise to a large number of credi-

tors located in different parts of the United States,

and all of this indebtedness was unsecured. A large

number of said creditors were at that time pressing

their claims against the company.

On January 16th, after my appointment as re-

ceiver, another meeting of the representatives of

these banks was held in my office in Los Angeles

in the Richfield Building, called at my request. I

called the meeting because I had been advised that

certain of the banks had seized balances of Rich-

field Oil Company. I told the bankers at this meet-
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ing that conditions were such that if they felt it

was necessary to seize these balances that I, as re-

ceiver, could not carry on and that the receivership

must be immediately terminated, and that it would

be necessary to immediately go into bankruptcy. I

told them that it was not only necessary that I have

the balances restored but that I have their assurance

that the normal flow of business would be allowed

to go on; collections were coming in, of course;

that if they merely restored my balances it would

be obvious that it would be impossible to carry on

business if collections were seized. I asked them if

they would not restore to me all funds that might

be available. I particularly brought that to their

attention, that, after all, the receivership was cre-

ated to protect the estate and to carry it on, and

that without funds it was utterly impossible to carry

on the estate.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "After my appointment as receiver"

w^as objected to by counsel for defendant on

the ground that it was incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial, hearsay and not binding on

defendant and an attempt to assert the rights

of persons not parties to this action. Objection

was overruled and exception noted. It was here

stipulated that counsel for defend- [148] ant

might cross-examine the witness on this testi-

mony without waiving the objection and that
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the objection would run to the whole line of

testimony in this respect.)

At that time I knew that some foreign drafts

w^ere on deposit with some of the other banks, but

I did not know exactly with what banks they were.

(Counsel for defendant objected to the last

testimony on the same grounds urged in the

previous objection. Objection was overruled

and exception noted.)

At this meeting there was no representative pre-

sent from Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

At that time I had been acquainted with Mr.

Eisenbach of the Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. for a year at least, and before I was connected

with Richfield he had spoken to me about Richfield

and to my knowledge he had from time to time

made investigations respecting the affairs of Rich-

field Oil Company and its general condition.

The banks represented at the meeting agreed

that they would not exercise their right of set-off

upon the Richfield Oil Company balances, and all

those who had already exercised the right of set-

off agreed that they would restore the balances,

provided all of the banks did so. At this meeting

it was said that it was necessary to get the consent

of the Wells Fargo Bank as well as the other out-

of-town banks.

(The foregoing testimony was objected to by

counsel for defendant on the same grounds as



vs. William C. McDiiffie 209

(Testimony of William C. McDuffie.)

were urged with respect to the last objection.

Objection overruled and exception noted.)

At the conclusion of that meeting a telegram was
prepared after discussions between Mr. Hardacre
ctnd the others present, and a copy of said tele-

gram was transmitted to each one of the out-of-

town banks including the Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co.

A copy of this telegram was introduced in evi-

dence by complainant and was received in evidence

and marked Plaintiff's [149] Exhibit 2. Said tele-

gram was in the words and figures as follows:

"Los Angeles California 1230P Jan 16th 1931

Julian Eisenbach

VP WFBAUTC Sanfrancisco Calif

As receiver I am ordered by Federal Court to

take over all assets including cash in banks stop

while you have undoubtedy right of offset,

such right if exercised will seriously cripple

receivers operations. It is necessary therefore

to request that all banks restore to receiver full

cash balance stop Please therefore transfer such

funds to a new account on your books in my
name as receiver evidence of my authority and

signature cards will follow by mail stop Local

banks have indicated they will acquiesce in this

program.

Wm C McDuffie Receiver of

Richfield Oil Co of California"
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Said witness testified further as follows:

Prior to the transmission of this telegram I had

not been advised by the Wells Fargo Bank that

they had intended to exercisce a right of set-off

against any of the funds in their possession. After

sending the telegram marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 2

to the Wells Fargo Bank I received an answer.

A telegram was introduced in evidence by com-

plainant and was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 3. Said telegram was in words

and figures as follows:

"Sanfrancisco Calif 16 1931 Jan 16PM 6 00

W C McDuffie

Receiver Richfield Oil Co of California Rich-

field Bldg

555 South Flower St

Losangeles Calif.

Replying telegram we are willing to restore

into your name as receiver Richfields lialance

in checking account provided we are notified

by you that all companys banks have taken

similar action stop We are holding certain col-

lections as security for acceptances please un-

derstand that we continue to reserve all our

rights for bankers lien against these collections

Julian Eisenbach Vice President Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co."

Said witness testified further as follows

:

I received an answer to each one of the wires
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which I [150] sent to all of the banks and each of

them responded that they would restore the funds

where the funds had been set off and would refrain

from exercising any right of set-off which they

might have, provided all the other banks did like-

wise. I received a wire from Percy H. Johnston,

president of the Chemical Bank, New York. After

receipt of this telegram the Chemical Bank restored

the cash l^alances of Kichfield and whatever other

credits were in the bank. I also received from

Jerre L. Bowling, a representative of the Chemical

Bank, a telegram addressed to him signed P. H. J.,

said P. H. J. being P. H. Johnston.

Said telegrams were introduced in evidence l)y

complainant and were received in evidence and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 4. Said telegrams were

in words and figures following:

"Newyork NY 16 5200P 1931 Jan 16 PM 2 42

Wm C McDuffie, Eeceiver

For Richfield Oil Co of California

Companys balances have been ai^plied to in-

debtedness we do not propose to restore it

Percy H. Johnston President Chemical

Bank and Trust Co."

(Objection to the introduction of said telegram

was made by counsel for defendant on the gorund

that it was incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial

and not binding on defendant. Objection was over-

ruled and exception noted. It was here stipulated

that this objection would run to all the telegrams

from other banks to W. C. McDuffie hereinafter
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set forth, without the necessity of repeating the

objection.)

"New York NY 17 1931 Jan 17 AM 10 52

Jerre L. Dowling

Care Biltmore Hotel

Losangeles Calif

If in your judgment best for us restore Rich-

field balance you are authorized to make state-

ment we will do so stop You are on the ground

and should be better able to appraise than our-

selves stoi3 Noyes making strong effort to name

this bank as bond depositary.

P. H. J." [151]

(It was stipulated that with reference to the

following telegrams to be introduced, if they

were signed by a representative of the banking

interests, they w^ould be considered telegrams

of the banks.)

Complainant then introduced in evidence a tele-

gram which was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 5. Said telegram was addressed

to James L. Buchanan, Hollywood, California, dated

January 16, 1931, and was in words and figures as

follows

:

. "Continental and we will replace balances as

soon as we learn that Los Angeles and all other

banks will do the same thing. As receiver has

no jurisdiction in Illinois prefer not to place

this to his credit until we have full aTithority



vs. William C. McDuffie 213

(Testimony of William C. McDuffie.)

from the company mailing you signature cards

today.

A. W. Newton."

Said witness testified further as follows:

A. W. Newton rex^resented the First National

Bank of Chicago. Both the First National and the

Continental restored the cash balances and the

credits to the credit of the Richfield Oil Company.

Complainant then offered in evidence a telegram

which was received in evidence and marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 6. Said telegram was addressed to

W. C. McDuffie and dated January 22, 1931, and

was sent by W. H. Parson, Chairman First Seattle

Dexter-Horton National Bank. Said telegram was

In the words and figures following:

"This is to inform yoTi that it will be agree-

able with us to release funds that were on de-

posit with us by Richfield Oil Company and

credit same back to the account of receiver of

Richfield Oil Company on receipt of advice

from you that all other bank creditors are doing

likewise."

Comi^lainant than offered in evidence a telegram

which was received in evidence and marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 7. Said tele- [152] gram was dated

January 17, 1931, was addressed to W. C. McDuffie

as receiver of Richfield Oil Company, and was

signed James K. Lochead, Vice President Ameri-

can Trust Company. Said telegram was as follows:
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"Agreeable to your request 16th will transfer

Riehfield balances your account as receiver."

Complainant then introduced in evidence a tele-

gram which was received in evidence, marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 8. Said telegram was dated

January 23, 1931, was signed by C. K. Grensted,

Los Angeles Main Office, Bank of America, and

addressed to W. C. McDuffie as receiver of Rich-

field Oil Company. Said telegram was as follows:

"Balance of Richfield Oil Co. three thousand

six hundred fiftj' dollars and one cent stop

Richfield Oil expense account two hundred

thirty five dollars sixty five cents stop Rich-

field Oil Special Account eight thousand five

hundred fifteen dollars and sixty five cents stop

Transferred to Richfield Oil Co of California

Wm C. McDuffie receiver stop Expense Ac-

count stop and Pa^T^-oll Account respectively."

Complainant then offered in evidence a telegram

and the same was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 9. Said telegram was sent by

the Security First National Bank of Los Angeles

to W. C. McDuffie and was dated January 24, 1931.

Said telegram was as follows:

"AVe credit today your receiver account thirty

seven thousand nine hundred six dollars six

cents balance remaining in Richfield Oil Co.

account and seven thousand ninety five dollars

ninetv nine cents balance remaining in Rich-



vs. V/miam C. MeDuffle 215

(Testimony of William C. McDuffie.)

field Oil Co. executive payroll account stop

Letter of confirmation follows."

Complainant then offered in evidence a letter

which was received in evidence and marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 10. Said letter was dated January

19, 1931, and was sent by Mr. Hardacre, Vice Presi-

dent Security First National Bank of Los An-

geles. Said letter reads as follows : [153]

"Dear Mr. McDuffie:

Referring to your circular telegram of January

16th, I think from our conversations you un-

derstand that this bank is willing to transfer

to you as Receiver balances at credit of the

Richfield Oil Company, provided all other

banks in which Richfield has balances are will-

ing to do the same thing.

I am writing this as a matter of record so you

will have a complete file on the subject, be-

cause no doubt when you have a consent of all

of the banks to this agreement they will in-

dividually desire to have some evidence of the

unanimity of thought in this connection before

they actually make the transfers to you.

We have had a number of checks deposited by

the Richfield Company returned and there may
be a few more yet to come. At the moment it

appears we shall have a balance of about $40,-

000.00 to turn over to you when the unanimous

consent has been secured.

Yours very truly,

A. B. Hardacre, Vice-President."
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Said witness further testified as follows:

At the date of said letter marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 10, the Security First National Bank of Los

Angeles had with it on deposit for collection, drafts

exceeding the value of $300,000 and said sum repre-

sented collections upon drafts in the bank's pos-

session prior to the 15th day of January, 1931.

Said sum was afterwards turned over to Richfield

Oil Company.

In each case in which a bank had already ex-

ercised its so-called bankers lien or right of set-off,

the balances were restored, and after the passage

of these telegrams none of the banks exercised its

bankers lien, not referring, however, to the action

taken by the Wells Fargo Bank during the month

of May, 1931.

(It was stipulated that the foregoing testi-

mony commencing with the words "at the date

of said letter" should be subject to the same

objections previously urged to this line of

testimony.)

Complainant then offered in evidence a photo-

static copy of a telegram and the same was re-

ceived in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

11. Said telegram was dated January 23, 1931, was

signed James R. Page, President, California Bank,

and addressed to Wm. C. McDuf&e. Said telegram

reads as follows: [154]

''Wishing to be helpful to the company and

yourself the California Bank will accede to
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your request stated in your telegram of Janu-

ary sixteenth subject to the other major bank

creditors doing the same."

Said witness testified further as follows:

Prior to the time of my receivership and during

the time of my receivership, the Richfield Oil Com-
pany sold goods and commodities throughout the

United States and in other places, and it was the

habit and custom of the Richfield Oil Company to

take and accept checks drawn upon l:)anks in for-

eign jurisdictions representing the purchase price

of these commodities. The Richfield Oil Company
almost contiimously had in its possession, checks

drawn upon banks which were located in different

jurisdictions, and this was part of the usual and

customary flow of its business. These checks would

be put in various banks for collection, and they

would have to be sent to the bank upon which they

were drawn for payment. Practically about every

day there would be a large amount of money in

transit between the banks, which money belonged

to the Richfield Oil Company. Not only were the

cash balances restored where right of set-off had

been exercised, but likewise all subsequent collec-

tions were deposited to the credit of the Richfield

Oil Company by the banks. Outside of the moneys

here involved, upon which the Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. claims this rfght to exercise a

bankers lien and right of set-off, no bank actually
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did exercise a bankers lien or right of set-off as

against any funds or collections.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "Not only were the cash balances"

was objected to by counsel for defendant on

the ground it was incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial and not binding on defendant. Ob-

jection was overruled and exception noted.)

The witness then testified from a memorandum

prepared by himself as follows:

This is a statement of the outstanding unsecured

debts of the Richfield Oil Company of California

to various banks. The Bank of America of Cali-

fornia, at Los Angeles, $2,060,000. California Bank,

Los Angeles, $250,000. Chemical Bank & Trust

Company, New York, [155] $625,000. Citizens Na-

tional Trust & Savings Bank of Los Angeles,

$625,000. Continental Illinois Bank & Trust Com-

pany, Chicago, $625,000. First National Bank,

Chicago, $500,000. First Seattle Dexter-Horton

National Bank, Seattle, $250,000. Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., San Francisco, $625,000.

Security First National Bank of Los Angeles, |2,-

210,000. Tucker, Hunter Dulin & Co., through the

American Trust Company, San Francisco, $1,350,-

000. Tucker, Hunter Dulin & Co., Los Angeles,

$1,000,000. Manufacturers Trust Company of New

York, $150,000. That makes a grand total of $10,-

270,000.
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(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "This is a statement" was objected

to by counsel for defendant on the ground it

was incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial

and not binding on defendant. Objection was

overruled and exception noted.)

Complainant introduced in evidence a letter and

the same w^as received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 12. Said letter was dated Janu-

ary 17, 1931, and was written by J. Eisenbach,

Vice President of the Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. to Wm. C. McDuffie as receiver of Rich-

field Oil Company. Said letter reads as follows:

"We are today in receipt of your registered

letter dated January 15, in reference to ac-

count which you have asked us to open on our

books to be entitled 'Richfield Oil Company of

California, William C. McDuffie, Receiver',

In this connection, we call your attention to

the fact that we have not received your reply

to our telegram of January 16 as follows:

'Replying telegram we are willing to re-

store into your name as Receiver Rich-

field's balance in checking account pro-

vided we are notified by you that all com-

pany's banks have taken similar action stop

We are holding certain collections as

security for acceptances Please under-

stand that we continue to reserve all our



220 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

(Testimony of William C. McDuffie.)

rights for bankers lien against the collec-

tions.'

Pending notification by you that all of the

Company's banks have restored to the Receiver

the Company's cash balances, we have taken no

action towards such restoration on our part.

We have, however, opened the account of Rich-

field Oil Company of California, William C.

McDuffie, Receiver, by crediting to same such

deposits as have reached us subsequent to noti-

fication of your appointment. For your guid-

ance, we enclose statement of this account as

of the close of business tonight. A closing

statement of the Richfield Oil Company of

[156] California, with cancelled vouchers goes

forward today under separate cover.

We also enclose cards for specimen signatures

in duplicate.

Yours very truly,

J. Eisenbach, Vice President."

Complainant then offered in evidence a telegram

dated January 22, 1931, signed by Wm. C. Mc-

Duffie as receiver of Richfield Oil Company of

California, and addressed to Julian Eisenbach,

Vice President, Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. Said telegram was received in evidence and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 13, and reads as fol-

lows :

"All banks have now expressed their willing-

ness to replace Richfield Oil Company's offset
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balances of January 15tli to credit of receiver

stop Will therefore greatly api3reciate yonr at

once transferring such sums to my credit ad-

vising me the amount by wire collect stop

Wish express appreciation your cooperation as

these funds will be of great assistance."

Complainant then offered in evidence a photo-

static copy of a telegram which was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 14. Said

telegram was dated January 23, 1931, signed by

Julian Eisenbach, Vice President, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., addressed to Wm. C.

McDuffie. Said telegram reads as follows:

"Answering wire have today placed to your

credit Eichfield Oil Companys offset balance

of January fifteenth amount forty thousand

eight hundred seventy four dollars seventy

seven cents."

Complainant then offered in evidence the carbon

copy of a letter addressed by the Richfield Oil Com-

pany, William C. McDuffie, Receiver, to the Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., dated January

24, 1931, and the reply to said letter, signed by

Julian Eisenbach, dated January 26, 1931. Said

letters were received in evidence and marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 15. The letter addressed to the Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. reads as follows:

[157]
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"In connection with our recent request to

transfer balance in name of Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California to a new account, Richfield

Oil Company of California—William C.

McDuffie, Receiver, it will be appreciated if you

will forward us promptly your usual form of

Debit Advice closing out the old account, and

a copy of your Deposit Slip or other form open-

ing up the new account.

While in some instances we have received

Bank statements showing the old account closed

out, our Attorneys advise that the documents

requested herein are necessary to comply with

legal requirements. '

'

The answer reads as follows:

"William C. McDuffie, Receiver,

Richfield Oil Company of California,

555 South Flower Street,

Los Angeles, California.

Dear Sir:

In accordance with your letter of January 24,

we enclose statement of the account of the

Richfield Oil Company of California, showing

restoration of balance which was applied under

our Banker's Lien and the subsequent transfer

of this restored balance to the new account of

Richfield Oil Company of California, William

C. McDuffie, Receiver.

1 We also enclose copies of our debit and credit

slips covering these entries.
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Trusting that the above meets with your re-

quirements, we are,

Yours very truly,

J. Eisenbach, Vice President,"

Said witness further testified as follows:

At the meeting- of the bankers on January 16th,

the situation I presented to them was an emergency

situation. I explained to them that it was necessary

for me as receiver to continue to carry the business

forward. I explained as thoroughly as I possibly

could that it must be obvious to them that such a

business as Richfield 's was dependent upon the re-

ceiver having available all possible funds, that is,

all assets of every character, so that the receiver

might endeavor to continue the business in some

operating form, and that without funds it was ut-

terly impossible. Payroll checks had to be met and

public utility charges had to be met once a month.

Freight had to be met as it was incurred. A very

large amount of the business of Richfield Oil Com-

pany was being done on credit. [158]

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "At the meeting of the bankers"

was objected to by counsel for defendant on the

ground it was incompetent, irrelevant and im-

material and not binding on defendant. Ob-

jection overruled and exception noted.)

Early in May, 1931, I was advised that Wells

Eargo Bank & Union Trust Co. had exercised or
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was undertaking to exercise a banker's lien or a

right of set-off against the two 180 da}^ Birla Bros,

drafts deposited with the bank and payable in May
of that same year, and likewise another draft for

$23,000—a 180 da}^ draft drawn upon Birla Bros.,

due in August. After receiving that information,

I had a conversation with Mr. Eisenbach over the

long distance telephone. I protested any action of

this character on the part of his bank and told him

that I considered it an absolute violation of the

agreement that had been entered into between the

banks, and a violation of his own agreement as rep-

resented by his telegram; that an emergency of the

gravest character faced the company in the sense

that taxes had to be met,—property taxes; that I

felt that we would have to hold the bank responsible

if we possibly could, if they took any such action;

that I felt that he, himself, w^as in touch with the

situation, knew what the situation was, knew how

very greatly the receiver was constantly in need of

funds, and that I thought that such action on the

part of his bank was detrimental to the conduct of

the business and detrimental to the whole spirit of

the agreement under which the receivership was

being carried on for the creditors. I told him that

I felt this action on his part was a violation of the

agreement between all banks. Mr. Eisenbach told

me that this action was taken by his ])ank on direct

instructions from Mr. Lipman, and there was noth-

ing that he could do about it. That is the substance

of his conversation.
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Cross-Examination.

The date of this conversation with Mr. Eisenbach

was May 11th. I have no record or memorandum of

that couA^ersation. I am testifying as to the best

of my recollection as to what was said on that oc-

casion. My recollection is rather clear because the

matter [159] was of extraordinary importance. It

was a matter of considerable surprise to me that

the bank would exercise its lien. I don't recall stat-

ing in that conversation, "I do not think it is play-

ing cricket at this stage of the game." That is a

phrase which I use occasionally. I am not positive

that I did not say that. I think it is quite probable

that I referred to Mr. Eisenbach 's telegram of

January 14th and that I stated that I knew he had

reserved a right against certain drafts. I cannot

say definitely, but inasmuch as I referred to the

telegram I imagine that I might have emphasized

the word '^ certain". My understanding of the tele-

gram was that they were reserving rights against

certain specified drafts. It was my understanding

that they were reserving their rights on drafts of

rather short life, the Birla Bros, drafts. I do not

know the exact drafts when I used the words, "Cer-

tain drafts". I did not know in detail what drafts

w^ere referred to.

Although I cannot possibly recall the exact words,

my statement to Mr. Eisenbach was something along

these lines: "I am surprised at what Wells Fargo

Bank did, it is crippling us. It is not fair to us ; it
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is not playing cricket. I know you reserved your

rights to do this, but I am asking you not to do it.

It is not helping us along." In substance, I stated

to Mr. Eisenbach that I knew there had been a

reservation of rights, but I had not expected the

bank to exercise these rights. I did not have the

faintest idea the bank would reserve any rights

against anything except the acceptances; otherwise

I should have taken the collection out of their hands

long before that.

The agreement between the banks as I understood

it was that our funds of all character would be

available to the receiver. This agreement was never

made in written form except by an exchange of

telegrams. There was nothing else in writing. The

whole agreement is not necessarily set forth in my
telegram to the bank and their reply. This tele-

gram marked Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2 sets forth

my proposal to the banks. I saw the words "check-

ing account" on the [160] defendant's reply tele-

gram marked Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 3. A checking

account is an account to check against and is not

one involving foreign collections according to my
imderstanding. My agreement with the banks is

represented here by these telegrams marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit No. 2 and Plaintiff's Exhibits Nos. 3

to 11, so far as the writing is concerned. I ulti-

mately replied to the letter and telegram of the

Wells Fargo Bank by Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 13,

sending the same in response to the request of the
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WelLs Fargo Bank, repeated twice, that I tell them

whether other banks had agreed to restore these

balances. By the use of the words, "All banks have

now expressed their willingness to replace Richfield

Oil Company's offset balances of Januar}^ 15th to

credit of receiver", I meant the balances of January

15th. I did not refer to collections in foreign

countries that were not payable for many days

thereafter. I received a letter from Wells Fargo

Bank stating that it had transferred the balance to

my account as receiver. I don't know exactly what

constituted the deposits in the banks. So far as I

know they made available all funds that they had

in their keeping. I stated that all the banks re-

stored the cash balances and the credits to the

credit of the Richfield Oil Company. By credits, I

mean any and everything in the form of funds, in-

cluding funds that were in transit as well as funds

that were actually in the account. So far as I know,

the Wells Fargo Bank made available to the re-

ceiver all funds that were then in the ])ank. I have

no doubt of this. So far as I understand it, the

banks seized the balances that were in the bank as

of a morning. I understood that they restored a

particular amount that they had taken on that par-

ticular morning. I recall having told the local

banks that the Wells Fargo Bank made a reserva-

tion in its acceptance of my request. My remem-

brance is that I read the telegram of the Wells

[161] Fargo Bank to all the local banks after it
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was received. I make that statement notwithstand-

ing Mr. Nolan's testimony of yesterday that he

does not recall having seen or heard of that tele-

gram. Mr. Nolan usually represented his bank. If

he did not then it was Mr. Philio. I positively state

that I read that telegram over the telephone to

several of the banks. I did not ask Wells Fargo

Bank for any explanation as to what it was doing

by its reservation in the telegram to me. It is my
best recollection that I did not take the telegram up

with my counsel.

I did not know exactly what was in the possession

of the Wells Fargo Bank. My understanding was

that there were a large number of drafts for collec-

tion. No dou]}t I did not know in detail the terms

under which those drafts Avere with the Wells Fargo

Bank. I did not know in detail the form of the ac-

ceptance agreement that was outstanding. I knew

we had an agreement with them whereby money

had been raised on these drafts and the drafts were

up as collateral. I did not know at that time that

that agreement provided: ''All bills of lading, ware-

house receipts and other documents of title and all

money and goods held by you as security for every

acceptance shall also be held by you as security for

any other liability from us to you, whether then

existing or thereafter contracted." I did not know
the exact amount of the advances that were out-

standing on bankers acceptances. I do not know

the amount now, and I did not know it on the day
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I was appointed receiver. I did not know it on the

da}' I was addressing the bankers at the meeting in

Los Angeles. I did not discuss it at that meeting.

I did not discuss the collections that the Wells

Fargo Bank had at that meeting or at any of the

meetings prior to sending the telegram. I did not

include it in my telegram. When the answer of

the Wells Fargo Bank came back, I understood

that they were reserving a perfectly natural right

to collect against those acceptances and that they

were reserving their rights as against such drafts

as might have been earmarked. I imder- [162]

stood that specified drafts had been earmarked. I

w^as advised of this by the accounting department of

the Richfield Oil Company. Prior to my appoint-

ment as receiver, I had not discussed this AVells

Fargo item in detail. I only knew generally that

these four drafts, the major portion of them, were

in the Wells Fargo Bank for collection and that

the company had endeavored to raise money in

every way they could, against everything they

could. When I received this telegram marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 3, I did not take up with our

accounting department as to what this reservation

\vould mean. I did not make any investigation in

detail of what the situation was with reference to

the drafts in the possession of the Wells Fargo

Bank. I did not tell any of the other bankers about

it. I am unable to name any banker who asked me
any question about that reservation. I am quite



230 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

(Testimony of William C. McDuffie.)

sure I read the telegram to them. To my knowl-

edge, the Security Bank made no comments aljout

that reservation in the telegram.

The Security First National Bank of Los An-

geles turned back to us the proceeds of the drafts

which it had collected.

The AVelLs Fargo Bank actually did turn over to

us some collections after the receivership. I don't

remember the date. Other than the Wells Fargo

Bank, there were no creditors of Richfield with

secured claims. There were bonds, of course, which

are secured claims. To my knowledge the bond-

holders have not waived their lien. To my knowl-

edge no other creditors who had security have

waived their security.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "To my knowledge" was objected to

by counsel for complainant. Objection was

overruled and exception noted.)

My recollection is that in the latter part of May,

I attempted to revoke the power of the Wells

Fargo Bank to collect these drafts. I sent a cable

direct to the Bank in India or to Birla Bros.

The situation of the Richfield Oil Company be-

came quite acute in the month of May on account

of the necessity of paying property taxes. Our

need for ready money in the month of May was

very impor- [163] tant. There were two acute

periods in the money affairs of the receivership,

one in February, and one in May. By the latter



vs. William C. McDuffie 231

(Testimony of William C. McDuffie.)

part of February the condition of the Company
was no longer acute because money had been raised

to pay the gasoline taxes. I recall testifying this

morning that if I had thought there was at any

time in the minds of the Wells Fargo Bank the

thought that they could take drafts that were de-

posited there for collection and offset them, or that

they were reserving rights against any drafts that

were there for collection, that I certainly would

have endeavored to take them out. I do not know

that that was impossible because my understanding

was that certain drafts were there for collection

only and were not under that agreement. I under-

stood that it could be done. I doubt very much

whether I made inquiry earlier than May of 1931

as to my right to withdraw the drafts because there

was never the slightest doubt in my mind that there

was any possibility that drafts for collection could

be offset, drafts that were not under an agreement

—the ordinary drafts.

I don't remember that I ever examined the ac-

ceptance agreement in detail. I have not examined

it before coming into court today. I know that

part of this action rests on the acceptance agree-

ment. I have not studied the matter of the deposit

of drafts. The information upon which I base my
statement that I never had any idea that the bank

could exercise any lien upon these drafts came

from various sources. I cannot say exactly. I can

only say that I had, myself, become firmly im-
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pressed with the idea that first of all there wii"^ no

possibility of the hank asserting any lien against

any drafts for collection, and also that the l^ank

had not in its telegram reserved any lien of any

character on ordinary collections. At that time I

donht if I had ever read the acceptance agreement.

I had never gone in detail into the situation of

what drafts were at the Wells Fargo Bank. At

the time I received the telegram I have no recollec-

tion of consulting my counsel. I don't know when

I came to the particular conclusion regarding the

lien of the Wells Fargo Bank. It became [164]

firmly imprinted in my mind and it was an ex-

traordinary experience to me when the bank ex-

ercised it later because I thought there was no pos-

sibility of its being done. I do not recall that tliis

matter was actually discussed with any of the lianks

at the time the telegram was received. I only re-

call that I read that telegram to some of the bankers

and that their examining committee saw the tele-

gram. I have no recollection of any banker asking

me, "What is this reservation of the Wells Fargo

Bank; what drafts have theyT' I have no recollec-

tion of any one asking me what these acceptances

were. I have received no letter from any banks

protesting the action of Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. in exercising its so-called lien. I received

no word from any bank official for the express pur-

pose of discussing that matter.
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Redirect Examination

:

As to the date upon which Wells Fargo Bank

undertook to exercise its banker's lien or right of

set-off, I had come in contact with some of the rep-

resentatives of some of the other banks, and I hav

had discussions with the representatives of some of

the other banks who were present at the meeting

on January 16, 1931. I have heard some of those

bankers voice protests against the action taken by

Wells Fargo Bank in attempting to exercise a

banker's lien or right of set-off as against the collec-

tions of these particular drafts. Every one with

whom I have discussed the matter voiced such pro-

test and some of them voiced protests in my hear-

ing and in the hearing and presence of Mr. Ward
Sullivan and Mr. Roche. Early in May, I at-

tempted, by cable to the correspondent of the Wells

Fargo Bank or to Birla Bros., to revoke the author-

ity of Wells Fargo Bank to collect the proceeds of

the Birla Bros, drafts.

At that time I understood and believed that the

Birla Bros, drafts were on deposit with the bank

merely for the purpose of collection. I did not

understand or believe that the Wells Fargo Bank

was claiming the right to hold any of those drafts

as security under any acceptance agreement. I did

not at that time understand or at any time prior

thereto understand or believe that any of those

drafts that we [165] tried to stop payment on had

been deposited with the bank under either any ac-
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eeptance agreement or for the security of accept-

ances issued or released by the l^ank. During' the

time that I was president of Richfield, I attempted

to familiarize myself with its financial affairs and

likewise after I became receiver. I likewise at-

tempted to familiarize myself with the obligations

owed by the Richfield Oil Company as well as the

credits belonging to that company, ])ut I do not

remember in what detail I went into it at that time.

On the 16th dav of January, 1931, I understood that

there were drafts in Wells Fargo Bank for collec-

tion. I have no specific knowledge regarding* the

specific drafts that had been deposited with that

bank for collection, or the specific drafts that had

been deposited with the bank for the purpose of

securing the acceptance of them and release In- the

bank. I knew that some of the drafts were sliort-

term and some long-term. Early in May I was first

infoimed that the long-term drafts were claimed

to be held by the bank as security either for a^'-

ceptances or as having been deposited under an

acceptance agreement. I understood that the short-

term drafts were being held under the acceptance

agreement and that the long-term drafts were l^eing

held solely for the purpose of collection.

With respect to this part of my telegram: "It is

necessary therefore to request that all banks restore

to the receiver full cash balances", the only action

that had thus far been taken by any of these banks

so far as I was advised was to set off as against the

cash balances. I had not been informed that any of

the banks had thus far exercised their banker's
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lien against any of the other assets in their posses-

sion belonging- to the Richfield Oil Company.

With respect to that part of Plaintiff's Exhibit

No. 3, which is the response made by the Bank to

my wire of January 16, reading as follows: "We
are holding certain collections as security for ac-

ceptances. Please understand that we continue to

reserve all our rights for bankers lien against these

collections", I understood that it referred to such

drafts as they were holding as security. [166] I did

not understand at that time that this telegram re-

lated to any drafts not held by the bank as security

and understood by me to be held by the l^ank merely

for the purposes of collection. In May, 1931, when

for the first time I attempted to revoke the author-

ity of the bank to make these collections, it was my
imderstanding that the bank merely held these

drafts for collection. I know that the Security

First National Bank had drafts for collection and

that the collections as made were credited to the

account of the receiver.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, "With respect to", was objected to

by counsel for defendant on the ground it was

incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial. Ob-

jection was overruled and exception noted.)

During the first year that I was receiver there

was never a time when the Richfield Oil Company
was not in dire need of cash, and it was necessary

for me during that time to get into my j^ossession
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as quickly as possible all available funds. I cannot

remember the exact date when I tirst learned that

the accei^tances had been paid in full.

Recross Examination:

I do not recall that I knew that these acceptances

were paid at any specific date except when this

matter came up and I inquired into it. I am refer-

ring to the time when the matter came up in May,

1931. The Security National Bank of Los Angeles

did not have any acceptance agreement with Rich-

field Oil Com^Dany to my knowledge. It made no

reservations in its telegram or letter of acceptance

of my request to restore the cash balances. My
understanding is that the Wells Fargo Bank had

at the time of my appointment as receiver certain

drafts for collection and certain drafts subject to

an acceptance agreement and security for certain

acceptances. It is not my understanding that there

were certain drafts that were deposited and the

whole thing was collateral for certain acceptances

that were held by the bank. My understanding was

that the bank held certain drafts as collateral for

certain acceptances pursiiant to an acceptance

agreement and that it held other drafts for collec-

tion. I am sure I would have assiuned that pur-

suant to the acceptance agreement and pursuant to

the [167] arrangement between the Richfield Oil

Company and the Wells Fargo Bank, the bank had

on those certain drafts which were security, not a
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banker's lien but an actual contractual pledge right.

Over a jDcriocl of time, as I met the representatives

of the banks, I mentioned the action of the Wells

Fargo Bank to them specifically. I think I spoke

both to Mr. Hardacre, Mr. Rude and Mr. Nolan of

the Bank of America in Los Angeles, Mr. Page and

Mr, Ivey, and I spoke to Mr. Hill representing the

American Trust, meeting them casually perhaps at

the club, perhaps in the street, or wherever I might

see them. I told them and I know that I told them,

as it was an important item and I considered that

I had a distinct duty toward them and therefore I

advised them explicitly in the matter; I considered

that not only had Wells Fargo Bank broken faith

as far as the receiver w^as concerned, but it had

broken faith with those banks, and I told them

that I would pursue to the utmost my endeavor to

get that money returned, because I did not think

that in any sense of the word Wells Fargo had anv

right to do it. I explained the situation as best I

could, how it all came about. Each one of them

protested, not only that they felt there was no right

in it, but also that they, themselves, never would

have restored their balances had they thought

Wells Fargo was reserving in its mind this char-

acter of right. I did not show them the telegram,

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 3, when these discussions

took place. I did not refer to the reservation of

rights in the telegram at the time of these discus-

sions. I made no effort to get the representatives

of the banks together as a group and advise them.
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I advised them of the receipt of the telegram. I

heard Mr. Nolan state in court yesterda}- that he

was not so advised.

EDWARD J. NOLAN,

called as a witness for complainant out of order

prior to the completion of the testimony of the wit-

ness William C. [168] McDuffie, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination:

I live in Los Angeles. I have resided there thirty

years. I have no business at the present time. The

last business in which I was engaged was the bank-

ing business. I had been engaged in the banking

business twenty-four years. During the month of

January, 1931, I was connected with the Bank of

America at Los Angeles. My official position was

Chairman of the Board. I was president of the

Bank of America prior to its consolidation with

the Bank of Italy. During the month of January,

1931, I was acquainted with Mr. William C.

McDuffie, the receiver of the Bichfield Oil Com-

pany, and had been acquainted with him for some

considerable time prior to that date. I know Mr.

Eisenbach, one of the vice-presidents of Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. I knew him during

January, 1931. I had been acquainted with him

for quite a few years prior to that date. Prior to

January, 1931, I had had discussions with Mr.

Eisenbach regarding the affairs of the Richfield Oil
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Company. Mr. Eisen])ach inquired as to the con-

dition of the Richfield Oil Company and what we

thonght of its prospects and financial condition. I

recall distincth^ one occasion; I should say that

that was within sixty days prior to the date of the

receivership. In January, 1931, the Richfield Oil

Company was indebted to the Bank of America in

the sum of approximately One Million Four Hun-

dred Thousand Dollars and was indebted to the

Bank of Italy for Six Hundred Thousand Dollars,

the consolidated amount being when the banks con-

solidated at Two Million Dollars. That indebted-

ness was unsecured. Prior to the middle of Jan-

uary, 1931, I was quite familiar with the outstand-

ing unsecured obligations of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany, and I conferred with Mr. Eisenbach with

respect to those matters.

I was one of the bankers who attended the meet-

ing of Januar.y 14, 1931, referred to by Mr.

McDuffie as having occurred on the day before his

appointment as receiver. Numerous meetings had

[169] been held between bankers to whom Rich-

field Oil Company owed substantial sums of money

prior to January 15, 1931. These meetings were

held in connection with the outstanding indebted-

ness for the purpose of protecting banks and the

banks' depositors. I recall that Mr. Eisenbach was

present at one of those meetings. The bankers were

very much concerned about Richfield.

(With respect to the following testimony

down to and including the notation of the ob-
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jection l)y defendant and a notation of excep-

tion, counsel for complainant offered said tes-

timony for the limited purpose of establisliins,"

a waiver and estopj^el against defendant with

respect to its subsequent right to exercise its

alleged bankers' lien and right of setoff and

conceded that said testimony would not be bind-

ing on defendant except to the extent to which

information was afterwards communicated to

defendant respecting what occurred at said

bankers' meeting.)

At the meeting which occurred on January 16,

1931, there were present Mr. Clark, representing

the Continental Bank of Chicago; Mr. Buchanan,

representing the First National Bank of Chicago;

Mr. Bowling, representing the Chemical National

Bank of New York; Mr. L. O. Ivey and Herbert

Ivey, representing the Citizens National Bank;

James R. Page, representing the California Bank;

Carey Hill, representing Tucker Hunter-Dulin, and

indirectly the American Trust Company ; the Manu-

facturers Trust Company of New York, Mr. Hard-

acre and Chester Rude, representing the Security

First National Bank of Los Angeles, and myself

representing the Bank of America. The Wells

Fargo Bank was not represented on that occasion.

The bankers were notified to be present at this meet-

ing by Mr. McDuffie. Mr. McDuffie informed the

assembled bankers that some of the banks had off-

set the balances as of the date of the receivership,
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and he stated to us that if the company were not to

go into bankruptcy it would l)e necessary for him

as receiver to have the necessary cash to meet pulv

lie utility charges, railroad freight charges and

labor charges, and that if the balances that had lieen

off-set were not restored, or if the other banks

would not consent not to offset the balances, it

would be necessary for the company to file a peti-

tion in bankruptcy, or ultimately bankruptcy would

result. He said that all the credits and all the funds

and all the [170] assets, especially the current as-

sets, that belonged to the company must be turned

over to him, otherwise he could not carry on the

affairs of the company. I knew in a general way

that some of the banks had credits in their posses-

sion belonging to the Richfield Oil Company. I

was not familiar with the specific amounts of the

items. Our bank had accounts in numerous of the

branches in California in which there were certain

credits belonging to the Richfield Oil Company that

were in transit either to the main office in Los

Angeles or to the main office in San Francisco. On
the day upon which this conference occurred I had

no knowledge of the outstanding collections in the

IDOssession of my bank. They were quite substan-

tial, scattered throughout California. Our bank

received from time to time checks deposited by the

Richfield Oil Company of California, received by

it in payment of commodities sold outside of Cali-

fornia and drawn upon banks outside of California,
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and those checks would come in for collection. It

was generally understood by all of us that there

were outstanding collections in all of the accounts

maintained by the Eichfield Oil Company in the

banks represented at the meeting on the 16th of

January, 1931. All of the bankers present who had

authority agreed with Mr. McDuffie to restore their

balances providing all other banlvs would do like-

wise. By balances, I mean items of credit. After

that phase of the discussion was concluded, Mr.

Ralph Hardacre of the Security First National

Bank prepared a telegram. It was subject to com-

ment by all of us. It was finally drafted and Mr.

McDuffie called in his secretary in our presence

and asked him to transmit the telegrams. Mr.

McDuffie himself participated in the preparation

of that telegram. The telegram to which I refer is

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2. I had nothing to do with

the transmission of those telegrams. At Mr.

^IcDuffie's request I was to call the Wells Fargo

Bank and Mr. Hardacre was to call the Dexter-

Horton Bank at Seattle, because they were not

present, and acquaint them with what took place

at the bankers' meeting that day; after the meeting

I put in a call at my office for Mr. Julian Eisenbach

of Wells [171] Fargo Bank.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, ''At the meeting which occurred",

w^ere objected to by counsel for defendant on

the ground it was incompetent, irrelevant and
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immaterial, and not binding on defendant.

Objection was overrnled and exception noted.)

During the course of my conversation with ^h\

Eisenbach, I stated to him the substance of what

had occurred at the meeting of the bankers. I re-

call explaining to Mr. Eisenbach that unless all of

the banks were unanimous in returning the l:)alances

that it looked to me as though the company would

have to go into bankruptcy; that Mr. McDuffie had

stated to us that he had to have certain funds to

take care of public utility charges, labor charges

and freight charges. INIr. Eisenbach asked me what

we intended to do about our balance. I told him

we would not offset if the other banks would agiee

not to offset. He asked me what our balances

amounted to and I told him I did not know. He
did not say anything as to what his bank would do.

I think he said he would have to take it up with

Mr. Lipman or take it up with his committee, or

words to that effect. That terminated the conver-

sation. At a later date I called Mr. McDuffie on

the telephone and asked him if all the l)anks had

agreed. He told me they had agreed and I in-

structed my Chief Clerk then to reply to Mr.

McDuffie's wire. At that time I understood that

the Wells Fargo Bank had likewise agreed. We
did not exercise any right of setoff.

In giving the instruction to my Chief Clerk not

to exercise any right of setoff or a banker's lien I

relied on the information I had received that all of
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the banks including the Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. had either restored the balances where

the balances had been set off, or had agreed not to

set off the balances.

(The foregoing tastimony commencing with

the words, "In giving the instruction", was

objected to by counsel for defendant on the

ground that it was the opinion and conclusion

of the witness. Objection was overruled and

exception noted.)

Cross-Examination

:

I communicated with Mr. McDuffie by telephone

and asked him if all the banks had agreed to forego

their banker's lien. As I recall it, [172] Mr.

McDuffie told me that all the banks had agreed.

The whole question of agreement between the banks

was to restore the cash balances and such items as

were in transit. For instance, in our institution

there were many items in transit from the branch

banks. In referring to cash balances and items in

transit, I mean the ordinary items in transit in the

banking world—such credits as there may be back

and forth, such as checks or collections.

I do not recall that Mr. McDuffie read to me the

telegram of the Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. as to the terms upon w^hich its acceptance was

given. I do not recall that he ever told me about

that. All that he told me was that the banks had

agreed either to restore balances or to forego their

banker's liens, and upon that representation I
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ordered the Chief Clerk to release the balances in

our bank. The first time that I saw that telegram

was the time Mr. Roche came to call on me in Los

Angeles, within the past week or so.

The telegram to the ])anks was dictated by all of

ns and Mr. Hardacre transcribed it or took it down.

We were satisfied with the language of the tele-

gram, it being the work of about twelve of us. It

was intended to be the agreement between the

bankers with some amplification, and I think that

is why Mr. McDuffie suggested that we get in touch

with Mr. Arnold of Dexter-Horton and Mr. Eisen-

bach of Wells Fargo. The amplification was not

that something was desired besides the telegram it-

self, but to explain to banks not present the dire

condition of the company and the importance and

necessity of returning the balances at once, or else

the company would be forced to go into bank-

ruptcy.

In my opinion as a banker, drafts for collection

in foreign countries are not cash balances. It de-

pends upon the agreement entered into.

Redirect Examination

:

I understand balances in a bank would l)e such

items that are deposited for credit and collected,

or if there is an agreement with the depositor that

one may draw on uncollected items, we sometimes

consider that as a balance. I would regard foreign

drafts [173] deposited with a bank for collection
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as credits, and when the drafts are collected and

the money comes into the possession of the bank I

would regard that as cash balances. As stated in

cross examination, the primary reason for telei3hon-

ing Mr. Eisenbach was to elaborate upon the wire

that was prepared by the bankers in cooperation

with Mr. McDuffie and to explain the dire condition

of the receivership; that if the balances were not

restored or if the bankers' liens were to be exer-

cised by the different banks that it would be neces-

sary for the company to go into bankruptcy. I

do not recall that anything was said during the

conference between me and Mr. Eisenbach as to

the future course of the business. I told Mr.

Eisenbach that it would be necessary that the re-

ceiver have all the funds of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany for the purpose of continuing the business

and to avoid bankruptcy. Mr. McDuffie went to

great length in explaining to all of us that obliga-

tions from day to day arose in the Richfield Oil

Company that had to be liquidated in some way. I

tried to pass that on to Mr. Eisenbach, I tried to

pass on to Mr. Eisenbach just what took place at

the meeting that morning. I was subpoenaed as a

witness here, l)ut I did not want to come.

Recross Examination:

Foreign drafts can be considered as credits. It

depends upon the arrangements between the bank

and the depositor. When foreign drafts are col-

lected whether or not thev become cash balances
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depends upon the agreement. It depends upon the

agreement whether they become cash balances on

collection and whether they are credits in the

course of collection. The ordinary course is that

they are immediately deposited to the credit of the

company or the customer. In my conversation with

Mr. Eisenbach, I went into the question of the

necessity of having all the funds of the Richfield

Oil Company available to the receiver. I mentioned

to him the fact that there were bills outstanding,

that there were payrolls to be met, that there were

pressing payments to be made on certain definite

and unavoidable obligations and that the cash

balances in the banks should be made available.

I urged very strongly that he agree. [174]

In my conversation with Mr. Eisenbach, I urged

that there was at that time an emergency and dan-

ger of bankruptcy to Richfield Oil Company if the

banks held out the cash balances in the accounts of

Richfield. That was the princi]3al part of my con-

versation.

Further Redirect Examination:

Nothing was said by Mr. McDuffie that if these

balances were restored and bankruptcy avoided

that the receivership would terminate. He said that

he felt sure he could carry on the receivership if

these funds were made available and all of the

assets of the corporation were turned over to him.

If a draft is deposited in a bank by a depositor
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or a merchant for collection, I would ret^ard that

as one of his credits. In the absence of any agree-

ment to the contrary, if a foreign draft is deposited

with a l)ank for collection and the liank collects the

amount due upon the draft, I would regard that as

a credit. When collection is made and the money

comes into the possession of the bank, it is a balance

due the customer.

Further Recross Examination:

Where drafts are deposited for collection and a

loan is made against them, coupled with an express

agreement that the drafts are to be security for

that loan and every other loan of the drawer, such

drafts would not be a credit.

I know nothing of the circumstances of the Rich-

field Oil Company collections with the Wells Fargo

Bank, and I knew nothing a1)out that matter on

January 35, 1931. I knew nothing about it on

January 16, 1931, when I telephoned to Mr. Eisen-

bach. The receiver had not told me anything about

that in the conference.

HOMER E. POPE,
was then called as a witness by the plaintiff, and

te^stified as follows: [175]

Direct Examination

:

I reside in Los Angeles and have resided there

approximately seven years. I have worked for the
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Richfield Oil Company since September, 1929.

When first employed by that concern I was a clerk

and handled the foreign drafts in the Foreign

Department. At that time Mr. Hall was the Man-

ager of the Foreign Exporting Department. I re-

mained connected with that department until No-

vember, 1931. I was in the foreign office at the time

Mr. McDuffie was appointed receiver. My sole duty

was to look after foreign drafts and their collec-

tion. I kept track of the foreign drafts to see that

they were paid when due and I took care of the

details of the financing of foreign shipments and

all matters that related to foreign drafts. I did not

actually prepare the documents themselves, but

they passed through my hands after they were

prepared and I looked them over to see that they

were correct. As far as I know, Mr. Hall nego-

tiated the foreign sales, and likewise negotiated

the terms upon which those foreign sales were

made. The Traffic Department took care of the

actual preparation of the bills of lading and the

items pertaining to the shipment. The drafts were

prepared in the Foreign De23artment and also the

letters of transmittal. I kept a complete record

of the drafts with the detailed information suf-

ficient to identify each draft and its disposition. I

had complete information on each draft concerning

whether it w^as discounted or whether it was de-

posited with banks for collection. I was likewise

required to keep in touch with customers for the
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purpose of estimating the approximate time wlien

the drafts and documents wonld be delivered to

the customer or when the drafts would be presented

for acceptance. It was my understanding that as a

general practice the documents, including drafts,

went forward on mail boats whereas the cargo went

forward on regular cargo boats. It was customary

for the drafts and the documents to reach the place

of destination of the cargo some days and sometimes

some weeks or possibly more than a month in ad-

vance of the cargo. Prior to the [176] month of

October, 1930, I had not come in contact personally

with any of the officials of the Wells Fargo Bank.

The first time I met any of the officials of the Wells

Fargo Bank in connection with the collection of

drafts or the use of drafts by way of security for

acceptances was on my trip to San Francisco in the

early part of October, 1930. Prior to the early part

of October, 1930, the Richfield Oil Company had

been doing business insofar as its foreign drafts

were concerned with the Security First National

Bank of Los Angeles. The custom of the Richfield

Oil Company was to deposit some of the drafts for

collection and some were discounted.

Very soon after I was employed by the Richfield

Oil Company, I became familiar with the fact that

commodities and goods were being shiioped by Rich-

field Oil Company to a firm known as Birla Bros.

Ltd., Calcutta. Birla Bros. Company was a steady

and constant customer of the Richfield Oil Com-
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pany. Prior to the month of October, 1930, drafts

had been drawn on Birla Bros, for acceptance in

connection with shipments made to it. Prior to the

month of October, 1930, Birla Bros, had never

failed to pay a draft to my knowledge.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, "Prior to the month of October,

1930", was objected to by counsel for defend-

ant as incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

Objection was overruled and exception noted.)

On October 5, 1930, I came to San Francisco with

Mr. Hall. In order to enable me to testify in this

case, during the past several weeks I have refreshed

my recollection by making an examination of rec-

ords and likewise examining correspondence which

came to my attention and under my observation

during the history of these transactions.

Before coming to San Francisco, there had come

to my attention an acceptance agreement proposed

to be entered into between Richfield Oil Company

and Wells Fargo Bank. This agreement was in

my possession at the time I left Los Angeles. I

had obtained the [177] agreement from Mr. Hall

some few days before coming to San Francisco. I

also had in my possession certain proposed accept-

ances known as drafts in the aggregate amount of

$150,000.00. They were divided into acceptances

of various amounts totalling $150,000.00. This

acceptance agreement was signed by Mr. McKee
and Mr. Hart on behalf of Richfield Oil Company
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of California. Mr. McKee was Vice President and

Assistant to the Chairman of the Board, and Mr.

Hart was the Treasurer of Richfield Oil Company.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence the document

entitled "Acceptance Agreement". The same was

received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

16. Said document was in the words and figures

as follows:

"ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT
(Arising out of importation or exportation of

goods)

To WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO.—San Francisco.

Dear Sirs:

We hand you herewith, for acceptance, the

following drafts

:

Covering following

Number Date merchandise Amount
Oct. 6 $150,000

Marks Numbers Description

Payable in San Francisco to the order of

Ourselves

It is agreed that the proceeds of the above

will be used for financing the actual goods
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under consideration, and the proceeds of the

sale of the goods shall be applied to liquidate

the acceptance.

In consideration of your acceptance of the

said draft or drafts the undersigned, jointly

and severally, agree [178] to pay you at the

time of the acceptance a commission of per

cent, and further agree to pay you the amount

of the said draft or drafts at your office one

day before maturity. We waive all liability

on your part in case the goods are not accord-

ing to contract, either in description, quality,

or quantity, or in any other respect. All bills

of lading, warehouse receipts and other docu-

ments of title and all money and goods held by

you as security for any such acceptance shall

also be held by you as security for any other

liability from us to you whether then existing

or thereafter contracted and bind ourselves to

furnish you prior to with

shipping documents covering this merchandise

or with exchange arising out of the transaction

being financed by the credit.

We further agree to give and furnish you on

demand additional security or to make payment

on account in amounts and character satis-

factory to you. If we fail to comply with any

such demand or in case of our insolvency, as-

signment, bankruptcy, or failure in business,

all our obligations and liabilities direct or in-
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direct to you whether arising hereunder or

otherwise shall forthwith become due and pay-

able without demand or notice. All goods rep-

resented by bills of lading, warehouse receipts

or other documents of title, pledged with you

as security for your acceptances hereunder,

shall be at all times covered by us b,y certifi-

cates of insurance under open policies to your

order or by specific policies payable to you as

your interest may appear, to an amount suf-

ficient to cover your advances or obligations

hereunder, and you are to have specific claim

and lien on such policies and their proceeds to

the amount of your interest in the goods there-

by insured.

The undersigned hereby consents to any re-

newal and extension of time of payment of any

draft, drafts or other indebtedness that may be

granted by you, and do also consent that the

securities set forth in said acceptance agree-

ment may be exchanged or surrendered from

time to time without notice to or further assent

from the undersigned, and that the undersigned

will remain bound by this guarantee, notwith-

standing such changes, guarantees, renewals

and extensions.

Upon our failure to comply with any of the

terms hereof or upon the non-payment by us

of this or any other liability to you when due
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or at any other time or times thereafter then in

such case all obligations and liabilities direct

and contingent from us to you whether arising

hereunder or otherwise shall at your election

forthwith become due and payable without de-

mand or notice and we hereby give to you full

power and authority to sell, assign, transfer

and deliver the whole or any part of the se-

curities, bills of lading or documents of title or

the goods represented thereby or of any se-

curities substituted therefor or added thereto

at any broker's board or at any public or

private sale with or without notice or advertise-

ment at your option and do further agree that

you may become a purchaser at such sale if at

any broker's board or at public auction and

hold [179] the property or security so pur-

chased as your own property absolutely free

from any claim of or in the right of ourselves.

In case of any sale or other disposition of the

whole or any part of the security or property

aforesaid, you may apply the proceeds of such

sale or disposition to the payment of all legal

or other costs and expenses of collection, sale

and delivery and of all expenses incurred in

protecting the security or other property or

the value thereof, as hereinafter provided and

may apply the residue of such proceeds to the

payment of this or of any then existing liabil-
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ity of ours to you whether then payable or not,

returning the overplus to us and in case of

any deficiency we agree to pay to you the

amount thereof forthwith with legal interest.

You may also upon any such non-payment

apply the balances of all our deposit accounts

in the same way that you are authorized to

apply the proceeds of any sale of the security

or property hereunder.

You may pay taxes, charges, assessments,

liens or insurance premiums upon the security

or any part of it, or otherwise protect the value

thereof or of the property represented thereby,

and may charge against us all expenditures so

incurred; but you shall be under no duty or

liability with respect to the protection or col-

lection of any security held hereunder or of

any income thereon, nor with respect to the

protection of i3reservation of any rights per-

taining thereto, beyond the safe custody of

such security. We hereby agree that if, in your

opinion, the market value of the security hereby

or hereafter pledged to secure this obligation,

after deducting all charges against the same

is at any time less than the amount thereof

and per centum thereof added thereto

we will upon demand, deposit satisfactory ad-

ditional security so that the market value of

the security pledged hereunder, after deduct-
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ing all charges, shall always equal the amount

of this obligation plus such additional per-

centage.

We hereby agree to indemnify you against

any liability or responsibility for the cor-

rectness, validity, or genuineness of any docu-

ments or any signatures or endorsements there-

on representing goods which you hold, pur-

chase or sell under this engagement, or for the

description, quantity, quality or value of the

property declared therein, or of any insurance

certificates or policies, and against any gen-

eral loss or charges or other expenses incurred

accruing with respect to such goods through

delay in transmission of shipping documents

or through any other cause, which charges and

other expenses we agree to pay. We further

agree that no delay on your part in exercising

any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver

of such rights or of any right under this obliga-

tion.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY OF
CALIFORNIA

By R. W. McKee
By W. E. Hart

Treasurer

Dated October 4, 1930." [180]

These acceptances dated October 6, 1930, which

you show me are the ones which I brought with

me to San Francisco. They aggregate $150,000.00.
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Plaintiff then offered in evidence nine of said ac-

ceptances aggregating the sum of $115,000.00, and

the same were received in evidence and marked as

Plaintiff's Exhibit 17. The reason for separating

the acceptances into different exhibits was because

at the time of the witness' trip to San Francisco

only $115,000.00 worth of them was issued.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence an acceptance

dated October 6, 1930, and accepted October 15,

1930, in the sum of $5,000.00, and said acceptance

was received in evidence and marked as Plaintiff's

Exhibit 18.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence an acceptance

dated October 6, 1930, and accepted October 21,

1930, in the sum of $10,000.00, and said acceptance

was received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's

Exhibit 19.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence three accept-

ances each dated October 6, 1930, and each accepted

on November 28, 1930, two of which were in the

sum of $5,000.00, and the third of which was in

the sum of $10,000.00, and said acceptances were

received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

20.

The total amount of all of said acceptances was

the sum of $150,000.00. With the exception of the

amounts and dates, each of said acceptances was in

the words and figures as follows:
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$5000

San Francisco, California, October 6, 1930

Ninety (90) Days After Sight

Pay to the Order of OURSELVES
Five Thousand DOLLARS
Vahie received and charge the same to the

account of

To

WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION TRUST
CO.

Market at Montgomery

11-16

SAN FRANCISCO, CAL.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY OF
CALIFORNIA
By R. W. McKee
By W. C. Hart

Treasurer" [181]

Except for the date, each of said acceptances

was accepted by Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. in the words and figures following

:

''Accepted the 8th day of October, 1930

WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO.

By
By "

Said witness testified further as follows

:

When I delivered the agreement and the ac-

ceptances in blank, that is, not accepted by the
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bank, I obtained a receipt. This receipt dated Oc-

tober 6, 1930, which you show me is the one to

which I refer.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence said receipt and

the same was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 21. Said receipt is in the words

and figures as follows:

"San Francisco, October 6, 1930. $150,000.00

RECEIVED FROM RIC^HFIELD OIL COM-
PANY OF CALIFORNIA One Hundred Fifty

Thousand and 00/100 Dollars. Signed and blank

endorsed acceptance forms on this bank; all

dated Octol)er 6, four at $5,000.00 each, eight

at $10,000.00 each and two at $25,000.00 each.

WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO.

San Francisco

C. B. CLEMO."

Said witness testified further as follows:

I went to the bank in company with Mr. Hall

and upon our arrival we met Mr. Gilstrap who was

Assistant Manager of the Foreign Department of

the Wells Fargo Bank. We remained with Mr. Gil-

strap about an hour or so.

I came up to San Francisco for the purpose of

familiarizing myself with the manner in which the

collections were to be made by the Wells Fargo

Bank, and likewise to learn something about these

proposed acceptances. At that time I knew nothing
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about bank acceptances. Mr. Gilstrap told me how

they were handled and what [182] routine would be

necessary to go through in tlie handling of them.

As I testified before, the foreign business of the

Richfield Oil Company had been handled by the

Security Bank in Los Angeles, and there was a

desire on the part of Mr. Hall to make a change

from the Security Bank to Wells Fargo Bank, and

that was one of the purposes of our visit.

Mr. Hall explained to Mr. Gilstrap that he

brought me up for the purpose of familiarizing me

with the method of handling the bank acceptances.

Mr. Gilstrap told me that the release of acceptances

would have to be based on drafts, the maturity date

of which would be such that the funds would ar-

rive in San Francisco before the maturity date of

the bank acceptances.

Upon the occasion of this trip Mr. Hall and I

brought no drafts to San Francisco other than the

bank acceptances. We brought no drafts represent-

ing any foreign shipments.

Mr. Hall explained to Mr. Gilstrap the type of

draft in general that we took covering foreign

shipments. The discussion was more or less based

upon the general character of the drafts customary

to each country. Mr. Hall told Mr. Gilstrap that

our customers were all good credit risks. Reference

was particularly made to one of our customers

—

Birla Bros. Mr. Hall explained they were one of
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our best customers; that they purchased a great

deal of goods from us and had always been very

prompt pay. At that time Mr. Gilstrap told us that

the Wells Fargo Bank had made an investigation

of Birla Bros, and disagreed with us as to their

financial stability. We explained to Mr. Grilstrap

our method of drawing on Birla Bros. We told him

that we drew on each shipment one-half of the total

shipment at sight and the other one-half at 180

days. The question came up as to w^hether we might

base acceptances on both sets of drafts. He told us

he would be glad to consider the sight draft but

because of the length of time [183] and because of

the credit standing, he would not consider the 180

day drafts on Birla Bros. We argued with him that

we had never had any trouble with Birla Bros.

and that they had always been very prompt pay,

and we urged him to let us use the 180 day drafts

as a basis for bank acceptances, but he refused.

It was brought out that in the case of foreign

drafts the length of time from the receipt of the

draft by the bank to the receipt of the proceeds

thereof would be longer than the time which ap-

peared on the face of the draft due to the fact that

time would be required for the document to go from

San Francisco to the foreign country and also for

the proceeds to come from the foreign country back

to San Francisco. In other words, with respect to

the 180 day drafts, we would have to add to the
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180 days the time it would take the draft to get to

the foreign country and the time it would take the

proceeds to arrive in San Francisco after the pay-

ment of the draft.

Mr. Gilstrap told us that the bank might under

some conditions consider 120 day bank acceptances

but they were not considered prime paper because

of the length of time. I asked him as a matter

of information whether it would be possible to

utilize the 180 day Birla Bros, drafts as a basis

for bank acceptances after a sufficient period had

elapsed so that the proceeds might arrive in San

Francisco within the 90 day period of prime com-

mercial paper. He told me that it w^as a possibility

only and not to be seriously considered. Mr. Gil-

strap told us that a 90 day bank acceptance was

best because it was considered prime commercial

paper. Mr. Gilstrap told us that he would be glad

to take the 180 day paper for collection. He told

us that we could not use the 180 day paper to base

bank acceptances. He told us that it would be neces-

sary to put up a sufficient amount of drafts in

money to cover the bank acceptances. [184] It would

only be necessary to have enough from the proceeds

of the drafts to cover the bank acceptances to be

paid. Mr. Gilstrap expressed a willingness to dis-

count paper, but it was mentioned that the accept-

ance arrangement would save the company money,

and that it was a better way to handle our col-

lections.
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Ill al)out an hour Mr. Leuenberger came out of

liis office and was introduced to us. Mr. Grilstrap

briefly gave Mr. Leuenberger an outline of our pre-

vious conversation.

During the course of the conversation Mr. Hall

said that he wanted the transactions with the For-

eign Department considered a thing apart from the

regular transactions of Richfield with the bank. To

my knowledge no objection was made at that time

to this by Mr. Gilstrap.

(Objection was made by counsel for defend-

ant to the foregoing testimony commencing

with the words, "During the course of the con-

versation," on the ground that it tended to

vary the terms of the acceptance agreement.

Objection was overruled and exception noted.)

In the course of the conversation, it was said that

in the event the proceeds of the drafts placed under

the acceptances might not be sufficient to meet the

acceptances when they matured, it would be neces-

sary for the Richfield Oil Company to send Wells

Fargo Bank a check to cover the deficiency.

I was familiar with the correspondence passing

between the Wells Fargo Bank and Richfield Oil

Company with respect to these transactions and I

was familiar with the letters of transmittal to the

bank that accompanied the drafts, documents, etc.

I kept a record of all receipts and collections and

advices by the bank respecting the payment of the
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proceeds of the drafts and the application of the

proceeds.

At the time of our visit to San Francisco on the

5th of October, 1930, a shipment was being prepared

for Birla Bros, and after we returned to Los An-

geles the papers, documents and drafts covering

that shipment were prepared. On October 7th, these

papers were finally turned over to Mr. Hall. We
returned to Los Angeles [185] on the night of Oc-

tober 6th, and on the night of Octol)er 7th Mr. Hall

went back to San Francisco, and he brought with

him to San Francisco the documents, drafts and let-

ters of transmittal respecting this shipment to Birla

Bros. The copy of the letter addressed to Wells

Fargo Bank and the copies of the drafts and of the

invoices which you are showing me are copies of the

documents which were turned over to Mr. Hall to

bring back. The copy of another letter dated Octo-

ber 7, 1930, likewise addressed to Wells Fargo Bank,

and the drafts and invoices are likewise copies of

another letter and documents pertaining thereto

that were turned over to Mr. Hall on that date.

These copies of the two transmittal letters, of the

drafts and of the invoices are carbon copies and true

and correct copies of the originals which accom-

panied the original letter sent to the Wells Fargo

Bank.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence copies of the

first transmittal letter and accompanying drafts

hereinbefore referred to, and the same were re-
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ceived in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

22. Said documents were in the words and figures

following

:

''October 7, 1930.

Wells Fargo Bank and Union Trust Company,

Market at Montgomery,

San Francisco, California.

Subject: Drafts #103004 and #103005,

Birla Brothers, Ltd. M/S 'SILVER HAZEL'
Gentlemen

:

We are enclosing the following enumerated doc-

uments covering shipment going forward to Cal-

cutta, India per the M/S 'SILVER HAZEL':
1—Our Draft #103004 amounting to $63,-

950.00 drawn at sight on Birla Brothers,

Ltd.

2—Our Draft #103005 amounting to $63,-

950.00 drawn at 180 days sight on Birla

Brothers, Ltd.

3—Our Invoice #930112 in the amount of

$127,900.00.

4—Insurance Policy in triplicate.

5—Three originals Bill of Lading.

Provided these documents are found to be in

order, please forward them to your correspon-

dent bank at Calcutta, requesting them to no-

tify you immediately by wire of non-acceptance

or non-payment of Draft at maturity. [186]
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Thanking yon, we remain

Yonrs very trnly,

RICHFIELD OIL C^OMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA

FDS-W B. D. Bknchard,

enc Assistant Manager,

CC to Homer Pope Foreign Department.

$63,950.00 Los Angeles, California

October 8tli, 1930

At 180 days sight—documents against ac-

ceptance of this first of exchange (second un-

paid) pay to the order of Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California Sixty-Three Thousand Nine

Hundred Fifty and—No/100 Dollars with Ex-

change Stamp Tax and all Collection Charges

Value received and charge to account of E. O.

1005, Inv. 930112, M/S 'Silver Hazel'

To Birla Brothers, Ltd., Richfield Oil Company
of California, Calcutta.

No. 103005 India Bv

$63,950.00 Los Angeles, California

October 8th, 1930.

At sight of this first of exchange- (second un-

paid) pay to the order of Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California Sixty-Three Thousand Nine

Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars with ex-

change. Stamp Tax and all Collection Charges
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Value received and cliarge to account of E. O.

1005, Inv. 930112 MS 'Silver Hazel'

To Birla Brothers, Etd.

Calcutta

Xo. 103004 India

RICHEIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFOEXIA
By

Plaintiff then offered in evidence copies of the

second transmittal letter luul accompanying drafts

hereinbefore referi-ed to. nnd the same were re-

ceived in evidence and marked as Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 23. Said documents were in the words and

figures as follows:

"October 7, 1930

Wells Fargo Bank aud Union Trust Company,

Market at Montgomery,

San Francisco, California.

Subject: Drafts #103006-A and #103006-B,

Birla Brothers, Ltd. M/S
'Silver Ray'

Gentlemen

:

We are enclosing the following documents

covering shipments going forward to Calcutta

and Bombay, per the M/S 'Sih^er Ray':

1—Otu^ Draft #103006-A amounting to $55,-

900.76 drawn at siglit on Birla Brothers,

Ltd. at (Calcutta. [187]

2—Our Draft #10300f>-B amounting to $55,-

900.75 drawn at 180 day sight D/A on Birla

Brothers, Ltd. at Calcutta.
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3—Three copies of our Invoice #103009

amounting to ^2.482.08.

4—Three copies of our Invoice #930114

amounting to .^24,228.00.

5—Insurance Policy in triplicate covering

drums.

6—Insurance Policy in triplicate covering

cases.

7—Three originals Bill of Lading.

8—Our Invoice #103008 amounting to $69,000.

9_0ur Invoice #103007 amounting to $16,-

091.43.

10—Insurance Policy in triplicate covering

drums.

11—Insurance Policy in triplicate covering

cases.

12—Three originals Bill of Lading.

Provided these documents are found to be

in order, please forward them to your corre-

spondent bank for c(jllection, requesting them

to notify you immediately by wire of non-ac-

ceptance or non-payment of Draft at maturity.

Thanking you, we I'emain

^'ours very truly,

RK^HFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA

FDS-W B. D. Blanchard,

enc Assistant Manager,

CC to Homer Po])e Foreign Department."
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''$55,900.76 Los Angeles, California

October 8tli, 1930.

At sight of this first of exchange (second

unpaid) pay to the order of Richfield Oil

Company of California Fifty-Five Thousand

Nine Hundred and 76/100 Dollars with ex-

change. Stamp Tax and all Collection Charges

Value received and charge to account of E.

O. 1005-6-7-56, Inv. 930114, 103007-8-9, M/S
'Silver Ray'

To Birla Brothers, Ltd.,

Calcutta,

No. 10300-A India.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA
By

"$55,900.75 Los Angeles, California

October 8th, 1930.

At 180 days sight—documents against ac-

ceptance of this first of exchange (second un-

paid) pay to the order of Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California Fifty-Five Thousand Nine

Hundred and 75/100 Dollars with exchange,

Stamp Tax and all Collection Charges. [188]

Value received and charge to account of E.

O. 1005-6-7-56. Inv. 930114, 103007-8-9, M/S
'Silver Ray'.

To Birla Brothers, Ltd.

Calcutta,

No. 103006-B India.

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA
Bv
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Said witness testified further as follows:

We kept records in our office showing receipts

issued by Wells Fargo Bank for drafts delivered

to it. The document which you have just shown

me is a receipt for drafts deposited with Wells

Fargo Bank to date of the receipt. The drafts

shown upon the transmittal letters just introduced

in evidence are mentioned in this receipt. There

are also some additional drafts which were trans-

mitted by Richfield Oil Company to the bank be-

tween October 7, 1930, and the date of the receipt.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence the receipt

mentioned and the same was received in evidence

and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 24. Said receipt

was addressed to Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, attention of Homer E. Pope, was signed by

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and dated

October 14, 1930. Said document acknowledged re-

ceipt of the four drafts hereinabove set forth in

Exhibits 22 and 23, as well as several other drafts

not yet in evidence.

The witness' attention was then directed to a

document consisting of three sheets, the first of

which was entitled '^ Richfield Oil Company of Cal-

ifornia, William C. McDuffie, receiver; drafts de-

posited for collection with Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., San Francisco, from inception to

January 15, 1931."

Said witness testified further as follows;
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This document was prepared under my direction

and to the l^est of my knowledge and belief, those

tabulations are correct.

(Counsel for plaintiff here stated that defend-

ant was not to be bound by any of the head-

ings or titles on said table. Said document was

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 25 for identifica-

tion. Said document was later, on the cross

examination of said witness, introduced in evi-

dence as Plaintiff's Exhibit 25, merely for the

purpose of illustration and as a tal^ulation by

which defendant is not bound.) [189]

With reference to the first column of the first

page of Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 25 for identifica-

tion, the names of the customers appear under the

title "Customer", In the next column, under the

title "Draft No." appears the numbers of the drafts

drawn on the customers. In the third column,

under the title "Amount" appears the amount of

the face of the draft. In the fourth column under

the title "Date deposited" appears the date the

draft was deposited in the bank. In the next col-

Tunn, under the title "Due Date in Foreign

Country" appears the date the draft is due or ex-

pected to be due in the foreign country. In the

next column, under the title "Date Paid" appears

the date upon which the draft was paid in San

Francisco. The asterisks or stars in red refer to

drafts, the proceeds of which were withheld by



vs. William C. McDiiffie 2 i 3

(Testimony of Homer E. Pope.)

defendant bank. The second page of the document

is a continuation of the information set forth on

the first. Upon this appears the total of the drafts

as to which the bank claims a lien, namely $145,-

980.80. The total amount of other drafts is set

forth as $197,390.59. The total of these t^YO figures

is $343,371.39. With reference to the deposit date

appearing on the face of the schedule, a note

appears thereon reading as follows: ''Date of de-

posit as shown above is date mailed to San Fran-

cisco; papers actually deposited in bank one day

later". Referring to the third page, which is en-

titled "Richfield Oil Company of California, Wil-

liam C. McDuffie Receiver; Statement of Bank Ac-

ceptances Issued for the Account of Richfield Oil

Company of California by Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., San Francisco, and Payments

Thereof by Application of Draft Collections", the

first column represents the date on which the ac-

ceptances were released, the second column repre-

sents the amount and the third column represents

the due date of each acceptance. Of the last three

columns under the general heading "Payment by

Application of Drafts", the first column represents

the date, the second colimin the amount and the

third column the draft numbers, and the total is

$155,000.00. [190]

Other drafts w^ere sent up to the bank from
time to time. After the acceptances were accepted

by the bank they were released by the bank and
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immediately thereafter a credit was given to the

Riehiield Oil Company for the disposition price of

those acceptances. I dictated the letter, a carbon

copy of which you are calling to my attention, dated

October 13, 1930, said letter having been signed by

Mr. Lyons of Richfield Oil Company and being

addressed to the bank. Mr. Lyons was the Comp-

troller of Richfield Oil Company.

The two carbon copies of two letters of trans-

mittal and the drafts attached thereto, dated Oc-

tober 8, 1930, and October 9, 1930, are accurate

copies of the originals, and were sent to the Wells

Fargo Bank upon their respective dates together

with the documents referred to therein.

Plaintiff then oifered in e^ddence said copy of

said letter dated October 8, 1930, with a copy of the

draft attached, and said letter and copy of draft

were received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's

Exhibit 26. Said letter is in the words and figures

as follows:

"October 8, 1930

Wells Fargo Bank and Union Trust Company,

Market at Montgomery,

San Francisco, California.

Subject: Draft #103009—Ricardo Velazquez,

SS 'Sarramacca'

Gentlemen

:

We are enclosing the following documents

covering shipment of 200 drums of gasoline go-

ing forward to Buenaventura, Colombia per the
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SS 'Sarramacca', for the account of Ricardo

Velazquez, Call, Colombia:

1—Our Draft #103009 amounting to $2,442.40

drawn at 60 days sight D/A on Ricardo

Velazquez, Call, Colombia.

2—Three copies our Invoice #103006 amount-

ing to $2,442.40.

3—Three copies Packing List.

4—Consular Invoice. [191]

5—Insurance Policy in triplicate.

6—Three originals Bill of Lading.

Provided these documents are found to be

in order, please forward them via Airmail to

Banco Aleman Antiqueno at Cali, Colombia,

for collection, requesting them to advise you

by wire immediately of non-acceptance or non-

payment of Draft at maturity.

Thanking you, we remain

Yours very truly,

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA."

Plaintiff then offered in evidence said copy of

said letter dated October 9, 1930, and said letter

was received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's

Exhibit 27. Said letter is in the words and figures

as follows:
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"October 9, 1930

Registered Mail

Special Delivery

Wells Fargo Bank and Union Trust Company,

Market at Montgomery,

San Francisco, California.

Subject: Draft 103010—Bettiger Trepp

y Cia, SS 'Sarramacca'

Gentlemen

:

We are enclosing the following enumerated

documents covering shipment going forward to

the Port of Arica per the SS 'Sarramacca' for

the account of Messrs. Bottiger Trepp y Cia of

La Paz, Bolivia

:

l_Our draft #103010 amounting to $11,-

031.14 drawn at sight D/A on Bottiger

Trepp y Cia of La Paz, Bolivia.

2—Three copies our Invoice #103016 amount-

ing to $1,130.06.

3—Three copies our Invoice #103017 amount-

ing to $212.00.

4—Three copies Packing List.

5—One copy Certified Commercial Invoice.

6—One copy Consular Invoice.

7—Duplicate and triplicate Insurance Policy.

8—Second and third original Bill of Lading.

9—Three copies our Invoice #103012 amount-

ing to $5,643.80. [192]

10—Three copies our Invoice #103013 amount-

ing to $2,544.00.
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11—Three copies Packing List.

12—One copy Certified Commercial Invoice.

13—One copy Consular Invoice.

14—Duplicate and triplicate Insurance Policy.

15—Second and third originals Bill of Lading.

16—Three copies our Invoice #103015, amount-

ing to $1501.28.

17—One certified Commercial Invoice.

18—Duplicate and triplicate Insurance Policy.

19—vSecond and third originals Bill of Lading.

The original of each certified Commercial In-

voice, Consular Invoice, Insurance Policy and

Bill of Lading have been sent via Airmail direct

to Dauelsberg & Co. at Arica, in order that they

may clear through the customs without delay or

fine.

You will also note that the copy of the Con-

sular Invoice covering 650 cases Gasoline, as

per our Invoice #103015, is missing. We are

having copy of this document made and wdll

forward it to you as quickly as it is received.

Provided these docmnents are found to be in

order, please forward them for collection, via

Airmail, to Banco de la Nacion Boliviana at

La Paz, requesting them to notify you by wire

if the Draft is not paid promptly.

Thanking you, we remain.

Yours very truly,

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA."
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Plaintiff then offered in evidence the original of

said letter dated October 13, 1930, and said letter

was received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's

Exhibit 28. Said letter was in the words and figures

as follows:

"October 13, 1930

Wells Fargo Bank and Union Trust Company,

Market at Montgomery,

San Francisco, California.

Gentlemen

:

Attention : Mr. Gilstrap,

Assistant Cashier.

Our records show that we have with your

good bank a draft reserve of $9,734.16 against

which no acceptances have been issued. [193]

If this information is correct, please issue one

of the drafts which you now hold, for $5,000.00,

payable in ninety days.

Thanking you for your courtesy in this

matter.

Yours very truly,

G. P. LYONS, Comptroller."

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a carbon copy

of letter dated October 15, 1930, from Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. to the Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California, Los Angeles, California, and

said copy of said letter was received in evidence

and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 29. Said letter was

in the words and figures as follows:
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''October 15, 1930

Richfield Oil Company of California,

555 South Flower Street,

Los Angeles, California.

Gentlemen : Attention Mr. H. E. Pope.

In accordance with your letter of October 13,

we have been very pleased to execute an accept-

ance for $5,000. at 90 days sight. This draft

matures January 31, 1931.

Your account has been credited with $4962.50,

representing proceeds, particulars as follows:

Amount $5,000.00

Discount 90 days ^ 2% $25.00

Commission 1% p.a. 12.50 37.50

$4,962.50

You mention that you have a draft reserve

with us for $9,734.16. This figures covers the

amount of your drafts Nos. 103009 and 103012

and the balance remaining on your Nos.

103006A and 103004, but evidently does not take

into consideration your draft No. 103110 drawn

on La Paz, Bolivia, for $11,031.14.

Awaiting your further requests, we are.

Yours very truly.

Assistant Cashier."

The witness' attention was then called to figures

appearing upon a blackboard, and said witness tes-

tified therefrom as follows:
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Draft No. 103004 in the sum of $63,950. is one

of the sight drafts on the two shipments to Birla

Bros, disclosed by letters of [194] transmittal dated

October 7, 1930. The same situation is true in re-

spect to Draft 103006-A in the sum of $55,900.76.

The other two drafts were 180 day drafts. The

total of the two sight drafts was $119,850.76. The

acceptances that were accepted and released aggre-

gate $115,000.00. Deducting the $115,000.00 from

the $119,850.76, a balance of $4,850.76 is left, based

entirely and exclusively upon the two sight

drafts and exclusive of the 180 day drafts. Between

October 8, 1930, and October 13, 1930, draft No.

103009, in the sum of $2,442.40 was mailed on Octo-

ber 8, 1930, to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., and a draft No. 103010, for $11,031.14, was

mailed on October 9, and on October 11, draft No.

103012 for $2,441, was mailed. The total of these

two small drafts, $2,442.40, and $2,441.00, plus the

difference between $115,000.00 and $119,850.76,

makes $9,734.16. That was the figure which was

mentioned by me in my letter requesting the issu-

ance to the Richfield Oil Company of an accept-

ance for $5,000.00. In the meantime, we had sent

up the draft for $11,031.15. After receiving the

letter of October 15, 1930, from Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. calling our attention to this

additional draft, we sent a letter to the Wells Fargo

Bank in response to said letter of October 15. Said

letter was dictated by me.
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Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

October 20, 1930, and said letter was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 30. Said

letter was in the words and figures as follows:

"October 20, 1930

Wells Fargo Bank and Union Trust Company,

Market at Montgomery,

San Francisco, California.

Dear Sir: Attention: Mr. E. Leuenberger,

Asst. Vice President. [195]

In talking with Mr. Gilstrap Saturday, he

informed us that we might use our collection

number 103010, your number 46843, on La Paz,

Bolivia, as reserve against acceptances. Under

these circumstances, would you please issue an

acceptance for $10,000.00 to mature in 90 days.

In your letter of October 15th to our Mr.

Pope, the due date on a $5,000.00 acceptance

was given as January 31, 1931. We are in doubt

as to whether this date is correct or whether it

should have been January 13, 1931, since it is

a 90 day acceptance. Will you please set us

straight on this matter.

Your courtesy in this matter is appreciated.

Yours very truly,

G. P. LYONS, Comptroller."

The acceptance for $10,000 which we requested

the bank in the letter of October 20 to issue was
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the acceptance based upon the La Paz draft for

$11,031.14. We received a letter in response to our

letter of October 20, 1930.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

October 21, 1930, and said letter was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 31. Said

letter is in the words and figures as follows:

'' October 21, 1930.

Richfield Oil Company of California,

555 South Flower Street,

Los Angeles, California.

Gentlemen

:

In accordance with your letter of October 20,

we executed 90 days acceptance for $10,000.00

and credited your account with the proceeds,

$9925.00, as per credit memorandum herewith.

This acceptance will fall due January 19,

1931.

We have ear-marked same against your col-

lection No. 46843 on La Paz, Bolivia.

Regarding acceptance of $5,000.00 advised in

our letter of October 15: The maturity date

should be January 13, 1931, and not January 31,

1931, as previously advised. Kindly pardon this

oversight.

Yours very truly,

Assistant Vice President."

The credit memorandum shows the $10,000.00 ac-

ceptance executed. The discount was $50.00; the
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commission was $25.00, making a total of $75.00

and a credit of the proceeds of said $10,000.00 ac-

ceptance in the sum of $9925.00. [196]

Upon accepting these two subsequent acceptances

the bank had accepted $130,000 of acceptances. I

recall that a memorandum showing the issuance of

the $10,000 acceptance had not been received. I

wrote a letter to the bank with respect thereto, and

received a response. This carbon copy of a letter

written by me to the bank and the original letter

received from the bank is the correspondence upon

this subject.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence said letters and

the same were received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 32. Said letters are in the words

and figures as follows:

"October 27, 1930.

Wells Fargo Bank and Union Trust Co.,

Market at Montgomer^y Street,

San Francisco, California.

Attention—Mr. W. J. Gilstrap,

Assistant Cashier.

Dear Sir

:

On October 20th our Mr. Lyons wrote you in

regard to issuing an additional acceptance for

$10,000.00 to mature in ninety days.

We have not received an advice of this accept-

ance, and are wondering if the letter has gone

astray.
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Thanking you for your kidness in this mat-

ter, I am,

Yours very truly,

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIF."

October 28, 1930.

Richfield Oil Company of California,

Los Angeles, California.

Gentlemen

:

Attention Mr. H. E. Pope.

Your letter of October 27 is received.

Apparently our letter of October 21, a copy

of which we enclose, has gone astray. You will

note that on that date we credited your account

with $9925.00, representing proceeds of accept-

ance drawn for $10,000.

Statement showing details of discount is also

enclosed.

Yours very truly,

W. J. GILSTRAP, Assistant Cashier."

I prepared a letter dated November 24, 1930, to

the Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. [197]

Plaintiff then offered said letter in evidence and

the same was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 33. Said letter is in the words

and figures as follows:

'^November 24, 1930.

Wells Fargo Bank and Union Trust Company,

Market at Montgomery Street,

San Francisco, California.

Gentlemen

:

Please issue for our account acceptances in

the amount of $25,000.00. The enclosed accept-
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aiice for $5,000.00, in addition to those you now

hold for our account amounting to $20,000.00,

will make up this total.

Will you he kind enough to issue these ac-

ceptances as of Novemher 28th. This will give

a reasonahle allowance for delays in the remit-

tance of draft payments.

Your courtesy is very much appreciated.

Yours very truly,

EICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA

G. P. Lyons, Comptroller."

There had already heen issued $130,000.00 of ac-

ceptances and this $25,000.00 had increased the

acceptances to $5,000.00 ahove the $150,000.00 speci-

fied in the acceptance agreement so I inclosed a

draft to he accepted hy the hank for $5,000.00.

Said witness testified further as follows:

I recall the telegram sent to Mr. Hall by Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. announcing that

the Birla sight draft had heen paid.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence said telegram

and the same was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 34. Said telegram was in the

words and figures as follows:

"San Francisco Calif

26 927A 1930 Nov 26 AM 9 41

R. L. Hall

Richfield Oil Co of Calif

Our Calcutta correspondents state both Birla

sight drafts Pd
WELLS FARGO BANK AND

UNION TRUST CO."
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Said witness testified further as follows:

I recall having received a letter from Wells Fargo

Bank under date of November 28, 1930, stating

that they had executed acceptances in the sum of

$25,000.00. [198]

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a carbon copy

of said letter and the same was received in evidence

and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 35. Said letter was

in the words and figures as follows:

"November 28, 1930.

Richfield Oil Company of California,

Los Angeles, California.

Gentlemen: Attention Mr. H. E. Pope.

We refer to your letter of November 24 and

our telephone conversation today.

In accordance with your request, we have

executed acceptances in the amount of $25,000.

and credited your account with $24,812.50, par-

ticulars as follows:

Amount of acceptances $25,000.00

Discount 90 days ^2% $125.00

Commission 1% p.a. 62.50 187.50

$24,812.50

These acceptances mature February 26, 1931.

Yours very truly.

Assistant Cashier."

Said witness testified further as follows:

We received a letter from Wells Fargo Bank
dated November 29, 1930.
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Plaintiff then offered in evidence said letter

and the same was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 36. Said letter is in the words

and figures as follows:

''November 29, 1930.

Richfield Oil Company of California,

Los Angeles, California.

Gentlemen: Attention Mr. R. L. Hall.

In connection with your drafts Nos. 103006-A

and 103004 on Birla Bros. Ltd. for $55,900.76

and $63,950.00, respectively, we confirm having

had exchange of cables as follows:

Sent Nov. 25—' Cable status our collections

46831 and 46833 October eighth.'

Reed. Nov. 26—'Refer to your wire 25th of this

month Both collections paid.'

Sent Nov. 26—' Our Calcutta correspondents

to you state both Birla sight drafts

paid.' [199]

For the cost of the above messages, we have

debited j^our account with $8.76, as per enclosed

memorandum.

Yours very truly,

E. LEUENBERGER,
Assistant Vice-President.

Assistant Cashier. '

'

Said witness testified further as follows:

After the acceptance of the additional $5,000.00

draft, making in all $155,000 worth of acceptances,

a request was made upon us by Wells Fargo Bank
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& Union Trust Co. for an additional acceptance

agreement to cover the extra $5,000.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

December 1, 1930, from Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co. to Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, and a letter from Richfield Oil Company
of California to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. dated December 3, 1930, and said letters were

received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

37. Said letters are in the words and figures as

follows

:

''December 1, 1930.

Richfield Oil Company of California,

555 South Flower Street,

Los Angeles.

Gentlemen: Attention: Mr. H. E. Pope.

As your Acceptance Agreement covering the

execution of acceptances by us against your

documentary export bills calls for $150,000, we

are enclosing another agreement for $5,000, to

cover the acceptance for this amount executed

by us November 28, in accordance with your

letter of November 24.

Please sign and return this form to us.

Yours very truly,

C. B. CLEMO, Assistant Cashier."
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"December 3, 1930.

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

Market at Montgomery St.,

San Francisco, California.

Foreign Department

—

Attention Mr. C. B. Clemo

Dear Sir: [200]

As requested in your letter of December 1st,

we are enclosing the Acceptance Agreement

which you asked for. You will notice that we

have not dated the signatures. This was pur-

posely done because we did not know whether

the date should be the same as the acceptances

or the actual date signed. The signatures were

placed on this agreement December 2nd.

In the future we will forward these agree-

ments with the acceptance issued.

Yours very truly,

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY
OF CALIFORNIA."

Plaintiff then offered in evidence said accept-

ance agreement and the additional acceptance in

the sum of $5,000 and the same were received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 38 and 39

respectively. Said acceptance agreement was ex-

actly the same as that which was introduced in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 16 with the

exception that it was in tlie amount of $5,000 and

dated November 28, 1930. Said acceptance in the

sum of $5,000 was in the same form as those offered
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in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 17, 18,

19 and 20.

Said witness testified fnrther as follows

:

The significance of tlie draft nnmber on the drafts

is that the first two figures indicate the month, the

next two figures the year, and the last two the num-

ber of the draft drawn in the particular month.

Thus Draft 103004 was the fourth draft drawn in

October, 1930.

In my conversation with Mr. Gilstrap it was

agreed that the acceptances were to be issued in

multiples of $5,000.00. In other words, the minimum

acceptance w^ould be $5,000.00 and if acceptances

were issued in excess of $5,000.00 they would have

to be for $10,000.00, $15,000.00, $20,000.00 or $25,-

000.00. On October 8, 1930, $115,000.00 worth of ac-

ceptances were released by the bank. The two sight

drafts, not taking into consideration the 180 day

drafts which the bank refused to take, aggregated

$119,850.76, one being for $63,950.00, and the other

being for $55,900.76. Deducting the face value of

the acceptances, to-wit, $115,000.00, from the [201]

gross face value of the two drafts aggregating

$119,850.76, left a surplus of $4850.76. In view of

the fact that the minimum accej^tance would have

to be $5,000.00, no acceptance could be issued

against that surplus of $4850.76. At the time Mr.

Hall and I went to San Francisco and visited the

bank, which w^as on October 6, 1930, we desired to

obtain as many acceptances as were possible under
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tlie drafts and the niaxiniuni amount then obtain-

able was $115,000.00. We suljsequently sent to San

Francisco two drafts, one numbered 103009 for

$2442.40, the other being numbered 103012 for

$2441.00, making an aggregate which, together with

the surplus on hand represented by the two large

sight drafts mentioned, aggregated $9734.16. After

we had mailed to the bank our letter of October 13,

1930, Plaintiff's Exhibit 28, the bank sent its re-

sponse and issued a $5,000.00 acceptance, accepted

October 15, 1930, which is Plaintiff's Exhibit No.

18. The draft referred to in the letter as num-

bered 103110 is incorrect. It should be 103010.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a number of

transmittal letters and drafts, and receipts of the

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. for said

drafts, and said documents were received in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 40 to 92 in-

clusive. Said transmittal letters were in identically

the same form as those hereinabove set forth and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 22, 23, 26 and 27, and

covered drafts drawn upon various foreign cus-

tomers of the Richfield Oil Company. The drafts

were all in comparatively small amounts with the

exception of that contained in Plaintiff's Exhibit

82, and were all drawn either at sight or for periods

not in excess of sixty days, with the exception of

that contained in Exhibit 82. All of said drafts

were in substantially the same form as those here-

inabove set forth as parts of Plaintiff's Exhibits
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22, 23, 26 and 27. Plaintiff's Exhibit 82 was a trans-

mittal letter in the same form as [202] those here-

inabove set forth and marked Plaintiff's Exhibits

22 and 23, and covered a sight draft drawn on

Birla Bros. Ltd., Calcutta, India, in the sum of

$11,107.50, and a time draft drawn at 180 days

sight on Birla Bros. Ltd., Calcutta, India, in the

sum of $23,607.50. These drafts contained in said

Exhibit 82 were in substantially the same form as

those hereinabove set forth as parts of Plaintiff's

Exhibits 22 and 23. All of said transmittal letters

with the exception of that contained in Plaintiff's

Exhibit 52 requested Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. to forward the drafts to the bank's cor-

respondent for collection. The transmittal letter

in said Exhibit 52 omitted the words "for collec-

tion". Said transmittal letters and drafts were

those which were deposited by Eichtield Oil Com-

pany of California with Wells Fargo Bank &

Union Trust Co. from October 9, 1930, until Jan-

uary 14, 1931. The receipts hereinabove mentioned

wTre acknowledgments on the part of Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. of the deposit of the drafts

above mentioned. The following is a list of the

drafts covered by the Exhibits last mentioned:
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Ex- Date

hibit Depos- Draft

No. ited No. Customer Amount Time

1930

40 Oct. 11 103012 Bueno y Cia $2441.00 60 days

42
} J 27 103024 A. S. Clark 1007.00 60 "

43
y >

20 103023 Sociedad Automovilia 779.10 60 "

45
j> 27 103025 Nottebohm Hermanos 583.00 sight

47 > > 27 103027 Sociedad Automovilia 381.60 CO days

48 > >

27 103028 Plesch y Cia 1204.78 sight

49 J J 27 103026 Alvarez e Hyos. 2446.82 30 days

50 >> 28 103029 Nissho Co. Ltd. 654.55 30 "

52 > > 29 103030 Empresa Dean 1405.20 60 "

53 Nov . 5 113001 Limon Trading Co. 1208.40 60 "

55
) J

18 113007 Plesch y Cia 1204.78 sight

57
n 18 113008 A. S. Clark 1007.00 60 days

58
> > 18 113009 Limon Trading Co. 5256.60 60 "

59
>»

19 113010 J. C. Spedding 1804.01 30 "

60
J J

19 113011 Nottebohm Hermanos 103.12 sight [203]

61 >?
19 113012 Boetteger Trepp y Cia $1466.25 sight

62 > > 21 113013 Alvarez e Hijos 2466.82 30 days

63 > J

21 113014 Nissho Co. 1547.50 sight

64 >>
21 113017 J. C. Spedding 7237.35 30 days

65 ) > 22 113018 Miguel Duevar 641.25 sight

66
>> 24 113019 Nottebohn Hermanos 291.50 >>

71 > J

24 113020 RajTnundo Diaz 1200.00 J >

72 > J 24 113021 Empresa Dean 2237.66 60 days

73 >>
27 113023 Nissho Co. 881.13 30 days

74 Dec 22 123007 A. S. Clark 1007.00 60 "

75 5 >

23 123008 Alvarez e Hijos 2446.82 30 "

76 >>
23 123009 Limon Trading Co. 3418.90 60 "

77
J J

23 123010 Empresa Dean 1266.29 60 "

78 > >

27 123013 J. C. Spedding 2702.66 30 '*

79 >)
27 123014 Ricardo Velazquez 1219.00 60 "

80 ) >

27 123015 Botteger Trepp y Cia 2692.99 sight

1931

81 Jan. 8 13103 Ito Bergonzoli 53.45 5 >

82 >?
8 13106 Birla Bros. 11107.50 >>

82 >5
8 13107 Birla Bros. 23607.50 180 days

83 J >

15 13108 Nissho Co. 1197.81 30 "
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(The dates listed under the heading "Date

Deposited" in the foregoing schedule refers to

the date upon which drafts were mailed from

Eichfield Oil Company to defendant. All drafts

were received by defendant one day later.)

Said witness testified further as follows:

There came a time when the acceptances had to

be paid and the payment of the acceptances was the

subject of some correspondence between the Bank

and Eichfield Oil Company. When drafts were col-

lected by the Bank and the proceeds applied in pay-

ment of acceptances, advices were sent by the Bank

to Richfield Oil Company. It frequently occurred

that certain of the drafts under the acceptances

would be paid in advance of maturity of the ac-

ceptances and the money applied in anticipation

of the acceptances.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to Richfield

Oil Company of California, dated December 16,

1930, and said letter was received in evidence and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 93. Said letter referred

to drafts numbered 103004, (Plaintiff's Exhibit 22)

and 103006a (Plaintiff's Exhibit 27), drawn on

Birla Bros. Ltd. at sight, for $63,950 and $55,900.76

respectively, and stated that the proceeds of these

drafts [204] had been received. Said letter further

stated that the total amount of said drafts less a sum
deducted for collection charges was being applied in

anticipation of maturing acceptances. This total

amount so stated to have been applied was

$119,626.05.
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Said witness testified, further as follows:

This was the first letter received by the Eichfield

Oil Company from the bank indicating that the

bank had received the proceeds of any of these

drafts. To my knowledge, between the date upon

which the first four drafts of Birla Bros., Ltd. w^ere

deposited, that is, the two sight drafts and the two

180 day drafts, up to the time of the receipt of this

letter, I had not received any communication at all

from the bank relating to the two 180 day sight

drafts or either of them, excepting the correspond-

ence that has been introduced in evidence.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to Richfield

Oil Company of California, dated January 12,

1931, and the same was received in evidence and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 94. Said letter stated

that a credit memorandum was enclosed showing

$6.87 credited to the account of Richfield Oil Com-
pany and that this sum represented interest on an

amount held in anticipation of acceptances for

$5,000 due on the following day.

Said witness testified further as follows:

The interest credit of $6.87 was interest to which

the Richfield Oil Company was entitled upon the

collections which were received by the bank and
applied in anticipation of the maturing of the

$5,000 acceptances. That interest was actually

credited by the bank to the commercial account of

Richfield Oil Company and not retained by the

bank.
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Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to Richfield

Oil Company of California, and said letter \yas

received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 95. Said letter was in the words and figures

as follows:

"January 3, 1931.

Enclosed is our usual advice informing you

that your collection No. 103010 for $11,031.14

has been paid. We have applied the net pro-

ceeds, amounting to $10,991.07 in anticipation

of our acceptances executed for your account.

[205] For your information, our accejDtances

for your account are as follows:

$115,000 due January 6

5,000 " " 13

10,000 '' " 19

25,000 " February 26

against which we have received payment (pro-

ceeds of collections) as follows:

$119,626.05 December 10

10,991.07 December 31

Yours very truly,"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to Richfield

Oil Company of California, and said letter was re-

ceived in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

96. Said letter was in the words and figures as

follows

:
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"Jamiary 6, 1931.

We refer to acceptances executed by us Oc-

ber 8, totaling $115,000. These acceptances ma-

tured today.

As already informed you we aplied $119,-

626.05 representing the proceeds of collections

on December 16, value December 10, in antici-

pation of maturing acceptances.

As per the enclosed memorandum we have

credited your account $124.58, representing

interest due you on $115,000. from December

10, to and including, January 4. These accept-

ances, as you probably know, are payable by you

one day prior to maturity.

Interest will be adjusted on the remainder

of $4,626.05 on January 13, when an acceptance

for $5,000 matures.

Yours very truly"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from
Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. C.

McDuffie, Receiver, together with advices and bill

attached thereto, and said documents were received

in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 97. Said

letter was in the words and figures as follows

:

"January 26, 1931.

We refer to Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia collection No. 113014 drawn on Mssho
Co. Ltd. for $1547.50. This collection has been

paid and the total proceeds amount to [206]
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$1560.58 as per memorancUmi attached. This

amount, as well as interest amounting to $5.00

as per statement attached, has been applied in

anticipation of acceptances for $25,000, due

February 26.

Yours very truly"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. C. Mc-

Duffie, Receiver, and said letter was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 98. Said

letter is in the words and figures as follows

:

"January 28, 1931.

We refer to Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia draft No. 103009 drawn on Ricardo

Velazquez for $2,442.40. This draft has been

paid and the total proceeds amount to $2,484.49,

as per memorandum attached.

This sum has been applied in anticipation of

our acceptance for $25,000. due February 26.

Yours very truly"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. Mc-

Duffie, Receiver, and said letter was received in evi-

deence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 99. Said let-

ter was in the words and figures as follows:

"February 2, 1931.

We refer to your draft No. 113013 drawn on

Rafael Alvarez Le Hijos, for $2,446.82.
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This draft has been paid and the total pro-

ceeds amount to $2,443.77, as per memorandum
attached. This amount has been applied in an-

ticipation of acceptances for $25,000, due

February 26.

Yours very truly"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W.
McDuffie, Receiver, and said letter was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 100. Said

letter was in words and figures as follows:

"February 3, 1931.

We refer to draft No. 113001 of the Richfield

Oil Company of California.

This draft has been paid and the total pro-

ceeds amount to [207] $1194.81, as per memo-
randum attached. This amount has been ap-

plied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000,

due February 26.

Yours very truly"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from
Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., to W. Mc-
Duffie, Receiver, and said letter was received in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 101. Said let-

ter was in words and figures as follows

:

"February 4, 1931.

We refer to draft No. 113023 of the Richfield

Oil Company of California;

This draft has been paid and the total pro-

ceeds amount to $889.88, as per memorandum
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attached. This amount has been applied in an-

ticipation of acceptance for $25,000. due

February 26.

Yours very truly"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

February 4, 1931, from Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. to W. McDuffie, Receiver, and said letter

was received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 102. Said letter stated that a debit memoran-

dum of the sum of $150.20 charged against Eich-

field Oil Company of California was in error and

that the sum had already been collected from Rich-

field Oil Company of California.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. Mc-
Duffie, Receiver, and said letter was received in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 103. Said let-

ter was in the words and figures as follows

:

"February 13, 1931.

We refer to drafts Nos. 123007, 113012 and

103030 of Richfield Oil Company of California.

These drafts have been paid and the total

proceeds amount to $1,019.82, $1,460.08 and $1,-

396.27, respectively, as per memorandum at-

tached. These amounts have been applied in

anticipation of acceptance for $25,000. due

February 26.

Yours very truly"
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Said witness testitied further as follows: [208]

These short time drafts which were deposited

with the bank matured at different times. Some of

the drafts later deposited were collected previous to

the collection of drafts earlier deposited. In other

words, the drafts themselves were not collected in

the order in which they were deposited. As the pro-

ceeds would come in the bank applied them first to

the acceptances in the sum of $115,000. and then

next to the acceptances as they were issued, taking

into consideration the date of maturity of the ac-

ceptances, so that following this procedure the pro-

ceeds of drafts deposited after earlier drafts had

been deposited would be applied to the acceptances

coming due and maturing first in point of time.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. Mc-

Duffie, Receiver, and said letter was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 104. Said

letter was in the words and figures as follows:

''March 14, 1931.

We refer to drafts Nos. 113010, 113017 and

113007 of the Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia.

These drafts have been paid and the total

proceeds amount to $1,829.07, $7,377.65 and

$1,221.76 respectively, as per memorandimi at-

tached. These amounts have been applied in

anticipation of acceptance for $25,000. due

February 26.

Yours very truly"
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Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

February 21, 1931, from Richfield Oil Company of

California to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., and said letter was received in evidence and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 105. Said letter stated

that a bank acceptance for $1600 was enclosed and

also an acceptance agreement. Said letter further

stated that these documents were forwarded to make

good a balance due of $1,499.70 on the $25,000 of

bank acceptances to come due on February 26,

1931, requesting that if sufficient funds were re-

ceived from collec- [209] tions of drafts, the docu-

ments be returned to Richfield Oil Company.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Richfield Oil Company of California to Wells Fargo

Bank Sz Union Trust Co., and said letter vv^as re-

ceived in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhi])it

106. Said letter was in the words and figures as

follows

:

"March 3, 1931.

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

San Francisco, California.

Dear Sirs: Attention: Mr. Gilstrap.

Referring to your letter of February 26th,

advising us of payment of certain drafts total-

ing $9260.81, less certain charges amoiniting to

$11.53, leaving a balance of $9249.28 from

which you are taking $1499.70 to meet the bal-

ance due on acceptances February 26th, leaving

the sum of $7749.58 to be credited to our ac-
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count, and referring to your telegram of Jan-

uary 16tb, I beg to inform you that all banks

transferred the total amount of deposit to the

credit of Richfield Oil Company of California

on January 15th, 1931, to the credit of Wil-

liam C. McDuffie, Receiver. I will therefore ap-

preciate it if you will kindly credit the remain-

der of the proceeds as mentioned above, $7,-

749.58, to the credit of Richfield Oil Company
of California, William C. McDuffie, Receiver,

and advise as soon as this transfer has been

made.

Yours very truly,

RICHFIELD OIL COMPANY,
OF CALIFORNIA
William C. McDuffie, Receiver."

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. C.

McDuffie, Receiver, together with memoranda at-

tached thereto and said letter was received in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 107. Said let-

ter and memoranda attached was in the words and

figures as follows:

''February 26, 1931.

Enclosed are advices of payment of your

drafts Nos. 113009, 113018 and 123008. The

proceeds amount to $4666.98, $650.06 and $2,-

443.77 respectively.

We have also received a partial pa^mient of



304 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

(Testimony of Homer E, PoiDe.)

$1500.00 to apply on your draft Xo. 103012,

wliicli after deduction of all charges, as per

statement attached, leaves a net amount of

$1488.47.

From the four amounts above mentioned, the

sum of $1499.70 has ])een taken to meet the bal-

ance due on acceptances maturing today. The

remainder of the proceeds, totalling $7749.58,

we are holding in accordance with the notice

given you by our wire of January 16. [210]

We are returning herewith the acceptance

form and the acceptance agreement which you

forwarded with your letter of February 21 and

which we shall not have to use.

Yours very truly,

AV. J. Gilstrap, Assistant Cashier."

"San Francisco, Calif., February 24, 1931.

WELLS FAEGO BANK & UNION
TEUST CO.

Market at Montgomery

San Francisco

Account of AVilliam C. McDuffle, Eeceiver,

Eichfield Oil Co. of California,

555 South Flower St.,

Los Angeles, California.

Proceeds

:
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Part payment on your collection

#103012 our #6945 as per your

letter of January 24, 1931, Face

amount of draft $2441.00

Part Payment 1500.00

Balance $ 941.00

Less correspondent charges $9.65

Less our charges 1.88 11.53

$1488.47

Said witness testified further as follows:

I kept records in my office showing the deposit

of these drafts with the bank. I kept little pencil

memos as records showing what particular drafts

were, according to my understanding, deposited

under the acceptances. I did not keep records them-

selves but used my correspondence showing the pro-

ceeds of the drafts as they were collected. I took

the dates the drafts were paid and I made pencilled

memorandums as to the net proceeds from the cor-

respondence received from the bank.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. C.

McDuffie, Receiver, and said letter was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 108. Said

letter was in words and figures as follows:

"March 5, 1931.

We refer to your letter of March 3 regard-

ing funds received representing proceeds of

collections.
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In accordance with your request, we are

crediting the account of William C. McDuffie,

Receiver, Richfield Oil Company of California,

with the sum of $7749.58. [211]

We are also crediting this account with $11,-

082.51, representing proceeds of collection Xo.

13106 of the Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, particulars as per memorandum at-

tached.

Yours very truly,"

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a telegTam from

Richfield Oil Company of California to Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., and said telegram was

received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

109. Said telegram was in the words and figures as

follows

:

"Los Angeles Calif 248P Mar 2 1931

AVFBAUTCO
Attn W. J. Gilstrap

Please repeat telegTam dated January six-

teenth mentioned in your letter to Lyons of

Fel)ruary twenty sixth please answer imme-

diately

RICHFIELD OIL CO OF CALIF
POPE."

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a telegram from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. C.

McDuffie, Receiver, and said telegram was received
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in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit HO.

Said telegram was in the words and figures as fol-

lows:

''Mar. 2 1931

Our telegram January sixteenth addressed to

Mister McDuffie read as follows quote replying

telegram we are willing to restore into your

name as receiver Richfield 's balance in checking

account provided we are notified by you that

all company's banks have taken similar action

stop we are holding certain collections as

security for acceptances please understand that

we continue to reserve all our rights for bank-

ers lien against these collections unquote."

Said witness testified further as follows

:

When the sum of $1499.70 was paid as set forth

in the letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 107, all of

the $25,000 w^orth of acceptances were paid in full,

they having matured on February 26, 1931. Before

release of acceptances was requested by the bank,

Richfield Oil Companj^ had on deposit with the bank

a sufficient number of short time drafts exceeding

to some extent the total amount of the acceptances.

After February 26, 1931, no acceptances were ob-

tained by Richfield Oil Company from WelLs Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. or requested from the

bank.

Draft No. 13106 was deposited with the bank on

January 8th [212] or January 9th, 1931. This was

a sight draft. That particular draft is the draft
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referred to in the concluding paragraph of Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 108, in which it is said:

''We are also crediting this account with

$11,082.51, representing proceeds of collection

No. 13106 of the Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, particulars as per memorandum at-

tached."

The sum of $7,749.58 which represented the bal-

ance of the proceeds of the drafts collected by the

bank, a part of which, the sum of $1,499.70, was

applied in satisfaction of the $25,000 acceptances,

was actually credited to the account of the Receiver.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to W. C.

McDuffie, Receiver, together with memorandum at-

tached thereto, and the same were received in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 111. Said

letter stated that the bank had receiA^ed a number of

anticipated payments on the acceptance of $25,000

maturing on February 26, 1931, and that an interest

credit of $18.17 was being allowed on these pay-

ments. Said memorandum was a tabulation of the

interest allowed.

Said witness testified further as follows:

The interest referred to in this memorandum is

the interest which became due because of anticipated

payments on acceptances and represents the pro-

ceeds of drafts collected, the principal of which pro-

ceeds was applied on account of the acceptances and
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ill aiiticiiDatioii of the maturity of the acceptances.

The proceeds of the drafts deposited before the

appointment of the Receiver and collected by the

bank after the appointment of the Receiver and ))e-

tween the 26th day of February, 1931, and the early

part of May, 1931, were deposited to the account

of the Receiver and used by the Receiver.

Plaintiif then offered in evidence a letter dated

April 22, 1931, from Wells Fargo Bank to W. C.

McDuffie, Receiver, and the same was received in

evidence and marked Plaintiif 's Exhibit 112. Said

letter referred to the fact that Richfield Oil Com-

pany desired to [213] have cancelled the customary

rebate of four per cent per annum on drafts of

Birla Bros, paid before maturity, and requested in-

formation as to whether Richfield Oil Company
would communicate directly with Birla Bros. Ltd.

or desired the bank to do so through its cor-

respondent.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

May 7, 1931, from William C. McDuffie, Receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California, to Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and said letter was

received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

113. Said letter stated that Richfield Oil Company

had followed the bank's suggestion and had written

directly to Birla Bros, regarding the four per cent

rebate.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

May 5, 1931, from Wells Fargo Bank & Union



;jlO Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

(Testimony of Homer E. Pope.)

Trust Co. to William C. McDuffie, Receiver, and

said letter was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 114. Said letter stated that no

rei^ly had as yet been received to the letter which

is Plaintiff's Exhibit 112.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

May 8, 1931, from William C. McDuffie, Receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California, to Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and said letter was

received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 115. Said letter requested the bank to cable

to its correspondent at Calcutta, India, to remit the

proceeds of draft No. 103005 for $63,950.00 and draft

No. 103006-B for $55,900.76, both of which drafts

were drawn on B-irla Bros. Ltd.

Said witness testified further as follows:

Draft No. 103005 for $63,950.00, was the draft

next issued after draft No. 103004, and represented

the same amount of money and was a 180 day sight

draft which was deposited with the bank on or about

the 8th of October, 1930. Draft No. 103006-B was

the counterpart of draft No. 103006-A, and was for

$55,900.76, and represented the 180 day draft like-

wise deposited with the drafts on said October 8,

1930. [214]

Between the date upon which those drafts were

deposited with the bank and the 8th day of May,

1931, the bank had not communicated with me or

the Richfield Oil Company to the effect that they
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were claiming or claimed a bankers lien or any otlier

sort of lien on these two drafts.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a letter dated

May 9, 1931, from Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. to AVilliam C. McDuffie, Receiver, and

said letter was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 116. Said letter stated that in

accordance with the request of the Richfield Oil

Company the bank had cabled their Calcutta cor-

respondent referring to the draft of Richfield Oil

Company, No. 43110, drawn on Birla Bros. Ltd. for

$45,035.47, instructing said correspondent to trans-

fer the proceeds of the draft by cable when 2:)aid.

(This draft is not in issue in the present case.)

Cross Examination

At the present time I am a salesman for Rich-

field Oil Company. I am no longer with the Foreign

Department. I was in the Foreign Department from

September, 1929, until November, 1931. I was on

the financial side of the Foreign Department rather

than on the export business side, and had more con-

cern about the financial arrangements than about

other business of the Foreign Department. Mr.

Hall was Manager of the Foreign Department and

was generally in charge of the work of the Foreign

Department.

I came to San Francisco once to see members of

the AVells Fargo Bank. That was in the early part

of October, 1930, and after I had talked with Mr.
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Hall about his arrangements with the Wells Fargo

Bank. Mr. Hall asked me to come, the purpose of

my trip being educational since I was not familiar

with the new method of handling foreign collec-

tions proposed at that time. I went there with Mr.

Hall to learn about that business. I had with me

tuQ so-called acceptance agreement given to me by

Mr. Hall. I believe Mr. [215] Hall in handing me
this acceptance agreement said something to the

effect that this w^as the arrangement with which I

was to familiarize myself. I will not state posi-

tively that he said this was the arrangement under

w^hich drafts were to be deposited with Wells Fargo

Bank, l^ecause I don't remember.

Up to that time we had been discounting drafts

with the Security First National Bank of l^os An-

geles. After that, I don't remember that we dis-

counted any more drafts with the Security Bank,

])ut we did deposit drafts with the Security Bank

for collection. Approximately $300,000 of the

amount so collected was turned back subsequent to

the receivership.

I do not remember any discussion with the Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. about a revolving

credit or a continuous credit. I do not rememl^er Mr.

Hall telling me that the bank had granted a credit to

Richfield Oil Company of $150,000 on bankers ac-

ceptances and that this was to be a continuing credit

or a revolving credit to be covered by one agree-

ment. This was not my understanding of the trans-
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action. I had no discussion witli Mr. Hall al)out it.

To my knowledge, a revolving credit is a credit with

a stiiDulated limit but its continuance is indefinite

until cancelled by the other party. It is my under-

standing that after we had issued the initial $150,-

000 of bank acceptances which we brought up it

would be necessary to make out a new acceptance

agreement. I cannot remember any one telling me

that. I was not familiar with these transactions to

any extent before I came to the bank in the early

part of October and the whole thing was strange

to me.

The first time I saw this acceptance agreement,

Plaintiff's Exhibit 16, was a few days before we

came up to San Francisco. I did not discuss its

contents with any one. I did not make any in- [216]

quiry as to why there were blanks in the agree-

ment. I believe that subject came up during our

conversation with Mr. Gilstrap. To the best of my
memory I believe something of this nature was said

by Mr. Gilstrap: "As you will be depositing ac-

ceptances from time to time under this arrangement

and drafts under this arrangement, all of which

you cannot identify now, it is impossible to fill in

those blanks at the present time." We could not

give by number and reference on October 6th or

7th drafts that we would deposit on October 10th or

12th. But none the less it might be that drafts of

October 10th or 12th were intended to apply under

the agreement.
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As I remember it, something was said to the ef-

fect that reference to specific drafts was left blank

in the acceptance agreement in order to provide for

the deposit of drafts in the futnre therennder, the

numbers and descriptions of which were at the time

of the execution of the agreement unknow^n. I don't

remember anything having been said to the effect

that the reason for the blanks in the agreement was

to avoid the necessity of a new acceptance agree-

ment every time an acceptance was issued against

certain drafts.

(The foregoing testimony, commencing with

the words "As I remember it something was

said" was objected to by counsel for com-

plainant on the ground it was incompetent, ir-

relevant and immaterial, and an attempt by

parol to vary the terms of the acceptance agree-

ment. Objection was overruled and exception

noted.)

There were two acceptance agreements executed

between the Richfield Oil Company and the Wells

Fargo Bank, said agreements being Plaintiff's Ex-

hilnt 16 and a further acceptance for $5,000 being

Plaintiff's Exhibit 38. To the best of my knowledge

there was also an agreement that the 180 day drafts

w^ould be accepted for collection only and not be

used as a basis for the issuance of acceptances. The

Richfield Oil Company was only required to deposit

sufficient drafts, the net proceeds of which would

satisfy the amount of the bank acceptances. We
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deposited with the Wells Fargo [217] Bank drafts

in excess of $155,000. The total amount of drafts

exclusive of the drafts which the Wells Fargo Bank
sought to exercise its rights against amounted to

$197,390 according to my computation. With the

exception of those drafts against which the Wells

Fargo Bank sought to exercise its rights, there were

a very few drafts for a very slight amount in ex-

cess of 90 days. They amounted to about $3,000 or

$4,000 only. Excluding the drafts of a maturity in

excess of 90 days, the total amount of drafts de-

posited with the Wells Fargo Bank between Octo-

ber 1, 1930, and January 15, 1931, amounted to ap-

proximately $195,000. I would not say that all of

them were deposited under the acceptance agree-

ment. The way in which I differentiated between

drafts that were deposited under the acceptance

agreement and drafts that were not deposited un-

der the acceptance agreement were as follows : when

I figured up my drafts at the time I requested the

issuance of bank acceptances, I would have to have

at that time enough drafts dejoosited at Wells

Fargo Bank, the proceeds of which would pay

promptly the bank acceptances.

Draft No. 103012 was paid in partial payments.

The first payment was made on the 24th of Feb-

ruary. I should say that in all probability these

proceeds were used to make a part payment on the

last $25,000 worth of acceptances issued.

I am quite positive that the initial $115,000 worth

of acceptances were issued only against drafts Nos.
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103004 and 103006a, totalling $119,850.76. My un-

derstanding was that the $115,000 of acceptances

were not issued against drafts Nos. 103005 and

103006b, the two companion 180 day drafts that ac-

companied drafts Nos. 103004 and 103006a. My tes-

timony now is that the 180 day drafts were to be

kept separate and were collections only. The sig-

nature on the letter which you hand me is that of

G. P. Lyons, Comptroller of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany. The initials "E. L. H." on this letter are

[218] Mr. Hall's.

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter from

Eichfield Oil Company of California to Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and the same was

received in evidence and marked Defendant's Ex-

hibit "A". Said letter is in the words and figures

as follows:

"October 7, 1930.

E. Leuenberger, Asst. Vice-President,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Company,

Montgomery & Market Streets,

San Francisco, California.

Dear Sir:

We are sending by Mr. Hall, documents cov-

ering a shipment to Birla Brothers, Ltd., Cal-

cutta, India. Will you please release against

this shipment $115,000.00 worth of acceptances

made payable at i30»days sight.

90 R.L.H.

Yours very truly,

G. P. LYONS
Comptroller"
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(Originally this letter stated that the accept-

ances were made payable at 120 days sight.

This was scratched out and changed to 90 days,

and initialed by E. L. Hall.)

With reservations, I should say that Plaintiff's

Exhibits 22 and 23 are the letters of transmittal and

the shipping documents referred to in the letter of

October 7th which has just been marked Defend-

ant's Exhibit "A", my reservations being that due

to our understanding with Mr. Gilstrap and our

conversation, the documents that we had reference

to with respect to the issuance of the $115,000

worth of bank acceptances were the sight drafts.

That is my conclusion and voluntary statement now.

I would say that the documents referred to in the

letter of October 7th, Defendant's Exhibit "A",

reading: "We are sending by Mr. Hall documents

covering a shix^ment to Birla Bros. Ltd., Calcutta,

India", are the documents referred to in the let-

ters of transmittal of the same date which have

been marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 22 and 23. [219]

It was my understanding that the advance of

$115,000 was to be made against drafts.

During the course of the conversation at tlie

Wells Fargo Bank, there was some discussion as to

the financial responsibility of Birla Bros. Mr. Hall

spoke very highly of Birla Bros., saying that they

always met their obligations to us promptly. Mr.

Gilstrap showed us a cable from Calcutta, India.
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Defendant then offered in evidence a telegram

from Netherlands Trading Society, Calcutta, India,

to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., and said

telegram was received in evidence and marked

Defendant's Exhibit "B". Said telegram was in

code but was decoded on the same paper. The de-

coded part was in the words and figures as follows

:

*' Referring your wire of the first of this

month referring your wire of the fourth of this

month our reply delayed account holiday we
are informed confidentially (that) limited com-

pany/ paid up capital rupee 5,000,000 respect-

able but speculative reported have suffered

severe losses recently.

Netherlands Trading Society, Calcutta."

Said witness testified further as follows:

There was a discussion about this telegram by

Mr. Gilstrap in my presence and he said it was not

a satisfactory credit report. This came up during

the discussion as to the 180 day drafts and it was

related to our 180 day drafts on Birla Bros. We
wanted to know whether the bank would take into

consideration as a basis for their acceptances the

180 day paper on Birla Bros., as well as the sight

paper. I don't remember whether either Mr. Gil-

strap or Mr. Leuenberger said that this credit report

on Birla Bros, was not good enough for the bank

to advance for the whole amount of the shipment.

As I remember the discussion, Mr. Hall and I were
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trying to raise all the money that we could on the

Birla Bros, respective shipments and we asked Mr.

Gilstrap if he could not issue acceptances against

the whole shipment and he said that he could not

because the time of the 180 day drafts was too long

to be used as a basis for bankers acceptances and

that it would not be considered prime paper. I

believe he also did at that time [220] bring up the

discussion of the credit standing of Birla Bros.

The part of the conversation as I remember it re-

lating to that was that the 180 day drafts, as I

understood it, w^ere definitely out because they were

too long. It is my understanding, gathered from

that conversation, that prime commercial paper

depends upon the maturity date and that there

cannot be prime commercial paper for 180 days.

I believe that Mr. Gilstrap and Mr. Leuenberger

said: "We cannot use as a basis for the amount of

your acce]3tances the 180 day paper on Birla Bros."

They did not tell me, as I remember it, that they

waived the security of that paper because I do not

believe that came into the discussion.

The practice of transmitting drafts in the same

form of letter as that shown in Plaintiff's Exhibits

24 and 25 continued throughout the entire series

of transactions. Referirng to Plaintiff's Exhibits

40 to 92, in each instance a draft was deposited

with the letter and shipping documents were for-

warded with the letter of transmittal, and there-

after the bank issued its receipt to the Richfield

Oil Company for these items.
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The Wells Fargo Bank charged a collection fee

for the collection of each draft deposited by the

Eichfield Oil Company with the Wells Fargo Bank

subsequent to my visit of October 6, 1930, and up

to the time of the appointment of the Receiver.

In computing the charge, it was made in accord-

ance with the amount on the face of the draft and

was some percentage of the amount of the face of

the draft.

The witness' attention was then called to a docu-

ment which had previously been marked Plaintiff's

Exhibit 25 for identification. With the consent of

counsel for defendant, plaintiff then introduced at

that time said document in evidence and the same

was received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's

Exhibit 25. This document was a tabulation of the

drafts deposited by Richfield Oil Company with

[221] Wells Fargo Bank from October 6, 1930,

until January 15, 1931, and was substantially the

same as that hereinbefore set forth with respect to

Plaintiff's Exhibits 40 to 92, with the exception

that it included the date that each draft was due in

the foreign country and the date upon which it was

ultimately paid, and also included the four Birla

Bros, drafts, Nos. 103004, 103005, 103006a and

103006b. (It was stipulated that since this docu-

ment was prepared in contemplation of the trial

of this action, the same was to ])e used solely for

purposes of illustration and was not to be binding

upon defendant.)
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Said witness testified further as follows:

Draft No. 103024 was returned to the Richfield

Oil ComiDany without having been collected, the

reason being that the shii^ that was to pick up the

goods covered thereby did not do so. The same

thing is true of draft No. 103028.

The sum of $169,707.81 represented the total face

amount of the drafts excluding the two 180 day

drafts drawn on Birla Bros, and the two drafts

that were returned, which were deposited with the

Wells Fargo Bank up to and including the 24th

day of November, 1930.

Drafts Nos. 103004 and 103006a, which were the

two sight Birla Bros, drafts deposited on October

7, 1930, totalled $119,850.76, and on said day

$115,000 worth of acceptances were issued and these

were included in the $150,000 of acceptances which

I brought up to the bank with me on October 6th.

Deducting $115,000 from $119,850.76 leaves $4,-

850.76. The next draft to be deposited was No.

103009 for $2,442.40. Draft No. 103012 for $2,441

was also deposited, but not next in order. Addition

of the two last named figures to the figure of

$4,850.76 makes a total of $9,734.16. This is the

same figure which appears in Plaintiff's Exhibit

28, and [222] this was my understanding of the so-

called draft reserve which we had at that time. It

is hard to say where I first learned of the expres-

sion "draft reserve". It may be that that was our

own method of explaining the situation.
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The $5,000 acceptance was issued subsequent to

the receipt of the letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

28. In the letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 29,

reference is made to the fact that we had forgotten

to include draft No. 103010. Deduction of the sum

of $5,000 from $9,734.16 leaves $4,734.16, which

exclusive of Draft No. 103010 according to our

understanding constituted the so-called draft re-

serve as of that time. Then ])y Plaintiff's Exhibit

29 there was called to our attention the fact that

we had an additional so-called reserve of $11,031.14,

represented by Draft No. 103010. This made our

draft reserve at that time $15,765.30. On October

20, we wrote our letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

30, requesting the issuance of acceptances for

$10,000. The letter from the bank marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 31, indicated that the $10,000 ac-

ceptance dated October 20th and maturing January

19, 1931, was issued. Subsequent to this, there were

deposited a considerable number of drafts. Ex-

cluding the two returned drafts, Nos. 103024 and

103028, and including those drafts deposited from

October 20, 1930, to November 24, 1930, there were

deposited drafts in the face amount of $33,932.51.

Our letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 33, con-

tains our instructions to the bank asking for the

issuance of a final amount of $25,000 worth of ac-

ceptances. As evidenced by Plaintiff's Exhibit 35,

there were issued the $25,000 worth of acceptances.

As against the total amount of acceptances issued,
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there was a total of $169,707.81 face value of drafts

deposited excluding the two 180 day drafts and the

returned drafts. The acceptances of the Richfield

[223] Oil Company were not to be issued against

all of these drafts. There were one or two drafts

as I remember it, the proceeds of which would not

have arrived in San Francisco on time. The first

draft under that heading was draft No. 103027 in

the amount of $381.60. The next one was draft No.

113021 in the amount of $2,237.66. The next draft

under that heading was No. 103025 for $583, the

proceeds of which had already arrived in San

Francisco prior to November 24, 1930. The total of

these drafts amounts to $3,202.26. Deduction of

that figure from the gross figure of $169,707.81,

makes $166,505.55. Therefore, up to and including

the 24th day of November, 1930, and to and in-

cluding the date when the last acceptance w^as is-

sued, there had been deposited with the AVells

Fargo Bank drafts of a face value of $166,505.55,

which, according to my understanding, were to be

used as the basis of acceptances.

The net proceeds of the two Birla Bros, sight

drafts, in the sum of $119,626.05, were on or about

December 16, 1930, applied in anticipation of the

acceptances which were thereafter to mature.

These were the first two drafts paid and applied

against acceptances. The next draft paid and ap-

plied against acceptances was draft No. 103010, as

appears from Plaintiff's Exhibit 95. The next draft
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paid and applied against acceptances was draft No.

113014, as appears from Plaintiff's Exln])it 97.

Draft 103009 was the draft next paid and applied

against acceptances, as appears from Plaintiif's

Exhibit 98. As appears from Plaintiff's Exhibit

99, draft 113013 was the next draft paid and ap-

plied against acceptances. Draft No. 113001, re-

ferred to in Plaintiff's Exhibit 100 was the next

draft paid and applied against acceptances. Sub-

sequent to this, drafts were paid and applied

against acceptances in the following order: No.

113023, referred to in Plaintiff's Exhibit 101; drafts

Nos. 123007, 113012 and 103030, referred to in

Plaintiff's Exhibit 103; drafts Nos. 113010, 113017

and 113007, referred to in Plaintiff's Exhibit 104.

[224]

After the payment of the drafts referred to in

Plaintiff's Exhibit 104, the sum of $1,499.70 re-

mained due as not having been paid in anticipation

of the acceptances. For this amount we sent our

letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 105 containing a

bank acceptance for $1,600, payable at 40 days

sight and an acceptance agreement. These docu-

ments were subsequently returned to us. The bank

had not previously written and asked us for this.

The drafts next paid and applied to acceptances

were drafts Nos. 113009, 113018, 123009 and 103012,

all referred to in Plaintiff's Exhibit 107. From the

proceeds of these drafts last mentioned, the balance

of the money due under the acceptances was paid.
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The smn of $1,499.70 was taken from the total smn
received in the collection of the drafts last men-

tioned, but this sum was not allocated against any

particular draft.

In the application of these draft proceeds against

the acceptances they were paid in anticipation of

the maturity of the acceptances. In other words,

the acceptances had 90 days to run and when pro-

ceeds were received and applied by the bank it was

merely an anticipation of the maturity of the ac-

ceptances.

The two Birla Bros, drafts, Nos. 13,107 and

13,106, one of which is the subject matter and part

of this action, accompanied our letter dated Janu-

ary 8, 1931, marked Plaintife's Exhibit 82. This

was the usual form of transmittal letter, and we re-

ceived the usual form of receipt from the bank

wnth respect to the deposit of those drafts. On
January 8, 1931, apart from the first $115,000 of

acceptances which had then matured, there were

other acceptances outstanding which had not been

paid, and on said date we still owed the Wells

Fargo Bank money on acceptances. The last ac-

ceptances were paid on February 26, 1930.

I remember that Mr. Hall made a statement to

me that he had [225] some interest, he would not

say a partnership interest, but he had some interest

in the export business of Richfield Oil Company.

I know that he made that statement to me once

prior to the receivership, and that was during our

discussion with Mr. Grilstrap. As I remember it,
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the substance of his statement was that he wanted

the Foreign Department of Richfield kept as a

separate and distinct transaction from the other

business that Richfield might do with the Wells

Fargo Bank. As I remember it, the subject of

bankers lien did not arise at that time. To my
knowledge no mention was made a])out the general

indebtedness of Richfield to AVells Fargo Bank,

and there was no discussion that there was a large

so-called unsecured indebtedness. That indebted-

ness was no concern of mine as it was not in Mr.

Hall's department.

I do not remember that Mr. Hall discussed with

me that he was fearful that Richfield would not be

able to pay that indebtedness. There was no such

statement made in our conversation with the Wells

Fargo Bank officials.

Before testifying in court, I examined various

records of Richfield Oil Company and refreshed my
memory from them, and a great deal to which I

have testified is not my instant recollection in the

matter but my recollection as refreshed after ex-

amination of the records and discussion with

counsel.

Redirect Examination:

(The document containing the schedules next

herein mentioned, was marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 117 for identification.)

During the past two or three days I made an ex-

amination of certain schedules and tabulations pre-
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pared by counsel and checked those tabulations

with correspondence and other records of Richfield

Oil Company in my possession. I also checked

them up with respect to exhibit numbers when ex-

hibit numbers were referred to in the schedules of

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 117 for identification. Other

tabulations and schedules in said exhibit were ex-

amined and checked by me for the purpose of de-

termining their accuracy. To the best of my judg-

ment and [226] recollection those schedules and

tabulations are correctly set up. Subdivision 1 of

schedule (a) of said exhibit, under the title *' Sched-

ule of Drafts Claimed by Plaintiff to Have Been

Deposited as Security for Acceptances Totalling

$155,000.00", correctly sets forth the drafts claimed

by plaintiff to have been deposited as security for

acceptances totalling $155,000.00. These drafts

were checked by me for the purpose of determining

that they were accurately designated upon this

schedule. Whenever we made a request for the is-

suance of acceptances, we had on deposit with the

bank drafts to be Tised by the bank as security for

the acceptances requested. There had been sent

to the bank between the issuance of the $130,000.00

of acceptances, represented by $115,000.00, $5,000.00

and $10,000.00, and our request to issue the

$25,000.00 additional acceptances, all of the drafts

shown upon the first page of said exhibit commenc-

ing with draft No. 103023 for $779.10 to and in-

cluding draft No. 113020 for $1200.00. Opposite
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draft No. 103012 there is an asterisk by which ref-

erence is made to the lower part of the page. That

draft was for $2441.00 ; it was paid in instalhnents

;

the first installment of $1500.00 was paid February

24, 1931, and applied on the acceptances; the sec-

ond installment amounting to $470.00 was paid on

April 4, 1931, and was credited to the account of

the receiver; the final installment was paid on May
11, 1931, and was retained by the bank, as one of

the amounts involved in this litigation. I testified

upon direct examination that it was stated in the

conversation had between Mr. Gilstrap, Mr. Hall

and myself that the drafts which would be taken

as security for the acceptances would have to have

a maturity shorter than the maturity of the accept-

ances and the proceeds of the draft would have to

be in San Francisco in advance of the maturity of

the acceptances. When I requested the issuance of

the last $25,000.00 worth of acceptances, there had

been deposited [227] with the bank drafts having a

face value of $159,600.50 as security for all of the

acceptances including the proposed $25,000.00

vrorth of acceptances. Referring to said exhibit

last mentioned, the first five drafts shown thereon

in the following amounts, $63,950, $55,900.76,

$2,442.40, $2,441.00 and $11,031.14, aggregated

$135,765.30. Up to that point of time, there had

been accepted and issued acceptances aggregating

$130,000.00. Deducting this figure from the $135,-

765.30, we have a surplus of $5,765.30. After the
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issuance of those acceptances aggregating $130,-

000.00 and after we had as a reserve surphis the

$5,765.30, there were deposited these other drafts

referred to on page 1 of said exhibit, which, with

the $5,765.30, aggregated $29,600.50, and I then re-

quested the bank to issue the $25,000.00 worth of

acceptances, which was done on November 28,

1930.

It is our claim that certain of the drafts de-

posited on or before the 28th of November, 1930,

were not deposited under the acceptance agreement.

The first of these were drafts No. 103005 for

$63,950.00 and No. 103006b for $55,900.75. The

next of these was draft No. 103024 for $1,007.00.

With respect to this, the ship did not pick up the

goods and the draft was not used. The next of

these was draft No. 103025 for $583.00 deposited on

October 28, 1930. This draft was paid on November

15, 1930, and was deposited after the acceptances

aggregating $130,000.00 were executed and before

we had requested additional acceptances totalling

$25,000.00. This draft was paid before the date

upon which we asked for the $25,000.00 worth of

acceptances. The next of these drafts was No.

103028 for $1,204.78 deposited on October 28, 1930,

and this was the other draft which was not used

because the goods were returned, the ship not tak-

ing the goods. It is our claim that draft No. 103027

for $381.60 and draft No. 113008 for $1,007.00 and

draft No. 113009 [228] for $5,256.60 and draft No.
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113018 for $641.25 were not sent up to the bank

to be used under the acceptance agreement. It was

my custom to tigure out as closely as possible the

date upon which the proceeds of drafts would be

payable in San Francisco. I made that estimate

with respect to the four drafts last mentioned. I

estimated that the proceeds of those drafts would

be received in San Francisco after February 26,

1931. Drafts No. 113021 for $2,237.66 and No.

113023 for $881.13 were deposited after we re-

quested the issuance of the acceptances totalling

$25,000.00, and therefore our claim is that they were

not under the acceptances. It is our claim that

none of the drafts deposited after November 28,

1930, were deposited under the acceptances. ITp to

the time that the $25,000.00 worth of acceptances

Avere requested, I understood that we had on de-

posit with the bank under the acceptance agree-

ment a sufficient amount of drafts at a proper

maturity to support the acceptances.

Draft No. 103026 for $2,446.82 was deposited as

security for acceptances. This draft was paid

December 27, 1930, and the proceeds were credited

to the Richfield Oil Company. There were sufficient

drafts left to take care of the acceptances out-

standing. These proceeds were credited by the

liank to the Richfield Oil Company without a re-

quest of Richfield Oil Company. Draft No. 103029

in the sum of $654.55, deposited on October 28,

1930, was paid on the 27th of December, 1930. This
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was one of the drafts deposited under the accept-

ances. The proceeds were collected and applied by

the bank without request to the commercial account

of Richfield Oil Company, leaving plenty of drafts

to meet acceptances. Draft No. 113011 for $103.12

was deposited on November 19, 1930, and paid De-

cember 12, 1930. The bank credited the amount of

the draft to the account of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany without request. Draft No. 113019 for $291.50

was deposited on November 24, 1930, and paid [229]

December 12, 1930. The proceeds were credited to

the account of Richfield Oil Company without re-

quest. This draft was deposited under the accept-

ance agreement, and draft No. 113020 for $1,200.00

was deposited November 24, 1930, and paid Decem-

ber 18, 1930, and the bank without any request

from the Richfield Oil Company deposited the net

proceeds to the credit of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany. The total of the six drafts last referred to

is $5,278.99, and their net proceeds was $5,255.86,

and this entire sum was credited to the account of

the Richfield Oil Company. Prior to the date of

the appointment of the receiver, the bank had not

sent any communication to the Richfield Oil Com-

pany in writing indicating that it intended to or

was offsetting any moneys which it had collected

upon these drafts as against any indebtedness

claimed by it to be due to it from the Richfield Oil

Company. Draft No. 13106 for $11,107.50 was de-

posited on January 8, 1931, and paid March 5, 1931.
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The bank voluntarily and of its own initiative put

that entire sum to the credit of the receiver by ap-

plying it to his account, and did not notify the

receiver or the Richfield Oil Company that it

claimed any offset or lien against that money.

Draft No. 13108 was deposited on January 15,

1931, and paid on March 23, 1931. The proceeds of

this draft were deposited to the account of the re-

ceiver. Draft No. 103012 for $2,441 was deposited

on October 11, 1930, and an installment of the pro-

ceeds of it in the sum of $468.05 was received on

April 7, 1931. This was one of the drafts deposited

under the acceptance agreement. On February 20,

1931, the sum of $1500 was paid on account and

the net proceeds of said payment, to-wit, $1,488.87,

were applied towards the payment of acceptances

aggregating $25,000. On April 7, 1931, the sum of

$468.05 was paid. The sum of $468.05 was credited

to the account of the receiver voluntarily and the

bank did not notify the company that any right

of offset or l^ankers lien was claimed against this

sum. Later and on May 11, 1931, the balance of

the draft amount- [230] ing to $471 was paid and

that sum is one of the sums being retained by the

bank under the alleged right of setoff. Draft No.

103027 in the sum of $381.60 was deposited on Oc-

tober 27, 1930, and paid on March 3, 1930. The
bank credited the proceeds to the receivership ac-

count voluntarily. Draft No. 113008 for $1,007

was deposited November 18, 1930, and paid March
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19, 1931, and the proceeds thereof credited to the

receiver's account vohintarily. Draft No. 113021

for $2,237.66 was deposited November 24, 1930, and

paid March 23, 1931, and the net proceeds thereof

Avere credited to tlie receiver's account vohmtarily.

The proceeds of drafts No. 123009 for $3,418.90,

deposited December 23, 1930, and paid March 24,

1931 ; No. 123010 for $1,266.29, deposited December

13, 1930, and collected April 4, 1931; No. 123013

for $2,702.66, deposited December 27, 1930, and

paid on March 30, 1931 ; No. 123015 in the sum of

$2,692.99, deposited December 27, 1930, and paid

April 22, 1931, were credited to the account of the

receiver voluntarily by the bank. I never heard of

any communication being sent by the bank to the

Richtield Oil Company or to the receiver to the

effect that the bank was setting off or had a right

to set off these sums against any indebtedness due

from the Richtield Oil Company.

Schedule I entitled "Schedule showing total pro-

ceeds of drafts paid to Richfield Oil Company
and/or to Receiver without claim of offset", is a

recapitulation of some of the earlier schedules

showing first the total proceeds of drafts paid to

Richfield Oil Company as per Schedule G amount-

ing to $5,255.86; surplus proceeds of four drafts

paid to Receiver after payment in full of accept-

ances as per Schedule F, $7,749.58; then the total

proceeds of remaining drafts paid to Receiver after

payment in full of acceptances as per Schedule H,
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$26,469.57. This total sum, with the exception of

the $7,749.58 which is taken care of by correspond-

ence to which I have already referred, was volun-

tarily paid by the bank either to the Richfield Oil

[231] Company or to the Receiver without any pro-

test, and without any claim of right of setoff or

bankers' lien.

The aggregate net proceeds of the drafts to

which the bank had recourse to take care of the ac-

ceptances was 1162,749.58. From this sum the ac-

ceptances aggregating $155,000.00 were paid, leav-

ing a net balance of $7,749.58 in the hands of the

bank, which is the sum referred to in Plaintiff's

Exhibit 107.

Drafts No. 103005 and No. 103006b, the two 180

day sight drafts of Birla Bros., deposited October

8, 1930, proceeds of which were received in San

Francisco on June 16, 1931; No. 123014 for

$1,245.11, deposited December 27, 1930, and paid

May 18, 1931; No. 103012, $468.06 of which was

paid in May, 1931, and $1,500.00 of which was ap-

plied on account of the $25,000 of acceptances, and

No. 13107, a 180 day Birla Bros, draft for

$23,532.08, deposited on January 8, 1931, the pro-

ceeds being paid on September 10, 1931, are the

drafts in litigation here, and the bank is retaining

the proceeds thereof.

The next schedule entitled ''Schedule of drafts

not discounted—deposited before receivership, pro-
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ceeds of wliicli were paid and credited to the Re-

ceiver's account", refers to five drafts deposited by

Richfield Oil Company before receivership aji^gre-

gating $152,524.03. This sum was collected hy the

Security-First National Bank after the appoint-

ment of the Receiver and after the receipt of the

telegram of January 16, 1931, by the bank and after

all of the other banks had sent in their telegrams,

which proceeds were paid over to the Receiver by

the Security-First National Bank. These drafts

had been deposited by the Richfield Oil Company

with that bank for collection only.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, "The next schedule" were objected

to by counsel for defendant as incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial, and not binding

upon, or evidence against defendant. Objec-

tion overruled and exception noted.) [232]

Mr. Lyons, who wrote the letter of October 7,

1930, introduced in evidence as Defendant's Ex-

hibit "A", was not with me and Mr. Hall in San

Francisco at the time of the conversation at the

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. He had

nothing to do to my knowledge with any of the ar-

rangements made between the bank and the Rich-

field Oil Company. That letter was written by him

and then sent over to my department and accom-

panied the letter of transmittal.
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Recross Examination:

This letter, Defendant's Exhibit "A", was writ-

ten by Mr. Lyons. The initials upon the letter are

Mr. Hall's initials and the change from 120 days to

90 days are Mr. Hall's, likewise. Mr. Hall was with

me in San Francisco and had been to the bank

prior to my having been there with him. With re-

spect to the drafts claimed by us to have been de-

posited as security for acceptances, I don't remem-

ber having written to the Wells Fargo Bank that

we were sending them up as security for accept-

ances. There is no letter with respect thereto. With

the exception of the first few drafts, as shown by

our correspondence, we did not tell the bank what

drafts we were sending up as security for the ac-

ceptances.

Further Redirect Examination

:

Aside from the sum of $7,749.58, which was the

net balance in the possession of the bank from the

proceeds of the four drafts after the satisfaction

and discharge of the balance of the acceptances, I

do not know of any communication sent by the

bank to the receiver or to the Richfield Oil Com-
pany prior to the early part of May, 1931, notify-

ing the receiver or the company that the bank in-

tended to exercise the right of setoff or banker's

lien. [233]
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ROBERT L. HALL
was tlien called as a witness for plaintiff, and tes-

tified as follows:

I live at 1549 North Idlewood Road, Glendale,

California, in Los Angeles Connty, and have been

a resident of Los Angeles County for 21 years. At

the present time I am employed by the United

States Government doing special work for a cer-

tain department. I went into the employ of the

Richfield Oil ComjDany on February 1, 1927. Prior

to that time my business had been the exportation

of petroleum products. I was employed by the

Richfield Oil Company to organize and build up a

foreign or exporting department for them, turn

over to them my contracts and business which I

had before, and to make the department as large

as possible in the shortest length of time. Prior to

my association with the Richfield Oil Company it

had no foreign department. I was employed by

the Richfield Oil Company on a fixed drawing ac-

count with a certain commission on all goods sold

by me to be accepted by the Richfield Oil Company.

After my association with the Richfield Oil Com-

pany I built up an ex^Dort and foreign trade busi-

ness for them in various foreign ports. I organized

an exporting and foreign department and was the

head of that particular department. I was known

as Manager of the Foreign Department. The em-

ployees in that department were directly under

me, and I was in turn under some of the officials

of the Richfield Oil Company. I did all the selling
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and all the contact with the foreign customers. I

passed preliminarily upon all credits, which were

confirmed by the credit department; I looked over

and passed on all the details of the business as to

shipment and seeing that the goods were properly

packed and properly dispatched in the harbor; in

other words, I had complete charge of it, not being

able to ol^ligate the company in any way except

with their approval, except [234] in the general

O.K.-ing of the details. I negotiated all of the sales

of goods and the terms of the sales, but those had

to be approved by the officials of the company. In

connection with the foreign sales and foreign ship-

mnts, the documents were prepared in my depart-

ment by a clerk. Prior to the latter part of 1930,

I had ])ecome familiar with the firm of Birla Bros.

Ltd., located at Calcutta, India. I had transacted

business with that firm for some considerable

period of time prior to the month of October, 1930.

To the liest of my knowledge, Birla Bros, had been

a customer of the Richfield Oil Company for ap-

proximately a year and three-quarters of two years

prior to the month of October, 1930. We had an

agreement with them respecting the terms of pay-

ment. The terms of payment were fifty per cent of

the amount of the invoice at sight and fifty per

cent of tlie amount at 180 days D/A.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, "We had an agreement'' was ob-
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jectecl to hy counsel for defendant on the

ground it was incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial. Objection was overruled and ex-

ception noted.)

Prior to the early part of October, 1930, the

Foreign Department of Richfield Oil Company had

been doing business with the Security First Na-

tional Bank, the Citizens National Bank, and the

Bank of America, all of Los Angeles. The ma-

jority of the drafts deposited with the Security

First National Bank prior to October, 1930, were

discounted, and some were sent through for collec-

tion.

My deposition was taken as a witness in this case

approximately the first of October, 1931. I was on

a trip when the deposition was taken and came off

a boat that was in San Francisco, and upon which

I had come to San Francisco. I had had no oppor-

tunity to make any investigation of correspondence

or records pertaining to this controversy prior to

the giving of my deposition. I had had no oppor-

tunity to refresh my recollection in connection witli

[235] any of the facts or to confer with counsel.

In order to testify in this case I have recently ex-

amined my correspondence and to some extent the

records pertaining to the matters involved in this

case.

I know Mr. Gilstrap, the Assistant Manager of

the Foreign Department of the Wells Fargo Bank.

I had known him for some years prior to the month
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of October, 1930. During or about the month of

August, 1930, some dispute arose with respect to

the handling of our collections with the Security

Bank at Los Angeles, and I concluded that if ar-

rangements could be made, I would like to have the

Wells Fargo Bank take care of our collections. On

August 17, 1930, I came to San Francisco and went

immediately to the Wells Fargo Bank to Mr.

Gilstrap's office and I discussed with him the gen-

eral situation of the Richfield Oil Company's col-

lections, and stated that I was contemplating turn-

ing over all the Richfield 's collections in foreign

countries as far as possible to them. I stated to him

and exxolained to him that I would be responsible

as far as possible for those collections and would

watch them. I stated to him at that time my em-

ployment at the Richfield Oil Company, and I asked

him to remember that any transactions were to be

considered separate from other transactions of the

Richfield, that is, the entire transactions, monetary,

the collections of drafts for us or any other busi-

ness connected with the Foreign Department of

Richfield Oil Company.

At that time I knew only in a general way that

Richfield Oil Company was obligated for any in-

debtedness due from it to Wells Fargo Bank. I

did not know at that time that a large part of the

indebtedness due from Richfield Oil Company to

various banks, including the Wells Fargo Bank,

was unsecured. I knew that Richfield Oil Com-
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paiiy owed many l)anks and I knew that there was

a friendly rehition between the Wells Fargo Bank

and certain officials of Richfield. I knew prior to

this visit that Richfield Oil Company [236] was be-

ing pressed for ready cash. Before visiting the

Wells Fargo Bank I knew about the right of setoff

a bank might have upon paper deposited with it

and on the proceeds of paper deposited with it. I

knew something about bankers liens.

I stated to Mr. Gilstrap that I had an interest

in all collections which were emanating in the For-

eign Department and I wanted him to consider it

was a sejDarate business arrangement from any

other business Richfield had with the Wells Fargo

Bank. Mr. Gilstrap said that he understood my
IDOsition. That is all he said.

I had with me a rough copy of a certain number

of our foreign correspondents which were our cus-

tomers. We discussed those. I stated that I would

13repare and send him a complete list of our cus-

tomers. We discussed Birla Bros, in India in a

general way only. I told him that we were shipping

to Birla Bros, at fifty per cent at sight and fifty per

cent at 180 days D/A. Then I brought up the su1>

ject of the use of acceptances. Mr. Hellman came

out and we discussed the advantage of the use of

acceptances, there being a saving thereby of two

and one-quarter or two and a half per cent. Mr.

Hellman entered into the conversation in a slight

degree, the result being that I believe Mr. Hellman
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took me doAvnstairs and introduced me to Mr. Lip-

man, the President of the Bank. Before going in I

was introduced to Mr. Eisenbach. I discussed with

Mr. Gilstrap the length of time of the drafts under

the acceptances. It was stated that 90 day accept-

ances were more cpiickly sold. Possibly 120 day

acceptances and very rarely, if any, those at 180

days maturity might be taken.

Prior to meeting ^Ir. Hellman. the only con-

versation I had with Mr. Gilstrap with respect to

acceptances and the procedure to be pursued with

respect thereto was that I told him that I had [237]

convinced the Eichfield Oil Company that the use

of acceptances Avas the proper way of handling ex-

port shipments. I conferred with Mr. Hellman at

Mr. Gilstrap 's desk and in the presence of Mr.

Gilstrap. I stated to them that in place of dis-

counting individual drafts I had convinced Eich-

field that the use of acceptances was the better mode

of procedure. Mr. Gilstrap had told me that there

was a saving in the use of acceptances of approxi-

mately two and a quarter to two and a half per

cent. Before I met Mr. Hellman, nothing had been

said respecting the character of paper that would

be accepted under the acceptances, nor was any-

thing said in that regard during my first confer-

ence with Mr. Hellman in the presence of Mr.

Gilstrap.

After having a brief conversation with Mr. Hell-

man. he took me down to the first floor and intro-
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duced me to Mr. Lipmaii, in Mr. Lipman's private

office. To the best of my recollection, Mr. Hellman

stepped out. I was with Mr. Lipman about five

minutes. Mr. Lipman told me that he had heard

good reports from his Foreign Department in re-

gard to collections of the Foreign Department of

Richfield. Mr. Lipman stated that he had accom-

modated Richfield to a large extent and also had

accommodated Mr. Talbot, and he w^ould give a

further line of credit based on foreign drafts in

the amount of $150,000.00 or thereabouts and see

how it would work out. I then made it particularly

strong to Mr. Lipman as to my position as Manager

of the Foreign Department, that I would continue

to give my very careful attention to the drafts of

the Foreign Department for two reasons, that I

had a personal interest in the collections of the

department and that I wanted it considered to be a

separate transaction from any obligations or any

transactions other than those of the Foreign De-

partment—Richfield 's [238] obligations, I mean. In

response to this, Mr. Lipman made a remark that

"that is good" or "that is excellent". That was the

extent of the conversation I had with him and is

the only conversation I ever had with Mr. Lipman

on this matter.

I left Mr. Lipman's office and went upstairs to

the fifth floor to Mr. Gilstrap's desk where I met

Mr. Gilstrap again. I was alone with Mr. Gilstrap.

I reported to him what Mr. Lipman had told me.
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I was in San Francisco for six days on that

occasion. During that time I had other meetings

with Mr. Gilstrap.

During those meetings I discussed the Birla

Bros, account in India, stating that Birla Bros,

were shipping on a tifty per cent sight and fifty

per cent 180 D/A, which is Documents Against

Acceptances. I discussed the situation of Birla

Bros., its prominence and its financial standing.

I believe I discussed whether the entire drafts on

Birla woTild be available for acceptance purposes.

He stated, as I remember it, that undoubtedly the

sight drafts would be available, but he doubted

that the 180 day drafts would be, on account of the

length of time it took the drafts to get over to

India, which was about 30 days, and then about 30

days or so for the proceeds to return to the bank.

The 30 days going over and the 30 days coming

back would be added to the 180 day draft.

If the 180 day sight draft is to be accepted in

India, the 180 days do not commence to run until

the customer sees the draft.

I returned to Los Angeles and to the best of my
recollection I took a sample copy of the form of

acceptances back with me. Upon my return to Los

Angeles, I sent a letter to Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co. [239]

Plaintiff then introduced in evidence a letter from

Richfield Oil Company, signed by R. L. Hall, Man-
ager of the Foreign Department, to Wells Fargo
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Bank & Union Trust Co. dated August 27, 1930,

and the same was received in evidence and marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 118. Said letter stated that a

list of customers of Richfield in Central and South

America was enclosed, and that this was being

done following out the statement of the bank to

help Richfield in any way it could by obtaining up

to the minute credit reports from the local banks

at each city regarding the financial standing and

opinion of the community as to the integrity of

the customers. There was attached to this letter a

list of the foreign customers of Richfield Oil Com-

pany in Central and South America.

Said witness testified further as follows:

I next left Los Angeles for San Francisco on

October 4th. I left Los Angeles on that occasion

in company with Mr. Pope. Prior to my departure

from Los Angeles I had seen the blank acceptance

agreement as well as the forms of acceptances total-

ling $150,000 which were brought by Mr. Pope to

San Francisco on that occasion. We reached San

Francisco on Sunday morning, October 5th, and I

visited the bank with Mr. Pope on Monday morn-

ing. We saw Mr. Gilstrap and were in conference

with him about an hour. We had a general dis-

cussion in regard to the use of the acceptances, as

to the maturity of the drafts on customers. In the

conversation it was stated that 90 day acceptances

were the best to be used on account of the ready

sale of the same. We discussed that all foreign
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drafts must be arranged so that the proceeds of the

same would be in Wells Fargo 's hands prior to the

maturity of the acceptances. Mr. Gilstrap stated

that under no consideration would the 180 day

paper be used. We then discussed the shipment

which was going forward to Birla Bros, and the

180 day drafts which were on that account. Mr.

Gilstrap stated that those [240] drafts would not

be acceptable for two reasons—the length of time,

and also that he had received a credit report which

they did not believe was sufficiently good to allow

them to take it. I then reiterated my former con-

versation with Mr. Gilstrap, that if the acceptances

were used that it must be definitely understood

that it was a separate transaction from any other

transaction in a monetary way which Richfield

had with the Wells Fargo Bank. I was following

orders in that respect from Mr. McKee. Before

coming to San Francisco I had had a conversation

with Mr. McKee, who was a Vice President of

Richfield and Assistant to the Chairman of the

Board, regarding the subject matter of my visit

to San Francisco.

Mr. Pope delivered the signed acceptance agree-

ment and the $150,000 of signed acceptance forms

to Mr. Gilstrap.

I don't think there was anything said by Mr.

Gilstrap or by myself and Mr. Pope during that

conversation as to how the 180 day paper would be

handled.



vs. William C. McDiiffie 347

(Testimony of Robert L. Hall.)

Mr. Pope and I left San Francisco that evening

and returned to Los Angeles. I returned alone to

San Francisco the next night. I brought with me
the complete drafts and pajDcrs on the Birla Bros,

shipment. I brought also with me a letter signed

by Mr. Lyons which has been introduced in evi-

dence as Defendant's Exhibit "A". I also brought

with me the two letters of transmittal dated Oc-

tober 7, 1930, relating to the two shipments, to-

gether with the shipping documents and also the

bills of lading. When I reached San Francisco, I

went to Wells Fargo Bank and met Mr. Gilstrap.

Before coming to San Francisco, I had examined

the two letters of transmittal— the Lyons letter

and the documents accompanying the letters of

transmittal—so I was familiar mth them all. I

brought them over to the bank and had a con-

ference with Mr. Gilstrap on that occasion. He was

the only official of the bank with whom I had [241]

any conference on that date.

I presented the drafts and the entire folder with

the papers and stated that I wanted to get as much
money as I could, as much in acceptances cashed as

I could. Mr. Gilstrap stated he could only accept

Richfield acceptances covering sight drafts on

Birla. He then took the papers and released

$115,000, which as I remember covered the sight

drafts which were $119,000 odd. He gave me a

duplicate deposit slip. I immediately left the bank
and went down to the Postal Telegraph Company
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and teleplioted that deposit slip to Los Angeles

becanse I was instructed to get that money to Los

Angeles as near to ten o'clock as I could. I asked

Mr. Gilstrap if it were possible to include any of

the 180 day drafts under the acceptances, and he

said absolutely not. To the best of my knowledge

the only remark that was made as to what would

be done with the 180 day drafts was that Mr.

Gilstrap said when I turned over the entire papers

that he would send them all together to the cor-

respondent in Calcutta. I don't remember any-

thing having been said in the prior conversations

occurring between myself and Mr. Gilstrap re-

specting the collection of the 180 day drafts.

While Mr. Pope and I were together with Mr.

Gilstrap, he said that all drafts that were used for

acceptances must be paid and the proceeds be in

the Wells Fargo Bank at least one day before the

acceptances matured.

After having returned to Los Angeles I had a

number of conversations by telephone with Mr.

Gilstrap. Mr. Gilstrap paid a visit to Los Angeles

shortly after October 8, 1930, at my invitation.

Plaintiff then introduced in evidence a telegram

from Mr. R. L. Hall of the Richfield Oil Company
to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., dated

October 16, 1930, and a telegram from Mr.

Leuenberger of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. to R. L. Hall of Richfield Oil Company, dated

October 16, 1930, and the same were received in
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evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 119. The

telegram from R. L. [242] Hall to Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. requested that Mr.

Gilstrap visit the Richfield Oil Company at Los

Angeles, in order to establish closer relation be-

tween the bank and the Richfield Oil Company, and

to observe more closely the ox)erations of the Rich-

field Foreign Department. The telegram from Mr.

Leuenberger to Mr. Hall stated that Mr. Gilstrap

would be sent to Los Angeles.

Said witness testified further as follows: I saw

Mr. Gilstrap at Los Angeles on the Saturday morn-

ing following my wire of October 16th. On that

occasion I discussed with Mr. Gilstrap the Birla

shipment. I went over again with him the very

large cash expenditure which Richfield had to

make. I told him I was very sorry that he could

not use the 180 day Birla drafts, but that I hoped

that after 90 days had passed we could issue ac-

ceptances for the unexpired term. Mr. Gilstrap

stated that presumably that would be all right, but

that a new acceptance agreement would have to be

executed for the additional amount.

Approximately May 8, 1931, I telephoned to Mr.

Gilstrap at the request of Mr. Muller who was

Assistant General Sales Manager of Richfield. I

asked Mr. Gilstrap the cost to cable the proceeds

of the 180 day drafts when Birla had paid those

to his correspondent. He stated that the cost was
approximately $500. I reported this conversation
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to Mr. Miiller and a very few minutes afterwards

Mr. Gilstrap called me on the telephone. He stated

that Wells Fargo Bank was going to grab that

money. I asked him why and he stated that they

were going to take it, exercising a lien on it for

other indebtedness owed the bank. I stated that I

was very surprised since they had agreed not to

touch any of the collections of the Foreign Depart-

ment of the Eichfield Oil Company. He said he

was sorry but that was the decision of the bank.

The next day I went to San Francisco and con-

ferred with Mr. Gilstrap, Mr. Eisenbach and Mr.

Motherwell. I was with these gentlemen for prac-

tically all of two days. I told Mr. Gilstrap, ]Mr.

Eisenbach and Mr. Motherwell a]:>out my situation

with the Eichfield [243] Oil Company, that it was

on a commission basis, and that I had an interest

in all the collections. I refreshed their memory
that I had brought that up with them before and I

elaborated on this to a great extent. I stated to

Mr. Eisenbach that I understood there was an

agreement with Mr. McDuffie that any of the col-

lections would not be taken. I believe—I am posi-

tive that Mr. Eisenbach agreed with that statement,

but said Mr. Lipman had decided to change his

mind and effect the lien against these collections

that were coming in. At a meeting -^A^th Mr. Gil-

strap, Mr. Eisenbach and Mr. Motherwell, I re-

iterated all the statements that I had made to Mr.

Gilstrap and Mr. Eisenbach with reference to the
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way I understood the agreement. They did not

deny any of the statements which I made to them

respecting the negotiations occurring at the time

of the inception of this business, or respecting the

agreement with the receiver. They stated Mr.

Lipman was in the East and that he was the man
who would have to be conferred with for if the

bankers' lien was released it would have to be done

on his order. I remained in San Francisco for

about two days and the money was not released. I

then returned to Los Angeles, and that ended my
connection wdth this situation.

I have been ill for some time and was very

seriously ill two years ago. I am pretty near well

now.

Cross Examination:

That illness affected my nerves, but my nervous-

ness has been gradually disappearing. It was worse

in 1930 than in 1931. I don't think that illness af-

fected my memory. I believe my memory might

be affected as to details but would be refreshed in

checking up evidence. I do not think my memory
would be uncertain as to the order of the conver-

sations and as to the exact contents of them to

which I have testified. I am quite certain as to

the order of each event and as to the sequence of

my visits to the Wells Fargo Bank because I have

been careful to check up these visits. I have checked

up from the records of the Traffic Department of

the Richfield Oil Company. I did not refresh my
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[244] memory prior to the time of my deposition,

which was taken in September, 1931. Since the

giving of my deposition I have examined the rec-

ords of the Richfield Oil Company, including the

records of the Foreign Department and the rec-

ords of the Traffic Department. The correspond-

ence which I used in refreshing my memory has

been introduced in evidence. The correspondence

is approximately all the records I used. Prior to

testifying, I discussed this matter in great detail

with Mr. Ward Sullivan, counsel for the receiver,

and with Mr. Roche.

The occasion of my first visit to the Wells Fargo

Bank with reference to these matters was to turn

over the entire collections as far as possible to the

Wells Fargo Bank, the Richfield Oil Company be-

ing dissatisfied at that time with the method in

Avhich foreign collections were handled by the Se-

curity First National Bank of Los Angeles. The

date of that visit to the best of my recollection was

August 18, 1930. Mr. Pope was not with me on

that visit.

I gave a deposition on behalf of Plaintiff in this

action on or about the 30th day of September,

1931. In that deposition I testified that the oc-

casion of my first contact with Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. was during the month of Sep-

tember, 1930, the occasion of my contact being that

my department was having considerable difficulty on

service of collection of foreign bills, and that for

many years I had known the service of the Wells



vs. William C. 3IcDuffie 353

(Testimony of Robert L. Hall.)

Eargo Bank, considered in the export trade one of

the best foreign operators on the Coast.

In that deposition I further testified that at the

first meeting in connection with this business, Mr.

Gilstrap, Mr. Leuenberger and Mr. Hellman were

present at the conversation, and that Homer E.

Pope was with me from the Richfield Oil Company.

In examining the records of the Foreign Depart-

ment of Richfield Oil Company I determined that

Mr. Pope did not come to San Francisco mth me

on the occasion of my first visit, and an examina-

tion of the records of the Foreign Department

caused me to state [245] now that my visit to Wells

Eargo Bank was on or about the 17th day of

August, 1930. I have nothing that refreshes my
memory that Mr. Leuenberger was not present at

that conversation. My recollection at the present

time is that Mr. Gilstrap was present, and for a

short time, Mr. Hellman.

I don't think I stated to Mr. Gilstrap what my
connection with the Richfield Oil Company was. I

think he knew that.

At the taking of my deposition on September 30,

1931, I testified that I told Mr. Gilstrap that if

any form of acceptances were used it would be

absolutely understood that it was an entirely dis-

tinct transaction from other obligations of the

Richfield Oil Company; that I was a partner of

Richfield Oil Company in this foreign business;

that I had a personal interest in the money, and
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that I would make it an absolute understanding

that I would watch those acceptances and keep the

amount of the bills in excess of those acceptances.

At this conversation I believe I brought up the

question of acceptances, and told Mr. Gilstrap I

thought it was the best way of handling the Rich-

field Oil Company's business. To the best of my
knowledge, Mr. Gilstrap told me what the saving

would be by the use of acceptances.

When I stated in my deposition that I had a

partnership interest, I did not mean that I was

actually a partner in the Richfield Oil Company.

I stated at that meeting that I had a commission

interest. This commission depended upon the col-

lection of the proceeds of sales by Richfield. The

collection of my commission has been a question

of dispute between me and the receiver of the Rich-

field Oil Company for some time and is the subject

of a law suit involving $442,000. Proceeds of the

drafts which are involved in this litigation are not

involved in that suit. I would have an interest to a

[246] certain extent after they were paid to Rich-

field. My claim to part of the proceeds involved in

this litigation has been disallowed. An appeal is

being arranged by my attorney at the present time.

I certainly claim an interest in the proceeds of

these drafts and I claimed that interest ever since

and long before I learned that Wells Fargo Bank'

Avas not going to return the proceeds to the receiver.

I first told Wells Fargo Bank of my interest in the
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proceeds of these drafts at the meeting with Mr.

Gilstrap, Mr. Eisenbach and Mr. Motherwell after

I learned that AVells Fargo Bank was claiming

the proceeds under an agreement or right of set-

off. At the occasion of my first conversation with

Mr. Gilstrap I did not tell him the amount of my
interest. I told him I was operating on a com-

mission basis.

In my conversation with Mr. Gilstrap I de-

scribed the way we were shipping to Birla Bros.,

fifty per cent of the face of the invoice at sight and

fifty per cent 180 days after sight D/A, or docu-

ments against acceptance.

Upon the payment of the first draft and accept-

ance of the draft for the balance, the documents

entitling the consignee to the shipment would be

released to the buyer or the consignee.

I first saw Mr. Lipman on the first day after I

arrived in San Francisco in August. Before I saw

Mr. Lipman, Mr. Hellman had come into the con-

versation. In Mr. Hellman 's presence, Mr. Gilstrap

and I discussed the amount of the acceptances. I

didn't ask for any specific amount. I don't think

Mr. Hellman stated the amount he thought would

be recommended. I don't think anything was said

in the presence of Mr. Hellman about our 180 day

paper on Birla Bros.

Mr. Hellman suggested that I go downstairs to

see Mr. Lipman. He said he would like to have me
know Mr. Lipman and tell [247] him what I was
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planning to do and as I remember it how much he

would loan us. He said the method of making the

loan would rest with Mr. Lipman. I said nothing

in the presence of Mr. Hellman with respect to the

so-called separateness of this transaction as dis-

tinguished from other transactions of the Richfield

Oil Company. Mr. Hellman took me downstairs to

see Mr. Lipman on the occasion of my tirst visit to

the l)ank with reference to this matter.

I testified in my deposition that I had two fur-

ther conversations about the first of October with

officials of the Wells Fargo Bank, and that Mr.

Gilstrap and Mr. Leuenberger were present at the

first of these and that nobody was with me from

tlie Richfield Oil Company, and that after a few

minutes I went downstairs and was introduced to

Mr. Lipman; that Mr. Lipman stated to me that

Richfield Oil was obligated to the bank in a con-

siderable simi, but he was \\illing to grant accept-

ances from Richfield from $150,000 to $200,000 or

$200,000; and that I told Mr. Lipman that I had

told Mr. Gilstrap that if they granted us accept-

ances, it was an entirely distinct matter from any

financial oliligations, and I reiterated in my con-

versation that I had an interest and that the For-

eisfu Department was mine on a joint account. I

didn't have a chance to correct this deposition. I

looked it over for about five minutes and then had

to rush and catch my steamer. Having caught the

steamer in San Pedro and coming up here on it
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and staying aboard and coming over and giving

my deposition and rnshing back—I just made the

steamer as the gangplank was pulled aboard.

It is a fact that I did not see Mr. Lix)man on the

occasion of my visit in October, l)ut on the

occasion of my first visit in August. I was wrong

in that particular.

When I was taken to Mr. Lipman's office, Mr.

Hellman went downstairs with me. I l^elieve Mr.

GilstrajD went with us to the first floor. Mr. Gil-

strap parted from us, and Mr. Hellman took me
up and I waited until Mr. Lix3man got through with

a conversation he was having. I am not sure Mr.

Eisenbach was there when I went down there. Mr.

[248] Hellman introduced me to Mr. Lipman. Mr.

Hellman was not present with us during the inter-

view. To the best of my recollection he left after

introducing me. My conversation ^^-ith Mr. Lipman
lasted from five to ten minutes. AVe stood up

throughout the entire conference, and Mr. Lipman
was standing by his desk close to the door. Mr.

Lipman said he would give us $150,000 or $200,000

;

he may have said $250,000. He made no statement

as to how he knew what credit we were entitled to.

I did not ask him about any specific credit. I do

not remember that Mr. Hellman asked him for the

amount he would advance to Richfield. Mr. Lipman
said he knew about our drafts and collections and
had heard good reports from his Foreign Depart-

ment about our colleticons. He stated that he had
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loaned Riclifield large sums of money and also had

accommodated Mr. Talbot, and that under accept-

ance obligations he would grant a further credit

of $150,000 or $200,000, and see how it would work

out. He did not say that this was to be a separate

line of credit.

I don't think Mr. Lipman stated that he would

advance $150,000 or $200,000 upon the security of

our foreign collections—I think he used the word

"drafts". To the best of my recollection Mr.

Lipman 's statement was that he would advance

upon the security of our foreign drafts $150,000

to $200,000.

It was when Mr. Lipman completed his remarks

that I stated that this must be kept separate and

apart. It was immediately prior to my leaving his

office. As I remember it, I stated to Mr. Lipman

that it was to be understood that this further credit

was to be kept separate and be a distinct arrange-

ment with the Foreign Department.

After I left Mr. Lipman, I saw Mr. Gilstrap

again. I told him that I would have to take the

whole matter of acceptance forms up with the of-

ficials at Los Angeles and that he would be advised,

and that I could not, myself, pass upon the finan-

cial ar- [249] rangements. I believe I discussed

with him on that occasion what drafts would be

deposited by Richfield under the acceptance ar-

rangement. The substance of that conversation

wa^ that following out the use of short term ac-
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ceptances, that is, ninety days, all drafts would

have to come so that they would mature prior to

the maturing of the acceptances and ])e equal to or

a little in excess of the acceptances. This was fur-

ther discussed when Mr. Pope was with me at a

subsequent visit. At the first visit I don't think it

was mentioned that we could have as high as 180

day paper or paper of any length as security for

acceptances because the maturity of the accept-

ances was the important thing, and when 90 days

were up on the first acceptances the bank would

renew the acceptances, but this may have been

brought up later. As I remember the conversation,

Avhether it was the first or the second trip or

whether it was brought up by Mr. Gilstrap or Mr.

Hellman or Mr. Leuenberger, it was stated that

it was possible that new sets of drafts could be de-

posited with the bank and the acceptances might

be renewed. Also, in cases where the drafts under

the acceptances would not ])e paid, other drafts

which we had which were not available for accept-

ances could replace those drafts.

It was not said at these conferences that we
would only need one acceptance agreement to cover

various transactions. The only time that a con-

tinuous credit was mentioned was I lielieve by Mr.

Gilstrap at first. He said that it could be handled

on an acceptance or form a revolving or continuous

credit. My talk with Mr. Lipman was absolutely

distinct, that we would open a direct line of credit
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of $150,000 or $250,000, and he stated lie would

see how that would work out.

After returning to Los Angeles I called Mr.

Gilstrap on the phone and asked him to forward

trade acceptances and blanks forms of acceptances.

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to R. L.

Hall, care of Richfield Oil Company of California,

and said letter was received in evidence and

marked De- [250] fendant's Exhibit "D". Said

letter was dated October 1, 1930, and was in the

words and figures following:

"In accordance with your request made by

telephone today, we enclose forms of accept-

ances and acceptance agreements.

We have completed one specimen accept-

ance and one specimen acceptance agreement

for your guidance.

We understand that Our Mr. Eisenbach has

discussed the use of these acceptances with

your treasurer, Mr. R. W. McKee.

If you require any further information,

please do not hesitate to call upon us.

Yours very truly,"

Said witness testified further as follows:

Plaintiff's Exhibit 16, entitled "Acceptance

Agreement", in blank was enclosed mth the letter

marked Defendant's Exhibit "D". I saw Plain-

tiif's Exhibit 16 when it came to me and after it

w^as executed and also when Mr. Pope delivered
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it ill San Francisco. I have no recollection as to

whether $150,000 worth of acceptances were de-

livered to Mr. Gilstrap, but I presume they were

because Mr. Pope got a receipt for them. In my
deposition I testified that I came back with the ac-

ceptance forms signed in the amount of $115,000

and that they were divided up into eight drafts.

I was confused in my deposition.

Mr. Gilstrap said the credit report showed that

Birla Bros, was not financially strong enough and

that the credit report was not good enough. He
stated that on account of the length of time of the

drafts and also on account of the report which he

had received, they could not touch the 180 day

drafts. He stated they would advance only to the

amount of the sight drafts.

Mr. Leuenberger came into the conference and

I asked him whether he could handle the 180 day

drafts and he said he could not. He made some

remark about the credit report, saying it did not

look good.

To my knowledge, nothing was said by any of

the parties on October 6th with respect to the

blanks in the agreement. I am under the impres-

sion that something was stated by Mr. Gilstrap

that the [251] drafts going under the acceptance

forms would be distinctly set aside and placed in

a line or marked as being under the acceptance

agreement.

I never transmitted any list of drafts supposedly
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under the acceptance agreement to the Wells Fargo

Bank. I do not know that Mr. Pope ever trans-

mitted such a list.

Upon returning to Los Angeles on the night of

October 6th, I reported to Mr. McKee, the vice

president of Richfield, and Mr. Lyons, the Comp-

troller, the result of my visit to San Francisco, and

that this credit was in effect at San Francisco and

ready for operation. I then returned to San Fran-

cisco and was entrusted with three letters and

drafts and documents covering a shipment of goods

to Birla Bros, at Calcutta, India. I brought the

letter. Defendant's Exhibit "A". The change in the

maturity date of acceptances from 120 days to 90

days on this letter is in my handwriting. I be-

lieve this change was made in the Wells Fargo Bank

when I delivered the documents there.

The documents referred to in Mr. Lyons' letter

accompanied the two letters of transmittal dated

October 7th, being respectively Plaintiff's Exhibits

22 and 23. They are the documents referred to in

the two letters. Both sets of documents refer to

tlie Birla Bros, shipment, both shipments going out

on the steamer ''Silver Hazel." Both shipments

were covered by two sets of drafts, one sight draft

and one 180 day draft at sight. I delivered these

documents to Mr. Gilstrap at the Wells Fargo

Bank on October 8, 1930. There would be four

drafts, two on each shipment presented at that time

under the acceptance agreement.
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I testified in my deposition that at that time no

foreign drafts were presented to the bank for col-

lection.

As stated before in the taking of my deposition I

had no chance whatsoever to check any of my trips

or documents. I could make no agreement for the

Richfield Oil Company but it was understood that

the drafts under the acceptances signed 1)y Richfield

must be in an amount equal to or slightly in excess

of the amount of drafts on foreign customers. This

was not an understanding, it was the instructions

[252] given b}^ Mr. Gilstrap w^hen Mr. Pope and I

were in San Francisco on October 6, 1930.

All the shipping documents and drafts were for-

warded to the Wells Fargo Bank with a letter

similar to the letters of transmittal marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibits 22 and 23 or with wording practically

the same.

I don't remember whether Richfield received any

further communication from the Wells Fargo Bank
with respect to draft No. 43110, referred to in

Plaintiff's Exhibit 116.

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to William

C. McDuffie, Receiver, dated May 12, 1931, and said

letter was received in evidence and marked De-

fendant's Exhibit "E". Said letter referred to draft

No. 43110 dra\^m on Birla Bros. Ltd. in the sum
of $43,035.47, and stated that the remittance from
the foreign correspondent had been received and that
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the receiver's account had been credited with the

amount received. (It was conceded that this related

to a draft deposited after the receivership and was

credited to the receiver's account pursuant to an

agreement with him.)

After having been notified by Mr. Gilstrap by tele-

phone that the Wells Fargo Bank intended to take

the proceeds of the 180 day drafts on Birla Bros.,

I went to San Francisco and called on Mr. Gil-

strap at the Wells Fargo Bank and protested against

this action of the bank, telling him that it was

unfair to Richfield and unfair to me. I brought up

every argument on the agreement which I had

with Wells Fargo in regard to the separateness

and distinct part of the acceptance transaction with

the Wells Fargo Bank. I put it both on a business

basis and on a personal basis. I stated at the argu-

ment with him that under no consideration could he

exercise a bankers' lien under the acceptance agree-

ment; that it was not included and that it could

not be held under that acceptance agreement. I

brought up the point of my situation, that I had

the claim pending against Richfield and it ran into

large figures. Mr. Gilstrap stated that it was some-

thing that was beyond his control, that it was ex-

ercised on the instructions of Mr. Lipman and that

he had nothing to do with it whatsoever and that it

would have to be [253] taken up with Mr. Lipman
in order to have the bankers' lien removed. Mr.

Gilstrap introduced me to Mr. Eisenbach and I
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told liim it was unfair and unjust to me, to the

Richfield Oil Company and to Mr. McDuffie. I

later met Mr. Motherwell. I did not tell him that

I knew the bank had a right to do this thing, but I

used every argument possible as a business argu-

ment as to the injustice of using the acceptance

agreement to exercise a bankers' lien. Then I went

into my personal situation and asked them as a

favor to me to have the bankers' lien removed.

Redirect Examination

:

At the conference of May 8, 1931, I referred to the

fact that the acceptances for which the drafts had

been turned over to the bank had been paid in full,

and the bank officials said that they knew this. I

was finally told that it was absolutely impossible to

have the bankers' lien removed.

In the course of my conversations with Mr. Gil-

strap, he brought up that it was possible to be able

to renew acceptances, but the Richfield Oil Company
on renewals must place new foreign drafts to

cover the amount of the renewed acceptances. Noth-

ing was said in that conversation respecting the re-

newal of an acceptance agreement. Nothing was

said by the bank officials to me that if the accep-

tances were in fact paid, new acceptances could l)e

issued under the agreement.

On my deposition, in response to a question by

Mr. Dinkelspiel, I stated that I was employed by

Richfield to organize a foreign or export depart-
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ment on a guaranteed monthly drawing account and

a fixed commission basis, and that that Avas the

IDartnership to which I referred.

I was notified of the taking of my deposition one

or two days before the steamer sailed from San

Pedro. My deposition was taken in San Francisco

the next morning after the boat arrived. Prior to

making the deposition I had had no opportunity to

refresh my recollection in any way.

Recross Examination

:

After the telephone conversation with Mr. Gil-

strap with [254] respect to the proceeds of the Birla

Bros, drafts on May 8, 1931, I believe Mr. McDuffie

immediately cabled the bankers of the Richfield

Oil Company at Calcutta to stop payment to the

Wells Fargo Bank on the proceeds of these drafts.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence the Proof of

Claim filed by Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. in the Richfield Oil Company receivership pro-

ceeding which was entitled "The Republic Supply

Company of California, a corporation, C^omplainant,

A'ersus Richfield Oil Company of California, a cor-

poration, Defendant," and said document was re-

ceived in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit

120. Said Proof of Claim stated that Richfield Oil

Company of California was indebted to Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. in the sum of $636,189.95

for moneys loaned to the Richfield Oil Company of

California, and that this indebtedness was evi-
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denced by a promissory note dated July 12, 1930, to-

gether with interest at the rate of 6% per anmmi.

Said Proof of Claim also set out a further indebt-

edness in the sum of $147.67 for miscellaneous

amounts expended on behalf of Richfield Oil Com-

pany. Said Proof of Claim further stated that there

were no offsets or counterclaims to said debt, that

no Judgment had been rendered for the indebted-

ness, and that no claim to preference in payment

from the receiver had been made. Said proof of

claim further stated that no securities were held

by claimant for said indebtedness. Said document

was signed by F. I. Raymond, affiant, as Vice Pres-

ident and Cashier of Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. The date of said document was March

28, 1931.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a Proof of

Claim filed in said receivership proceeding by Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. and said document

was received in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 121. Said Proof of Claim was signed by A. J.

Callahan, Assistant Trust Officer of Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. and was dated March 28,

1931. Said document stated that Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California was indebted to Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. in the [255] sum of $1,-

028.85 for services rendered as registrar of the pre-

ferred and common stock of the Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California. Said document further stated

that there were no offsets or counterclaims to said
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debt, that no Judgment had been rendered thereon,

and no claim to preference in payment from the re-

ceiver was made except with reference to the sum

of $846.50 which was represented by a check drawn

by Richfield Oil Company in favor of Wells Fargo

Bank and returned to the Wells Fargo Bank with

the notation ''Refer to Maker." Said Proof of claim

further stated that no securities were held by claim-

ant for said indebtedness.

Thereupon plaintiff rested.

DEFENDANT'S CASE.

W. J. GILSTRAP

was called as a witness for defendant and testified

as follows:

I am Assistant Cashier and Assistant Manager

of the Foreign Department of the Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust C^o. I have been with the Wells

Fargo Bank for about 15 years and in the Foreign

Department for the entire time. I was Assistant

Cashier and Assistant Manager of the Foreign De-

partment in the fall of 1930. I am familiar with

the various methods of doing business of foreign ex-

portation. Prior to the fall of 1930, we had had some

business with the Richfield Oil Company of a letter

of credit nature. In the course of these transactions

I met Mr. Hall of the Richfield Oil Company.
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In the latter part of August, 1930, Mr. Hall came

to San Francisco and called on me. I should say this

was in the neighborhood of August 22d, or within

a day or two of that time. [256] During the first

part of the conversation only Mr. Hall and I were

present. Mr. Hall said he was dissatisfied with the

treatment he was receiving in connection with his

foreign collections from the bank with w^hich he

was then placing them, and that he intended, pro-

viding we were willing to take on the business,

to give us all of their collection business. I sug-

gested to Mr. Hall that if the business was an ex-

tension of credit it might be more economically han-

dled from Richfield 's point of view by means of bank

acceptances rather than by a direct discounting of

foreign collections. I am positive that I suggested

that to Mr. Hall and that Mr. Hall did not suggest

it to me. I called Mr. Hellman, the vice president

in charge of our Foreign Department, into the

conversation and reviewed the conversation that had

taken place between Mr. Hall and myself. Mr. Hell-

man suggested that rather than to state a line that

he would give Richfield, provided we would give

them any line, he preferred to have Mr. Lipman,

the president of the bank, pass upon whether or not

we would do so.

Mr. Hall made no statement to me on this oc-

casion with respect to any interest which he had

in the foreign business of Richfield Oil Company.

He made no statement to me on this occasion
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with respect to keeping any business of the For-

eign Department separate from other business of

Richfield Oil Company with the bank.

Mr. Hellman then took Mr. Hall downstairs with

him. When Mr. Hall returned he stated that he

had seen Mr. Lipman and that he was returning

to Los Angeles to submit to his superiors for their

decision the question as to whether the export lousi-

ness and the acceptance credit would be availed of.

I was informed either by Mr. Hall or by Mr. Hell-

man that the amount of the line which Mr. Lipman

had designated was about $150,000 in addition to

the indebtedness, [257] the line which Richfield

already had.

When Mr. Hall returned after his interview with

Mr. Lipman he made no statement with respect to

his having an interest in the foreign business of the

Richfield Oil Company or that these transactions

with the Foreign Department of the Richfield Oil

Company were to be kept separate from other busi-

ness Richfield had with the bank.

So far as I know I only remember seeing Mr. Hall

on one occasion in August, 1930.

I wrote the letter, Defendant's Exhibit "D",

w^hich refers to a telephone conversation with Mr.

Hall. In that telephone conversation he said that

Richfield had decided to avail themselves of the

acceptance credit and asked me to send down the

necessary forms for their signature. The form of

acceptances and the acceptance agreement were sent.
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On October 6th, Mr. Hall, accompanied by Mr.

Pope, came to my desk. Mr. Hall told me that Mr.

Pope had been sent to educate himself with every

detail of the acceptance business; that it was some-

thing entirely new to him as it was also to the

Richfield Oil Company, and that they wanted Mr.

Pope to familiarize himself with every detail of

it so that he could handle their end of the arrange-

ment. Mr. Pope had with him the acceptance agree-

ment marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 16 and the accep-

tances which are in evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibits

17 to 20 inclusive. Mr. Pope handed the acceptance

agreement and the acceptances to me.

I told him that the acceptance credit which we

had granted Richfield was a continuous one, that

is, a revolving one, which might be availed of by

them to an extent not exceeding $150,000 in accep-

tances outstanding at any one time; that the ac-

ceptance agreement which he had given us was

intended to cover any [258] acceptances which might

later be executed by us, within a limit of $150,000

outstanding at any one time; that the acceptance

agreement did not stipulate the exact amount of

acceptances, that is the exact amount for which each

acceptance was drawn, because we did not know nor

did they know nor did any one know in what

amount the acceptances would be issued and when
they would be issued. That would be dependent

upon the collections which later would be forwarded

to us. Likewise, no mention could be made, as I told
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Mr. Pope, of the collections which were the se-

curit}^ for this particular credit, because for the

same reason neither they nor we knew exactly what

collections would later be sent us. Rather than have

them have to execute a new acceptance agreement

each time that a new acceptance was asked for or

each time that they sent us a new collection, I ex-

plained to Mr. Pope that this one agreement was

expected to be a blanket one. I also explained to

Mr. Pope that the reason the drafts were to be

drawn at 90 days sight was because a ninety day

sight draft commands a better rate of discount in

the open market than would one of a longer ma-

turity.

In the course of that conversation I gave Mr.

Hall the receipt marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 21.

As Mr. Pope said he was entirely unfamiliar

with it, and as Mr. Hall indicated that he was, I

explained to them in detail exactly how the ac-

ceptances would be executed by us and then how

they would be used by us and discounted and the

proceeds credited to the account of the Richfield

Oil Company, or held at the disposal of the Rich-

field Oil (^ompany, and how the acceptances would

ordinarily later find their way into the hands of

some investor in the open market; that the ac-

ceptances would on their due date be presented to

us for payment; that as stated in the agreement

the Richfield Oil Company must provide us with

funds to meet the matur- [259] ing acceptances at
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least one day before their maturity. Those funds,

of course, might come from the proceeds of collec-

tions which were the security for the acceptances,

or in the event of any deficiency, that is to say, not

sufficient proceeds being received at the time we

would request the amount necessary to retire the

acceptances in our hand, that any deficiency must

be made up by the Richfield Oil Company. I did

not state that the proceeds from the drafts which

were security for the acceptances would have to

be received in San Francisco at least one day prior

to the maturity of the acceptances. I stated that the

acceptances were to be paid or had to be paid by

us on their due date to the holder of the accep-

tances, and that one day prior to the maturity of the

acceptances we must be placed in funds sufficient to

meet the maturing acceptances by the Richfield Oil

Company.

I also explained to Mr. Pope that if for any rea-

son the proceeds of the bills that might be deposited

with us were not received by us in time to meet

any maturing acceptances, the deficiency that the

Richfield Oil Company might have to make good

might be in part or in whole obtained by renewal

acceptances either against bills which were orig-

inally put in as security for the original acceptances

or against new bills which might later have been

deposited; in other words, on renewal acceptances

against some bills against which the first 90 day
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acceptances were issued, or as against any later bills

that might have been deposited.

Either Mr. Hall or Mr. Pope then stated that

they were preparing a shipment to Birla Bros. I

believe that in some previous conversation Mr. Hall

had outlined to me in a general way the business

that he did with Birla Bros. They stated they wanted

to raise as much money as possible against this

particular shipment, and asked how much we would

advance against the shipment. [260]

Defendant's Exhibit ''B" was a cable received by

us on October 6th from our correspondent bank

at Calcutta. It was received before m}^ conversation

with Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope.

After Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope requested that we
advance against the shipment as much as we could,

they said that one-half of the shipment was drawn

for at sight and one-half would be drawn for at

180 days after sight. I showed both Mr. Pope and
Mr. Hall the report that we had received from

our correspondent bank concerning the standing

of Birla Bros, and told them that it was in

our oj^inion not a good rej^ort. Mr. Hall stated

that Birla Bros, were in his opinion a very

good house. I told them that I could not name
the amount which we would advance against

the shipment and that I would have to consult with

the other officials in the Foreign Department. I

spoke first to ^Ir. Hellman. Before seeing Mr. Hall

and Mr. Pope again, I spoke to Mr. Leuenberger.

Mr. Leuenberger accompanied me to my desk where
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Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope were seated. He informed

Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope that we would advance the

approximate amount of the sight drafts which were

drawn for fifty per cent of the value of the ship-

ment. Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope still endeavored to

have us advance more against it, but the decision as

Mr. Leuenberger said was that we would advance

the approximate amount of the sight drafts which

amounted to about fifty per cent of the value of the

shipment.

Nothing was said on the occasion of this confer-

ence with respect to 180 day paper or with respect

to taking 180 day paper on any other basis than

short term drafts.

Nothing was said on the occasion of this confer-

ence by Mr. Hall or by Mr. Pope that these trans-

actions with our foreign department were to be

kept separate and apart from other transactions

with the Wells Fargo Bank, nor was anything said

at this [261] conference that Mr. Hall had an in-

terest in the business of the Foreign Department of

the Richfield Oil Company.

I told them that acceptances would be executed

by us as they were required by Richfield up to the

extent of not exceeding $150,000 outstanding at any

one time, provided that at the time of their request

w^e had collections to an amount of at least the

amount of acceptances outstanding and the amount

that they then requested be satisfactory to us to

allow of our executing additional acceptances.

There was no discussion at this conference with
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respect to the financial condition of Richfield Oil

Company. There was no discussion of that kind in

any of the conferences.

I next saw Mr. Hall two days later, on October

8th, at the Wells Fargo Bank. He brought two let-

ters referring to four drafts—2 at 180 days and

2 at sight, on Birla Bros, with the shipping docu-

ments and a letter asking us to execute against the

shipment $115,000 worth of acceptances. He deliv-

ered to me the letter marked Defendant's Exhibit

"A". The original of the documents marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibits 22 and 23 accompanied by Defend-

ant's Exhibit "A", were delivered to me by Mr.

Hall at the same time. The 4 drafts, 2 at sight and

2 at 180 days, on Birla Bros., accompanied the

letter, together with invoices referring to 2 ship-

ments, insurance policies and original bills of lad-

ing covering each of the 2 shipments. No other

documents were given to me by Mr. Hall at that

time. We executed $115,000 worth of acceptances

and gave Mr. Hall a credit memorandum to the ac-

count of the Richfield Oil Company showing a credit

to their account in the amount of $115,000 less the

discount and commission charges.

Nothing was said this morning with respect to

keeping these transactions separate and apart from

any other transactions [262] of the Richfield Oil

Company, nor did Mr. Hall make any statement

that he had some sort of an interest in the business

of the Foreign Department of the Richfield Oil

Company.
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He made no comments whatsoever with respect

to Defendant's Exhibit "A".

We sent the 4 drafts with the accompanying

shipping documents to our correspondent bank,

Netherlands Trading Society, at Calcutta, for col-

lection.

The Wells Fargo Bank has permanent records

relating to the drafts deposited and transmitted

by it to its foreign correspondent for collection.

This record is a copy of the remittance letter ad-

dressed to the correspondent bank, which contains

a detailed description of the drafts and the docu-

ments and everything pertaining to it. The form

which we use for our collections and the blanks

which we transmit are all numbered consecutively.

These records are kept under my supervision in

the Foreign Department. We kept records with

reference to the Birla Bros, shipment.

This dociunent which purports to be a carbon copy

of a document bearing the numbers 46831, and en-

titled "File correspondence" is our permanent rec-

ord with reference to the transmittal of Richfield Oil

Company's draft No. 103006a to Birla Bros. Ltd. for

the sum of $55,900.76. It is a carbon copy of our

letter which was forw^arded to our bank corre-

spondent at Calcutta. The words "Security for ac-

ceptance, proceeds to Clemo" written in pencil in

the right-hand corner of the document are in the

handwriting of Mr. Desmond, a clerk employed in

our Foreign Department. He was employed in the
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Foreign Department at the time this transaction

took place. That entry was made at the same time

this document was written and it was made under

my direction. It was made at the same time as the

forwarding of these drafts. [263]

At this point counsel for plaintilf was given per-

mission to cross examine the witness on the pencilled

notations which appear on this document. In this

respect said witness testified as follows

:

The pencilled notations were placed on these docu-

ments by a clerk in the Foreign Department by the

name of Desmond. His desk is approximately 25 or

30 feet apart from my desk. His work is solely con-

fined to foreign collections. I had knowledge of the

typing on this document. I did not actually see it

typed. I did not actually see Mr. Desmond or any

one else write these words upon this draft. This

document was never in the possession of Mr. Hall

at all. It was a document prepared in the Foreign

Department of the Bank after Mr. Hall had turned

the drafts over to me. Eliminating the typing upon

this document, it is nothing more or less than a

form, and at the time this particular document

was used we had a number of such forms in the

Foreign Department of the bank. I do not recall

having had this document in my hand after it had

been typed, but I had seen the original going

out to the bank.

I cannot definitely say when for the first time

this particular document came under my observa-
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tion. I could not say whether it came within my
observation within two or three months after the

original transmittal letter was sent. I could not

definitely say when I saw^ that after it was wantten.

It is impossible for me to say now when for the

first time approximately I saw this document. The

first time I can definitely say I saw it was when

this suit w^as discussed. That was possibly three

or four weeks ago. I am quite sure I saw this docu-

ment three or four weeks ago. When I said that I

did not know when I first saw this document^ I

knew that I had seen it three or four weeks ago,

but I did not know that that was the first time

I had seen it. Until three or four weeks ago, I

did not know the words appearing on this docu-

ment in lead pencil had been placed on the docu-

ment.

On direct examination said witness testified fur-

ther [264] as follows:

I gave our counsel this document at the time we
were preparing for trial on the first calling of this

case. That was several weeks ago. At that time it

had on it in pencil the words '^ Security for accep-

tance, proceeds to Clemo." I gave the instructions

to Mr. Desmond with respect to putting that lan-

guage on the document at the same time that I

handed the draft to him to write the schedule.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, "I gave the instructions to Mr. Des-

mond," was objected to by counsel for com-
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plainant on the ground it was incompetent, ir-

relevant and immaterial and not binding on

complainant. Objection was overruled and ex-

cei)tion noted.)

Tlie original of this document is in the hands of

the Calcutta correspondent. This docimient is the

carbon copy for the bank's permanent record and is

the record which is kept by the bank with respect

to all collections forwarded to foreign countries. It

is a custom in the Foreign Department of the Wells

Fargo Bank to make notations upon the opening

of a new series of transactions. This was the first

transaction we had had with Richfield and I wanted

to l:!e sure there could be no mistake made about

these bills being security for acceptances, and as

an initial transaction we w^anted to be sure to start

it correctly.

(Counsel for complainant moved to strike out

the foregoing testimony commencing with the

words, ''This was the first transaction," on

the ground it was the conclusion of the wit-

ness, argumentative, and not responsive to the

question. Objection was overruled and excep-

tion noted.)

Defendant then offered in evidence the document

hereinabove referred to and the same was received

in evidence and marked Defendant's Exhibit "F".
At this point, however, the pencilled memorandum
was excluded from evidence for the reason that
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it had not been sufficiently authenticated. (Tliis

pencilled memorandum was subsequently admitted

in evidence after having been authenticated l)y the

witness Desmond, as will hereinafter appear.) Said

document was dated October 8, 1930, and bore the

numbers 46831, and was denominated "File corre-

spondence." It was a copy of a letter sent to Nether-

lands Trading Society stating that draft No. 10.3006a

in the sum of $55,900.76, drawn on Birla Bros. Ltd.

at sight was enclosed for col- [265] lection, and di-

rected that when paid, remittance should be made

to Chase National Bank, New York, for the credit

of the account of Wells Fargo Bank. It also stated

that the customer of the bank was Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California.

Defendant then offered in evidence another docu-

ment similar to that marked Defendant's Exhibit

"F", and the same was received in evidence and

marked Defendant's Exhibit "G". Said document

was in the same form as that marked Defend-

ant's Exhibit "F" with the exception that it ])ore

the number 46832, and referred to the 180 day draft

on Birla Bros., No. 103006b. in the sum of $55,-

900.75. A pencilled notation to the same effect as that

appearing on Defendant's Exhibit "F" was ex-

cluded, subject to further identification, as herein-

above set forth with respect to Defendant's Exhibit

"F".

Defendant then offered in evidence another docu-

ment similar to that marked Defendant's Exhibit
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"F'', and the same was received in evidence and

marked Defendant's Exhibit '^H". Said document

was in the same form as that marked Defendant's

Exhibit "F" with the exception that it bore the

number 46833, and referred to the sight draft on

Birla Bros., No. 103004, in the sum of $63,950. A
pencilled notation to the same effect as that appear-

ing on Defendant's Exhibit '^F" was excluded, sub-

ject to further identification, as hereinabove set

forth with respect to Defendant's Exhibit '^F".

Defendant then offered in evidence another docu-

ment similar to that marked Defendant's Exhibit

"F", and the same was received in evidence and

marked Defendant's Exhibit "I". Said document

was in the same form as that marked Defendant's

Exhibit ^'F" with the exception that it bore the

number 46834, and referred to the 180 day draft

on Birla Bros., No. 103005, in the sum of $65,950.

A pencilled notation to the same effect as that

appearing on Defendant's Exhibit ''F" was ex-

cluded, subject to further identi- [266] fication as

hereinabove set forth with respect to Defendant's

Exhibit "F".

(Counsel for complainant objected to intro-

duction of the foregoing Defendant's Exhibits

^'F", 'Tt", ''H" and "I" upon the ground

they were incompetent, irrelevant and imma-
terial, not binding on complainant, self-serving,

and no foundation laid. Objection was over-

ruled and exception noted.)
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Said witness testified fnrther as follows:

Accompanying the original of these documents

were the drafts to which the documents referred,

which were sent to our correspondent in Calcutta,

India.

Shortly thereafter, we began to receive certain col-

lection items from Richfield Oil (^ompany. The next

occasion on which we heard from Richfield Oil C^om-

pany was upon receipt of the letter marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 26, referring to draft No. 103009. Sub-

sequently there was handed to us with letters of

transmittal a great volume of drafts drawn upon

various persons in foreign countries by Richfield

Oil (^ompany, and after receipt of the letters of

transmittal we issued deposit receipts in the same

form as Plaintiff's Exhibit 24. These documents

contained no differentiating memoranda or lan-

guage, and all drafts were in substantially the same

form as the four drafts on Birla Bros, first de-

posited. The letter of transmittal, dated January 8,

1931, being Plaintiff's Exhibit 82, refers to the

drafts drawn by Richfield on Birla Bros., Xo.

13107 and No. 13106 for the sum of $11,107.50 at

sight and $23,607.50 at 180 days sight. These docu-

ments were received by us with the letter of trans-

mittal in the same form as the previous letters. At
that time, namely, January 8, 1931, the Richfield Oil

Company had not paid the entire amount of the

acceptances.
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About the 16th of October, 1930, at Mr. Hall's

I'equest, I went to Los Angeles. No business was

transacted while I was down there. Mr. Hall showed

iiie no list of drafts. He simply showed me the

manner in which they prepared the documents, what

a particular [267] man's duty was, and that they

made a great effort to keep everything in as good

order as it was possible to keep it.

Mr. Hall made no statement to me on that visit

to Los Angeles that he had an interest in the busi-

ness of the Foreign Department of the Richfield

Oil Company, nor did he say anything on that oc-

casion that all the transactions with the Foreign

Department of Richfield Oil Company were to be

kept separate and apart from other transactions of

the Richfield Oil Company.

Referring to Plaintiff's Exhibit 28, being a let-

ter from jNIr. Lyons to us speaking about a draft

reserve of $9,734.16, I understood the use of the

words ''Draft Reserve," although it is a term that

we do not generally use. These words had not

been used in any of the conferences held with the

officials of the Richfield Oil Company prior to Oc-

tober 13, 1930. Subsequently in our correspondence

with Richfield we adopted their verbiage.

Prior to the deposit of the two Birla Bros,

drafts with the letter of January 8, 1931, one of

which is in dispute in this litigation, nothing was
said by any of the officials of the Richfield Oil

Company with respect to the deposit of the drafts
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nor was there any correspondence or any conversa-

tions that in any manner differentiated them from

any other drafts in this transaction.

I wrote the letter dated December 16, 1930,

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 93. The proceeds of the

drafts therein mentioned were applied in anticipa-

tion of the earliest maturing acceptances. We use

the term "anticipation of acceptances" to apply

to any funds which are received by us prior to the

actual maturing of the acceptances and which are

to be used to meet the acceptances upon maturity.

The acceptance is not actually taken in and can-

celled on that date because it is in the hands of some

investor in the open market. It is presented at its

maturity for payment. [268]

Plaintiff's Exhibits 95, announcing receipt of the

proceeds on draft No. 103010; 97, referring to re-

ceipts of draft No. 113014 ; 98, referring to proceeds

of draft No. 103009; 99, referring to proceeds of

draft No. 113013; 100, referring to the proceeds of

draft No. 113001 ; 101, referring to the proceeds of

draft No. 113023; 103, referring to the proceeds

of drafts No. 123007, No. 113012, and No. 103030;

104, referring to the proceeds of drafts No. 113010,

No. 113017 and No. 13007; 107, referring to the

proceeds of drafts No. 113009, No. 113018 and No.

123008 and No. 103012, were all written by me, and
they all refer to the collection of drafts and the

application of the proceeds against acceptances. Be-

fore I wrote the letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit
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107, which states, ''We are holding in accordance

with the notice given you by our wire of January

16th," I spoke to Mr. Helhnan and after my con-

versation with him I wrote the letter. Thereafter

A¥ells Fargo Bank received a telegram, Plaintiff's

Exhibit 109. Thereafter we sent the telegram marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 110, and received a letter, marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 106. This letter requested that

we transfer to the receiver the balance of $7,749.50.

I turned that letter over to Mr. Hellman, who is

vice president in charge of the Foreign Department

and who within certain limitations makes deci-

sions for the Foreign Department. After turning the

matter over to him, I received instructions from

him with reference to sending the proceeds to the

Richfield Oil Company, and thereupon I wrote the

letter which is marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 108, and

accompanying that letter is an announcement that

we were crediting the proceeds therein mentioned to

the account of Eichfield.

The proceeds of certain drafts which were paid

prior to January 1, 1931, were credited to the ac-

count of Richfield. I don't remember any definite re-

quest on the part of Richfield to turn these [269]

proceeds over to them. Apart from those proceeds

the balance of all other proceeds of drafts were

applied on account of acceptances in the order in

which the proceeds were received.

On May 8, 1931, Mr. Hall telephoned me from Los

Angeles inquiring as to how much it would cost
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to transfer tlie proceeds of certain Birla Bros,

drafts by cable rather than by mail. I called Mr.

Hall again later. Between the two calls, I saw Mr.

Hellman and discussed the contents of the conversa-

tion had with Mr. Hall. I called Mr. Hall back on

the telephone and told him that the ])ank had

decided to take the proceeds of the two Birla Bros.

drafts deposited on October 8th and apply them

against Richfield 's indebtedness. Mr. Hall said he

was surprised and wanted to know if there was

not some way in which this decision could be re-

versed. Several days later, Mr. Hall came to San

Francisco and came to my desk in the Foreign De-

partment. The substance of his conversation was to

the effect :

'

' Do you know what you are doing to me,

do 3'ou know what you are doing to the Richfield

Oil Company by taking these funds? I have an

interest in these transactions and they were sup-

posed to be kept separate, and I have come up here

now to have these funds restored to Richfield if it

is at all possible."

I told Mr. Hall there was nothing I could do and

called Mr. Hellman into the conversation. Mr. Hall

repeated the plea to Mr. Hellman that he had made
to me. Mr. Hellman told him there was nothing he

could do and I took Mr. Hall down to see Mr.

Eisenbach and he repeated his plea to Mr. Eisen-

bach. Mr. Eisenbach, Mr. Hall and I wTut to Mr.

Motherwell's office and Mr. Motherwell told Mr.

Hall that nothing he could say would change our
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minds. During these conferences Mr. Hall said that

he had an interest in these transactions and that

they were supposed to have been kept separate.

Prior to this visit of Mr. Hall's in May, 1931, these

statements had never been made in my presence or

to me at any time. The first [270] time I heard

either of these statements was in May of 1931, on

the occasion of Mr. Hall's visit to Wells Fargo

Bank.

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to William C.

McDuffie, Receiver, dated May 11, 1931, and said

letter was received in evidence and marked Defend-

ant's Exhibit 'M". Said letter was in the words and

figures as follows:

''We refer to your bill No. 103012 drawn on

Bueno y Cia., Cali, Colombia, for $2,441.00.

Several payments were made on account of

this bill and there remained an unpaid balance

of $471.00. This balance has now been paid and
the net returns amount to $469.06, particulars

as follows:

Balance paid $471.00

Less correspondents charges 1.94

$469.06

In accordance with our telephone conversa-

tion, we are applying this sum against your
indebtedness to us.

Yours very truly,
'

'
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Defendant then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to William

C. McDuffie, Receiver, dated May 19, 1931, and said

letter was received in evidence and marked Defend-

ant's Exhibit "K". Said letter was in the words

and figures as follows:

"We refer to your bill No. 123014 drawn on

Ricardo Valezques, Cali, for $1219.00.

This bill has now been paid and the net re-

turns amount to $1245.11 as per attached advice.

We are applying this amount against your in-

debtedness to us.

Yours very truly,"

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter from

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. to William

C. McDuffie, Receiver, dated June 16, 1931, and said

letter was received in evidence and marked Defend-

ant's Exhibit "L". Said letter was in the words

and figures as follows: [271]

''We refer to your bills Nos. 103005 and

103006 B. drawn on Birla Bros., Ltd., for $63,-

950.00 and $58,900.75, respectively.

These bills have now been paid and the net

returns amount to $119,512.54, particulars as

per slips attached.

We are applying this amount against the in-

debtedness to us of the Richfield Oil Co. of

California.

Very truly yours,"
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Said witness testified further as follows:

The other 180 day Birla Bros, draft in the sum

of approximately $23,000, deposited on January 8,

1931, was paid and the proceeds thereof retained in

the same manner by Wells Fargo Bank.

The 2 drafts represented in Defendant's Exhibit

''L", the drafts referred to in Defendant's Exhibit

"J" and Exhibit "K" and the 180 day Birla Bros,

draft deposited January 8, 1931, constitute the

five drafts in dispute in this litigation.

Cross Examination:

Between the 8th day of October, 1930, and the

8th day of May, 1931, Wells Fargo Bank sent no

communication of any kind to Eichfield Oil (Com-

pany or to the receiver of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany indicating that the bank was holding the 180

day sight drafts deposited with us either as security

for any outside indebtedness or that the bank in-

tended to exercise a bankers lien as against the

proceeds. Wells Fargo Bank never wrote to any

of the officials of the Richfield Oil Company indicat-

ing that the bank was holding either of the 180

day drafts as security under the acceptance agree-

ments or as security for any of the acceptances, nor

w^as there any such communication respecting the

180 day Birla Bros, draft that was deposited on the

9th day of January, 1931. There were no telegrams

relating to the 180 day drafts indicating that the

bank was claiming any lien upon these drafts or
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that these drafts were being held as security for

the acceptances. In none of the frequent telephone

conversations [272] occurring between me and Mr.

Hall did I ever mention that the bank was claim-

ing that any one of these three 180 day Birla Bros,

drafts were being held by the bank as security

under the acceptances or the acceptance agreement.

The Wells Fargo Bank keeps a book showing the

amount of acceptances executed. When an accep-

tance agreement is accepted or received by the bank,

no entry is made in any book kept by the bank

showing the receipt of the acceptance agreement.

There is no book kept by the bank in which is

entered the security which the bank receives as

security under the acceptance agreements or as

security for the payment of acceptances. There are

two books, one in which the liability of the various

concerns is tabulated, and another which is entitled

an acceptance register. The first book would show

the liability of Richfield Oil Company as it drew

drafts for acceptances by the bank. Aside from these

two books and aside from the carbon copies of the

letters of transmittal sent by our Foreign Depart-

ment to our foreign correspondents, there is no rec-

ord of any kind kept in the bank showing the se-

curities, if any, that are delivered to the bank to

be used under the acceptance agreement or as se-

curity for acceptances executed and released by the

bank.
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I knew that for a considerable period prior to the

months of August, September and October, 1930,

the Richfield Oil Company had borrowed money

from the Wells Fargo Bank, and I knew that dur-

ing that period of time the Richfield Oil Company

had borrowed money without putting up security

with the bank. I knew that at the time these pre-

liminary negotiations occurred to which I have tes-

tified there was a substantial indel^tedness outstand-

ing payable by the Richfield Oil Company to the

bank which would mature some time during the

early part of October, 1930. I knew that that in-

debtedness aggregated approximately $625,000.

Prior to October 6, 1930, I [273] did not know of

any security which the bank held to secure the pay-

ment of that indebtedness.

Mr. Hall did not visit the bank during the month

of August, except upon the one occasion testified to

]iy me. I know that that was slightly after the mid-

dle of the month. I made no memorandum of the

visit paid to me on that occasion. I made no mem-
orandum at any time with respect to the conference

occurring between me and Mr. Hall. As Manager

of the Foreign Department I have been kept pretty

Ixisy during the last several years. Between the date

on which Mr. Hall first came to see me in the month
of August, 1930, and the commencement of this

trial, I have undoubtedly attended to many thou-

sands of transactions involving transactions with

the Foreign Department. I have also come in con-
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tact with many thousands of people with each of

whom I have had conferences, sometimes lasting

a considerable period.

No entry of any kind was ever made by me re-

specting any of these conferences with Mr. Hall

from which I could refresh my recollection as to

what occurred.

At the conference with Mr. Hall on August 9,

3930, I did not tell Mr. Hall that if an acceptance

agreement were executed the security put up under

the acceptance agreement would secure any other

indebtedness that might be due from the Richfield

Oil Company to the bank. I did not tell him that

any securities that might be put up under the ac-

ceptance agreement, held as security for the pay-

ment of the acceptances, could be seized by the

bank after the acceptances were paid to satisfy the

indebtedness due from Richfield Oil Company to

the bank approximating $625,000. I did not tell Mr.

Hall that by placing securities of any kind under

the agreement or under the acceptances, the Rich-

field Oil Company's indebtedness to the bank would

be secured. [274]

The witness' attention w^as at this point called

to a book of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

produced at the demand of counsel for plaintiff, en-

titled "Acceptance Register." With respect to this

book, said witness testified as follows:

There is nothing in this Acceptance Register in-

dicating the character of the security that was lo-
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cated under the acceptances or under the accep-

tance agreement.

Plaintiff then offered in evidence a sheet taken

from a book of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

(^o. produced at the demand of counsel for plaintiff

and entitled "Commercial Credits, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co." Said sheet was entitled

"Acceptance Credit." Said document was received

in evidence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 122.

Said document showed that an acceptance credit had

been entered in favor of Richfield Oil (^ompany in

an amount of $150,000. The first column on said

sheet was entitled "Date Negotiated," and showed

that the acceptances in the sum of $115,000 were

negotiated on October 6, 1930; the acceptance for

$5,000 was negotiated on October 6, 1930, the ac-

ceptance for $10,000 was negotiated on October 6,

1930, and the acceptance for $25,000 was negotiated

on November 28, 1930. The next column was en-

titled "Ship." Underneath the first line in this

column are contained the words "Silverray" and
'

' Silverhazel.
'

' The next column was entitled '

' Docu-

ments Drawn Against." On the first line of this

column, opposite the word "Silverray" appeared the

words and figures "17.000 C/S Kerosene 540 drums
fuel oil," and opposite the word "Silverhazel" here-

inabove referred to, the words and figures "95.000

C/S Kerosene." The next column was entitled "Doc-
uments Received," and referred to the date of the

receipt of the shipping documents. The next column
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was entitled "Amount Drawn," and referred to the

amount of the acceptances drawm by Richfield Oil

Company. It showed first the drawing of the [275]

$115,000 worth of acceptances; next the $5,000; next

the $10,000 worth of acceptances, and last the $25,-

000 worth of acceptances. The next column was

entitled "Due in San Francisco." Under this col-

umn appeared the dates when the various accep-

tances would be due. This column showed the $115,-

000 worth of acceptances was due January 6, 1931;

the $5,000 worth of acceptances was due on January

13, 1931; the $10,000 worth of acceptances was due

on January 19, 1931, and the $25,000 worth of ac-

ceptances was due February 26, 1931. The next col-

umn was entitled "Due in London," but as here-

inafter shown by the testimony of the witness, the

title of this column had nothing to do with the en-

tries thereunder. The entries under this column

showed the amounts and the dates of the proceeds

received and applied in anticipation of acceptances

and the interest allowed upon such proceeds. The

next column was entitled "Balance Available." This

column showed the balance of the value of the ac-

ceptances which Richfield Oil Company of Califor-

nia was still entitled to draw on its credit of $150,-

000 after having partially utilized some of the ac-

ceptance credit. The next column was entitled "Date

Paid." This column showed the dates upon which

the acceptances were finally paid.
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Under the columns hereinabove referred to en-

titled "Ship" and "Documents Drawn Against",

appear the words "Supported by B/C 46843" op-

posite the acceptance of $10,000, the shipping docu-

ments for which were received on October 21, 1930.

Also under said two columns last mentioned ap-

peared the word "Cancel" opposite the sum named

under column "Amount Drawn" of $115,000. Said

document is more fully described in the testimony

of the witness hereinafter set forth. [276]

Said witness testified further as follows:

This sheet is not made to fit this particular in-

dividual transaction. It is a form which we used

for this transaction but the sheet is not designed

to fit this particular transaction. We have no

sheets which fit this particular transaction, but we

use this particular sheet for all such transactions.

The titles on this sheet are used on certain other

transactions, but in this particular case certain

titles do not apply to this particular transaction.

On the first line appear the words "Silverray"

and "Silverhazel". They refer to the two ships.

The words "Documents Dra\^m Against" refer to

invoices. The column "Due in London" does not

apply in this case because London had nothing to

do with this transaction. It is used here to put

the dates and amounts and the anticipation of the

acceptances. Opposite the words "Silverray" and

"Silverhazel", which are the names of the ships,

appears "Allowed Interest $115,000 Anticipated
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12/16". That means the date of the payment of the

proceeds in San Francisco. Under the title "Bal-

ance Available" appears the figure $35,000. The

credit that we extended Richfield was $150,000;

the amount used in the first instance was $115,000;

so the clerk carried forward the balance here as

the amount then available to Richfield.

There is no reference on this sheet to any 180

day drafts.

The entries extended on this sheet with respect

to the $5,000 acceptances are similar to the first

entries with respect to the $115,000 worth of ac-

ceptances. There is nothing upon this sheet indi-

cating the documents against which it was drawn
or the security that was put up. [277]

With respect to the $10,000 acceptance, appears

the entry "Supported by B/C 46843". That is our

bill for collection. This entry indicates that the

$10,000 acceptance was supported itself by B/C
46843. B/C46843 refers to the draft referred to in

the letter of transmittal dated October 2. 1930,

which was Richfield Oil Company's draft No.

103010 for $11,031.14. That portion of the amount
Richfield Oil Company had available for the execu-

tion of acceptances by reason of our having that

draft was used by that $10,000 acceptance. This

record does not show that any draft or other se-

curity was put up for that $10,000 acceptance other

than our draft No. 46843.
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With respect to the next transaction of November

28, 1930, regarding the acceptances for $25,000,

there is no indication ui^on this sheet which dis-

closes the security, if any, that was put up for the

issuance of those acceptances.

All of the figures that appear in the column "Due

in London" represent entries made upon receipt of

proceeds in anticipation of the due date of the ac-

ceptances. The column "Date Negotiated" is in-

tended to show the date of the draft and the column

"Documents Received" is intended to show the date

the acceptance was executed. The column "Amount
Drawn" discloses the total amount of the accept-

ances executed at one time. The column "Date

Paid" indicates the date of the payment of the

acceptances.

With respect to the word "Cancel" which appears

on this sheet, this credit was oriainally issued for

$150,000. It was increased by the amount of $5,000,

makiuQ^ a total amount of $155,000. The total of

$155,000 was then used. With the maturity of

$115,000 of acceptances on January 6th, the clerk

must pass a bookkeeping entry, because this is a

revolving credit, so he increased the $115,000 show-

ing that the amount available to Richfield that is

[278] here shown under this cohmm on January

6th. is $115,000.

At the time the $5,000 acceptance was obtained,

which exceeded the $150,000, it was requested that

a new agreement be executed, and a new acceptance
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agreement was in fact executed and sent up to the

bank. Richfield Oil Company never at any time

requested the issuance of any acceptances after the

date upon which the $155,000 worth of acceptances

were paid.

The witness' attention was then called to letters

of transmittal to the foreign correspondent of Wells

Fargo Bank, said letters relating to various drafts

of Richfield Oil Company.

Said witness testified further as follows:

These comprise all the letters of transmittal sent

by the bank from the 8th day of October, 1930, to

the 14th day of January, 1931.

With respect to the letter of transmittal dated

October 9, 1930, relating to Richfield draft No.

103009, the bank's number being 46830, and the

amount being $2,442.40, there is endorsed in lead

pencil "Security for Acceptance, proceeds to

Clemo". With respect to the letter of transmittal

referring to draft No. 103010, our number being

46843, there is endorsed in lead pencil ''Security

for Acceptance, proceeds to Clemo". The same is

true of the letter of transmittal referring to draft

No. 103012, our number being 46945. There is no

endorsement of any kind upon any one of the re-

mainder of the letters of transmittal indicating that

there was any security of any kind under an}^ of

the acceptances.

The letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 28 was read

by me before we issued the $5,000 acceptance. Before

I directed the release of that acceptance I read the
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words in this letter "Our records show that we have

with your good bank a draft reserve of $9,734.16

ajiainst which no acceptances have been issued." I

learned that [279] $9,734.16 represented the ag,^Te-

gate of two drafts, one for $2,442.40 and the other

for $2,441.00, and the difference between the two

Birla Bros, sight drafts and the $115,000 worth of

acceptances issued b}^ the bank. There was no refer-

ence in this communication to any 180 day drafts

which had been deposited with the bank. After read-

ing this letter I directed the transmission to Rich-

field Oil Company of an acceptance of $5,000. With

that acceptance I transmitted a letter which I dic-

tated. This letter is Plaintiff's Exhibit 29. There is

nothing said in that letter about any further security

being in our possession.

With respect to the letter marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 31, the acceptance which is referred to therein

is the accei3tance referred to in Plaintiff's Exhibit

122, amounting to $10,000, against which is the entry

"supported by B/C 46843". Xo. 46843 referred to

in our letter is the number of our transmittal letter.

I did not use the word "earmarked". I know that

it was supported as shoAA^n by our records by that

particular draft. In response to the communication

of the Richfield Oil Company, I did not indicate

tliat there was anything wrong with the use of the

word "earmarked" by Mr. Leuenberger in this let-

ter. Mr. Leuenberger is my superior in the bank.

He is an Assistant Vice President.

The onty letters passing between Richfield Oil

Company, so far as I recall, and the bank, in which
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security for acceptances is mentioned, are the letters

to which I have referred relating solely to the two

Birla drafts numbered 103104 and 103006a, tlie

Velasquez draft, No. 103009, and the two other

drafts No. 103010 and No. 103012. The three letters

of transmittal referring to the bank's numbers

46840, 46843 and 46895 were grouped together and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 123 for identification.

The balance of the transmittal correspondence com-

mencing with the bank's number 47291 and ending

with 48629 was marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 124 for

identification. [280]

Mr. Clemo is a clerk in the Foreign Department

handling letters of credit and acceptances.

With respect to Plaintiff's Exhibits 22 and 23,

the documents would not be delivered by our corre-

spondent to India to the purchaser of the shipment

until two things would occur: first, the sight draft

would be paid in full, and second, the 180 day draft

accepted. Through our correspondent we would have

possession of the documents representing the ship-

ment until the sight draft was paid in full and the

180 day draft was accepted. In San Francisco we

issued some $115,000 in acceptances as against these

two shipments. I knew at the time we executed and

released the acceptances that the sight drafts aggre-

gated $119,850. I knew that the only amount that

could by any possibility become due upon the accept-

ances would be $115,000. The total liability wdiich

the bank on October 8th could suffer as a result

of the release of these acceptances would only be
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$1] 5,000, I knew at the time these acceptances were

issued that the two drafts draw^n on Birla Bros.

would be payable at sight. I told both Mr. Hall and

Mr. Pope that the acceptances would have to be paid

]);/ tliem before maturity. I knew that if the two

sight drafts were not paid on presentation, our cor-

respondent would retain for us the documents repre-

senting the shipment. I knew that before the docu-

ments would be released by our correspondent, our

correspondent would have in its possession $119,-

850, or $4,850 in excess of the total liability of the

bank upon the acceptances released on October Sth.

I knew also that if the sight drafts were not paid

when presented that the documents in our possession

would not be turned over to the consignee. I knew

that if the cargo or shipment was not taken hy the

consignee, the cargo would be sold and that the

mone}^ coming to us would ])e paid. Not later than

December 16, 1930, we had already received in our

possession the sum of approximately $119,850.00

representing the proceeds of these two sight drafts

less certain inconsequential charges, which was more

than sufficient to liquidate in full the $115,000 worth

of accei^tances. [281]

There is nothing on the acceptance agreement

wherein anything is said about a continuing guar-

anty or a revolving fund. We did not present to

the plaintiff in this case any agreement except this

form of agreement. I would not say that it is cor-

rect that upon acceptance, drafts are required only

slightly in excess of the amount of the acceptances.
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The collections whicli are security for an acceptance

or a line of acceptances must Ije at least the value

of the acceptances executed, and they may l)e twice,

five, ten or twenty-five times as much more, ])ut they

must be at least as much. What the bank desires to

achieve as the result of a transaction such as this,

is to be absolutely assured that acceptances will be

paid when due, together with the charges.

This acceptance agreement contemplates a de-

scription of the drafts presented to the bank for

acceptance. Nothing was filled in on the agreement.

The agreement also contemplates that where docu-

ments are turned over to the bank as security for

the acceptances, the documents themselves should

be identified on the face of the agreement. The

agreement contemplates on its face that the l)ank

shall have in its possession at the time the agree-

ment was signed and at the time the drafts were

accepted and released, the documents or the se-

curity, which securities shall be designated upon

the face of the agreement. The amount of accept-

ances outstanding could not be more than $150,000.

The agreement does not say anything with respect

to the amount outstanding. All of the answers which

I have heretofore given with respect to the first

acceptance agreement are applicable to the second

agreement for $5,000.

In the ordinary acceptance transaction, the secu-

rities are in the possession of the bank when the

acceptances are issued. In the ordinary case, the

securities placed under the acceptance agreement
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are not necessarily securities upon which the pro-

ceeds can be collected in advance of the maturity

of the acceptances.

I received no request or no demand from Rich-

field Oil Company prior to the appointment of the

receiver to issue to it any acceptances in excess of

$155,000. After the payment of the $115,000 [282]

of acceptances, I sent no communication to Rich-

field Oil Company indicating to it that it could if

it so desired have the benefit of additional accept-

ances. The bank had in its possession on Decem-

]^er 16 a suf^cient amount of money to liquidate in

full any possible liability on the $115,000 worth of

acceptances. Between the 16th of December, 1930,

and the date of the appointment of the receiver, the

Richfield Oil Company did not request the bank to

issue any additional acceptances under this accept-

ance agreement.

On January 8, 1931, when the letter of trans-

mittal to the Wells Fargo Bank with respect to

drafts No. 13106 and No. 13107 on Birla Bros,

was sent, there were still outstanding three groups

of acceptances, one $5,000, another $10,000, and the

other for $25,000. On that date we had in our pos-

session moneys in anticipation of the $5,000 accept-

ance and the $10,000 acceptance, and approximately

$2,000 or $3,000 applicable to the $25,000 accept-

ance. We had certain drafts which had been for-

warded to our correspondent for collection which we
claim were under the acceptance agreements and

some of which plaintiff claims w^ere not. In our

letter of transmittal to our correspondent with re-
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gard to these drafts on Birla Bros. (Nos. 13106 and

13107) there were no lead pencil marks. I^pon

presentation of the sight draft, it was paid and the

proceeds came back to San Francisco. Upon receipt

of the proceeds of the sight draft in the sum of

$11,107.50, without any request from the receiver or

official or employee of the Richfield Oil Companv,

the bank credited the account of the receiver with

the net proceeds of the draft. With respect

to the proceeds of drafts which were received by

the bank prior to the appointment of the receiver

and deposited to the account of the Richfield Oil

Company, nobody connected with the Richfi.eld Oil

Company requested us to deposit these proceeds to

their account. To my knowledge there is no corre-

spondence on this subject. With respect to the pro-

ceeds of those drafts [283] which were deposited

prior to the receivership and which proceeds were

received by the bank after February 26, 1931, cred-

ited to the account of the receiver without claim of

offset, no request of any kind came from the re-

ceiver or any employee of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany or from any employee of the receiver request-

ing the credit of those moneys to the receiver's

account. The net proceeds derived from these drafts

amounted to $26,464.13. Out of the drafts which

w^ere sent by the Richfi.eld Oil Company prior to the

appointment of the receiver to Wells Fargo Bank,

whether for collection or whether as security, we

turned over to the Richfield Oil Company $5,255.86

and to the receiver $26,464.13, aside from the bal-

ance of $7,700.00 hereinafter referred to.
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I knew that on the 15th day or the 16th day of

January, the bank exercised what it claimed to be

its right of setoff against the funds of Richfield in

the bank. These funds were subsequently restored.

To my knowledge the bank did not during January,

1931, attempt to exercise its alleged bankers lien

upon any of the drafts deposited with the bank for

collection.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "To my knowledge" was objected to

by counsel for defendant on the ground it was

incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and the

opinion and conclusion of the witness. Objec-

tion overruled and exception noted.)

The bank could not issue acceptances based upon

the open credit of the Richfield Oil Company nor

was it the bank's intention so to do. The accept-

ances that the bank was then releasing were in-

tended to be accepted and released upon some se-

curity. If the transaction had not been a continuing

or revolving one the bank would only have required

security which was satisfactory to the bank for the

acceptances actually released.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "If the transaction" was objected to

by counsel for defendant as hypothetical. Ob-

jection overruled and exception noted.)

Ordinarily if the bank had received a sight draft

for $4,850.00 in excess of the acceptances accepted

and released secured [284] by a shipment, the value

of which amounted to nearly a quarter of a million
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dollars, the bank would have been properly secured

for the $115,000.00 of acceptances released. Of
course, it would depend upon the nature of the

transaction.

(The foregoing testimony was objected to by

counsel for defendant as speculative, hypotheti-

cal, incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, and

calling for the opinion and conclusion of the

witness. Objection overruled and exception

noted.)

In none of the conversations which occurred be-

tween me and Mr. Pope or Mr. Hall or any official

of the Richfield Oil Company, was any mention

made that any part of the $625,000 indebtedness

would be required to be paid to the bank out of

the proceeds of any of the drafts. The indebtedness

of $625,000 was never mentioned by me or by any

other official of the bank in my hearing, in the dis-

cussions with Pope or Hall. I did not read over

the acceptance agreement paragraph by paragraph

with either Mr. Hall or with Mr. Pope. That part

of the agreement which refers to any indebtedness

except the indebtedness to be created as the result

of the acceptance and the issuance and release of

acceptances was not referred to either by me or any

other official of the bank in the presence of Mr.

Hall and Mr. Pope or either of them.

On the 26th day of February, 1931, the $25,000

acceptance was paid, satisfying in full all accept-

ances issued under both of the acceptance agree-

ments. My testimony with respect to the fact that
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there was no discussion of the contents of the first

acceptance agreement applies also to the second

acceptance agreement. The $625,000 indebtedness

was never mentioned by myself or any other offi-

cial of the bank in my presence and hearing to Mr.

Hall or Mr. Pope at any time until May 8, 1931,

nor was the fact mentioned that in the event that

indebtedness of $625,000 would mature and was not

paid that any of the other obligations under the

agreement would become due or payable. We had

collected the proceeds of certain drafts which, after

ajDplying $1,499.70 thereof to the extinguishment of

the $25,000 worth [285] of acceptances, left in our

hands $7,749.58. I then wrote the letter dated Feb-

ruary 26, 1931, marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 107. Up
to that time no request had come from anybody

coimeeted with the Richfield Oil Company to have

these funds credited to the account of the receiver.

When I dictated this letter I had in mind our tele-

gram of January 16th. I stated in the letter that I

Avas holding the remainder of the proceeds in ac-

cordance with the notice given by that telegram. I

then received from the receiver the wire marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 109, asking me to repeat the

bank's wire of January 16th. I then sent the wire

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 110 to the receiver,

which included a copy of the bank's wire of Janu-

ary 16th. After sending this telegram I received

fr<^m the receiver the letter marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hi])it 106, advising us that all banks had transferred
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the total amount of dej^osit to the credit of the

Richfield Oil Company, and requesting the credit

of the remainder of the proceeds in the sum of

$7,749.58 to the account of the receiver. I then

wrote to the receiver the letter dated March 5, 1931,

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 108, stating that in ac-

cordance with the request of the receiver we were

crediting the account of the receiver with the sum
of $7,749.58. Before that letter was written there

was considerable discussion, but not with anybody

connected with the Richfield Oil Company. It was

also stated in the letter that we were crediting the

receiver's account with $11,082.51 which represented

the proceeds of the sight Birla Bros, draft de-

posited with the bank the 9th of January, 1931.

There was no request for that sum from the re-

ceiver or from anybody else. From the time that we
returned the $7700 and credited the receiver's ac-

count with $11,000, until the 8th of May, we col-

lected from time to time outstanding drafts which

had been deposited with us prior to the date of the

appointment of the receiver, and credited the net

proceeds to the account of the receiver without

having any conversation with any official of Rich-

field Oil Company or the receiver or any [286] rep-

resentative of the Richfield Oil Company or the

receiver.

Outside of the telegram of January 16th and out-

side of the action of the bank in setting off the casli

balance in its possession to the credit of the Rich-
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field Company at the time the receiver was ap-

pointed and outside of the letter which has been

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 107, the bank to my
knowledge did not exercise or attempt to exercise

any alleged bankers' lien or setoff against the drafts

or proceeds of drafts or any of the property in its

possession or under its control prior to May 8, 1931.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words "Outside of the telegram" was ob-

jected to by counsel for defendant on the

ground that it was incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial. Objection overruled and exception

noted.)

Shortly after the telephone conversations of May
8, 1931, Mr. Hall came to San Francisco. He told

me that it had been the understanding that these

funds should be kept separate and apart from other

transactions of the bank. He made the same state-

ment to ]\lr. Hellman, Mr. Eisenbach and Mr. Moth-

erwell. At that time Mr. Lipman was in New York.

Mr. Hall stated at that time that he had an interest

in the transaction. That is the first time that he

asserted that.

Up to the time that I sent the letter of December

16, 1930, marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 93, in which

we notified Eichfield of the receipt of the proceeds

of the two Birla Bros, drafts, Nos. 103004 and

103006a, no reference had been made by us to the
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180 day drafts. Nothing was said in onr letter of

January 3, 1931, Plaintiff's Exhibit 95, referring

to the receipt of the proceeds of draft No. 103010

in the sum of $11,031.14, regarding the two 180

day drafts.

At no time did we ever send any communication

to the Richfield Oil Company or to the receiver in

which we stated that the acceptance agreements or

either of them contemplated a continuing or revolv-

ing credit, nor did the bank receive any such com-

munication from Richfield Oil Company. After

October 8, 1930, no conversation upon that subject

occurred between myself and Hall or Pope. That

subject [287] was not alluded to during the August

visit of Mr. Hall. The only time it was mentioned

w^as during the visit of Hall and Pope on the 6th

of October, 1930.

Nothing was said regarding the 180 day drafts in

our letter of January 6, 1931, marked Plaintiff's

Exhibit 96, in which we informed the Richfield Oil

Company that the $115,000 worth of acceptances

had matured.

After the last $25,000 worth of acceptances were

paid in full on February 26, 1931, we did not com-

municate with the plaintiff or with the officials of

the Richfield Oil Company at any time prior to May
8, 1931, with reference to the 180 day drafts.

Redirect Examination

Referring to Plaintiff's Exhibit 122, the first

entry under the date of October 6th and in the
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column "Documents Dra^yn Against", is the name

of the boat "Silverray", and then the statement

''17.400 cases of kerosene and 540 drums of fuel

oil". Then the name "Silverhazel" and "95.000

cases of kerosene". The "Silverray" and "Silver-

hazel" refer to the names of boats. The 95.000 cases

of kerosene refer to the shipment which went for-

ward on that boat, represented by two sets of drafts,

sight and 180 days sight. The statement "17,000

cases of kerosene 540 drums of fuel oil" is the ship-

ment which went forward on the "Silverray". That

is represented by two drafts, one sight and one at

180 days sight. The tirst entry on the page shows

the initial acceptance of October 6th as drawn

against the two shipments on the "Silverray" and

the "Silverhazel". There are no drafts designated

on the sheet. These entries refer to shipments to

Birla Bros, covered by shipping documents which

were transmitted by the letters of October 7th,

Plaintiff's Exhibits 22 and 23.

The column entitled "Due in London" has no ref-

erence to the actual matter contained below it in

this case. In this column are mentioned two things

;

first, the payments that we received in anticipation

of acceptances; and second, several memoranda in

regard to the [288] interest that we allowed the

Richfield Oil Company on these anticipations. The

interest and the payments received are shown in

that entire column, and if added up will total ex-
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actly $155,000. In the colimm entitled "Balance

Available", the first entry is $35,000. That repre-

sents the difference between the $150,000 credit and

the $115,000 first drawn against. When the $115,000

acceptance was executed the balance available of

$35,000 was placed in there. When the $5,000 ac-

ceptance was executed the balance was likewise car-

ried forward reducing it to $30,000. When the

$10,000 acceptance was executed the reduction was

made and the balance available was then shown at

$20,000. On November 28th, the Richfield Oil Com-

pany exceeded the original $150,000 ])v an addi-

tional $5,000 and it was necessary to increase the

then balance available by $5,000. That was the time

the new acceptance agreement was made. So the

balance then shows as $25,000 available. When the

last $25,000 worth of acceptances were executed,

the balance was entirely wiped out and a zero was

shown here, that is, there were no further funds

available until some of these acceptances matured

and were paid. The last entry is that of January

6th. That was made when the $115,000 in accept-

ances matured. $115,000 is then shown as availa])le

by Richfield. The last entry is the word "Cancel

January 17, $115,000", entirely wiping out the pos-

sibility of this credit l^eing availed of. That entry

was made several days after the appointment of the

receiver when this credit was withdrawn.

The first time that I had heard the words "Draft

Reserve" was upon receipt of Plaintiff's Exhibit 28,
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the letter from the Richfield Oil Company, stating

that the}^ had a "draft reserve" of some $9,000 odd.

These were words Avhich I understood, but which

had not been used in this transaction or suggested

by me.

Said witness' attention was then called to some

pencilled notations appearing at the bottom of the

letter of Richfield Oil Company to Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. dated October 13th, and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 28. These notations were

in the form and in the words and figures as fol-

lows: [289]

Talcntta st 55900.76 Calcutta 180 d 's 55900.76
( ( li 63950— li a 63950— '

Cali 60 d s DA 2442.40

La Paz st 11031.14

Cali (iO d s DA 2441—

With respect to said notations said witness tes-

tifi.ed as follows:

Upon this letter there are some pencilled nota-

tions in my handwriting. They were placed there

wlien this letter was received and prior to my reply

of October 15, 1930, Plaintiff's Exhibit 29. These

figures represent all of the drafts which we had up

to that time received from Richfield Oil Company.

The computation of the so-called draft reserve is

made from the figures on that paper. The second

column represents only the two 180 day sight drafts,

and the first column, all of the other drafts that we

received from the Richfield Oil Company. I checked

the Richfield Oil Company's figures of the so-called
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draft reserve by totalling tlie first column and sub-

tracting therefrom the amount of the acceptances

which had then been executed.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, "Upon this letter there are" was

objected to by counsel for complainant on the

ground it was "incompetent, irrelevant, and im-

material, not binding on complainant, hearsay

and on the ground the letter was offered as a

communication only without reference to the

pencil notation. Objection was overruled and

exception noted.)

Referring to Plaintiff's Exhibit 122, to and in-

cluding the entry "Supported by B/C 46843", the

only drafts which had been received by Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. were drafts set forth in

my pencil memorandum appearing on Plaintiff's

Exhibit 28.

When I handed the first four Birla Bros, drafts

to the clerk in charge of the foreign collections, who

is Mr. Desmond, I told him we were advancing the

Richfield Oil Compan}^ against the collections cer-

tain amounts by means of acceptances, and that I

wanted him to be sure to make a proper memoran-

dum so that the proceeds of these collections when

they were received would be handed to Mr. Clemo,

the man who handled the acceptance finances.

(The foregoing testimony commencing with

the words, "When I handed the first" was ob-

jected to by counsel for complainant on the
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[290] ground it was incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial, not binding on complainant,

and hearsay. Objection was overruled and ex-

ception noted.)

That was the first transaction wdth Richfield. It

is true that the proceeds of some of the earliest

drafts deposited were not received in San Fran-

cisco until after the maturity of the acceptances.

There were three items that were outstanding longer

than ninety days. These were draft No. 103009 for

$2,442.40 drawn on Ricardo Velasquez, deposited

October 9th and paid January 28th: draft Xo.

103012, drawn on Bueno y Cia for $2,441, deposited

October 12th, on which three partial payments were

received, the first on February 24th and the last

on April 11, 1931, the tw^o final ])ayments of which

w^ere received after the last maturity date of accept-

ances; and draft No. 103023, drawn on Sociedad

Automovilia in the sum of $779.10, deposited Octo-

ber 21, 1930, which was never paid.

A draft drawn at 60 days sight would be pa>'able

60 days after the drawee accepted it, which would be

upon its presentation to him in the city of his resi-

dence. Before the proceeds could get to San Fran-

cisco, time would have to he allowed for transmit-

ting the draft to the place where the drawee was

and time also for the transmittal of the proceeds

back and w^hatever time Avas consumed in presenta-

tion and receipt of proceeds by the correspondent

bank. The time of the mail to Call is estimated at

16 days, and to La Paz, 23 days.



vs. Willimn C. McDuffie 417

(Testimony of W. J. Gilstrap.)

Referring to Plain^tiff's Exhibit 122, the proceeds

of draft B/C 46843 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 27, Rich-

field's No. 103010) together with the $119,626.05

received on December 16th in payment of Birla

Bros, drafts were nsed to pay the $130,000 in accept-

ances maturing beginning January 6th to 19th.

There was a balance in excess as the result of the

total of $119,626.05 and the proceeds of said draft

—

leaving $617.12 which was carried forward to apply

on the next maturing acceptance. The proceeds of

this draft were applied in part upon other accept-

ances than the acceptance of $10,000 issued on Octo-

ber 21st.

The Richfield Oil Company was at all times dur-

ing the course [291] of these transactions advised

of tlie maturity dates of the acceptances.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 29, which refers to the issuance

of the acceptance for $5,000, shows the maturity

date of this acceptance.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 31, which relates to the accept-

ance for $10,000, sets forth the maturity date of

this acceptance. The maturity date of the $25,000

worth of acceptances, confirmed in our letter, Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 35, is set forth in that letter. As to

the $115,000 worth of acceptances in our letter

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 96, we informed Rich-

field Oil Company of the maturity of these accept-

ances.

It is fair to state that from the time of the issu-

ance of the acceptances and to and including the
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respective maturities thereof, the Richfield Oil Com-

pany was at all times advised of the maturity dates

upon the acceptances.

Eecross Examination

With respect to Exhibit 122, referring to the

$10,000 acceptance supported by B/C 46843, I was

not in San Francisco on the date upon which the

acceptance was issued. I was not in San Francisco

on the date on which the draft itself was received.

It was received by the 10th of October. I cannot

remember whether Mr. Desmond handed that par-

ticular draft to me or whether he personally saw

the transmittal letter which went forward to our

correspondent. I have no recollection at the present

time as to whether that particular transaction was

discussed between me and Mr. Desmond.

At no time did the bank send a coumiunieation

to the Richfield Oil Com23any indicating that the

Richfield Oil Company had the right if it saw fit

to have additional acceptances accepted by the bank

and released upon securities theretofore received by

the bank. [292] At no time did the bank ever send a

communication to the Richfield Oil Company
stating that either one of these two acceptance

agreements was a continuing acceptance agreement

or acting as security for any so-called revolving

fund.

With respect to my pencilled notations on Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 28, there is nothing appearing on the
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face of the letter itself in lead pencil indicating that

one group or the other group of the drafts was un-

der the acceptance agreement. No copy of these lead

pencil marks upon this letter was ever sent to Rich-

field Oil Company, nor was any official or em-

ployee of the Richfield Oil Company shown this

original communication after I had placed the

marks upon it.

With respect to Plaintiff's Exhibit 37, which con-

tains a letter from Wells Fargo Bank to Richfield

Oil Company requesting an additional $5,000 ac-

ceptance agreement from Richfield Oil Company,

and which contains a letter from Richfield Oil

Company to Wells Fargo Bank stating that the

additional acceptance agreement was enclosed, and

which stated, "In the future we will forward these

agreements with the acceptances issued", we never

responded to that letter and informed either Rich-

field Oil Company or any of its employees that no

additional acceptance agreement was necessary in

the event that additional acceptances were issued

after the payment of any of the acceptances pre-

viously issued.

I knew that the sight drafts which had to be paid

before the documents would be delivered to Birla

Bros, would in all probability be paid prior to the

date of the maturity of the $115,000 worth of ac-

ceptances.

The character of the paper taken under accept-

ances is not necessarily paper which would mature
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prior to the date upon which the acceptances them-

selves would mature. It is necessary for ac- [293]

ceptances to be paid when they mature. The ac-

ceptances frequently find their way into the pos-

session of persons other than the bank l:)y which

the acceptances are issued, and these persons expect

to 1)e paid upon the maturity date of the accept-

ances.

In so far as the 180 day sight drafts of Birla

Bros, were concerned, they were unsecured as to

any merchandise cover after the delivery to Birla

Bros, of the documents representing the two ship-

ments. They were clean paper at that time and

there was no security behind them except the sig-

nature of Birla Bros, and the signature of the Rich-

field Oil Company.

When the $115,000 of acceptances had been ex-

tinguished by payment, the Richfield Oil Company
could have obtained an additional credit of $115,000

represented by new acceptances provided that we
had in our hands collections which would allow of

our renewing the acceptances. Eliminating from

consideration any other drafts that had been de-

posited with us, I would not have executed $115,000

of new acceptances based exclusively upon the 180

day sight drafts, that is, in so far as it is in my
power to make any credit advances. An acceptance

is issued against the movement of a shipment. It

may have been already made; at least the shipping

documents may have been already filled in. The
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bank issues acceptances based upon paper accepted

by the consignee of a shipment where shipment

has already been made and where the consignee is

already in possession of the goods shipped. It de-

pends upon the financial stability of the drawer

and the drawee of the paper. In this case it would

be the Richfield Oil Company and Birla Bros.

Birla Bros, were not regarded by us as a firm of any

financial stability.

The 180 day sight drafts could not have become

due until some time in May, 1931. The $115,000

worth of acceptances matured on January 6, 1931.

If the Richfield Oil Company had applied for and

had actually obtained an additional acceptance ag-

gregating $115,000 on January 6, 1931, those ac-

ceptances would have matured [294] on or before

the 6th day of April, 1931, some considerable time

in advance of the date upon which the 180 day

drafts would have become due by their termiS.

I knew on October 8, 1930, that upon the payment

of the sight draft and the acceptance by Birla Bros,

of the two 180 day sight drafts, the goods were to

be delivered to Birla Bros.

Further Redirect Examination

If the sight drafts had not been paid, we would

then have had an advance to the Richfield Oil Com-
pany on these acceptances of $115,000, and as se-

curity for that, the shipment to Birla Bros.
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Further Recross Examination

If the sight drafts had not been paid and the

cargo had been at (^alcutta, we would have first

called on the Richfield Oil Company for payment

of any acceptances then outstanding, and if that

were not done we probably would have disposed

of the cargo, and reimbursed ourselves to the ex-

tent of the acceptances from the proceeds of the

cargo. It often occurs that if no paper taken by

the bank is payable before the date of the maturity

of the acceptances, the bank issuing the acceptances

is unable to collect in advance of the maturity of

the acceptances, even though tlie bank and the de-

positor assume at the time of the transaction that

the proceeds of the drafts placed under the ac-

ceptances will be paid in advance of the maturity

of the acceptances. In those instances, the con-

cern to which the acceptances are released makes

up the deficit.

Further Redirect Examination:

The letter of Wells Fargo Bank to Richfield Oil

Company contained in Plaintiff's Exhibit 37 calls

for a new $5,000 acceptance agreement and accept-

ance, because as stated in the letter, the $150,000

loaned them on the first acceptance agreement had

been exceeded. [295]

It was not my function in 1930, nor it is now,

to pass on credit or on advances to customers or

on what security advances can be made.
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WILLIAM DESMOND
a witness then called on behalf of defendant testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination:

I am a clerk in the employ of Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. I have been employed by the

Wells Fargo Bank for approximately 13 years. In

the year 1930, I was employed in the Foreign Col-

lection Department. Mr. Gilstrap was my imme-

diate superior. I was in the Foreign Department

about a year. I am no longer in the Foreign De-

partment.

I had charge of the Foreign Collection Depart-

ment which took care of the documents for export

shipments and I supervised that end of it. The

transmittal of drafts to foreign correspondents was

part of my duties.

The document entitled Defendant's Exhibit '^F"

is our file record evidencing the forwarding of the

drafts, and is a carbon copy of a letter of trans-

mittal. The handwriting in pencil on the right

hand side of the document, "Security for Accept-

ance, proceeds to Clemo", is my handwriting. I

put that handwriting on the document at or about

the same time that these documents were sent for-

w^ard with the letter of transmittal. The date of

this document is October 8th. The original of this

document was transmitted on the same day, Octo-

ber 8, 1930. I put this writing on the document at

the request of Mr. Gilstrap. He told me to put
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that statement on several bills there and that the

proceeds of those documents were security for ac-

ceptances and were to be handed [296] to Mr.

Clemo. The pencilled notations on each of Defend-

ant's Exhibits "G", "H" and "I" in each case

are in my handwriting. These notations were

placed upon each of these documents on or about

the date of the document pursuant to the instruc-

tions of Mr. Gilstrap.

Cross Examination

:

The last time I was emploj^ed in the Foreign

Department was about the end of the year 1930.

I was in the Foreign Department approximately

one year. I had routine work to do taking care

of export shipments regardless of any specific in-

structions. My time w^as fully occupied during

working hours in taking care of the business in

connection with which my attention was required.

After my separation from the Foreign Department

I was assigned to a separate and distinct depart-

ment and since then I have had nothing to do with

the Foreign Department. There were a number of

officers of the bank connected with the Foreign De-

]:>artment and I was subject to the directions and

instructions of all of them. From time to time I

took instructions not only from Mr. Gilstrap but

likewise from other officials of the bank connected

with that Department.

Aside from the pencilled memorandum on this



vs. William C. McDuffie 425

(Testimony of William Desmond.)

paper I never made any memorandum as to any

instruction given to me by Mr. Gilstrap. The first

time that I saw these documents after the date on

which these entries were made was last evening.

During the time I was connected with the Foreign

Department I handled many thousands of copies

of letters of transmittal. I received various in-

structions from time to time from my superior of-

ficers with respect to my duties. It is possible that

these instructions if added together would be more

than a thousand instructions during the time that

I was in the Department. After separating myself

from the Foreign Department I paid no further

attention to the business of [297] the Foreign De-

partment. I would say that I now have an in-

dependent recollection of substantially the majority

of the instructions I received respecting work to

be performed by me while I was in the Foreign

Department. I wouldn't say that I could substan-

tially tell the instructions and by whom they were

given with respect to every transaction given my
attention.

I dictated these letters of transmittal to a stenog-

rapher. I made the endorsement on these drafts on

the date of the bills. These endorsements were

made on the 8th day of October, 1930. My testi-

mony is that they were made on that date and not

on or about that date. After the letters were typed,

I turned them over to Mr. Gilstrap. The copies
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were filed. I turned over the original of the let-

ters of transmittal to ]Mr. Gilstrap. Mr. Gilstrap

never had in his possession so far as I knew any

one of the four documents in evidence.

I liave an independent and distinct recollection

of the conversation occurring between myself and

j\Ir. Gilstrap. I can give the sum and substance

of it; possibly I cannot give the exact words. He
told me, "Mr. Desmond, these bills are going for-

ward to the respective parties and the proceeds are

to he marked 'Security for Acceptance, proceeds

to Clemo' ". There were 6 or 7 bills at first. I

placed this endorsement upon the first 6 or 7

letters of transmittal.

I saw two or three of these papers last night.

I did not talk to Mr. Gilstrap about this matter to

refresh my recollection. Mr. Dinkelspiel asked me
if this was my handwriting. Mr. Dinkelspiel did

not mention any conversation occurring betweeii

me and Mr. Gilstrap. I had no conversation with

any employee or official of the bank. I only talked

to Mr. Dinkelspiel. Mr. Dinkelspiel meriely asked

nie at whose instance I put this endorsement on

there. Mr. Dinkelspiel only showed me two or

three of these documents last night. Mr. Dinkel-

spiel told me that Mr. Gilstrap claimed that he

had instructed me to place that endorsement upon
those drafts. [298]

Mr. Gilstrap gave me one instruction to put the

endorsements upon the first several bills.
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I know that before the sight drafts could be paid

the draft would have to go to (Calcutta; that before

the proceeds w^ould be received at the bank they

would have to return from Calcutta to San Fran-

cisco; that the 180 day drafts would not l)e paid

for at least six months plus the necessary time for

the bill to be presented at Calcutta for acceptance;

and that the proceeds of the 180 day draft when re-

ceived would have to be transmitted from Calcutta

to San Francisco. Knowing that in all probaliality

the proceeds w^ould not reach San Francisco for

eight or nine months thereafter, I made these en-

dorsements on the letters of transmittal. I made

no entries in any other book that any of these

drafts were under the acceptances. The documents

upon which these pencil memoranda are made are

kept in the correspondence files in an ordinary

filing cabinet in the filing department. When Mr.

Grilstrap handed the letters of transmittal to me
he did not identify the specific bills by number, by

date, by jo'eriod or by amount.

The letters of transmittal were typed by the

stenographer after I had received the instructions

from Mr. Gilstrap. It was not necessary that I

have the stenographer type on the carbon copies of

letters of transmittal the fact that bills were beino;

held as security for acceptances.

Redirect Examination:

The words "Security for Acceptance" did not
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appear upon the original letters of transmittal to

the correspondent in India.

(The words ''Security for Acceptance" on each

of defendant's exhibits "F", "G", "H", and

"I" ^Yere here offered and received in evidence

as parts of said exhibits, over objection of

counsel for complainant that they were in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial, hearsay,

and not binding- on complainant. Objection

was overruled and exception noted.)

EMIL LEUENBERGER
was then called as a witness for defendant and testi-

fied as follows: [299]

I am Assistant Vice President and Manager of

the Foreign Department of the Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. I am familiar with various

matters of the foreign business of depositors and

customers of l^anking institutions, and I am familiar

witli acceptance agreements and bank acceptances.

I first met Mr. Hall during the latter part of

August, 1930. I stepped out of a conference and

saw Mr. Hall sitting at Mr. Gilstrap's desk. Mr.

Gilstrap called me over and introduced me to Mr.

Hall, who then told me that he was dissatisfied

with the bank in Los Angeles and he desired to

turn his foreign collection business over to us.

Nothing was said in my presence with respect to
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partiiieiit business of the Richfield Oil Company.

Nothing whatever was said by Mr. Hall with re-

spect to the fact or the desire on his part that the

foreign department business should be kept sep-

arate and apart from other business of the Rich-

field Oil Company with the Wells Fargo Bank.

In October, 1930, I received a telephone call from

Los Angeles from Mr. Eisenbach, Vice President

of our bank. He asked me to secure a credit report

on Birla Bros, of Calcutta. I inquired for the

report through our Calcutta correspondent, the

Netherlands Trading Society. I received the cable

marked Defendant's Exhibit "B" in reply.

I met Mr. Hall again on or about October 6, 1930.

Mr. Oilstrap came into my office and asked me to

step out and talk to the officials of the Richfield

Oil Company about these shipments to Birla Bros.

Mr. Oilstrap discussed with me the question of

an advance to the Richfield Oil Company on the

Birla Bros, transaction on the basis of acceptances.

I stepped out and Mr. Hall introduced me to Mr.

Pope, saying that Mr. Pope was an assistant who
had come up to [300] San Francisco to get ac-

quainted with the acceptance business. Mr. Hall

then said, "We have a large shipment to Birla

Bros., we are going to draw against this shipment

to the extent of 50% at sight and 50% at 180 days

sight, and we would like to get as much money as

possible on this shipment." I said to Mr. Hall,

"We cannot advance you the full amount of this
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shipment, first because a large amount is involved,

considering that the drafts are drawn on one and

the same party; and second, the report that we

have received of Birla Bros, is not favorable ; we

will, however, extend to you an advance to the

extent of the sight draft of 50% of the value of the

shipment." That is all that was said then.

Neither Mr. Hall nor Mr. Pope nor Mr. Gilstrap

made any statement in my presence on the occasion

of this conference on October 6th to the effect that

Mr. Hall had any interest in the business of the

Foreign Department of the Richfield Oil Company.

There was no such statement made at any time in

my presence. No statement was made either by Mr.

Hall or by any one else in my presence that the

transactions with the Foreign Department w^ere to

be kept separate and apart from other business and

affairs of the Richfield Oil Company.

After this conference, Mr. Pope and I went to

lunch and I explained to him the mechanics of the

acceptance credits and took particular care to men-

tion the credits that they contemplated with us. I

told him about the acceptance credits, and about the

revolving nature thereof and about the security of

these collections. It is fair to state that Mr. Pope

appeared to be substantially ignorant of acceptances

and transactions under acceptance forms.

The letter marked Defendant's Exhibit "A", ad-

dressed to me, was shown to me after Mr. Hall's

visit on October 8th, on which visit I did not see

him. [301]
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Cross Examination.

I have been the Manager of the Foreign Depart-

ment of the Wells Fargo Bank for approximately

three years. Before becoming Manager, I was for a

period of approximately three years Assistant Man-

ager of the Foreign Department. As Assistant

Manager, I was constantly kept busy in the per-

formance of the duties which devolved upon me in

that capacity, and these duties became extended and

enlarged after I became the Manager of the Foreign

Department. During my office hours I am constantly

occupied in taking care of the responsilnlities inci-

dent to the office which I occupy. I do not always,

but I generally, remember the conferences which I

have had with the officials of the bank or with per-

sons doing business with the bank during the past

two to five years. I attend to and supervise a great

many transactions every day. During the course of

a month these transactions aggregate a great mmi-

ber. Between the month of October, 1930, and the

present time, I have handled many thousands of

transactions; and during that period of time I have

come in contact with many thousands of customers

and patrons of the bank. I do not undertake to

charge my memory with each particular transaction

and with what occurred in connection with each

transaction. I made no memorandum concerning

the conversations occurring between myself and Mr.

Hall, and there is no memorandimi in existence from

which or by which I could refresh my recollection

respecting either the conversation itself or the sub-

stance of the conversation. I have talked with Mr.
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Gilstrap about this, and have discussed the matter

to some extent with Mr. Hellman and with our

attorneys. I read the letters introduced in evidence

before the trial of this case commenced. In this

way and hy recou.rse to the various documents, I

have endeavored to rebuild my recollection, which

to some extent had faded until this case was being

prepared for trial. [302]

I was in the presence of Mr. Hall about two

minutes in August of 1930. I was engaged in a con-

ference at the time and after talking to Mr. Hall

I left and returned to the conference in which I had

been engaged. I cannot say now who were present

at this conference. I cannot say what the transac-

tion Avas which was the subject matter of the con-

ference. This conference lasted possibly an hour,

although I have no definite recollection on it. I knew

at the time I first met Mr. Hall in August of 1930

that the Richfield Oil Company was indebted to the

Wells Fargo Bank in the sum of $625,000 and that

that obligation was unsecured. I knew further that

the obligation was outstanding.

I next saw Mr. Hall on October 6th. I fix that

date from letters. I made no memorandum as to

the subject matter of the conference or the substance

of the conference occurring between me, Mr. Hall

and Mr. Pope. I was with Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope ap-

proximately 10 minutes. I do not know with whom
I last conferred that morning before Mr. Gilstrap

called me into this conference. I do not know to
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what i^articiilar business T was giving my attention

at the time Mr. Gilstrap invited me into the confer-

ence with Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope. I cannot say

with whom I next conferred after leaving Mr. Hall

and Mr. Pope. I cannot give the subject matter of

any business transacted by me in the bank on that

day aside from the conference with Mr. Pope and

Mr. Hall.

During the time that I was with Mr. Hall and

Mr. Pope, the fact was not mentioned that if any

acceptance agi'eement wavS entered into, that agree-

ment might confer upon the l^ank security for its

outstanding obligations.

On October 21, 1930, I received the letter marked

Plaintiff's Exhibit 30. Mr. Gilstrap was in Los

Angeles when this letter was received. The matter

was turned over to me. I learned from the letter

that draft No. 103010 had been sent to the 1:)ank

and that Richfield Oil [303] Company was request-

ing that we issue an acceptance for $10,000. I wrote

a response which is in evidence as Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 31, stating that we had executed the accept-

ance for $10,000 and credited the account of Rich-

field Oil Company with the proceeds and stating

further that we had earmarked the same against

our collection No. 46843 on La Paz, Bolivia. This

was the only acceptance which I personally issued.

This was at a time when undoubtedly my recollec-

tion was better so far as these matters are con-

cerned than it is at the present time. The only
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correspondence concerning any of those transactions

Avith which I had anything to do is reflected and

represented exclusively b}^ these two letters.

At the time of my conversation with Mr. Hall

and Mr. Pope on October 6, 1930, I did not see the

acceptance agTeement. They told me they were ar-

ranging for a shipment to Birla Bros. They told

me the approximate amount of the shipment. They

told me that the Richfield Oil Company wanted to

get as much money as possible upon the acceptances.

From the explanation they made to me at that time

I knew that the documents evidencing the shipment

were to be delivered to Birla Bros, upon the pay-

ment of a sight draft and the acceptance of the 180

day draft. I knevv^ also from what they said that

if the documents passed from the possession of our

correspondent to Birla Bros, upon the payment of

the sight draft and the acceptance of the 180 day

draft that the latter draft was converted into what

is known as clean paper, having no security under

it at all except the signatures of the drawer and

drawee. We had already received a report on Birla

Bros, which was entirely unsatisfactory. On Novem-

ber 29, I wrote the letter, Plaintiff's Exhibit 36,

setting forth the exchange of cables, advising that

the two sight drafts drawn on Birla Bros., num-

bered 103004 and 103006A, respectively, had been

paid. [304]

At no time did I write any letter to the Richfield

Oil Company nor do I know of any letter being sent
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to the Richfield Oil Company in which these trans-

actions are referred to or stated to be a revolving or

contimiing- transaction. I did not see Mr. Hall when
he came to San Francisco about May 11, 1931.

Redirect Examination.

The letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 30, and the

letter marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 31, written by me
with respect to an acceptance for $10,000 issued

against the draft on La Paz, was turned over to me
by the acceptance clerk. Thereafter the entry was

made by him on Plaintiff's Exhibit 122, "Supported

by B/C 46843". That is the bank's number of the

draft.

Recross Examination.

After dictating- the letter, I told the acceptance

clerk to see that the proceeds would be turned over

to him for this particular purpose. At the time I

dictated the letter, I assumed that it stated exactly

what I wanted it to state. I dictated the letter of

my own initiative and voluntarily. I turned the

letter over to the acceptance clerk for the purpose

of enabling him to read its contents with respect to

the entr}^ or entries that he was to make.
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Avas then called as a witness for defendant and tes-

tified as follows: [305]

Direct Examination.

I am Vice President in charge of the Foreign

Department of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. I have held that position for about three years,

and this includes the fall of 1930, and the spring of

1931. I am familiar with the various methods of

handling foreign collection business of depositors

and customers and with the method of handling

acceptance agreements and acceptance credit ar-

rangements.

Some time in August. Mr. Gilstrap came to my
office and informed me that Mr. Hall of Richfield

was there, and that he was interested in an accept-

ance credit. I had a conversation with Mr. Hall at

that time. To the best of my recollection I told Mr.

Hall that I thought that we, meaning the Wells

Fargo Bank, would be willing to go into such a

transaction advancing them on their collections, and

that I could see nothing that would stop us from

doing it, but as long as they had other lines in the

l)ank I would rather consult with JNIr. Lipman first.

All that I discussed with Mr. Hall was the accept-

ance credit. I do not believe any amount was men-

tioned.

Mr. Hall and I then went downstairs to see Mr.

Lipman. Up to this time Mr. Hall did not make any

statement to me or to Mr. Gilstrap in my presence
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or to anybody else in my presence that the foreign

business of the Richfield Oil Company was to ])e

kept separate and apart from any other Inisiness

of Richfield Oil Company with our bank. He did

not make any statement in my presence to me or

to Mr. Gilstrap or to any other person that he had

an interest in the Foi'eii>'n Department business of

the Richfield Oil Company or that he was a partner

in Richfield Oil Company's Foreign Department.

The purpose of the visit to Mr. Lipman w^as to

have him [306] pass on the credit. We went into

Mr. Lipman 's office and I said to Mr. Lipman that

Mr. Hall was representing^ the Richfield Oil Com-

pany; that he w^as the Manager of their export

department, and that they had not l)een very well

satisfied down in Los Angeles, and that he had been

discussing advancing funds on their collections in

the form of an acceptance arrangement.

I did not leave the office at any time while Mr.

Hall and Mr. Lipman were discussing the matter.

I remained throughout the entire conference and

brought Mr. Hall upstairs afterwards. I think Mr.

Hall was mistaken in stating that I left him alone

with Mr. Lipman.

Mr. Hall told Mr. Lipman that they had a very

good bunch of foreign ciLstomers and that all their

collections or practically all their collections were

paid without any trouble. Mr. Lipman said he

thought it w^ould be all right to open an acceptance

credit but he wanted it understood that before we
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made any advance on their collections we would be

able to check up through our foreign correspondence

on their foreign customers, Mr. Hall said, "We
have no objections, they are all right", or words to

that effect. Mr. Lipman said to Mr. Hall, "Well it

would be to your advantage to know what our banks

think of your customers, it w^ould be a help to the

Richfield Oil Company".

Then the question came up of the amount of

credit. I believe Mr. Lipman said to Mr. Hall, "We
will advance you $150,000, $200,000, $25a,000, on

your foreign collections". He said to Mr. Hall that

this credit was to remain in force until it was can-

celled by either side; that we did not know whether

it w^ould work out or not ; we did not know w^hat

kind of foreign collections they were handling, and

if it did not work out we reserved the right to cancel

the credit. As I remember it, we then stood up and we

w^ere going out [307] the door and Mr. Hall said to

Mr. Lipman, "Mr. Lipman, I want it understood"

—

no, not that; he said, "You must realize that I am
not in the financial end of the business; that I am
only the Manager of the Foreign Department, and I

will have to get the consent of my superiors to get

this credit through". He further said that he knew

w^e were giving them a line of credit of $625,000, and

that if this acceptance credit was going to inter-

fere with the loan line downstairs, he knew that

they would not consent to it, and he wanted the ac-

ceptance credits separate from the loan downstairs.
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Mr. Lipmaii said to Mr, Hall, "I have no doubt

that the loan downstairs is all right, Mr. Hall, this

will be in addition to the $625,000." I am quite

positive that the words "line of credit" were used.

I don't think the conference with Mr. Lipman

lasted more than five minutes.

During the conversation with Mr. Lipman I

don't believe Mr. Hall stated at any time that he

had an interest or participation of any kind with

the Foreign Department of Richfield Oil Company.

Then we went upstairs and saw Mr. Gilstrap.

On the way upstairs I decided that $150,000 was

sufficient to start the credit off with, and so I took

Mr. Hall back to Mr. Gilstrap and said it was all

right; that we were going to start in for $150,000.

Nothing else was said or done by Mr. Hall or Mr.

Gilstrap or myself while I was present.

During the conversation with Mr. Lipman, the

only reference that Mr. Hall made with my firmness

was that it was to be in addition to the loan line

downstairs; otherwise he did not think his people

down in Los Angeles would make the credit. That

was made immediately subsequent to his statement

that he did not have authority to commit Rich-

field. [308]

The next time I saw Mr. Hall was in May, 1931,

after the bank had told Mr. Hall that it was going

to take over the proceeds of the drafts which are

the subject of this litigation. About the 11th of May,

Mr. Gilstrap called me out of my office informing
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me that Mr. Hall had come up to try to get us to

change our opinion or change our course of action

as to what we had done on the collections. I had a

conference with Mr. Hall. Mr. Hall was quite elo-

quent in pleading with us to return the money. I

remember more or less the words he used, which

were, "You don't know what you fellows are doing

to me holding out this money". He then told me
that he had an interest in these transactions and

that we were actually taking the money away from

him; that the Richfield Oil Company was indebted

to him for approximately $400,000, and that he

felt very badly about the whole thing.

That was the first time that I had heard from

any person whatever that Mr. Hall claimed to have

an interest in the transaction.

As I remember it, on that occasion Mr. Hall did

not make any statement to the effect that we agreed

to keep this separate and apart.

I saw Defendant's Exhibit "B", being a tele-

gram from the Netherlands Trading Society, on the

6th of October, 1930. I had a conversation with Mr.

Gilstrap with reference to the contents of that tele-

gram. I think this was during the visit of Mr. Hall

because mention was made that they were very

anxious to get as much on the shipment as possible.

I did not participate in the conference with Mr.

Hall and Mr. Pope on the 6th of October. I did

not see Mr. Hall on the 8th of October, when he

came back with the shipping documents and the



vs. William C. BIcDiiffie 441

(Testimony of Frederick J. Hellman.)

drafts and the letter from the comptroller.

There was some discussion had between the offi-

cials of the [309] bank at about the time of the ap-

pointment of the receiver with respect to the col-

lateral on deposit with the Foreign Department. I

had a general discussion with Mr. Eisenbach and

Mr. Motherwell on the same day as the appointment

of the receiver. The telegram on January 16th was

written after I had informed them about the trans-

actions in the Foreign Department.

The bank from time to time returned to the Rich-

field Oil Company free of bankers lien or offset cer-

tain of the proceeds of various drafts that were col-

lected from time to time. At the end of February,

1931, I recall a conference about the time that the

$7700 was kept out from Richfield. With respect

to Plaintiff's Exhibit 107, I had a consultation with

Mr. Gilstrap before sending that letter, which w^as

written under my direction. I am aware that the

bank received a letter from Mr. McDuffie about this

time, dated March 3, 1931, which is Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 106. Subsequent to the receipt of that letter

I had a conference with officials of the bank with

respect to handing back this particular lot of pro-

ceeds. At that time the City Service Company had

just recently made an offer for 500,000 shares of

Richfield common stock at $4.00 a share, and was

very much interested in the purchase of the com-

pany, and it was decided between Mr. Lipman and

myself that the money would be returned. Prior to
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transmitting the proceeds back to the Richfield Oil

Company, as stated in the letter which is Plaintiff's

Exhibit 108, there was a conference held between

me and Mr. Lipman with reference to the subject

matter of the letter which was subsequently written,

and at that time there were facts known to me and

to Mr. Lipman to the effect that the receivership of

the Richfield Oil Company was in fair probability

of being able to work itself out. The proceeds re-

ferred to in Plaintiff's Exhibit 108—$7749.55, were

returned to the receiver. That letter was written

under my instructions after my [310] conference

A\dth Mr. Lipman. There was also returned to the

receiver the proceeds of the draft for $11,081.52

referred to in the letter.

Cross Examination

During office hours my time is filled \\]} attending

to matters connected with the bank and particularly

in connection with the Foreign Department, but

with no details. I was responsible to the bank for

the proper, adequate and efficient management and

control of the Foreign Department. As the control

over the Foreign Department has been mine, my
entire business hours are extensively occupied by

giving my attention to matters in that Department.

During every day I come in contact with a num-
ber of individuals calling at the Foreign Depart-

ment. From time to time subordinates under me
confer and consult with me respecting matters as-
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signed to tlieni. I am not consulted in routine mat-

ters. During the period of three years that I have

been in the Foreign Department, I have seen a

great many hundreds of people doing business with

that Department and I have been consulted on a

vast number of occasions by my subordinates re-

specting matters in which they seek my advice and

judgment. I am not in a position to determine

with any degree of certainty any one of those trans-

actions in which I have participated during the last

three years, either with the depositor or patron of

the bank or with the subordinates of my Depart-

ment. It is not quite correct that this particular

transaction was given no more attention by me
than any other transactions of like character be-

cause every time we start a new credit it takes a

great deal of thought and work.

I knew before the month of October, 1930, that

the Richfield Oil Company was obligated to the

Wells Fargo Bank to the extent of $625,000, and

that at least before the 6th of October, 1930, [311]

this represented an unsecured obligation. In Au-

gust we had just given Richfield $125,000, so we

thought they were in pretty good financial condi-

tion. I knew in a general way that Richfield Oil

Company was obligated in some considerable sum

not only to our bank but likewise to other banks

throughout the country.

I have a memorandum made on the date of meet-

ing with Mr. Hall and Mr. Lipman, from which I
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refreshed my recollection. I dictated that memo-

randum right after the meeting. The tirst time

after the dictation of the memorandum that I next

saw it was a few weeks ago when we went through

our files in looking up this case. I did not have this

particular conversation called to my attention from

the date on which it occurred until approximately

a few weeks ago when this case was about to ])e pre-

pared for trial. I do not know who the last person

was who was in my office immediately prior to the

time that I talked to Mr. Hall. I have no recollec-

tion of any conference participated in by me on

that day with any patron of the bank or any em-

ployee of the bank other than this particular one

with Mr. Hall. I cannot give you the name of any

individual with whom I came in contact that day

outside of the employees of the bank or the sub-

stance of any conference I had with any individual

on that day.

I listened to the testimony of Mr. Gilstrap and

Mr. Leuenberger, and have been in consultation

with them during the progress of this trial and in

anticipation of the trial for the purpose of en-

deavoring to rebuild or recall things to my memory.

I have examined all the correspondence in this

case and have read it over very carefully. The only

correspondence with which I personally came in

contact during the history of this transaction did

not total more than a half dozen communications,

including wires.
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During the course of my conversation with Mr.

Hall, I did not undertake to explain to him the

contents of the printed form of the acceptance

agreement. I did not tell Mr. Hall that if the form

of acceptance agreement was signed by the Rich-

field Oil Company that [312] the original security

that was put up upon the acceptance agreements

would likewise stand as security for the $625,000

indebtedness which at that time was unsecured. So

far as I know no other official of the bank had ex-

plained that situation to Mr. Hall. We never ex-

plain that. There is no memorandum of any kind

in existence by which I can refresh my recollection

as to what occurred between myself, Mr. Hall and

Mr. Gilstrap prior to the time that I took Mr. Hall

to Mr. Lipman's office.

During the conversation with Mr. Hall and Mr.

Lipman, Mr. Hall said that he did not want the ac-

ceptances to interfere with the loan line dowmstairs.

By "downstairs", I mean the Note Department.

The note desk is downstairs and the Foreign De-

partment is on the fifth floor. Mr. Hall said that he

wanted these acceptance transactions to be con-

sidered separate from the loan line. He did use the

word "separate". They had a loan of $625,000. If

they repaid $100,000, presumably they could have

raised it back again to $625,000. Mr. Hall did not

say that he wanted it understood that the accept-

ance arrangement would be separate and apart

from the indebtedness downstairs. He used the
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word "separate", and he referred to the loan of

$625,000. The essence of the statement is that he

wanted it considered separate from the loan line of

$625,000. At the time this com^ersation occurred,

Mr. Hall told me that the Richfield Oil Company

wanted to get as large a sum as possible on the ac-

ceptance line. At no time did Mr. Hall say to me

or to Mr. Lipman that the Richfield Oil Company

was in a position to make any pa^mient upon the

$625,000.

I knew that an additional loan had been made to

Richfield in July. This was not to meet interest.

When Mr. Hall came to San Francisco in May,

1931, I do not remember his having stated that it

had been understood that the collections placed by

him in the l^ank should be kept separate and apart

from other transactions. I heard Mr. Gilstrap

testify to the effect that Mr. Hall had said that he

had an interest in these transactions and that they

were supposed to have been kept separate and [313]

apart. He had already had a conversation with

Mr. Gilstrap. I was called out because the answer

of Mr. Gilstrap on the subject had been "no". I

went out and talked to him and while I was there

those statements were not made. Mr. Hall told

Mr. Gilstrap in my presence that the bank in Los

Angeles was discounting the foreign paper of Rich-

field Oil Company.
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I did not see Mr. Hall or Mr. Pope when they

called in the office the morning of October 6th, so

have no knowledge whatever as to what transpired

betw^een ^Ir. Pope and Mr. Gilstrap and Mr. Hall

and Mr. Leuenberger.

Redirect Examination:

In February, 1931, when the question of the re-

ceivership came up, I had occasion to go over the

records and files of the bank and discuss this matter

in question. After Mr. Hall gave his deposition 1

read over that deposition and advised my attorneys

as to the part I disagreed with, and at their request

I started to refresh my recollection from the rec-

ords that were available.

Recross Examination.

I read from day to day all the letters that are

sent out by the Foreign Department. They are all

examined by me after they have been sent. We
keep a copy in the Mailing Department that comes

down to me every morning. I do not read the cor-

respondence coming into the department unless I

find it necessary. From time to time I had read

each of the letters eminating from the bank that has

been introduced in evidence by the plaintiff in

this case. I read the letters from the bank in which

it was undertaken to describe the collection of the

proceeds of the drafts and the application of those

proceeds in anticipation of acceptances. I never at

any time sent to the Richfield Oil Company any

letter undertaking to qualify the contents of any of
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the letters which we have introduced in evidence.

In connection with the return of the proceeds

amounting to $7700, referred to in the letter dated

February 28, 1931, I read all of the [314] corre-

spondence that passed between the Richfield Oil

(^ompany and the receiver and the bank.

I was familiar at least within a day after each of

the letters of the Foreign Department was written

by the bank, with each of the letters which has been

introduced in evidence.

FREDERICK L. LIPMAN

was then called as a witness for defendant, and

testified as follows:

Direct Examination

I have been engaged in the banking Imsiness

something over 49 years. I have been connected

with the Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., its

predecessor, the Wells Fargo Nevada National

Bank, and its predecessor, the Wells Fargo & Co.,

the whole period of 49 years. My present position

with the Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. is

president. I have held that position since 1920. I

was president in the fall of 1930, and in the winter

and spring of 1931.

I received a visit from a representative of the

Foreign Department of the Richfield Oil Company
in the month of August, 1930. This representative,

Mr. Hall, stated that there had been some prior
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discussion as to this line of business, and I think

I said something to the effect that if these drafts

were good security, that is, if they were drawn on

people we had confidence in, we could regard those

as collateral for an acceptance credit. This repre-

sentative assured me that the drafts were quite all

right. I cannot make a credit for the bank with-

out putting a figure on it. I suggested that the

credit might be $150,000 or $250,000. We could

not lay much stress between one sum or another be-

cause it was to be governed by these drafts. That

appeared to be quite acceptable to this represen-

tative. [315]

I do not recollect that anything was said by Mr.

Hall to me on that occasion that he was a partner

of Richfield or had any participation with the

Eich field Oil Company in the business of the For-

eign Department of that company. Had such a

thing been said, I certainly would have remembered

it because we would not be dealing with the prin-

cipal then if we were dealing with a mixed interest.

It seems to me that as the conversation came to an

end Mr. Hall said something to the effect that he

represented the Foreign Department and not the

general treasury relations of the company, and he

did not want the two mixed up; he wanted them

kept separately. No discussion was had at that

conference with respect to a bankers lien.

Subsequent to the appointment of the receiver,

we tried to keep in touch with the affairs of the
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Eichfield Oil Company in the hands of its receiver,

and reports were made to me from time to time

with respect to the affairs of Richfield.

The answer to the question as to whether on num-

erous occasions from and after the appointment of

the receiver, the question of the Wells Fargo Bank's

right, if it had any, to exercise a bankers lien

against the proceeds of the drafts in the Foreign

Department, is "no", because we never had any

discussion as to our rights; we discussed procedure.

The question asked me w^as, did w^e ever discuss

our rights; the answer to that is '*no".

At or about the time of the correspondence marked

Plaintiff's Exhibits 106, 107 and 108, with reference

to the return by the bank of the moneys which were

then ill its hands on collections from the Foreign

Department, I recall discussions taking place with

respect thereto. At that time I and other executives

of the bank were in touch, or thought we were in

touch with the financial con- [316] dition of the

Richfield Oil Company.

JULIAN EISENBACH

was then called as a witness for defendant and

testified as follows:

Direct Examination:

I am vice president of the Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co. in charge of the Credit Depart-
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ment. I have been connected with the Wells Fai\^o

Bank & Union Trust Co. for 34 years. I have been

vice president for 16 years. I am generally familiar

with the affairs of the Richiield Oil Company and

the loans of the Wells Fargo Bank to it prior to

the receivership of that company. Since the re-

ceivership, I have endeavored to keep in touch with

the affairs of the receivership, and I have from time

to time conferred with Mr. McDuffie.

Mr. McDuffie has called upon the Wells Fargo

Bank upon two or three occasions since his appoint-

ment as receiver, and has discussed with me and

other officials of the bank the method of endeavor-

ing to work out the affairs of the receivership.

In the latter part of September or the early part

of October, 1930, I had some conversation with Mr.

McKee, vice president and comptroller of the Rich-

field Oil Company, regarding some foreign credits.

This conversation was in his office in the Richfield

Building in Los Angeles. He brought up the ques-

tion of foreign credit, and mentioned a large

amount. That was some work that I had not been

accustomed to handling. He mentioned some large

amount in connection with a firm in Calcutta. I

knew little or nothing about the thing, ])ut in my
position as head of the Credit Department I thought

it was incumbent upon me to get some information

as to the standing of that company. I went outside

and telephoned [317] Mr. Leuenberger and asked

him to check up this particular firm in Calcutta,
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India. The name of the firm was Birla Bros. My
conference with Mr. McKee took place prior to the

receipt on October 6th of Defendant's Exhibit "F",

the cablegram from Calcutta, India.

I am not connected with the Foreign Department

of the Wells Fargo Bank and do not arrange for

credits in the Foreign Department, so I did not

have any negotiations with Mr. Hall or with any

other representative of the Richfield Oil Company

except this conversation with Mr. McKee prior to

the establishment of the acceptance credit.

On the 15th day of January, I received informa-

tion that the affairs of the Richfield Oil Company

were a])out to he put in the hands of a receiver. I

received the telegram from William C. McDuffie,

as receiver, addressed to Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. under date of January 16, 1931, being

Plaintiff's Exhibit 2.

I am acquainted with Mr. Nolan, formerly the

head official of the Bank of America at Los An-

geles. I do not recall any conversation had by me
with Mr. Nolan on the 16th day of January with

reference to some meeting of bankers that took

place in Los Angeles. I am not prepared to state

definitely that that conversation did not take place.

After the receipt of the telegram marked Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 2, we sent them a telegram. Prior to

sending that telegram, the Wells Fargo Bank had
not been doing anything with reference to a bank
deposit standing in the name of Richfield Oil Com-
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pany. Subsequent to the sending of that telegram

we waited for an answer to come from Mr. Mc-

Duffie before doing anything in the matter. Prior

to the time that this telegram was sent, I had in-

formation as to the existence of drafts and foreign

collections in the Foreign Department, and prior

to sending the telegram I communicated with Fred-

erick Hellman, who was in charge of the Foreign

Department, [318] and also with Mr. Motherwell,

the vice president.

To the best of my recollection, I wrote that tele-

gram at Mr. Motherwell's desk and conferred with

him about it. Then I sent it up to him. He sent

word out that it agreed with his conclusions and to

send it out.

I received the telegram marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 13. I sent the telegram marked Plaintiif'

s

Exhibit 14. The sum mentioned therein was trans-

ferred to the credit of the receiver of the Richfield

Oil Company as stated in the the telegram.

On May 11, 1931, a telephone conversation toolv

place between me and Mr. McDuffie. Mr. McDuffie

rang me up and said, "I have just received notice

that the bank has applied $145,000 on its lien, I am
aware that you have reserved that right by your

telegram of January 16th, and now you have exer-

cised the lien, I don't think it is playing cricket".

That is about all that Mr. McDuffie said. I told

him that I was not aware of the fact as I had been

in Los Angeles. I told him I would look into it
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and ring him back. I am absolutely positive that

"Sir. McDuffie did not say that he considered it an

a]isolute violation of the agreement that had been

entered into between the banks or that he considered

it a violation of his own agreement as represented

by his telegram.

I met Mr. Hall shortly after the time that I had

the conversation with Mr. McDuffie. To the best of

my recollection Frederick Hellman brought him

down to my desk. He wanted us to reverse our de-

cision respecting our bankers lien. I told him that

was a step that had been taken by Mr. Motherwell,

another officer of the bank, and that he would have

to see him. I took him downstairs immediately to

see Mr. Motherwell, and he made a similar plea to

him, Tlie ultimate decision was "no".

As part of my duties I attempted to remain

familiar with [319] the affairs of the Richfield Oil

Company during the months of January, February,

March, April and May, 1931, and I was aware of

the ups and downs that took place during those

months. I reported those ups and downs to Mr.

Motherwell and Mr. Lipman. In the month of Feb-

ruary, 1931, the condition was more up than down.

In May, 1931, a very grave situation faced the

Richfield Oil Company. I thought that bankruptcy

was imminent.

Cross Examination.

I keep notes of the telephonic conversations oc-

curring between me and other parties if it is im-
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portant enough. I take them down in shorthand.

I have been able to write shorthand ever since I

left grammar school, about 38 years ago. It has

been my practice all along in my notes and memo-
randa of important conversations to write them in

shorthand.

I have been more or less familiar with the affairs

of the Richfield Oil Company for some period of

time prior to the date upon which Mr. McDuffie

was appointed receiver of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany. This period would include three or four

3^ears. I made trips to Los Angeles prior to Janu-

ary 15, 1931, on the average of three or four times

a 3'ear, and on these occasions had spent some time

in investigating the financial affairs of Richfield.

Shortly i^rior to the 15th day of January, 1931, I

spent several days making an investigation with

respect to the affairs of Richfield. During my exam-

ination into the affairs of Richfield I learned that

it was obligated to a number of banks throughout

the United States in a substantial amount of money

—in an amount of approximately $10,000,000. I

knew generally the financial situation of Richfield

Oil Company prior to the month of October, 1931.

Prior to coming to the courtroom I had upon

occasions conferred with officials of the bank for the

purpose of refreshing [320] my recollection con-

cerning the matters testified to here. I examined

the correspondence that we had with Mr. McDufjfie

with respect to transferring the balance in the

checking account and our bankers lien.
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On or about the 7tli day of May, 1931, I was in

Los Angeles. My telephone conversation with Mr.

McDuffie was four or five days after May 8, 1931.

I think I was in Los Angeles on May 8, 1931. I had

returned to San Francisco approximately two or

three days before this telephonic conversation. Be-

tween the date of my return to San Francisco and

the date upon which this conversation occurred, I

had not heard anything at all about the bank off-

setting any of the cash balance in its possession

against the indebtedness due from the Richfield Oil

Company. A few days prior to May 8, 1931, I had

a conversation with Mr. McDuffie in Los Angeles.

Between the date of that conversation and the date

of the telephonic conversation between me and Mr.

McDuffie, I had not communicated by letter or tele-

phone or telegram with the l^ank, l)ut I rendered a

report when I returned to San Francisco. This

report was in writing.

My telephonic conversation with Mr. McDuffie

occurred several days after the 8th day of May,

1931. There is a way by wdiich I can refresh my
recollection so as to be able to tell the date on

which that conversation occurred.

(Here the record shows that counsel for defend-

ant handed to counsel for plaintiif a memoran-

dum dated May 11, 1931.)

Until Mr. McDuffie gave me the information I

had no knowledge that the bank had attempted to
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exercise its bankers lien upon these particular col-

lections.

Between the 15th of January, 1931, and my visit

to Los Angeles during the early part of May, 1931,

I made no inquiry of Mr. [321] McDuffie for the

purpose of obtaining the financial condition of the

Eichfield Oil Company. I did not testify that any-

body made a threat of bankruptcy. I said I thought

l)ankruptcy was impending. Nobody had said that

they were going to put them into bankruptcy. There

was a danger of bankruptcy. I can name no in-

dividual who made any threat of putting them into

bankruptcy. I knew that during the early part of

February, 1931, the Richfield Oil Company had to

meet its obligations to the State of California ])ased

upon its gasoline tax obligation, and that this w^as

a very substantial obligation. There was a threat

of danger back in January, 1931, but to a greater

degree later on. I have not attempted to say that

anybody told me that the Richfield Oil Company
w^ould be put into bankruptcy. My judgment told

me that there was a danger of bankruptcy. The

danger was not so acute in January and February

of 1931. No petition to put the Richfield Oil Com-

pany into bankruptcy has ever been filed even

down to the present time. I learned while I was

in Los Angeles during the early part of May, 1931,

that it was necessary for the Richfield Oil Company
to pay taxes upon its property. I recall that among-

other things on or about the 15th or 16th of Jan-



458 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

(Testimony of Julian Eisenbach.)

uaiy, 1931, Mr. McDuffie sent to the bank a certified

copy or at least a copy of the order appointing him

receiver and that document came under my obser-

vation. I don't remember whether or not I read

the order appointing him receiver.

We received the telegram marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit 2. I read this telegram. After the receipt of

this telegram I sent to the receiver the telegram

dated January 16th, marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 3.

Then a series of telegrams and correspondence

passed between me and Mr. McDuffie.

To my knowledge Mr. McDuffie did not visit the

bank during the period of time intervening between

the 15th of January, 1931, and the 8th day of

May, 1931.

I met Mr. Hall in San Francisco shortly after

my return from Los Angeles. We participated in

a brief conversation. I believe Mr. Gilstrap was

present at the time of this conversation. I am [323]

sure that during the course of this conversation Mr.

Hall made no statement to me or to the other

parties present that he had supposed that these

particular funds were kept separate and apart from

the general indebtedness due to the bank. I am
certain that nothing of this kind occurred because

it would have made a marked impression on me.

Redirect Examination:

My discussion with Mr. McDuffie on the occasion

of my visit to him in Los Angeles prior to his

telephone message of May 11, 1931, was on the
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subject of the general standing of the comi^any;

a sort of progress report. There was no discussion

as to the right of the Wells Fargo Bank to offset

as against these foreign collections. During the

period of time of the appointment of the receiver

up to the month of May, 1931, the Richtield Oil

Com^Dany had certain periods of financial stress

and at one point the financial stress was met by

l)orrowing money from the Cities Service Corpora-

tion and subsequently borrowing on receiver's

certificates.

Recross Examination

:

Aside from the telegrams relating to the question

of set-off and restoration of funds, I had no com-

munication from Mr. McDuffie from the date of his

appointment and the date of my visit to Los An-

geles.

Further Redirect Examination:

During this period of time I was in communi-

cation with Mr. Nolan and the other bankers in-

vestigating the affairs of the Richfield Oil Com-

pany. On the subject of the advance of moneys to

the Richfield Oil Company, it is a fact that a rep-

resentative of our attorneys went to Los Angeles

and investigated it during the period in question.
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R. B. MOTHERWELL
was tlieii called as a witness for defendant and

testified as follows : [323]

Direct Examination:

I am vice president of Wells Fargo Bank &

Union Trust Co., and have held that position a

little over five years. Prior to that time I was

with the Federal Reserve Bank for a period of

eight years. I have heen in the banking world one

way or another for the past fifteen or twenty years.

During the months of January, February, March,

April and May of 1931, I participated in confer-

ences in Wells Fargo Bank with respect to the

affairs of Richfield Oil Company. During that

period of time the condition of the receivership

was under discussion many times. Mr. Eisenbach

w^as delegated to the position of keeping in touch

with the affairs of the Richfield Oil Company as

they progressed from time to time during the re-

ceivership. He made reports from time to time to

the executive officers of the bank and to me and to

Mr. Lipman with respect to the affairs of the

Richfield Oil Company and its receivership. Dur-

ing this period of time consideration was given in

these conferences held in Wells Fargo Bank with

respect to the bank's position with reference to a

bankers lien or offset on the general indebtedness

of the Richfield Oil Company to it. That was con-

sidered on more than one occasion. The fact that

there were drafts collected and drafts in the pro-

cess of collection by the Foreign Department of
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Wells Fargo Bank was considered from time to

time by me, Mr. Lipman, Mr. Ilellman and other

officials of the bank. I read Plaintiff's Exhibit 2

and discussed its contents with Mr. Eisen])ach.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 3 was considered by me and

Mr. Eisenbach, and I am familiar with that docu-

ment. Prior to the sending of the telegram there

had been a discussion between me and Mr. Eisen-

bach, and I participated in the preparation of the

telegram. We went over the telegram carefully.

We had received information from Mr. Hellman

with respect to the collections in the Foreign De-

[324] partment then outstanding. He advised me
that there w^ere collections in the Foreign Depart-

ment under process of collection under an arrange-

ment with Richfield Oil Company.

As a banker, I have liad experience with bankers

liens and from time to time I have had the neces-

sity of considering bankers liens. On the 16th of

January, 1931, when I sent that telegram, I had a

definite understanding as to l^ankers liens.

About May 11th or 12th, 1931, I met Mr. TTall.

Mr. Eisenbach and Mr. Gilstrap brought him to ray

office. The tenor of the conversation with him

was with respect to the restoration of the funds

covered by certain collections to the receiver for

the Richfield Oil Company.

Mr. Hall made absolutely no statement to me at

that time that he had an interest in the collections

in the Foreign Department of the Richfield Oil

Company, nor did he say that there was an under-
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standing with the Wells Fargo Bank that the

matter was to be kept separate and apart.

Cross Examination:

I kept no memorandum of conversations occur-

ring between me and Mr. Hall. Mr. Hall made no

statement in my presence that he had supposed the

collections had been kept separate and apart from

the general indebtedness due to the bank. As vice

president of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co. I am kept pretty busy during my office hours.

I come in contact with many individuals, that is

with many customers and patrons of the bank, as

Avell as subordinates in the bank. My time is pretty

well occupied in consulting with various customers

and patrons of the bank and in attending to

matters called to my attention hy my subordinates

in the bank. My time has been pretty well oc-

cupied in rendering that character of service from

the date on which Mr. Hall's interview occurred

down to the present time. [325] Until within the

last few weeks my attention was not directed to

the conversation occurring between myself and Mr.

Hall in the month of May, 1931. I have talked

about this matter with Mr. Gilstrap and Mr. Hell-

man for the purpose of refreshing my recollection

so as to enable me to testify. Mr. Gilstrap did not

tell me about his experience on the stand as a wit-

ness. I have talked very little about the case. I

have looked at a few memoranda to refresh my
memory and tried to get the dates.
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At the time the telegram, Plaintiff's Exhibit 3,

was prepared, I read over carefully the receiver's

telegram to the bank dated January 16, 1931, and

I was familiar with its contents at the time the

telegram marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 3 was pre-

pared.

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter dated

March 14, 1931, from Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. to Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe,

and said letter was received in evidence and

marked Defendant's Exhibit "M". Said letter re-

quested Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe to pre-

pare a claim for the bank against the receiver of

Richfield Oil Company, giving the name of the re-

ceiver, his address, and the date by which the claim

should be filed.

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter from

Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe to AYells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. dated March 27, 1931.

Said letter was received in evidence and marked

Defendant's Exhibit "N". Said letter stated that

the claim against the Richfield Oil ComiDany had

been prepared and was enclosed for the signature

by the proper officer.

Defendant then offered in evidence a letter dated

March 27, 1931, from Heller, Ehrman, White &
McAuliffe to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., and said letter was received in evidence and

marked Defendant's Exhibit "O". Said letter

stated that the claim of the bank against the Rich-

field Oil Company for services rendered by the
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[326] l)ank as registrar was enclosed and requested

that it be signed by the proper officer.

Defendant then offered in evidence a document

entitled "Stipulation" with the title of the Court

and cause of the action in which the receiver of

Richfield Oil Company was appointed, and said

document was received in evidence and marked

Defendant's Exhibit "P". Said document was a

stipulation between William C. McDuffie, receiver,

and Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., by which

it was stipulated that the petition of Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. for an Order directing

(Testimony of R. B. Motherwell.)

the receiver to accept an amendment to its proof

of claim might be filed and that an Order be made

authorizing the bank to file the amendment to proof

of claim and instructing the receiver to receive

the same for filing. It was further stipulated

therein that the acceptance of proof of claim for

filing would be without prejudice to the rejection

thereof or the making of any objection to its con-

tents and without prejudice to the rights of the

receiver in the present action.

Defendant then offered in evidence an Order

of the CoTirt in the action hy which the receiver

was appointed by which it was ordered that de-

fendant he authorized to file its amendment to proof

of claim ; that the receiver be instructed to receive

and accept the same for filing, and that the same

'was wdthout prejudice to the rights of the receiver

in the same respects as hereinabove set forth with

respect to the stipulation. Said document was re-
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eeived in evidence and marked Defendant's Ex-

hibit "Q".

Defendant then offered in evidence an amend-

ment to proof of claim filed in the action by which

the receiver of the Richfield Oil Company was ap-

pointed and said document was received in evi-

dence and marked Defendant's Exhibit "R". Said

document stated that at the time of the preparation

of the original claim against the [327] receiver

for the general indebtedness of Richfield Oil Com-

pany to Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

the information for said claim had been compiled

and delivered by the Note Department of the Wells

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., w^hich was a sep-

arate department from the Foreign Department;

that said Note Department had no records in its

department of collateral or other security deposited

with the Foreign Department, or any other depart-

ment ; that through inadvertence and lack of knowl-

edge by the Note Department said original claim

stated that there were no offsets or counterclaims

to the debt set forth in said claim and that no

securities w^ere held by the claimant for said in-

debtedness, w^hereas the facts were that unknown

to the Note Department the drafts and the pro-

ceeds thereof involved in the present action were

held in the Foreign Department as security for all

of said indebtedness, and that pursuant to the

terms of the acceptance agreements introduced in

evidence in the present case these drafts were held

as security for all liability of Richfield Oil Company
to Wells Fargo Bank, and that pursuant likewise
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to the laws of the State of California with respect

to bankers' liens, claimant asserted a lien upon said

drafts and upon all the proceeds thereof. Said

claim further set forth the telegrams of the 16th

of January, 1931, marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 2

and 3, and stated that by virtue of said telegrams

the lien against these drafts and the proceeds

thereof had been reserved.

Defendant rested.

Counsel for complainant then moved the Court

for a Judgment in favor of complainant in the

sum of $144,758.79 principal, being the principal

sum upon the drafts in litigation heretofore col-

lected by defendant and then in its possession, to-

gether with interest on that sum at the legal rate

from the date on which said moneys came [328]

into the possession of defendant to the date of

Judgment.

It was then stipulated that the Amended Bill

of Complaint be considered amended so as to pray

for a money judgment.

Counsel for defendant thereupon moved the

Court to strike the testimony of Mr. Nolan and

Mr. McDuffie in so far as the same relates in any

manner whatsoever to a conference or purported

conference held at Los Angeles at, about or sub-

sequent to the appointment of the receiver, be-

tween Mr. McDuffie and the various bankers, said

motion being made upon the ground that the de-

fendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. was

not ]oresent or represented at that conference; that
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what took place was out of the presence of the de-

fendant and is not binding in any way upon it.

Furthermore, that this testimony as to what was

said and done at that conference is hearsay with

respect to defendant and is not binding upon it.

Counsel for defendant further moved the Court to

strike from the record all testimony given upon

direct examination or otherwise by Mr. Hall and

Mr. Pope with respect to any agreement or pur-

ported agreement between Richfield Oil Company
and Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., or be-

tween Mr. Hall and Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., that there be kept separate and apart

the transactions of the Foreign Department of

Eichfield Oil Company with the Foreign Depart-

ment of Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

from other general transactions of Richfield Oil

Company with the bank, said motion being made on

the ground that testimony with respect to said agree-

ment or purported agreement is an attempt by

jDarol evidence to change the terms of a written

agreement, which agreement had ])een introduced

by complainant in evidence and which binds the

complainant and no evidence can be introduced

to change by parol the terms of that agreement,

said agreement referred to being "Acceptance

Agreement", Plaintiff's Exhibit 16. [329]

Counsel for defendant then further moved the

Court that Judgment for the defendant be entered,

that complainant take nothing by his complaint,

and that defendant be hence dismissed with costs

of suit and for such further relief as the Court

may grant, quieting the title of this defendant to
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the proceeds of the drafts, the subject matter of

this litigation.

Counsel for defendant further moved the Court

for Special Findings of Fact and Conclusions of

Law, as per request theretofore served on counsel

for complainant and filed in writing with the Court,

as follows:

"Comes now WELLS FARGO BANK &
UNION TRUST CO., the defendant in the

above entitled action and hereby requests the

Court, that, in rendering and making its Judg-

ment in the above entitled action, said Court

make specific Findings of Fact and Conclu-

sions of Law upon the following issues included

in said action as follows:

FINDINGS OF FACT
1. The drafts, the proceeds of which are the

subject of this action, were deposited by the

Richfield Oil Company of California with de-

fendant herein under and by virtue of a writ-

ten contract designated 'Acceptance Agree-

ment', dated October 4, 1930, executed by said

Richfield Oil Company of California, and

under and by virtue of the supplemental ac-

ceptance agreement dated November 28th,

1930, each of which said agreements provides

that any and all documents of title, money and

goods held by said Wells Fargo Bank & L^nion

Trust Co. as security for any acceptance of

said Richfield Oil Company of California,

shall also be held by said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co. as security for any other
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liability from said Richfield Oil Company of

California to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. whether existing at the time of the

execution of said agreements or thereafter

contracted.

2. There was only one agreement with re-

spect to said drafts or any thereof and the

proceeds thereof existing between defendant

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. and said

Richfield Oil Company of California, and said

agreement consisted of the aforesaid accept-

ance agreement dated October 4, 1930 as sup-

plemented by the acceptance agreement dated

November 28, 1930. All drafts for presentation

or collection in foreign countries deposited by

said Richfield Oil Company of California with

defendant from the seventh day of October,

1930 up to January 15, 1931, the date of the

appointment of the plaintiff as receiver herein,

were deposited pursuant to said agreement,

and in this respect the Court finds that there

was no agreement entered into between said

Richfield Oil Company of California and de-

fendant that any of said drafts were to be de-

posited solely for the purpose of collection or

otherwise than under said agreement and pur-

suant to the terms, conditions and covenants

thereof. [330]

3. The drafts and proceeds which form the

subject of this action are and at all times since

the appointment of the receiver of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California have been sub-
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ject to defendant's right of set off or bankers'

lien for the past due indebtedness of said Rich-

field Oil Company of California to defendant

in the sum of $625,000.00 and interest.

4. No agreement was entered into at, prior

or subsequent to the deposit of said drafts,

the proceeds of which form the subject of this

action, wherein and whereby defendant agreed

to waive its right of set off or bankers' lien or

in which the defendant agreed not to apply

said drafts or the proceeds thereof against said

indebtedness of said Richfield Oil Company of

California to defendant in the sum of $625,-

000.00 and interest.

5. Defendant did not hy any agreement,

writing, statement, act or deed at, prior or

subsequent to the deposit of said drafts or any

thereof by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia waive its right of set off or bankers'

lien or waive its right to apply said drafts or

the proceeds thereof as against said indebted-

ness of said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia to defendant in the sum of $625,000.00

and interest.

6. That no agreement was entered into at,

prior or subsequent to the appointment of the

plaintiff as receiver of said Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California wherein or whereby de-

fendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

agreed to waive its right of set off or bankers'

lien or in which said defendant agreed not to

apply said drafts or the proceeds thereof as
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against said indebtedness of said Richfield Oil

Company of California to defendant in tlie sum

of $625,000.00 and interest.

7. Defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. did not by any agreement, writing,

statement, act or deed at, prior or subsequent

to the appointment of plaintiff as receiver of

said Eichfield Oil Company of California waive

its right of set off or bankers' lien or its right

to apply the said drafts or the proceeds thereof

as against said indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California to said defendant

in the sum of $625,000.00 and interest.

8. Defendant Wells Fargo Bank k Union

Trust Co. is not estopped by any agreement,

w^riting, statement, act or deed to exercise its

right of set off or bankers' lien or its right to

apply the said drafts or the proceeds thereof

as against said indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California to defendant in the

sum of $625,000.00 and interest.

9. Neither the plaintiff nor any other per-

sons herein in any w^ay involved were at any

time directly or indirectly damaged or injured

by any agreement, writing, statement, act or

deed of defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. wdth respect to the drafts and/or

proceeds thereof subject of this litigation.

[331]

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1. Under and by virtue of the said '*Accept-

ance Agreement" dated October 4, 1930, ex-



472 Wells Fargo Bank etc, Co.

ecuted by said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, and as supplemented by said accept-

ance agreement dated November 28, 1930, de-

fendant is entitled to apply the proceeds of all

the aforementioned drafts to the satisfaction

of the said indebtedness of Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California to defendant Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. in the sum of $625,-

000.00 and interest.

2. Defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. is entitled to apply the proceeds of

all of said drafts to the satisfaction of said

indebtedness of Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia to it under the provisions of law giving

to said defendant a bankers' lien or right of

set off.

3. Defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. has not at any time by agreement,

writing, statement, act or deed waived its right

of set off or bankers' lien or its right to apply

said drafts or the proceeds thereof to the satis-

faction of said indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil Company of California to it.

4. Defendant Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. is not estopped to apply said drafts

or the proceeds thereof to the satisfaction of

said inde])tedness of said Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California to it.

5. Plaintiff, receiver herein, is not entitled

to recover from defendant Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. in any sum whatsoever by

reason of his complaint on file herein, and is
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not entitled to any of the relief sought by him
herein and this defendant Wells Fargo Bank
& Union Trust Co. is entitled to be hence dis-

missed in this action with its costs of suit

herein incurred.

Dated: San Francisco, California, this 16th

day of July, 1932."

The cause was then ordered to be submitted

upon the tiling of briefs by the parties.

The above and foregoing is all the material evi-

dence introduced at the trial of said cause and al»^

proceedings had in the trial thereof.

WHEREFORE Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co., defendant and appellant, prays that the

above statement of evidence be settled, approved

and allowed by the above entitled Court as a true,

full and [332] correct and complete statement of

all the evidence taken and given on the trial of

said cause for use on the appeal taken to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

Dated: this 13th day of November, 1933.

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE & McAULIFFE,
Attorneys for Appellant.

Service of the foregoing Engrossed Statement

of Evidence and receipt of a copy thereof this 14th

day of November, 1933, is hereby admitted and

acknowledged.

SULLIVAN, ROCHE, JOHNSON & BARRY
GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN,
Attorneys for Complainant and Appellee.
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IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED that the fore-

going Statement of Evidence is true and correct

and is agreed to as a correct statement under Para-

graph B of Equity Rule 75 and the lodgment

thereof in the Clerk's office for the examination of

the plaintiff and notice of such lodgment and the

time when the same will be presented to the Judge

for approval, are hereby waived, and the same

may be approved by the Judge at once without

notice.

HELLER, EHRMA^, WHITE & McAULIFFE,
Attorneys for defendant and appellant.

SULLIVAN, ROCHE, JOHNSON & BARRY
GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN,

Attorneys for plaintiff and appellee.

The foregoing statement of evidence is in all re-

spects hereby approved and settled as a true and

complete statement of the evidence adduced on the

trial of tlie above entitled action.

Dated: this 16th day of November, 1933.

FRANK H. NORCROSS,
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 16, 1933. [334]
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(Title of Court and Cause.)

PETITION FOR APPEAL.

To the HONORABLE, FRANK H. NORCROSS,
Judge of the United States District Court for

the Northern District of California, Southern

Division

:

The petition of WELLS FARGO BANK &
UNION TRUST CO., a [335] corporation, com-

plainant herein, respectfully represents:

That your petitioner, the above named defendant,

conceiving itself aggrieved by the decree made and

entered on the 13th day of May, 1933, in the above

entitled matter in the above entitled Court, does

hereby appeal from said Order and Decree to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, for the reasons specified in the

Assignment of Errors which is filed herewith.

WHEREFORE your petitioner prays that this

appeal be allowed and that the amount of the cost

bond be fixed and that said appeal be made re-

turnable to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit according to law; and

that a duly authenticated transcript of the records,

proceedings and papers and exhibits upon which

said Decree was made be filed with the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

Dated: this 10th day of August, 1933.

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE & McAULIFFE,
Attorneys for petitioner and appellant.
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Service of a copy of the foregoing Petition for

Appeal is hereby acknowledged this 10th day of

August, 1933.

GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN
SULLIVAN, ROCHE, JOHNSON & BARRY

Attorneys for complaint and appellee.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 10, 1933. [336]

(Title of Court and Cause.)

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

Now comes WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO., a corporation, defendant and ap-

pellant in the above entitled cause, and respectfully

states that there are errors in the records, pro-

ceedings and decree in said cause in the District

Court for the Northern District of California,

Southern Division, and files the following Assign-

ment of Errors upon which it will rely in the

prosecution of the appeal here- [337] with peti-

tioned for in said cause from the decree of said

Court made and entered on the 13th day of May,

1933:

I.

The District Court for the Northern District of

California, Southern Division, erred in granting a

decree ordering the payment to complainant by de-

fendaiit of the sinn of $163,305.85, for the reason

that it appears from the record in this case that

defendant is entitled to retain said sum and that
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coniplaiiiant is not entitled to the same or any

part thereof.

11.

Said Court erred in holding and deciding that the

drafts, the proceeds of which are the subject of

this action, were not deposited hy Richfield Oil

Company of California with defendant herein

imder and pursuant to the contract designated "Ac-

ceptance Agreement", dated October 4, 1930, ex-

ecuted by said Richfield Oil Company of California,

or under and by virtue of the supplemental accept-

ance agreement dated November 28, 1930, each of

which said agreements provides that any and all

documents of title, money and goods held by de-

fendant as security for any acceptance of said

Richfield Oil Company of California shall also be

held by defendant as security for any other liability

from said Richfield Oil Company of California to

defendant whether existing at the time of the ex-

ecution of said agreements or thereafter con-

tracted.

(a) Said Court erred in holding and deciding

that the bankers acceptances drawn by said Rich-

field Oil Company of California on defendant were

secured only by foreign drafts of said Richfield Oil

Company of California of an aggregate amount

slightly in excess of the amount of acceptances so

issued, and only by drafts having a maturity

shorter than the maturity of said acceptances, the

[338] proceeds of which could be and actually were

received by defendant in San Francisco at least one
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day before the maturity date of the accei^tances

secured thereby.

(b) Said Court erred in holding and deciding

that defendant did not have the right to apply

the proceeds of the drafts which are the subject

of this action to the payment of the past due in-

debtedness of said Eichtield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia to defendant in the sum of $625,000 and

interest.

(c) Said Court erred in holding and deciding

that said acceptance agreement dated October 4,

1930, as supplemented by said acceptance agree-

ment dated November 28, 1930, did not constitute

the sole agreement entered into between said Rich-

field Oil Company of California and defendant with

respect to the drafts deposited by said Richfield

Oil Company of California with defendant for pre-

sentation or collection in foreign countries during

the period commencing October 7, 1930, and ending

with the appointment of complainant as receiver

of said Richfield Oil Company of California on

January 15, 1931.

(d) Said Court erred in holding and deciding

that there was an oral agreement entered into by

and between said Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia and defendant whereby the drafts, the pro-

ceeds of which are the subject of this action, were

deposited with defendant for collection only and

not as security for the acceptances drawn by said

Richfield Oil Company of California upon de-

fendant.



vs. Willimii C. McDuffie 479

III.

Said Court erred in finding that in the month

of August 1930, or at any time, an oral agreement

was entered into by and between said Richfield Oil

Company of California and defendant that the

transactions respecting the deposit and collection

of said drafts [339] should be separate and apart

from all other financial transactions of said Rich-

field Oil Company with defendant.

IV.

Said Court erred not alone in holding and de-

ciding that there was an agreement between said

Richfield Oil Company of California and defend-

ant to the effect that the transactions respecting the

deposit and collection of said drafts were to ])e

kept separate and apart from all other transac-

tions of said Richfield Oil Company of California

with defendant, but said Court further erred in

holding and deciding that such agreement consti-

tuted a waiver by defendant of its right to a bank-

ers lien on said drafts and the proceeds thereof,

and a waiver of its right to offset said proceeds

against the past due indebtedness of said Richfield

Oil ComjDany of California to defendant in the sum
of $625,000 and interest.

V.

Said Court erred in holding and deciding that

the drafts, or any thereof, or the proceeds thereof,

were not deposited in the ordinary course of busi-
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ness and said Court further erred in holding and

deciding that said drafts or any thereof or the

proceeds thereof were deposited with defendant

under a special agreement or for any special pur-

pose or constituted a specific deposit or trust.

yi.

Said Court erred in holding and deciding that

either prior to or subsequent to the appointment

of complainant as receiver of said Richfield Oil

Company of California, defendant by acts, conduct,

writings or statements waived its bankers lien on

the proceeds of said drafts or its right to apply

said proceeds to the payment of the said past due

indebtedness of the said Eichfield Oil Company of

California to defendant. [340]

(a) Said Court erred in holding and deciding

that subsequent to the appointment of complainant

as receiver of said Eichfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, defendant by agreement with complainant

waived its bankers lien on the proceeds of said

drafts and its right to apply said proceeds to the

payment of the said past due indebtedness of Eich-

field Oil Company of California to defendant.

(b) Said Court erred in holding and deciding

that defendant by agreement with the other bank

creditors of said Eichfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia waived its bankers lien on the proceeds of

said drafts and its right to apply said proceeds to

the payment of the said past due indebtedness of

said Eichfield Oil Company of California to de-

fendant.
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(c) Said Court erred in holding and deciding

tliat the exercise by defendant of its bankers lien

on the proceeds of said drafts and the application

of said proceeds by defendant to the payment of

said past due indebtedness of Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California to defendant was a violation

of any agreement entered into by and between de-

fendant and said other bank creditors of said Rich-

field Oil Com^Dany of California.

VII.

Said Court erred in holding and deciding that

defendant had no right to a bankers lien on said

drafts and the proceeds thereof as provided in Sec-

tion 3054 of the Civil Code of the State of Cali-

fornia, and no right to apply said proceeds to the

payment of said past due indebtedness of said

Richfield Oil Company of California to defendant.

VIII.

Said Court erred in admitting in evidence:

(a) Testimony adduced in l)ehalf of complainant

by the [341] complainant himself and the witness

Edward J. Nolan as to a meeting held on or about

January 15, 1931, between representatives of the

bank creditors of said Richfield Oil Company of

California, with the exception of defendant, and

complainant, and all conversations and statements

made at said meeting, the substance of which was

an agreement that all cash balances of said Rieli-

field Oil Company of California previously appro-

priated by said banks should be restored to the re-
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ceiver of said Richfield Oil Company of California,

and that in all cases where cash balances in said

])anks still stood to the credit of said Eichfield Oil

Company of California said banks would refrain

from appropriating the same to the satisfaction of

their claims against said Richfield Oil Company of

California. Said testimony was incompetent, irre-

levant and immaterial, hearsay, and not binding on

the defendant, and its introduction was an effort

on the part of complainant to assert an estoppel

against defendant in favor of persons not parties

to this action, to-wit, the other bank creditors of

said Richfield Oil Company of California.

(b) Letters and telegrams introduced by com-

plainant, marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 4 to 11 in-

clusive, as set forth in the narrative statement of

evidence for an appeal of this cause, being com-

munications from various bank creditors of said

Richfield Oil Company of California to complain-

ant relating to the restoration of such balances,

said documents being incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial, hearsay, and not binding on defendant,

and their introduction being an effort on the part

of complainant to assert an estoppel against de-

fendant in favor of persons not parties to this

action, to-wit, the other bank creditors of said

Richfield Oil Company of California.

(c) Testimony adduced in behalf of complainant

purporting to establish an oral agreement between

defendant and said Richfield [342] Oil Company

of California to the effect that all transactions
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concerning the deposit and collection of foreign

drafts shonld be kept separate and ajDart from all

other financial transactions of said Richfield Oil

Company of California with defendant, the pur-

pose of said testimony being to vary the terms of

said written acceptance agreements providing that

all collateral deposited as security thereunder

should likewise stand as security for all other

liabilities of said Richfield Oil Company to de-

fendant, said testimony being for that reason not

properly admissible.

WHEREFORE defendant and appellant prays

that the said decree be reversed and for such other

and further relief as to the Court may seem just

and proper.

Dated: August 10, 1933.

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE & McAULIFFE,
Attorneys for Defendant.

Service of a copy of the foregoing Assignment

of Errors is hereby acknowdedged this lOtli day of

November, 1933.

GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN
SULLIVAN, ROCHE, JOHNSON & BARRY

Attorneys for Complainant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 10, 1933. [343]

(Title of Court and Cause.)

ORDER ALLOWING APPEAL.

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a corpora-

tion, the defendant herein, having this day pre-
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sented to the above entitled Court its petition for

appeal, IT IS ORDEEED that an appeal be [344]

allowed to said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust

Co., a corporation, petitioner herein and defendant

in the above entitled action from the decree made

and entered on May 13, 1933, against said defend-

ant, and that said appeal shall be returnable to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, and that a cost bond in the sum of

Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) be executed and

filed.

IT IS FUETIIEE OEDEEED that a duly au-

thenticated transcript of the records, proceedings,

papers and all the exhibits offered in evidence by

either party upon which said decree was made, be

filed with the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit according to law, as

prayed for.

Dated: August 10th, 1933.

FEANK H. NOECEOSS,
District Judge.

Service of a copy of the foregoing Order Allow^-

ing Appeal is hereby acknowledged this 10th day

of August, 1933.

GEEGOEY, HUNT & MELVIN
SULLIVAN, EOCHE, JOHNSON & BAEEY

Attorneys for complainant and appellee.

Approved as to form, as provided in Eule 22.

GEEGOEY, HUNT & MELVIN
SULLIVAN, EOCHE, JOHNSON & BAEEY
[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 10, 1933. [345]
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(Title of Court and Cause.)

COST BOND.

Know all men by these presents:

That we, WELLS FARGO BANK & UNION
TRUST CO., a corijoration, as principal, and

HARTFORD ACCIDENT AND INDEMNITY
COMPANY, a corporation organized under the

laws of the State of Connecticut and autho- [346]

rized to transact a surety business in the State of

California, as surety, are held and firmly bound

unto WILLIAM C. McDUFFIE, as ancillary re-

ceiver of Richfield Oil Company of California, a

corporation, in the sum of Five Hundred Dollars

($500.00) to be paid to said William C. McDuffie,

as ancillary receiver of Richfield Oil Company of

California, a corporation, his attorneys, successors

and assigns, to which payment well and truly to be

made we bind ourselves, our successors and assigns,

jointly and severally, by these presents:

SEALED WITH OUR SEALS AND DATED
this 11th day of August, 1933.

WHEREAS, lately in the District Court for the

Northern District of California, Southern Division,

in a suit j)ending in said Court in the above entitled

action, a decree was rendered against Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., a corporation, defendant

in said action, and the said Wells Fargo Bank &
Union Trust Co., a corporation, having obtained an

Order from said Court allowing an appeal from

said decree of said Court, and a citation directed
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to the complaiuaut citing and admouisMng him to

be and appear at the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Xinth Circuit to be holden at

San Francisco, State of California

;

Xow the condition of the above obligation is such

that if said Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.,

a corporation, shall pay all the costs awarded or

decreed against it hy the Court in the above entitled

action, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise

to remain in full force and virtue.

WELLS FARGO BANK & UXIOX
TEUST CO.. a corporation.

By J. EISEXBACH. V. P.

By E. H. SHIXE. Assist. Cash.

Principal

HARTFORD ACCIDEXT AXD IXDEMXITY
COMPAXY. a corporation. By DOXALD
:\10LLBERG, Its Attorney in Fact.

[Seal] Surety.

[347]

The within liond is hereby approved this 11th

day of August. 1933.

FRAXK H. XORCROSS.
District Judge.

Service of a copy of the foregoing Cost Bond is

hereby acknowledged this 11th day of August, 1933.

GREGORY. HUXT & MEL^n:X
SULLIYAX. ROCHE. JOHXSOX & BARRY

Attorneys for complainant and appeUee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Aug. 11. 1933. [348]
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(Title of Court and Cause.)

PRAECIPE DESIGNATING PORTIONS OF
RECORD TO BE INCLUDED IN TRANS-

SCRIPT ON APPEAL.

To the Clerk of the above entitled Court:

YOU ARE REQUESTED to make a transcript

of record to be [349] filed in the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

pursuant to an appeal allowed in the above en-

titled cause and to include in said transcript of

record the following and no other papers or ex-

hibits :

(a) Ancillary Bill of Complaint in Equity;

(b) Answer and defenses to Ancillary Bill of

Complaint

;

(c) Ancillary Amended Bill of Complaint in

Equity;

(d) Answer and defenses to Ancillary Amended
Bill of Complaint;

(e) Findings of fact and Conclusions of Law;

(f) Decree entered May 13, 1933;

(g) Opinion of the above entitled Court;

(h) Statement of Evidence;

(i) Petition for Appeal;

(j) Order Allowing Appeal and Fixing Amount

of Bond;

(k) Cost Bond on Appeal;

(1) Assignment of Errors;

(m) Citation on Appeal; and

(n) This Praecipe for transcript of record.
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Said transcript to be x^i'epared as required by

law and the rules of this Court and the rules of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit at San Francisco, California, on or

before the 30th day of November, 1933.

HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE & McAULIFFE,
Attorneys for appellant.

Service of the above Praecipe is hereby acknowl-

edged this 17th day of November, 1933.

SULLIVAN, ROCHE, JOHNSON & BARRY
GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN

Attorneys for appellee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 17, 1933. [350]

(Title of Court and Cause.)

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK.

I, Walter B. Mating, Clerk of the District Court

of the United States, in and for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, do hereby certify the foregoing

350 pages, numbered from 1 to 350, inclusive, to

be a full, true and correct copy of the record and

proceedings as enumerated in the praecipe for

record on ajDpeal, as the same remain on file and of

record in the above entitled suit, in the office of

the Clerk of said Court and that the same consti-

tutes the record on appeal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

I further certify that the cost of the foregoing
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transcript of record is $51.10; that the said amount

was paid by the attorneys for the a^Dpellant, and

that the original Citation issued in said suit is

hereto annexed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

set my hand and affixed the seal of said District

Court this 28th day of November, A. D. 1933.

(Seal) WALTER B. MALING, Clerk.

[351] By J. P. WELSH, Deputy Clerk.

(Title of Court and Cause.)

CITATION ON APPEAL.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA —ss.

The PRESIDENT of the UNITED STATES, to

WILLIAM C. McDUFFIE, as ancillary re-

ceiver of Richfield Oil Company of California,

a corporation:

GREETING:
You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear at the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit to be holden at the City

and County of San Francisco in the State of Cali-

fornia within thirty (30) days from the date hereof

pursuant to an Order allowing an appeal, of record

in the Clerk's ofBce of the United States District

Court for the Northern District of California,

Southern Division, in a suit wherein Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co,, a corporation, is ap-

pellant and you are appellee, to show cause, if any



490 Wells Fargo Bank etc. Co.

there be, why the decree entered against the said

appellant as in the said Order allowing appeal

mentioned, should not be corrected and why speedy

justice should not be done to the parties in that

behalf.

WITNESS the HONOEABLE FRANK H.

NORCROSS, District Judge for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division, this 10th

day of August, 1933.

FRANK H. NORCROSS,
United States District Judge.

Service of a copy of the foregoing Citation is

hereby acknowledged this 10th day of August, 1933.

GREGORY, HUNT & MELVIN
SULLIVAN, ROCHE, JOHNSON & BARRY

Attorneys for complainant and appellee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Aug. 10, 1933. [352]

[Endorsed]: No. 7344. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Well?

Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., a Corporation,

Appellant, vs. William C. McDuffie, as Ancillary

Receiver of Richtield Oil Company of (California,

Appellee. Transcript of Record. Upon Appeal

from the District Court of the United States for the

Northern District of California, Southern Di-

vision.

Filed November 28, 1933.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.
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Wells Fargo Bank c^- Union Trust Co.

(a corporation),

Appellant^

vs.

William C. McDuffie, as Ancillary Receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California,

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT.

I.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

Allei^in,^' that the })roceeds of several forei,i2,n drafts,

previously deposited with appellant, Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., for collection by Richfield

Oil Company of California, had been improperly

applied by appellant to the partial satisfaction of the

general indebtedness of the Oil Company to it,

William C. McDuffte, as receiver of Richfield Oil

Company, appellee and respondent herein, commenced

this action to recover said proceeds and prosecuted

it to Judg-ment against appellant in the sum of One
Hundred Forty-four Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-



niiie and 73/100 Dollars together ^vitll interest to the

date of judgment in the sum of Nineteen Thousand

and Sixteen and 12/100 Dollars.

Broadly, the questions which this appeal presents

are (1) whether under all the circumstances appel-

lant was vested either with a contractual lien or a

banker's lien, or both, upon the drafts in question,

the existence of which would sustain the appropria-

tion of the proceeds of the drafts as aforesaid, and

(2) whether if such lien existed the bank had by

agreement or conduct waived it, or was otherwise

estopped to assert the same. The lower Court held,

erroneously appellant submits, that the bank was not

thus vested with the lien claimed by it, and further-

more that, if such lien existed, ap])ellant had waived

it.

(a) Facts.

On July 12, 1930, Richfield Oil (\)mpany of Cali-

fornia became indebted to appellant in the sum of

$625,000.00 on a promissory note payable ninety days

after date with interest at 6% per annmii. Raid note,

at the time of its execution, was unsecured.

On October 6, 1930, Richfield Oil Company com-

pleted negotiations with appellant for the transfer

of its foreign banking business to appellant from

another bank, with the facilities of which it had be-

come dissatisfied. These negotiations were conducted

in behalf of Richfield by the Manager of its Foreign

Department, Robert L. Hall, who appeared as a wit-

ness for appellee on the trial of this action; and in

behalf of appellant mainly, but not exchisively, by



the Assistant Manager of its Foreign Department,

William G. Grilstrap, who testified for appellant at

the trial.

At the time of the transactions herein involved

Richfield Oil Company was engaged extensively in

the shipment of its products to customers in foreign

countries. A search for better facilities for the collec-

tion of its drafts drawn upon these customers ulti-

mately brought it into negotiation with appellant. To

this end, Mr. Hall made three trips from Los Angeles

to San Francisco where he conferred with Mr. Gil-

strap and other officials of Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. The probative facts and circumstances

surrounding these trips will be discussed in the argu-

ment hereinafter set forth.

Since Richfield was interested in receiving advances

of credit based on its foreign drafts, rather than in

simply depositing the drafts for collection, it was

offered a choice between the discount and the accep-

tance credit method of handling draft collections. The

latter method carried a saving in collection and in-

terest charges as compared with the discount method.

Therefore the parties finally determined that the

foreign draft collection business of Richfield Oil Com-

pany with appellant should be done on an acceptance

basis.

The mechanics of the acceptance method dilfer from

those involved in the ordinary draft collection trans-

action in that the customer of the bank fii'st executes

an acceptance agreement which specifies a sum up to

which the customer may draw upon the bank by



means of acceptances based upon drafts deposited

for collection. Thereafter, when the customer deposits

drafts for collection, he draws acceptances (drafts)

on the bank in amounts agreed upon, based upon the

drafts, and the bank advances to the customer the

amount of the acceptances less the interest which it

has calculated will accrue during the period prior

to the maturity of the acceptances. The bank accepts

the acceptances (drafts), thereafter selling them in

the open market to persons interested in that type

of commercial paper. When the acceptances mature

according to their terms, the bank pays tlie holders

thereof, and reimburses itself from the proceeds of

the drafts which have been deposited as aforesaid.

In. the event there should be no proceeds of drafts

on hand at that time, the bank looks to the drawer

of the acceptances for reimbursement.

Such an acceptance agreement in favor of appellant

was executed by Richfield Oil Company (R. 252, 253,

254, 255, 256, 257), and on the 6th day of October,

1930, was delivered to appellant by Mr. Hall. The

amount specified in this agreement up to which Rich-

field Oil Company was entitled to draw acceptances

on appellant, was $150,000.00.

Among the foreign customers of Richfield at that

time was the firm of Birla Bros. Ltd., in Calcutta,

India. Each shipment from Richfield Oil Company

to this firm customarily would go forward under two

drafts, each in the amount of one-half of th(^ purchase

price of the shipment, but one of which would be

payable at sight and one payable at 180 days after



sight. When the shipment would arrive, Birla Bros,

would pay the amount of the sight draft and accept

the 180 day draft, thereby becoming entitled to the

shipping docmnents which enabled it to obtain de-

livery of the goods.

On October 8, 1930, Mr. Hall personally presented

to appellant two sets of drafts (R. 267, 270), each

drawn against separate shipments to Birla Bros. Ltd.

A letter of transmittal (R. 266, 268), personally de-

livered to appellant by Mr. Hall, accompanied each set

of drafts. Each of the drafts covering one of the

shipments was in the face amount of $63,950.00, and

each of the drafts covering the other shipment was in

the face amount of $55,900.75. In each set of drafts

one thereof was payable at sight and one thereof at

180 days sight, so that there was a total of $119,850.75

in sight drafts and an equal amount of 180 day drafts

deposited at that time. Upon the delivery of these

drafts, appellant accepted nine acceptances in the

total sum of $115,000.00. Each acceptance bore a ma-

turity of 90 days after date. A deposit of said sum
of $115,000.00 was immediately made in appellant

bank in favor of Richfield Oil C^onipany and against

which Richfield was enabled to draw as it saw fit.

From the time of the presentation of these drafts

drawn on Birla Bros, on October 8, 1930, until Jan-

uary 15, 1931, the date upon which appellee was ap-

pointed receiver for Richfield Oil Company, a gi'eat

nmnber of drafts drawn on customers of Richfield

located in foreign countries were deposited with ap-

pellant for collection. By November 28, 1930, Rich-



field Oil Coinpany had drawn acceptances on appel-

lant in the total smn of $155,000.00, the extra smn of

$5000.00 over and above the amount specified in the

acceptance agreement having been covered by the

execution of an additional acceptance agreement in

the sum of $5000.00. (R. 289.) After November 28,

1930, no further acceptances were drawn.

On December 16, 1930, the sum of $119,512.54, rep-

resenting the net proceeds of the two hereinbefore

mentioned sight drafts drawn on 13irla Bros. Ltd.

were received by appellant. These i)roceeds were im-

mediately applied to the pa>anent of the first set of

acceptances in the sum of $115,000.00 in anticipation

of the maturity thereof.

Thereafter appellant continued to receive the pro-

ceeds of drafts which had been deposited as afore-

said, and to apply such proceeds to the pa}^nent of

acceptances. On February 26, 1931, the last of the

unpaid acceptances matured and was satisfied from

the proceeds of drafts so collected. Thereafter the

proceeds of several drafts which were still outstand-

ing were collected by appellant and were deposited

to the credit of appellee in his account with the bank.

On May 8, 1931, the sum of $119,850.75, represent-

ing the proceeds of the 180 day Birla Bros, drafts

hereinbefore mentioned was received by appellant.

Thereupon appellant took the action which precipi-

tated the controversy involved herein. Richfield Oil

Company was then in receivership. As ]H'eviously

stated, appellant was a creditor of Richfield to the

extent of $625,000.00 represented by a matured note,



unsecured by mort.^afte or any specific pledge of col-

lateral. Each of the acceptance agreements however

contained the following provision:

''All bills of lading, warehouse receipts, and
other documents of title and all money and goods
held by you as security for any such acceptance

shall also be held by you as security for any
other liability from us to you whether then exist-

ing or thereafter contracted. * * *"

(R. 253.)

"In case of any sale or other disposition of

the whole or any part of the security or property

aforesaid, you may apply the proceeds of such

sale or disposition to the payment of all legal or

other costs and expenses of collection, sale and
delivery and of all expenses incurred in protect-

ing the security or other property or the value

thereof, as hereinafter provided and may apply

the residue of such proceeds to the payment of

this or of any then existing liability of ours to

you whether then payable or not * * *."

(R. 255, 256.)

At this time the California Civil Code provided

(and still provides)

:

"A banker has a general lien, dependent on

possession, upon all property in his hands be-

longing to a customer, for the balance due to

him from such customer in the course of the

business.
'

'

Civil Code, §3054.

Relying upon the foregoing provisions of the ac-

ceptance agreement and the law with respect to the

lien of bankers and the right of offset, appellant
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applied the said proceeds of the 180 day Birla Bros,

drafts to the partial satisfaction of the general in-

debtedness of Richtield Oil Company to it.

Appellee disputed the right of appellant to make

this application of the proceeds of said drafts, claim-

ing that the two 180 day sight drafts drawn on Birla

Bros, were not deposited with appellant under and

subject to the acceptance agreement, and therefore

that the contractual lien, which otherwise would

have been conferred upon appellant by the above-

quoted provisions of the acceptance agreement, was

non-existent. Appellee based this conclusion mainl}^

upon the refusal of appellant to issue acceptances

in a sum over and above the amount of the sight drafts

drawn on Birla Bros., considering only the amount

of the sight drafts in determining that the siun of

$115,000.00 evidenced by acceptances in that amount,

would be advanced against the shipment. x\ppellee's

further claim that appellant was not entitled to a

banker's lien was based upon a statement alleged

to have been made by Mr. Hall to officers of the

appellant during the negotiations for the transfer of

Richfield 's foreign business to appellant to the effect

that all transactions of the Foreign Department of

Richfield Oil Company should be kept separate and

apart from all other financial transactions and affairs

of Richfield with appellant. Appellee's position in

this respect is that this alleged statement and the

alleged acquiescence therein by appellant amounted

to an agreement by which appellant waived its bank-

er's lien on the drafts. As to these stat(4nents and



the extent tliei'eof, the evidence is in conflict. In

further support of his contention that appellant was

without right to make such application of the pro-

ceeds of said drafts, appellee relied upon telegTams

(R. 209, 210) exchanged between the parties to this

action at the tune of the appointment of appellee

as receiver of Richfield Oil Company and upon con-

duct of appellant occurring after the appointment of

appellee as receiver, from all of which appellee con-

tends that appellant waived its banker's lien and

right of setoff. Said telegrams and said conduct of

appellant will be discussed and described in detail

in the argument hereinafter set forth.

Besides the proceeds of the two 180 day sight

drafts drawn on Birla Bros., hereinbefore mentioned,

the proceeds of two other drafts form pari of the

subject matter of this litigation. One of these is

a third draft drawn on Birla Bros, at 180 days sight

in the sum of $23,607.50. This draft was deposited

with appellant for collection on January 8, 1931. The

other draft, the proceeds of which are involved herein,

was drawn on one, Ricardo Velazquez, in the sum of

$1,219.00. This draft was deposited with appellant

on December 27, 1930. Appellee bases his conclusion

that these drafts were not deposited under and subject

to the terms of the acceptance agreement upon the

ground that they were deposited at a time subse-

quent to the issuance of the last acceptance (but ad-

mittedly before payment of all acceptances), and

therefore, according to appellee's contention, they

had no place under the acceptance agreement.
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By ^Yay of recapitulation, the following' schedule

more clearly shows the drafts, the proceeds of which

are the subject of this action:

Exhibit Date Draft

No. Deposited No. Customer Amount Time

1930

22 Oct. 8 103005 Birla Bros. $63,950.00 180 days

23 Oct. 8 103006B Birla Bros. 55,900.75 180 days

79 Dec. 27 123014 Ricardo

Velazquez 1,219.00 60 days

1931

82 Jan. 8 13107 Birla Bros. 23,607.50 180 days

The numbers of the drafts designated were given

to them by Richfield Oil Company. Appellant ^ave

each draft its own nmnber for the purpose of its

records, but the Richfield number (appearing more

frequently in the exhibits herein) will be a])plied to

all drafts in this brief for the sake of convenience.

The first two figures of the draft numbers refer to

the month and the second two to the year in which

the draft was drawn. The last two refer to the chron-

ological num.ber of the draft drawn in the particular

month. (R. 290.) Thus, draft No. 123,014 was the

fourteenth draft issued in tlie month of December,

1930.

Appellee's complaint seeks in addition to recover

the sum of $469.06, representing part of the ])ro-

ceeds of draft No. 103,012 drawn on Bueno y Cia and

deposited with appellant October 11, 1930. This draft

was paid in installments, part of which were used

to liquidate acceptances. The sum last mentioned

represented the last installment which was received
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in May, 1931. The trial Court found that this draft

was deposited under and pursuant to the acceptance

agreement, and therefore that it was properly applied

toward the satisfaction of the indebtedness of Rich-

field Oil Company. (R. 188, 189, Finding XV; 195,

196, Conclusion VII.) This is conceded by appellee.

(For a complete schedule of all drafts deposited

by Richfield with appellant, except the first four

on Birla Bros., see page 293 of Record.)

(b) Issues.

At the trial of this action, appellant contended and

here again contends that this case is not a difficult

one; that the facts are neither complex nor for the

most part disputed; that almost without exception ap-

pellant would have stipulated to the great mass of

docmnentary evidence introduced by appellee. Appel-

lant respectfully submits that the volmne of testimony

and the nmnber of exhibits should not cloud the

issues, which, in the opinion of appellant at least,

may be simply stated and upon the facts and the law

definitely determined. There cannot possibly be other

issues than these:

(1) Were the drafts, the proceeds of Avhich

are the subject of this litigation, deposited under

the acceptance agreement (R. 252, 253, 254, 255,

256, 257) and therefore subject to the provisions

hereinbefore quoted therefrom? If they were,

the second question is no longer in issue. If the

Court decides that they were not delivered under

and pursuant to the acceptance agreement, then
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(2) Were they ever deposited under such an

agreement as amounted to a waiver of appel-

lant's banker's lien or right of setoff?

(3) Did appellant, subsequent to the ai)point-

ment of the receiver, waive its contractual right

or right to a banker's lien or setoff with respect

to the proceeds of said drafts in such manner

as legally to preclude it by estoppel or otherwise

from relying thereon in this litigation'?

(c) Statement of Appellant's Position.

Although appellant refused to advance to Richfield

by means of acceptances or otherwise a sum in excess

of the amount of certain sight or short term drafts,

appellant's contention is that all drafts were never-

theless deposited as security for the acceptances issued

and to be issued, and consequently were deposited

mider and pursuant to the acceptance agreements.

These agreements constituted a contract between Rich-

field Oil Company and appellant, under the express

terms of which appellant was entitled to hold all

drafts, and the proceeds thereof, deposited under the

acceptance agreements, as security, not alone for the

acceptances issued thereunder, but likewise for ''any

other liabilities from us (Richfield) to you (appel-

lant) whether then existing or thereafter contrac-

ted." No agreement to keep the transaction separate

or apart, even if, as claimed by appellee, such an

agreement amounts to a waiver of banker's lien,

could vary by parol the quoted language of this writ-

ten contract.
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If, in spite of the overwhelming evidence of con-

versations, acts and records of both Richfield Oil

Company and appellant in snpport of the contention

that the drafts in dispnte were deposited under the

acceptance agreement, it should be determined that

they w^ere not so deposited, then admittedly they were

at least deposited for collection, giving appellant the

right to exercise its banker's lien and right of setoff

against them and the proceeds thereof. There was no

agreement to waive this lien or right of setoff even

though it be determined that Mr. Hall unqualifiedly

informed the officers of appellant that all of these

transactions were to be kept ''separate and apart".

Such an agreement, as w411 subsequently be estab-

lished, did not bring about a waiver of appellant's

banker's lien or right of setoff'.

It is the contention of appellee that subsequent to

his appointment as receiver of Richfield Oil Company,

a telegram (R. 209) w^hich was sent by ap])ellant

to him in response to a telegram (R. 210) sent by

him to appellant, plus the conduct of appellant sub-

sequent to this exchange of communications, effected

a waiver of appellant's lien. The reasoning by which

appellee reaches this conclusion will be discussed later.

In this connection appellant urges that

:

(a) Appellant was not required to protect its

rights by any reservation of its lien on the drafts

in question in its said telegram of January 16,

1931;

(b) The language of the telegram with re-

spect to the reservation actually made by appel-
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lant, should be construed in a normal and ordi-

nary manner to give to it the interpretation

obviously intended

;

(c) There was not in this exchange of tele-

grams or otherwise, any waiver or agreement

to waive amounting to a contract nor was there

any consideration for such alleged waiver;

(d) Appellee as receiver is not entitled herein

to assert the rights of the other bank creditors

of Richfield based upon an estoppel against

appellant.

It is to all of the foregoing contentions that appel-

lant will direct its consideration of the evidence and

presentation of authorities.

II.

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS.

The errors assigned by appellant are in substance

as follows:

I.

The trial Court erred in granting a decree ordering

payment to appellee by appellant of the smn of

$163,305.85 for the reason that it appears from the

record in this case that appellant is entitled to retain

said smn and that appellee is not entitled to the same

or any part thereof. (R. 476, 477. Assignment of

Error I.)

II.

The trial Court erred in holding and deciding that

the drafts, the proceeds of which are the subject of
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this action, were not deposited under and pursuant to

the acceptance agreements hereinbefore mentioned;

that the banker's acceptances drawn by Richfield Oil

Company of California upon appellant were secured

only by foreign drafts of an aggregate aniomit slightly

in excess of the amount of acceptances so issued, and

only by drafts having a maturity shorter than the

maturity of said acceptances, the proceeds of which

could be and actually were received by appellant in

San Francisco at least one day before the maturity

date of the acceptances secured thereby; that appel-

lant had no right to apply the pi'oceeds of said drafts

to the pajTiient of the past due indebtedness of Rich-

field Oil Company of California to appellant in the

sum of $625,000.00 and interest; that the acceptance

agreement of October 4, 1930, as supplemented by the

acceptance agreement of November 28, 1930, did not

constitute the sole agreement entered into between

Richfield and appellant respecting the deposit and

collection of foreign drafts; and that there was an

oral agreement entered into between appellant and

Richfield Oil Company that said drafts were deposited

with appellant for collection only and not as security

for the acceptances drawn by Richfield Oil Com})any

upon defendant. (R. 477, 478. Assigimient of Error

II.)

III.

The trial Court erred in finding that in the month

of August, 1930, or at any time an oral agTeement

was entered into by and between said Richfield Oil

Company and api)ellant ; that the transactions re-

specting the deposit and collection of said drafts
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should be separate and apart fioiu all other financial

transactions of said Richfield Oil Company with ap-

pellant. (R. 479. Assignment of Error III.)

IV.

The trial Court erred in holdini;- that such an. agree-

ment, if any there was, constituted a waiver by appel-

lant of its right to a banker's lien on said drafts and

the proceeds thereof, and a waiver of its right to

offset said proceeds against the past due indebted-

ness of said Richfield Oil Company of California to

appellant in the simi of $625,000.00 and interest. (R.

479, Assignment of Error IV.)

V.

The trial Court erred in deciding that the said

drafts or any thereof or the proceeds thereof were

not deposited in the ordinary course of business, and

said Court further erred in holding and deciding that

said drafts or any thereof or the proceeds thereof were

deposited with appellant under a special agreement

or for any special purpose or constituted a specific

deposit or trust. (R. 479, 480. Assigmnent of Error

V.)

VI.

The trial Court erred in holding and deciding that

either prior to or subsequent to the appointment of

appellee as receiver of said Richfield Oil Coni])any

of California, appellant by acts, conduct, writing or

statements or by agreement with appellee or with the

other bank creditors of said Richfield Oil Company,

waived its banker's lien on the proceeds of said drafts
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or its right to apply said pi'oceeds to the i^ayment

of said past due indebtedness of the Richfield Oil

Company of California to appellant. (R. 480, 481.

Assignment of Error VI.)

VII.

Said Court erred in holding and deciding that ap-

pellant had no right to a banker's lien on said drafts

and the proceeds thereof as provided in Section 3054

of the Civil Code of the State of California, and no

right to apply said proceeds to the payment of said

past due indebtedness of said Richfield Oil Company
to appellant. (R. 481. Assignment of Error VII.)

VIII.

Said Court erred in admitting in evidence:

(a) Testimony adduced in behalf of appellee

by the witnesses William C. McDuffie and Ed-

ward Nolan as to a meeting held on or about

January 15, 1931, between appellee and repre-

sentatives of the bank creditors of said Richfield

Oil Company of California, with the exception

of appellant, and all conversations and statements

made at said meeting, the substance of which was

an agreement that all cash balances of Richfield

previously appropriated by said banks should be

restored to the receiver of Richfield, and that

in all cases where cash balances in said banks

still stood to the credit of Richfield, said banks

would refrain from appropriating the same to

the satisfaction of their claims against the com-

pany. Said testimony was incompetent, irrele-
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vant and iimnaterial, hearsay, and nut binding- on

appellant, and its introduction was an effort on

the part of appellee to assert an estoppel against

appellant in favor of x^ersons not parties to this

action, to-wit, the other bank creditors of Rich-

field.

(b) Letters and telegrams introduced by aj)-

pellee marked Plaintiif's Exhibits 4 to 11 in-

clusive, as set forth in the Narrative Statement

of Evidence for use in the appeal of this cause,

being communications from various bank credi-

tors of said Richfield Oil Company of California

to appellee relating to the restoration of such

balances, said docmnents being incompetent, ir-

relevant and immaterial, hearsay, and not bind-

ing on appellant, and their introduction being an

effort on the part of appellee to assert an estop-

pel against aj^pellant in favor of persons not

parties to this action, to-wit, the other bank

creditors of said Richfield Oil Company' of Cali-

fornia.

(c) Testimony adduced in behalf of appellee

purporting to establish an oral agreement between

appellant and said Richfield Oil Company of

California to the effect that all transactions con-

cerning the deposit and collection of foreign

drafts should be kept separate and apart from

all other financial transactions between Richfield

and appellant, the purpose of said testimony

being to vaiy the terms of said written accep-

tance agreement providing that all the collateral

deposited as security thereunder should likewise
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stand as security for all other obligations of said

Richfield Oil Company of California to appellant,

said testimony being for that reason not properly

admissible.

(R. 481, 482, 483. Assignment of Error VIII.)

III.

ALL THE DRAFTS IN LITIGATION WERE DEPOSITED BY
RICHFIELD WITH APPELLANT UNDER AND SUBJECT TO
THE ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENTS, PURSUANT TO THE
TERMS OF WHICH APPELLANT HELD THE DRAFTS AS
SECURITY FOR THE GENERAL INDEBTEDNESS OF RICH-
FIELD TO IT.

The question presented by this phase of the case

can be answered only from necessary and proper in-

ferences to be drawn from the facts and circum-

stances, for the record is barren of any express agree-

ment between Richfield Oil Company and appellant

stating whether the drafts in question were or were

not to be placed under acceptance agTeements.

The lower Court held in its Finding No. XYII (R.

189, 190) that the drafts which form the subject of

this litigation were not deposited under the accep-

tance agreement as security for acceptances. Appel-

lant has specified this as error (R. 477, 478, Assign-

ment No. I), relying, not upon any particular con-

flict in the facts, for little, if any such conflict on

material points api:)ears in the evidence, but on the

impropriety of the conclusion which the trial Court

reached from these facts. This appeal being in equity,

the trial Court's findings are not binding on this Court
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and, because the findini;' is a mere conclusion l'rv)ni

the facts, it has herein even less weight than usual.

(a) History of the Inception of the Transactions.

On. or about the 22d day of August, 1930, Robert

L. Hall, the Manager of the Foreign Department of

Richfield Oil Company of California, visited San

Francisco (R. 340) for the purpose of opening ne-

gotiations for the transfer of Richfield 's foreign draft

collection business to appellant. On this occasion, a

series of conferences took place between Mr. Hall,

William G. Gilstrap, Assistant Manager of appel-

lant's Foreign Department, Frederick J. Hellman,

Vice President of appellant in charge of the Foreign

Department, and Mr. F. L. Lipman, President of the

bank. A reference to the testimony of each of these

persons concerning this visit (R. 340, 341, 342, 343,

344, 369, 370, 436, 437, 438, 439, 448, 449) shows that

negotiations on this occasion were merely preliminary

in character. The relative merits of the banker's

acceptance method of handling collections as com-

pared with the discomit method were discussed. Mr.

Hall spoke in a general way of the foreign customers

of Richfield, including Biria Bros. Ltd. At a short

meeting with Mr. Lipman (R. 448, 449, 436, 437, 438,

439) at which Mr. Hellman was present, Mr. Hall

was informed by Mr. Lipman that appellant would

be willing to extend to Richfield Oil ('Ompany a line

of credit based upon foreign drafts in addition to

the loan accommodations which appellant already had

given Richfield. The amount of this line of credit,

as Mr. Lipman informed Mr. Hall, was to be fixed
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at a figure between $15(),()00.00 and $250,000.00. (R.

449.) After the conference with Mr. Lipman, Mr.

Helhnan informed Mr. Hall that the ^moimt of the

credit which appellant would extend to Richfield in

this manner would be the smn of $150,000.00. (R.

439.)

Since Hall was iiot authorized to bind Richfield

Oil Company in financial transactions (R. 358), he

found it necessary to I'eturn to Los Angeles in order

to bring the matter to the attention of the officials

of Richfield.

Prior to October 1, 1930, Hall telephoned to Oil-

strap informing him that Richfield had decided to

avail itself of the acceptance credit. At that time

he asked Oilstrap to send to him the necessary forms

for execution. (R. 370.)

On the morning of October 6, 1930, Mr. Hall, accom-

panied this time by Homer Po})e, who was then a

clerk in Richfield 's Foreign Department, returned

to San Francisco. (R. 251, 371.) Hall and Pope

brought with them the acceptance agreement to which

reference has previousl}^ been made (R. 251), duly

executed under date of October 4, 1930, for and in

behalf of Richfield Oil Company, by R. W. McKee,

Vice President, and W. R. Hart, Treasurer. They

also brought with them fourteen acceptances signed

by Richfield Oil Company in the total amount of

$150,000.00. These acceptances and the acceptance

agreement were delivered to appellant through Oil-

strap. (R. 346.)



24

Thereupon appellant accei)tecl $115,000.00 worth of

acceptances and sold them. The proceeds of these

acceptances were received by Hall on the same day

and were transmitted by him to Richfield in Los

Anp^eles by means of telephoto.

(b) The Circumstances Surrounding the Inception of the

Foreign Draft Collection Transactions of Richfield Oil

Company of California With Appellant Prove That the

Drafts Were Deposited Under and Subject to the Accep-

tance Agreements.

(1) There Was But One Agreement Entered Into Between Appellant

and Richfield Oil Company.

From the history of the orii^inal negotiations be-

tween Richfield and appellant, as hereinbefore set

forth, it is obvious that the execution and delivery

of the acceptance agreement was the vital factor

around which everything else which followed was

bound. Since the parties had agreed upon the accep-

tance credit method, the execution and delivery of

this acceptance agreement was the condition prece-

dent to the commencement of business.

There is nothinfj in the entire record of Ihis case,

apart from mere opinions of appellee's oivn tvitnesses,

which could possibly he considered as evidence of an

agreement, independent of the acceptance agreement

itself, hy the terms of tvhich certain drafts were to he

deposited under the acceptance agreement and certain

drafts -were not.

The significant thing is that as a result of the pre-

liminary negotiations in iVugiist, the parties decided

to do huj^iness on an acceptance credit hasis and o)i

an acceptance credit hasis only. To vitalize this deci-
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sion, Richfield executed and delivered the acceptance

agreement. Thereafter, in pursuance of the decision

to do business in this manner, Richfield commenced

the deposit of the foreign drafts for collection.

Mr. Pope in response to questions propounded by

counsel for appellee endeavored to testify that the

180 day drafts were deposited solely for collection

and not as security for acceptances. This was a mere

conclusion of the witness. Not alone is this denied

repeatedly in the testimony of Messrs. Gilstrap,

Leuenberger and Hellman, but Mr. Hall, himself

(and it must be remembered that Mr. Hall was

present throughout the sole conference which Mr.

Pope attended), testified on direct examination, flatly

contradicting Pope, as follows:

''I don't think there was anything said by Mr.
Gilstrap or by myself and Mr. Pope during that

conversation as to how the 180 day paper would
be handled."

(R. 346.)

Subsequently, in response to the repeated question-

ing of counsel for appellee with respect to the de-

positing of the 180 day drafts for collection, he

further testified:

''To the best of my knowledge, the only remark
that was made as to what would be done with

the 180 day drafts was that Mr. Gilstrap said

when I turned over the entire papers that he

would send them all together to the correspondent

in Calcutta. I don't remember anything having

been said in the prior conversations occurring

between myself and Mr. Gilstrap respecting the

collection of the 180 day drafts."

(R. 348.)
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It is apparent that Mr. Pope's memory, in this

respect at least, is faulty.

The foregoing undisputed (except for Pope's con-

tradicted testimony) facts compel the conclusion that

all drafts were deposited as a result of and in pur-

suance of the decision to do business on an accep-

tance credit basis; although subsequently the amoimt

of the acceptances actually issued ^Yas far less than

the total face amomit of the drafts deposited, never-

theless, all drafts were deposited as security for' the

acceptances and as integral parts of a preconceived

plan, the substance of which is found in the terms

of the accejDtance agreement.

(2) The Officers of Appellant Informed Mr. Hall That Advances

Would be Made Against All of the Foreign Drafts Deposited by

Richfield Oil Company of California.

The fundamental reason underlying appellee's con-

tention and the Finding of the lower Court that the

first two 180 day Birla drafts were not deposited as

security for banker's acceptances, and consequently

not deposited under the acceptance agreement, is

fouud in the statements by Gilstrap to Hall that

appellant would advance only the approximate amount

of the two sight drafts under acceptances with ma-

turities of 90 days from date, and that only drafts

with maturities of less than 90 days would be con-

sidered as bases for acceptances. (R. 346, 262, 263.)

As to the third Birla draft, No. 13,107, deposited on

or about January 8, 1931, and the draft on Ricardo

Velazquez, No. 123,014, deposited on the 27th day of

December, 1930, appellee claims that since no accep
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tances were issued after November 28, 1930, these

drafts could not have been deposited as security for

acceptances. This overlooks the fact that there were

at these times unmatured and unpaid acceptances still

outstanding.

It is the contention of appellant that every draft

deposited with it during the period commencing with

October 8, 1930, and ending on January 15, 1931, was

deposited as security for acceptances and consequently

under the acceptance agreement.

That this was the understanding of the officers of

appellant and that this understanding was communi-

cated to Hall at the inception of these transactions,

is conclusively shown by the testimony of both Mr.

Lipman and Mr. Helhnan, corroborated by Mr. Hall.

Mr. Lipman testified as follows:

''I received a visit from a representative of the

Foreign Department of the Richfield Oil Com-
pany in the month of August, 1930. This repre-

sentative, Mr. Hall, stated that there had been

some prior discussion as to this line of business,

and I think I said something to the effect that if

these drafts were good security, that is, if they

were drawn on people we had confidence in, ive

could regard those as collateral for an acceptance

credit. This representative assured me that the

drafts were quite all right."

(R. 448, 449.)

In this connection Mr. Hellman testified as follows

:

''To the best of my recollection I told Mr. Hall

that I thought that we, meaning the Wells Fargo

Bank, w^ould be willing to go into such a trans-
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action advancing them on their collections, and
that I could see nothing that would stop us from
doing it, but as long as they had other lines in the

bank I would rather consult with Mr. Lipman
first."

(R. 436.)

Mr. Hall's testunony in this regard is as follows:

''Mr. Lipman told me that he had heard good
reports from his Foreign Department in regard

to collections of the Foreign Department of Rich-

field. Mr. Lipman stated that he had accommo-
dated Richfield to a large extent and also had ac-

commodated Mr. Talbot, and he would give a

further line of credit 'based on foreign drafts in

the amount of $150,000.00 or thereabouts and see

how it would work out."

(R. 343.)

''I don't think Mr. Lipman stated that he

would advance $150,000.00 or $200,000.00 upon

the security of our foreign collections—I thuik

he used the word 'drafts'. To the best of my
recollection Mr. Lipman 's statement was that he

would advance upon the security^ of our foreign

drafts $150,000.00 to $200,000.00."

(R. 358.)

In all of this testimony of witnesses on both sides

a line of credit based on foreign drafts was referred

to.

This testimony leaves no room for doubt that from

the outset the officers of appellant did not intend

to make any distinction between drafts that were to

be deposited with them, except to limit the amount



29

of advances to the extent of drafts maturing in 90

days or less, but did intend that all drafts should be

security for acceptances. Since this intention was

definitely communicated to Hall, who acted for Rich-

field in the entire transaction, Richfield and appellee

stand bound by it.

On the same day that these statements were made,

Hellman decided, after the conference with Mr. Lip-

man, that the extent of the credit which would be

granted against the foreign drafts would be $150,-

000.00, and he so informed Hall. (R. 439.) From
his long experience with Richfield 's Foreign Depart-

ment, which he organized and built up, Hall must

have known then that the amount of foreign drafts

w^hich Richfield would have outstanding at any one

time would soon far exceed the smu of $150,000.00,

the limit of the credit. He must have known then

that the next shipment to Birla Bros, would in all

probability far exceed the smn of $150,000.00, and

in fact it did. Therefore, he knew or should have

known, in the light of the statements made to him

by Hellman and Lipman, as hereinbefore set forth,

that there would be deposited a great many drafts

which would not be used in measuring the amount of

advances under the acceptances, but which appellant

would nevertheless consider as security for accep-

tances.

It is submitted that the fact that some of the

foreign drafts were not used as a basis for measuring

the advances which were made to Richfield Oil Com-
pany is not a somid reason for the conclusion that
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these drafts were not deposited as security for the

acceptances. The most usual practice followed by

lenders in taking? security for their loans requires the

value of such security to exceed greatly the amount

of the loan. A simple analogy may here be cited

as illustrating what the transaction between appellant

and Richfield really Avas:

A man goes to his banker with $10,000.00 in Liberty

Bonds and $10,000.00 face value of unmarketable se-

curities, and asks the banker: ''How much will you

lend me against these securities?" The banl^er says:

''We will not take into consideration your unmarket-

able securities, but will lend you to the extent of your

Liberty Bonds, viz., $10,000.00." All the securities

are deposited. There is no doubt that the loan is

against all of the securities, but only in an amount

based on the Liberty Bonds. All are security,—even

the unmarketable bonds having no value. If we trans-

pose Liberty Bonds into sight or short term or other

satisfactory drafts, aud transpose the umnarketable

securities into 180 day or other unsatisfactory drafts,

we have the case at bar.

Appellee answered this analogy in the lower Court

with the argiunent that if the hypothetical borrower

had gone to his banker with $10,000.00 in Liberty

Bonds and $10,000.00 face amount of unmarketable

securities (for instance, notes receivable) and asked

the banl^er: "How much will you lend me against

these securities?" and the banker had said: "We are

willing to lend you $10,000.00 upon your Liberty

Bonds, but will lend you nothing upon your notes
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receivable, although we will be glad to take them for

collection, charging you the usual commission for

making the collection," no Court would listen to any

claun on the part of the banker that the loan was

secured by the notes receivable as well as the Liberty

Bonds. This answer is sunple of disposition. It is

not sustained by the evidence and is contrary to com-

mon experience. Even if the Liberty Bonds were

sufficient m and of themselves to support a loan of

$10,000.00, what banker w^ould refuse the added mar-

gin of safety from further security, regardless of its

value? It is but natural to accept all the security

that may be forthcoming. For the same reason, all

the probabilities, in addition to the evidence, point

to the conclusion that appellant did the same thing

with respect to the deposit of foreign drafts by

Richfield.

(3) The Testimony of Appellee's Own Witnesses Substantiates Ap-

pellant's Position.

The testimony of Mr. Pope is convincing that he

mismiderstood the nature of the transaction into

which Richfield was entering for his conclusion that

the 180 day paper was not to be deposited as security

for acceptances is not supported by his premise. Thus,

Mr. Pope testified:

''The question came up as to whether we might

base acceptances on both sets of drafts. He told

us he would be glad to consider the sight draft

but because of the length of time and because

of the credit standing, he would not consider the

180 day drafts on Birla Bros. We argued with

him that we had never had any trouble with
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Birla Bros, and that they had always been very

prompt pay, and we urged hiin to let us use the

180 day drafts as a basis for hank acceptances,

but he refused."

(R. 262.)

''I believe that Mr. Gilstrap and Mr. Leuen-

berger said: 'we cannot use as a basis for the

amount of your acceptances the 180 day paper

on Birla Bros. ' They did not tell me as I remem-

ber it that they waived the security of that paper

because I do not believe that came into the dis-

cussion.
'

'

(R. 319.)

All of this testimony supports the soundness of

appellant's position. For, by the use of the word

"basis," appellee's wdtness has demonstrated that the

180 day drafts simply were not to be considered in

measuring the amount of the advance which would

be made to Richfield by means of acceptances. This,

however, by no means contradicts appellant's con-

tention that the acceptances were issued against the

180 day paper, as w^ell as the sight paper, and that

all were security for the acceptance.

Counsel for appellee, at the trial, attempted to

answer this point with the argmnent that in most

of the cases where Pope testified in this manner, he

did so in response to a question in which the word

"basis" was used. Although the record on this appeal

does not, of course, show the questions which were

put to the witness, the truth is that the witness first

testified in this manner voluntarily in response to
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questions put to him by his own counsel, in which

this word was not used.

Counsel further argue that the meaning of this

word when used by the witness necessarily must de-

pend upon the meaning intended to be given to it

by the person testifying; and that in order to ascer-

tain such meaning, reference should be had to all of

the witness's testimony upon the subject matter in

connection with which the w^ord ''basis" was used.

Counsel overlook, however, that the witness was testi-

fying as to what was said at the time of the con-

ference. He was not then drawing a conclusion. On
the other hand, his ultimate conclusion that the 180

day drafts were not security for acceptances, deduced

from what was said as to using the 180 day drafts as

a basis for acceptances, is unw^arranted, and in any

event, is immaterial; the use of the word "basis" can-

not be explained away in the manner comisel have

attempted.

Counsel further rely upon the following testimony

of Pope as showing what meaning he intended to

convey by the use of the word "basis":

"He told us that it would be necessary to put
up a sufficient amount of drafts in money to

cover the bank acceptances. It would only be

necessary to have enough from the proceeds of

the drafts to cover the bank acceptances to be

paid."

(R. 263.)

"To the best of my knowledge there was also

an agreement that the 180 day drafts would be

accepted for collection only and not be used as a
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basis for the issuance of acceptances. The Rich-

field Oil Company was only required to deposit

sufficient drafts, the net proceeds of which would

satisfy the amount of the bank acceptances."

(R. 314.)

This testimony, however, is consistent with the

claim of appellant that these drafts were all deposited

as security for acceptances even though only the ap-

proximate amount of the sight drafts w^as advanced.

Simply because the minimum requirement may have

been that Richfield deposit short term drafts in an

amount at least equal to the amount advanced by ap-

pellant, it does not follow that appellant was pre-

cluded from the acceptance of drafts, as security, in a

much greater amount than that of the banker's ac-

ceptances issued.

(4) Appellee's Case Is Largely Based on the Misconception of the

Witness Pope.

Appellee's contention that the drafts, the ]3roceeds

of which are the subject of this litigation, were not

deposited under the acceptance agreement, rests upon

an imaginary distinction between drafts supposedly

deposited solely for collection, and those supposedly

specifically designated as security for acceptance. The

fact that the evidence does not support any agreement

other than the acceptance agreement regarding the

deposit of drafts for collection has hereinbefore been

discussed.

Granting that appellee is in good faith in the con-

tention that certain drafts were under the agreement
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and others not, it occurs to appellant that the error

in appellee's belief arose through Mr. Pope's mis-

understanding of a new and to him strange trans-

action. He testified in substance that Mr. Gilstrap

told him that the proceeds of the draft which were

mider the acceptances must be in San Francisco be-

fore the maturity date of the acceptances issued on the

drafts. (R. 261.) The Court's finding to this effect

(Finding No. XVII, R. 189, 190), has been specified

as error. (Assignment No. II, R. 477, 478.) Gilstrap

testified that there was no such statement made to any

representative of Richfield. (R. 373.) Gilstrap stated,

however, and appellant believes this to be the source

of Pope's error (R. 373), that the acceptance agree-

ment required that Richfield pay the acceptafices at

the office of appellant at least one day before the

maturity of the acceptances. The provisions of the

acceptance agreement in this respect are as follows

:

''In consideration of your acceptance of the

said draft or drafts the undersigned, jointly and
severally, agree to pay you at the time of the

acceptance a commission of per cent, and
further agree to pay you the amount of the said

draft or drafts at your office one day before

maturity. '

'

(R. 253.)

The use of the word "drafts" in the agreement

may be confusing. The explanation is that an accep-

tance is a draft prior to its acceptance by the bank and

the agreement, in referring to the "drafts" to be

issued on the security thereunder, described Rich-

field's acceptances. This cannot be controverted.
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In answer to this contention, appellee at the trial

argued that there is evidence in this case that appel-

lant would not have issued acceptances on the unse-

cured signature of Richfield Oil Company, since at

that time Richfield was already mdebted to appellant

to a large extent on a loan which was then misecured.

Therefore, it was argued, appellant was looking solely

to the proceeds of the drafts for its payment and

must necessarily have required that such proceeds

be on hand at least one day prior to the maturity

date of the acceptances. This, however, overlooks the

fact that even though the proceeds of the drafts should

not be received in advance of the maturity date of

the acceptances, and even though Richfield Oil Com-

pany should fail to pay the amount of the accep-

tances one day in advance of the maturity date

thereof, appellant still would have the security of

the drafts and proceeds thereof. Furthermore, the

mere fact that the drafts, by their terms, pro^dded

for payment prior to the maturity of the acceptances

was no guaranty that they would be paid then; the

probability of paj^nent on short term drafts is no

greater than on long term drafts. Thus appellant

looked to Richfield Oil Company as maker of the

acceptances, taking, however, the security of drafts

which would mature either before or after the ma-

turity date of the acceptances.

(5) The Controlling Effect of the Letter Marked Defendant's

Exhibit "A".

The most helpful declaration of either Richfield

or the bank as to what drafts secured the acceptances
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is embodied in that letter (Defendant's Exhibit "A")
to which reference has hereinbefore been made, writ-

ten by Richfield Oil Company to appellant, and de-

livered, together with the drafts and letters of trans-

mittal, by Hall to Gilstrap on the morning of October

8, 1930. This letter reads as follows:

''E. Leuenberger, Assistant Vice President,

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Company,
Montgomery & Market Streets,

San Francisco, California.

Dear Sir:

We are sending by Mr. Hall, dociunents cover-

ing a shipment of Birla Brothers, Ltd., Calcutta,

India.

Will you please release against this shipment

$115,000 worth of acceptances made payable at

i^ days sight.

90 R. L. H.

(R. 316.)

Very truly yours,

G. P. Lyons,

Comptroller. '

'

At the trial of this action, counsel for appellee in-

troduced a great number of exhibits consisting of

almost every letter and docmnent in any remote w^ay

concerning the transactions here in question which

came into existence between October 8, 1930, and

May 8, 1931. Yet, in all the careful and detailed

marshalling of evidence so undertaken by counsel for

appellee, there was no attempt to examine at the

trial any of appellee's witnesses. Hall, Pope or Mc-

Duffie, or to cross-examine Grilstrap, Hellman or

Leuenberger, or any other witnesses of appellant, with
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respect to this particular letter. Of all of the letters

which passed between appellant and Richfield Oil

Company during this period of time, comisel for

appellee scrupulously failed to introduce this one in

evidence. In a case as well and as thoroughly pre-

sented as was appellee's, the answer is obvious; ap-

pellee's neglect of the dociunent was not an error or

oversight of diligent and able counsel, but an endeavor

to forget, if possible, a vital weakness in the entire

chain of argument. Mr. Pope testified on cross

examination in explaining the reference in Exhibit

"A" to the release of acceptances for $115,000.00

against the Birla Bros, shipment that ''the documents

covering a shipment to Birla Brothers" referred to

the same documents described in the two letters of

transmittal deposited with appellant on the same

date. (R. 317.) The first of these letters (R. 266,

267) (marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 22 at the trial)

stated in part as follows:

''We are enclosing the following enumerated

documents covering shipment going forward to

Calcutta, India, per the M/S 'Silver HazeP.

Our draft #103004 amounting to $63,950,

drawn at sight on Birla Brothers, Ltd.

Our draft #103005 amounting to $63,950,

drawn at 180 days sight on Birla Brothers, Ltd."

The other of these letters of transmittal (R. 268,

269) (marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 23 at the trial)

contained the following list of enclosures:

"Our draft #103006-A amounting to $55,900.76

drawn at sight on Birla Brothers, Ltd. at Cal-

cutta.
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Our draft #103006-B amounting; to $55,900.75

drawn at 180 days sight D/A on Birla Brothers,

Ltd. at Calcutta."

In each case the ''Shipment to Birla Brothers"

was represented by one sight and one 180 day draft

in equal amoimts. Draft No. 103005 for $63,950.00,

and draft No. 103006-B for $55,900.75, referred to in

these two letters of transmittal, are the same two 180

day drafts in the total face amount of $119,850.76,

whose proceeds constitute such a considerable part of

the Judgment recovered by appellee in the trial Court.

Notwithstanding the conclusion of the witness Pope

that the 180 day drafts were not to be security for

acceptances, and that the first $115,000.00 worth of

acceptances were issued only against the two sight

drafts on Birla Bros., and notwithstanding the argu-

ment of counsel for appellee at the trial that only

the sight drafts were taken as security for the accep-

tances, the record is clear and uncontradicted that

Richfield Oil Company through Mr. Lyons, its Comp-
troller, to whom Hall had explained the transaction

(R. 362), wrote this letter.

It confirms in a simple and decisive fashion that

Richfield Oil Company completely understood that

appellant was advancing funds against all of the

drafts (i. e., against the shipment) which Richfield

Oil Company at that time was depositing, including

the 180 day drafts on Birla Bros. ; that although the

amomit of the advances was much less than the

amount of the drafts deposited, all of the drafts

were to be held as security for the acceptances; and
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that Richfield understood that when Mr. Lipman

and Mr. Helhnan told Mr. Hall that appellant would

grant a line of credit against foreign drafts of Rich-

field, there was no distinction made to the effect that

some drafts were to be security for the acceptances

and others were not. Appellant submits that this

letter, so scrupulously avoided by counsel for appellee

at the trial, is an admission of Richfield Oil Company

completeh^ destructive of appellee's (^laim that the

drafts in litigation were not deposited under and sub-

ject to the acceptance agi^eement.

Forced to avoid, if possible, the damaging effect of

this letter, counsel for appellee argued that since

Richfield was in financial stress, Lyons, the writer

of the letter, was interested in obtaining the first

$115,000.00 as quickly as possible, and that the letter

was written by him with this object alone in view\

It was further urged that since the details of the

transaction had previously been agreed upon, the

letter did not undertake to restate them or to modify

the agreement. Counsel likewise contended that the

letter was of the character which any one mider like

circumstances would have written, the writer never

imagining that it would subsequently be characterized

as illustrative of the agreement existing between the

parties; it was also argued that Lyons, at the time of

writing the letter, was ignorant of the transactions

betw^een the parties because all negotiations were con-

ducted by Hall and Pope. The last contention is

definitely refuted by the facts. It is undisputed that

Hall, who supposedly knew all about that transaction,

personally delivered the letter to Gilstrap, and that
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in his own handwriting he changed the statement

in the letter as to the maturity dates of the accep-

tances therein requested to be issued. His testimony

is as follow^s:

"I brought the letter, Defendant's Exhibit 'A'.

The change in the maturity date of acceptances

from 120 dsiys to 90 days on this letter is in my
handwriting."

(R. 362.)

Hall, therefore, knew the contents of the letter, yet

Tvith the one exception just noted, he did not attempt

to change it. The inference is compelling that the

letter did not conflict with his understanding of the

transaction.

Against the plain language of this letter, the other

explanations of counsel likewise fail. The letter is

clearly illustrative of the agreement between the

parties. That Lyons ever at any time thought the

agreement to be otherwise than that which apx3ellant

contends to be the case, or that he never imagined

the letter would be used as illustrative of this con-

tention, are mere assiunptions unsupported by direct

or inferential evidence, for Lyons was not called as

a witness.

It is admitted that prior to the writing of this

letter and the delivery thereof to the bank, the accep-

tance agreement had been presented to the bank, duly

executed, and was in full force and effect. The first

items transmitted subsequent to the execution of the

agreement are the four Birla Bros, drafts, and the

Richfield Oil Company has on its own stationery, by
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its own officer and in its own language, requested.

api)ellant to ''please release against this shipment

$115,000 worth of acceptances." As the shipment was

represented by the sight and 180 day drafts, the

release of acceptances was agaifist them. There can,

therefore, we submit, be no dispute upon the fact,

taken from the mouths of appellee's witnesses and

from the language of Richfield Oil Company's letter,

that both the sight drafts and the 180 day Birla Bros,

drafts were security under the acceptance agreement.

It should be noted in passing that Mr. Lyons was

the Comptroller or financial officer of Richfield Oil

Company, one of those to whom Mr. Hall had to

refer in making financial arrangements, and further-

more, that Mr. Hall testified as having reported to hun

the result of the San Francisco conference on his

return to Los Angeles on the mornmg of October 7,

1930. (R. 362.)

(c) The Execution of the Acceptance Agreement Created a

Revolving Credit.

The chief fallacy in the position taken by appellee

and in the reasoning in the opinion of the lower

Court and as a result of which the conclusion was

reached that the first two 180 day drafts on Birla

Bros, were not deposited under the acceptance agree-

ments, is found in the narrow view taken by both

the Court and appellee, that if these drafts secured

any acceptances at all, such acceptances could only

have been the first $115,000.00 worth issued by appel-

lant at the time of the deposit of said drafts on

October 8, 1930. Appellee then pomts out that since



43

it was necessary that Birla Bros, pay the sight drafts

before they would be entitled to possession of the

shipments, and since the proceeds of the sight drafts

would be received in San Francisco many months

before the maturity of the 180 day drafts with a re-

sultant satisfaction of the $115,000.00 worth of accep-

tances, the 180 day drafts could by no possibility be

security for said acceptances. Consequently it was

argued that the deposit of the 180 day drafts as se-

curity for the acceptances mentioned could not have

been within the contemplation of the parties. We
were further cited in the trial Court to the fact that

the last of the acceptances matured on February 26,

1931, while the proceeds of the 180 day Birla time

drafts by their said terms, could not be realized upon

until May, 1931. It is contended by appellee that the

180 day drafts could not therefore have been deposited

as security for any of the acceptances because of

their maturity at a time, as appellee contends, when

the acceptance agreement was no longer in force. This

narrow view is strongly illustrative of the manner

in which appellee has built up his case from a retro-

spective standpoint rather than from a prospective

view of the transaction as of the time when the nego-

tiations for and the execution and delivery of the

acceptance agreement took place.

On the other hand appellant's contention is that

the acceptance agreement was intended as a continu-

ing one until either party called a halt ; that Richfield

and the bank both understood that said agreement

created a revolving or ''line" of credit to the extent

of $155,000.00; that Richfield 's loan limit on accep-
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tances was $155,000.00 outstanding at am^ one time;

and that when the limit was reached no more accep-

tances would be issued until payment of any of the

outstanding acceptances made part of the credit again

available.

At the time of the delivery of the first acceptance

agreement on October 6, 1930, Richfield Oil Com-

pany and appellant contemplated, not one transaction,

but a continuous deposit of drafts and issuance of

acceptances during an indefinite period of time, the

Imiits of which were then unkno^^^l but, as far as

could then be ascertained, might well be for one, two

or several years. Thus a credit, or "line of credit"

was established and the acceptance agreement exe-

cuted containing the limitation in the amomit of the

credit agreed upon but no time limit within which

the transactions were to be carried on.

With a continuous series of deposits of drafts and

issuances of acceptances under one agreement con-

templated by the parties to extend over a period of

time, probably far beyond the date of the maturity

of the 180 day drafts, the supposed impossibility of

using these drafts as security for acceptances becomes

non-existent. On the contrary, the 180 day drafts on

Birla Bros, stood as effective and useful security for

any acceptances or other obligations pennitted or

provided for by the acceptance agreement.

This same argument holds for the drafts deposited

after November 28, 1930, the date when the last accep-

tance was issued, including the third draft on Birla

Bros, in the smn of $23,532.08, and that on Ricardo
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Velazquez in the siim of $1,245.11 ; they likewise were

deposited under and subject to the acceptance agree-

ment and were security for existing or future obli-

gations provided for therein.

Each of the acceptance agreements is blank as to

the drafts and securities which were to be deposited

thereunder. Parol evidence was therefore admissible

to prove what drafts were so deposited. There is no

dispute with regard to this. The very existence of

these blanks, however, is mute evidence of the sound-

ness of appellant's contention that a revolving credit

was intended, for such an arrangement caused it to

be impracticable and impossible to list the drafts

deposited or to be deposited under the acceptance

agreement. The testimony of Gilstrap, corroborated

by that of Pope, explains this and leaves no room for

doubt that a definite purpose lay behind the failure

of the iDarties to fill in the blanks in this agreement.

At the time of the delivery of the agi'eement the

blanks were considered. Mr. Gilstrap 's testimony in

this connection and with respect to the existence of

a revolving credit is as follows:

''I told him that the acceptance credit which
we had granted Richfield was a continuous one,

that is, a revolving one, which might be availed

of by them to an extent not exceeding $150,000

in acceptances outstanding at any one time; that

the acceptance agreement which he had given us

was intended to cover any acceptances which

might later be executed by us, within a limit

of $150,000 outstanding at any one time; that

the acceptance agreement did not stipulate the

exact amomit of acceptances, that is the exact
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amount for which each acceptance was drawn,

because we did not know nor did they know nor

did any one know in what amount the acceptances

would be issued and when they would be issued.

That would be dependent upon the collections

which later would be forwarded to us. Likewise,

no mention could be made, as I told Mr. Pope,

of the collections which were the security for this

particular credit, because for the same reason

neither they nor we knew exactly what collections

would later be sent us. Rather than have them
have to execute a new acceptance agreement each

time that a new acceptance was asked for or each

time that they sent us a new collection, I ex-

plained to Mr. Pope that this one agreement was
expected to be a blanket one."

(R. 371, 372.)

Mr. Pope's testimony in this respect is as follows:

"The first time I saw this acceptance agree-

ment, Plaintiff's Exhibit 16, was a few days

before we came up to San Francisco. I did not

discuss its contents with any one. I did not make
any inquiry as to why there were blanks in the

agreement. I believe that subject came up during

our conversation with Mr. Gilstrap. To the best

of my memory I believe something of this nature

was said by Mr. Grilstrap: 'As you will be deposit-

ing acceptances from time to time under this

arrangement and drafts under this arrangement,

all of which you cannot identify now, it is im-

possible to fill in those blanks at the present time'.

We could not give by nmnber and reference on

October 6th or 7th drafts that we would deposit

on October 10th or 12th. But none the less it
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might be that drafts of October 10th or 12th were

intended to apply under the agreement."

(R. 313.)

The weakness of Pope's conchisions regarding the

non-existence of a revolving credit is apparent in the

following excerpt from his testimony:

''It is my understanding that after we had
issued the initial $150,000 of bank acceptances

which we brought up it would be necessary to

make out a new acceptance agreement. I cannot

remember any one telling me that. I was not

familiar with these transactions to any extent

before I came to the bank in the early part of

October and the whole thing was strange to me."

(R. 313.)

As has been pointed out previously in connection

with the testimony of Hellman and Gilstrap relative

to the inception of Richfield 's loan on its foreign

collections, the negotiations all concerned the estab-

lishment of a line of credit. Mr. Hellman, in testify-

ing as to the conference between Mr. Lipman and Mr.

Hall, said:

''Then the question came up of the amount of

credit. I believe Mr. Lipman said to Mr. Hall,

'We will advance you $150,000, $200,000, $250,000,

on your foreign collections'. He said to Mr. Hall

that this credit was to remain in force imtil it

was cancelled by either side ; that we did not know
whether it would work out or not; we did not

know what kind of foreign collections they were
handling, and if it did not work out we reserved

the right to cancel the credit."

(R. 438.)
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Mr. Hall himself corroborated this:

*'Mr. Lipman stated that he had accommodated
Richfield to a large extent and also had accommo-

dated Mr. Talbot, and he would give a further

line of credit based on foreign drafts in the

amount of $150,000 or thereabouts mid see how it

would tvork out."

(R. 343.)

The foregoing establishes the understanding on the

part of all concerned that a credit to the extent of

the amount specified was granted to run over a con-

siderable period of time and that there was no neces-

sity for executmg a new acceptance agreement each

time a fresh advance should be made over and above

the original $150,000.00 as long as not more than that

amount was outstanding under the agreement at any

one time. The acceptance agreement itself is in its

terms entirely consistent with and supx3orts this un-

derstanding.

That appellant recognized that the acceptance agree-

ment created a revolving credit is quite apparent

from the ledger page which was produced by it at the

trial at the instance and request of counsel for ap-

pellee and introduced in evidence by the latter as

Plaintiff's Exhibit 122. (R. 394, 395, 396.) This

record leaves no doubt as to the parties' understand-

ing of the transaction ; the figures thereon conclusively

show that when an acceptance was paid and the credit

under the acceptance agreement was received, the

amount of the payment was entered on the ledger

sheet as being thereupon again available to Richfield,
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without the necessity of issuing a new acceptance

agreement. The details with respect to this are well

set forth on the exhibit itself and in Mr. Gilstrai^'s

testimony. (R. 396, 397, 398.)

That Richfield understood that it was granted a

revolving credit by appellant is illustrated in the

testimony of Mr. Hall:

''The only tmie that a continuous credit was
mentioned was I believe by Mr. Gilstrap at first.

He said that it could be handled on an acceptance

or form a revolving or continuous credit."

(R. 359.)

Counsel for apjjellee argued at the trial that since

the existence of a revolving credit was not pleaded

by appellant in its answer, it was not properly within

the issues of the case. But appellant actually had no

opportunity to raise the issue before the trial; appel-

land pleaded in its answer that there was only one

agreement between the parties, to-wit, the acceptance

agreement. (R. 105, 115.) This allegation is nowise

inconsistent with the contention that a revolving credit

was created, for it was the acceptance agreement itself

which produced the revolving credit.

Appellee further argued that the failure of appel-

lant to call to the attention of Richfield, after the pay-

ment of the Birla Bros, sight drafts on December 15,

1930, that it had the right to obtain additional moneys

under the acceptance agreement, is indicative that no

continuing credit existed. However, the acceptance

being a ninety day obligation of both Richfield and

the bank, imtil it was actually paid the obligation
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thereon still existed, notwithstanding any anticipated

payments prior to maturity. The earliest time when

Richfield Oil Company had the right mider the

acceptance agreement to further credit was upon the

actual payment of the acceptances for $115,000.00 on

January 6, 1931. Appellee then contended that the

fact that Richfield asked for no additional advances

after the final satisfaction of the first $115,000.00

worth of acceptances proves that no continuous credit

existed. Richfield 's failure to request further ad-

vances is not evidence of the non-existence of the

credit; the reason for this failure is something

which lies within the bosom of Richfield itself. How-

ever, appellant may safely guess that Richfield

was then precariously close to a receivership and

the company probably was not bothering at that time

about securing the financing of its Foreign Depart-

ment. The acceptances w^ere paid on January 6th, less

than ten days before the appointment of the receiver.

On the other hand, betw^een the 21st day of October,

1930, and the 28th day of November, 1930, the record

shows that Richfield did not request the issuance of

acceptances although it was still entitled to $20,000.00

worth under the acceptance agreement. Thus the mere

lapse of time during W'hich no additional advances

were requested is meaningless in so far as its bearing

upon the existence of a revolving credit is concerned.

Appellant was not obligated to call to the attention

of Richfield that it had the right to further credit

upon the payment of the first $115,000.00 worth of

acceptances, because appellant had from time to time

advised it of the maturity date of acceptances and
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of the actual pa^anent thereof. (R. 295, 296, 297, 298,

299, 300, 303, 304.)

The creation of a line of credit, as testified to by

all witnesses; the manner of the Richfield borrowing,

namely, under the original credit, but in several in-

stallments; the right to cancel demanded by Mr. Lip-

man (R. 438), and in substance admitted by Mr. Hall

(R. 343) ; and the records of the bank (R. 394, 395,

396), all bespeak the existence of this revolving, or

continuous credit. Opposed to this is substantially

nothing, except Richfield 's neglect from January 6th

to January 15th to borrow further under the credit.

But even though no ^'evolving credit was ever

created or contemplated, all of the drafts in question

were nevertheless deposited as security for accep-

tances. Here again appellee's case has apparently been

constructed on a retrospective view of the facts as they

actually happened rather than on the understanding

of the parties as of the time of the execution of the

acceptance agreement and the deposit of the drafts.

It so happened that all of the acceptances were issued

within a comparatively short period of time. Since

they were to mature at the expiration of ninety days

from the date thereof, the 180 day drafts necessarily

turned out actually to be unavailable as security for

acceptances. This, however, is no proof that they

were never deposited as such security. At the time

the first Birla Bros, drafts were forwarded to appel-

lant it had no means of knowing when Richfield would

avail itself of the balance of the $150,000.00 credit.

This might just as well have been at such a later time
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that the maturity dates of the acceptances would have

been extended beyond the maturity date of the 180

day drafts, in which event they actually would have

been of value as security.

Furthermore, just because the acceptances were

actually paid as they matured from the proceeds of

drafts is not e^ddence that appellant had any guaranty

at the inception of these transactions that such would

be the case. Conceivably a great number of the drawees

of the drafts might default, failing to pay entirely,

or delaying payment for such a period of time that

the acceptances w^ould still be unsatisfied at the matur-

ity of the 180 day drafts. In any such event, these

drafts would have had actual value as security. These

probabilities were sufficient to necessitate the deposit

of all drafts as security for all acceptances, and they

completely explain the statement of Mr. Lipman to

Mr. Hall (hereinbefore quoted) that appellant would

be willing to advance money on Richfield's foreign

drafts.

It is submitted that the foregoing argmnents demon-

strate that a real and substantial reason existed for

the deposit and acceptance of all the drafts in question

as security for all the acceptances, thus completely

answering appellee's contention based upon the sup-

posed uselessness of the drafts as security. In many

loan transactions, collateral deposited as security turns

out to be useless, and yet the fact of the deposit thereof

as security cannot thereby be denied.
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(d) All Drafts Deposited Were Transmitted, Received and

Handled Alike.

The manner in which the acceptance agreement was

signed and delivered and the first drafts deposited has

been related.

The sight drafts and 180 day drafts were deposited

and handled in exactly the same manner. A letter of

transmittal accompanied each set of drafts covering-

each shipment. Each of these letters was written in

substantially the same language and appellant issued

to Richfield receipts for all drafts delivered. (R. 319.)

Starting with the first Birla Bros, transactions on

October 8th, Richfield proceeded to send to appellant

its drafts with transmittal letters, all in exactly the

same form as those first letters, Plaintiff's Exhibits

22 and 23 (R. 266, 267, 268, 269), receiving from ap-

pellant in each instance identical deposit receipts for

the drafts. The first of these receipts is Plaintiff's

Exhibit 24 (R, 271) and refers not alone to the four

Birla Bros, drafts, but to the two additional drafts

deposited by letters of transmittal of October 8th

and 9th. (R. 274, 275, 276, 277.)

The transactions continued, in a manner exactly

like that relating to the first Birla Bros, drafts, up

to the time of ih^ appointment of appellee as receiver.

Copies of the letters of transmittal and original de-

posit receipts relating to these transactions are in

evidence included in Plaintiff's Exhibit 40 to 92. (R.

291, 292, 293.) All are identical in form except as

to the description of the drafts and shipping docu-

ments. Mr. Gilstrap testified (R. 383) and Mr. Pope
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admitted (R. 319) that all of the transactions with

respect to the forwarding of the drafts to appellant

and the receipt thereof by it were handled in exactly

the same manner as inaugurated initially with respect

to the first four Birla Bros, drafts.

Although appellee claims that some of the drafts

were deposited as security for acceptances and some

were not, there is nothing in any of the letters of

transmittal or the receipts, or in fact in any other

contemporaneous document, w^hich indicates such a

distinction. All of the drafts undisputedly were trans-

mitted and handled alike, including those here in

question.

Finding of Fact No. VII (R. 183, 184) is to the

effect that an oral agreement was entered into in

August, 1930, by which certain drafts, Avithout in any

manner specifying them, weve to be dej)osited for

collection only. In other words, they were not to be

deposited as security for acceptances. Finding No.

VIII (R. 184, 185) is that thereafter the 180 day

Birla drafts in question were delivered pursuant to

this agreement. In Finding No. XII (R. 184, 185)

the Court held that in October, 1930, another agree-

ment, the acceptance agreement, was entered into.

And in Finding No. XVI (R. 189) the trial Court

found that the Birla Bros, sight drafts were deposited

pursuant to such latter agreement. There is not one

scintilla of evidence supporting this arbitrary separa-

tion of agreements. The fact of the matter is that the

two Birla sight drafts and the two 180 day drafts

were delivered at the same time, October 8, 1930,
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under exactly the same circumstances, and with no

distinction, then or thereafter, as to the manner in

which they or any other drafts would be handled.

Contrary to the Court's findings, no distinction

was ever made or intended to be made; all of the

drafts were deposited as security for acceptances;

and all were under and part of the transaction which

commenced with the deliver}^ of the acceptance agree-

ment on October 6, 1930.

(e) The Manner in Which the Proceeds of the Various Drafts

Were Applied to the Payment of Acceptances Refutes

Appellee's Contention as to the Distinction Between

Drafts.

It is a fact developed upon cross examination of

Mr. Pope that the proceeds of certain drafts which

supposedly were not deposited under the acceptances

were actually applied in payment of acceptances. It

is further an accepted fact, developed likewise upon

the cross examination of Mr. Pope, that even the

proceeds of drafts alleged to have been deposited as

security for acceptances and which were paid on

acceptances, w^ere not applied against the particular

acceptances supposedly issued thereon. (R. 301, 323,

324, 325.)

It is here advisable to refer to the schedule of drafts

set out in the Narrative Statement of Evidence (R.

293) and to point out more minutely just which drafts

besides those which are here involved w^ere, and which

were not, according to the claim of appellee, deposited

under the acceptance agreement.

The first of these was draft No. 103024, de-

posited on October 28, 1931. The goods under
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this draft were not shipped and the draft was

returned to Richfield.

Draft No. 103025 was deposited on October 28,

1930, no acceptances having been issued at that

time. This draft was paid on November 15, 1930,

prior to the release on November 28, 1930, of the

final series of acceptances in the total sum of

$25,000.00.

The history of draft No. 103028 was similar

to that of No. 103024, the first to be considered

hereinabove.

Appellee claims that drafts Nos. 103027, 113008,

113009 and 113018 fall without the scope of the

acceptance agreements because it was estimated,

as appellee claims, that due to the length of tune

which would be required to send the drafts to the

foreign country in which the drawee resided, plus

the time required to return the proceeds, funds

would not be received in San Francisco prior to

February 26, 1931, the maturity date of the last

acceptance issued in the sum of $25,000. This

is an assumption unfounded bj^ any evidence of

communications, oral or written, passing between

Richfield and appellant. If any such process of

reasoning ever took place prior to the time at

which this controversy arose, it remained locked

in the minds of Mr. Hall and Mr. Pope.

As to drafts Nos. 113021, 113023, 123007,

123008, 123009, 123010, 123013, 123014, 123015,

13103 and 13106, appellee claims that because

they were deposited subsequent to the issuance
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of the last acceptance and because the amount

of drafts which were undisputedly under the

acceptance agreements exceeded the amount of the

acceptances outstanding, these drafts were not

deposited as security for acceptances.

(1) Application of Proceeds.

The manner in which the proceeds of some of these

drafts were handled is inconsistent with appellee's

contention.

The proceeds of draft No. 113023 were actually

applied by appellant, apparently with Richfield 's

concurrence, to the satisfaction of the last matur-

ing acceptance in the sum of $25,000.00. (R.

229,300.) This was also true of drafts Nos. 123007

(R. 300), 113018 (R. 303,304), 123009 (R.

303,304), and 113009 (R. 303,304).

It is submitted that this treatment of the proceeds

of these drafts decisively supports appellant's con-

tention that all of the drafts were deposited as secur-

ity for acceptances. The acts of the parties bespeak

their understanding of the transaction.

(2) So-Called "Draft Reserve".

Elaborate care was taken by counsel for appellee

in the course of the trial to present in as effective

a mamier as possible that part of the correspondence

which passed between Wells Fargo Bank & Union

Trust Co. and Richfield Oil Company relating to the

issuance of acceptances and the existence of a so-

called "Draft Reserve." (R. 278,279.) An examina-

tion of the transaction as stated by Mr. Gilstrap and
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Mr. Leuenberger in behalf of appellant, and as ad-

mitted in substance by Mr. Pope, readily explains

the machinery under which the drafts were to be

issued. The limit of the credit fixed by Mr. Lipman

and Mr. Hellman was $150,000.00 (subsequently ex-

tended by the sum of $5000.00 at the time of the ex-

ecution of the second acceptance agreement). Within

this total limit of $155,000.00, as testified repeatedly

by Mr. Gilstrap and by Mr. Leuenberger, appellant

would and did advance monej'^s to the extent that there

was satisfactory security in the form of drafts. Thus,

for example, appellant would not issue acceptances

for more than one-half of the shipment against Birla

Bros, (that is, the sight drafts), and would not take

as a ''basis" (in the numerous admissions of Pope)

or as a measure, as the testimony of Hall and Leuen-

berger sets forth, the 180 day drafts upon Birla Bros.

In determining whether Richfield could have addi-

tional acceptances issued within the $155,000.00 limit,

it was from time to time essential to examine the

drafts then on deposit and to decide whether the

security therefor was satisfactory, measured by or

based upon these drafts, but with all of the drafts

as security; if it was, the acceptances were then ac-

cepted by the bank and sold. In this connection it is

important to note that the words ''draft reserve" first

came into these transactions as a result of letters

written by Pope himself, admittedly a novice in deal-

ings of this kind. Gilstrap testified (R. 384) that he

adopted Pope's language. Thereafter "draft reserve"

appeared several times in the correspondence.
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(3) So-Called "Earmarked" Drafts.

Appellee also placed great reliance at the trial on

the statement in a letter written by appellant to Rich-

field, dated October 21, 1930 (R. 282) to the effect

that appellant had "earmarked" draft No. 103010

against the acceptance iji the smn of $10,000.00 matur-

ing on January 19, 1931. Appellee reasons from this

that each draft was tied to a particular acceptance

and was security for no other acceptance.

The letter from appellant to Richfield, dated Jan-

uary 3, 1931, marked Plaintiff's Exhibit 95 (R. 296)

sets forth the manner in vrhich the proceeds of this

draft No. 103010 were finally applied. The letter

shows that the first $115,000.00 worth of acceptances

matured on January 6, 1931, the second acceptance for

$5000.00 on January 13, 1931, and the third acceptance

for $10,000.00, against which draft No. 103010 was

sui3posed to have been "earmarked," on January 19,

1931. At the time this letter w^as written the only

proceeds of drafts which appellant had on hand were

those of the first two Birla Bros, sight drafts and

those of draft No. 103010. After the satisfaction of

the $115,000.00 worth of acceptances, the sum of

$4626.05 remained of the proceeds of the two Birla

Bros, drafts. Since this was not enough to satisfy

the $5000.00 acceptance maturing on January 13,

1931, it became necessary to use part of the proceeds

of the so-called "earmarked" draft for this purpose.

Furthermore, after complete satisfaction of the

$10,000.00 acceptance against which this draft was

alleged to have been earmarked, some $600.00 re-

mained to be applied on the final $25,000.00 worth
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of acceptances. This same letter of January 3, 1931,

shows clearly that the proceeds of the two Birla Bros,

drafts and of the so-called earmarked draft were

indiscriminately ai^plied to the satisfaction of the

three sets of drafts totalling $130,000.00, instead of

being confined to the particular acceptances for which

appellee contends they were "earmarked". In this

indiscriminate application Richfield concurred. De-

spite the vehement assertion of appellee at the trial

that draft No. 103010 was earmarked against the

$10,000.00 acceptance maturing on January 19, 1931,

and was security solely for this acceptance, there is no

evidence that Richfield at any time demanded that

appellant turn over to it the balance of $991.07 of

the proceeds over and above the amount of the accep-

tance. Richfield would certainly have been entitled

to the pajrment to it of this surplus if the present

claim of appellee had been the understanding of the

parties. The manner in which the proceeds of this

draft were applied, on the other hand, demonstrates

again that all of the drafts deposited were security

for each and every acceptance issued.

(f) Comparison of the Records Kept by the Parties to the

Transaction.

Appellee has contended that Richfield Oil Co. under-

stood the transaction as iuA^olving the deposit of only

certain specified drafts under the Acceptance Agree-

ment. Appellant, on the other hand, contends that

there was but one transaction and that all the drafts

were deposited under the acceptance agreements as

security for acceptances. Assuming that both appellee

and appellant are honest in their respective conten-
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tions, it is particularly important to compare the

records kept by the Richfield Oil Comi3any and those

of appellant during the course of the transaction.

There was neither offered nor introduced in evidence

a single original record, book or document of Rich-

field Oil Company showing that during the operation

of the acceptance agreement and the forwarding of

the drafts, or, indeed, at any time, a distinction was

made between the drafts wdth respect to their relation-

ship to the acceptances and the acceptance agreement.

As to the Richfield Oil Company's records, Mr.

Pope testified that he kept ''little pencil memoran-

dmns" showing what particular drafts were, according

to his understanding, under the acceptances. (R, 305.)

This is the sole evidence as to any records kept by

Richfield Oil Company with respect to the drafts al-

legedly under the acceptance agreement or security for

the acceptances. There svas no evidence introduced as

to where or how or when these "little pencil memo-

randums" were kept, nor were the}^ produced at the

trial. The record is clear that there was no com-

munication from Richfield to appellant of the pencil

memoranda or of any other records or list of drafts

purportedly under the acceptance agreement. On the

other hand, the communications which Richfield

directed to appellant consisted of letters of transmittal

accompanying the drafts, each in exactly the same

form and couched in the same language as the letters

marked Plaintiff's Exhibits 22 and 23 (R. 266, 267,

268, 269), which started the transaction.

As opposed to the doubtfully effective "little pencil

memorandums" of Richfield Oil Company are the
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permanent records of appellant. Mr. Gilstrap, cor-

roborated by the witness Mr. Desmond, a clerk in

the Foreign Department of appellant, testified that

the permanent record of each draft deposited with

and transmitted b}^ it to its foreign correspondent

for collection, consisted of a copy of the remittance

letter addressed to the correspondent bank, contain-

ing a detailed description of the draft and accompany-

ing documents. (R. 377, 378, 379.) There was offered,

and received in evidence four such transmittal letters,

marked at the trial Defendant's Exhibits ''¥,'' "Qr,''

''H" and '^I" (R. 380, 381, 382), relating respectively

to draft No. 103006-A (sight draft on Birla Bros, for

$55,900.76), draft No. 103006-B (180 day draft on

Birla Bros, for $55,900.75), draft No. 103004 (sight

draft on Birla Bros, for $63,950), and draft No.

103005 (180 day draft on Birla Bros, for $63,950).

These first four letters of transmittal from appellant

to its Calcutta correspondent relate to the first four

Birla Bros, drafts, including the tvv^o 180 day drafts,

the proceeds of which constitute the principal part

of the sum in issue in this litigation. In the right

hand coi'ner of each of the four carbon copies of

letters of transmittal, which as previously stated, con-

stitute appellant's permanent records of the transac-

tion, there were written in pencil the words '

' Security

for acceptances, proceeds to Clemo." The testimony

of Gilstrap, supported by Desmond, is clear to the

effect that these copies of letters of transmittal were

regular records of appellant; that they were the first

permanent records, and were kept in the ordinary

course of business. Gilstrap further testified, both
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on direct and on cross examination, that in order to

start the new transaction in the proper manner he

instructed the clerk, Desmond, to make the notation

in question upon the first few file copies of the letters

of transmittal relating to Richfield drafts (Gilstrap's

testimony, R. 378, 379; Desmond's testimony, R. 423,

424). Gilstrap testified that:

''This was the first transaction we had had

with Richfield, and I wanted to be sure there

could be no mistake made about these bills being

security for acceptances, and as an initial trans-

action we wanted to be sure to start it correctly."

(R. 380.)

Subsequently he said:

''When I handed the first four Birla Bros.

drafts to the clerk in charge of the foreign col-

lections, who is Mr. Desmond, I told him we were

advancing the Richfield Oil Company against the

collections certain amounts by means of accep-

tances, and that I wanted him to be sure to make a

proper memorandum so that the proceeds of these

collections, when they were received, would be

handed to Mr. Clemo, the man who handled the

acceptance finances."

(R. 415.)

Mr. Desmond testified, despite arduous efforts of

counsel to break him down, that the writing was his

and was made contemporaneously with the receipt of

the drafts and instructions from Mr. Gilstrap. (R.

423, 424.) Thus the file copies of all of the first letters

of transmittal relating to Richfield drafts which went

from appellant to its correspondents had the same
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pencil notation upon them. After the transaction was

well under way, the same notation no longer appeared

upon file copies.

In the course of the trial, Counsel for appellee

demanded of Mr. Gilstrap that he produce all the

records of appellant relating to the acceptance trans-

action with Richfield Oil Company. In response to

this, Mr. Gilstrap produced a ledger sheet which

appellee offered in evidence and which was received

and designated as Plaintiff's Exhibit 122. (R. 394,

395, 396.) An examination of this ledger page dis-

closes that after the entry of the original advance of

$115,000.00 on October 6, 1930, the first entries in the

colmnn entitled "documents drawn against", are

"Silver Ray" and 17,400 cases of kerosene and 540

drmns of fuel oil. Next thereafter is the name '

' Silver

Hazel" and 95,000 cases of kerosene. (R. 394.) In

explaining these entries, Mr. Gilstrap testified that

"Silver Hazel" and "Silver Ray" referred to the

names of the two boats carrying the Birla Bros, ship-

ments (R. 396, 412), and that the reference to kerosene

and fuel oil was a description of the shipments which

went forward thereon (R. 412) ; furthermore, that

these were the shipments to Birla Bros, represented

respectively by the two sets of drafts,—two at sight

and two at 180 days, drawn by Richfield Oil Com-

pany upon Birla Bros. (R. 412.) An examination of

Plaintiff's Exhibits 22 and 23 (R. 266, 267, 268, 269),

being the letters of transmittal with reference to the

first Birla Bros, drafts, will immediately disclose that

"Silver Ray" and "Silver Hazel" were the two boats

upon which the shipments went forward.
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According to its own records, duly identified and

established, it is apparent that appellant complied

with the instructions contained in the previously men-

tioned letter of Mr. Lyons, Comptroller of Richfield

Oil Company (R. 316) to issue $115,000.00 worth of

acceptances against the entire shipment to Birla Bros,

evidenced by the four drafts, two at sight and two

at 180 days. This is verified not only by Exhibit 122,

but also by the notations upon the filed copies of ap-

pellant's letters of transmittal hereinbefore referred

to. (Defendant's Exhibits '^F", ''G", ^^H", and ''I".)

In view of the clear and convincing records of

appellant, consistent with the testimony of its officers

and employees, and in view of the uncertain and

nebulous records, if any, of Richfield, no doubt re-

mains as to the nature and operation of the accep-

tance credit. There was only one transaction inaug-

urated hy and under the acceptance agreefnent—all

drafts transmitted to appellant by Richfield Oil Com-

pany were deposited under the agreement as security

for the acceptances; being thus deposited, they he-

came, hy operation of the terms of the agreement,

security for the general indebtedness of Richfield to

appellant.

(g) The Legal Effect of the Terms of the Acceptance Agreement.

If appellant is correct in its foregoing contentions

that all of the drafts, and particularly those whose

proceeds are involved in this litigation, w^ere deposited

under and pursuant to the acceptance agreement,

then the provision of the acceptance agreement here-

inbefore set forth that
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''all bills of lading * * * money and goods

held by you as security for any such acceptance

shall also be held by you as security for any other

liability from us to you * * *"

clearly gave appellant the right to apply the proceeds

of the drafts to the satisfaction of the general indebt-

edness of Richfield to appellant in the sum of

$625,000.00. It is well settled that such a i)rovision

as this gives the security holder the right to apply

the security to all indebtedness due from the mort-

gagor or pledgor, taking the case out of the rule

stated in Berry v. Bank of Bal'ersfieJd (1918) 177

Cal. 206, 170 Pac. 415, that a bank has no general

lien upon collateral pledged to secure only a specific

debt.

In Commerce d' Savings Bank v. Rodert H. Jenks

Lumber Co. (1911) 194 Fed. 732, a note executed by

the defendant in favor of the plaintiff bank contained

a provision as follows:

''The undersigned, having herewith deposited

as collateral security for the payment of this and

every other liability of the undersigned to said

bank, direct or contingent, due or to become due,

or which may hereafter be contracted or exist-

The Court said at page 735

:

"Considering the fact that this Imnber company
was a large borrow^er of the bank, and consider-

ing this plain and precise language, which could

not be any plainer, there seems but little doubt

but that the Union National Bank has a right
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to hold these 304 shares of capital stock * * *

as collateral not only for the $20,000 set forth

in the specific note above referred to, but also

for the indebtedness of every kind of the Robert

H. Jenks Lumber Co. to the bank. Language
not as comprehensive nor as specific as that em-

ployed in this note in question has been held by
several of the highest courts of the state to mean
that the collateral was not given for the specific

indebtedness of the note alone, but for all of the

indebtedness."

In Citizens Bank v. Thornton (1909) 174 Fed. 752,

the provisions in a note given to the bank stated that

the collateral pledged therewith was
"* * * to secure the payment of this or any

other obligation upon which the owner shall be

in any way bound primarily or secondarily, due

or to become due."

The Court said, at page 762:

''Apter language could not be used to convey

the intent to pledge the collateral for the protec-

tion of 'any other debt' the pledgor might con-

tract thereafter. The original Buckmaster and
Williams note, which the parties recognized as

one of the debts for which appellee was liable,

was outstanding at the time the deposit of col-

lateral was made. By its express terms the

pledge secured 'any other debt due or to become
due' * * * We cannot doubt that the col-

lateral in the hands of the receiver is subject

under the terms of the pledge to the satisfaction

of the principal and interest due upon the Buck-
master and Williams note in suit."
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To the same effect see:

Foster v. Abrahams (1925) 74 Cal. App. 521,

241 Pac. 274;

Selma Bridge Co. v. Harris (1898 Ala.) 31

So. 508;

Bo7ii c& Harper Milling Co. v. Stevenson Co.

(1913 N. C.) 77 S. E. 676;

Bafik V. de Mere (1894 Ga.) 19 S. E. 38;

Beacon Trust Co. v. Rohhins (1899 Mass.) 53

N. E. 868;

Stanley v. Bank (1896 111.) 46 N. E. 273.

(h) The Terms of the Acceptance Agreement With Respect to

Security Cannot be Altered by Parol Evidence.

Since the drafts in question were, as appellant

claims, deposited mider the acceptance agreement,

parol evidence to the effect that they were to be

security for a particular indebtedness only is inadmis-

sible.

In National Bank of Rochester v. Erion-ffaines

Realty Co. (1928) 232 N. Y. S. 57, a mortgage pro-

vided that it was a continuing and collateral security

for the payment of any and all indebtedness of the

mortgagors to the bank, then existing or at any time

thereafter arising by reason of the notes, drafts, or

other obligations of the mortgagors. Defendants

claimed, in the same manner as appellee in the case

at bar, that it was orally agreed that the bond and

mortgage should be and remain not general collateral

according to its terms, but security for the note in

suit only. The Court said, at page 59

:
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^'The bond and mortgage in suit are broad

and general in their terms as against their makers.
* * * Even if the proof introduced by defen-

dants is sufficient to establish the claimed oral

agreement preceding or attending the making and
delivery of the bond and mortgage in February,
1914—to the effect that the instruments in ques-

tion in the possession of the Bank of Commerce
were held as collateral to the note in suit and its

predecessors and to no other notes or indebtedness

—receipt of such proof in evidence was error in

that it tended to vary the terms of a written

instrument contemporaneously or subsequently

executed.
'

'

In First National Bank of Langdon v. Prior (1901

N. D.) 86 N. W. 362, it was held that a prior or

contemporaneous oral agreement made by a mortgagee

or his agent that upon payment of two notes the

mortgage would be released, is not admissible in

evidence where the mortgage provided absolutely that

it should be security for four notes.

The two foregoing cases have been cited merely to

show the precise application of the general parol

evidence rule to the particular facts of the case at

bar.

(i) Appellee Must Bear the Burden of Proving- That the Drafts

in Question Were Not Deposited Under the Acceptance

Agreements.

At the trial of this action, counsel for appellee

attempted to impose upon appellant the burden of

proving that the 180 day drafts drawn on Birla Bros,

were deposited with appellant under the acceptance



70

agreements. They contended in substance that if no

evidence were introduced on either side on this point,

appellee would have been entitled to a finding that

these drafts were not deposited under the acceptance

agreements. This conclusion is entirely unwarranted

and erroneous. It is elementary that the burden of

proving a fact rests upon one who has the affirmative

of the issue.

In paragrai^h VII of appellee's ancillary amended

bill of complaint (R. 74, 75) an allegation is set forth

to the effect that the 180 day drafts were deposited

with appellant under an agreement entered into in

August, 1930. Contained in paragraph VIII (R. 77,

78, 79) of said amended bill is an allegation that

other drafts were deposited under an acceptance

agreement entered into in October. Thus, appellee

alleged the existence of two separate contracts.

In paragraph V of its answer (R. 104, 105) appel-

lant denies that there was any such agreement as

set forth in paragraph VII of the amended bill, and

"with respect to the agreement under which said

drafts were deposited", appellant averred that the

only agreement was one entitled "Acceptance Agree-

ment". In paragraph VI of appellant's answer (R.

105, 106, 107, 108) it denied that any agreement was

made with Richfield Oil Company of California with

respect to said drafts except said acceptance agree-

ment. Thus, appellant denied negatively the existence

of two agreements as alleged by appellee and further

denied affirmatively the existence of such two agree-

ments by alleging that there was only one agreement.
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That the burden rests upon one having the affirma-

tive of the issue and that the pleading of an affirma-

tive denial does not shift the burden was held in

Scott V. Wood (1889) 81 Cal. 398, 22 Pac. 871.

In that case the plaintiff brought an action to re-

cover for services rendered under a contract in which,

as alleged, defendant agreed to pay $250.00 per month.

The answer averred that subsequent to the time when

the contract was entered into, it was agreed that the

salary of plaintiff should be $200.00 per month. The

Court held that the burden of proof rested on the

plaintiff, saying at page 400:

''The term 'burden of proof is used in different

senses. Sometimes it is used to signify the bur-

den of making or meeting a prima facie case,

and sometimes the burden of producing a pre-

ponderance of e^ddence. * * * The two bur-

dens are distinct things. One may shift back and
forth with the ebb and flow of testimony. The
other remains with the party upon whom it is

cast hy the pleadings—that is to say, with the

party who has the affirmative of the issue.''

(Italics ours.)

In the same case, at page 404, the Court said:

"But we treat the complaint as sufficiently

alleging that the rate did, in fact, continue as it

commenced. This essential allegation was put in

issue by the answer. It averred affirmatively a

different agreement made shortly after the one
stated in the complaint and denied that there was
any subsequent agreement. This was sufficient

to raise an issue as to the continuance of the rate

alleged. The fact that the traverse ivas affirmative
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and not purely negative in form tvoidd not destroy

its force nor change its essential nature/' (Italics

ours.)

In Gilman v. Bortz (1883) 63 Oal. 120, the per

curiam opinion sufficiently states the facts and the

decision as follows:

''The court below must have denied the motion

for a nonsuit on the ground that the answer failed

to deny the allegations of the complaint, except

as to the assignment to the plaintiff. In so con-

struing the answer the court misconceived its

meaning. The answer denied that the sale was

for $800 in Grold Coin, as alleged in the com-

plaint, and then proceeded to aver that the con-

tract of sale was for $400 in money, and for $400

in boarding the plaintiff. This was in legal effect

to deny that the sale was for $800 or on any other

terms than as set forth in the subsequent aver-

ments of the answer above stated. When, then,

the plaintiff only offered the assigimient to him

and rested, he had offered no evidence to establish

the main allegation of his complaint, and the

nonsuit should have been granted."

In Murphy v. Napa County (1862) 20 Cal. 497,

plaintiff sued to recover a certain sum for work done

and materials furnished in repairing a bridge. The

answer denied the making of the contract with plain-

tiff and averred that a certain other contract was

the only one between the parties. The Court said, at

page 503:
'

' The complaint must be understood as averring

a contract in accordance with the statute, and we
think the answer sufficiently denies the making
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of such a contract. It is awkwardly drawn, and

lacks in many respects the perspicuity and pre-

cision desirable in the pleading-; but it denies in

a plain and unequivocal foi-ni the making- of any

contract with the plaintiff. It admits a contract

with the plaintiff and one Williston, and avers

that this was the only contract made by the de-

fendant in relation to the matter, and denies that

the board of supervisors made any other. This

'Was sufficient to put plaintiff upon proof of the

contract, and the evidence in the case did not

entitle him to recover." (Italics ours.)

To the effect that the burden of proof rests upon

the party who has the affirmative of the issue, see:

Koyer v, Wellnvan (1909) 12 Cal. App. 87, 106

Pac. 599

;

Ruth V. Krone (1909) 10 Cal. App. 770, 103

Pac. 960;

Valente v. Sierra llij. Co. (1907) 151 Cal. 534,

91 Pac. 481.

As a result therefore of the holdings of these cases,

the burden here rests upon appellee to prove the

existence of the two contracts alleged, and if he fails

to do so by a preponderance of the evidence, appel-

lant is entitled to a finding- that the drafts were all

deposited under the acceptance agreement. It is sub-

mitted that in the light of all the evidence adduced

at the trial, as set forth in the Narrative Statement

of Evidence and as sunmiarized herein, appellee has

failed to prove by a preponderance of evidence the

existence of the two contracts alleged and has failed

to prove that the drafts involved herein were not de-

posited under the acceptance agreement.
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At the trial, appellee relied upon the case, of Roche

V. Baldtvin (1904) 143 Cal. 186, 76 Pac. 956; Cusiclx

V. Boyne (1905) 1 Cal. App. 643, 82 Pac. 985; Melons

v. Ruffino (1900) 129 Cal. 514, 518, 62 Pac. 93; Gerald

V. Irvine (1929) 97 Cal. App. 377, 275 Pac. 840, De
Laval Dairy Supply Co. v. Stedman (1907) 96 Cal.

App. 651, 92 Pac. 877; Gett v. Pacific Gas & Electric

Co. (1923) 192 Cal. 621, 623, 221 Pac. 376; O'NeUl v.

Caledonia Ins. Co. (1913) 166 Cal. 310, 135 Pac. 1121,

as showing that the burden of proof rested upon

ai^pellant. These cases, however, do not militate

against the conclusion of appellant that the burden

in the instant matter rests upon appellee. They all

involved pleadings by way of confession and avoidance,

which, of course, placed upon the defendants therein

the burden of proving their allegations.

J

IV.

EVEN IF THE DRAFTS IN LITIGATION WERE NOT DEPOSITED
UNDER THE ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT, THEY ARE SUB-

JECT TO DEFENDANT'S BANKER'S LIEN AND RIGHT OF
SET-OFF.

If the drafts, the proceeds of which are the subject

of this action, were deposited under the acceptance

agreement, as appellant contends and as heretofore

argued, they necessarily were subject to the terms

thereof, and by virtue of the contract became security

not alone f(^r the acceptance indebtedness of the Rich-

field Oil Company to the appellant bank, but for any

and all other indebtedness of Richfield to appellant.

If, on the other hand, notwithstanding the overwhelm-
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ing- weight of evidence to the contrary, the drafts in

question are held not to have been deposited under

the acceptance agreement, then, nevertheless, they and

the proceeds thereof were still subject to the appel-

lant's banker's lien and right of offset. Appellant

submits that appellee's cause must be impaled on

either horn of this dilemma. Any relief which appellee

claims under the second alternative depends upon the

existence of a definite and binding agreement by the

appellant to waive its banker's lien and right of set-off.

This relief is not available to appellee if the case

falls under the first alternative because of the parol

evidence I'ule. In view of the terms of the acceptance

agreement, the rule of Berry v. Bank of Bakersfield

(supra) is not applicable if the drafts were deposited

under the agreement, nor is it applicable even if the

drafts are held not to have been so deposited. Unless

it be pursuant to the terms of the acceptance agree-

ment there was here no specific indehtedness for which

the drafts were pledged as security.

The lower Court held that appellant waived its

right to banker's lien upon the drafts in question at

the outset of the transaction. (Finding VII, R. 183,

184; Conclusion III, R. 194.) This is specified as

error. (Assigmnents Nos. Ill, IV, V, VI and VII,

R. 479, 480, 481.)

(a) Statement of the Rule Regfarding- Banker's Liens.

The statement of the general rule of banker's liens

appears frequently in statutes and decisions. Thus in

California, Section 3054 of the Civil Code, codifying
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the law of banker's liens as it previously existed,

provides

:

'^A banker has a general lien, dependent upon
possession, upon all property in his hands be-

longing to a customer, for the balance due to him
from such customer, in the course of business.

'

'

In American Surety Company v. Ba)iJi- of Italy

(1923) 63 Cal. App. 149, 218 Pac. 466, the following

appears

:

"It is settled law, and, indeed, as above indi-

cated, it is expressly so provided by the law of

this State (Civil Code, Section 3054), that a

banker has a lien upon and so is vested with the

right to appropriate any money or property in

his possession belonging to a customer to the

extinguishment of any matured indebtedness of

such customer to the bank to the full extent of

the money or property so possessed, if necessary,

and so far as it may go toward such extinguish-

ment, provided, of course, that such property or

money so deposited has not been charged, with

the knowledge of the bank, with the subseixience

of a special burden or purpose, or does not con-

stitute a trust fund of which the banker had
notice."

In 5 Michie, Banks and Bankiny, page 212, is found

the following explanation of Banker's Lien:

"The rule that a bank has a general lien u])on

or right of setoff against all moneys or funds in

its possession belonging to a depositor to secure

the payment of the depositor's indebtedness to

it, is a i^art of the law merchant and well estab-

lished in commercial transactions. The rule may
be broadly stated that the bank has a general
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lien upon all moneys and funds of a depositor

in its possession for the balance of the general

account, though the lien is only for accounts that

are at the time due and payable. The rule rests

upon the principle that as the depositor is in-

debted to the bank upon a demand which is due,

the funds in its possession may pi-operly and

justly be applied in payment of such debt, and

it has therefore a right to retain such funds until

pajinent is actually made. The lien is given upon
the theory that any credit the bank extends to

its customer by way of loan or overdraft is

given on the faith that money or securities suf-

ficient to meet the debt at its maturity will come
into the possession of the bank to discharge the

same."

The rule and its purposes are well stated in Citizens

Bank & Trust Co. v. Yant is (1926, Tex.) 287 S. W.
505. In this case the Court said, at page 507:

''We think it is clear from the authorities

that, when a note or other security is placed in

a bank by its customer for collection or for gen-

eral account, in respect to nuitual dealings as such,

the bank has a lien upon the note or its proceeds

to secure the payment of past due indebtedness.

Likewise after maturity of its indebtedness it

is authorized to apply any proceeds when collected

to the payment of its indebtedness * * * This

doctrine is not dependent solely upon any ex-

press agreement, but arises by implication grow-
ing out of the relationship of the depositor and
the bank. It is a wholesome rule, and presup-

poses that for such accommodations extended by
the bank, the bankable paper delivered to it will

stand charged with a lien upon the proceeds."
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As shown bv' the case last cited, the banker's lien

attaches even to commercial paper deposited with the

hank for collection.

In Goodwin r. Barre Trust Co. (1917, Vt), 100 Atl.

34, the Court said, at page 37:

"By a peculiar rule of the law merchant, which

has come down to us through the common law of

England, a banker has a lien on the securities

and funds of his customer which come into his

possession in the regular course of business as

banker, and has the right to set otf any matured

debt against such funds without direction or

authority from such customer. This lien and
right of setoff applies not only to a general

deposit of the customer, hut to any husiness paper

helonging to him which he entrusts to the hank

for collection, and to the avails thereof.^' (Italics

ours.)

The rule is stated in Garrison v. Union Trust Co.

(1905, Mich.) 102 N. W. 978, at page 980, as follows:

''The general lien of bankers is part of the

law merchant. That bankers have a lien on all

money and funds of a depositor in their posses-

sion for the balance of the general account is

undisputed * * * and this is true not only of

the general deposit of the customer, hut the ride

applies to any commercial paper helonging to the

depositor in his oivn right and placed hy him with

the hank for collection.^' (Italics ours.)

To the same effect see:

Muench v. Bank, 11 Mo. App. 144;

Joyce v. Auten (1900) 179 IT. S. 591.
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(b) The Conclusion of the Trial Court That Appellant Waived
Its Banker's Lien Is Not Warranted by the Circumstances

Surrounding- the Original Transaction.

The evidence upon which appellee mainly relies in

support of his contention that appellant waived its

banker's lien is the testimony of Mr. Hall and Mr.

Pope to the effect that Hall informed Gilstrap, Leuen-

berger and Lipman of appellant bank that it was to

be understood that all transactions of Richfield with

the Foreign Department of ap])ellant were to be kept

separate and apart from all other financial trans-

actions of Richfield with appellant.

Mr. Hall's testimony is as follows:

"I stated to him (Lipman) at that time my
employment at the Richfield Oil Company, and
I asked him to remember that any transactions

were to be considered separate from other trans-

actions of the Richfield, that is, the entire trans-

actions, monetary, the collections of drafts for

us or any other business connected with the For-

eign Department of Richfield Oil Company." (R.

340.)

In this regard, Mr. Lipman 's testimony, upon which

counsel for appellee greatly rely, is as follows:

"It seems to me that as the conversation came
to an end Mr. Hall said something to the effect

that he represented the Foreign Department and
not the general treasury relations of the com-

pany, and he did not want the two mixed up;
he wanted them kept separately. No discussion

was had at that conference with respect to a

banker's lien." (R. 449.)
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These statements constitute appellee's strongest

evidence to support the alleged waiver by appellant

of its banker's lien or right of set-off.

It is apparent at once that the record is devoid of

any specific agreement of waiver.

Mr. Hall at the time of contacting the officials of

appellant bank, in August and October, 1930, was

well aware of the heavy indebtedness of Richfield to

appellant. Moreover, he was familiar with the right

of a bank to a lien and offset against commercial

paper and the proceeds thereof deposited with it in

the ordinary course of business. (R. 340, 341.) Yet,

despite this, Mr. Hall never at any time mentioned

banker's liens or rights of oifset to the officials of

appellant. It is indeed singular that a man who was

familiar with the lien of banks and the indebtedness

of his company to appellant, and who, as he now

asserts, intended to procure a promise from appellant

waiving its lien upon the drafts in question, would

resort to such weak and ambiguous langTiage as that

upon which appellee here relies as constituting an

agreement of waiver. If Mr. Hall intended to prevent

appellant from exercising a banker's lien, why did

he not expressly and specifically tell the officials of

appellant bank that he would only deposit Richfield

Oil Company's foreign drafts for collection provided

that appellant would agree to waive its lien or right

of offset? The answer is quite obvious:—he did not

intend any such thing, and the use of the statements

of Hall as a basis for this action is an afterthought

of the receiver to deprive appellant of its right to
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retain the proceeds of the drafts in question. To sup-

pose that a man who intended to procure a promise to

waive a banker's lien would use the language here

relied upon without even mentioning the allegedly

intended waiver offends common sense.

Shortly before the commencement of the negotia-

tions between Hall and the officials of the bank, ap-

pellant, as has hereinbefore been mentioned, loaned

a large sum of money to Richfield Oil Company on

an unsecured note, thereby exhibiting great confidence

in the financial stability of the company. There is no

evidence in this case, at the time of Hall's visits to San

Francisco, of any indication of the possibility of re-

ceivership for Richfield. Under the undisputed facts

there was no necessity, as far as the circmnstances

were then miderstood by the aprties to the acceptance

transaction, for an. agreement waiving lien.

In such a situation, how can the conclusion reason-

ably be reached that officials of appellant knew or

should have known that Hall, by the use of the state-

ments in question, intended to bring about a waiver

of appellant's banker's lien, assuming that he actually

did so intend? Under the circumstances the wildest

stretch of the imagination would not have given an

inkling that Mr. Hall might possibly have been intend-

ing to procure a waiver of such lien. It is wholly

unreasonable that the officials of appellant should now

be held to the necessity of interpreting at their ]jeril

the alleged, somewhat unintelligible, statements of Mr.

Hall in the manner appellee now contends they should

have been interpreted.
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(1) Appellee's Argument is not Supported Even by the Testimony

of His Witnesses.

It has been hereinbefore intimated that appellee's

case was artificially constructed fi'om strained infer-

ences and from a retrospective ^dew of transactions

occurrmg- subsequent to the execution of the acceptance

agreement. As illustrative of this artificiality is the

argument made by counsel for appellee in the lower

court to the effect that there was a distinct agreement,

intended by the parties to apply only to those drafts

which, according to appellee's contention, were not to

be deposited under the acceptance agreement, that

such draft collections were to be kept separate and

apart from other transactions of Richfield Oil Com-

pany and appellant, while those drafts deposited under

the acceptance agreement were not to be kept so

separate and apart. This argument was accepted by

the lower Court and is embodied in Findings Nos.

YII, VIII, XII, XIII, XVI and XVII. (R. 183,

184, 185, 187, 188, 189, 190.) The complete lack of

foundation for this is found in the evidence produced

by appellee himself. Mr. Hall's testimony as to the

separateness of the acceptance transactions is general

in nature and makes no distinction between drafts to

be deposited under the acceptance agreement and

those not to be deposited thereunder. According to

hun, ^(7/ transactions with the Foreign Department of

appellant were to be kept separate and apart. (R.

341, 343, 346.) Mr. Pope's testimony is to the same

effect. (R. 264.)

The all-embracing statements of Hall most decisively

refute the argument of appellee that in making them.



83

a contract to waive banker's lien was intended. All

of the draft transactions were to be kept separate

and apart, and yet admittedly a great many drafts

were to be deposited under the acceptance agreement.

In the face of a supposed intention that banker's lien

was to be waived, two of the highest officers of Rich-

field Oil Company signed an acceptance agreement

which contractually bestowed upon appellant the same

rights as those provided by the law of banker's lien.

Hall was i^resent when Pojje delivered this acceptance

agreement to appellee, and moreover he saw the agree-

ment before delivering it. (R. 360, 361.)

The existence of an intention to waive the right

to banker's lien, arising from an agreement that all

draft transactions were to be kept separate and apart,

and the admitted existence of an agreement provid-

ing that at least some of the drafts were in effect to

be subject to a lien, are inconsistent. This inconsis-

tency effectively demonstrates that Hall was never

imbued with the intention of procuring a waiver of

lien when he made the statement, as he claims, that

the Foreign Department transactions ^vere to be kept

separate and apart.

(2) The Real Intention of Mr. Hall.

In its opinion, the lower (^)urt stated that it was

admitted by appellant that the remarks alleged to

have been made by Mr. Hall regarding the separate

and apart character of the foreign transactions, were

actually made. (R. 174.) This was not true. All

witnesses for appellant, except Mr. Lipman, deny

that Hall made these statements. And Mr. Lipman 's
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testimony substantial!}^ qualifies appellee's version of

the Hall words, as will hereinafter be shown.

But even accepting the truth of Hairs statements,

what he meant nuist on analysis appear quite obvious.

Throughout his testimony he coupled his language as

to keeping the transactions separate with the an-

nouncement that he had an interest in the Foreign

Department collections. (R. 341, 343, 350.) He wanted

his department to receive them so that he might in

turn collect his commissions. Moreover, he was en-

deavoring to establish a new loan line with Wells

Fargo Bank, based upon foreign collections. He had

no i)ower to bind the treasury department of Richfield.

In fact, he told Gilstrap that he would have to take

the matter up for approval with the treasury officials

in Los Angeles. (R. 358.) Certainly, he could not

expect to have the transaction approved if the new

loan line was to reduce the $625,000.00 line which

Richfield Oil Company had with appellant at that

time. In other words, it was to be a separate loan.

The logic of this construction of Hall's testimony

is supported by that of Hellman. In recounting what

Hall said to Lipman (and in checking the accuracy

of Hall's statement, it is interesting to note that Hall

denied that Hellman w^as present at the conference).

(R. 343.) Hellman stated:

<<* * * jjg said, 'You must realize that I am
not in the financial end of the business; that I

am only the Manager of the Foreign Depart-

ment, and I will have to get the consent of my
superiors to get this credit through.' He further

said that he knew we were giving them a line
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of credit of $625,000.00, and that if this accep-

tance credit was going to interfere with the loan

line downstairs, he knew that they would not

consent to it, and he wanted the acceptance credits

separate from the loan downstairs." (R. 438.)

At the trial, counsel for appellee placed great re-

liance on the testimony of Mr. Lipman regarding the

statements of Mr. Hall to him. Counsel were appar-

ently so confident that his testimony supported their

side of the case they waived cross-examination of Mr.

Lipman, whereas all the other witnesses were subjected

to minute and lengthy cross-examinations. Mr. Lip-

man's testimony in this regard is as follows:

"It seems to me that as the conversation came

to an end Mr. Hall said something to the effect

that he represented the Foreign Department and
not the general treasury relations of the company,

and he did not want the two mixed up ; he wanted

them kept separately. No discussion was had at

that conference with respect to a banker's lien."

(R. 449.)

These words, instead of supporting ai^pellee's po-

sition, explained the reason for the desire to keep

the transaction separate. Hall could not speak for

the treasury of his company, but only for the Foreign

Department. Furthermore, Richfield obviousl}^ desired

that its borrowing power in each separate credit line

should not interfere with any other loan arrangements.

Mr. Helhnan's testimon}' corroborates this clearly. It

was important therefore that the foreign transactions

be separate from other transactions, but this is cer-

tainly far removed from an agreement, express or
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even b}^ le.^al iniplicatiuii, that appellant would waive

its banker's lien and right of set-off.

(3) Comparison of Hall's Testimony With That of Witnesses for

Appellant.

It is interesting- to note that Mr. Hall was not con-

tent with testifying that he once or twice said to the

officials of appellant bank that the transaction w^as to

be kept separate and apart, and that he had an in-

terest therein, but he took particular pains to repeat

that story in almost the precise words a great number

of times throughout his direct and cross-examination.

He indicated that at every conference this statement

was made. Frankly, appellant doubts this, and doubts

whether it was ever emphasized during the course of

the negotiations. Appellant doubts it as it does the

accuracy of Mr. Hall's memory of the transactions.

Repeatedly in his testimony at the trial, he contra-

dicted statements made in his deposition. (R. 352,

353, 354, 356, 357, 363.) In fact, anticipating that

such a thing would occur, counsel for appellee care-

fully elicited from Mi*. Hall statements about his

worried, rushed and uncertain condition when he gave

his deposition (R. 339, 366), and yet Hall's physical

condition for the past few years, his state of nervous-

ness and stress (R. 351) lead logically to the conclusion

that he was better able to remember the transaction

at the time of his deposition, given ahnost a year

before the trial, than at the trial itself. In ])assing, it

should be noted that Hall claimed an interest in the

proceeds of the drafts concerned in this litigation

although the receiver has to date defeated his claim.

(R. 354.)
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As opposed to the discoursive testimony of Mr. Hall,

we have the positive and definite statements of Gil-

strap, Hellman and Leuenberger of appellant bank,

that never once in the course of these transactions did

Mr. Hall state that the business with the Foreign De-

partment w^as to be kept separate and apart. (R. 370,

375, 376, 436, 437, 429.) And Mr. Tipman, on whose

testimony appellee places great faith, stated that he

had no recollection of any statement in which Mr.

Hall told him that Hall had an interest in the trans-

action, and if such a statement had been made he

would definitely have remembered it. (R. 449.) Gil-

strap, Hellman and Leuenbergei' deny, with a positive-

ness equal to their denial of the alleged statements

as to the separate nature of the transactions, that Hall

ever disclosed that he had any interest in the trans-

actions of the Foreign Department. (R. 369, 375, 376,

437, 428.)

The statements of Hall made subsequent to May

8, 1931 (R. 350), when the appellant bank announced

that it was exercising its banker's lien, are obviously

irrelevant to these proceedings. In this connection

Mr. Gilstrap testified that he believed Mr. Hall made

mention on his visit after May 8th of having an

interest in the transactions and asserted an agreement

that the Foreign Department business was to be sepa-

rate from the other affairs of Richfield Oil Company.

(R. 388.) This, as a frank admission, strengthens

rather than w^eakens Gilstrap 's testimony with respect

to what transpired before the exercise of the lien.

Neither HeUman nor Eisenbach nor Motherwell recall

any such statement made to them by Hall at the con-
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ferences subsequent to May 8, 1931. (R. 440, 458,

461, 462.)

(4) The Improbability of the Existence of an Agreement Waiving

Lien.

Appellant submits, moreover, that the probabilities

are against there having- been any agreement on the

part of appellant bank directly or indirectly to waive

its banker's lien or right of set-off. Notwithstanding

Hall's testmiony as to his familiarity with such rights,

it is seldom, if ever, that the parties contemplate the

existence of, or negotiate with respect to, banker's

liens or rights of set-off at the time when a loan is

made.

Notwithstanding the inference of counsel for appel-

lee during the trial, that in the fall of 1930, Wells

Fargo Bank might have been worried about the finan-

cial condition of Richfield Oil Company, the record

is clear that the original note of Richfield was renewed

in July of the same year, an additional loan of

$125,000.00 being then made, and that Mr. Lipman

considered the loan good. Api)ellant submits that not

alone was the so-called "sepai-ate and apart" agree-

ment not made, but even if it was, neither Hall nor

appellant contemplated or dealt with the right of lien

or set-off.

(c) The Conclusion of the Trial Court That Appellant Waived
Its Lien Is Not Warranted as a Matter of Law.

Appellee argued, and the low^er Court held, that

the statements of Mr. Hall u])on which appellee relies,

caused the drafts of Richfield to be deposited as a

trust or as a special deposit. In support of this posi-
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tioii, a nmiiber of iiuthorities were cited, which will

be hereinafter discussed. If the statement that the

drafts in question were to be kept separate and dis-

tinct from all other financial transactions between

Richfield and appellant gives any assistance to appel-

lee's case, it does not amount to the creation of a

special deposit or trust, but to an agreement that the

defendant would waive its lien or right of set-off. That

such a statement would not amount even to this has

been heretofore discussed on the facts and will be

shown presently as a matter of law.

Appellee must overcome the legal presumption that

a w^aiver of lien was not intended. In Tanksley v.

Tanksley (1932 Wash.) 17 Pac. (2d) 25, the Court

said at page 28

:

u* * * ^.jjg presumption touching the waiver

of statutory or other lien rights is always strongly

against such a waiver having been made." (Italics

ours.)

Further cases of a similar nature will be herein-

after cited particularly in connection with the ques-

tion of waiver subsequent to the appointment of the

receiver.

Disregarding for the moment the alleged statements

of Hall, appellant had from the start a lien upon the

paper deposited for collection. Strictly speaking, this

was properly converted into a right of set-off when the

drafts were collected. Therefore, any supposed waiver

on the part of the appellant would be referable as

well to its right of set-off as to its lien.
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A. The Authority of Updike v. Oakland Motor Car Co.

Ill Updike V. Oakland Motor Car Co. (1931) 53 Fed.

(2) 369, the Oakland Motor Car Co. repurchased the

equities in certain automobiles owned by one of its

dealers, the latter being then close to financial dif-

ficulties. Instead of paying- cash as agreed by it, the

Oakland Motor Car Co. set olt* the amount of the

repurchase price against the indebtedness of the

dealer to it. The trustee in bankruptcy brought action

to recover the purchase price on the ground, among

others, that the Oakland Motor Car Co. had by agree-

ment waived its right of set-off. This was predicated

on the agreement by the Oakland Motor Car Co. to

pay for the equities in cash and on the promise of

the company to carry the advertising account of the

dealer indefinitely. The Court, at page 372, said:

''The appellants argue that Oakland should

have paid for the equities in the cars in cash

instead of taking setoffs for all but $50,000. Strat-

ton said the agreement was to pay in cash, and

the trial judge evidently believed him. But Strat-

ton never claimed that Oakland in terms promised

not to exercise the right of setoff or that the pay-

ment was to he a special deposit in Stratton's

favor or was to he applied hy Oakland in some

specific way. Stratton did say that Oakland

promised to carry the advertising account indef-

initely. But such a promise would not in itself

prevent a setoff even now^ Moreover, if there was

a promise to pay cash, that was not an agreement

to apply the moneys for a particular purpose or

to hold them as a special deposit. It involved no

fiduciary relation, but only a promise by Oakland

to Stratton. An agreem,ent must he clear and
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specific to deprive a party of the ordinary right

of setoff. Stratton was trying to get $250,000

from Oakland to tide his company through the

winter and was hoping against hope for ready

cash, but he got no agreement not to set oft* and
the right of setolf existed because the claims were

mutual." (Italics ours.)

It is submitted that the agreement to pay cash in

the cited case was far stronger as a w^aiver of set-off

than are the alleged instructions of Hall in the case

at bar. Here no contention has been made that there

was ever any mention by Hall or anyone else of

banker's lien or right of set-off, notwithstanding that

Hall knew at the time of his conferences with the bank

officials of the existence of banker's liens. The con-

clusion is irresistible that one who was attempting, as

Hall claims he was, to effect a waiver of a banker's

lien or right of set-off, would have so stated specifically

instead of using such ambiguous language as is here

contended amounts to an agreement of such waiver.

B. The Strong Analogy of American Surety Company v. Bank of Italy.

The case of American Surety Company r. Bank of

Italy (1923), 63 Cal. App. 149, previously cited, is

completely destructive of the holding of the lower

Court that the alleged acquiescence of appellant in

the statements of Hall amounted to a waiver of

banker's lien. In that case a depositor in the de-

fendant bank had six accounts under the following

names: (1) Ernest (Ireen account; (2) Ernest Green,

Milliken Bridge account; (3) Ernest Green, Kewin

Garage account; (4) Ernest Green, Davis Garage
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account; (5) Ernest Green, account of son; (6) Ernest

Grreen Silva (xarage account. The depositor was en-

gaged in the building contract business and opened

these accounts in this manner so that each one would

apply to a separate contract. The defendant bank

appropriated the account designated "Ernest Green,

Silva Garage", to satisfy an indebtedness due from

the depositor to the bank. It was contended and so

held by the lower Court that the designation of the

account in this manner created a special deposit or

trust w^hich prevented the exercise by the defendant

of its banker's lien. Assuming that Hall in the case

at bar intended by his statements, as appellee argues,

to procure a w^aiver of lien by appellant, and assum-

ing, as was contended and urged in the cited case, that

the depositor therein intended the same thing, it is

immediately apparent that American Surety Company

V. Bank of Italy, supra, is similar on its facts to the

case at bar and strong authority for appellant's posi-

tion. It is true that in the cited case there was no

express statement that the deposit was to be kept

separate and apart fi-om other financial transactions

with the bank, but nevertheless, the designation of the

account as a separate account was tantamount to such

an instruction. The District Court of Appeal, in

holding that the defendant bank had a right to exer-

cise its lien upon this deposit, and in reversing the

judgment of the lowcn* Court, said, at page 159

:

"A banker is not required to go 'snooping'

about to learn from what source his depositors

obtained the moneys which they deposit in his

bank. His duties as a depositary of moneys are
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fulfilled if he keeps and handles the moneys de-

posited with him according to the requirements of

the depositor or the conditions upon which the

deposit is made, and these requirements or con-

ditions, if they impose something beyond his usual

or ordinary ohligations in the matter of the han-

dling of the deposits of money, must he 'brought

home to him by instructions by the depositor or

an agreement bettveen him and the depositor so

clear or so unambiguous and unequivocal as to

leave no room for a reasonable doubt as to their

meaning and scope. A depositor may establish

an account in a bank under a special designation

or earmarked as a particular account, and yet,

in the absence of an agreement with or instruc-

tions to the banker that the account so earmarked
is a special deposit or is to be used for a specific

purpose, the moneys deposited therein are to be

regarded as belonging to the general account of

the depositor and may be so treated by the bank.
* * * The 'earmarking' of a bank deposit or

giving to it a special or particular designation,

even when the bank has, by the request of the

dej)ositor, entered in its deposit books the deposit

as so earmarked or designated, can mean nothing,

so far as the bank is concerned, in the absence of

specific instructions to the bank by the depositor

that the deposit is to be used for the special pur-

pose indicated by the 'earmark' or designation.

So far as the record here shows to the contrary,

Ernest Green might have caused the several ac-

counts opened by him in the defendant bank and
given each a special and different earmark for

his own convenience. Such a practice, as we
know from common knowledge, is quite general

among business men, particularly those engaged
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in the wholesale trade. For their own convenience

they keep a separate account of the different com-

modities in which they deal. Thus they are the

more readily able to learn whether there be profit

or loss in the sale of any particular commodity.

And so, probably, with building contractors hav-

ing a number of diff'erent contracts for the con-

struction of buildings concurrently in the course

of execution. But the outstanding fact in this

case is, as above explained, that there is no evi-

dence in this record showing that there was any

understanding between the bank and Grreen or

any direction by the latter to the bank that the

account in controversy w^as opened and the money
therein deposited would be appropriated to a

special purpose, and it follows that the said ac-

comit, unless for other reasons it involves a trust

fund, constitutes a general deposit of said Green,

even tliough the defendant knew or had reason

to 'believe that the funds so deposited were to he

devoted to the payment of the claims of mMerial-

men, mechanics and laborers furnishing material

for and performing labor on the Silva Garage/'

(Italics ours.)

Although the case last cited deals specifically with

the deposit of money, there is no reason why the rule

thereof should not be equally applicable to deposits of

commercial paper. In fact, (California Civil Code,

Section 3054, expressly provides that a banker has a

lien ''upon all property in his hands".

The rule of law being, as stated in American Surety

Company v. Bank of Italy and Updike v. Oakland

Motor Car Company, that the conditions and require-

ments under which a deposit is made must be brought
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home to the banker by instructions or by an agree-

ment between the banker and the depositor "so clear,

or so unambiguous and unequivocal as to leave no

room for reasonable doubt as to their meaning and

scope" where such conditions and requirements import

something beyond the usual or ordinary obligations

of a banker in handling deposits, it is submitted that

appellee's case in this respect, resting as it does upon

the aforesaid alleged assertions of Mr. Hall, com-

l)letel3^ falls. The only convincing thing about these

assertions is that they were ambiguous, uncertain and

equivocal as to any purported waiver of appellant's

lien. Mention has heretofore been made of the other

purposes to which these statements were just as

referable as they were to a waiver of banker's lien.

Under the holdings of the last two cited cases, if the

language relied upon as constituting a waiver of set-off

or banker's lien is capable of meanings other than

that so claimed, the ordinary rights and duties of the

bank remain unchanged.

C. No Special Deposit was Created.

The Court below held in Conclusion No. Y of its

Conclusions of Law (R. 195) that the alleged instruc-

tions of Hall caused the drafts in question to be de-

posited specially as a trust fund, and consequently

w^ere immune from the operation of the law of

banker's liens. This theory, as well as the theory

of waiver of lien, is considered in American Surety

Co. V. Bmik of Italij, supra, where it was likewise

claimed that a special deposit had been created. But

the Court held that because of the ambiguity of the
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instructions relied upon, no special deposit or trust

was ever created.

If the words alleged to have been used by Hall had

the effect of creating a special deposit, it is pertinent

to ask for what purpose was it created? The answer

is (without considering any question of banker's lien)

that the proceeds were to be turned over to Richfield

Oil Company the same as they would have been if,

as apx^ellant contends, the deposit was general. There

was consequently no special purpose involved in the

deposit of the drafts.

A special deposit may be created by the deposit of

funds in the custody of a banker with the direction

that they be kept separate from other funds of the

bank and the identical money returned to the de-

positor, or a special deposit may be created where the

funds are not to be kept separate fi'om the other

moneys of the bank but the deposit is to be used only

for a special purpose. These two types of special

deposits differ particularly in the circumstances under

w^hich the legal effect thereof is considered but the

reasoning of the Courts with respect to the creatif)n

of either type is equally applicable to both.

In Butcher v. Butler (1908, Mo.), 114 S. W. 564,

one party to a contract deposited money in the defend-

ant bank for the purpose of having it paid to the

second party to the contract. The bank made out a

deposit slip containing the following language: ''trust

fund by P. T. Becker * * * checks as follows:

$1000.00 to be paid to Butcher when he shall have put

his drill down 1000 feet. $1000.00." The question



97

was whether these facts were sufficient to create a

trust fund or special deposit in the sense that the

moneys deposited were to be kept separate from the

other funds of the bank giving- the depositor a prefer-

ence over the assignee for the benefit of creditors. In

holding that no such trust or special deposit had been

created, the Court said, at page 566:

''In the absence of proof to the contrary, a de-

posit is presmned to be general, and it devolves

on the party w^ho claims it is not to show that it

was received hy the bank with the agreement, ex-

pressed or clearlij implied, that it shoidd he kept

separate from the other funds of the bank, and
the identical money returned to the depositor.

The deposit under consideration, we think, was
general, not special. There was no intention or

thought entertained by Becker, Butcher or the

bank that the funds deposited were to be kept

separate and the bank deprived of their use/'

(Italics ours.)

In 3Iinard r. Watts (1910), 186 Fed. 245, funds

were deposited in a bank during the pendency of liti-

gation to abide the final decision of a controversy over

the title to land. The question again was whether the

depositor was entitled to a })reference in bankruptcy.

It was agreed by the parties that there was not at any

time any expressed agreement or understanding that

the deposits were to be held or kejjt separate from the

general funds of the bank. The Court said, at page

247:

"It is the business of a bank, arid one of the

puri^oses for which it was created, to receive the

money of its depositors on the implied agreement
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to return a like amount on demand or in a stipu-

lated length of time, with or without interest, as

the case may be, and to loan such money to its

customers, receiving compensation by way of in-

terest charged. Banks are not created for the

purpose of acting as bailees of the property of

others, either with or without hire. "While a na-

tional bank by contract may possibly bind itself

to such legal relation, it is quite clear this may he

done only either hy express contract, or the trans-

action of deposit mitst, from its very nature he of

such character as to imply such ohlifjation and

relation. Mr. Morse, in his work on Banks and
Banking (2d ed., p. 69), says:

'Ordinarily, a deposit of money, at least if it

be the current money of the country or state

where the deposit is made, will be assumed to

be a general deposit, unless the contrar}^ is at

the time directly notified, or in some shape dis-

tinctly implied, so that the hank couM not rea-

sonahly misunderstand the depositor's intent/
"

In Clay County Bank r. First National Bank (1929,

Ark.), 13 S. W. (2) 595, the question was whether the

presentation by a depositor of a list of outstanding

checks which were to be paid from his deposit Avas

sufficient to create a special deposit precluding the

bank from exercising its right of setoff or banker's

lien. The Court held that this was not sufficient to

create a special deposit and the bank was entitled to

its lien or right of setoff upon the funds in question.

There is no evidence in the record of the case at bar

of a single word or act on the part of any officer or

employee of appellant which indicates an intention to
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waive the lien. Appellee's case is founded solely on

the statements of Hall. Fi'oni the record, no response

to these statements was made. This absence of any-

thing- said or done on the part of appellant conclu-

sively prevents the existence of a waiver.

In Bray i\ Booker (1899, N. D.), 79 N. W. 293, the

Court, in holding- there had been no waiver of a ven-

dor's lien, reasoned as follows, at page 297:

"Of course, the lien may be waived by any act

or declaration of the vendor clearly evincing a

manifest intention so to do. But the circumstances

must certainly be exceptional if a waiver can ever

be inferred from his silence, and that is all we
have in this case, except the fact that the vendor

executed the deed after Mr. Booker had expressly

refused to give a mortgage on the property, and
after he had stated that he desired to turn the

property over to Mrs. Booker free from all incum-

brances. But these ivere simply declarations of

the vendee, to which some affirmative response

must have heen made by the vendor before any of

his rights can, be concluded' thereby/' (Italics

ours.)

It is submitted that none of the cases cited leave any

room for doubt that a banker's lien is not waived or a

special deposit created unless specific and express lan-

guage to this effect is used, or the existence of such

lien or special deposit may be distinctly and unambigu-

ously implied. Again apj^ellant submits that the asser-

tions of Mr. Hall do not measure up to the legal re-

quirements necessary to support the conclusion of the

lower Court.
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(1) In Order to Constitute the Deposit of the Drafts as a "Special

Deposit" Both Appellant and Richfield Must Have Understood

the Deposit to be for a Special Purpose Only.

In In re North Missouri Trust Co. (1931, Mo.), 39

S. W. (2) 412, plaintiff deposited fnnds in an insol-

vent bank with the direction that they were to be used

to buy bonds for him. Plaintiif claimed that because

of this instruction he was entitled to a preference over

the other creditors. The Court held that no special

deposit had been made and, at page 414, said

:

"Beyond this, they hold (cases cited) that in

determining whether a deposit is general or spe-

cial not only is the purpose for which the deposit

is made and received to be considered, but also the

mutual intention of the parties when the deposit is

made ; that, in other words, whether the deposit is

general or special is to be determined from the

bona fide contract of the parties; that iu order to

constitute a special deposit, the facts and circum-

stances must show that the hank and the depositor

both understood, that the fund, was to he held for a

special purpose and. that the hank should not pay

checks drawn against it for any other purposes;

(Italics ours.)* * * 77

In Ellington v. Cantley (Mo. 1927), 300 S. W. 529,

money was deposited in a bank with a statement by

the depositors that they wanted to pay therefrom the

interest on their real estate loan with an insurance

company. The action was to determine whether as a

result of these statements they were entitled to a

preference over other creditors or whether the bank

could properly exercise its banker's lien against the

deposit on account of the past due indebtedness of the
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depositors. The Court, in denying the claim to prefer-

ence and upholding the bank's lien right, said at page

531:

"In order to constitute the $840 a special de-

posit, the facts and circumstances would have to

show that the bank and plaintiffs both understood

that the $840 was to be held for the special pur-

pose of paying plaintiffs' interest, and that the

bank should not pay checks drawn against it for

any other purpose."

In Craic) v. Bank of Grmihy (1922, Mo.), 238 S. W.
507, the manager of a mining company told the Cashier

of the defendant bank that he would later deposit

money in the bank to meet the payroll of the mining

company. The trustee in bankruptcy of the mining

company brought an action against the bank, claiming

that the conversation, of the manager with the cashier

of the bank created a special deposit against which the

bank had no right to exercise a banker's lien. The

Coui-t upheld the bank's right of off'set, reiterated

the rule that the burden of showing the account as

"special" rests on the person so claiming, and said at

page 509:

"In order to have made this a special deposit

for the purpose of paying the payroll checks, both

the depositor and the bank must have understood

that this money was to be held for that purpose,

and that no other checks were to be paid from it

* * * >>

There is nothing in the record which indicates that

appellant understood that a special deposit of the

Richfield foreign drafts was intended nor is there any
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evidence of circumstances by reason of which appel-

lant should have known this. Certainly the bare lan-

guage of Hall that the foreign department transactions

w^ere separate was not sufficient even to put appellant

on inquiry. It is far less strong than the language,

written and oi-al, in the cases previously cited and

which was held insufficient to defeat the bank's lien.

Appellee contended in the Court below that the de-

posit by appellant of the proceeds of some of the

drafts not involved in this action to the account of

appellee as receiver of Richfield Oil Company without

exercising its right of setoff, displayed an understand-

ing on, the part of appellant that a waiver of lien was

intended by Hall. That appellant did not s<^ understand

these statements is conclusively shown by the telegram

sent by appellant to appellee as receiver of Richfield

Oil Company on January 16, 1931 (R. 210), in re-

sponse to the receiver's telegram of the same date. (R.

209.) The following quotation therefrom is pertinent

in this respect:

"We are holding certain collections as security

for acceptances. Please understand that we con-

tinue to reserve all our rights for banker's lien

against these collections.
'

'

The argument that the act of depositing the pro-

ceeds of some of the drafts to the credit of the receiver

indicated an understanding on the part of api)ellant

that a waiver of lien had been agreed to or was even

intended, will be hereinafter further considered in

comiection with the question as to whether the lien or

right of setoff was waived subsequent to the appoint-

ment of appellee as receiver.
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(2) Legal Effect of Hall's Instructions When Subjected to the

Analogy of the Cases on Waiver of Mechanics' Liens.

The authorities involving- waiver of mechanics' liens

assert the principles which, it is submitted, are con-

trolling' on the question involved in the instant matter.

In all these cases the alleged waiver agreements were

entered into at the outset of the arrangements for con-

struction, just as the statements by Hall are alleged

here to have been, made early in his negotiations with

appellant.

In Graij v. Hickey (1917, Wash.), 162 Pac. 564, the

Coui-t said, at page 566

:

'^We do not construe this provision of the con-

tract as a waiver of Gray's lien right for the Avork

to be performed by him. It in any event is not a

clear waiver of such right. The rule seems to be

that, when the terms of the contract are ambigu-

ous in this respect, they should be construed most

favorably to the person claiming the lien right."

In Carl Miller Lumber Co. v. Meyer (1924, Wis.),

196 N. W. 840, the Court, in holding that an agreement

was insufficient to effect a waiver of a materialman's

lien, said, at page 842

:

"There is no doubt that the plaintiff could have

w^aived the right to tile a lien by express agree-

ment, although when an agreement relied on as a

waiver is ambiguous the doubt should be resolved

against the waiver. '

'

In Kokomo F. d- W. Traction Co. v. Kokomo Trust

Co. (1923, Ind.), 137 N. E. 763, the Court said at page

765:
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^'AU of these cases recognize the rule of hiw

that a builder may waive the right of himself and
those claiming under him to the lien given by
statute * * * But they hold that, in the absence

of evidence con tainted in the contract that it ivas

clearly the intention to make such a waiver, it

must he presumed that the builder has not dis-

abled himself from enforcinr/ a lien, and' that

where the terms of the contract are ambiptious on

the question, the doubt must be solved against

such a waiver/'

In Central Illinois Construction Co. v. Brown Con-

struction Co. (1907), 137 111. App. 532, a provision in

a building contract provided that

"the completed work when offered to the company
for acceptance shall be delivered free from au}^

and all liens, claims or enciunbrances of any de-

scription."

The Court in holding that this did not amount to a

waiver of the contractor's lien, said, at page 535:

''Where the provisions of the contract relied

upon as constituting a waiver of the statutory

right to assei-t and enforce a lien are ambiguous,

the doubt should be resolved against the waiver."

In Davis v. La Crosse Hospital Ass)i. (1904, Wis.),

99 N. W. 351, a building contract provided that the

completed building should be delivered to the owner

free from all claims, liens and charges. In holding that

the builder had not waived the right to exercise his

lien, the Court said, at page 352:

"A builder may waive his right to the lien

remedy given by statute and does so by agreeing
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not to exercise such right * * * Bid where the

terms of a contract are ambiguous on the question,

the doubt should be resolved against the waiver,

since it shoidd be presumed, in the absence of

clear evidence to the contrary, that one has not

disabled himself from the use of so valuable a

privilege as that given by statute for the enforce-

ment of a builder's rights in the circumstances

involved in such a case as this." (Italics ours.)

The language in the case last cited is significant;

it is submitted that in the case at bar it must be pre-

sumed in accordance with the recognized principles

applicable to special accounts and waiver of rights

that appellant did not disable itself from the use of

so valuable a ]3rivilege as that given by the statute

for the enforcement of a banker's lien against the

drafts in question and the proceeds thereof.

The following quotations from Selna v. Selna

(1899), 125 (yal. 357, 362, a case involving the waiver

of a vendor 's lien, is in point

:

^'The burden of i3roof is on the purchaser to

establish that in the particular case the lien has

been intentionally displaced or waived. If, under

all the circumstances, it remains in doubt, the

lien attaches. And so long as the debt exists

courts will not presume that the lien has been

waived, except upon clear and convincing testi-

mony. '

'

It is at least doubtful, although appellant does not

concede even this, whether the lien was waived, and

under the foregoing case and others cited the pres-

ence of such doubt precludes a holding of waiver.
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Further authoiities relating to the waiver of liens

will be hereinafter cited with reference to the ques-

tion as to whether appellant waived its banker's lien

subsequent to the appointment of appellee as receiver.

These cases are equally applicable here in determin-

ing the legal effect, if any, to which the alleged in-

structions of Hall are entitled.

(3) In Event of Uncertainty, the Language of a Contract Should be

Interpreted Most Strongly Against the Party Who Caused the

Uncertainty to Exist.

The uncertainty or ambiguity which apjjears in the

language used by Mr. Hall was certainly caused by

Hall himself. Therefore, such ambiguity should be

interpreted most strongly against appellee who relies

upon such language. Section 1653 of the Civil Code

of the State of California provides:

"In cases of uncertainty not removed by the

preceding rules, the language of a contract

should be interpreted most strongly against the

party who caused the uncertainty to exist. The
promissor is presumed to be such party."

In Stc')-iiher(j v. Drainage District, 44 Fed. (2) 560,

at page 562, the following appears

:

"If the contract is ambiguous, the })laintiff is

responsible for its ambiguity and under such

cii'cumstance, the contract should be construed

most strongly against the party preparing it."

In Continental Oil Co. v. Fisher, 55 Fed. (2) 14,

at page 16, it is said:

"It may be true the intention of Continental

Oil Company was to contract for this privilege
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of reassignment. Their tenders indicated they

had that theory of! the 'modification agreement'.

But why was the option not mentioned? A capa-

ble lawyer for the company drew the contract,

and even if we assume the instrument to be am-
biguous in this respect, the rule applies that the

doubt be resolved against the party who drew it.
'

'

The issue involved in the last cited case was whether

an agreement between the parties could be construed

to include an option of reassignment. The question

asked by the Court in the (juotation hereinabove set

forth is particularly pertinent, for appellant may
reasonably inquire, as it has throughout this brief,

why, if Mr. Hall intended to secure a waiver of a

banker's line, did he not mention this specifically?

It is submitted that since Hall, Richfield 's repre-

sentative, used the language I'elied upon and since

it is ambiguous, it nuist be construed most strongly

against appellee. The application of this principle

is an added bai- to any interpretation that appellant

waived its banker's lien or right of setoff.

(4) Examination of Authorities Relied Upon by the Trial Court.

In his opinion. Judge Norcross cited the following

cases as authority for his conclusion that a special

deposit was created by the alleged instructions of

Hall to appellant:

Baynes v. Du Mont (1889), 130 U. S. 354;

Union Bank & Trust Co. v. Loble (1927), 20

Fed. (2) 124;

(R. 179.)
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These cases and others upon which appellee relied

in the Court below quite properly hold that a special

deposit or a deposit in trust operates to destroy the

right of a bank to exercise its lien. In all of these

authorities, however, the facts were such that there

could be no doubt about the existence of a special

deposit. The question as to the existence of a trust

or special deposit or of a transaction removed from

the ordinary course of business is naturally dependent

for its answer upon the facts.

In Raynes v. Du Mont, supra, one bank deposited

collateral in a second bank for the express purpose

of securing the indebtedness of a third bank. The

depositary, after satisfying the indebtedness of the

third bank from these securities, attempted to exer-

cise a banker's lien on the surplus as an offset to the

indebtedness to it of the depositing bank. The Court

correctly held that this was a de^^osit for a special

purpose and therefore not subject to banker's lien.

In Union Bank d Trust Co. v. Lohle, supra, money

was deposited in the defendant bank for the express

purpose of paying certain creditors of the depositor.

Here again it was held that the deposit was one for

a special purpose and not subject to banker's lien.

It is obvious that there is a great diiference be-

tween the foregoing facts and those in the case at

bar. There could be no question in these cases that

the deposits wei-e for special purposes. In all of

the authorities relied upon by appellee at the trial,

the facts were substantially similar to those of the

two cases last noted.
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The Court further cited:

Buckner v. Leon & Co. (1928), 204 Cal. 225,

267 Pac. 693;

Campbell v. Miller (1928), 205 Cal. 22, 269

Pac. 536;

Blahnik v. Small Farms Imp. Co. (1919), 181

Cal. 379, 184 Pac. 661;

Savings Bank v. Ashhurij (1897), 117 Cal. 96,

48 Pac. 1081;

Smith V. Smith (1918), 200 S. W. 445;

(R. 179.)

These cases merely hold that where a contract is

on its face incomplete, extrinsic evidence of con-

temporaneous parol agreements may be introduced.

They were cited by the Court in support of its con-

clusion that since the acceptance agreement is blank

as to the drafts deposited thereunder, parol evidence

was admissible to prove which drafts were and which

were not so deposited. There can be no question about

the correctness of this ruling. However, as herein-

before argued, if it be found that the drafts were

deposited under the acceptance agreement, then as

stated in Subdivision (c) of the Eighth Assignment

of Error (R. 482, 483), the Court below erred in

admitting evidence as to the aforesaid instructions

of Hall to the bank, for such instructions, if they

were to be construed as effecting a* waiver of lien,

were in direct conflict with the provisions of the

acceptance agreement that all drafts deposited there-

under would be security for all other indebtedness
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from Richfield Oil Company to appellant. See Davis

V. Stanislaus Co. Farmers Union (1925), 72 Cal.

App. 698, 238 Pac. 95; and 10 California Jurispru-

dence 927, to the effect that even though a written

agreement may be blank in certain respects, parol

evidence in conflict with its express terms is inadmis-

sible.

(5) The Burden of Proving That the Deposit of Drafts Was Special

Rests Upon Appellee.

Not only does the burden of proving that the de-

posit of the drafts was special rest upon appellee,

but he is likewise faced with the rule that all deposits

are presumed to be general unless proven otherwise

by clear and convincing evidence.

In In re North Missouri Trust Co. (1931, Mo.), 39

S. W. (2) 412, the following appears:

"Under the rule of these authorities, the pre-

sumption is that a deposit is general, and the

burden of i^roving otherwise is on the person

claiming priority as a special depositor."

In Craig v. Bank of Granhy (1922, Mo.), 238 S. W.
507, at 509, the Court holds

:

"In the absence of proof to the contrary, all

deposits are presumed to be general deposits, and

the burden was upon plaintiff in this case to

show that the deposit of $1000.00 was made by it

to meet the payroll checks that had been pre-

viously issued, and that this money or its equiva-

lent was to be applied to the pajanent of these

checks, and that the hank so understood, it at the

time." (Italics ours.)
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To the same effect see Butcher v. Butler (1908,

Mo.), 114 S. W. 564; State v. Farmers d Merchants

Bank (1926, Neb.), 207 N. W. 666.

Appellant submits that the Finding of the lower

Court that appellant waived its banker's lien on the

drafts in question at the inception of the foreign

draft transactions, if allowed to stand, will place a

premium on uncertainty in banking transactions; it

will be a source of confusion in the future, and will

do violence to the sound and wholesome policy of the

law in favor of upholding banker's liens. If such

a doctrine as that for which a})pellee here contends

should prevail, banker's liens, as stated by an early

Missouri Court, "would soon become plants of

delicate and exotic growth". (Major v. Buckley

(1873), 51 Mo. 227, 232.)

In view of the amhiguity of the language upon

which appellee relies to show that appellant waived

its ba^iker's lien; in view of the rule as set forth in

Bank of Italy v. American Surety Company, supra,

Updike V. Oakland Motor Car, supra, and similar

cases, that an agreement waiving setoff must he spe-

cific in terms; in vietv of the rule of presumption re-

specting ivaiver of liens; in view of the presumption

against special accounts; and in view of the rule that

the language of a contract should, he interpreted most

strongly against the party who caused the uncertainty

to exist, it is suhmitted. that the statements of Hall

relied on hy appellee, even if they he given their

strongest aspect, are insufficient to constitute an agree-

ment hy 'which appellant waived its hanker's lien and

right of setoff.
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V.

APPELLANT DID NOT WAIVE EITHER ITS CONTRACTUAL
RIGHT OR ITS BANKER'S LIEN OR RIGHT OF SETOFF
BY ANY AGREEMENT, REPRESENTATION OR ACTION
SUBSEQUENT TO THE APPOINTMENT OF THE RECEIVER,
NOR IS APPELLANT ESTOPPED FROM ASSERTING SUCH
RIGHT OR LIEN.

The lower Court found (Findings No. XIX, XX
and XXI) (R. 190, 191, 192) that, by reason of the

wording- of a telegram sent by appellant to appellee in

response to a telegram from the latter, and by reason

of the events which occurred subsequent to this ex-

change of telegrams, appellant waived its banker's

lien or right of setoff on the drafts involved in this

litigation. The telegram sent by appellee to appellant

is as follows:

''As Receiver I am ordered by Federal Court

to take over all assets including cash in banks

Stop While you have undoubted right of offset,

such right if exercised will seriously cripple re-

ceiver's operations. It is necessary therefore to

request that all banks restore to receiver such

cash halance. Please therefore transfer such

funds to a new account on your books in my name
as Receiver. Evidence of my authority and sig-

nature cards will follow by mail Stop Local banks

have indicated they Avill acquiesce in this program.

William C. McDuffie,

Receiver for Richfield Oil Co. of California."

(Italics ours.)

(R. 209.)

Appellant's reply, which the Court construed as

waiving its banker's lien, is as follow^s:
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'^Replying" telegram we are willing to restore

into your name as Receiver Richfields balance in

checking account provided we are notified by you

that all Company's banks have taken similar ac-

tion Stop We are holding certain collections as

security for acceptances please understand that

we continue to reserve all our rights for banker's

lien against these collections.

Julian Eisenbach,

Vice President Wells Fargo
Bank & Union Trust Co.''

(Italics ours.)

(R. 210.)

Both telegrams were sent on January 16, 1931,

several months prior to the receipt by appellant of the

proceeds of the drafts which are the subject-matter

of this litigation.

The argument of appellee, which the Court below

apparently accepted, was that in the last sentence of

its telegram, appellant, by the use of the word ''cer-

tain", referred only to those collections which, accord-

ing to the contention of appellee and the Finding of

the Court below, were deposited under the acceptance

agreement; that appellant reserved its banker's lien

solely against these collections, and then only to the

extent necessary to liquidate the outstanding ac-

ceptances, concluding that since nothing was said

about drafts which, according to appellee's contention

were not de])osited under the acceptance agreement,

appellant must have intended to waive its lien as to

these drafts. In addition to the strained and un-

natural construction thus given to appellant's tele-
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i^ram, appellee's argument rests upon the false as-

sumption that the bank recognized that some drafts

were under the acceptance agreement and others not.

Irrespective of the sincerity of Richfield 's or ap-

pellee's belief in this distinction the e^ddence is over-

whehning that the bank never acknowledged any such

difference. Hence the premise, upon which appellee's

conclusion is based, is contrary to fact.

(a) Normally and Properly Construed, Appellant's Telegram

and Subsequent Conduct Permit no Inference of Waiver of

Lien on the Richfield Foreign Drafts.

(1) Appellant's Telegram Waived Banker's Lien or Right of Oflfset

Only Upon Cash Balances Which Existed at That Time.

On January 15, 1931, appellee wrote to appellant,

informing the Bank of his aj^pointment as the Re-

ceiver of Richfield Oil Company of California, stat-

ing his desire to open an account with the Bank in the

name of the Receiver, and concluding his letter (R.

203, 204) as follows:

^'In opening the account of Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California, William C. McDuffie, receiver,

please transfer the balance appearing to the

credit of the Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia at the close of business January 14, 1931,

to the credit of the account ^Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California, William C. McDuffie, re-

ceiver' * * *" (Italics ours.)

In the meantime several of the company's banking

creditors, including appellant, had appropriated out-

standing balance in satisfaction of its indebtedness to

them.
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Thereafter, on the 16th day of January, 1931, a

group of bankers representing most of the banking

creditors, met with Mr. McDuffie (See Mr. McDuffie's

testimony) who requested their cooperation and in-

formed them that it was essential to the receivership

that he have available, funds to carry on the business.

He urged those bankers who had already exercised

their banker's lien against Richfield 's funds to re-

store the balances and asked the others who had not

yet exercised their rights to refrain from doing so.

(R. 206, 207, 208, 209.) Appellant objected to the

testimony as to what transpired at this meeting upon

the ground that no representative of the defendant

bank was present. (R. 207.) To meet this objection,

counsel for appellee attempted to prove through the

testimony of the witness Edward J. Nolan that w^hat

transpired at the meeting was told to Mr. Julian

Eisenbach, one of the vice-presidents of appellant

bank, in a telephone conversation of January 16th.

The argument with respect to the admissibility of this

testimony will hereinafter be stated. Even if relevant

and proper, the testimony of what took place at the

meeting is not actually of importance because the

exchange of telegrams between the parties must neces-

sarily exclusively embody appellee's right, if any. As

a result of this meeting, the two telegrams of January

16th hereinbefoi'e set forth, were exchanged.

Mr. Nolan's testimony as to how much of what oc-

curred at the meeting was conveyed to Mr. Eisenbach

is not clear. In response to a question propounded

upon direct examination, he stated:
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*'I recall explaining to Mr. Eisenbach that un-

less all of the banks were unanimous in returning

the balances that it looked to me as if the Com-
pany would have to go into bankruptcy; that Mr.

McDuffie had stated to us that he would have to

have certain funds to take care of public utility

charges, labor charges and freight rates; that is

about all I told him." (R. 243.)

'

Nothing was mentioned in the telephone conversa-

tion with respect to the future course of business of

the receivership. (R. 243.) Mr. McDuffie had said

nothing about the draft collections with Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co., and Mr. Nolan said nothing

about them in his conversation with Mr. Eisenbach.

The whole purpose of the telephone conversation was

as Mr. Nolan said:

"* * * to explain the dire condition of the

receivership; that if the balances were not re-

stored or if the banker's liens were to be exer-

cised by the different banks that it would be

necessary for the Company to go into bank-

ruptcy." (Italics ours.) (R. 246.)

Mr. Nolan further testified that in conjunction with

Mr. McDuffie, Mr. Hardacre and the other bankers

present ("it being the work of about twelve of us"

(R. 245)), the Receiver's telegram of January 16th

was prepared for transmission to each of the banking

creditors. What the agreement, if any, between the

bankers was supposed to be, is expressed by Mr. Nolan

in response to a question on cross-examination as

follow^s

:

"The whole question of agreement between the

banks was to restore the cash balances and such
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items as were in transit. For instance, in our

institution there were many items in transit from
the branch banks."

(R. 244.)

While Mr. McDuffie and his counsel urge that the

supposed agreement was intended to apply to future

credits, such was not Mr. Nolan's testimony, nor does

the carefully prepared telegram to appellant and to

the other banks mention or refer to banker's lien in

any connection except with respect to cash balances.

This telegram, it must be remembered, was the

second connnunication from appellees to the appellant

bank; the first was the letter of January 15, 1931 (R.

203, 204), the major part of which has been herein-

before quoted. The request in the receiver's telegram

of the 16th and his letter of the 15th, was to restore

the cash balance, notwithstanding ''the undoubted

right of oifset". Appellee urged at the trial that the

first part of the telegram from the receiver advising

the bank that he was ordered by the Federal Court to

take over all assets, including cash in banks, indicates

somehow that his telegram was intended to apply to

drafts and other items in the })rocess of collection, as

well as to cash balances. Had the receiver, a man of

experience in the business world, intended this, he

most certainly would have so stated in his telegram,

and if he himself had failed to do so it is logical to

assiune that at least one or more of the twelve bankers

who participated in the preparation of the telegram

would have suggested, if such had been their inten-

tion, a request to the banks to refrain from any action

directed against future collections. This request, it
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can properly be inferred, was not intended, or was

OA^erlooked. In support of this conclusion, it is un-

contradicted that the matter of the collection of

foreign drafts was not mentioned by the receiver at

his conference with the bankers. (R. 248.)

Instead of appellee's strained interpretation of the

opening few words of the receiver's telegram of Jaim-

ary 16th, it is submitted that the logical interpretation,

and the one understood not alone by the appellant

bank but by all of the other banks to which the tele-

gram was sent is that, as receiver, Mr. McDuffie was

requesting a restoration of cash balances then out-

standing. Appellant's reply telegram announced noth-

ing more than a compliance with this request. Its

interpretation evidenced willingness to restore 'Hhe

balance in checking accomit" and was apparently the

same as that of all the other banks to which the tele-

gram w^as sent. The Chemical Bank and Trust Co.

telegraphed that it would "Restore Richfield 's bal-

ance" (R. 212) ; the two (-hicago banks wired that

they would ''Replace balances" (R. 212); the First

Seattle Dexter-Horton National Bank telegraphed

that it would "Release funds that were on deposit"

(R. 213) ; the American Trust Company of San

Francisco announced its willingness to transfer "bal-

ances" (R. 214) ; The Los Angeles Main Office of the

Bank of America (Mr. Nolan's bank) sent a tele-

gram stating that the "balance had been transferred"

(R. 214) ; the Security First National Bank of Los

Angeles wired that it had credited "$37,906.06 balance

remaining in Richfield Oil Company account" (R. 214,

215), and followed this by a letter that the bank was
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willing- to transfer to the receiver ''balances" to the

credit of Richfield Oil Company (R. 215) ; The Cali-

fornia Bank, Los Angeles, merely wired that it had

acceded to the receiA'er's request. (R. 216, 217.)

The correspondence between the parties subsequent

to the exchange of telegrams on January 16, 1931, evi-

dences further their nmtual intention to deal only with

the Richfield cash balances then existing. Appellant

confirmed its telegram of January" 16th by a letter

dated Jaimary 17th (R. 219, 220) wherein the tele-

gram was incorporated in haec verba and which

stated that:

ii^ * * pending notification by you that all of

the company's banks have restored to the receiver

cash balances, we have taken no action towards
such restoration on our part."

(R. 220.)

On January 22, 1931, appellee telegraphed to ap-

pellant as follows:

''All banks have now expressed their willing-

ness to replace Richfield Oil Company's offset

balances of January 15th to the credit of re-

ceiver (stop) Will therefore greatly appreciate

your at once transferring such sums to my credit,

advising me the amount b}^ wire collect (stop)

Wish express appreciation your cooperation as

these fimds will be of great assistance.
'

'

(R. 220, 221.)

In reply to this telegram, appellant wired the re-

ceiver on January 22, 1931, as follows

:

''Answering wire have to-day placed to your
credit Richfield Oil Company's offset balance of
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January 15th, amount $40,874.77." (Italics ours

in the foregoing quotation.)

(R. 221.)

This correspondence leaves no doubt about the na-

ture of its subject. Mr. McDuffie intended only to

procure a release of the funds then standing to the

credit of Richtield Oil Company and he was satisfied

with appellant's cooperation to this extent. His own

testimony supports this, for on the witness stand he

said:

''By the use of the words, 'all banks have now
expressed their willingness to replace Richfield

Oil Company's offset balances of January 15th,

to credit of receiver', I meant the balances of

January 15th. I did not refer to the collections in

foreign countries that were not payable for many
days thereafter."

(R. 277.)

Lest it be urged that appelhmt has not conducted

itself equitably in its cooperation with the Receiver it

should be noted that on January 22, 1931, as stated in

its telegram of that date, appellant restored the smn

of $40,874.77 to the credit of appellee. This coopera-

tion, which will subsequently be more fully discussed

herein, was continued by appellee until the early part

of May, 1931. On March 5, 1931, the sum of $7749.58

was paid to appellee and between March 5, 1931, and

April 22, 1931, the sum of $26,464.13, making a total

amount paid to the receiver from the date of his

appointment to the date of the institution of this

action, of $75,088.48. If equities be projected into this
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case, these voluntary restorations should be kept in

mind-

Appellee would not have this Court believe that he

intended to admit in his telegram of January 16, 1931,

that appellant at that time was vested with a banker's

lien upon the drafts in question, or, in other words,

that there had been no waiver of lien by appellant in

August and October, 1930, as hereinbefore discussed.

Yet insistance by appellee upon his stand that by the

wording of his telegram he was requesting a waiver of

lien as to all foreign drafts as well as the cash balances

places him in this position. For in his telegTam, the

following appears:

''While you have undoubted right of offset
* * *>>

This statement without question was made with the

$625,000.00 indebtedness of Richfield Oil Company to

appellant in mind, and if the telegram is to be con-

strued as applying to the foreign draft collections as

well as the cash balances, it carries with it an admis-

sion that up to that time, at least, appellant had not

waived its lien on the drafts. If appellee does not wish

such a construction of his telegram, he is necessarily

relegated to that which appellant contends is the only

proper one, to-wit: that the parties were dealing only

with the then existing cash balances. Again appellee's

case must be impaled on either horn of a dilemma.

(2) Appellant by Its Telegram of January 16, 1931, Reserved Its

Banker's Lien Upon All Foreign Drafts Then in Its Possession

and the Proceeds Thereof.

"We are holding certain collections as security

for acceptances. Please imderstand that we con-
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tiiiiie to reserve all our rights for banker's lien

against these collections."

(R. 210.)

This simple sentence from appellant's telegram pre-

cipitated an extensive argument by appellee's counsel

at the trial to distoii: this express reservation of

banker's lien on all Richfield 's drafts held by ap-

pellant into a waiver of lien on the drafts here in

dispute.

Appellee's theories upon which he founded his con-

clusion of waiver, and which he succeeded in impress-

ing upon the Court below, have heretofore been siun-

marized and need not now be repeated. Appellant can-

not however refrain from again adverting to the arti-

ficiality of Appellee's position throughout this case

and which now leads him to the ingenious but uncon-

vincing conclusion that appellant bank reserved a lien

only upon the drafts admittedly mider the acceptances,

and then only to the extent that their proceeds would

be essential to liquidate such acceptances.

On appellee's theory that only part of the drafts

were deposited under the acceptances, or on appellant's

theory that all of them were, this interpretation of the

telegram renders meaningless the w^ords, "We con-

tinue to reserve all our rights for banker's lien against

these collections". When informing the receiver that

it was holding certain collections as security for accep-

tances, which it had an unquestioned right to do, there

was no necessity for appellant further to inform the

receiver that it contimied to reserve its banker's lien

against these collections, unless it intended to refer to

the excess proceeds over and above the amount neces-
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sary to liquidate the acceptances. It is submitted that

the natural construction of this telegram, whether it

was applicable, as appellee claims, only to the drafts

admittedly under the acceptances, or to all of the

drafts, is that a banker's lien for the general indebted-

ness of Richfield to appellant was reserved upon all

proceeds of such drafts over and above the amount

necessary to liquidate the acceptances outstanding.

Although the briefs submitted upon the conclusion

of the trial are not before this Court, appellee will not

deny that in his opening brief in the lower Court, he

admitted that draft No. 103,012, drawn on Bueno y

Cia, was deposited under the acceptance agreement,

and that the excess proceeds thereof, in the sum of

$469.06, were consequently properly appropriated by

appellant to the satisfaction of Richfield Oil Com-

pany's note indebtedness, in accordance with the terms

of the acceptance agreement. Also, appellee w411 not

deny that Finding No. XY (R. 188, 189) was proposed

by him and accepted by the Court without objection

from appellant. This Finding embodies appellee's ad-

mission that draft No. 103,012 was deposited mider the

acceptance agreement and the proceeds thereof w^ere

therefore properly appropriated by appellant to the

satisfaction of the general indebtedness of Richfield.

By appellee's own admission, then, his theory that

appellant in its telegram of January 16, 1931, reserved

a lien upon the drafts to which said telegram was

applicable only to the extent of the amount necessary

to liquidate the acceptances, is imsound. For, if his

theory were correct, appellant had no right to the

proceeds of draft No. 103,012. In passing, it wdll be
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remembered that draft No. 103,012 was the one re-

ferred to at the beginning of this brief as having been

included in appellee's complaint, but with respect to

which appellee waived all rights at the trial on the

ground that it was deposited mider the acceptance

agreement and consequently its proceeds were subject

to application by appellant on account of Richfield 's

general indebtedness.

For the same reason the findings of the Court are

inconsistent in this respect. Finding No. XIX (R. 190,

191) is an attempt to embody appellee's theory. Yet

in Finding XV (R. 188, 189), as hereinabove pointed

out, the Court found that the excess proceeds of draft

No. 103,012, admittedly deposited under the acceptance

agreement, were properly appropriated by appellant

to the Richfield note indebtedness.

Having demonstrated, then, as appellant believes it

has, that whatever the drafts were to which the reser-

vation in appellant's telegram of January 16th was

applicable, this reservation was not limited to the

amoimt of the proceeds of the drafts necessary to

liquidate the acceptances, but also extended to the

excess of such proceeds, it is now necessary to ascer-

tain to just w^hat drafts this reservation applied. Ap-

pellant's position is that this reservation was intended

to and did apply to all Richfield drafts which it then

held.

Appellee seized upon the word, ''certain", in appel-

lant's telegram, arguing that its use was proof that

appellant only intended to reserve a lien upon the

drafts which w^ere admittedly deposited under the ac-

ceptance agreement, and that by failing to mention
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those which appellee claims were not under agreement,

appellant waived its lien thereon. The word, ''cer-

tain", appellee argued, citing Webster's Dictionary,

means ''some among others". Appellee thereupon con-

veniently concluded that the "some" were the drafts

admittedly under the acceptance agreement, and the

"others" were the drafts here in dispute.

Assiuning that appellee is correct in his definition

of the word, "certain", the fundamental difficulty with

his argument, from the standpoint of construction, is

that there is nothing in the telegram which shows what

the "certain" drafts were to which appellant referred.

Appellee has gratuitously assumed that they were not

the drafts involved herein. However, for all that can

be gathered from the evidence appellant might just as

well have been referring to the drafts here in dispute

as to any others. Appellee's conclusion is pure specula-

tion. Furthermore, on appellee's interpretation the

telegram might fairly be construed as meaning "We
are holding your collections among the many we have

as security for acceptances".

But appellant was obviously referring m its tele-

gram to all of the drafts which it then held for Rich-

field Oil Company. It is common knowledge that the

word "certain" is very often used as a synonjrm for

"all", or even "various", just as it may be used to

mean (as apx^ellee claims) "some among others"; in

nine cases out of ten it can be eliminated as so much

surplusage without robbing language of its true and

intended meaning. To illustrate by example:

"We have certain (various) books of yours";

"We are disposing of certain books of Smith in
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our possession" (^'all books of Smith in our pos-

session") ; ''There are certain reasons" (sur})lus-

age) ; "Certain people you know were there" (de-

scriptive and surplusage).

That words in a contract are to be construed in their

popular and accepted meaning, see : Scudder v. Pierce

(1911), 159 Cal. 429, 114 Pac. 571, v/here the Court

said, at page 433

:

"The second consideration is that all parts of a

contract are to be given effect if this may be done

without doing violence to the manifest expressed

intent of the parties, and that the terms of a con-

tract are to be construed according to the ordi-

nary and usual acceptation of the language, unless

an intent that they should be construed otherwise

plainly appears."

In Retsloff v. Smith, 79 Cal. App. 443, 249 Pac. 886,

the following is stated, at page 452

:

"The purpose of all construction is to ascertain

the intent of the parties. When the intent of the

parties is ascertained it must always take pre-

cedence over the literal sense of the terms/' (Ital-

ics ours.)

It was argued that the other bank creditors of Rich-

field Oil Company, because of the use of the word

"certain", understood this telegram as a waiver of

appellant's lien. To say that the other bank creditors

recognized any such refinement is obviously erroneous.

There is no evidence in this case that they or any of

them were aware of the nature of any agreement or

agreements between Richfield Oil Company and appel-

lant as to the foreign drafts—either the alleged agree-
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ments upon which appellee bases his contention herein,

or the agreement as understood by api3ellant. The

record is equally silent as to what, if indeed any, inter-

pretation the other bank creditors placed upon this

telegram. To appellant, it is quite apparent that the

bank creditors, if they thought about this telegram at

all, accepted it in the ordinary sense of the language

used: '*We will return the bank balance, but we re-

serve our rights against the foreign collections." The

action of Security First National Bank of Los Angeles

in relinquishing draft proceeds to appellee (R. 335)

was cited as proving that the other bank creditors un-

derstood that appellant waived its lien upon the drafts

in question. Appellant does not know what motivated

the Security Bank in taking this action, but in, any

event the construction which it placed upon its own

agreement with the receiver can have no bearing on

the proper interpretation of appellant's telegraphic

communication to the receiver. Furthermore, the

Security Bank made no reservations whatever in its

telegram to the receiver. (R. 214, 215.)

Appellee seeks somehow to penalize appellant be-

cause in its telegram it used the word ''continue",

to-wit: ''We continue to reserv^e our rights * * *".

What argument can possibly exist as to the use of this

word? Obviously what was said and what was meant

was that "Notwithstanding our restoration of your

bank balance, we are holding your collections as secur-

ity for acceptances and inform you that we continue

to reserve our rights to banker's lien, notwithstanding

our action in restoring your balance". The right ex-

isted prior to the sending of the telegram, if it existed

at all, and the bank continued to reserve that right.
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In Balfour v. Fresno Canal cD Irrigation Co. (1895),

109 Cal. 221, 41 Pac. 876, the Supreme Court of Cali-

fornia uses, at page 227, the following apt language:

"It is a true and important rule of construction

that the sense and meaning of the parties to any
particular instrmnent should be collected ex ante-

cedentihus et consequentibus ; that is to say, every

part of it should be brought into action, in order

to collect from the whole one uniform and con-

sistent sense, if that may be done."

Applying this sensible and usual rule of construc-

tion, it is submitted that an examination of appellant's

telegram as a whole leads but to one conclusion—that

appellant reserved its lien upon all Richfield drafts

then held by it. Any other construction would be

absurd and would totally destroy and render meaning-

less the words contained in the telegram: "Please

understand that we continue to reserve all our rights

for banker's lien against these collections".

The following quotation from Sprague v. Edwards

(1874), 48 Cal. 239, at page 249, fittingly concludes this

phase of the argument:

"It is not the practice of Courts of Justice to

divest persons of their estates by a strict interpre-

tation of the language of an instrument when the

sense in which the w^ords w^ere used is apparent

from other portions of the instriunent, viewed in

the light of attending facts."

(3) The Circumstances Surrounding the Sending of Appellant's

Telegram Prove That no Waiver of Lien on the Drafts in Ques-

tion Was Intended.

Mr. Eisenbach, the chief credit officer of appellant,

and a man to whom, obviously, consideration of the
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lien of a bank or its right to offset was not a new sub-

ject, received Mr. McDuffie's telegTam (R. 452) and

sent the reply which appellee here calls into question.

(R. 452, 453.) Prior to sending the telegram Eisen-

bach had been advised b}^ Mr. Hellman, Vice-Presi-

dent, in charge of the Foreign Department (R. 441)

that there were drafts and foreign collections of Rich-

field Oil Company in the Foreign Department. (R.

453.) Mr. Eisenbach prepared the telegram jointly

with Mr. Motherwell, a Vice-President of the Bank,

writing it at his desk and conferring with him about

it. (R. 453.) The telegram was sent in direct reply to

appellee's telegram. (R. 458.) Mr. Motherwell testified

that he had been Vice-President of Wells Fargo Bank

& Union Trust Co. for over five years (R. 460), and

prior to that time was with the Federal Reserve Bank

for a period of eight years as assistant examiner in

San Francisco, managing director of the Salt Lake

City Branch and manager in Los Angeles. (R. 460.)

He testified that he had had experience with banker's

lien and had a definite understanding as to what it

was (R. 461) ; that he w^as possessed of this informa-

tion and knowledge at the time of the sending of the

telegram; that he knew from Mr. Hellman of the

Foreign Department about the Richfield drafts and

collections (R. 461), and that with all of this knowl-

edge before him he, jointly with Mr. Eisenbach, pre-

pared the telegram. (R. 462.)

These circumstances materially strengfhen appel-

lant's position as to the very obvious meaning of the

language used in the telegram, for the manner in which

the telegram was sent, the consideration given to it,
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proceeds of the drafts as an absolute violation of the

agreement with him and the banks (R. 244), and on

cross-examination he emphasized his statement by

saying, "My recollection is rather clear because the

matter was of extraordinary importance." (R. 225.)

Mr. Eisenbach testified as to the exact nature of the

conversation between him and Mr. McDuffie, and he

quoted Mr. McDuffie as saying:

"I have just received notice that the bank has

applied $145,000.00 on its lien, I am aware that

you have reserved that right hy your telegram

of January 16th, and now you have exercised the

lien, I don't think it is x^lajdng cricket."

(R. 453.)

This testimony is supported by that of Mr. Mc-

Duffie on cross-examination, in which he said

:

"In substance, I stated to Mr. Eisenbach that

I knew there had been a reservation of rights,

but I had not expected the bank to exercise these

rights."

(R. 226.)

After testifying on cross-examination that he writes

shorthand and makes contemporaneous memoranda of

important conversations (R. 454, 455), Mr. Eisen-

bach stated that there was a means of determining

the exact date of the telephone conversation with

Mr. McDufae. (R. 456.) At this point in the testi-

mony, the record shows (R. 456) that counsel for

appellant tendered to counsel for the receiver Mr.

Eisenbach 's memorandum of May 11th.

Returning then to the question as to what was Mr.

McDuffie 's understanding of a]DX)ellant's telegram of
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January 16th, appellant believes that it can answer

this question more accurately than Mr. McDuffie did

upon the witness stand. Mr. McDuffie understood

the telegram as the consent of appellant to do what

he requested it to do, namely, to restore the bank

balance against which it had previously exercised its

banker's lien, and he further understood that tele-

gram, as he subsequently stated to Mr. Eisenbach

on May 11, 1931, as reserving appellant's banker's

lien against all Richfield 's collections in the Foreign

Department. On his own testimony he could have

had no other understanding. He did not know the

details of the transaction; he did not know the pro-

visions of the acceptance agreement; he did not know
the amount of the indebtedness on acceptances. He
knew and this, we submit, is all he knew, that money
had been borrowed upon acceptances secured by

drafts deposited for collection wdth Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Ti'ust Co. He did not show appellant's

telegram to his counsel, nor did he ask appellant for

any explanation of it. He was anxious at that time

to get under way with his receivership; he wanted

the cash balances restored; he was not then worrying

about the future; he desired to reassure each bank

that all of them had agreed to the request set forth

in his telegrams of January 16th (R. 209) ; he was

not concerning himself, nor was he going to bother

the other banks with this reservation of appellant;

that, thought Mr. McDuffie, if he thought about it

at all, would take care of itself in the future.
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(5) Effect of Appellant's Action in Releasing Draft Proceeds to the

Receiver.

Appellee further claims that appellant's conduct

after the transmission of its telegram of January

16th has evidential force adverse to appellant on the

question of waiver of lien. Appellee's contention in

this respect is that the subsequent relinquishment by

apj)ellant to the receiver of some of the draft pro-

ceeds is evidence confirming the interpretation which

appellee places on appellant's telegram of January

16th. The trial Court found that the proceeds of

foreign drafts were deposited by appellant bank to

the credit of Richfield Oil Company and/or its re-

ceiver without any claim of right of offset or banker's

lien on the part of appellant (Finding XXIII, R.

193), and concluded that, by its agreement and by its

conduct subsequent to the deposit of drafts, appellant

waived its banker's lien. (Conclusion lY, R. 194,

195.)

Appellee does not and could not under the authori-

ties contend that the relinquishment by appellant

of some of the draft proceeds in and of itself was

a waiver of appellant's security or lien right as

against the balance of the collections in its possession

or under its control. In Bell v. Hutchinson Lumber

Co. (1928, W. Va.), 145 S. E. 160, the directors of

a corporation personally paid deficiency income taxes

of the corporation under an agreement that they

would be entitled to an equitable lien upon the pro-

ceeds of the sale of certain timber. The proceeds of

this sale were deposited in a bank. The directors
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caused part of the proceeds to be applied to other

indebtedness of the corporation. The defendant, who

claimed the fund under a garnishment, contended that

this action of the directors amounted to a waiver of

their lien upon the fund. The Court, in holding

against this contention, said at page 165 :

"This fact would not impel a conclusion of

waiver or abandonment of the lien by appellants
* * * The intent to waive or abandon a lien

must be shown by clear and conAdncing proof."

Appellant honestly believes that appellee's inter-

pretation of its telegram of January 16th is so un-

natural and illogical that no act of appellant could

possibly have confirmed it. With equal seriousness

appellant contends that its action in returning the

funds subsequent to the appointment of the receiver

was consistent with both the original right it claimed

and the right reserved in the telegram of January

16th.

Upon Mr. McDuffie's appointment, appellant exer-

cised its banker's lien against Richfield 's bank bal-

ance, in excess of $40,000.00. Thereafter appellant

agreed to cooperate to the extent requested by the

receiver, viz.: by restoring the bank balance; but it

warned the receiver by its reservation of rights in

its telegram of January 16, 1931, that it might not

cooperate in the future with respect to the collections

in its Foreign Department. Subsequent to the re-

ceivership, Mr. Eisenbach was delegated to keep in

close contact with its affairs and endeavored to do so.

(R. 254.)



136

It cannot be disputed that, according to the in-

formation and belief of Eisenbach, and through him,

of appellant, there were several periods in the course

of the receivership during which its condition ap-

peared more serious than at other times. The situa-

tion appeared most serious to Eisenbach and appel-

lant in the month of February and in the month of

May, 1931 (R. 454, 459) ; reports as to the condition

of the company at these times were made by Mr.

Eisenbach to Mr. Motherwell, Vice-President, and to

Mr. Lipman, Pi^esident, of appellant bank. (R. 454.)

In May, 1931, Eisenbach believed that bankruptcy

of Richfield was imminent. (R. 454.) Counsel for

appellee sought vainly to destroy the effect of this

testimony by asking who threatened bankruptcy and

whether it was not a fact that bankruptcy did not

actually occur. To this line of questioning, Eisenbach

replied

:

^'I did not testify that anybody made a threat

of bankruptcy. I said I thought bankruptcy was
impending. '

'

(R. 457.)

And further:

''I have not attempted to say that anybody told

me that Richfield Oil Company would be put

into bankruptcy. My judgment told me that there

was a danger of bankruptcy."

(R. 457.)

Whether bankruptcy was or was not imminent, it

was Eisenbach 's belief that it was, and he so reported

to appellant bank.
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The substance of Eisenbach's testimony was ac-

tually confirmed by Mr. McDuffie, who stated on the

witness stand:

''There were two acute periods in the money
affairs of the receivership, one in February and
one in May."

(R. 230.)

In May, the acuteness was caused by the necessity

of raising money to pay property taxes, and in Feb-

ruary the question of gasoline taxes was involved.

(R. 123, 124.)

These dates and the changeable financial condition

of Richfield Oil Company are important in adding

reason to the conduct of appellant in returning draft

proceeds to appellee. Bearing in mind the times when

the financial situation was most acute and remember-

ing that Mr. Eisenbach was keeping in touch with the

affairs of Richfield, meanwhile reporting to Mr.

Motherwell and Mr. Lipman, it is quite natural that

the two periods when appellant indicated its intention

to exercise its reserved right as against the draft col-

lections were in Febi'uary and May. On February 26,

1931, Mr. Gilstrap of appellant bank wrote a letter

to the receiver wherein he stated:

''The remainder of the proceeds, totalling

$7749.58, we are holding in accordance with the

notice given you by our wire of January 16."

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 107, R. 303, 304.)

In reply to this letter, appellant received the fol-

lowing telegram:
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'^.os Angeles Calif 248P Mar 2 1931

WFBATUCO
Attn W. J. Gilstrap

Please repeat telegram dated January six-

teenth mentioned in your letter to Lyons of Feb-

ruary sixth please answer immediately

RiCHFiEiiD Oil Co of Calif

Pope/'

(R. 306.)

Appellant then by wire repeated its telegram of

January 16, 1931.

Thereafter appellant received a letter from Mr.

McDuffie dated March 3rd, referring to the previous

communication of February 26th, and stating in part

:

''I beg to inform you that all banks transferred

the total amount of deposit to the credit of Rich-

field Oil Company of California on January 15,

1931, to the credit of William C. McDuffie, re-

ceiver. / will therefore appreciate it if you will

kindly credit the remainder of the proceeds as

mentioned above, $7,749.58, to the credit of Rich-

field Oil Company," etc. (Italics ours.)

(R. 302, 303.)

In response to the last communication, appellant,

on March 5, 1931, wrote a letter to appellee, stating

in part:

"In accordance with your request, we are cred-

iting the account of William C. McDuffie, re-

ceiver Richfield Oil Company of California, with

the sum of $7,749.58." (Italics ours.)

(R. 305, 306.)
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The first letter hereinabove set forth sent by appel-

lant to appellee on February 26, 1931, is in line with

the knowledge by appellant that in February the con-

dition of the receivership was acute. However, the

ultimate relinquishment of the draft proceeds squares

with Mr. McDuffie's testimony that by the latter part

of February the financial condition of the receiver-

ship was no longer as acutely serious as previously.

(R. 230.) In this connection, Mr. Gilstrap testified

that prior to sending the letter of relinquishment,

there was considerable discussion among the officers

of the bank. (R. 409).

It should be noted that in the receiver's letter of

March 3, 1931, he did not make a demand but a re-

quest in the language, "I will therefore appreciate

it." As a reason for his request, the receiver stated

that all of the banks had transferred their balances;

in other words, he urged appellant not to exercise its

right. At the trial, counsel for appellee demanded

that the language of every letter and every communi-

cation by appellant be strictly construed to the preju-

dice of appellant. If the same yardstick be applied

to this letter from Mr. McDuffie, we find, notwith-

standing the statement in appellant's letter of Feb-

ruary 26, 1931, that it was holding proceeds "in

accordance with the notice given you by our wire of

January 16" (R. 304), and notwithstanding that the

receiver had before him, at his own request, a copy

of that telegram of January 16th (R. 307), there is

no attempt to deny in the receiver's letter of March
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3d that the action of appellant in holding the pro-

ceeds was '4n accordance with the notice given you

by our wire of January 16. '

' The receiver apparently

accepted this, as appellant contends, he was required

to do.

The letter of the receiver stated that he would ap-

preciate the crediting of the proceeds to his account.

With this request before it, appellant determined

upon a course of conduct after due and deliberate

consideration. Mr. Hellman testified that after the

receipt of this letter, he conferred with Mr. Lipman

with reference to the subject matter of the letter and

of the reply to it. He further testified:

''I had a conference with officials of the bank
with respect to handing back this particular lot

of proceeds. At that time the Cities Service

Company had just recently made an offer for

500,000 shares of Richfield common stock at $4.00

a share, and was very much interested in the

purchase of the company, and it was decided be-

tween Mr. Lij)man and myself that the money
would be returned. Prior to transmitting the

proceeds back to Richfield Oil Company, as stated

in the letter which is Plaintiff's Exhibit 108,

there w^as a conference held between me and Mr.

Lipman with reference to the subject matter of

the letter which was subsequently written, and

at that time there were facts known to me and

to Mr. Lipman to the effect that the receivership

of the Richfield Oil Company was in fair proba-

bility of being able to work itself out."

(R. 441, 442.)
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Thereupon appellant's letter of March 5, 1931

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 108, R. 305, 306), was written,

returning the sum of $7749.58 and the further sum
of $11,081.52, proceeds of a draft which meanwhile

had been received.

From the foregoing it is quite apparent that the

facts do not sustain the argument made by counsel

for appellee at the trial to the effect that when appel-

lant received appellee's letter of March 3, 1931 (R.

302, 303), it readily concluded that the receiver was

entitled to the funds and that it had no claim against

them. The facts are just to the contrary, for the

transfer was made after due consideration of the

financial condition of Richfield Oil Company and of

the question as to whether appellant bank's coopera-

tion should continue.

The condition of the receivership again changed for

the worse in May, 1931. The 180 day Birla Bros,

drafts matured in the early part of the month. On
May 8th, Hall telephoned to Gilstrap inquiring as to

the cost of cabling the proceeds of these drafts from

Calcutta. (R. 386, 387.) Thereafter, Richfield wrote

a letter requesting that the proceeds be transmitted

by cable. (R. 310.) Meanwhile, on the same day, Gil-

strap reported to Hellman that Hall had telephoned

about the proceeds. (R. 387.) As a result of this

conference, Grilstrap telephoned back to Hall, telling

him that ''the bank had decided to take the proceeds of

the two Birla Bros, drafts deposited on October 8th,

and apply them against Richfield 's indebtedness." (R.

387.)
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Meanwhile, there had been numerous conferences at

appellant bank, participated in by Helhnan, Mother-

well, Eisenbach and Lipman, with respect to the exer-

cise of its lien by the bank. Lipman specifically stated

on the witness stand that there was no discussion as

to the bank's rigM to exercise the lien, but that there

were discussions as to procedure (R. 450) ; Motherwell

testified to the same effect. (R. 460, 461.)

It is submitted that the only inference which may
fairly be drawn from the relinquishment by appellant

to appellee of the proceeds of some of the Richfield

drafts is that appellant was cooperating with the

receiver during the period when it thought that co-

operation was advisable, to the extent and for the time

that in its best judgment it thought proper. It with-

held making a final decision against appellee until the

very end, cooperating, meanwhile, to its own loss, but

secure in the just belief that it had notified appellee

of what it ultimately might do (and subsequently did)

by the reservation in its telegram of January 16th.

That appellant understood this telegram as reserving

a lien on all Richfield foreign drafts cannot be ques-

tioned in the light of its letter of Februar}^ 26, 1931,

in which it informed Richfield of its intention to hold

the proceeds of the designated drafts in accordance

with its said telegram. The existence of this letter

emphasizes the subsequent relinquishment of draft

proceeds as cooperation with the receiver.

If the source of these proceeds be examined, con-

clusive proof is found that the relinquishment thereof

to appellee is meaningless in comiection with the ques-
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tion of waiver of lien. The first sum of $7749.58

released to the receiver consisted for the most part of

proceeds of drafts claimed by appellee not to have

been deposited under the acceptance agreement, to-wit,

drafts Nos. 113,009, 113,018 and 123,008. (R. 303.)

In an earlier part of this brief api)ellee's claim that

these drafts were not deposited under the acceptance

agreement was presented and considered. But also

included in this sum were the proceeds of a part pay-

ment on draft No. 103,012 (drawn of Bueno y Cia)

(R. 303, 304), which, as ]3reviously noted, appellee

admitted, and the Court found, was deposited under

the acceptance agreement. (Finding XV, R. 188, 189.)

On appellee's own interpretation of appellant's tele-

gram of January 16, 1931, that a lien was reserved only

upon those drafts which appellee claims were de-

posited under the acceptance agreement, the inclusion

of the proceeds of draft No. 103,012 in the amount

•credited to the account of the receiver renders the

relinquishment thereof, if of any probative value on

the question of waiver of lien, evidence against ap-

pellee's interpretation, in that appellant thereby re-

linquished to the receiver funds from a draft which

appellee admits was deposited under the acceptance

agreement and against which a lien had undisputedly

been reserved.

In addition to appellee's argument that the relin-

quishment by appellant of these draft proceeds gives

some support to his interpretation of appellant's tele-

gram of January 16, 1931, appellee likewise seizes

upon this relinquishment to support his argument that

a waiver was effected at the inception of the foreign
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draft transactions in October, 1930. The lower Court

accepted this argument in its opinion. (R. 177, 187.)

Here again, it is submitted, that the relinquishment

can mean nothing, except possibly to rebut appellee's

contention, in the face of the fact that an installment

of the proceeds of draft No. 103,012 received in May,

1931, are admitted to have been properly applied to

the liquidation of Richfield 's general indebtedness to

appellant. To be more specific, appellant relinquished

the proceeds of a draft upon which appellee admits

appellant had an enforceable lien, as well as the pro-

ceeds of drafts upon which appellee alleges the lien

was waived. How can this action, then, be confirma-

tory of an understanding on the part of appellant

that it at any time waived its lien u^^on the drafts, the

proceeds of which are here in dispute?

(6) The Effect of the Claims Filed by Appellant Bank in the Re-

ceivership Proceedings.

On the 28th day of March, 1931, appellant herein

filed its Proof of Claim in the receivership proceed-

ings. This proof of claitn set forth the fact that Rich-

field Oil Company of California was indebted to ap-

pellant in the sum of $636,189.95 for moneys loaned

to Richfield and that this indebtedness was evidenced

by a promissory note dated July 12, 1930. It also

recited that no securities were held by claiinant for

said indebtedness. (R. 366, 367.) 'A further proof of

claim was filed by appellant for the additional sum

of $1028.85 for services rendered as registrar of Rich-

field's preferred and common stock. This claim like-

^^'ise stated that no securities were held by claimant

for said indebtedness. (R. 367, 368.)
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Appellee, applying the same argument to these

claims as he did to the relinquishment of the draft

proceeds, contended that the allegation that the claims

were not secured was illustrative of the understand-

ing of appellant that by its telegram of January 16,

1931, it waived its banker's lien upon the drafts in

dispute. At the trial, it was expressly admitted by

counsel for appellee, and will no doubt be similarly

conceded here, that these proofs of claim in and of

themselves would not operate as a w^aiver of appel-

lant's lien or right of setoff. In view of this conces-

sion it is unnecessary to cite from the long line of cases

holding that failure to allege the existence of security

in a claim filed in an equity receivership does not act

as a waiver of the security.

The circumstances surrounding the filing of the

claims show that it was entirely through inadvertence

that they did not recite that the drafts in question

were security for the general indebtedness of Rich-

field to the bank!

On March 14, 1931, appellant sent a letter to Heller,

Ehrman, White & McAuliffe, its attorneys, requesting

that they prepare a claim in the receivership proceed-

ings covering this indebtedness of Richfield to ap-

pellant. (R. 463.) The attorneys prepared the claim

and by letter of March 27, 1931, forwarded it to the

bank for signature by the proper officer. (R. 463.) On

the same date the attorneys sent to appellant a claim

against the receiver for services rendered as registrar

of Richfield 's preferred and common stock. In none

of this correspondence between the bank and its at-

torneys was the question of security discussed.
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It should be remembered that appellant is a com-

paratively large San Francisco bank engaged, through

various departments, in the manifold activities of a

modern bank and trust company. The employee in the

Note Department who requested counsel to prepare

these claims was unaware of the existence of the col-

lections in the Foreign Department. Furthermore, it

is apparent that the attorneys inadvertently failed to

question the officers of appellant as to the existence of

any security. Additional proof of inadvertence on

the part of appellant is found in the fact that the

claim for the note indebtedness was signed by F. I.

Raymond, Vice-President and Cashier of Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. In the entire record of this

case, this is the only time that Mr. Raymond's name

appears. It is clear that he had nothing whatever to

do with, and consequently no knowledge of, the foreign

draft collections of Richfield. The proof of claim

for services as registrar was signed by A. J. Callahan,

Assistant Trust Officer of appellant,- and this is the

only time that his name appears in the entire record of

the case. It is obvious that as Assistant Trust Officer

he would be ignorant of the collections in the Foreign

Department.

Thereafter appellant by order of Court was allowed

to file an amended proof of claim. (R. 464, 465.) This

amended claim alleged that the information for the

first claim had been compiled by the Note Department

of appellant bank which was a separate department

from the Foreign Department ; that said Note Depart-

ment had no records of collateral or other security de-

posited with the Foreign Department; that through



147

inadvertence and lack of knowledge of the Note De-

partment, said Richfield claim stated that there were

no offsets or comiterclaims to the debt set forth in said

claim, and that no securities were held by the claim-

ant for said indebtedness ; whereas, the facts w^ere that

unknown to the Note Department the drafts and the

proceeds thereof involved in this litigation were held

in the Foreign Department as security for all of the

Richfield indebtedness. (R. 465.)

It is submitted that if the first proof of claim filed

by appellant might otherwise have had some proba-

tive force, the amended proof is cogent evidence as

to exactly what the understanding of appellant w^as,

and operates completely to nullify the contentions of

appellee based on the first proof of claim.

No effort w^as made to amend the comparatively

small claim for services as registrar, but this can

have no bearing on the issues involved herein since

appellant is only holding the proceeds of the drafts

as against the general note indebtedness of Richfield

Oil Company to it.

It is submitted that the inadvertence or the care-

lessness of appellant and its counsel in the prepara-

tion of its proofs of claim should not be considered

by the Court as in any way prejudicial to any sub-

stantive rights which appellant possessed. This case,

it is respectfully urged, involves conflicting claims to

a large sum of money and substantial legal and equi-

table rights. It should be determined upon the merits,

unaffected by excusable inadvertence in the prepara-

tion of documents.
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(b) As a Matter of Law, Appellant Did Not Waive Its Lien

Subsequent to the Appointment of the Receiver.

(1) The Telegram is Silent as to Waiver of Lien.

Despite all of the labored reasoning which counsel

for appellee offer in support of their position that

appellant in its telegram of January 16, 1931, waived

its banker's lien, there is one vital weakness in this

position Vv^hich renders all of such reasoning futile.

This is the fact that nowhere in said telegram can

there be found any statement that appellant intended

to waive its lien—not even ambiguous language to that

effect.

Appellee's legal position in this regard has been

that since, according to his contention, appellant re-

served its lien only upon the drafts admittedly de-

posited as security for acceptances, as a matter of law

it waived its lien upon all other drafts by failing to

assert it. This proposition is unsupported by de-

cisions of any Courts, but on the contrary is negatived

by the authorities which will hereinafter be cited.

Appellee sought in the lower Court to sustain his

position by the citation of the very early case of

Brown v. Gihnan (1819), 4 Wheaton 255, particu-

larly the language of the Supreme Court at page 289

:

''The express contract, that the lien shall be

retained to a specified extent, is equivalent to

a waiver of that lien to any greater extent."

Although this quotation has a specious bearing upon

the issues involved herein, an analysis of the facts iii

the case cited completely robs it of any value as sup-

port for appellee's contention.
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In Brotvn v. Gilman certain real property was sold,

the vendor well knowing that the purchase was for

the purpose of resale. The seller claimed an equitable

vendor's lien upon the property, and the question was

whether, assuming that the law recognized such a lien,

the vendor had waived it in the agreement of sale. The

contract contained an express stipulation that the

property should remain liable for the first payment

but that separate security should be taken for the

residue of the purchase money. This agreement, of

course, strongly indicated an intention to w^aive a

vendor's lien for the balance of the price. The con-

clusion that such was the intent was as inescapable as

if there had been an express waiver. It is impossible

to contend logically that there is an}^ parallel between

this agreement and that involved in the case at bar.

And more important, the reservation to a specified

extent and the equivalent waiver to the greater extent,

applied in the cited case to exactly the same property.

Appellee would have this Court believe that a reserva-

tion of a lien upon one property item is a waiver of

lien upon other property where there is a con-

temporaneous failure to assert the lien upon the latter.

There is no authority for this. It is, moreover, un-

founded in law, for, assuming that appellee is correct

in his argument that not all of the drafts were de-

posited under the acceptance agreement and that the

reservation in the telegram of January 16, 1931, re-

ferred only to those drafts which actually were so

deposited, nevertheless, the circumstances did not im-

pose any obligation or duty on the part of appellant

to come forward on January 16, 1931, and expressly



150

reserve its lien upon the drafts which, according to

appellee's contention, were not deposited under the

acceptance agreement.

The only rule of law which in any manner ap-

proaches that for which appellee here contends pro-

vides that assertion by the lien holder of a title to

the property inconsistent with the lien, eifects a

waiver of the lien. For instance, if the lien holder

asserts that he has full title to the property he thereby

waives his lien. See Williams v. Ashe (1896), 111

Cal. 180, 43 Pac. 595; Sutton v. Stephan (1894), 101

Cal. 545, 36 Pac. 106.

It is hardly necessary to comment upon the absence

of any statement in the telegram in question incon-

sistent with the existence of a lien on the drafts in-

volved herein.

A. Appellee has the Burden of Establishing the Alleged Waiver.

The burden rests upon appellee to show to a cer-

tainty that appellant, after the appointment of the

receiver, waived its right to banker's lien.

In Aronson v. Frankfort Ins. Co. (1908), 9 Cal.

App. 473, 99 Pac. 537, the Court said, at page 480

:

'*A waiver in law is the intentional relinquish-

ment of a known right; and the burden is upon

the party claiming such waiver to prove it by

such evidence as does not leave the matter doubt-

ful or uncertain."

So likewise in Mott v. Cline (1927), 200 Cal. 434,

253 Pac. 718, at page 451 the Court said

:

"The burden is on the party asserting a waiver

to introduce evidence of the facts constituting it.
'

'
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Not only does the burden of proving that appellant

waived its lien rest upon appellee, but the law pre-

sumes that appellant did not intend such waiver. Ap-

pellee may overcome this presmnption only by clear

and convincing- evidence to the contrar}^ The record

is totally lacking in such evidence.

In Bader v. Starr Milling dc Elevator Co. (1919),

258 Fed. 599, 606, the following language appears:

''The legal presumption is that one who has a

legal and equitable lien on property intends to

maintain and enforce it and his abandonment

thereof may not be adjudged without clear and

convincing evidence of his intention to abandon."

In McBride v. Beakley (1918, Tex.), 203 S. W. 1137,

1138, the Court said, quoting from Ruling Case Law:

''To sustain this loss of lien (that is by waiver)

it must be placed on one or the other of two ideas

;

intentional waiver or from the loss of possession.

As to the first, authority is abundant to show that

one will not he held to waive a lien unless the

intent he expressed or very plain and clear; the

presumption is always against it." (Italics ours.)

Exactly the same language appears in

Lamhert v. Micklass (1898 W. Va.), 31 S. E.

951 at page 952

;

and in

Rosenhaum v. Hayes (1901 N. D.), 86 N. W.

973, at page 980.

In Slide v. Spur Gold Mines S Seymour (1894),

153 U. S. 509, 517, the Court, in speaking of the

waiver of a vendor's lien, said:

"An intent to abandon it is not to be presumed,

and while, of course, like any other right, it may
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be abandoned or waived, the evidence of an in-

tent to so abandon or waive should be clear and
satisfactory."

In Adams v. Harvey (1924, Wash.), 225 Pac. 407, it

was claimed that plaintiff had contracted not to exer-

cise a lien. At page 410, the Court said

:

^'In several cases we have held that there was a

waiver of the right of lien, but in each instance

the waiver w^as specific and no reasonable doubt

could exist as to w^hat was meant. * * * We
would not he jiistified. in Jiolding that a claim of

lien has been waived unless lue can say that it was

clearly understood hettveen the parties that such

should he the case/'

To the same effect see Treeman v. Frey (1929, Okla.),

282 Pac. 452.

The cases previously cited with reference to the

waiver of mechanics' liens are equally applicable here.

Likewise, the cases last cited apply with like effect to

the question of whether appellant waived its lien at the

inception of the foreign draft collection business in

August, 1930, and, it is submitted, preclude the inter-

pretation placed by appellee upon Mr. Hall's instruc-

tions.

In light of these cases, how can it be successfully

maintained that appellant waived its lien in the tele-

gram of January 16, 1931, especially in view of the

fact that there is no statement in said telegram incon-

sistent with the retention of such lien? The Court's

attention is paii:icularly invited to the italicized por-

tion of the quotation from Adams v. Harvey, the case

last quoted. When the conclusion that appellant waived
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its lien can be reached by counsel for appellee only

through the subtle mental processes to which counsel

have resorted, it is certainly improper to state that "it

was clearly understood between the parties" that the

lien was to be waived.

It was further contended by appellee at the trial

that if appellant's theory that all drafts were subject

to a contractual lien under the terms of the acceptance

agreements is correct, appellant, in reserving its

banl^er's lien in the telegram of January 16, 1931,

reserved something it did not possess, and consequently

waived its right to a contractual lien through failure

to assert the same. The arguments heretofore ad-

vanced and the cases cited are equally applicable to

this contention. The banker's lien would be no greater

in extent than the contractual lien ; consequently there

was no inconsistency in the reserA^ation of a banker's

lien if, as a matter of fact, the lien right w^as contrac-

tual. And again, it is submitted that under the author-

ities hereinbefore cited, waiver of lien, created by

contract or by operation of law, does not result from

a mere failure to assert it. Furthermore, the evident

intention of the framers of the telegram in question

w^as to reserve security, w^hether this be technically

called banker's lien or contractual lien. The use of

the technical words ''banker's lien" must give way to

the evident intention. The following quotation from

In re City and County of San Francisco (1923), 191

Cal. 172, 177, 215 Pac. 549, is here pertinent

:

''The object to be obtained is, of course, the

principal factor of consideration in the construc-

tion of contracts."
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See also Van Slyke v. Arrowhead, etc. (1909), 155

Cal. 675, 102 Pac. 816.

(2) There Was no Consideration for the Alleged Waiver of Lien.

It will be assumed for the purposes of this part of

the argument that appellee and the Court below are

correct in their construction of the telegram of Janu-

ary 16, 1931. But even adopting their interpretation

the telegram would amomit merely to an executory

promise to waive the lien as to all proceeds of drafts

which were not included in the sum w^hich on that date

was actually transferred to the account of the re-

ceiver. The question which naturally follovv s is : Where

is the consideration for such promise of waiver?

An essential element of an effective waiver of lien,

or a waiver of any rights, is the supi)ort thereof by a

sufficient consideration.

In Clark v. Costello (1894), 29 N. Y. Supp. 937, the

Court said, at page 940

:

"The referee finds that the defendant promised

the plaintiff to ship the machine from Amsterdam
to the plaintiff at Ehnira. Assmning this to be

sustained by the evidence, it would not necessarily

follow that there was a waiver of the lien. It has

been held that an agreement to give up a lien, in

order to be obligatory, must be based on a legal

consideration.
'

'

In Ahhott V. Nash (1886, Minn.), 29 N. W. 65, the

following language appears at page 67

:

''The writing which is claimed to waive or re-

lease plaintiff's lien right, does not appear to be

supported by any consideration and is therefore

ineffectual.
'

'
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In Smith v. Minneapolis Thresliiny Machine Co.

(1923, Okla.), 214 Pac. 178, the Oklahoma Court

stated, at page 180:

''A waiver, to be operative, must be supported
by an agreement founded upon a valuable con-

sideration.
'

'

In Bronson v. Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance

Co. (1921, Ind.), 129 K E. 636, 640, it was held that:

'* There is no claim of a waiver before April 4,

1916, and thereafter there could have been in this

case no waiver by agTeement, for at the time of the

act of appellee in sending the notice, the insured

was not living, and there could have been no

agreement with him; further there was no con-

sideration for a waiver by agreement. It must
appear that it was the intention of the parties so

to waive, and that such waiver by agreement was

supported by sufficient consideration."

To the same effect see

:

Reynolds v. Detroit Fidelity & Surety Co.

(1927), 19 Fed. (2) 110;

Davis V. Standard Accident Ins. Co. (1929,

Ariz.), 278 Pac. 384;

Johst V. Hatten Bros. (1909, Neb.), 121 N. W.

957;

Western National Bank of Hereford v. Walker

(1918, Tex.), 206 S. W. 544;

Propst V. Haulley Co. (1919, Ore.), 185 Pac.

766;

Crocker v. Page (1924), 206 N. Y. Supp. 481.

Any claim that the consideration for this supposed

promise may be found in the promise of the other
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banks to turn over their Richfield accounts and the

subsequent actual transfer thereof, is unsound. The

record is barren of any agreement made by appellant

with any other banks to transfer their Richfield ac-

counts. All negotiations upon which any legal results

may be predicated were conducted directly with the

receiver through the medimn of the telegrams herein-

before mentioned. This is clearly established by refer-

ence to these telegrams. At the expense of repetition,

the pertinent part of appellee's telegram to appellant

is quoted again

:

"As receiver I am ordered by Federal Court to

take over all assets including cash in bank stop

While you have undoubted right of offset, such

right if exercised will seriously cripple receiver's

operations Local banks have indicated they will

acquiesce in this program. '

'

This is a request directly from the receiver. It con-

tains nothing to the effect that the other banks would

promise to transfer their accounts if appellant would

agree to do likewise.

The recital in the telegram of the acquiescence of

the other banks is merely a statement of a fact placed

therein for whatever persuasive effect it might have

upon appellant. It does not amomit to an offer on the

part of the other banks to transfer their accounts if

appellant would transfer its account.

Appellant's reply telegram was sent directly to the

receiver, and its terms were not addressed expressly

or impliedly to any one else. The pertinent part of

this telegram is as follows:
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'^ Replying telegram we are willing to restore

into your name as receiver Richfield balance in

checking account provided we are notified by you
that all company banks have taken similar action

The last part of this telegram, commencing with the

word ** provided", does not purport to be a promise or

an offer to the other banks or an acceptance of any

offer from them. It is merely a statement of a condi-

tion precedent to action on the part of appellant, ad-

dressed to appellee as receiver.

Giving appellant's telegram the construction (that

is, as a promise to waive the lien.) contended for by

appellee, it still would amount only to an offer to

appellee. It is elementary that an offer made to a

particular person may be accepted by hmi alone, and

becomes a contract only if accepted and supported by

legal consideration.

Boston Ice Co. v. Potter (1877), 123 Mass. 28;

National Bmih v. Hall (1824), 101 U. S. 43;

Boyd V. Calkins (1928, Kans.), 268 Pac. 749;

Strauss & Co. Inc. v. Berman (1929, Penn.),

147 Atl. 85.

Consequently there is no foundation for appellee's

theory that appellant was contractually obligated to

the other bank creditors ; nor is there any support for

the further contention that the continuation by ap-

pellee of his duties as receiver was a sufficient con-

sideration to support the alleged promise of waiver

on the part of appellant. At the most, such continua-

tion in office was simply the motive or inducement
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which prompted appellant to promise waiver of its

lien, again assuming that there was such a promise.

In other words, there is nothing in this case which

shows that appellant was bargaining for the continua-

tion by appellee of his duties as receiver.

In Wmia7ns v. Hasshagan (1913), 166 Cal. 386, 137

Pac. 9, the following pertinent language appears, at

page 390:

''Mere motive or inducement or hope of profit

is not consideration. 'If a motive alone were

equivalent to a consideration, every promise made
free from fraud, duress and the like, would neces-

sarily be enforceable without any consideration.'

(Page on Contracts, sec. 275, See, also 9 Cyc.

320.)"

(3) Appellant is not Entitled to Rely Upon the Doctrine of Estoppel.

Because of the absence of consideration for the

alleged waiver of its banker's lien on the part of

appellant, appellee must necessarily fall back on the

doctrine of estoppel. But before appellee may prop-

erly take advantage of an estoppel he must show that

he himself relied upon the alleged misrepresentations

to his detriment. There is no evidence in this case of

any such reliance, but instead appellee seeks to estab-

lish that others, not parties to this proceeding, are the

ones who relied thereon to their detriment, to-wit, the

other bank creditors of Richfield Oil Company. This

in turn is based upon the transfer to the Receiver of

their Richfield balances by these banks, supposedly in

reliance upon the relinquishment by appellant of its

balances and draft proceeds. If these banks have any

rights at all in the premises, appellant again submits



159

that such rights were satisfied by the relinquishment

of Richfield 's cash balance with appellant in January,

1931. There is no evidence in the record of this case

that the other bank creditors had any knowledge of

the draft collections with appellant. If any bargain

at all for relinquishment was made between appellant

and the other banks it did not extend beyond the cash

balances.

A. The Other Bank Creditors are not Parties.

However, appellee has no standing to assert in this

proceeding the estoppel rights of such bank creditors

for they are not parties to this action.

In Williams v. Purcell (1914, Okla.), 145 Pac. 1151,

the defendant attempted to invoke an estoppel against

the plaintiff on the ground that one not a party to the

action had relied to his detriment upon a letter written

by plaintiff to defendant. At page 1156, the Court

disposed of this mistaken contention in the following

language, quoted from 16 Cyc. Ill:

'' 'Estoppels operate only between parties and
privies, and the party who pleads an estoppel must
be one who has in good faith been misled to his

injury.'
"

In Farmers' State Bank of Gladstone v. Anton

(1924, N. D.), 199 N. W. 582, it was said in the head-

note :

"Where the representations which it is con-

tended give rise to an estoppel were not made to

or intended for the benefit of the pai-ty who seeks

to predicate an estoppel thereon, or where the

representations are not general or intended to
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influence third persons, the public at large or

persons occupying a relation to the subject matter

of the representations similar to that of him to

whom they were made, no estoppel arises of which

a third person can take advantage."

To the same effect are the cases of

:

Christian v. Fancher (1921, Ark.), 235 S. W.
397;

BricUey v. Edivards (1892, Ind.), 30 N. E. 708;

Verrell v. First Natl. Bank of Roseherg (1916,

Ore.), 157 Pac. 813.

In Mercantile Trust Co. v. Sunset etc. Co. (1917),

176 Cal. 461, 168 Pac. 1037, the Court said, at page

472:

'*It is of the essence of an estoppel in pais that

the party asserting such estoppel should not only

have been ignorant of the true state of facts but

that he should have relied upon the representa-

tion or admission of the adverse party."

B. The Receiver Does not Represent the Other Bank Creditors. He Can-

not Assert Their Rights Against Appellant.

Appellee attempted to circumvent the rule an-

nounced in the foregoing authorities by the argmnent

that appellee as receiver represented all the creditors

and therefore was entitled to assert their rights in this

proceeding. This is another proposition which has no

merit in law. Appellee may cite cases holding that

the receiver represents the interests of the creditors to

the extent that he is entitled to go out and gather in

all the assets of the receivership estate for their benefit.

But there are no cases which hold that the receiver is

entitled to assert these rights which are private and
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peculiar to any one creditor or group of creditors. In

fact, the cases are to the contrary.

In United States Mortgage <£• 2'rust Co. v. Missouri

K. <& T. Ry. Co. (1921), 269 Fed. 497, plaintiff, as

trustee imder a trust deed executed by a railroad cor-

poration, brought suit against various corporations

which were part of the complicated financial structure

of the railway. All of these corporations were in

receivership, but the assets held by the receivers of

only two of the corporations were directly involved.

On the application for leave to sue the other corpora-

tions and the receivers thereof the trial Court first

denied leave to sue the receivers, and then, on the

ground that said receivers were indispensable pai-ties,

refused to allow a joinder of the corporations whose

assets said receiver held. The Circuit Court of Appeals

in reversing this Order as to the corporations them-

selves, said at page 501

:

''The receiver of the Oklahoma and Kansas
corporations has no title or right of property of

any of the parties vested in him. He is an in-

different person appointed as custodian to hold

the property of said corpoi'ations subject to the

further order of the Court. Where an attempt

is made to take property out of his possession,

then he is a proper party to litigation, and where

relief is sought against his acts as such receiver,

he is the proper party litigant; but where the

litigation affects the rights of parties in prop-

erty not in his hands or asserts rights in such

property without disturbing his possession

thereof, he is not a p]'0])er ])arty, nmch less an

indispensable party to such litigation * * * A
receiver does not represent the justiciable rights
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of the parties to the litigation of ivhich he is re-

ceiver, hut only the protectio)i of the property in

his hands as such or the collection of that to the

possession of ivhich as receiver he is entitled."

(Italics ours.)

In 53 Corpus Juris, p. 135, the rule is stated as

follows

:

''While for some purposes a receiver is treated

as a representative of the person whose property

he is appointed to administer or of other in-

terested parties, strictly speaking' he is not, in the

execution of his trust and the management and

disposition of the property committed to his pos-

session, the representative or agent of any such

person or party * * * A receiver is, rather,

for the time being, a ministerial officer, and rep-

resentative of the Court having charge of the

receivership * * *"

To the same effect see:

Binfjamon v. Commonwealth Trust Co. (1924),

1 Fed. (2) 505;

Matarrazzo v. Hustis (1919), 256 Fed. 882;

Goodman Mfg. Co. v. Pittsburgh-Buffalo Co.

(1915), 222 Fed. 144;

Kansas City Terminal By. Co. v. Central Union

Trust Co. (1923), 294 Fed. 32.

The case of Equitable Trust Co. v. Great Shoshone

etc. Water Power Co. (1917), 245 Fed. (9th Circuit)

697, is illustrative of api)ellant's contention on this

phase of the case. There a mortgage of property be-

longing to a corporation in receivership brought an

action to foreclose, joining the receiver. Several

judgment creditors of the corporation, claiming liens,
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were allowed to intervene. This Court held that such

intervention was proper. 1'he unplication in the de-

cision and opinion is strong that the receiver was not

a representative of the creditors as to their private

rights; if he had been intervention would not have

been necessary.

It is true that there is a line of authority composed

of a few cases in which the receiver has been loosely

said to represent the creditors. Among such decisions

are:

Hamor v. Taylor-Bice Etujineerinfj Co. (1897),

84 Fed. 392; and

Ki)i(/ r. Fomeroii (1903), 121 Fed. 287.

In the latter case the receiver sued stockholders of

the corporation in receivership on their stockholders'

liability. The C-ourt stated that the receiver was the

representative of the creditors and held that these lia-

bilities were assets of the estate just as much as they

were assets of the creditors, and being assets of the

estate, the receiver therefore had a right to collect th(>

same for the benefit of all creditors; it was in. this con-

nection only that the receiver was referred to as repre-

senting the creditors. A different result follows when

the question is as to whether the receiver may enfoi'ce

rights of the creditors growing entirely out of trans-

actions between them, or some of them, and third

persons.

The Court, in La Follett v. Al-iii (1871), 36 Ind. 1, H,

clearly shows the manner in which this loose reference

to the representative character of the receiver is often

used. Quoting from the case of McHavfi v. Donnelly,

27 Barb. (N. Y.) 100, the Court said:
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"It is sometimes said, a little loosely, that a

receiver represents all the parties. This is well

explained in the case of McHarg v. DouneUy., 27

Barb. 100, where Hogeboom, J. in delivering the

opinion of the Court, said: 'I am aware that it

has been held that for certain purposes—for

example, setting aside a fraudulent assignment

—

the receiver represents the creditors of the judg-

ment debtor. But he is so characterized simply

in contradistinction to his being representative of

the judgment debtor. He is said to represent the

creditors, because he represents the estate of the

judgment debtor, in which the creditors are inter-

ested as well as the debtor himself.'
"

C. The Receiver Cannot Enforce Personal Rights of Creditors Arising

Subsequent to His Appointment.

In the case at bar, appellee seeks to enforce the per-

sonal rights of creditors of Richfield Oil Company

supposed to have arisen through the breach of an

alleged contract made and entered into subsequent

to the appointment of the receiver, or through a pur-

})orted estop]>el as of that time. The authorities are

numerous that the representative character of a re-

ceiver applies only to such rights as exist at the time

of his appointment. The following quotation from

Equitahle Trust Co. r. Great ShosJionc etc. Water

Power Co. (supra), at page 703, is sufficient to show

this

:

"We quite agree with the learned counsel for

the appellants that, in the absence of specific state

statute or decisions of the state courts conferring

special rights and powers, and w^here he is not

appointed for the purpose of impounding it for

a specific purpose, the appointment of a receiver

of property by a federal court is for the protec-
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tion and preservation of all rights and interests

therein existing at the time of such appointment/'

(Italics ours.)

The rights here involved have nothing tu du with the

conservation of the assets of the estate. They are

rights personal to a class of creditors, tlie bank credi-

tors, separate and distinct from the receivership pro-

ceedings. Therefore, the cases herein cited to the effect

that the receiver is not a representative of the creditors

are controlling. And since these creditors are not par-

ties to this action, appellee is not entitled to enforce

any rights which they may have by virtue of a sup-

posed estoppel m their favor against appellant.

(4) The Trial Court Erred in Admitting Testimony Regarding the

Meetings of the Richfield Bank Creditors and the Communications

Between These Creditors and the Receiver.

Mr. McDuffie and Mr. Xolan were allowed to testify,

over the objection of appellant, as to what was said at

two meetings of the bank creditors of Richfield Oil

Company. (R. 205, 206, 207, 208, 240, 241, 242.) No
representative of appellant bank was present at either

of these meetings. The purpose of the testmiony was

obviously to show that an agreement was entered intd

between the bankers present that they would waive

the liens of their banks upon the accounts of Richfield.

Smce appellant was not represented at these meetmgs.

there can be no question but that the evidence as to

what occurred was hearsay, incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial and not binding upon appellant. (As-

sigmnent of Errors YIII (a), R. 481, 482.) Nor was

the objection to this testimony cured by the evidence

of Mr. Xolan that he conununicated the suhstance of
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what occurred at the meeting by telephone to Mr.

Eisenbach of appellant bank. (R. 242, 243.) This was

an unsolicited communication to appellant and there

is no evidence whatsoever that appellant acquiesced in

that w^hich Mr. Nolan communicated to it. In fact,

the evidence is that Mr. Eisenbach said nothing as to

what appellant's course of action would be. (R. 243.)

Nor can any such acquiescence be obtained from the

telegram of January 16, 1931, to the receiver. This

telegram w^as only a communication between the re-

ceiver and appellant bank, in response to one sent by

the receiver to appellant. It cannot possibly be con-

strued as an agreement with the various bankers.

Appellant submits that if there was any agreement,

it was solely between appellant and the receiver. Con-

sequently, and for the other foregoing reasons, the evi-

dence as to what was said at the meetings between the

bankers w^as inadmissible.

The same reasoning applies to the admissibility ol'

the telegraphic and letter communications between the

other bankers and appellee. (R. 211, 217.) Objection

was made by appellant to their introduction in evi-

dence. It is now submitted that the Court below erred

in overruling all such objections. (Assigmnent of

Errors VIII (b), R. 482.)

CONCLUDING SUMMARY,

(a) Of the Facts.

The drafts, the proceeds of wliich are the subject of

this litigation, were either deposited under the accep-

tance agreement or they were not. If under the agree-
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ment, its language to the elfeet that they are security

not alone for the acceptances issued thereunder, but

likewise for "any other liabilities from us (Richfield)

to you (bank), whether then existing- or thereafter

contracted", is controlling. The evidence is over-

whelming that the drafts were deposited under the

agreement. Mr. Hall's negotiations were for a line of

credit upon an acceptance basis, and Mr. Lipman told

him that this line would be advanced upon the security

of foreign drafts to be deposited by Richfield. The

terms of the acceptance credit were reduced to writing

in the acceptance agreement, executed by Richfield on

October 4, 1930, and delivered to appellant October 6,

1930. Each and every transaction with respect to the

deposit of drafts with appellant followed the estab-

lishment of this line of credit and the execution of the

agreement. The first items involved were the four

Birla Bros, drafts and the first letter subsequent to

the execution of the agreement was the Lyons letter

(R. 316) emanating from Richfield and directing the

issuance of acceptances for $115,000.00 (tfjaivst the

Birla Bros, shipment. Contemporaneously, the letter

of transmittal and the four Birla Bros, drafts were

delivered to appellant. Thereafter the other drafts

were deposited and the procedure with respect to each

and every one of them was alike,—in the forwarding

by Richfield, the letters of transmittal, the receipt of

the drafts and the handling thereof by appellant.

Nothing intervened to change or alter the instructions

or the character of the obligations under the agree-

ment. To meet this situation, appellee was compelled

to resort to a fiction that his evidence does not sustain,

viz., that a sx^ecified few of the drafts were to be
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deposited as security for specific acceptances and that

the remaining drafts were forwarded solely for col-

lection. This is unwarranted and, at best, rests upon

a misconception as to the manner in which the bank

was to issue its acceptance, that is, based principally

upon or measured by certain satisfactory drafts for-

warded to and deposited with the bank, all of which,

however, w^ere security for the advances. The most

casual comparison of the records of Richfield which

were composed only of the uncommunicated "little

pencil memorandmns ", with the records of appellant,

consisting of the carbon copies of the letters of trans-

mittal, marked "Security for acceptances, proceeds to

Clemo" (R. 377 et seq.) and the ledger page (R. 394

et seq.) substantiates appellant's position that the

transaction was a single one and that all drafts were

deposited as security for acceptances.

Important likewise is the fact that a continuous or

a revolving credit was intended. Mr. Hall, himself,

characterized it as a "credit line." Mr. Hellman and

Mr. Lipman referred to it as a "loan line" or a

"credit line." All the advances were not made under

it at one time, but only as the acceptances were issued.

It was a credit admittedly, not a mere loan, and under

the operation of the credit, as acceptances were paid

further advances within the loan limit could be made.

Appellant's records again substantiate this, as does

the testimony with respect to the establishment of

the credit and the agreement that the same was can-

cellable. The fact that in the few days prior to the

receivership, when for the first time acceptances had

been paid and additional credit made available, Rich-



109

field did not use the credit, is no argument that the

credit did not exist, since during a period of over a

month in October and November, 1930, when ad-

mittedly the sum of $20,000.00 under the credit had

not been used by Richfield, no request for acceptances

was made.

But if despite all this, it is believed that the drafts

here in question were not deposited under the ac-

ceptance agreement, none the less, they are all subject

to appellant's banker's lien or right of setoff. On

appellee's own theory they certainly were not de-

posited as security for any specific indebtedness and

consequently were not subject to the rule of Berry v.

Bank of Bakersfield (supra). Appellee claims an

agreement waiving this lien based entirely upon the

alleged statements of Hall that the "transaction is

to be kept separate and apart." Accepting this at its

face value, it does not constitute a waiver of lien,

particularly in view of the knowledge of all the par-

ties, including Mr. Hall, of the existence of the lien

right at the time the so-called agreement was made.

In asking that the transaction be kept separate, if

indeed he did so ask, Mr. Hall desired only that it

not interfere with the loan line of Richfield (other-

wise the treasury officials of the company would not

approve it) ; he undoubtedly likewise desired that, for

accounting purposes, the proceeds should go through

his department so that he could more readily ascer-

tain what his commissions would be. But here again

the probabilities are all against the agreement for

which Hall contends. The parties did not discuss

and were not bothered about any banker's lien. Rich-
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field had in the previous July borrowed an additional

$125,000.00 and its credit was still deemed good. The

parties were simply concerned with the line of credit,

and the new one about to be established.

Apparently realizing the logic of appellant's posi-

tion that either the drafts were under the acceptance

agreement and subject to its terms, or not under the

acceptance agreement but subject to banker's lien

and right of setoff, appellee has resorted to an alleged

waiver of all liens by an exchange of telegrams be-

tween appellee and appellant. Appellant stands flatly

and positively upon the language of the telegraphic

exchanges. It believes that the framers of the tele-

grams meant what they said—that the request was to

transfer the cash balances, and that this request was

complied with. Appellant believes that nothing tran-

spired at the meeting with the bankers, assmning the

competency of the evidence thereof, which in any way

militates against this fact. Appellant believes that

the telegrams should be taken by their four corners

and the intention of the parties determined therefrom.

The unnatural, strained and artificial interpretation

sought by appellee to be placed upon his telegram and

appellant's answer defeats itself by its A^ery unnatu-

ralness and its illogical artificiality.

(b) Of the Law.

Each of the propositions of fact urged by appellant

finds full support in the authorities. The burden of

proof with respect to the agreement is not, as appellee

contends, upon appellant, but upon appellee. The

answer is an affirmative traverse, and the burden has
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not shifted. There is no doubt any^\'here in the au-

thorities but that if the acceptance agreement con-

trols, so does its provision that the security for the

acceptances is security likewise for the general in-

debtedness of Richfield to appellant. Under the parol

evidence rule, no oral understanding to keep any of

the drafts separate and apart is admissible to contra-

dict the provisions of the agreement.

And if the di'afts in litigation were not under the

acceptance contract the authorities unanimously hold

that any agreement to waive a banker's lien nmst be

positive and definite, if it is to be effective. Appel-

lant respectfully submits that the cases of special

deposit or deposits in trust cited by the trial Court

have no bearing here. If it was a trust, what was it

for? If it was a specific deposit, what was it for?

The mere deposit for collection does not create a

special deposit or a trust. Nmnerous cases have here-

inbefore been cited to the effect that drafts and other

documents deposited for collection are subject to

banker's lien and setoif. Furthermore, if there is

any uncertainty in the language used by Mr. Hall,

it is the uncertainty of Mr. Hall and Richfield, and

upon them must fall the burden of the loss.

The facts in the fairly recent case of Updike v.

Oakland Motor Car Co. (supra) are far stronger in

support of a waiver of right of offset than in the

case at bar, but notwithstanding, the Court held

against the waiver of setoff because it was not defi-

nitely expressed, stating:

"An agreement must be clear and specific to

deprive a party of the ordinary right of setoff."
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The case of American Surety Company v. Bank of

Italy (supra) is also controlling in its holding that

before the ordinary relations of a bank and its de-

positor will be deemed changed, the agreement to that

effect must be specific and unambiguous.

Similarly, too, the argument that subsequent to the

appointment of the receiver there was a waiver of

appellant's rights, falls not alone upon the facts but

upon the law itself. The presumption is as strong

against a subsequent waiver as against a prior waiver

of lien. Language must of course be given its normal

interpretation, and so say the cases. The relinquish-

ment of x)art of the proceeds has no legal effect what-

soever, nor has the filing of the claims as unsecured

in the receivership proceedings. Furthermore, a

waiver must amount to a contract supported by con-

sideration, and none has here been shown. Nor is

appellant estopped as against the receiver in this

action, assuming that the telegrams have the full

effect which counsel seek to give them. The receiver

does not represent Richfield 's creditors with respect

to their alleged rights originating sithsequent to the

receivership, or as to their rights as against each

other.

From the time of the appointment of the receiver,

the appellant bank sought to act in such a way as to

be fair, both to the receiver and to its own depositors

and stockholders. Thus it cooperated with the re-

ceiver to the extent of returning to him over $40,-

000.00 in bank balances and approximately $35,000.00

of draft proceeds. If it be the law that appellant

must suffer because it cooperated to the extent of
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more than $75,000.00, then the law attaches a heavy

penalty to cooperation. It is submitted that such is

not the law.

Whether the drafts be considered as deposited

under the agreement and subject to its express terms,

or whether they be considered as deposited for collec-

tion only and subject to appellant's right of banker's

lien and setoff, the answer is the same,—appellant

may retain the proceeds of the drafts which are the

subject of this litigation and apply them against the

past due general indebtedness of Richfield Oil Com-

pany of California to it. This answer compels the

reversal of the judgment of the trial Court.

Dated, San Francisco,

March 5, 1934.

Respectfully submitted,

Laavreistce C. Baker,

Lloyd W. Dtnkelspiel,

Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.

(a corporation),

Appellant,

vs.

William C. McDuffie^, as Ancillary Receiver

of Richfield Oil Company of California,

Ap2:)ellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEE.

This action was originally instituted by plaintiff

(now appellee) for the purpose of preventing the

appellant bank from exercisinf^- its alleged banker's

lien and right of off-set upon certain foreign drafts

claimed by appellee to have been previously de-

posited with appellant solely for collection, and to

enjoin appellant from exercising its alleged right of

off-set when the proceeds of said drafts came into

its possession.

Subsequent to the commencement of the action,

appellant collected $144,758.79 representing the net

(Note) : To subserve the convenience of the court we have attached
hereto in an appendix Plaintiff's Exhibit 117 consisting of Schedules A to
L inclusive. These schedules will assist the court in its consideration of

the evidence. They were explained in detail by the witness Pope. (R.
326-35.)



proceeds of all of said drafts, which sum it appro-

priated to its own use under its alleged ri^ht of off-set,

in partial pa^Tuent of certain indebtedness then due to

it from Richtield Oil Comi}any.

THE PENDING CONTROVERSY, WHEN DETERMINED,
WAS AN ACTION AT LAW AND NOT A SUIT IN
EQUITY.

At the time this action vras instituted, only the

smallest of the drafts herein involved had been col-

lected in full and a portion only of another small

draft not involved in this appeal. The remaining

drafts were in process of collection. In order to

obtain appropriate relief mider the circumstances

then existin.c, it was essential that the controversy

should take the fonn of a suit in equity. Prior to

its trial, however, all of the drafts in controversy

had been collected by appellant. At the conclusion

of the trial, appellee moved the court for a judgment

in its favor for the sum of $144,758.79, being the

proceeds of said drafts, together with legal interest

thereon. (R. 466.) It was then stipulated by the

parties

'Hhat the amended bill of complaint be consid-

ered amended so as to pray for a monej^ .judg-

ment." (R. 466.)

The decree entered by the lower court directed appel-

lant to pay to appellee $163,303.85, being the principal

of the proceeds of the drafts to which appellee claimed

it was entitled with legal interest added thereon, to-

gether with its costs. (R. 198-9.)



It must be apparent to the court that, regardless

of its nature when commenced, before trial the action

assumed the attributes and characteristics of an ac-

tion at law. At the time of trial, appellee neither

sought nor was entitled to equitable relief. His remedy

at law was adequate, and the only relief to which he

was entitled was a money judgment.

That counsel for appellant were then of the opin-

ion that the action was one at law is shown by the

fact that at the commencement of the trial,

''counsel for both parties stipulated that trial

by juiy be waived." (R. 200.)

Under these circumstances, upon this appeal the ac-

tion must be deemed to be an action at law^ and con-

trolled by the rule stated by Judge Sawi:e]le in

Clements v. Coppin, 61 Fed. (2d) 552, as follows:

**It is well settled that the finding of the trial

judge based on conflicting testimony taken in

open court, will not be disturbed on appeal."

(Citing cases including TJ. S. v. United Shoe

Mach. Co., 247 U. S. 32; 62 L. Ed. 968.)

In Babbitt Bros. Trading Co. v. New Home Sewing

Mach. Co., 62 Fed. (2d) 530, (C. C. A. 9) the court

at page 533, said:

''There is a sharp conflict in the evidence

and of course it is not incumbent upon this court

to reconcile such conflict or to weigh the evi-

dence; our sole duty is to determine whether

there is any substantial evidence tending to sup-

port the findings of the court below. We are

prepared to say, however, that the findings of

the court are fully sustained by the evidence."



See also:

Independence Indemnity Co. r. Sanderson, 57

Fed. (2d) 125, (C. C. A. 9.)

Even though this court should consider this action

as one in equity rather than one at law, nevertheless

inasmuch as all of the witnesses testified in open

court before the trial judge, the findings of the lower

court are presumptively correct and will not be dis-

turbed unless clearly wrong.

In McCulloiujh v. Peun Mutual Life Ins, Co., 62 F.

(2d) 831, which was a suit in equity, this court, speak-

ing through Judge Wilbur, said:

''The trial court after hearing the witnesses

who testified in open court, and upon due con-

sideration of several written statements made
by appellant in connection with * * * found the

fact to be * * *. These findings are supported

by the admission of appellant and by other sub-

stantial evidence adduced by witnesses appearing

before the court, and under well settled rules

these findings cannot be disturbed."

In CoUins v. Finley, 65 Fed. (2d) 625, this court,

through Judge Sawtelle, said:

"As was said by Judge Rudkin in the case

of Easton v. Brant, 19 F. (2d) 857, 859, 'The

appellant is confronted by two well established

principles of law from which there is little or

no dissent; first, the findings of the chancellor,

based on testimony taken in open court, are pre-

sumptively correct and will not be disturbed

on appeal save for obvious error of law or seri-

ous mistake of fact. * * *' (Citing cases.) * * *



This consideration alone requires an affirmance

of the trial court's findings on the facts."

In the case of V. S. r. McGowan, 62 F. (2d) 955,

this court, through Judge Wilbur, stated:

''It is true that in an equity case the evidence

is reviewed by this court, but it is a fimdamental

rule that where the witnesses testify in person

before the trial judge he is in a better position

to pass upon the credibility of a witness than this

court, and we will follow the decision of the

trial judge unless it is clearly apparent that his

decision is erroneous." (Citing eases.)

In Butte & Superior Co. v. Clark-Montana Co.,

249 U. S. 12; 63 L. Ed. 447, Mr. Justice McKenna

states the rule as follows:

"The Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed the

findings, saying, by Circuit Judge Gilbert: 'The

appellant does not assert that the findings of

fact are unsupported by competent evidence, but

contends that they are contrary to the weight

of the evidence. The trial court made its findings

after an evidently careful and painstaking in-

vestigation of the testimony and the exhibits, and

after a personal inspection of the mining prop-

erties. We have examined the record sufficiently

to see that the findings are all supported by the

credible testimony of reputable witnesses. Upon
settled principles w^hich this court has always

recognized, findings so made upon conflicting tes-

timony are conclusive upon this appeal.' And
we said in Lawson v. United States Mining Co.,

supra, of the conclusion of the Circuit Court

of Appeals in such case—and the concession is

as great as appellant is entitled to
—'That if the



testimony does not show that it (the conckision

of the court) is correct, it fails to show that it is

wrong, and under those circmnstances we are

not justified in disturbing" that conchision. It is

our duty to accept a finding" of fact, imless clearly

and manifestly Avrong.' The findings accepted,

the conclusion of law must be pronoimced to be

of necessary sequence."

See also:

Suburban Improveme)it Co. r. Scott Lumber

Co., 67 F. (2d) 335;

Benedict Coal Corp. v. Fidelity etc. Ins. Co.,

64 F. (2d) 347;

Exchange Nat. Bank etc. v. Meikle, 61 F. (2d)

176;

New York Insurance Co. v. Simons, 60 F. (2d)

30;

Karn v. Andresen, 60 F. (2d) 427;

Mayfield v. Pan American Life Ins. Co., 49

F. (2d) 906;

Kennedy v. White Bear Lake, 39 F. (2d) 608;

Shell Eastern Petroleum Products v. White,

68 F. (2d) 379.

FOREWORD.

In its findings of fact, after a full consideration

of all the evidence introduced by the parties hereto,

the court, among other things, found:

1. That all of the drafts deposited by Richfield

Company with appellant were deposited for collec-



tion. (R. 184.) The integrity of this finding is con-

ceded by appellant.

2. That only the so-called short-term drafts of

an aggregate amount slightly in excess of the amount

of the acceptances issued by appellant bank and hav-

ing a maturity earlier than the maturity of said ac-

ceptances, the proceeds of which could be and actually

were received by appellant bank at least one day

before the maturity date of the acceptances secured

thereby, were deposited as security under the accep-

tance agreements. (R. 189-90.)

3. That all foreign drafts were deposited upon the

agreement that they and their proceeds should be en-

tirely separate and apart from all other financial obli-

gations and transactions theretofore or thereafter to

be conducted in the ordinary course of business be-

tween said parties. (R. 190.)

4. That none of the drafts or their proceeds which

are the subject of this appeal was deposited by the

Richfield Company with appellant bank as security

under said acceptance agreements (R. 193), but all

of said drafts were deposited under and in reliance

upon said agreement that they and their proceeds

should be entirely separate and apart from all other

financial obligations and transactions theretofore or

thereafter to be conducted in the ordinary course of

business between said parties. (R. 184-5.)

5. That at or about the time of the appointment

of the receiver it was agreed between said receiver

and the creditor banks, including appellant, that each

of said banks would forthwith transfer the deposit



.8

account so held by it in the name of Richfield Com-

pany to that of said receiver, and would carry on

and conduct said account in the ordinar}^ course of

business and would not exercise any claim of banker's

lien upon said account, including collections, except

such collections as were security for the acceptances

theretofore issued by appellant, and that such agree-

ment was made in order to enable said receiver to

carry on and transact the affairs of said Richfield

Oil Company for the benefit of the creditors until

the termination of said receivership. (R. 190,191.)

If this court concludes, as we submit it must, that

there is evidence in the record sufficient to sustain

the finding of the loAver court that the drafts here

involved were not deposited as security under the

acceptance agreements, then it only becomes neces-

sary for the appellee to establish to the satisfaction

of this court that there is sufficient evidence in the

record to sustain either the agreement mentioned in

subdivision 3 hereof or the agreement referred to in

subdivision 5 hereof, each of which was found by

the court to have been made. Furthermore, if this

court concludes that there is sufficient evidence to

establish either one of these two agreements it tvill

he unnecessary for it to pass upon the sufficiency of

the evidence to sustain the other agreement.

STATEMENT OF FACTS.

While, as we have already pointed out, unless the

findings of the lower court are entirely lacking in sub-



stantial evidentiary support, the .iudgment entered

herein must be affirmed,—in Adew of the attack made

by appellant upon the lower court's decision, and hav-

ing in mind the claim asserted b}^ appellant (which,

however, we dispute), that this is a suit in equity and

therefore this coui't is not bound by the findings of the

lower court, but on the contrary is entitled to weigh

the evidence and in effect try the case de novo,—we

believe it necessary to descend into greater detail in

the narration of the facts than would otherwise be

required.

UNCONTROVERTED FACTS.

For a number of years prior to October 1, 1930, the

Richfield Oil Company was engaged in the business,

among others, of producing, refining, selling and dis-

tributing oil and its various by-products, its principal

place of business being in Los Angeles, California.

For some years prior to October, 1930, it maintained

an export and foreign department through which it

negotiated for the sale of and sold to foreign cus-

tomers its commodities and products. Subject to the

instructions and directions of the executive officers

of the Richfield Company, this export and foreign

department was in charge and under the control of

Robert L. Hall. (R. 337-8.)

In the conduct of its business, the Richfield Com-

pany maintained commercial accounts with a number

of substantial banking institutions located principally

in California, but some of which were scattered

throughout the north and east. For at least a number
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of months prior to October, 1930, the Richfield Oil

Company was indebted in a sum in excess of $10,-

000,000 to twelve of these banking institutions, no

part of which was secured : $625,000 of this unsecured

indebtedness, represented by a promissory note ma-

turing October 10, 1930, was owing to appellant bank.

(R. 218.)

A substantial portion of the foreign business en-

gaged in by the Richfield Company was done on

credit. Aside from the occasional use of letters of

credit, drafts would be drawn by the company upon

its foreign customers the terms of which would ac-

cord with the agreement upon which its commodities

Avere sold to them. Where the sale was practically

a cash transaction, a sight draft would be dra\vTi.

If the sale was made upon credit alone, a draft would

be drawTi for acceptance, payable at the end of the

credit period. Where the terms of sale involved part

cash and part credit, a sight draft would be drawn,

representing the cash payment and a term draft for

the credit period. After the goods were shipped, the

draft or drafts, accompanied by the shipping docu-

ments, would be deposited with the bank for collection

through its foreign correspondent. In the instances

where both a sight draft and a tenn draft were

drawn, the documents were ordinarily deliverable

upon payment of the sight draft and upon acceptance

of the term draft.

One of the principal foreign customers of the Rich-

field Company was Birla Bros., located at Calcutta,

India. The agreement upon which the Richfield com-

modities w^ere sold to this customer was one-half cash
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represented by a sight draft and the remaining one-

half payable in 180 days, represented by a draft

payable 180 days after its acceptance. The docu-

ments representing each shipment to Birla Bros, were

deliverable to it upon payment of the sight draft

and the acceptance of the 180-day draft. (R. 338.)

On accomit of its financial necessities, for some

considerable period prior to October, 1930, the Rich-

field Company had discounted most of its foreign

drafts with the Security-First National Bank of Los

iVngeles. About this time the Richfield Company be-

came dissatisfied with the manner in which its for-

eign collections were being handled and concluded to

transfer this portion of its business to appellant bank.

(R. 339-40.)

With this purpose in mind, during August, 1930,

Robert L. Hall, manager of the export and foreign

department of the Richfield Company, after confer-

rmg with one or more of his superiors, came to San

Francisco and engaged in a conference with W. G.

Gilstrap, assistant manager of the Foreign Depart-

ment of appellant, informing him that if agreeable

to the bank, the Richfield Company would be glad

to turn over to it pi'actically all of its foreign col-

lections. During the course of the discussion, the

use of bank acceptances was discussed. The saving

to the Richfield Company as the result of the use of

such acceptances was mentioned, and the procedure

surromiding the execution and release of acceptances

by the bank was described and given consideration.

It was finally understood that Hall should return to

Los Angeles, and if the use of acceptances was agree-



12

able to the executive officers of the company, such

plan would be thereafter pursued. Thereafter and on

October 1, 1930, Hall telephoned to Gilstrap, request-

ing Mm to send to the company by mail, forms of

acceptance agreements and acceptances, which was

done. (R. 340 et seq.)

Employed in the Foreign Department of the Rich-

field Compan}^ was one Homer E. Pope, whose duties

consisted in giving attention to the foreign collec-

tions. All shipping documents, letters of transmittal

and drafts were submitted to him for examination

and passed through his hands. A complete and de-

tailed record of all collections and their approximate

due dates was constantly kept by him. (R. 249.)

On the morning of October 6, 1930, Mr. Hall and

Mr. Pope called at appellant bank, the latter having

in his possession an executed form of acceptance

agreement, as well as proposed acceptances, fourteen

in number, signed by the Richfield Company aggre-

gating $150,000, being the total amount of accep-

tances specified in the acceptance agreement. This

trip was taken after Mr. Hall had discussed with some

of the executive officers of the company the propriety

of utilizing acceptances and had reported to them the

substance of the conversation occurring between him-

self, Grilstrap and other officials of the bank upon

his August visit. (R. 345.) Mr. Pope was brought to

San Francisco in order to thoroughly familiarize him-

self with the mechanics surrounding the execution and

release of acceptances and the details of the arrange-

ment between the Richfield Company and the bank.

This information was essential to enable him to prop-
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eriy and correctly keep his records respecting foreign

drafts and collections. The acceptance agreement, to-

gether with the acceptance forms, all executed by the

Richfield Company, were delivered by Pope to Gil-

strap. (R. 260-1.)

With respect to the matters above narrated, the

evidence is without dispute. These facts are men-

tioned merely by way of introduction to the matters

in controversy, to which mider appropriate titles and

as sequentially as possible reference will now be

briefly made.

CONTROVERTED FACTS.

It was agreed that the foreign

collections should be deemed to be

separate and apart from other

business of Richfield with, and its

financial obligation to appellant

bank.

It is claimed by appellee that it was ao^reed by ap-

pellant that ALL of the foreign drafts deposited

with it by Richfield for collection should be considered

and deemed to be and treated as entirely separate

and apart from all other transactions occurring be-

tAveen Richfield and appellant, including Richfield's

indebtedness to the bank. That the integrity of this

agreement has been demonstrated by the evidence can-

not be seriously disputed.

It has frequently been held that in reaching a de-

termination with respect to matters in controversy,

the court is justified in giving consideration to

whether the position assumed by a litigant is in ac-
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cord with the probable conduct of a reasonable person

similarly situated. That the agreement here asserted

would have been insisted upon by any reasonable

business man under like eircmnstances must be ob-

vious.

At the time of the inception of the transactions

here being considered, the Richfield Company owed

appellant an unsecured indebtedness of $625,000, evi-

denced by a promissory note which was to mature on

October 10, 1930. In the absence of any agreement

to the contrary, or circumstances inconsistent with

its exercise, the moment such unsecured indebtedness

matured, the bank would have been legally authorized

to exercise its banker's lien upon every draft

deposited with it for (-ollection, and, upon the collec-

tion of such drafts, would have been legally entitled

to appropriate the proceeds thereof to offset such un-

secured indebtedness. Under like conditions, upon

the sale or discoimt of any acceptance executed and

released by it, provided the proceeds came into the

bank's possession, it would have had a right to apply

such proceeds in ]^ayment, either in whole or in part,

of such indebtedness.

The right of a bank to exercise its banker's lien

as well as its right of set-off was known to Hall, as

it was known to the other executives of Richfield.

(R. 341.) At this time the Richfield Company was

and thereafter continued to be in dire need of funds.

(R. 341.) Its profit upon its foreign business, which

has been entirely built up by Hall, was almost neg-

ligible in character. The cost of producing and mak-

ing ready its commodities for foreign shipment was
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required to be advanced by it. The freight charges

upon these transactions had to be paid in advance

of shipment. Faced with these conditions, it could

ill afford to take the chance of depositing with a bank

foreign collections involving large sums, unless it

was understood that neither the drafts themselves nor

their proceeds, when collected, could be utilized by

the bank in extinguishment, either in whole or in

part, of an misecured indebtedness far in excess of

the collections entrusted to it. The executive officials

of Richfield, as well as Hall, knew that many banks

substantial in character existed in California, to

which no indebtedness was owed by Richfield, and

to which its collections could readily have been en-

trusted vrithout being menaced by the possible exer-

cise of a banker's lien or right of offset. That the

Richfield Company would deposit its forei.gn drafts

for collection with appellant and permit it to receive

the proceeds of the acceptances issued and released

by it, in the absence of a special agreement prevent-

ing the exercise of its banker's lien or right of set-

off, is inconceivable.

In giving consideration to the evidence bearing

upon this subject, the court must conclude that the

probabilities are that the agreement contended for by

appellee was made. The evidence upon this subject,

however, Avhile to some extent in conflict, is convinc-

ing that the agreement testified to by Hall and Pope

was actually entered into.

It will be recalled by the court that although Hall

was manager of the Foreign Department of Richfield

and responsible for its proper functioning, before
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coming to San Francisco he had a conference with

its officials, during the course of which the purpose

intended to be achieved by him was given considera-

tion and discussed. In fact, in making the arrange-

ments with the bank, he was following the orders

given him by these officials. (R. 346.) Furthermore,

he was interested in the financial success of his par-

ticular department, because upon such success de-

pended the amount of the compensation to which he

was entitled. Indeed, as has already been intimated,

within a period of four years. Hall built up the for-

eign trade business of Richfield in various foreign

ports. (R. 337.) It would indeed be remarkable if,

under the proven circumstances Hall would have

failed to insist upon the agreement testified to by him.

That the agreement was made is clearly shov.n by his

evidence. In August, 1930, during the first conference

occurring between him and Gil strap, Hall testified:

'*I discussed with him the general situation

of the Richfield Oil Company's collections and

stated that I was contemplating turning over all

of the Richfield 's collections in foreign coimtries

as far as possible to them. I explained to him
that I would be responsible as far as possible

for those collections and watch them. * * * I

asked him to remember that any transactions

were to be considered separate from other tran-

sactions of the Richfield Company— the entire

transactions, monetary, the collection of drafts

for us or any other business connected with the

Foreign Department of Richfield Company." (R.

340.)

"I stated to him that I had an interest in all

collections which were emanating from the For-
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eigii Department and that I wanted him to con-

sider that it was a separate business arrange-

ment from any other business which Richfield

had with Wells Fargo Bank. Mr. Gilstrap said

that he understood my position." (R. 341.)

After his ])reliminary conference with Gilstrap,

Hall was taken by Mr. Helhnan to Mr. Lipman,

president of the bank. To this conversation Hall

testified

:

''He (Lipman) said that he Avould give a

further line of credit based on foreign drafts in

the amount of $150,000 or thereabouts and see

how it would work out. I then made it particu-

larly strong to Mr. Lipman as to my position as

manager of the Foreign Department; that I

would continue to give my very careful attention

to the drafts of the Foreign Department for two

reasons; that I had a personal interest in the

collections of the Department, and that I tvanted

it considered to he a separate transaction from

any ohligations or any tramsactions other than

those of the Foreign Department—Richfield obli-

gations I mean. Lipman then said, 'That is good'

or 'That is excellent.' " (R. 343.)

This conversation was later reported by Hall to Mr.

Gilstrap. (R. 343.) Upon cross-examination he reit-

erated that he had stated to Mr. Lipman

"that it was to be miderstood that this further

credit was to be kept separate and be a distinct

arrangement with the Foreign Department." (R.

358.)

Upon the visit of Hall and Pope to the bank on the

morning of October 6, 1930, this arrangement was
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again made the subject of discussion. According to

Hall, after Gilstrap, at the request of Pope, had

telephoned to Mr. McKee, Hall

"reiterated my former conversation with Mr.
Gilstrap that if the acceptances were used it must
be definitely imderstood that it was a separate

transaction from any other transaction in a

monetary w-ay which Richfield had with Wells

Fargo Bank. I was following orders in that

respect from Mr. McKee." (R. 346.)

This testimony is corroborated by Pope vrho testi-

fied:

**During the course of the conversation Mr.

Hall said that he wanted the transaction with the

Forei,gn Department considered a thing apart

from the regular transactions of Richfield with

the bank." (R. 264.)

Upon cross-examination it was attempted to be

shown that the first time Pope ever heard from Hall

that he had an interest in the Foreign Department

was when he was having a dispute with the receiver

respecting the payment of his share of the profit

of the export department. This was denied by Pope,

who testified:

*'I know that once he made that statement

before the receivership. That was during our talk

with Mr. Gilstrap. As I remember it, the sub-

stance of his statement was that he wanted the

Foreign Department business of Richfield kept

as a separate and distinct transaction from other

business that Richfield might do with the Wells

Fargo Bank." (R. 325-6.)
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While this testimony i^iven by Hall and Pope was

denied by Grilstrap and Hellman, it is apparent that

in this respect the memories of the latter are clearly

at fault. It appears without dispute that the subject

matter of this agreement was discussed b}^ Hall with

both of these officials during his conferences with

them and other officials at the bank in May, 1931,

after he had been informed that the bank had exer-

cised its so-called banker's lien upon the drafts herein

involved and intended to retain their proceeds. Im-

mediately thereafter, Hall came to San Francisco to

protest against such action and endeavored to have

the drafts as well as their proceeds forthwith re-

leased. During the discussions which followed, one

of the reasons given by Hall why the action taken

by the bank was without justification was that it had

made the agreement to keep these transactions sep-

arate and apart from all other business with, and

financial obligations of Richfield. On this subject he

stated

:

''I told Mr. Gilstrap, Mr. Eisenbach and Mr.

Motherwell about my situation with the Richfield

Oil Company, that it was on a commission basis,

and that I had an interest in all the collections.

I refreshed their memory that I had brought

that up with them before and that I had elabor-

ated on this to a great extent. * * * I reiterated

all the statements that I had made to Mr. Gil-

strap and Mr. Eisenbach with reference to the

way I imderstood the agreement." (R. 350-1.)

Upon cross-examination he stated:

"I brought up every argument on the agree-

ment which I had with Wells Fargo with respect
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to the separateness and distinct part of the ac-

ceptance transaction with the Wells Fargo Bank.
* * * Mr. Gilstrap stated that it was something

that was beyond his control, that it was exercised

on the instructions of Mr. Lipman, and that he

had nothing to do with it whatsoever, and that

it would have to be taken up with Mr. Lipman
in order to have the banker's lien removed."

(R. 364.)

These statements, according to Hall, were not de-

nied. Hall testified:

''They did not deny any of the statements

which I made to them respecting the negotia-

tions occurring at the time of the inception of

this business or respecting the agreement with

the receiver." (R. 351.)

This testmiony of Hall was corroborated by Gil-

strap upon both direct and redirect examination. (R.

387-410.)

The existence of this agreement was likewise given

recognition by Gilstrap in his conversation with Hall

had shortly after he had informed Hall of the cost

of cabling the proceeds of the three Birla Bros, drafts

to San Francisco during the course of which he told

Hall what the bank intended to do. With respect to

this conversation, Hall testified:

"He stated that Wells Fargo Bank was going

to grab that money. I asked him why and he

stated that they were going to take it, exercising

a lien on it for other indebtedness owed the

bank. I stated that I was very surprised since

they had agreed not to touch any of the collec-

tions of the foreign department of the Richfield
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Oil Company. He said he was sorry but that

was the decision of the bank." (R. 350.)

It is unnecessary, however, to argue further that

the agreement contended for was entered into be-

cause appellant itself removed the issue from con-

troversy through Frederick L. Lipman, its president,

who was called as a witness on its behalf. He was the

officer to whom all the other officials of the bank

referred in determining the credit which should be

extended to the Richfield Company on its foreign

collections. To him Hall was finally brought after

conferring with Glilstrap and Hellman. That the

agreement testified to by Hall was in fact made is

demonstrated b}^ the testimony of Lipman as follows

:

"It seems to me that as the conversation came
to an end Mr. Hall said something to the effect

that he represented the foreign department and
not the general treasury relations of the com-

pany, and he did not want the tivo mixed up;

he wanted them kept separately/' (R. 449.)

This testimony of Mr. Lipman is corroborated by

Frederick J. Hellman, vice-president of appellant in

charge of the Foreign Department. (R. 436.) Upon
direct examination, he stated that after he and Mr.

Hall had had some brief conversation with Mr. Gil-

strap, he took Mr. Hall downstairs to the office of

Mr. Lipman, and that he remained there during the

conversation which ensued. (R. 436.) Testifying to

what the conversation was, he states

:

"As I remember it, we then stood \i]) and were
going out the door, and Mr. Hall said to Mr.
Lipman, '3Ir. Lipman, I want it understood'—



22

NO, NOT THAT. He said, ^You must realize

that I am not in the financial end of the busi-

ness; that I am only the manager of the foreign

department, and I will have to get the consent

of my superiors to put this credit through.' He
further said that he knew we were giving them
a line of credit of $625,000, and that if this ac-

ceptance credit was going to interfere with the

loan line downstairs, he knew they would not con-

sent to it, and he wanted the acceptance credits

separate from the loan downstairs." (R. 438.)

Before passing to the cross-examination of this

witness upon this subject, we believe it proper to

direct the court's specific attention to the rather sig-

nificant language of Mr. Hellman, m which he started

to narrate what Mr. Hall said to Mr. Lipman, viz.

:

"Mr. Lipman, I want it understood—" and then sud-

denly corrected himself, saying, "No, not that." A
brief examination of the testimony of Hall will show

that the language used by Mr. Hellman and then re-

pudiated by him is almost identical with the language

which Mr. Hall claims he used in his preliminary

statement to Mr. Lipman. (R. 343.)

On cross-examination, Mr. Hellman testified:

"Mr. Hall said that he wanted these accep-

tance transactions to be considered separate from

the loan line. * * * He used the luord 'separate'

,

and he referred to the loan of $625,000. The

essence of the statement is that he tvanted it

considered' separate from the loan line of $625,-

OOOr (R. 445-6.)

In view of the testimony of Lipman substantiat-

ing the testimony of Hall and Pope bearing upon this
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subject and the corroborating' testimony of Helknan,

whether the so-called Hall agreement asserted by

appellee was actually entered into is no longer within

the reahii of speculation.

Hall agreement given recog-nition

by subsequent conduct of appel-

lant bank.

But aside from this conclusive evidence establish-

ing the making of the ag'reement, the subsequent con-

duct of appellant clearly establishes that until May

8, 1931, when, under circumstances referred to at a

later stage of this brief, it attempted to seize the

proceeds of some of these drafts, the existence of the

agreement w^as constantly given recognition by it.

As already stated, the promissory note executed by

Richfield Oil Company evidencing its misecured obli-

gation to appellant matured on October 10, 1930.

Aside from the bank's letter of February 26, 1931

(Plff's. Ex. 107), to which reference will also later

be made, no attempt was made by appellant to exer-

cise its alleged banker's lien or right of set-off until

May 8, 1931. In the absence of the agreement under

discussion, at any time after October 10, 1930, appel-

lant w^ould have had the right to exercise its alleged

banker's lien upon the drafts deposited with it for

collection or its right of set-off against their pro-

ceeds. In making this statement, we are eliminating

from consideration the agreement between appellant

and the receiver and other bank creditors of Richfield,

evidenced by the wire of January 16, 1931 (Plff's.

Ex. 3), to which reference will be made later, but

which is not here important.
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Notwithstanding- such alleged right, not only did

appellant fail to exercise such banker's lien or right

of set-off until May 8, 1931, but between October 10,

1930, and May 8, 1931, it credited to the account of

Richfield Company and thereafter to the receiver, the

net proceeds of certain drafts theretofore collected

by it totaling $39,469.57. (Plff's. Ex. 117.) In this

connection it should also be noted that of these sums,

$31,719.99 was so credited without any request of any

kind emanating from Richfield Company or its re-

ceiver. (R. 333-4.) The remaining $7749.58 was de-

posited to the receiver's account in accord with appel-

lant's letter of March 5, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 108) after

the receiver had called its attention to its wire of

January 16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 3), to which reference

will be made in another subdivision of this brief.

During this seven-months' period, appellant kept

in touch with and had full knowledge of Richfield 's

financial condition. During the whole of this period

appellant undoubtedly was just as anxious to obtain

payment of the unsecured indebtednes due it by

Richfield as it was on May 8, 1931. Its failure to

exercise its alleged banker's lien and right of set-

off between October 10, 1930, and January 16, 1931,

is directly traceable to its recognition of the so-called

Hall agreement. Such failure after January 16, 1931,

was due not only to the so-called Hall agreement, but

because of its agreement evidenced by its telegram of

January 16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 3), which, together with

the circumstances under which on May 8, 1931, appel-

lant seized the moneys here involved will later be given

consideration.
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It must be obvious to the court from the evidence

to which reference has been made, that when the

arrangements were made to turn over the Richfield 's

collections to appellant, it was understood by the rep-

resentatives of the Richfield Company and the officials

of the bank that the entire foreign business of the

Richfield Company should be kept, and deemed to be,

separate and apart from all other transactions and

business with the bank( including Richfield 's then un-

secured indebtedness to the bank.

The drafts, the proceeds of which are

herein involved, were deposited with

appellant for collection only, and not

under the acceptance agreements or

as security for the acceptances.

That it was definitely agreed that only drafts hav-

ing a maturity, and the proceeds of which would be

received in San Francisco not later than one day in

advance of the maturity of the acceptances, would

be eligible or received for deposit under the accep-

tance agi'eements, and that none of the Birla drafts,

having a maturity of 180 days, nor other drafts,

unless meeting the requirement just specified, would

be eligible for, or received as drafts, under any ac-

ceptance agreement, but on the contrary that these

latter drafts should be deposited with the bank solely

for the purpose of collection, is conclusively estab-

lished by the evidence.

The determination of what securities w^ere placed

under the acceptance agreements cannot be ascertained

from the agreements themselves. In neither agree-

ment is any mention made of any draft or document
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which by its terms is assimied to be the subject

matter of the agreement. If the appellant had rested

its case upon the agreements themselves without at-

tempting to show by parol evidence the security to

which their pro^dsions applied, of necessity the court's

determination would have to be adverse to appellant.

The agreements v/ere conspicuous by unfilled blanks.

What securities v*'ere to be considered as being de-

posited luider the accexotance agreements were, there-

fore, dependent entirely upon the understanding and

intention of the parties as reflected by their negotia-

tions and by conferences and conversations occurring

between them at the inception of the transactions, as

well as what was subsequently done by them. Al-

though the agreements themselves do not disclose the

identity or description of such securities, their re-

spective provisions are entitled to consideration in

connection with the oral evidence introduced for the

purpose of enabling the court to determine whether,

regardless of the maturity of the drafts, it was or was

not the understanding of the parties that all drafts

deposited should be deemed to be under and to be

security for the acceptance agreements as well as the

acceptances issued thereon.

Insofar as it is material to the question now under

discussion, the terms of the agreement confirm and

corroborate the claim advanced by appellee. It will

be remembered that four groups of acceptances were

executed and released by appellant, viz.,

Oct. 8,1930 $115,000.00

Oct. 15, 1930 5,000.00

Oct. 21, 1930 10,000.00

Nov. 28, 1930 25,000.00



27

Each of the acceptances issued, by its terms, ma-

tured ninety days thereafter. It should likewise be

noted that no acceptance was extended or renewed,

and that no attempt ever was made to extend the

maturity dates of the acceptances.

As these securities w^ere not described or specified

in the agreement, recourse was had to parol evi-

dence from which it was clearly shown that certain

drafts only were deposited under the agreement as

security for the acceptances to be issued. To this

security the bank necessarily looked to meet the accep-

tances upon maturity, and inasmuch as the moneys

to meet the acceptances had to be on deposit in the

bank a day in advance of the maturity thereof, the

drafts upon which these moneys would have to be

realized would necessarily have had to be payable and

in the possession of the bank in advance of the ma-

turity of the acceptances. (R. 261.)

Recourse to the evidence, however, shows that only

the so-called short term drafts w^ere understood

and deemed to be under the acceptances, and that

the proceeds of the drafts here involved represent

moneys received by appellant upon drafts left with

it solely for collection.

A. The character of drafts to be uti-

lized as security under the accep-

tance agreement was specified and

agreed upon.

As already indicated, the acceptance agreement it-

self is significantly silent with respect to the char-

acter, identity or description of the securities upon
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which its provisions were to be fastened, or upon

which the acceptances were to be based. To ascertain

to what securities these agreements apply, considera-

tion must be given to the oral testimony addressed

to this subject. Upon this testimony, construed in the

light of the surrounding circumstances and the sub-

sequent conduct of the parties rested the trial court's

determination with respect to the property which the

parties understood should act as such security. In

giving consideration to this evidence, the court should

keep in mind that the sole purpose of the security

was to assure appellant that the acceptances were

secured, and that funds derived from such securities

would be at its disposal in ample time to permit the

acceptances to be liquidated when due. With the pur-

pose thus sought to be accomplished by the parties

before us, it must be obvious that drafts having a

maturity longer than the maturity date of the accep-

tances would not be deemed available as securities

out of which the acceptances would be paid when due,

and that, therefore, a distinction should and would

naturally be made between short term drafts and those

coming within the category just mentioned.

The evidence upon this subject, however, clearly

establishes that such distinction was hi fact made,

and that only the short term drafts were intended

to be utilized as such security, while drafts not ma-

turing until a date subsequent to the maturity date

of the acceptances were deemed and understood to be

deposited for collection alone.

With respect to this subject matter, Mr. Hall, in

detailing the conversation had between himself and
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Mr. Gilstrap upon his August visit to the bank,

testified

:

"I discussed the situation of Birla Bros., its

prominence and its financial standing. I believe

I discussed whether the entire drafts on Birla

would be available for acceptance purposes. He
stated, as I remember it, that undoubtedly the

sight drafts would be available, but he doubted
that the 180-day drafts would be, on account of

the length of time it took the draft to get over

to India—about thirty days and then thirty days

or so for the proceeds to return to the bank."

(R. 344.)

Concerning this conversation, on cross-examination

he testified:

''I believe I discussed with him on that occa-

sion w^hat drafts would be deposited by Richfield

under the acceptance arrangement. The substance

of that conversation was that following out the

use of short term acceptances—90 days—that all

drafts would have to come so that they would

mature prior to the maturing of the acceptances

and be equal to or a little in excess of the ac-

ceptances." (R. 358-9.)

Between Hall's August visit and the visit of Hall

and Pope on October 6, 1930, Gilstrap apparently

had gone ''deeper" into the matter and had probably

conferred with some of his associate officials. This

situation is made manifest from what occurred on

October 6, where, with respect to the character of

drafts to be utilized for security, Gilstrap had be-

come definite and certain*.
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As to the conversation then occurring, Mr. Hall

testified

:

"We had a general discussion in regard to the

use of acceptances, as to maturity of the drafts

on customers. In the conversation it was stated

that ninety-day acceptances were the best to be

used on account of the ready sale of the same.

We discussed that all foreign drafts must be

arranged so that the proceeds of the same would

be in Wells Fargo 's hands prior to the maturity

of the acceptances." (R. 345-6.)*******
"We then discussed the shipment which w^as

going forward to Birla Bros, and the 180-day

drafts which were on that account. Mr. Gilstrap

stated that those drafts would not be acceptable

for two reasons: the length of time and also that

he had received a credit report which they did

not believe was sufficiently good to allow them to

take it." (R. 346.)

This testimony was reiterated by him on cross-

examination, where he said:

"Mr. Gilstrap said the credit report showed

that Birla Bros, was not financially strong

enough and that the credit report was not good

enough. He stated that on account of the length

of time of the drafts and also on account of the

report which he had received, they could not

touch the 180-day drafts.

"Mr. Leuenberger came into the conference and

I asked hun whether he could handle the 180

day drafts and he said he could not. He made
some remark about the credit report, saying it

did not look good. * * •* I am under the impres-
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sion that something' was stated by Mr. Gilstrap

that the drafts going under the acceptance forms

would be distinctly set aside and placed in a line

or marked as being under the acceptance agree-

ment." (R. 361.)

The understanding testified to by Mr. Hall is like-

wise show^n by the testimony of Mr. Pope, w^ho came

to San Francisco for the specific purpose of familiar-

izing himself with the arrangements made, as well as

with the procedure to be pursued based upon such

arrangements. (R. 260-1.) Speaking with respect to

the conversations upon the subject of what drafts

should be deposited for collection and what as security,

he testified:

**Mr. Gilstrap told me that the release of ac-

ceptances would have to he based on drafts the

maturity date of which tvould he such that the

funds would arrive in San Francisco hefore the

maturity date of the hank acceptances/^ (R.

261.)*******
**Mr. Hall explained to Mr. Gilstrap the type

of drafts in general that we took covering for-

eign shipments. The discussion was more or less

based upon the general character of the drafts

customary to each country." (R. 261.)

He then specifically referred to Birla Bros. Ltd.

and after mentioning the volume of goods purchased

from time to time by it, as well as its prompt pay-

ment therefor, the following occurred:

''We explained to Mr. Gilstrap our method of

drawing on Birla Bros. We told him we drew

on each shipment one-half of the total shipment
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at sight and the other one-half at 180 days. The
question came up as to whether we might base

acceptances on both sets of drafts. He told us he

would be glad to consider the sight draft, hut

because of the length of time and because of the

credit standing he could not consider the 180-day

drafts on Birla Bros.

"We argued with him that Ave had never had
any trouble with Birla Bros.—that they had al-

ways been very prompt pay and we urged him
to let us use the 180-day drafts as the basis of

bank acceptances, but he refused/' (R. 262.)

*'I asked him as a matter of information

whether it would be possible to utilize the 180-

day Birla Bros, drafts as a basis for bank accep-

tances after a sufficient period had elapsed so

that the proceeds might arrive in San Francisco

within the 90-day period of prime commercial

paper. He told me that it was a possibility only,

and not to be seriously considered." (R. 263.)

And that the 180-day paper w^ould only be taken for

collection is also shown by this witness, who testified:

''Mr. Gilstrap told us that he would be glad

to take the 180-day paper for collection/' (R.

263.)

As to the amount of drafts to be placed under the

acceptance agreements, he further testified:

''He told us that we could not use the 180-day

paper to base bank acceptances. He told us that

it would be necessary to put up a sufficient amount

of drafts in money to cover the bank acceptances.

It would only be necessary to have enough from

the proceeds of the drafts to cover the bank ac-

ceptances to be paid." (R. 263.)



33

This subject was again touched upon on cross-

examination, where the witness testified:

*^To the best of my knowledge there was also

an agreement that the 180 day drafts would be
accepted for collection only and not he used as a
basis for the issuance of acceptances. The Rich-

field Oil Company tvas only required to deposit

sufficient drafts, the net proceeds of which tvould

satisfy, the amount of the hank acceptances." (R.

314.)

He testified that the 180-day drafts were to be kept

separate; that they were for collection only. (R. 316.)

And still further:

'*As I remember the discussion, Mr. Hall and
I were trying to raise all the money that we could

on the Birla Bros, respective shipments, and we
asked Mr. Gilstrap if he could not issue accep-

tances against the whole shipment, and he said

that he could not because the time of the 180-

day draft was too long to be used as a basis for

bank acceptances ; that it would not be considered

as prime paper. I believe he did at that time

bring up the credit standing of Birla Bros. * * *

The 180-day drafts, as I understood it, were

definitely out, because they w^ere too long." (R.

318-19.)

''I believe that Mr. Gilstrap and Mr. Leuen-

berger said: 'We can not use as a basis for the

amount of your acceptances the 180-day paper

on Birla Bros.'" (R. 319.)

Without quoting further from the testimony of Mr.

Pope upon this subject, we direct the court's attention

to the evidence given by him upon redirect examina-
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tion in connection with the various schedules contained

in plaintiff's exhibit 117, where he not only specifically

mentions the conversations occurring between him

and Mr. Gilstrap, but likewise gives his understand-

ing of the agreement entered into betw^een the Rich-

field Compan}^ and the defendant bank on October 6,

1931. (R. 326-336.) To this schedule reference will

hereafter be made.

In view of the fact that appellant's witnesses

stressed the point during their testimony that appel-

lant lacked faith in the financial stability of this com-

pany, it is rather difficult to conceive that it would have

been willing to issue acceptances based exclusively

upon the unsecured obligation of Birla Bros, plus the

unsecured obligation of Richfield Oil Company.

Another most persuasive reason why the Birla

Bros. 180-day drafts would not be considered as se-

curity for the acceptances is that in bank parlance

these drafts when accepted constituted nothing more

or less than "clean paper" representing an open in-

debtedness, unsecured in any mannner. (R. 420.)

The existence of the agreement is further empha-

sized by the course of conduct and procedure pur-

sued by Pope m connection with the deposit of the

drafts. We have before noted that four groups of

acceptances were issued. Before any of these accep-

tances were released, a sufficient nmnber of short term

drafts was deposited to take care of the acceptances.

Upon this subject Pope testified:

''Before release of acceptances was requested

by the bank, Richfield Oil Company had on de-
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posit with the bank a sufficient nmnber of short

time drafts exceeding- to some extent the total

amount of the acceptances." (R. 307.)

From time to time Pope was required to ascertain

from his records the drafts de]3osited as security for

the acceptances and those on deposit for collection.

In doing this he said:

"The way I differentiated between drafts that

were deposited under the acceptance agreement

and drafts that w^ere not deposited under the

acceptance agi'eement was as follows: when I

figured up my drafts at the time I requested the

issuance of bank acceptances, I would have to

have at that time enough drafts deposited at

Wells Fargo Bank, the proceeds of which would

pay promptly the bank acceptances." (R. 315.)

Later we will show that aside from the drafts upon

which the acceptances totaling $25,000 were released,

specific drafts were deposited for all acceptances pre-

viously issued. Pope, whose duty it was to keep a

record of, and watch those drafts, from time to time

made a report to Hall of the status of the drafts.

And as the occasion required, Hall familiarized him-

self with the records thus kept by Pope.

For two months prior to his appointment as re-

ceiver, Mr. McDuffie w^as president of Richfield Oil

Company. During this period, as well as while acting

as receiver, he became informed in a general way

of the agreement wdth the bank and the situation of

the drafts. In the defendant's telegram of January

16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 3) it reserved its so-called

banker's lien upon ''certain'^ drafts. According to
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McDuffie, the ''certain'' drafts referred to were the

drafts which were under the acceptance agreement.

As to his understanding of the drafts, McDuffie testi-

fied:

''My understanding of the telegram was that

they Avere reserving rights against certain speci-

fied drafts. It was my understanding that they

were reserving their rights on the drafts of

rather short life, the Birla Bros, drafts." (R.

225.)

''I did not have the faintest idea the bank
would reserve any right against anything except

the acceptances; otherwise I should have taken

the collections out of their hands long before

that." (R. 226.)

''When the answer of the Wells Fargo Bank
came back, I understood that they were reserving

a perfectly natural right to collect against those

acceptances and that they were reserving their

rights as against such drafts as might have been

earmarked. I understood that specified drafts

had been earmarked. I was advised of this by

the accounting department of the Richfield Oil

Company." (R. 229.)

And as indicating definitely that his understanding

was that the long time drafts were not under the

acceptances, he further testified:

"I only knew generally that these four drafts,

the major portion of them, were in the Wells

Fargo Bank for collection." (R. 229.)

He further said that his reason for believing that

he could withdraw the collections was

:
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"because my understanding was that certain

drafts were there for collection only and were
not under that agreement." (R. 231.)

And as indicating why he had made no specific

inquiry prior to May, 1931, as to whether the collec-

tions could be withdrawn, he said:

"I doubt very much whether I made inquiry

earlier than May of 1931 as to my right to

withdraw the drafts because there was never the

slightest doubt in my mind that there was any
possibility that drafts for collection could be

offset, drafts that were not under an agreement

—

the ordinary drafts." (R. 231.)

The information respecting the drafts came to Mc-

Duffie from various sources, his statement being:

''The information upon which I based my
statement that I never had any idea that the

bank could exercise any lien upon these drafts

came from various sources. I cannot say exactly.

I can only say that I had, myself, become firmly

impressed with the idea that first of all there

was no possibility of the bank asserting any lien

against any drafts for collection, and also that

the bank had not in its telegram reserved any lien

of any character on ordinary collections." (R.

231-2.)

That there was no doubt existing in the mind of

McDuffie at the time the bank notified him of its

attempted seizure of the proceeds of the Birla Bros,

drafts is further shown by McDuffie 's testimony in

which he said:

''At that time I understood and believed that

the Birla Bros, drafts were on deposit with the
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bank merelj^ for the purpose of collection. I did

not understand or believe that the Wells Fargo
Bank was claiming the right to hold any of those

drafts as security under any acceptance agree-

ment. I did not at that time understand or at

any time prior thereto understand or believe that

any of those drafts that we tried to stop payment
on had been deposited with the bank under either

any acceptance agreement or for the security of

acceptances issued or released by the bank." (R.

233-4.)

^'I understood that the short term drafts were

being held under the acceptance agreement and

that the long term drafts were being held solely

for the purpose of collection." (R. 234.)

"I understood that it (appellant's wire of Jan-

uary 16, 1931, Fife's. Exhibit No. 3) referred to

such drafts as they were holding as security. I

did not understand at that time that this telegram

related to any drafts not held by the bank as

security and understood by me to be held by the

bank merely for the purposes of collection. In

May 1931 w^hen for the tirst time I attempted

to revoke the authority of the bank to make these

collections, it was my understanding that the

bank merely held these drafts for collection."

(R. 235.)

Whatever doubt might be entertained as to Mc-

Duffie's understanding was dispelled upon his recross-

examination by appellant's counsel during the course

of which the following occurred:

''My understanding is that the Wells Fargo

Bank had at the time of my appointment as re-
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ceiver certain drafts for collection and certain

drafts subject to an acce/jtance agreement as se-

curity for certain acceptances. It is not my un-

derstanding that they were certain drafts that

were deposited and the whole thing was collateral

for certain acceptances that tvere held by the

hank. My understanding was that the bank held

certain drafts as collateral for certain acceptances

pursuant to an acceptance agreement and that

it held other drafts for collection." (R. 236.)

B. The drafts deposited for the release

of acceptances totaling $130,000

were specifically identified and ear-

marked.

While the oral testimony introduced on behalf of

appellee is itself convincing, the proposition that

but certain of the drafts were deposited as security

for the acceptances, and the remainder were de-

posited solely for the purpose of collection is dem-

onstrated by appellant's correspondence. This cor-

.respondence not only identifies and earmarks the

particular drafts deposited for the first group of

acceptances totaling $130,000, issued and released by

appellant, but likewise further identifies the particular

drafts, the proceeds of which were in fact utilized

in payment of the acceptances. This same corre-

spondence also clearly indicates the character of drafts

which were deemed by the parties to be eligible for

use under the acceptances, and by its failure to refer

to the so-called long term drafts definitely establishes

that the parties never contemplated or understood

that such drafts would be given consideration in the

issuance of acceptances.
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The persuasive force of this correspondence was

readily recognized by appellant, as it must have

been by the lower court. The futility of appellant's

effort to combat or minimize the effect of this cor-

respondence must be apparent. The communications

in which specific drafts are mentioned are all re-

ferred to in schedule B. (Plff's. Ex. 117.) The ^4den-

tif5dng" letters referred to were preceded by Mr.

Lyons' letter of Oct. 13, 1930 (Plff's. Ex. 28) in

which, among other things, it is said

:

''Our records show that we have with your

good bank a draft reserve of $9,734.16 against

which no acceptances have been issued."

Appellant's reply (written by Mr. Grilstrap) dated

Oct. 15, 1930 (Plff's. Ex. 29), discloses how this re-

serve is computed, and it is there stated:

"You mention that you have a draft reserve

with us of $9,734.16. This figure covers the amount
of your drafts Nos. 103009 and 103012 and the

balance remaining on your Nos. 103006A and

103004, but evidently does not take into consid-

eration your draft No. 103010, drawn on La Paz,

Bolivia for $11,031.14."

In the response of Lyons to this last communication

(Plff's. Ex. 30) it is clear that the Richfield Company

is of the same understanding as was Gilstrap, because

it is there stated:

"In talking with Mr. Gilstrap Saturday, he

informed us that we might use our collection No.

103010, your No. 46843 on La Paz, Bolivia, as

reserve against acceptances. Under these circum-

stances, would you please issue an acceptance

for $10,000 to mature in 90 days."
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That the additional acceptance for $10,000 was issued

upon the security of the La Paz draft is e\T.denced

by the letter of Mr. Leuenberger, dated October 21,

1930 (Fife's. Ex. 31) in which he states:

"We have earmarked same against your col-

lection No. 46843 on La Paz, Bolivia."

It cannot be successfully argued that the earmarking

of this draft was due to some inadvertence or mis-

understanding on the part of Mr. Leuenberger, for the

reason that plaintiff's exhibit 30 discloses that the sug-

gestion that the $10,000 acceptance should be issued

against that particular draft emanated from Mr. Gil-

strap in his letter of October 15, 1930 (Plff's. Ex.

29) and was discussed by him during his trip to Los

Angeles, shortly after the inception of these trans-

actions. Furthermore, Gilstrap himself became fa-

miliar with the Leuenberger letter (Plff's. Ex. 31)

because upon his return to San Francisco a letter

was written by him to the Richfield Company (Plff's.

Ex. 32) enclosing a copy of the bank's letter dated

October 21, 1930 (Plff's. Ex. 31) which apparently

had been lost in the mail.

It will be observed that no reference whatever was

made to drafts 103005 and 103006B, being the two

180-day drafts of Birla Bros., Ltd., obAiously because

of the understanding that they were deposited only for

collection, and because of their far distant maturity

dates, they were not security for the issued accep-

tances. In this connection it might also be remarked

that in none of the correspondence passing between

the parties until May 8, 1931, when the drafts were
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seized by the bank, was it asserted, intimated or sug-

gested that any of the long term drafts were deemed

to be mider the acceptances. The absence of such

suggestion is peculiarly significant.

After the issuance of the $10,000 acceptance on Oc-

tober 21, 1930, a niunber of drafts were deposited by

the Richfield Company with appellant. By Novem-

ber 24, 1930 a sufficient number of short time drafts

coming within the purview of the agreement had

been deposited by the Richfield Company to en-

able it to obtain the release of additional acceptances

totaling $25,000. Thereupon and not until then did

the Richfield Company request the issuance of such

acceptances. Its request is evidenced by its letter dated

November 24, 1930 (Plff's. Ex. 33), in which, among

other things, it states:

"Will you be kind enough to issue these ac-

ceptances as of November 28. This will give a rea-

sonable allowance for delay in the remittance of

draft payments.'^

The sentence in italics manifestly intended to con-

vey the information that if the acceptances would

not mature until ninety days after November 28, 1930,

no question could arise but that the proceeds of the

short term drafts then in the possession of the bank

under the acceptance agreement would be available

in satisfaction of the acceptances.

In addition to the correspondence just referred to,

the letters from the bank, in which are mentioned the

collection of drafts and the application of their pro-

ceeds in anticipation of the maturity of the accep-
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tances, confirmed the agreement as contended for

by appellee. Detailed references to this correspon-

dence, including the drafts to which it refers, the

gross and net proceeds of the drafts and to what ac-

ceptances the net proceeds were applied is shown in

Schedule ''D" (Plff's. Ex. 117) to which reference

is made without further elaboration.

The mere circmnstance that the proceeds of certain

drafts deposited under the acceptance agreement were

collected and deposited to the credit of the Richfield

Company or its receiver is of no importance in this

controversy^ From time to time after the acceptances

had been issued, drafts were deposited with appel-

lant for collection. It became obvious to appellant that

no necessity would exist to retain the proceeds of all

drafts under the acceptance agreement, and that if

there was a minor deficiency, when the pajmient date

of any of the acceptances arrived, such deficiency

would readily be made up by the Richfield Company

or taken from the proceeds of drafts not under the

agreement. The action taken by appellant in this re-

gard, as well as the exact situation existing at the

time of the crediting of such proceeds either to the

company or to the receiver is disclosed by the sched-

ules contained in plaintiff's exhibit 117, the contents

of which are fully explained by the testimony of Mr.

Pope. (R. 326-36.)
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C. Appellant's conduct prior to May
8, 1931, is consistent with appel-

lee's claim and inconsistent with

the contention of appellant.

As before remarked, where a dispute arises with re-

spect to an agreement entered into between the par-

ties or its terms, the manner in which the parties

acted under such agreement, as well as their conduct

is sometimes conclusive evidence of the character of

the agreement as well as the understanding of its

terms by the parties. In the instant case it was estab-

lished without contradiction that prior to the date

of appellee's ap]:>ointment as receiver of the Richfield

Company, without any request emanating from the

company, the bank collected cei'tain of the drafts and

credited the proceeds thereof to the account of the

Richfield Company. This same course of procedure

was pursued with respect to certain other drafts

maturing and collected between February 26 and

May 8, 1931.

D. The conduct of the officials and em-

ployees of the Richfield Company

establishes the agreement as asserted

by appellee.

The conduct of the officials and employees of Rich-

field with respect to the understanding had between

the latter company and the bank is equally potent

as establishing their understanding of the agreement,

as well as the character of the agreement entered into.

Whatever explanation may be made with respect to

the conduct of appellant, as illustrated by its corre-

spondence, by its actions and by its procedure, no

dispute of any kind exists in the record respecting
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the understanding of the Richfield Company and its

officers and employees. The records kept by them, the

correspondence emanating from them, the manner

in which the collections were handled by them, and

the circmnstances under which releases of acceptances

were requested, all prove that it was its and their

understanding that only short time drafts, payable

under the circumstances described should be deemed or

treated to be under the acceptance agreement.

No agreement was made providing

for any continuing credit under the

acceptance agreement.

Realizing the futility of seriously contending that

it was ever understood that all foreign collections,

regardless of amount, should be deemed deposited

under the acceptance agreement dated October 4,

1930, but more particularly that Birla Bros. 180-day

drafts should likewise be deemed to have been de-

posited as security for acceptances, upon the trial

of this action for the first time appellant claimed

that notwithstanding the provisions contained in the

acceptance agreement, it had been agreed that a con-

tinuing or revolving credit should be given Richfield

Company not to exceed at any one time $150,000. In

accord with this claun it was further contended that

whenever any issued acceptances had been paid addi-

tional acceptances to the amoimt thus liquidated could

and would be issued provided, of course, there was

ample credit on deposit to insure payment of such

acceptances.

Considering the wants and necessities of the Rich-

field Company and the number and amount of drafts
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deposited for collection, it is indeed surprising that,

if any such agreement existed, no additional accep-

tances were requested by the Richfield Company. This

is peculiarly significant when it is remembered that

the first group of acceptances totaling $115,000 was

paid in full on January 6, 1931; that a sum sufficient

to liquidate these acceptances had been deposited to

the credit of the acceptance fund long before such

date, and that betw^een January 6, 1931, and the date

of the appointment of the receiver, the Richfield

Company was in dire financial straits. For these rea-

sons alone the claim thus advanced by appellant is

incredible of belief.

But that the claim thus made is entirely destitute

of merit and lacks any tangible basis is proven by

reference to the answer filed by appellant herein, in

which it is asserted

:

"With respect to the agreement under which

said drafts were deposited, defendant avers that

the only agreement between said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Co. and said Richfield Oil

Company of California, a corporation, with re-

spect to the deposit of said drafts and the col-

lection and disposition of the proceeds thereof

was as set forth in two certain written agree-

ments each designated 'acceptance agreement'

duly executed by said Richfield Oil Company
of California, a corporation, and addressed to

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., prior to

the receipt or acceptance of said drafts, said ac-

ceptance agreement being dated respectively Oc-

tober 4th and November 28, 1930 * * * That true

copies of said acceptance agreements, being the

sole contracts between the Richfield Oil Company
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of California, a corporation, and said Wells Fargo

Bank & Union Trust Company with respect to the

deposit of said drafts and the collection thereof

and the disposition of the proceeds thereof are

hereto attached, expressly made a part hereof,

said acceptance agreement dated October 4, 1930,

being designated and marked Exhibit 'A' and

said acceptance agreement dated November 28,

1930 being designated and marked Exhibit 'B'."

(R. 104-5.)

These averments in substance are repeated from

time to time in subsequent x^ortions of appellant's

answer. Nowhere in its answer is it asserted or sug-

gested that any agreement existed between Richfield

Company and appellant with respect to said drafts

other than and excepting said two acceptance agree-

ments.

The two agreements referred to are identical in

form. Their language is plain, definite and free from

ambiguity. Their examination will disclose that no-

where is it provided that there shall be any '' con-

tinuing or revolving credit" or any credit excepting

the original $150,000 in the one agreement and $5000

in the other. In fact, however, as has already been

stated, each agreement assumes the contemporaneous

deposit of the securities to which the provisions re-

late. That each of the agreements is barren of any

suggestion relating to a continuous or revolving credit

is not only apparent from its reading, but was testi-

fied to by Gilstrap, who said:

''There is nothing in the acceptance agreement

wherein anything is said about a continuous

guaranty or revolving fund." (R. 402.)



48

Preliminaril}" it may be stated that inasmuch as the

pro^dsions of these agreements, because of their clar-

ity, cannot be varied or contradicted by parol, the

claim of a continuous or revolving credit cannot be

given consideration.

But even assuming, for the purposes of argument,

that this defense is within the issues raised by the

pleadings and can be established by parol, a consid-

eration of the evidence found in the record disproves

the verity of any such contention.

A. The conversations and the negotia-

tions between the parties negative

the claim.

It will be remembered that upon cross-examination

Gilstrap definitely testified that no conversation oc-

curred between hmi and Hall upon this subject during

the August visit, and that the only time it was touched

upon was upon the October 6th visit of Hall and Pope

and that it was not discussed on Hall's visit of Oc-

tober 8, 1930. (R. 411.) It will be noted that the con-

versation occurring on October 6th was AFTER Pope

had delivered to him the written agreement and the

accompanying contemplated acceptances. (R. 371.)

Assmning that continuous credit was mentioned, or

even discussed, aside from the positive denials of

Hall and Pope respecting any such agreement, to

which reference will hereafter be briefly made, it

must be apparent that no such agreement could have

been or was made. The written acceptance agreement

had not only been executed by the executive officers

of the Richfield Company having authority to make



49

such agreement, but it had actually been delivered

before any of these conversations occurred, and the

record is entirely lacking in evidence indicating that

either Hall or Pope was authorized to modify any

of its provisions. But, in any event, it is clear that

Hall never made any agreement with appellant re-

specting continuous credit. (R. 365.)

Later we will point out that aside from the conver-

sations, the conduct of each of the parties negatived

any such understanding.

Pope, who appellant admits was brought up for the

express purpose of familiarizing himself with the me-

chanics as well as the details of the contemplated

transactions, w^as positive that there was no such

agreement. Upon this subject he testified

:

*'I do not remember any discussion with the

Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co. about a

revolving credit or a continuous credit. I do not

remember Mr. Hall telling me that the bank had

granted a credit to Richfield Oil Company of

$150,000.00 on banker's acceptances and that this

was to be a continuing credit or a revolving credit

to be covered by one agreement. This was not my
understanding of the transaction. I had no dis-

cussion with Mr. Hall about it. * * * It is my
understanding that if we had issued the initial

$150,000.00 of bank acceptances which we brought

up it would be necessary to make out a new accep-

tance agreement." (R. 313.)

The fact that Pope was informed that it was im-

possible to fill in the blanks contained in the agree-

ment because from time to time they would be de-



50

positing drafts under the agreement all of which

could not then be identified, has no bearing whatever

upon the question of continuous credit. It was in-

tended to issue acceptances to the extent of $150,000.

It was also intended to deposit specified drafts as

security for such acceptances. Inasmuch as the drafts

to secure the acceptances for $150,000 were not avail-

able mider the agreement when it was delivered,

obviously the drafts could not be identified in the

agreement. Such suggestion, however, does not dis-

close that any continuous credit was intended or ac-

tually agreed to, or was in the minds of the parties.

The non-existence of any such agreement is conclu-

sively proven by evidence aside from the conversations

of the parties.

Emil Leuenberger, one of appellant's witnesses, did

not participate in any convei'sations with Pope or

Hall while in the bank respecting a continuous credit,

but testified on direct examination that while at lunch

with Pope he explained to him the mechanics of the

acceptances and ''about" the revolving nature thereof.

(R. 430.) His conversation, if it occurred, was merely

explanatory and it is not claimed rose to the dignity

of an agreement. In this connection, however, it will

be remembered that this was the witness who wrote the

so-called *'ear mark" letter earmarking the La Paz

draft of $11,031.14, against the $10,000 acceptance.

This communication is not only inconsistent \\dth the

so-called revolving fund theory, but likewise dis-

credits the claim that all drafts were imder the agTee-

ment.



51

An examination of the testimony given by Hellman,

as well as Lipman, cannot be contorted into any agree-

ment for continuous credit. Mere references to a line

of credit could not establish the agreement claimed.

Furthermore, these latter conversations occurred with

Hall in August before the acceptance agreement was

executed and, inasnmch as it related to a subject-

matter covered by the provisions of the written agree-

ment, merged in that agreement.

B. Correspondence of the parties.

On November 24, 1930, the Richfield Company re-

quested the issuance of acceptances amounting to $25,-

000. At that time acceptances aggregating $130,000

had already been issued under the acceptance agree-

ment, leaving $20,000 still available. To cover the ad-

ditional $5000 requested, a further acceptance for

that sum was transmitted to appellant. (Plff's. Ex.

33.) On November 28th the acceptances for $25,000

were issued by appellant and the net proceeds cred-

ited to the account of the Richfield Comi)any. (Plff's.

Ex. 35.) On December 1, 1930, appellant, through its

assistant cashier, C. B. Clemo, wrote Richfield Com-

pany as follows

:

''As your Acceptance Agreement covering the

execution of acceptances by us against your doc-

umentary export bills calls for $150,000, we are

enclosing another agreement for $5000 to cover

the acceptance for this amount executed by us

November 28, in accordance with your letter of

November 24.

Please sign and return this form to us." (Plff's.

Ex. 37.)
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It will be observed that by this letter appellant

definitely informed the Richfield Company that the

acceptance agreement called for but $150,000 and

that the execution of another agreement covering the

additional acceptance for $5000 was essential. While

it is true that under the continuous guarantee theory,

such agreement would be proper for the reason that

the maxmnun limit of credit under the original agree-

ment had been reached, the point of the matter is

that appellant's letter (Plft*'s. Ex. 37) fails to men-

tion continuous credit and likewise fails to inform

the Richfield Company that additional acceptances

can only be obtained under the original agreement

when some or all of the issued acceptances have been

liquidated.

The non-existence of any continuous or revolvina

credit is further shown by the correspondence be-

tween the parties relating to the payment of the ac-

ceptances aggregating $25,000. It will be remembered

that this group of acceptances matured on February

26th. Shortly prior thereto appellant had collected

upon drafts deposited with it in anticipation of the

above payment, $23,500.30, leaAang a balance to be

collected of $1499.70.

On February 21st appellee sent to appellant, at-

tention W. J. Gilstrap, the following communication

(Plff 's. Ex. 105) :

''Enclosed you will find a Bank Acceptance for

$1600 payable at 40 days sight, and an Acceptance

Agreement, properly executed.

We are forwarding these docmnents to you in

order to make good the balance due of $1499.70
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on the $25,000 of Bank Acceptances coming due

the 26th. If, Jiowever, in the meantime, you re-

ceive sufficient funds from draft payments to take

care of this deficit, please return these papers to

us.

Thank you for your courtesy in this matter."

On the date upon which this letter was written all of

the acceptances, excepting $25,000 had been liqui-

dated in full and a sufficient sum was on deposit

wdth appellant to meet the $25,000 acceptances, ex-

cepting $1499.70. It, of course, will be conceded that

the appointment of the receiver terminated the right

to any further credit undei' the acceptance agreement,

but it is obvious that the officials of Richfield were

not aware of this situation. They therefore fortvarded

to the hank an acceptance accompanied hy an ac-

ceptance agreement. The response of appellant writ-

ten and signed by Gilstrap upon this subject (Plff's.

Ex. 107) is illuminating. Before this letter was

written, the deficit had been collected. After writing

the receiver, to that effect, the letter concludes:

"We are returning herewith the acceptance

form and the acceptance agreement which you

forwarded with your letter of Febi'uary 21 and

which we shall nJt have to use." (Plff's. Ex. 107.)

It will thus be seen that in the only correspondence

passing between the parties in which additional credit

or acceptance agreements were referred to, nothing

was mentioned indicating that any arrangement had

been made for a continuing or revolving credit.
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The general correspondence between the parties,

however, is likewise important in connection with the

proposition under discussion. Between October 6, 1930,

when the acceptance agreement was delivered, and

May 8, 1931, when the funds of appellee were seized,

a mass of correspondence passed between the parties,

most of which emanated from the very officers and

employees familiar with the transactions here in-

volved. Although nuich of this correspondence related

to the deposit of drafts and the collection and dis-

position of their proceeds, not a single word was ever

written by either party suggesting or intimating that

any continuous credit had been agreed upon. Further-

more, nowhere in all of this correspondence is there

an intimation that further credit was available to

the Richfield Company under the original acceptance

agreement, although on December 16, 1930, sufficient

monies were on deposit with appellant to meet the

$115,000 acceptances, and on January 6, 1931, they

were paid in full.

C. Conduct of Richfield Company negatives

continuous guarantee.

The first group of acceptances aggregating $115,000

matured and became payable January 6, 1931. On De-

cember 16, 1930, appellant had collected $119,850

w^hich smn was deposited in anticipation of the ac-

ceptances to become due. On December 16, 1930, Rich-

field Company was advised in writing by appellant

that this smii had been applied "in anticipation of

maturing acceptances." (Plff's. Ex. 93.) With this

sum in the bank's possession, it becomes apparent that

if a continuous credit had been arranged, even though
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the first group of acceptances had not been paid, Rich-

field could have readily obtained the release of addi-

tional acceptances to the extent of $115,000 at any

time between December 16th and January 6th. But

however this may be, the Richfield Company was in

dire distress on January 6, 1931, and remained in such

condition until after the appointment of the receiver.

Yet, although upon appellant's theory at least as early

as January 6, 1931, the Richfield Company could have

obtained from the bank $115,000 upon additional ac-

ceptances, no application for such sum or any part

thereof was made. This circumstance is not only

persuasive but controlling that no agreement had been

entered into for any continuous credit.

D. Payment of collections to Richfield

negatives continuous credit.

Between the issuance of the original group of ac-

ceptances aggregating $115,000 and the appointment

of the receiver, the proceeds of six drafts deposited

with appellant were collected and the net amount

thereof from time to time credited to the account of

Richfield Company. (Schedule CI; Plff's. Ex. 117.)

These sums were thus credited without any request

having been made therefor by any of the officials

of Richfield Company.

These payments are inconsistent with the idea

that an agreement existed for continuous credit. Had
there ever been such an agreement or mutual under-

standing, before making these payments, it is fair to

say that by every ordinary rule of the business world

some correspondence would have been indulged in
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between the parties in which mention would ha

.

been made of such an agreement.

We are, therefore, justified in concluding that this

"continuous or revolving credit" theory was imported

into this case for the purpose of creating an apparent

foundation upon which to support appellant's claim

that all—instead of "certain"—of the drafts were

deposited under the acceptance agreements. It real-

izes that in the absence of such foundation its claim

in this regard would be without color or substance.

It must be clear, therefore, that no justification w^hat-

ever exists for the claim that any continuous or re-

volving credit was accorded the Richfield Company.

Appellant bank waived its right of

banker's lien and setoff as against

all collections of Richfield OU Com-

pany then in its possession except-

ing those specifically deposited under

the acceptance agreements.

For some months prior to January 15, 1931, Rich-

field Oil Company was enmeshed in financial difficul-

ties. It owed various banks a sum in excess of $10,-

000,000, no part of which was secured. (R. 205.) It

was indebted in a large sum to a number of merchan-

dise creditors, some of whom were pressing it for

payment. It was only with much difficulty that it was

able to meet payrolls, freight charges and current in-

debtedness due public utilities which could not be

delayed. Litigation was threatened which, if com-

menced and prosecuted to final judgment, would re-

sult in sacrifice of the properties of the Richfield Com-

pany, prevent it from carrying on its business and
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in all probability force it into bankru^jtcy. This dis-

tressing situation not only became known to most, if

not all, of the creditors of the Richfield Company, but

was made the subject of many conferences and much
discussion, particularly among its bank creditors in-

cluding appellant, to all of which it became obvious

that unless such threatened litigation was prevented

and the business of the Richfield Company permitted

to go forward the indebtedness due to them, at least

in major part, would become uncollectible. To avoid

this result a receivership was determined upon and

on January 15, 1931, in appropriate litigation insti-

tuted for that purpose, appellee was api)ointed re-

ceiver of Richfield Company. On the same day, in an

ancillary proceeding instituted in this district, appel-

lee was appointed ancillary receiver to take charge

of the property here located. (R. 205-8.)

Each of the orders above mentioned appointed ap-

pellee receiver ''of all the property, assets and busi-

ness owned by or under the control or in the posses-

sion of Richfield Oil Company." (R. 90.) By the

terms of each order the receiver was authorized

"forthwith to take and have complete and exclusive

control, possession and custody of all of the property

and assets owned by or under the control of or in

possession of the Richfield Company, real, personal

and mixed, of every kind, character and description."

(R. 92.) And the receiver was ''authorized until the

further order of the court to continue, manage and

operate the business of the defendant ivith full potver

and authority to carry on, manage and operate the

business and properties of the defendant * * * to the
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end that the operation of the business of the defendant

should not he interfered with or interrupted/' (R.

93-4.)

While neither appellant, nor any of the other bank

creditors of Richfield Company, was a party of record

to the receivership proceedings, it is disclosed by the

evidence without contradiction that they were insti-

tuted and the receiver appointed, if not as the result

of their active cooperation, at least with their con-

sent. It is quite apparent, therefore, that one, if not

the principal purpose sought to be achieved by the

receivership was to enable the business of the Richfield

Oil Company to be carried on in the expectation that

as a result of snch procedure the indebtedness, or

a considerable part of it, due to its creditors would

ultimately be liquidated.

Immediately after his appointment and qualifica-

tion the receiver transmitted to the various banks

with which the Richfield Company had been doing

business and in each of which it maintained a com-

mercial account, a copy of the order appointing him

receiver, whereupon some of the creditor banks, in the

exercise of their right of setoff, applied the cash bal-

ances then standing to the credit of the Richfield Com-

pany, in partial payment of such indebtedness. (R.

203-6.) Learning of such action and realizing that un-

less there was made available to him all cash balances

and all other credits belonging to Richfield in the pos-

session of said ba)iliS, it would be impossible for him

to carry on its business, a meeting was called by the

receiver to which representatives of all creditor banks

were invited. This meeting was held on the morning
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of January 16, 1931, and was attended by representa-

tives of all creditor banks excepting appellant and

First Seattle Dexter Horton Bank. (R. 205.) During

the course of this meeting- the receiver explained to

those present its purpose and, according to his testi-

mony, among other things, said:

''I told the bankers at this meeting that the

conditions were such that if they felt it w^as nec-

essary to seize these balances, I, as receiver, could

not carry on, and that the receivership must be

immediately terminated and it would be necessary

to go inmrediately into bankruptcy. I told them
that it was not only necessary that I have the bal-

ances restored but that I have their assurance

that the normal flow of business would be allowed

to go on. Collections were coming in of course.

That if they merely restored my balances it would

be obvious that it would be impossible to carry

on the business if collections were seized. I asked

them if they would not restore to me all funds

that might be available. I particularl}^ brought

that to their attention that after all the receiver-

ship was created to protect the estate and to

carry it on, and that without funds it w^as ut-

terly impossible to carry on the estate." (R.

206-7.)

*'I explained as thoroughly as I possibly could

that it must be obvious to them that such a busi-

ness as Richfield 's was dependent upon the re-

ceiver ha^dng available all possible funds, that

is, all assets of every character, so that the re-

ceiver might endeavor to continue the business

in some operating form, and that without funds

it was utterly impossible. Payroll checks had to

be met and public utility charges had to be met
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once a month. Freight had to be met as it was

incurred. A very large amount of the business

of Richfield Oil Company was being done on

credit." (R. 223.)

Edward J. Nolan, an executive of the Bank of

America, the largest bank creditor of Richfield, was

present at this meeting. According to his testimony:

''Mr. McDuffie informed the assembled bankers

that some of the banks had offset the balances as

of the date of the receivership and stated to us

that if the company were not to go into bank-

ruptcy it would be necessary for him, as re-

ceiver, to have the necessary cash to meet public

utility charges, railroad freight rates and labor

charges, and that if the balances that had been

offset were not restored or if the other banks

w^ould not consent not to offset the balances it

would be necessary for the company to file a pe-

tition in bankruptcy or ultimately bankruptcy

would result. He said all the credits and all the

funds and all the assets, especially the current

assets, that belonged to the company, must be

turned over to him, otherwise he could not carry

on the affairs of the company." (R. 241.)

That drafts deposited with the bank for collection,

as well as the collections themselves, were credits

and assets of Richfield Oil Company to which, as

well as to the cash balances, the receiver was refer-

ring, is likewise shown by Mr. Nolan, his testimony

upon this subject being:

"I understand balances in a bank would be

such items that are deposited for credit and col-

lected, or if there is an agreement with the de-
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positor that one may draw on uncollected items,

we sometimes consider that as a balance. I would

regard foreign drafts deposited with a bank for

collection as credits, and when the drafts are

collected and the money comes into the possession

of the bank I would regard that as cash balances."

(R. 245-46.)

Upon cross-examination he testified:

^'Foreign drafts can he considered as credits/'

(R. 246.)

And on redirect examination

:

''If a draft is deposited in a bank by a depositor

or a merchant for collection, I would regard that

as one of his credits. In the absence of any

agreement to the contrary, if a foreign draft

is deposited with a bank for collection and the

bank collects the amount due upon the draft,

I would regard that as a credit. When collection

is made and the money comes into the possession

of the bank it is a balance due the customer."

(R. 247-8.)

It nmst be manifest from this evidence that while

the receiver at this time was directly concerned with

the restoration of the cash balances offset, and while

he was insistent that other banks should agree not

to offset cash balances, he required that all bank

creditors should agree that all assets and credits in

their possession belonging to the Richfield Company

should be made available to him, or he would retire

from the receivership, and the company would go

into bankruptcy. That such was the understanding
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of the bank creditors, including the appellant, was

conclusively proved.

At the time of this meeting, while at least some of

the banks had checks and credits in transit, the only

banks which had foreign drafts in their possession

were Security-First National Bank of Los Angeles

and appellant. (R. 216.) These facts were known by

the receiver and also by Mr. Hardacre, the representa-

tive of the Security Bank. It was agreed by the

bankers present, as to some of them, however, subject

to ratification by their respective banks, that if those

banks which had offset the cash balances would restore

such balances, and if all banks would agree to make

available to the receivei' all credits in their possession,

none of the other banks would exercise their right of

banker's lien or right of offset against any of the funds

or credits of the Richfield Company. (R. 242.) Accord-

ingly, at the conclusion of the meeting, a telegram was

prepared by some of the bankers present, in coopera-

tion with the receiver, to be sent to each of the

banks for the purpose of carrying into effect the pur-

pose sought to be accomplished by the meeting. In

this connection it will be noted that among those

participating in the preparation of the telegram was

Mr. Ralph B. Hardacre, an official and representative

of the Security-First National Bank, which had in its

possession foreign drafts not yet collected. (R. 209-

242.) This circumstance is of considerable importance

for the reason that his understanding of the telegram

(Plff's. Ex. 2), as well as the responses thereto, includ-

ing the response of appellant (Plif 's. Ex. 3) is shown

by the action of the Security Bank making available
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to the recei\^er not only its cash balances, but all col-

lections stihsequentli/ made by it upon these foreign

drafts. The telegram thus prepared and transmitted

to the various banks including appellant is Plif's. Ex.

2 and reads as follows

:

''As receiver I am ordered by federal court to

take over all assets including cash in banks Stop

While you have undoubted right of offset such

right if exercised would seriously cripple receivers

operations It is necessary therefore to request

that all banks restore to receiver full cash bal-

ances Stop Please therefore transfer such funds

to a new^ account on your books in my name as

receiver Evidence of my authority and signa-

ture cards will follow by mail Stop Local banks

have indicated they ivill acquiesce in this pro-

gram." (R. 209.)

A mere reading of this telegram will disclose that the

program referred to was the taking over by the re-

ceiver of all assets including cash in hanks. The right

of offset referred to is a right of offset as against

"all assets including cash in banks." The program

in which ''local banks have indicated they will ac-

quiesce" is the turning over to the receiver of all

assets including cash in hanks. It, therefore, clearly

indicated to appellant that the agreement to be en-

tered into was to turn over to the receiver ''all assets

of the Richfield Company including cash in its pos-

session," and that as to such assets and cash its right

of offset should be waived. But in order to prevent

appellant, which had not participated in the meeting

from misconstruing the telegram and to apprise it of

what had occurred at such meeting, and what the re-
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ceiver was insisting upon in order to prevent his

retirement and bankruptcy on the part of Richfield,

Mr. Nolan was requested by the receiver to communi-

cate personally with appellant. Mr. Hardacre was

likewise requested to ]:)erform a similar service with

respect to the Dexter-Horton Bank at Seattle. (R.

242.) In this connection it will again be remembered

that Mr. Hardacre, to whom was assigned this latter

dut}^ was the representative of the Security Bank

which subsequently turned over its collections to the

receiver. Pursuant to such request, Mr. Nolan im-

mediately telephoned to Mr. Eisenbach, one of the

chief executives of appellant, stating that the purpose

of the call was to

"acquaint them with what took place at the

bankers' meeting that day." (R. 242.)

As to what occurred between him and Mr. Eisenbach,

Mr. Nolan testified

:

"During the course of my conversation with

Mr. Eisenbach I stated to him the substance of

what had occurred at the meeting of the hankers.

I recall explaining to Mr. Eisenbach that unless

all of the banks were unanimous in returning the

balances that it looked to me as though the com-

pany would have to go into bankruptcy; that

Mr. McDuffie had stated to us that he had to

have certain funds to take care of public utility

charges, labor charges and freight charges." (R.

243.)

Upon cross-examination he testified that the tele-

gram was the work of about twelve of them (R. 245)

and



65

"It was intended to be the agreement with the

bankers tvith some amplification, and I think that

is why Mr. McDuffie suggested that we get in touch

with Mr. Arnold of Dexter-Horton and Mr. Eisen-

bach of Wells Fargo. The amplification was not

that something was desired besides the telegram

itself, but to explain to banks not present the

dire condition of the company and the importance

and necessity of returning the balances at once,

or else the company would be forced to go into

bankruptcy." (R. 245.)

Upon redirect examination he further testified:

''As stated in cross-examination, the primary

reason for telephoning Mr. Eisenbach was to

elaborate upon the wire that was prepared by

the bankers in cooperation with Mr. McDuffie

and to explain the dire condition of the receiver-

ship ; that if the balances were not restored or if

the bankers' liens were to be exercised by the dif-

ferent banks that it would be necessary for the

company to go into bankruptcy. * * * J told Mr.

Eisenhach that it tvould he necessary that the

receiver have all the funds of the Richfield OH
Company for the purpose of continuing the busi-

ness and to avoid bankruptcy. Mr. McDuffie went

to great length in explaining to all of us that

obligations from day to day arose in the Rich-

field Oil Company that had to be liquidated in

some way. I tried to pass that on to Mr. Eisen-

bach, I tried to pass on to Mr. Eisenbach just

what took place at the meeting that morning.'*

(R. 246.)

Comment is made by the appellant upon the fact

that it had no I'epresentative present at the meeting

between the banker creditors and McDuffie and there-
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fore it could not be charged with knowledge of the

occurring discussions. This evidence was not offered

or admitted for that purpose. It was introduced for

the limited purpose of showing the foundation of the

agreement and likeAvise to disclose that the considera-

tion for the waiver on the part of appellant was,

among other things, the agreement on the part of

the other creditor banks (aside from the Security

Bank) to restore balances already offset, and, as to

the Security Bank, to restore the cash balances al-

ready off'set and turn over to the receiver the foreign

collections then in its ])ossession as and when they

were received, without exercising thereon its banker's

lien and right of setoff. (R. 240.)

Nor has appellant appreciated either the purpose

sought to be accomplished by the conversation shortly

thereafter held between Nolan and Eisenbach or the

information conveyed to the latter by Nolan.

If the receiver had merely been interested in the

cash balances, or if Hardacre, of the Security Bank,

had not been interested in learning that the foreign

collections in the ])ossession of the appellant bank

would be made available to the receiver, no reason

would have existed for the conversation between Nolan

and Eisenbach. In this connection it will be remem-

bered that the only two banks in which foreign col-

lections had been de])osited were the Security Bank

and the appellant bank, and that the purpose of the

conversation, as explained by Nolan, was

"to acquaint them (executives of appellant bank)

with what took place at the bankers' meeting that

day." (R. 242.)
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The testimony of Mr. Nolan is unopposed. It is true

that Mr. Eisenbach testified that he had no recol-

lection of the conversation, but he also added that he

would not testify that it did not occur. (R. 452.) Mr.

Eisenbach 's failure of recollection is peculiarly sig-

nificant with respect to this all-important conversa-

tion. That it actually occurred cannot be seriously

denied. Why he failed to recall it is, in our judgment,

inexplicable, particularly when we consider that he

testified that he dictated a memorandum of all im-

portant conversations or conferences. (R. 454-5.)

After receipt of Plff's. Ex. 2 and after the conversa-

tion between Nolan and Eisenbach had occurred, ap-

pellant prepared and sent to the receiver its response.

(Plff's. Ex. 3.) It is again significant that this tele-

gram was prepared and signed by Mr. Eisenbach

with whom Nolan had shortly theretofore conversed.

This telegram reads as follows

:

'^ Replying telegram we are willing to restore

in your name as receiver original balances in

checking account provided we are notified by

you that all company banks have taken similar

action Stop We are holding certain collections

as security for acceptances Please understand

that we continue to reserve all our rights for

bankers lien against these collections/' (R. 210.)

(Italics ours.)

How, under the proven circumstances, appellant can

expect to successfully claim that this telegram re-

served to it its banker's lien on all foreign drafts

then in its possession, we are unable to appreciate.

At the time of its preparation, appellant had before
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it the order appointing receiver containing the lan-

guage above quoted (R. 203) ; it knew that the re-

ceiver, in order to carry on the business of the Rich-

field Company which was the purpose of his appoint-

ment, had to have available to him all credits and

funds of the Richfield Company; it had before it

the receiver's wire prefaced with the statement that

"I am ordered by federal court to take over all

assets including cash in hanks"

and it had in mind the information given that very

morning by Mr. McDuffie to the banks, as well as the

discussions occurring at that meeting, the substance

of which had been conveyed to it by Nolan. Further-

more, it had in its possession certain foreign drafts,

described in bank parlance as ^'collections," as secur-

ity for the acceptances previously executed by it

and then outstanding. Clearly the "banker's lien"

to which it was referring as against these collections

was whatever lien it possessed upon them as security

for the acceptances. While it may be argued that the

words "banker's lien" did not aptly describe the exact

lien which the bank had upon such drafts, the in-

formation intended thereby to be communicated to the

receiver undoubtedly was that it had issued certain

acceptances, that it had in its possession certain col-

lections as security therefor, and that as to those

collections it was reserving its lien as security for such

acceptances. As we will hereafter point out, the tech-

nical meaning of a particular word falls as against the

understanding and intention of the parties and the

purpose sought to be achieved. Furthermore, the
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court will note the use of the word ''certain'^ which

clearly indicated that only some of the collections

theretofore deposited with appellant were under the

acceptance agreements.

It is not at all reasonable that with the information

which was conveyed to Mr. Eisenbach by Nolan,

coupled with the information respecting the financial

condition of the Richfield Company, which was pos-

sessed by appellant bank, it wrote the telegram (Plff 's.

Ex. 3) in which, among other things, it said:

''We are holding certain collections as secur-

ity for acceptances. Please understand that we
continue to reserve all our rights to banker's

lien against these collections."

Undoubtedly the officials of appellant by whom that

telegram was prepared believed that the receiver had

mentioned to the representatives of the bank creditors

that collections had been deposited with it and that

it in turn had issued acceptances secured by certain

of these collections, which acceptances would shortly

mature and would have to be liquidated in full. Un-

doubtedly appellant having, as Mr. Eisenbach testi-

fied, and as appellant admits, kept in close touch

with the financial affairs of Richfield (R. 455) knew

that certain foreign collections were or might still

be in the possession of the Security Bank. Appellant

desired McDuffie, as well as the other creditor banks,

to know that these outstandins: acceptances would have

to be paid and, so that there might be no misunder-

standing upon this subject, it added to its telegram

the language above quoted. Indeed no other explana-
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tion can logically be made. If the understanding of

appellant was that the receiver was interested only

in having restored the offset bank balances no neces-

sity existed to add the trailer above quoted to its

telegram, for the language

:

"Replying telegram we are willing to restore in

your name as receiver Richfield 's balances in

checking account provided we are notified by you
that all company's banks have taken similar ac-

tion"

would have been wholly adequate. Furthermore, the

language used in the concluding part of its telegram,

upon which reliance is here made, would otherwise

have been meaningless.

Not only was it the understanding of the appellant

that by its telegram it merely reserved its lien upon

those foreign collections deposited under the accep-

tance agreements, but undoubtedly such was the un-

derstanding of the receiver and of the bank creditors

to whom the wire was read. Upon this subject, too,

there is no dispute in the record. Mr. McDuffie, on

cross-examination testified

:

"My understanding of the telegram was that

they were reserving rights against certain speci-

fied drafts. It was my understanding that they

were reserving their rights on drafts of rather

short life, the Birla Bros, drafts. I do not know
the exact drafts when I used the words 'certain

drafts.' I did not know in detail what drafts were

referred to. * * * I did not have the faintest idea

the bank would reserve any rights against any-

thing except the acceptances; otherwise I should
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have taken the collections out of their hands long

before that." (R. 225-6.)

"The agreement between the banks as I under-

stood it was that our funds of all character would

be available to the receiver." (R. 226.)

''When the answer of the Wells Fargo Bank
came back I understood that they were reserving

a perfectly natural right to collect against those

acceptances and that they ivere reserving their

rights as against such drafts as might have been

earmarked. I understood that specified drafts

had been earmarked. I was advised of this by

the accounting department of the Richfield Oil

Company." (R. 229.)

"I recall testifying this morning that if I had

thought there was at any time in the minds of

the Wells Fargo Bank the thought that they could

take drafts that were deposited there for collec-

tion and offset them, or that they were reserving

rights against any drafts that were there for

collection, that I certainly would have endeavored

to take them out. I did not know that that was
impossible because my understanding was that

certain drafts tvere there for collection only and
were not tinder that afireement. I understood

that it could be done. I doubt very much whether

I made inquiry earlier than May of 1931 as to

my right to withdraw the drafts because there was
never the slightest doubt in m}^ mind that there

was any possibility that drafts for collection

could be offset

—

drafts that were not under an
agreement—the ordinary drafts." (R. 231.)

''The information upon which I based my state-

ment that I never had any idea that the bank
could exercise any lien upon these drafts came
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from various soiu'ces. 1 cannot say exactly. I can

only say that I had, myself, become firmly im-

pressed with the idea that first of all there was

no possibility of the bank asserting- any lien

against any drafts for collection and also that

the bank had not in its telegram reserved any

lien of any character on ordinary collections. * * *

It became firmly imprinted in my mind and it

was an extraordinary experience to me when the

bank exercised it later because I thought there

was no possibility of its being done." (R. 231-2.)

Still later he testified

:

"With respect to that part of Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit No. 3 which is the response made by the

bank to my wire of January 16th, reading as

follows: 'We are holding certain collections as

security for acceptances. Please understand that

we continue to reserve all our rights for banker's

lien against these collections,' I understood that

it referred to such draffs as they ivere holding as

security. 1 did not understand at that time that

this telegram related to any drafts not held by

the bank as security and understood by me to be

held by the bank merely for purposes of collec-

tion." (R. 235.)

That the banks likewise so understood the telegram

is shown not only by the protests voiced by them when

appellant summarily seized the proceeds of the drafts

here involved, but likewise by the action of the Se-

curity Bank in thereafter turnmg over to the receiver

the proceeds of drafts in its possession at the time of

his appointment. With respect to such protests, Mr.

McDuffie testified:
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' ^ I have heard some of those bankers voice their

protests against the action taken by the Wells

Fargo Bank in attempting to exercise the banker's

lien or right of set-off against collection of those

particular drafts. Every banker with whom I dis-

cussed it protested. Some of them voiced such

protests not only in my hearing and presence,

but likewise in the hearing and presence of Mr.
Ward Sullivan and Mr. Roche." (R. 233.)

That the Security Bank credited the receiver with

the collections from drafts in its possession at the

time of his appointment is also shown by Mr. Mc-

Duffie, his testimony being:

^'I know that the Security-First National Bank
had drafts for collection and that the collections

as made were credited to the account of the re-

ceiver." (R. 235.)

This subject-matter was also testified to by Mr.

Pope, his testimony being:

(The Schedule) "refers to five drafts depos-

ited by Richfield Oil Company before receiver-

ship aggregating $152,524.03. This smn was col-

lected by Security-First National Bank after the

appointment of the receiver and after the re-

ceipt of the telegram of January 16, 1931 by the

bank and after all of the other banks had sent

in their telegrams, which proceeds were paid over
to the receiver by Security-First National Bank.
These drafts had been deposited by the Richfield

Oil Company with that bank for collection only."

(R. 335.)

Appellant seems to derive some comfort from the

circumstance that in the replies sent to the receiver's
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telegram by the various banks to which the telegram

was sent, reference is made only to the cash balances.

(App's. Br, 11.) However, it is only necessary to re-

mind the court that in none of these banks excepting

the Security Bank had any collections been depos-

ited, nor were there any assets or securities belonging

to the Richfield Company in the possession of these

banks other than and excepting cash balances. Ob-

viously, the reply of each of these related exclusively

to such cash balances because they constituted the

only assets or credits of the Richfield Company in

their possession. The vSecurity Bank was located in

Los Angeles. Its rej^resentatives were constantly in

touch with the Richfield Company and, after the ap-

pointment of the receiver, Mr. Hardacre, its principal

representative, was present at and participated in

the meeting of January 16, 1931, and likewise assisted

in framing the telegram which was transmitted by

the receiver to the various banks.

Mr. Hardacre 's understanding of the response sent

by appellant to the receiver (Plff 's. Ex. 3) is demon-

strated by the action of his bank in not only restoring

cash balances in excess of $40,000 (Plff's. Ex. 9),

hat in thereafter crediting to receiver's account collec-

tions aggregating $152,524.08, upon all of which, in

the absence of the agreement contended for, it had

the right to exercise its right of banker's lien and

setoff.

The letters immediately thereafter passing between

receiver and the banks relating to the cash balances

are of no significance because at that particular time

they were dealing with nothing but the cash balances
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that had either been restored or upon which the right

of setoff was agreed not to be exercised.

As has already been pointed out, the understanding

of the creditor banks of the agreement existing be-

tween them is convincingly established by their atti-

tude upon learning of the seizure of the Richfield

funds by appellant bank. Upon this subject Mr. Mc-

Duffie testified:

''I told them, and I know that I told them, as

it was an important item, and I considered that

I had a distinct duty toward them and therefore

I advdsed them explicitly in the matter; I con-

sidered that not only had the Wells Fargo Bank
broken faith as far as the receiver was con-

cerned, but it had broken faith with those banks,

and I told them I would pursue to the utmost

my endeavor to get that money returned, be-

cause I did not think that in any sense of the

word Wells Fargo had any right to do it. I ex-

plained the situation as best I could, how it all

came about. Everyone of them protested. Not
only that they felt there was no right in it, but

that they themselves never would have restored

their balances had they thought Wells Fargo was
reserving in its mind this character of right."

(R. 237.)

(a) The practical contemporaneous con-

struction by the parties to the agree-

ment evidenced by the telegram of

January 16, 1931, should be a guide

to the court in its interpretation.

Where the meaning of an instrument is in doubt,

or where its terms are to some extent ambiguous, or

where it is susceptible of two or more interpretations.
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and where the parties are not in accord with respect

to its meaning, the contemporaneous construction of

all of the parties as evidenced by their conduct and

actions with respect to the subject matter of the

agreement is admissible for the purpose of establish-

ing what was in fact their understanding and inten-

tion. As we will quickly point out, until May 8, 1931,

judged by the conduct of the parties, no discord

existed between them respecting the meaning of ap-

pellant's telegram of January 16, 1931. (PM's. Ex. 3.)

The contention that such practicM contemporaneous

construction is an appropriate guide to the action

of the court in construing such telegram and in de-

termining the understanding and intention of the par-

ties is supported by numerous authorities. Among

the many, we cite:

Keith V. Electric Enginfering Co., 136 Cal. 178-

181;

Mayherry v. Alhamhra Co., 125 Cal. 444-6;

Rosenhaum v. Robert Dollar Co., 31 Cal. App.

576;

HUl V. McKay, 94 Cal. 5-20;

Stein V. Archibald, 151 Cal. 220;

Rockwell V. Light, 6 Cal. App. 563-5.

This proposition deals first, with the conduct of ap-

pellant; secondly, with the conduct of the receiver of

Richfield Oil Company ; and thirdly, with the conduct

of the bank creditors other than appellaut.
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(b) Appellant itself construed its tele-

gram of January 16, 1931, as re-

serving a lien only upon the drafts

under tlie acceptances.

The receiver was appointed on January 15, 1931.

On February 26, 1931, the last group of acceptances,

totaling $25,000, was paid in full. By February 14,

1931, in anticipation of these acceptances, appellant

had applied the net proceeds of certain drafts col-

lected by it totaling $23,500.30. The difference betw^een

this smn and $25,000 was $1499.70. This sum appellee

endeavored to make up by the issuance of a draft

for acceptance by appellant and the transmission

to it of a new acceptance agreement, both of which

were subsequently returned to appellee miused. (R.

302-304.) Between February 14 and February 26

the appellant collected four drafts, the net proceeds

of w^hich aggregated $9249.28. From this sum on Feb-

ruary 26, 1931, it deducted $1499.70 w^hich, with the

fmids previously collected, paid the acceptances in

full. Appellant then had remaining in its possession

$7749.58, the proceeds of these foreign collections.

With respect to this smn, by letter dated February

26, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 107) appellant ad^dsed appellee:

*'The remainder of the proceeds totaling $7,-

749.58 we are holding in accordance with notice

given you by our wire of January 16th."

Thereafter and on March 2, 1931, appellee, under-

standing as he did that by the wire referi'ed to, ap-

pellant had reserved its lien upon ''certain'' drafts

being the drafts under the acceptance agreement, and

being unable to appreciate u])on what theory appel-
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lant claimed the right to hold such proceeds, wired

appellant (Plff's. Ex. 109) requesting it to repeat to

him its telegram of January 16. On the same day by

telegram, appellant repeated its wire of January 16.

(Plff's. Ex. 110.) Upon receipt of this wire, appellee

undoubtedly compared it with appellant's original

telegram of January 16 (Plff's. Ex. 3), and realizing

that there was no difference in the \^^res and being

con^dnced that appellant had no right to retain the

proceeds of these drafts under its reservation con-

tained in its wire of January 16, on March 3 wrote

appellant the following letter (Plff 's. Ex. 108)

:

''Referring to your letter of Febi^uary 26th, ad-

vising us of payment of certain drafts totaling

$9260.81, less certain charges amounting to $11.53,

leaving a balance of $9249.28 from which you

are taking $1499.70 to meet the balance due on

acceptances February 26th, leaving the sum of

$7749.58 to be credited to our account, and re-

ferring to your telegram of January 16th, I beg

to inform you that all banks transferred the total

amount of deposit to the credit of Richtield Oil

Company of California on January 15th, 1931, to

the credit of William C. McDuffie, Receiver. I

will therefore appreciate it if you will kindly

credit the remainder of the proceeds so men-
tioned above $7749.58 to the credit of Richfield

Oil Company of California, William C. McDuffie,

Receiver, and advise us as soon as this transfer

has been made." (Plff's. Ex. 106.)

Thereupon and on March 5, 1931, without any other

commiinication passing hettveen appellee and appel-

lant, appellant credited the receiver's account with
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$7749.58 and wrote to appellee the following com-

munication :

''March 5, 1931.

We refer to your letter of March 3 regarding

funds received representing proceeds of collec-

tions.

In accordance with your request, we are credit-

ing the accomit of William C. McDuffie, Receiver,

Richfield Oil Company of California, with the

sum of $7749.58.

We are also crediting this account with $11,-

082.51, representing proceeds of collection No.

13,106 of the Richfield Oil Company of Cali-

fornia, particulars as per memorandmn attached.

Yours very truly,"

It must be obvious to the court that upon the lan-

guage of the wire of January 16, 1931, being called

to the attention of the appellant and its consideration

of the circmnstances under which it was prepared and

the purpose sought to be achieved by the receiver as

well as all bank creditors of Richfield Company in

negotiating the agreement, that it realized that the

receiver was entitled to the funds, and that it had no

claim against them.

Furthermore, in the letter last quoted, reference

is made to the collection of the proceeds of draft No.

13,106 for $11,107.50, the net proceeds of which

amounted to $11,082.51. A reference to Schedule C

(Plff's. Ex. 117) will disclose that this draft was

deposited with appellant on January 9, 1931. It will

also be noted that nowhei'e in Plff's. Ex. 106 is any

reference whatever made either to this draft or to its
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proceeds, and yet of its o^vn initiative and in the

absence of any request from appellee, appellant cred-

ited the receiver's account \vith the net proceeds of

this draft.

Between February 26, 1931 and May 8, 1931, in ad-

dition to the four drafts first above mentioned and

ill addition to the net proceeds of draft No. 13,106,

amounting to $11,082.51, the bank collected the pro-

ceeds of nine drafts, the net proceeds of which

amounted to $15,381.62, and deposited each of these

collections to the account of the receiver. The num-

ber, gross amount, net proceeds, date of deposit with

appellant and date of payment of each draft are

shown on Schedule H. (Plff's. Ex. 117.)

With respect to these collections the evidence shows

without dispute that the net proceeds of each of these

drafts was likewise credited to the account of the

receiver without any affirmative act or request upon

his part or on the part of any of the officials of Rich-

field Company, but solely upon the uninfluenced initia-

tive of appellant. The total sum thus credited to the

account of the receiver by appellant, representing

the net proceeds of drafts deposited before his ap-

pointment, but collected thereafter, including the above

mentioned sum of $7749.58, amounts to $.34,213.71.

(Schedule I, Plff's. Ex. 117.)

In connection with the subject matter under dis-

cussion, it ^^-ill be noted by the coui-t that every col-

lection made by ai)pellant between February 26, 1931,

when the acceptances were paid in full, and May 8,

1931, was thus credited to the account of the receiver.
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and that no banker's lien or right of setoff was at-

tempted to be exercised as to any draft or its pro-

ceeds. It should also be noted that whenever a draft

was collected, and its net proceeds credited to the

receiver's account, a written advice of such action

was transmitted by appellant to the receiver. In no in-

stance during- this period did appellant by letter,

wire or word of mouth, assert, intimate or suggest

to the receiver or any official or employee of the

Richfield Company that it was reserving or claiming

to reserve or had the right to exercise any banker's

lien or right of setoff as to these drafts or their pro-

ceeds. It will further be noted that during this entire

period of time, appellant had in its possession all

of the drafts, the proceeds of which are here involved,

including the three 180-day sight drafts on Birla

Bros., and that at no time, by letter, wire or word of

mouth did it assert, suggest or intimate that it was

holding any of these drafts as security for the debt

due to it from Richfield Company, or that it intended

to subject any of these drafts to its alleged banker's

lien, or that it contemplated oi- intended to offset

the proceeds, or any of them, when collected, to such

indebtedness.

In its discussion of the effect of the crediting of

the draft proceeds to the receiver, appellant states:

"Appellee further claims that appellant's con-

duct after the transmission of its telegram of Jan-

uary 16th has evidentiary force adverse to appel-

lant on the question of waiver of lien. Appellee's

contention in this respect is that the subsequent

relinquishment by appellant to the receiver of

some of the draft j^roceeds is evidence confirming
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the interpretation which appellee places on ap-

pellant's telegram of January 16." (Api3. Br.

134.)

It is undoubtedly true that such action did confirm

^'appellee's interpretation" of appellant's telegram,

but it also demonstrates that the appellant bank did

in fact agree to the waiver as claimed, because the

crediting of these proceeds of the drafts to the re-

ceiver was and is convincing evidence that appellant

had no claim upon the collections. It established such

waiver b}^ proving that its subsequent transactions

were in harmony only with the existence of the waiver

and inconsistent with appellant's present claim. Fur-

thermore, it was evidence showing that appellant con-

strued and understood its telegram (Plff's. Ex. 3)

as a waiver of all collections which were not under the

acceptance agreements.

Appellant would have this court assume that the

collections made by it between January 16, 1931, and

May 8, 1931, constituted moneys voluntarily restored

by it to the receiver in the absence of any legal obliga-

tion requiring such credits. Aside from the other ob-

vious infirmities of this claim it is out of harmony

with the action subsequently taken by appellant. Re-

gardless of what a])pellant asserts to the contrary, the

financial condition of the Richfield Company w^as no

different in May than it was in February. In fact,

considering the character of tax which had to be paid

in February, its financial distress was then more

acute. The non-payment when due of property taxes

only results in a lien upon the real property and not

its immediate sale. Failing to pay the gasoline tax,
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however, would bring about a forfeiture of the right of

Richfield to further continue the sale and distribution

of gasoline which was its principal business, the

result of which would have been bankruptcy.

The statement of Eisenbach that the Richfield Com-

pam^ was in danger of bankrui)tcy in May w^as de-

stroyed under his cross-examination and was clearly

refuted by the evidence of Mr. McDuffie w^ho was ob-

viously more familiar with the receivership and its

affairs than Mr. Eisenbach. Upon cross-examination

the former said:

"During the first year that I was receiver there

w^as never a time when the Richfield Oil Company
was not in dire need of cash, and it was neces-

sary for me during that time to get in my pos-

session as quickly as possible all available funds."

(R. 235-6.)

Furthermore, the very fact that even though de-

prived of the funds that are here involved, which were

so necessary to the business activity of the receiver,

bankruptcy proceedings failed to result, is a com-

plete negation of the unsupported claim of Eisenbach

that in May, 1931, bankruptcy proceedings were be-

lieved to be imminent.

Appellant would have the court believe that in

crediting appellee's account with the sum of $7749.58

on March 5, 1931, and the additional sum of $11,-

082.51 it was merely cooperating with the receiver

and gratuitously bestowing upon him the aggregate

of the two sums just mentioned. We are unable

to appreciate the argument thus made nor do we

understand how it can seriouslv assert that in
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crediting these funds it merely "acceded to the re-

quest of the receiver." Until the receipt of appel-

lant's letter of February 26, 1931 (Plff 's. Ex. 107) ap-

pellee had not been advised that the collections re-

ferred to therein had been made. After stating that

the outstanding acceptances had been paid in full,

the letter proceeds:

"The remainder of the proceeds totaling

$7749.58 we are holding in accord with the notice

given you by our wire of Jan. 16."

The natural import of this language was that they

were retaining the sum of $7749.58 under a claim

of right given recognition in its wire of January 16th.

If the receiver had understood Plft*'s. Ex. 3 as con-

tended for by appellant bank, and he desired it to

cooperate with him to the extent of permitting him

to utilize these funds, although having no right thereto,

he would have immediately written appellant bank to

that effect. But the receiver engaged in no such con-

duct. He re-read the telegram (Plff's. Ex. 3) for the

purpose of ascertaining whether he was mistaken in

the construction previously placed upon it by him

and finding nothing inconsistent with his understand-

ing he assmned that the original contained some lan-

guage omitted from the copy delivered to him. Ac-

cordingly he wired a])pellant bank to repeat its tele-

gram of January 16th. Up<in reading th(^ i-epeated

wire and realizing that he had not misunderstood the

original (Plff's. Ex. 3) he wrote to appellant bank

as already shown. (Supra ]^. 78.) This letter cannot

be construed as a mere "request" for cooperation or

a request that moneys to which the receiver was not
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legally entitled should be gratuitously bestowed upon

him. It was a plain, unvarnished and unambiguous

statement that because the other banks had carried

out their part of the agreement the receiver, as a mat-

ter of right, was entitled to the $7749.58. It was a

declaration that b}^ the language of PM's. Ex. 3 the

miderstanding of the receiver was that appellant

had no claim of any kind to any of the collections

not deposited under the acceptance agreements. Ac-

cording to the testimony of appellant, this letter was

read not only by Gilstrap, to whose attention it was

directed, but by the executives of the bank. They

had either before them or in mind all of the tele-

grams passing between the parties, including Plff's.

Exs. 2 and 3, and were ad^'ised that the request or

demand of the receiver for the return to him of the

$7749.58 was based upon a JegaJ right to such funds.

He did not go to appellant in the attitude of a sup-

IDlicant begging for financial assistance to which he

was rightfully entitled. He requested the return to

him of the withheld funds upon the asserted claim that

he was legally entitled thereto.

And did the appellant bank, when thus called upon

to challenge the claim advanced by the receiver, if

made without justification, advise him of any mis-

understanding ? Most assuredly not ! It not only turned

over to him without protest the $7749.58, but in ad-

dition thereto credited his account with $11,082.51

concerning which there had been neither corres])on-

dence nor communication. If any basis whatever ex-

ists for the appellant's contention that the $7749.58

was credited to appellee because of his request, it is
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inconceivable why api)ellant should vohmtarily turn

over to the receiver the additional smn of $11,082.51

as to which no request had been made, and concern-

ing the collection of which the receiver then lacked

knowledge, excepting that the receiver was legally

entitled to such funds.

Notwithstanding the persuasive character of the

evidence just referred to, that Plff's. Ex. 3 should

be interpreted as claimed by appellee is also con-

clusively established by the proof of claim of appellant

filed in the receivership proceeding on March 28,

1931, before this controversy arose, by F. A. Raymond,

one of appellant's principal officials. In the claim he

is characterized as ''vice president and cashier".

After describing the indebtedness due from Rich-

field Oil Company to appellant, which at that time

amounted to $636,189.95, it is stated:

''that there are no offsets or counterclaims to said

debt; no notes or other evidences of indebtedness

have been taken or received except those of which

copies are hereto attached; no judgment has been

rendered for such indebtedness or any part there-

of; and no claim to preference in payment from

the receivership estate is made; that no securities

are held by said claimant for said indebtedness."

(R. 366-7.)

On the same date appellant filed in the receiver-

ship proceeding another proof of claim arising out of

an indebtedness due appellant for services rendered

as registrar. This claim was verified by A. J. Calla-

han its "assistant trust officer". In this latter proof
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of claim, after stating the basis of the indebtedness, it

is stated:

''that there are no offsets or counterclaims to said

debt * * * no claim to preference in payment from

the receivership estate is made excei^t as to a check

for $846.50 and that no securities are held by

claimant for said indebtedness." (R. 367-8.)

It is true that on or about May 19, 1931, ten days

after appellant seized the funds herein involved and

some days after the protest against such seizure had

been made by appellee, an amended ijroof of claim

was prepared and sought to be filed by appellant.

(R. 464-5.) This amended claim, however, is lacking

in evidentiary value, considering the time when and

the circumstances under which it was attempted to

be filed. No amended claim, however, was ever pro-

posed or filed as a substitute for the proof of claim

verified by Callahan.

(c) Receiver construed Plff's. Ex. 3 as

reserving a lien only upon the drafts

under the acceptances.

We have already commented upon Mr. McDuffie's

understanding of the telegram of January 16, 1931

(Plif's. Ex. 3), and have called to the attention of

the court the testimony given by him addressed to this

subject. (Supra, pp. 70-72.)

We have shown that fi'oin time to time the net

proceeds of the drafts not applied in anticipation of

payment of acceptances were credited to the account

of the receiver in ai:>pellant bank and utilized by the

receiver in accord with the order appointing him
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receiver. That he assumed that these collections and

credits were in accord with the understanding reached

between himself and appellant and the remaining

bank creditors is evidenced from the circumstance that

such procedure caused no conunent on his part. While

it might be asserted that this latter evidence was

more or less negative in character, his understanding

and interpretation of the telegram is demonstrated

by the action taken by him the very instant that ap-

pellant engaged in conduct antagonistic to such under-

standing. The incident here referred to arose out of

the statement contained in appellant's letter of Feb-

ruary 26, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 107) in which it was stated

that the latter was holding $7749.58 "in accordance

with notice given you by our wire of January 16th."

The receiver's insistence that these net proceeds should

be forthwith credited to his account because of the

contents of appellant's telegram of January 16, 1931

(Plff's. Ex. 3) which must be taken in connection

with the previous wire of appellee likewise dated

Januar}^ 16, 1931 (PJlf's. Ex. 2) and the surroimding

circmnstances already mentioned, establish beyond

question that the receiver understood that by its tele-

gram, appellant continued to I'eserve a lien only upon

the drafts actually under the acceptances. As has

already been shown this understanding was confirmed

by the subsequent action of appellant which, without

objection, credited to receiver's account all of said

proceeds. (Plff's. Ex. 108.)

It further appears that just as quickly as the re-

ceiver learned, on May 8, 1932, that appellant was

claiming the right to retain the proceeds of the drafts
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in question under its alleged banker's lien or right

of setoif, he not only personally protested, stating

what his understanding of the agreement was, but im-

mediately sent Hall to San Francisco to insist that

the position taken by appellant be reversed. His de-

mand for the payment to him of the proceeds being

refused, this litigation resulted. It, therefore, appears

without conflict that continuously since the receipt of

appellant's wire of January 16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 3)

the receiver understood that appellant was merely re-

serving a lien upon the drafts under the acceptances,

and that at no time by correspondence, word of mouth,

act or conduct has he indicated that his understanding

was otherwise.

(d) The bank creditors of Richfield like-

wise interpreted appellant's telegram

of January 16, 1931, in accordance

with the interpretation placed upon

it by Receiver,

It has already been pointed out that the bank cred-

itors of Richfield Company, fully conversant with its

affairs and financial status, were insistent upon and

brought about the appointment of the receiver, such

appointment being required and made for the purpose

of enabling the company's business to be carried on,

its properties protected from sacrifice and to avoid

bankruptcy. In the preceding pages of this brief we

have shown that immediately after his apj)ointment,

the receiver, in conference with representatives of all

of said bank creditors other than appellant, insisted

that all offset cash balances be restored, and that the

credits and balances of the Richfield Company in the
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possession of said banks, including appellant, be made

available to him, otherwise he would retire from the

receivership, the result of which would precipitate

bankruptcy. We have also called to the attention of

the court the telegram sent by the receiver to the

banks, including appellant, and that by way of elab-

oration of said telegram, and in order that appellant

would have full knowledge of the cii'cumstances under

w^hich it was written, and the purposes intended to be

accomplished by the receiver, the substance of what

had occurred at the meeting between the receiver and

the bank creditors was communicated to appellant, and

thereafter appellant transmitted to the receiver its

ware of January 16, 1931. (Plif's. Ex. 3.)

It seems to us to be umiecessary to be obliged to

argue that the pur])ose sought to be accomplished

by the bankers, including appellant, by the agree-

ment entered into between them and the receiver was

to enable the business of Richfield to be carried on.

This was, and necessarily had to be the "spirit'*

if not the body of the agreement. That such was the

primary and principal object of the receivership is

evidenced by the recitations contained in the order

appointing the receiver.

Shortly after its receipt, Plff's. Ex. 3 was read to

some of the banker creditors (R. 227), among others,

Mr. Hardacre, representative of Security Bank. That

these banker creditors interpreted Plff's. Ex. 3 in ac-

cord with the interpretation placed upon it by the

receiver is made manifest not only because of the

object sought to be attained, ^dz. : the continuance
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of the business of Richfield, but from their subse-

quent conduct. At the time of the receiver's aj)point-

ment, the Security Banlc had in its possession for

collection foreign drafts aggregating $152,524.03. Not

only did it waive its right of offset against the cash

balances belonging to Richfield then in its possession,

but in addition thereto, as the proceeds of these drafts

were collected, they were forthwith credited to the

account of the receiver. This action on the imrt of the

Security Bank is more eloquent respecting the mean-

ing of appellant's wire (Plif 's. Ex. 3) than any tes-

timony that could be given by its representative.

Furthermore, when the bankers learned of the action

taken by appellant on May 8, 1931, they vehemently

protested, their protests being bottomed upon the

ground that such action was a clear violation of the

agreement entered into between them, the receiver

and the appellant. (R. 237.)

Use of word "basis" miscon-

strued by appellant.

Although it is evident from the testimony of Hall

and Pope, confirmed and amplified by the correspon-

dence, conduct and actions of the parties, that the

definite understanding was that only short-term drafts

should be under the acceptances, appellant claims that

because upon occasions the word "basis" was used by

some of the parties, what the appellant meant was

that the short-term drafts would be used as the basis

of the amount of the acceptances to be issued and not

as the sole security to be taken by the bank to insure

payment of such acceptances. The meaning of the
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word "basis" when used by a witness necessarily must

depend upon the meaning- intended to be given to it

by the person testifying-. To ascertain such meaning

reference should be had to all of the witness's testi-

mony upon the particular subject-matter in connec-

tion with which the word ''basis" was sometimes used.

An examination of the testimony of both Hall and

Pope will establish beyond any possible doubt that the

agreement entered into between appellant and Rich-

field was as claimed by appellee and not as asserted

by appellant.

The point here made can be readily illustrated by an

extract from the testimony of Pope wherein he testi-

fied:

"Mr. Gilstrap told us that he would be glad to

take the 180 day paper for collection. He told us

that we could not use the 180 day paper (upon

which) to base bank acce])tances. He told us that

it would be necessary to put up a sufficient amount

of drafts in money to cover the bank acceptances.

It would only be necessary to have enough from

the proceeds of the drafts to cover the bank

acceptances to be paid." (R. 263.)

And again:

"To the best of my knowledge there was also

an agreement that the 180 day drafts would be

accepted for collection only and not be used as a

basis for the issuance of acceptances. The Rich-

field Oil Company w^as only required to deposit

sufficient drafts, the net ])roceeds of which would

satisfy the amount of the bank acceptances." (R.

314.)
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And further:

*'We asked Mr. Gilstrap if he could not issue

acceptances against the whole shipment and he

said that he could not because the time of the 180

day drafts was too lone: to be used as a basis for

banker's acceptances * * * that the 180 day

drafts, as I understood it, were definitely out be-

cause they were too long." (R. 319.)

Lyons' letter (Def. Ex. A) is lacking in

evidentiary value.

Appellant apparently attaches great importance to

the letter of Lyons dated October 7, 1930. (Def 's. Ex.

A.) When consideration is given to the circumstances

surrounding the writing of this letter, as well as to the

purpose sought to be accomplished by it, coupled with

the fact that Lyons had no connection with and was

lacking in detailed knowledge of the transaction evi-

denced by the acceptance agreement, the conclusion is

inevitable that it is of no importance or legal signifi-

cance. The transaction in question was negotiated

exclusively by Hall and Pope. Lyons at no tune par-

ticipated therein. The acceptance agreement, together

with the unaccepted drafts amounting to $150,000

were delivered by Hall and Pope to Gilstrap on Octo-

ber 6th. At this time the Richfield Company was in

dire financial distress and it was essential that funds

be obtained at the earliest possible moment. On the

evening of October 6th Hall and Pope returned to Los

Angeles. On the evening of the following day Hall

left Los Angeles for San Francisco bringing with him

among other things the four Birla Bros, drafts to-

gether with transmittal letters. Ordinarily the two
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transmittal letters, with the drafts and documents re-

ferred to therein, would have been transmitted to

appellant by mail. If such had been the procedure the

Lyons letter would not have been written. Hall came

to San Francisco not because it was necessary that the

transmittal letters, drafts and documents should be

delivered personally, but to enable him to obtain forth-

with the $115,000 in order that it could be utilized in

Los Angeles before the night of that day. (R. 347-8.)

To permit such use, upon the net proceeds of the ac-

ceptances being credited to the account of Richfield the

.deposit slip was telephoted to Los Angeles. Lyons was

interested in getting the $115,000 and getting it quickly,

and the letter was written by him with this object

alone in view. The details of this transaction had al-

ready been agreed upon. The letter did not undertake

to restate such details or to modify or restrict them

in any mamier, nor did it undertake to change, modify

or alter the agreement already made. It was the char-

acter and type of letter that anyone under like circmn-

stances would have written, the writer never imagining

that it would subsequently be characterized as illus-

trative of the agreement existing betAveen the parties.

We are unable to comprehend the basis for the claim

that this communication should be taken as a substi-

tute for the negotiations previously conducted by the

parties as well as for the agreement entered into be-

tw^een them definitely fixing their rights and obliga-

tions. That the appellant itself attached no importance

to the letter is further evidenced by the circumstance

that its contents were never discussed by the officials

of the bank with any of the representatives of the
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Richfield Company. A conclusive reason why this

communication is utterly lacking as an important ele-

inent in this case is that while it refers to ''shipment"

the evidence of all of the witnesses, including Gilstrap,

a portion of whose testimony is above quoted proves

conclusively that the agreement related to drafts and

to nothing else. But that the Lyons letter is not

susceptible of the meaning imputed to it by appel-

lant and that the understanding of Lyons was ex-

actly in accord with that testified to by Hall and

Pope, and that whatever understanding he had upon

the subject was that only short-term drafts were being

deposited as security under the acceptance, the balance

being sent to the bank for collection alone is conclu-

sively proven by the correspondence dictated by Pope

but read and signed by Lyons, the first written within

six days after the letter stressed by defendant (Deft's.

Ex. A) and the second written less than two weeks

thereafter.

The first letter written by Lyons to appellant after

the transmission of Deft's. Ex. A was dated October

13, 1930, and was as follows:

"Our records show that we have in your good

bank a draft reserve for $9,734.16 against which

no acceptances have been issued.

If this information is correct please issue one

of the drafts which you now hold for $5,000 pay-

able in 90 days.

Thanking you for your courtesy in this matter. '

'

(Plff's. Ex. 28.)

This letter demonstrates that Lyons' understanding

was not only that drafts, but that certain specified
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drafts, had been deposited as security for the payment

of the acceptances issued. No other construction can

be given to the letter. Its languai^e is clear, definite,

positive and certain. But if any doubt whatever could

arise as to its meaning and as to the understanding of

Lyons it will be (]uickly dispelled by reading the lat-

ter 's letter of October 20th. This letter was written

while Mr. Gilstrap was in Los Angeles and after he

had conferred with the officials of Richfield. (R.

349.) Because of the absence of Mr. Gilstrap it is

addressed to Mr. Luenberger. There it is said

:

''In talking wdth Mr. Gilstrap Saturday, he in-

formed us that we might use our collection niunber

103010, your number 46843, on La Paz, Bolivia,

as reserve against acceptances. Under these cir-

cimistances, would you please issue an acceptance

for $10,000.00 to mature in 90 days. * * *

Your courtesy in this matter is ax^preciated.

"

(Plff's. Ex. 30.)

These two letters were dictated b}^ Pope and signed by

Lyons at a time immediately following the inception

of the transactions involved when the parties had

clearly in mind the details of the agreement made and

long before any dispute or controversy arose either

over the subject matter of the agreement or regarding

what drafts were deposited under the acceptance

agreement. In fact at this time the relations between

the parties were extremely cordial and friendly.

With these two letters before us, regardless of all

other testimony upon the subject, the argmnent con-

structed by appellant upon the Lyons' letter of Octo-

ber 7th disintegrates.
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That Deft's. Ex. A is not susceptible to the inter-

pretation given it by appellant is also shown by the

witness Pope, who on cross-examination testified

:

''With reservations, I should say that plain-

tiff's Exhibits 22 and 23 are the letters of trans-

mittal and the shipping* documents referred to in

the letter of October 7th, which has Just been

marked Defendant's Exhibit 'A', my reservations

being that due to our understanding with Mr.
Gilstrap and our conversation, the docmnents that

we had to refer to with respect to the issuance of

the $115,000.00 worth of bank acceptances were

the sight drafts. * * * It was my understanding

that the payment of $115,000.00 was to be made
against drafts." (R. 317.)

Comparison of records kept by parties

to tlie transaction.

Criticism is made by appellant of the records kept

in the Richfield office respecting the foreign collections

deposited with Wells Fargo Bank as not definitely

showing what drafts were, and what were not under

the acceptance agreement. No foundation whatever

exists for such criticism. Pope kept in his office a

detailed record of all drafts. (R. 249.) He also kept

records showing what particular drafts, according to

his understanding of the agreement were under the

acceptances, consisting of little pencil memos. (R.

305.) He also used the correspondence with the bank

for the purpose of indicating when the drafts were

collected and the amount of their proceeds. (R. 305.)

Why any additional records should have been kept

by him is not explained. In its brief appellant states

that
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"there was no evidence introduced as to where, or

how or when these 'little pencil memorandums'
were kept, nor were they produced at the trial."

(Appellant's Br. p. 61.)

We cannot help but manifest some surprise at this

latter statement. Appellant's counsel were not pre-

vented from interrogating the witness respecting this

subject matter and, unless appellant's counsel were

apprehensive lest such cross-examination would have

been prejudicial, the inquiry would have been pursued.

FurtheiTnore, the records were not demanded. If they

had been, they would have been made available to

comisel. The inference arising from the absence of

any such demand is that appellant's counsel either

assumed or knew that they would have been produced,

and that their production would be fatal to appellant's

claim.
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ARGUMENT.

This subdivision of our brief will be confined to

a statement of the propositions upon which appellee

relies for an affirmance of the judgment of the court

below, together with a citation of the statutory pro-

visions and judicial precedents supporting his posi-

tion.

ORDER OF PRESENTATION.

While in our sequential and chronological presen-

tation of the facts we dealt with the agreement

entered into betw^een Richfield Company and appel-

lant in which it was understood

'Hhat the collection of the foreign drafts by ap-

pellant should be entirely separate and apart

from all financial obligations and transactions

theretofore or thereafter to be conducted in the

ordinary course of business between appellant

and appellee" (Finding 1, R. 184),

in presenting this argument before touching said

agreement we intend to address ourselves to the agree-

ment of January 16, 1930 (Finding 19, R. 190-1),

because in our judgment this court can quickly con-

clude that the finding of the low^er court with respect

to this latter agreement is not only sustained by the

evidence, but the existence of the agreement demon-

strated, and it will therefore become unnecessary to

give consideration to the evidence establishing the

prior agreement which occupies a very substantial

portion of the record.
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OPINION OF LOWER COURT.

At this point we believe it proper to state that in

determining this controversy an opinion was filed by

Hon. Frank H. Norcross, judge by whom this action

was tried, in which the evidence which forms the basis

of his conclusions is succinctly and clearly stated.

This opinion is contained in the record (R. 156-180)

and itself conclusively establishes not only that the

court's findings are supported by the evidence but that

upon a consideration of the whole evidence no other

determination would have been justified.
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I.

IT WAS DEFINITELY AGREED BETWEEN THE RICHFIELD
COMPANY AND APPELLANT THAT ONLY THE SO-CALLED
SHORT-TERM DRAFTS SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AS SE-

CURITY UNDER THE ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENTS AND
THAT THE REMAINING DRAFTS SHOULD BE DEPOSITED
FOR COLLECTION ONLY.

Appellee's claim that it was agreed between appel-

lant and Richfield Company that only drafts having

their maturity and the proceeds of which would be

received in San Francisco not later than one day in

advance of the maturity of the acceptances would be

eligible or received for deposit under the acceptance

agreements, and that it Avas further agreed that none

of the Birla Bros, drafts having a maturity of 180

days, nor other drafts, unless meeting the requirements

just specified, could be eligible for or received as

security under any acceptance agreement, but that

these last mentioned drafts would be deposited with

appellant solely for the purpose of collection, is com-

prehensibly given consideration in our statement of

facts and needs no reiteration.

At the very threshold of this discussion we invite

the court's attention to a proposition which effectively

disposes of appellant's contention that all foreign

drafts were under the acceptances. It is admitted by

both parties that regardless of the other details of the

arrangement it was definitely agreed that all accep-

tances issued should mature in ninety days. It is like-

wise conceded that the acceptances would have to be

paid at maturity and that the moneys would have

to be available for this purpose no longer than one day

prior to the date of such maturity.
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The issuance and release of bank acceptances is part

of the routine business of a commercial bank. Upon

each of these transactions it charges a commission. It

InAdtes business of this character, provided, of course,

it is assured that the money to become due upon the

acceptances at their maturity will be forthcoming. It

is therefore obvious that if the Richfield Company had

secured appellant to the extent of the money becoming

due upon the acceptances no reluctance would have

existed on the part of the bank to execute and release

the acceptances required. It is equally obvious that

drafts not payable either on or in advance of the

maturity dates of the acceptances would not be ac-

ceptable to appellant as security upon which to issue

its bank acceptances.

It will be recalled by the court that during the

August visit of Hall the financial stability of the

foreign customers of Richfield was discussed. (R.

340-1.) Later a list of these foreign creditors was

submitted to the bank for consideration and investiga-

tion. (R. 345.) Appellant undoubtedly satisfied itself

that all of these customers were financially responsible

except Birla Bros. Ltd. as to which certain adverse in-

formation was received from its correspondent in Cal-

cutta. (R. 346.) As to the latter, however, no objec-

tion could be urged against sight drafts drawn by it

for the reason that such sight drafts had to he paid in

full before the documents representing the shipment

would he delivered. (R. 401.) Regardless of the

agreement, therefore, it must be apparent that if the

Richfield Company had agreed to deliver to appellant

sufficient sight drafts drawn upon Birla Bros. Ltd. and
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other drafts drawn upon its other foreign customers

payable prior to the maturity of the acceptances to be

issued by it, such drafts would have been accepted by

the bank as ample security for the obligation assumed

by it in executing and releasing such acceptances. On
the other hand, no believable reason could exist for the

delivery to appellant of drafts having a maturity long

after the due date of the acceptances—in some in-

stances many months thereafter—to satisfy appellant

that the acceptances would be paid when due.

Particularly considering the then tinancial condition

of Richfield Company and its constant need of funds,

miless therefore the agreement between the parties

provided for a continuing or revolving credit, it is

incredible that appellant required or Richfield Com-

pany agreed to deposit with it any of these long term

drafts other than for purposes of collection. Having

demonstrated, as we believe we have, that there was

no agreement for any such continuing or revolving

credit (supra) it necessarily follows that it is unrea-

sonable to assume that the understanding claimed by

appellant that all collections, regardless of the ma-

turity of the drafts, were agreed to be deposited as

security for the acceptance agreements. However,

aside from the probabilities of the case that no such

agreement was either made or intended to be made is

definitely and conclusively established by the evidence

to which reference has already been made.
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II.

REGARDLESS OF THE DETERMINATION OF ANY OTHER
PROPOSITION, THE EVIDENCE CONCLUSIVELY ESTAB-

LISHES THAT NONE OF THE 180-DAY BIRLA BROS.

DRAFTS WAS UNDER EITHER OF THE ACCEPTANCE
AGREEMENTS, BUT ON THE CONTRARY WERE DEPOSITED
SOLELY FOR COLLECTION.

Without further elaborating upon this point, which

has already been given ample consideration in the

preceding pages of this brief, we are making the point

SO as to call it to the specific attention of the court

and are contenting ourselves with the statement here

that a consideration of all of the evidence must impel

the court to the conclusion that, regardless of any

other issue involved in this controversy, it has been

convincingly proven that it was never understood or

agreed that the 180-day sight drafts accepted by Birla

Bros. Ltd. should be deemed to be under the accep-

tance agreements, but, on the contrary, that so far as

these drafts were concerned, none of w^hich could by

any possibility have become payable until long after

the acceptances had matured, they were deposited

exclusively for the purpose of collection.
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III.

THE ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENTS BEING SILENT RESPECTING
THE SECURITIES TO WHICH THEY RELATE, PAROL
EVIDENCE WAS ADMISSIBLE FOR THE PURPOSE OF
IDENTIFYING SUCH SECURITIES AND ALSO TO ESTAB-
LISH THE AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE REMAINING
DRAFTS.

A cursory examination of the two agreements intro-

duced in evidence (Plff's. Exs. 16 and 38) will show

that none of the drafts intended to be deposited under

either agreement as security for the liquidation of the

acceptances to be thereafter issued by appellant were

described or identified in any manner. Imputing legal

stability to these agreements, notwithstanding such

silence, it must be apparent that parol evidence was

admissible for the purpose of identifying the securi-

ties to which the agreement related and upon which

its provisions would become fastened. This must

necessarily be so because in the absence of such parol

evidence the agreements themselves would be entirely

innocuous and of no materiality in this controversy.

While in the court below this legal proposition was

disputed, or at least not conceded, appellant here ad-

mits that the rule is as stated because in its brief it

is stated (p. 109)

:

''They (referring to authorities) were cited

by the court in support of its conclusion that

since the acceptance agreement is blank as to the

drafts deposited thereunder, parol evidence was

admissible to prove which drafts were and which

were not so deposited. There can he no question

about the correctness of this ruling/'



106

It is contended, however, by appellant that if this

court determines that all drafts were deposited under

the acceptance agreements, then the testimony of Hall

and Pope respecting the oral agreement waiving the

contractual lien provided for in the acceptance agree-

ments would be inadmissible as being in conflict with

the provisions of such acceptance agreements. (Ap-

pellant's Br. pp. 109-10.)

We have no hesitation in conceding that if all of

the drafts were proven to be under the acceptance

agreements, the conclusion stated by appellant would

follow. However, such concession is unnecessary be-

cause, as already pointed out, the lower court found

on credible evidence that only the so-called short term

drafts were deposited under the acceptance agree-

ments and that none of the drafts, the proceeds of

w^hich are here involved, w^ere so deposited or were

deposited for any purpose other than for collection.

While this finding of the lower court is attacked upon

the ground that it is against the weight of the evi-

dence, it is submitted by appellee that this court is

not concerned upon this appeal with the weight of

the evidence, and that if it determines that there is

sufficient evidence in the record to sustain the finding

criticized, it must be upheld. Appellee contends, how-

ever, that not only is the evidence sufficient to sustain

this finding, but furthermore, that it is supported by

the great weight as well as the preponderance of the

evidence.

In connection with this subject-matter, however, it

is contended by appellant that the finding of the

lower court to the effect that the drafts NOT under
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the acceptance agreements and their proceeds should

be kept separate and apart from all other transactions

between Richfield and the bank is not supported by

the evidence because the agreement testified to by

Hall and Pope related to all drafts. (Applt's Br. p.

82.) That this contention is untenable is readily ap-

parent. The agreement between appellant and Rich-

field was negotiated in August, 1930, prior to the exe-

cution or delivery of any acceptance agreement. It

was again confirmed and approved on October 6, 1930,

upon the return to San Francisco of Hall and Pope,

when the first acceptance agreement was delivered.

The only reason why the drafts placed under the ac-

ceptance agreements are not affected by the oral

agreement entered into between Richfield Company

and appellant is because of the provisions of the

written acceptance agreement in which it is provided

that all securities placed under such agreement like-

wise stand as security for all other indebtedness due

the bank. It is conceded that all of the drafts were

primarily deposited with appellant for collection, al-

though certain of these drafts, to-wit, the so-called

short term drafts, were found by the court to be like-

wise deposited as security under the acceptance agree-

ments. If none of the drafts had been deposited under

the acceptance agreements all, as well as their pro-

ceeds, would have been covered by the special oral

agreement depriving appellant of its banker's lien and

right of setoff. When, however, Richfield placed cer-

tain of these drafts under the acceptance agreement,

such drafts were thereby deprived of the benefit of

such oral agreement because of the provision found in
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the acceptance agreement to which reference is above

made. The mere circmnstance, however, that Rich-

field, by its action in placing the so-called short term

drafts under the acceptance agreements prevented

the oral agreement from longer attaching to such

short term drafts in no way removed the remaining

drafts not so deposited from the purview of such

oral agreement. The only reason v^hy the pre^dously

entered into oral agreement could not be established

as to the so-called short term drafts placed under

the written acceptance agreements was because the

terms of such acceptance agreements could not be

varied by parol. Such objection, however, could not

and did not apply to the remaining drafts not so de-

posited.

That the lower court gave recognition to the situa-

tion just narrated is clearly made manifest by its

findings. It was generally found by the court that

'^during the month of August, 1930, an oral agree-

ment was entered into between said Richfield Oil

Company of California and said defendant bank

whereby said Richfield Oil Company of Califor-

nia agreed to deposit with said bank for collec-

tion only, drafts drawn by said Richfield Oil Com-
pany of California on certain of its customers

residing in foreign countries. * * * It was
then and there further orally agreed by and be-

tween said Richfield Oil Company of California

and said bank that the collection of said foreign

drafts by said bank should be entirely separate

and apart from all other financial obligations and
transactions theretofore or thereafter to be con-

ducted in the ordinary course of business between

said parties." (Finding VIII, R. 183, 4.)
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It was further specifically found by said court that

*'exceptin^^ as to draft No. 103102 hereinabove in

Finding XV hereof referred to (not involved in

this appeal) only those foreign drafts drawn by
Richfield Oil Company of California the proceeds

of which could be and actually were received by
said defendant bank at San Francisco at least one

day before the maturity date of the acceptances

secured thereby were the subject-matter of the ac-

ceptance agreement dated October 4, 1930, and

the supplemental acceptance agreement dated No-
vember 28, 1930. All other foreign drafts drawn
by Richfield Oil Company of California, including

those set forth in Finding VIII hereof (those in-

volved in this appeal) were deposited with de-

fendant bank by said Richfield Oil Company of

California for collection only and form the sub-

ject-matter of the oral agreement made and

entered into between said parties during the

month of August, 1930." (Finding XVII, R.

189-90.)

It will thus be observed that while the low^er court,

in accord with the evidence, determined that the agree-

ment contended for by appellee was entered into dur-

ing August 1930, before either acceptance agreement

was executed or delivered, it further determined that

(as a result of the execution and delivery of said ac-

ceptance agreements) the oral agreement relied on by

appellee covered and attached to only the drafts not

deposited as security under said acceptance agree-

ments. Not only is there no inconsistency in the situa-

tion here described, but on the contrary, it is strictly

in accord with the imderstanding of the parties as re-

flected by the evidence.
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IV.

THE PARAMOUNT PURPOSE SOUGHT TO BE ACCOMPLISHED
BY THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECEIVER WAS THE CON-

TINUANCE OF THE BUSINESS OF THE RICHFIELD OIL

COMPANY.

What the bank creditors of Richfield were attempt-

ing to accomplish by the appointment of a receiver

was primarily to permit its business to continue as

formerly and without interruption and thereby to

prevent a sacrifice of its properties, it being remem-

bered that if such procedure were pursued there w^as

at least a possibility that the indebtedness due the

creditor banks would in whole or in part be ultimately

paid. The only alternative was bankruptcy.

This paramount purpose is shown by the pleadings

in the receivership proceedings, both primary and

ancillary. It is also shown by the order made in each

receivership proceeding appointing appellee receiver

of Richfield Oil Company, its properties and business.

It was conclusively proven by the testimony of Mr.

McDuffie, the receiver, as well as by the e^ddence of

Mr. Nolan, one of the chief executive officers of the

Bank of America, the principal bank creditor of

Richfield Company. No necessity exists to reiterate

here any testimony upon this subject because it is

specifically mentioned in our "Statement of Facts"

and no e\T.dence in opposition was introduced.
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V.

THE PURPOSE SOUGHT TO BE ACCOMPLISHED BY THE
AGREEMENT EVIDENCED BY RECEIVER'S TELEGRAM OF
JANUARY 16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 2) AND APPELLANT'S RE-

SPONSE OF JANUARY 16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 3) AND THE
ACQUIESCENCE THEREIN OF THE OTHER BANK CREDI-
TORS WAS TO ENABLE THE RECEIVER TO CONTINUE
THE BUSINESS WITHOUT INTERRUPTION.

We have already pointed out the paramount pur-

pose of the appointment of the receiver of Richfield

Company and its properties and business. Such pro-

ceedings would have been futile if, after his appoint-

ment and qualification, he had been deprived of the

assets, credits and funds, the possession of all of

which w^as essential to the continuance of the corpo-

ration's business and the protection of its properties.

The bank creditors of the Richfield Company, as

has already been shown, were not only thoroughly

familiar with its financial condition as well as its

necessities, but likewise knew^ that the inability of the

receiver to carry on the business of the corporation

would immediately result in bankruptcy. Ahnost im-

mediately following his appointment he learned that

certain of these bank creditors had offset cash bal-

ances belonging to Richfield in their possession as

against the indebtedness due to them. He quickly

realized that unless such cash balances were restored

and all other bank creditors would agree to refrain

from taking such action, and unless there would he

placed at his disposal all of the assets, credits and

balances of Richfield Company, it would be useless

for him to attempt to carry out or accomplish the
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very purpose for which he was appointed. Avoiding

any possible delay, a meeting was called, which was

attended by representatives of all bank creditors ex-

cepting appellant and a Seattle bank. To them he

outlined the situation and made known in no uncer-

tain language that unless he had complete control of

the company's property, and there would be turned

over to him all of its assets, credits and cash balances,

he would forthwith retire and permit the company to

go into bankruptcy. It was to avoid this result that

the agreement among the bankers and between them

and the receiver was negotiated. At the conclusion of

this meeting, a telegram was sent to all of the banks,

including appellant, which was prefaced

''as receiver I am ordered by federal court to

take over all assets including cash in hank Stop

"While you have undoubtedly right of offset such

right if exercised will seriously cripple receivers

operations"

and concluded

"local banks have indicated they will acquiesce

in this program."

In order that appellant should be apprised of the

exact situation with which the receiver was con-

fronted, as well as what would follow a lack of full

cooperation on the part of the bank creditors, at the

request of the receiver there was transmitted to the

appellant by telephone the substance of the statements

made during the course of the meeting. The preced-

ing day, appellant had already oifset Richfield 's cash

balances towards the indebtedness owing it by the
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company. On the same day there had been trans-

mitted to it by the receiver a copy of the order ap-

pointing him such receiver, wherein he was authorized

and directed to take into his exclusive possession all

of the business, property and assets of the company.

Likewise there had been transmitted to appellant re-

ceiver's telegram of January 16, 1931. (Plff's. Ex.

2.) At this time appellant was thoroughly familiar

with the embarrassed financial condition of Richfield

Company and undoubtedly realized that in order for

the receiver to continue the conduct of the company's

business it would be necessary for him to have avail-

able all funds and credits which in the ordinary course

of business would come into his possession. With

these matters in mind, defendant replied by wire to

receiver's telegram of January 16, 1931, stating that

providing all other banks w^ere willing to do so, it

would restore to the receiver's account the cash bal-

ances offset by it on the preceding day, but that it

was holding '^certain" collections as security for ac-

ceptances and ^^continuecV to reserve its right of

banker's lien against 'Hhose" collections.

That in construing and interpreting an agreement

the object intended to be attained is of paramount

importance is the well-settled law of California.

Upon this subject in the recent case of

In re City and County of San Francisco, 191

Cal. 172, at page 177,

Mr. Justice Sewell, speaking for the court, said:

"The object to be attained is, of course, the

principal factor of consideration in the construc-

tion of contracts."
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Keeping in view the conceded purpose of the re-

ceivership, as well as the surrounding facts and cir-

cumstances, appellee contended upon the trial, as

he does here, that by appellant's telegram of January

16, 1931, which was prepared and transmitted to the

receiver after appellant had received the receiver's

wire (Plff's. Ex. 2), and after it had been advised

respecting the subject matter of the conferences be-

tween the receiver and the bank creditors, appellant

intended to waive any banker's lien or right of setoff

that it then possessed respecting the drafts in its

possession and their proceeds excepting as to the

drafts deposited under the acceptance agreements.

While in our judgment, reading the telegram of

appellant (Plff's. Ex. 3) with the telegram to which

it responds (Plff's. Ex. 2), and in the light of the

surrounding circumstances, no other possible con-

struction can be given to Plaintiff's Exhibit 3, if re-

course is had to the familiar rules governing the in-

terpretation of contracts, as enunciated by tribunals

of last resort as well as by legislative enactments, any

doubt upon this subject must be dispelled. To some

of these principles we will now briefly direct the

court's attention.
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VI.

WHERE A LATENT AMBIGUITY EXISTS IN AN INSTRUMENT
OR IT IS SUSCEPTIBLE OF TWO OR MORE CONSTRUC-
TIONS WITHOUT DOING VIOLENCE TO ANY OF THE SET-

TLED RULES OF CONSTRUCTION, THE CIRCUMSTANCES
UNDER WHICH THE AGREEMENT WAS MADE AND THE
CONVERSATIONS BETWEEN THE PARTIES AT THE TIME
OF THE NEGOTIATIONS RESULTING IN THE MAKING OF
THE AGREEMENT ARE ADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE.

Sec. 1860, C. C. P., provides

:

"For the proper construction of an instrument,

the circumstances under which it was made, in-

cluding the situation of the subject of the instru-

ment and of the parties to it, may also be shown,

SO that the judge be placed in the position of

those whose language he is to interpret."

Sec. 1657, C. C, provides:

''A contract may be explained by reference to

the circiunstances under which it was made and

the matter to which it relates.
'

'

In

Balfour v. Fresno Canal etc. Co., 109 Cal. 221,

which is the leading case in California, Van Fleet,

Judge, held:

'^Where the language of a contract is fairly

susceptible of one or two interpretations without

doing violence to its usual and ordinary import,

or some established rule of construction, an am-
biguity arises for the explanation of which ex-

trinsic evidence may be resorted to.

For the purx^ose of determining what the par-

ties intended by the language used, it is compe-

tent to show not only the circiunstances under

which the contract w^as made, but also to prove
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that they intended and understood the language

in the sense contended for; and for that purpose

the conversations between and declarations of the

parties during the negotiations at and before the

time of the execution of the contract may be

shown. (Citing cases.)"

In

Gilde V. Shuster, 83 Cal. App. 537,

it was declared:

''It is the duty of a court, when the language

of a written contract is not clear, positive and

certain, to consult the conditions, situation and

the motives of the respective parties for the pur-

pose of ascertaining their intention. * * *

Where there is a latent ambiguity in a written

contract, and the language will admit of more
than one interpretation, or if the intention of

the parties is doubtful from a reading of the docu-

ment, parol evidence of the circmnstances and
situation of the parties may be considered to as-

certain their true intention, and in this matter an

issue of fact may be presented."

A recent case decided by the Court of Appeals of

this Circuit in which the question under discussion

was involved is

Modoc Co. Bank v. Ringling, 7 Fed. (2d) 535,

where it is said (p. 540)

:

"It is a fundamental rule that in the construc-

tion of contract the courts may look not only to

the language employed, but to the subject matter

and the surrounding circumstances, and may avail

themselves of the same light which the parties



117

possessed when the contract was made." (Citing

a number of federal decisions, among others, de-

cisions of the United States Supreme Court.)

That in considering defendant's wire of January

16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 3), resort should be had to ex-

trinsic evidence is made manifest by the decision of

Mr. Justice Sanborn, subsequently a justice of the

Supreme Court of the United States, in

Pressed Steel Car Co. v. Eastern R. Co., 121

Fed. 609 (C. C. A. 8th Cir.),

where he said:

''To the counsel of each of these parties this

contract seems plain and unambiguous and its

meaning certain, and yet it has an entirely differ-

ent significance to the representatives of each of

these corporations. This fact, repeated perusals

and a careful study of the writing present very

convincing evidence that its terms are not alto-

gether clear, that they were well calculated to

raise this controversy that they were susceptible

of two constructions. It remains to determine

which is the more natural, probable and rational

interpretation.

There is no evidence in the record that either

of the two interpretations urged upon our con-

sideration would not deter either of the parties

from entering into the agreement. What they

intended to stipulate, what they understood the

contract to mean, and what they would have done

if their interpretation of it had been different

can be deduced from the contract itself, the situa-

tion of the parties and the circumstances sur-

rounding them when they made it."
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See also

Sheely v. Byers, 73 Cal. App. 44;

Weslin v. Lapham, 77 Cal. App. 137

;

Los Angeles High School v. Quinn, 195 Cal.

377;

Hind V. Easterly Products Co., 195 Cal. 653.

Further multiplication of these decisions, we deem

entirely unnecessary.
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VII.

THE INTENTION OF THE PARTIES IN ENTERING INTO AN
AGREEMENT, WHEN ASCERTAINED, SHOULD CONTROL
ITS INTERPRETATION AND CONSTRUCTION.

In

Regsloff v. Smith, 79 Cal. App. 443, at page 452,

it is said

:

"The purpose of construction is to ascertain

the intent of the parties. Where the intent of

the parties is ascertained it must always take

precedence over the literal sense of terms."

We have already pointed out that the undoubted

intention of the parties in entering into the agree-

ment between the receiver and the bank creditors

of Richfield was to enable the receiver to carry on

without interruption the business of the corporation,

and by so doing, conserve its property and assets and

save its value as a going concern, to the end that bank-

ruptcy would be avoided, and its creditors receive at

least a part of the indebtedness due them.

In view of the uncontradicted record as to this

phase of the case, there could be no other intention.

That such intention, when ascertained by the court,

should control its interpretation and construction of

the contract being considered is no longer subject to

dispute.

Sec. 1636, Civil Code, provides:

''A contract must be so interpreted as to give

effect to the mutual intention of the parties as it

existed at the time of contracting; so far as the

same is ascertainable and lawful."
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In

Oghurn v. Travelers Ins. Co., 207 Cal. 50,

it is said

:

''In the interpretation of a written instrument

the primary object is to ascertain and carry out

the intention of the parties thereto.
•at * *>>

See also

Glide V. Shiister, 83 Cal. App. 537;

Snyder v. Holt Mfg. Co., 134 Cal. 325;

Turner v. Kearny, 116 Cal. 65

;

Shoemaker v. Acker, 116 Cal. 239;

Delano v. Jacoby, 96 Cal. 675;

Stein V. Archibald, 151 Cal. 220.
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VIII.

CONTEMPORANEOUS AND PRACTICAL CONSTRUCTION OF AN
INSTRUMENT BY THE PARTIES AND THEIR SUBSEQUENT
ACTIONS AND CONDUCT AFFORD CONVINCING EVIDENCE
AS TO ITS MEANING AND EFFECT, WHERE ITS TERMS
ARE AMBIGUOUS OR DOUBTFUL.

In the "Statement of Facts" we commented upon

the contemporaneous and subsequent conduct, acts

and correspondence of the parties with reference to

the agreement evidenced by Plff's. Exs. 2 and 3.

We pointed out that between the date of the ap-

pointment of the receiver and May 8, 1931, such

conduct, acts and correspondence were ALL con-

sistent with the receiver's interpretation of the agree-

ment and inconsistent with the construction now

sought to be placed thereon by appellant. Under these

circumstances, we do not believe it essential to again

review any of these facts because we appreciate that

they are well within the memory of the court.

It is submitted that under the law, the construction

thus given to the agreement by the parties should be

the construction placed upon it by this court.

In

Keith V. Electric Engineering Co., 136 Cal.

184,

the court in giving recognition to the rule here in-

voked, quoted from a learned English jurist as fol-

lows :

" 'Tell me,' said Lord Chancellor Sugden,

'what you have done under a deed, and I will

tell you what the deed means.'
"
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In

Mayberry v. Alhamhra, 125 Cal. 445,

it was held

"that where the provisions of a contract are

doubtful, its practical construction by the par-

ties is controlling

In

Rockwell V. Light, 6 Cal. App. 563-5,

it is said

:

"When the meaning of the language of a con-

tract is considered doubtful, the acts of the par-

ties done under it afford one of the most reliable

clues to the intention of the parties."

The federal decisions upon this subject are equally

conclusive upon this subject.

In

Christenson v. Gorton-Pew Fisheries Co., 8

Fed. (2d) 689 (C. C. A.),

it is said:

"The terms being indefinite and somewhat un-

certain, the construction placed upon them as in-

dicated by the writings of the parties and their

conduct is always controlling and binding upon
them. (Citing cases.)

The courts never construe a contract ambiguous

in its terms contrary to the construction the par-

ties themselves have placed upon it. The par-

ties have by their writings committed themselves

to a practical construction, the function to con-

strue the contract under such circumstances is

for the court."
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In

Sternberg v. Drainage District, 44 Fed. (2d)

560 (C. C. A.),

the rule is thus stated:

"The practical construction given to this con-

tract by the parties as indicated by all the facts

and surrounding circumstances is entitled to

great, if not controlling, weight in determining

its proper interpretation."

In

Vital V. Kerr, 297 Fed. 959,

it is said:

"But where the meaning of a contract is not

clearly apparent upon its face, but is more or

less ambiguous, the interpretation given to the

contract by the parties themselves, as shown by
their acts, will be adopted by the court, and to

this end not only the acts, but the declarations

of the parties may be considered. (Citing cases.)
"

Without quoting from the decisions, we call the

court's attention to

San Francisco I. <& M. Co. v. Sweet Steel Co.,

23 Fed. (2d) 783 (C. C. A. Cal)

;

Cutting v. Bryan, 30 Fed. (2d) 754 (C. C. A.

Cal.)

;

Indian Territory v. Bartlesville Zinc Co., 288

Fed. 273 (C. C. A.)
;

Federal Surety Co. v. Bentley d Sons Co., 51

Fed. (2d) 24 (C. C. A.)
;

Harris v. Morse, 54 Fed. (2d) 109.
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IX.

THE COURT SHOULD CONSTRUE THE TELEGRAM OF JAN-

UARY 16, 1931, IN THE SENSE IN WHICH APPELLANT
BELIEVED IT WAS UNDERSTOOD BY THE RECEIVER AND
OTHER BANK CREDITORS OF RICHFIELD COMPANY.

Viewed in the light of the evidence introduced dur-

ing the trial, no doubt can possibl}' exist with respect

to the receiver's understanding of appellant's telegram

of January 16, 1931. (Plff's. Ex. 3.) The same situa-

tion exists with respect to the bank creditors, to whose

attention it was called by the receiver. That both the

receiver and these bank creditors understood that by

its telegram appellant intended to and did waive its

banker's lien and right of setoff as against all assets,

credits and balances, including cash balances in its

possession, excepting as to CERTAIN drafts and their

proceeds then held by it as security for its acceptances,

and that as to all other drafts and their proceeds, such

banker's lien and right of setoff were waived, is con-

clusively disclosed by the imdisputed testimony.

Every act of the receiver, as well as every letter writ-

ten or word spoken by him from the date of its receipt

until and including the trial of this case eloquently

bespeak his implicit belief that such was the intention

of appellant. The action of the Security First Na-

tional Bank in crediting to the account of the receiver

the proceeds of the various drafts in its possession at

the time of the appointment of the receiver demon-

strates its belief. The protests of the creditor bankers

upon learning of the action of appellant is seizing the

funds, the title to which is here in dispute, points to

their belief.
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Proof alone of the backoToimd to PM's. Ex. 3, and

the purpose sought to be achieved by the demand of

the receiver would itself be sui^icient to establish that

appellant believed that the receiver and the creditor

banks understood the telegram in accord with the

meaning imputed to it by them. If, however, there

ever was any doubt upon this subject, it is only neces-

sary to direct the court's attention to the correspon-

dence passing between the receiver and appellant

when it undertook to retain the $7749.58, being net

proceeds of certain drafts remaining in its possession

after the payment in full of all acceptances issued by

it. The sole basis of the receiver's demand for pay-

ment to hiin of these proceeds tvas appellant's tele-

gram to the receiver. (Plff's. Ex. 3.) This corre-

spondence not only proves the sense in which the re-

ceiver understood Plff's. Ex. 3 and knowledge of such

miderstanding on the part of appellant, but the subse-

quent action of the bank in forthwith crediting to the

account of receiver the net proceeds of these drafts

likewise proves that the bank itself interpreted and

construed its telegram in accord with the construction

placed upon it by the receiver. That such interpreta-

tion should be given Plff 's. Ex. 3 by this court is clear.

Sec. 1649, Civil Code, provides

:

''If the terms of a promise are in any respect

ambiguous or uncertain, it must be interpreted in

the sense in which the promisor believed at the

time of making it, that the promisee miderstood

it."
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Sec. 1864, Code of Civil Procedure, provides:

"When the terms of an agreement have been

mtended in a different sense by the different par-

ties to it, that sense is to prevail against either

party in which he supposed the other miderstood

it, and when different constructions of a provision

are otherwise equally proper, that is to be done

which is most favorable to the party in whose

favor the provision was made."

Farren v. WilJard, 16 Cal. App. 460, 466;

El Dara Oil Co. v. Gibson, 201 Cal. 231, 236;

McClintick v. Leonards, 103 Cal. App. 768;

Lang v. Pacific Brewing Co., 44 Cal. App. 618,

621;

Kelly V. Great Western etc. Co., 46 Cal. App.

747, 752.
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X.

THE LANGUAGE OF THE TELEGRAM OF JANUARY 16, 1931

(Plff's. Ex. 3), SHOULD BE INTERPRETED MOST STRONGLY
AGAINST THE APPELLANT, BY WHOM IT WAS PRE-
PARED, AND WHO WAS THE PROMISOR THEREUNDER.

Whatever uncertainty or ambiguity appears in the

telegram above mentioned, read in connection with the

receiver's telegram to appellant (Plff's. Ex. 2) was

caused by appellant, by whom it was prepared, and

who was the promisor thereunder. Under these cir-

cumstances, any ambiguity in the telegram should be

interpreted most strongly against it.

Sec. 1654, Civil Code, provides:

^'In cases of uncertainty not removed by the

preceding rules, the language of a contract should

be interpreted most strongly against the party

who caused the uncertainty to exist. The promisor

is presumed to be such party. * * *"

In

Sternberg v. Drainage Dist. etc., 44 Fed. (2d)

560, at page 562,

the court states:

''It is first to be observed that the instrument

forming the basis of this controversy was pre-

pared by the contractors and presented to the

commissioners of the defendant. If the contract

is ambiguous the plaintiff is responsible for its

ambiguity and under such circumstances, the con-

tract should be construed most strongly against

the party preparing it. (Phoenix Ins. Co. v.

Slaughter, 12 Wall. 404, 20 L. ed. 444; Bijur

Motor Lighting Co. v. Eclipse Machine Co. (D.
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C), 237 Fed. 89; Caldwell v. Twin Falls Salmon
River Land Co. (D. C), 225 Fed. 584; Christian

V. First Nat. Bank (C. C. A.), 155 Fed. 705; Van
Zandt V. Hanover Nat. Bank (C. C. A.), 149 Fed.

127; etc.
)>

In

In re New York Towing c& Transportation

Corp., 57 Fed. (2d) 337, at page 339,

the court uses the following language:

^'It appears that the contract in question was
prepared by the Ford Motor Company and ac-

cepted by the Towing Corporation. Under these

circumstances, if deemed to be ambiguous, it may
be my duty to resolve any doubt Against the party

preparing it. See The Pensacola (C. C. A. 5), 263

Fed. 661; Drainage Dist. No. 1 v. Rude (CCA.
8), 21 Fed. (2d) 257."

In

Contmental Oil Co. v. Fisher, 55 Fed. (2d) 14,

at page 16,

it is said:

''It may be true the intention of the Continental

Oil Company was to contract for this period of

reassignment. Their tender indicated they had

that theory of the 'modification agreement'. But

why was the option not mentioned? A capable

lawyer for the company drew the contract, and

even if we assume the instrument to be ambiguous

in this respect, the rule applies that the doubt be

resolved against the party who drew it." (Citing

many cases.)
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In

East & West Ins. Co. etc. v. Fidel., 49 Fed.

(2d) 35 (C. C. A.),

the rule is thus stated at page 38

:

''After an ambiguity is established, a contract

is construed strictly against the party which
drafted it. Graham v. Busines Men's Assurance

Co. (C. C. A. 10), 43 Fed. (2d) 673, and cases

therein cited."
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XI.

THE CONSTRUCTION PLACED BY APPELLANT UPON ITS

TELEGRAM (Plflf's. Ex. 3), THAT IT CONTINUED TO RE-

SERVE A BANKER'S LIEN UPON ALL COLLECTIONS

THERETOFORE DEPOSITED WITH IT BY RICHFIELD FOR
THE PURPOSE OF ENFORCING THE LATTER TO PAY A
GENERAL INDEBTEDNESS DUE IT, IF ADOPTED, WOULD
LEAD TO AN ABSURDITY AND RENDER UNNECESSARY
AND MEANINGLESS SPECIFIC LANGUAGE INTENTION-

ALLY USED BY IT IN ITS TELEGRAM.

To adopt the construction which appellant seeks to

have this court place upon its telegram (Plff 's. Ex. 3)

in its endeavor to retain the proceeds of drafts to

which it is not entitled, it will be necessary for the

court to exclude from consideration language deliber-

ately inserted in the telegram and will involve an

absurdity never intended or contemplated by appel-

lant.

If appellant had merely intended to restore the cash

balance belonging to the Richfield Company which it

had already offset, it would never have inserted in the

telegram the last paragraph placed therein, which is

one of the most important portions of the telegram,

and one upon which the receiver and the bank credi-

tors relied. It would have merely stated

:

''Replying telegram we are willing to restore

into your name as receiver Richfield balance in

checking account provided we are notified by you

that all company banks have taken similar ac-

tion."

But appellant realized that the telegram, if confined

alone to the statement above quoted, which constitutes

the first paragraph in its telegram, would not have



131

been satisfying either to the receiver or to the other

bank creditors. In the preparation of this telegram,

it had in mind primarily the purpose sought to be

accomplished by the receivership proceedings, to which

we have already alluded, viz., the continuance of the

business of Richfield Company. It also had in mind

not only the preliminary statement contained in the

receiver's telegram to it (Plff's. Ex. 2), viz.,

''As receiver I am ordered by federal court to

take over all assets including cash in hanks'^

but as W'Cll as the information conveyed to it through

Mr. Nolan, one of the framers of the telegram, respect-

ing the subject matter of the conference held that

very day between the receiver and the representatives

of the creditor banks. While it had in its possession all

drafts of Richfield Company for collection, it realized

that the other creditor banks did not have in. mind the

fact that it had advanced to Richfield Company funds

through the medimn of acceptances, which were se-

cured by some of these foreign drafts placed with it

for collection. It undoubtedly believed that it should

be reimbursed by Richfield Company for the amount

of these advances made by it through acceptances in

the same manner that any other bank would be en-

titled to be reimbursed for advances made by it

through the medimn of discoimting drafts placed

with it for collection. With these matters in. mind,

and believing it only equitable that it should be repaid

the amount of these advances from the proceeds of the

collections of the drafts securing said acceptances,

and further believing it only fair to the other creditor
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banks to advise them of that fact, it therefore added

the second paragraph of its wire of January 16, 1931,

which, paraphrased, was intended by it to mean the

following

:

''We have advanced money to Richfield Oil

Company through the medium of acceptances,

which acceptances are secured by certain only of

its collections and we continue to reserve all our

rights of security as against these particular col-

lections."

Otherwise appellant intended to deliver to the re-

ceiver ^'all assets, including cash in bank". Its spe-

cific reservation of "certain'' only of the collections

held by it constituted a waiver as to all other collec-

tions in its possession which the bank intended to be

available to the receiver. This intent of the bank was

clearly evidenced by its subsequent conduct from

March 5, 1931, when the acceptances w^ere repaid in

full, mitil May 8, 1931, during all of such time it

turned over to the receiver the proceeds of all other

collections received by it.
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XII.

AN EXPRESS RESERVATION OF A LIEN UPON CERTAIN
PROPERTY, OR TO A CERTAIN EXTENT, CONSTITUTES
A WAIVER AS TO ALL OTHER PROPERTY OR TO A
GREATER EXTENT THAN THAT RESERVED.

In appellant's telegram (Plff 's. Ex. 3) the words of

reservation are:

'' Please understand that we continue to reserve

all our rights for banker's lien against these col-

lections/'

The collections referred to as expressed in the telegram

are

''We are holding certain collections as security

for acceptances."

It will be observed that the banker's lien which the

appellant intends to "continue to reserve" is its lien

against the ^^ certain' ' collections previously referred

to. It is obvious that under this reservation it cannot

be claimed by appellant that it was reserving any lien

as against any of the collections in its possession ex-

cepting the ''certain" collections which at the time of

the sending of the telegram it held as security for the

acceptances issued by it. In using this language appel-

lant intended to and did waive by implication any

lien it then had upon or claimed it then had to any

property belonging to Richfield Oil Company within

its possession or imder its control other than and ex-

cepting the collections deposited as security for the

acceptances. That such limited reservation constituted

a waiver of any lien greater in extent than that re-
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served or upon property other than that described or

identified has been definitely settled by the United

States Supreme Court in

Brown v. Gilman, 14 U. S. 564,

where the court, at page 573, uses the following lan-

guage:

*^An express contract that the lien shall be re-

tained to a specific extent is equivalent to a waiver
of the lien to any greater extent."

See also

Fendall v. Miller, 196 Pac. (Ore.) 381.,

where the court states the rule of law as follows

:

''It is a well settled rule of law that where there

is an exception or reservation of one thing, it will

be presumed that no other exceptions or reserva-

tions are intended than those expressed."

In

Wilson V. Alcatraz Asphalt Co., 142 Cal. 182,

the court held:

''The contract, and each and every clause there-

of, must be read together, so as to arrive at its

true intent and meaning, and where the contract

recites that, unless for certain excepted causes,

plaintiff shall be unable to supply the oil de-

manded by the contract, plaintiff shall at all

times be required to furnish same, the contract ex-

cludes all other causes by implication, and the

plaintiff must supply the oil required by the con-

tract by the delivery of oil produced by other

parties, where such delivery is not stipulated

against.
'

'
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The above principle is also expressed in the Latin

maxim:

**Expressio unius est exclusio alterius.'*

See also

2 Elliott on Contracts, Sees. 1532 and 1533,

wherein the above quoted maxim is referred to and

commented upon.

In

Croslij. V. Patch, 18 Cal. 438,

it is said:

'^The specification of particular sections as re-

pealed is the equivalent to a declaration that the

remaining sections shall continue in force."

In

Fay V. District Court of Appeal, 200 Cal. 522,

the rule for which we contend is thus expressed:
'

' The application of this principle to the instant

problem is attended with another principle of

interpretation of almost equal importance, which

is that when in any enactment there appears an

express modification or repeal of certain pro-

visions in a former enactment, such express modi-

fication or repeal of the portions thereof thus

affected will be held to disclose the full intent of

the framers of the later enactment as to how much
or what portion of the former it was intended to

modify or repeal. This upon the principle ex-

pressio unius est exclusio alteriiis; and in such a

case an implied modification or repeal of such

portions of the former law as are not expressly

referred to as being repealed or modified is to be

all the more avoided in determining the intent

and effect of the latter enactment."
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Moreover the Supreme Court of the United States

has recognized this fundamental rule of statutory con-

struction in the case of

Hess V. Reynolds, 113 U. S. 73, 28 L. ed. 929.

Furthermore, the use of the Avord ''continue'' in

Plff's. Ex. 3 is itself significant as bearing upon the

interpretation of this wire. In this connection the

evidence shows that prior to the date of the appoint-

ment of the receiver, none of the proceeds of any of

the drafts which up to that date had been collected by

appellant had been credited in payment of the general

indebtedness of the Richfield Company. All of these

proceeds were either deposited in anticipation of meet-

ing acceptances or applied in i^ayment of the accep-

tances released on October 8, 1930, totaling $115,000

or credited to the account of the Richfield Company.

It will thus be seen that, judging from the conduct of

appellant between the date upon which the first drafts

were deposited, viz. : October 8, 1930, and the date of

the appointment of the receiver, all proceeds of drafts

not reserved for use or used in meeting acceptances

were returned and credited to Richfield Company. In

terpreting the word ''continue" in the telegram of

appellant (Plff's. Ex. 3) in the light of its conduct of

appellant, no difficulty should be experienced in con-

struing the character and extent of the lien reserved

by the appellant to a lien only upon the drafts de-

posited under the acceptance agreements.
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XIII.

APPELLANT'S TELEGRAM DATED JANUARY 16, 1931 (Plff's.

Ex. 3), RECOGNIZES THAT ONLY A CERTAIN PORTION OF
THE DRAFTS DEPOSITED FOR COLLECTION WERE "HELD
AS SECURITY FOR ACCEPTANCES", AND THAT ONLY AS
TO SUCH DRAFTS DID IT CONTINUE TO RESERVE ITS

ALLEGED BANKER'S LIEN.

With respect to the subject under consideration,

appellant's telegram (Plff's. Ex. 3) reads as follows:

"We are holding 'certain' collections as se-

curity for acceptances. Please understand that

we continue to reserve all our rights for banker's

lien against these collections/^

Preliminarily, it may be observed that if this court

holds that the evidence is sufficient to sustain the

finding of the lower court that only '^ certain'^ and not

all of the foreign drafts were deposited under the

acceptance agreements, it necessarily follows that re-

gardless of what construction is placed upon Plff's.

Ex. 3, the reservation by appellant of its banker's

lien applies only to such specified drafts. It would

have no application whatever to the remaining drafts

deposited solely for collection.

Upon the evidence already called to the court's

attention, it must be apparent that w^hen appellant

in its telegram (Plff's. Ex. 3) used the word '^certain'*

in referring to the collections held by it as security for

acceptances, and as to which it was reserving a bank-

er's lien, it intended ex industria to use, as it did, a

word of limitation and qualification, and thereby in-

tended to and did refer exclusively but to those col-

lections which it then had in its possession deposited

under the acceptance agreements.
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That the word ^'certain" under the circumstances

here proven, and in the sense in which appellant

used the word, and in w^hich the appellee and the

creditor banks understood such use is a w^ord of limi-

tation, and that it should be given such interpretation

is indisputable.

In

Webster's New International Dictionary

''certain" is defined to be

''one or some among possible others; one or some
known only as of a specified name or character."

See also

Braden v. Mitchell, 59 Cal. App. 59;

State V. Burdick, 15 R. I. 239, 2 Atl. 764.

But even though the w^ord ^^certain" has a dual mean-

ing, depending upon the purpose of its use, its inter-

pretation and meaning, taking into consideration the

surrounding circumstances, is a question of fact for

the trial court, by which an appellate court is bound.
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XIV.

THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN HALL AND THE OFFICIALS OF
APPELLANT THAT THE DRAFTS AND THEIR PROCEEDS
HEREIN INVOLVED SHOULD BE DEEMED TO BE SEP-

ARATE AND APART FROM OTHER BUSINESS OF RICH-

FIELD WITH, AND ITS FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS TO
APPELLANT, CONSTITUTED SUCH DRAFTS AND PRO-

CEEDS A SPECIAL FUND AND DEPOSIT AS AGAINST
WHICH NO BANKER'S LIEN OR RIGHT OF SET-OFF

EXISTED.

We are firmly convinced that in the preceding pages

of this brief we have established the existence of the

agreement testified to by Hall and Pope, and con-

firmed by Lipman, the latter being the President and

chief executive of appellant. In this comiection we

also pointed out that at the time of the agreement an

unsecured indebtedness was owed by Richfield Com-

pany to appellant in the sum of $625,000, and consid-

ering the necessities of the Richfield Company, it

would have been extremely improbable that the latter 's

officials would deliberately entrust to the appellant

for collection a large number of drafts, knowing that

at any instant thereafter appellant could exercise its

banker's lien or right of set-off and prevent the Rich-

field Company from obtaining possession of funds

constantly required to permit its continuance in busi-

ness. That such agreement, if established, converted

the collections, excepting those deposited under the

acceptance agreements, into a special fund or deposit

upon which appellant could not exercise a banker's

lien or right of set-off, has been frequently determined

not only by the courts of this and other states, but

likewise bv Federal tribunals. In referring to the
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law applicable to the point under consideration, for

the convenience of the court we will classify the au-

thorities under separate sub-titles.

A. Where securities are in a

bank's hands under circum-

stances indicating a particular

mode of dealing inconsistent

with the bank's general lien,

the bank has no lien thereon,

and such lien cannot be exer-

cised because the deposits

were not made in the ordi-

nary course of business.

In

7 Corpus Juris, Sec. 358, page 660,

the rule is thus stated:

''Deposit for Specific Purpose: The general

lien of a bank upon a customer's deposits will

not be recognized where the circumstances are

inconsistent therewith and accordingly where
moneys or securities are deposited with the bank
for a particular purpose as to pay or secure a

particular loan or debt, they cannot be retained

by the bank for a general balance or for the pay-

ment of all other claims. * * *"

In

Reynes v. Bumont, 130 U. S. 355; 32 L. ed. 934,

it was held

:

"A general lien in favor of a bank or banker

may be implied from the usage of the business,

but it does not arise upon securities accidentally

in possession of the bank or not in its possession

in the course of its business as such, nor where

the securities are in its hands under circum-
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stances or ivhere there is a particular mode of

dealing inconsistent with such general lien."

Further held:

''Bond not lodged in the hands of a banker in

the ordinary course of banking business, but for

a specific purpose and when that purpose was

accomplished, permitted to remain for safekeep-

ing, are not subject to a bank's lien for the ulti-

mate debit balance in favor of the bank or against

the parties who placed them there."

Chief Justice Fuller, in his decision, states:

"And applying the principles upon which such

a lien rests, it is doubtful whether it ever existed

in favor of Schuchardt & Sons. Undoubtedly,

while a 'general lien for a balance of accounts is

founded on custom, and is not favored, and it

requires strong evidence of a settled and uniform

usage, or of a particular mode of dealing between

the parties, to establish it,' and 'general liens are

looked at with jealousy, because they encroach

upon the common law, and disturb the equal dis-

tribution of the debtor's estate among his credi-

tors' (2 Kent's Commentaries, *636), yet a gen-

eral lien does arise in favor of a bank or banker

out of contract expressed, or implied from the

usage of business, in the aljsence of anything to

show a contrary intention. It does not arise upon
securities accidentally in the possession of the

bank, or not in its possession in the course of its

business as such, nor where the securities are in

its hands under circumstances, or where there is

a particular mode of dealing, inconsistent tvith

such general lien." (Citing cases.)



142

In

Hanover Nat. Bank etc. v. Suddath, 215 U. S.

110; 54 L. ed. 115,

at page 118 (L. Ed.) it is said:

"The subject was elaborately considered and
the authorities were fully reviewed in Reynes v.

Dumont, 130 U. S. 354; 32 L. Ed. 934. In that

case securities had been sent to bankers for a

specific purpose. The purpose having been ac-

complished the securities were permitted to re-

main in custody of the bankers as depositaries

because they were in a good market and a place

couA^enient for procuring loans and because the

expressage upon their return would have been

great. The right to a general banker's lien upon
the securities was denied. Such a lien it was said

would arise 'in favor of a bank or banker out of

contract, express or implied, from the usage of

the business m the absence of anything to show
a contrary intention.' Ordinarily it was declared

the lien would attach in favor of a bank upon
securities and money of the customer deposited

in the usual course of business, etc. It was, how-
ever, expressly declared not to 'arise upon securi-

ties accidentally in the possession of the bank or

not in its possession in the course of its business

as such, nor where the securities are in its hands

under circumstances or where there is a particu-

lar mode of dealing inconsistent with such general

lien.'
''

In

Ballow V. Farmers Bank etc., 45 S. W. (2d)

882,

it is said:
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''There is no doubt about the general rule that

when a depositor is indebted to a bank, and the

debts are mutual, that is, between the same par-

ties and in the same right, the bank may apply

the deposit to the payment of the debt due it by
the depositor. However, this rule is subject to

the exception that set-oft* will not be allowed

where its natural consequence will be to give the

bank a preferential advantage over other credi-

tors, or where it is contrary to the agreement

under which the deposit was made, or where the

hank has dealt with the depositor under circum-

stances inconsistent with the exercise of the right

of set-off and having the effect of estopping it

from asserting or maintaining the right."

Citing,

Union Bank dc Trust Co. v. Loble (C. C. A.),

20 F. (2d) 124;

Union Trust Co. v. Peck (C. C. A.), 16 F. (2d)

986;

Merrimack Nat. Bank v. Bailey (C. C. A.), 289

F. 468;

Farmers d Merchants State Bank v. Park (C.

C. A.), 209 F. 613;

In re Gans & Klein (D. C), 14 F. (2d) 116;

In re Cross (D. C), 119 F. 950;

A leading case upon this subject, decided by the

Circuit Court of Appeals of this Circuit, is the case

of

Union Bank v. Lohle, 20 F. (2d) 124 (C. C.

A. 9),

where Judge Gilbert, in confirming the judgment of

the court below, said:
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"But a bank may so deal with a depositor as

to waive or be estopped to assert the right of set-

off. Michie, Banks & Banking, 1027. But the

right does not exist tvhere the circumstances are

inconsistent ivith its exercise. (Citing cases.)

Nor where the principles of legal or equitable set-

off do not authorize it. (Citing cases.)

"While the money realized on the special sale

and deposited to the bankrupt's current account

and subject to his check for general purposes may
not be said to come within the accepted defini-

tion of a special deposit so as to be exempt from
the bank's claim to the right of set-off we are

inclined to the vietv that the circumstances under

which the fund ivas created and the cooperation

of the hank afid the bankrupt in its creation were

sufficient to so far impress upon it the character

of trust fund that the bank should be held

estopped to assert a lien thereon or to the right

of set-off." Certiorari denied. 72 L. Ed.

B. The understanding between

Hall and the officials of the

bank, under which the drafts

were deposited, gave to such

drafts a special or trust

character thereby cutting off

the right of set-off or right to

exercise a banker's lien.

In

Union Trust Co. v. Peck, 16 Fed. (2d) 986,

the principle here invoked is upheld in the following

language

:

"We are also in agreement with him that the

trustee is entitled to recover from the bank the

three sums of $5,000, $7,500 and $2,001.02, re-
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spectively, subsequently taken from the bank-

rupt's deposits by the bank. His reasoning on

the subject seems to us to be sound. It is, more-

over, to be noted that, before and at the time the

bank applied these amounts to its own use, it,

the bankrupt and the other creditors were con-

ferring as to the possibility of keeping the bank-

rupt upon its feet as a going concern by securing

the general acceptance of a scheme of reorganza-

tion which contemplated the creditors taking less

than was due them. Under such circumstances the

deposit by the bankrupt of large sums in the

bank, wiiich both it and the bankrupt intended

should be used for the reduction of the former's

debt, were obviously not made in ordinary course,

in any fair sense of that phrase. Most men would

feel that it is an implied term of such negotia-

tions that during their pendency nobody taking

part in them shall do anything to secure preferen-

tial rights in or over any assets of the bankrupt

which did not belong to it when the conferences

began, or upon wiiich it did not then have a prior

lien. It follows that so much of the decree below

as is challenged by the bank was right, and must

be affirmed."

See also:

Union Bank d' Trmt Co. r. Lohle, 20 Fed. (2d)

124,

cited under subdivision (A) hereof.

The decision of the District Court which was af-

firmed in the case last above cited, is entitled

In re Gcuis d Kleiu, 14 Fed. (2d) 116.

In rendering his decision, Judge Bourquin, at page

117, said:
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"And the law is well settled (the general law

of deposits and trusts) that the trustee, having

custody of the deposit, has no right of set-off

against the fund, by reason of the depositor's

debt to the depository, which can be exercised

to the prejudice of the beneficiaries or any one

in their right. (Citing cases.) (3) Moreover,

the law is equally settled that he who secures

possession of property or money, upon his agree-

ment to make certain disposition or application

of it, is obligated to perform accordingly or to

return the thing to him from whom possession

was received. He cannot re])udiate his contract,

and, in advantage of his wrong, otherwise dispose

of the thing to his own benefit. (Citing cases.)

(4) By breach of contract a trust cannot be

converted to a debt, the title to special deposits

cannot be transferred, and set-off against them
cannot be had by the defaulting contractor. Es-

sential confidence, fair dealing, and common hon-

esty in business forbid. Libby v. Hopkins,

supra.
'

'

In

Farmers' d' 31erchants' State Bank of Waco,

Tex., V. Park, 209 Fed. 613 (C. C. A.),

the court stated the proposition as follows:

"Under the evidence in the case, the deposit

made by the Slayden-Kirksey Woolen Mill with

the appellant bank shortly prior to the bank-

ruptcy w^as a special deposit agreed not to be

subject to general set-off. To allow a set-off of

the same against the indebtedness previously due

the bank would be to give the bank an advantage

not enjoyed by other creditors."



147

C. While the bank has the right

to appropriate money or prop-

erty in its possession to the

extinguishment of a matured

debt, it cannot do so if such

fund with the knowledge of

the bank is charged with the

subservience of a special bur-

den or purpose, or constitutes

a trust fund.

American Surety Co. v. Bank of Italy, 63 Cal.

App. 149.

Held:

''A bank has a lien upon and so is vested with

the right to appropriate any money or property

in its possession belonging to a customer to the

extinguishment of any matured indebtedness of

such customer to the bank to the full extent of

the money or property so possessed, if necessary,

and so far as it may go towards such extinguish-

ment, provided, of course, that such property or

money so deposited has not been charged, tvith

the knotvledge of the hank, with the subserviance

of a special burden or purpose, or does not con-

stitute a trust fund, of which the bank had

notice."

Further held:

'^Such banker's lien ordinarily attaches in

favor of the bank upon the securities and funds

of a customer deposited in the usual course of

business for advances supposed to have been made

upon their credit, not only against the depositor

but against the unknown equities of all others

in interest, unless modified or waived by some

agreement, express or implied, or conduct incon-
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sistent with its assertion; hut no such lien would

prevail against the equity of a beneficial owner

of which the bank had notice either actual or

constructive.
'

'

The judgment in this case was reversed, but in

the last paragraph of the decision the following is

stated

:

"Counsel asked this court, if a reversal of the

judgment be ordered, to order the court below to

enter judgment upon its findings and the agreed

statement of facts for and in favor of the de-

fendant. This, we think, we should not do. Upon
a retrial a different set of facts might he shoivn on

the question of notice to the bank or of an agree-

ment between the latter and Ernest Green that

the account in question was opened for the use

and henefit of a special purpose/'

In

7 Corpus Juris, sec. 358, page 660,

it is stated:

"Deposit for Specific Purpose: The general

lien of a bank upon a customer's deposits will

not be recognized where the circumstances are

inconsistent therewith and accordingly where

moneys or securities are deposited \yith. the bank
for a particular purpose as to pay or secure a

])articular loan or debt, they cannot be retained

by the bank for a general balance or for the pay-

ment of all other claims. * * *"
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In

7 Corpus Juris, sec. 358^'2j P^§6 660,

it is stated:

"Deposit Alt'ected with Trust: It has been

considered that whei'c a deposit is impressed with

a trust the bank cannot retain it on the doctrine

of equitable set-oft*."

See

United States v. Butterworth-Judson Corp., 267

U. S. 387; 69 L. Ed. 672.

In re Davis, 119 Fed. 950,

it is said at page 955:

"While a general deposit by a merchant of

money in a bank creates the relation of debtor

and creditor, and authorizes the bank to use

the money as its own, such result does not obtain

when the deposit is made for a sj^ecial purpose,

as for example, to he paid to creditors, as was
the case here. In the latter case a fiduciary rela-

tionship is created, and the money is held in a

trust fund, not as bank assets, and hence, the

bank is without lawful right to appropriate it to

its own use. (Citing cases.)

In Wilson v. Dawson, 52 Ind. 515, the court

stated the principle in the following language:

'It is a general rule that funds deposited in a

bank for a special purpose known to the bank
cannot be Avithheld from that purpose to the end
that they may be set off by the bank against a

debt due to it from the depositor. The claim of

a general lien hy the hank tvould he inconsistent

with its special undertaking. (Citing Morse,

Banks and Banking, 34 et seq., and authorities

. cited; Bank v. McAlester, 9 Pa. 475.)"
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In

Wag7ier v. Citizens Bank, 122 S. W. (Tenn.)

245; 28 L. R. A. (New Series) 484,

the court states:

"A bank which, through its president as one

of the creditors of a manufacturing company, has

agreed with it and the other creditors that the

assets of the company shall be collected and de-

posited in the bank to be divided among all cred-

itors prorata, cannot upon the institution of

bankruptcy proceedings against the corporation

set oif the fund so accmnulated against its own
claim since the fund is a trust deposit for spe-

cific purposes created with the knotvledge and

consent of the hank, and it cannot for the pur-

poses of setoff treat it as the individual property

of the corporation."*******
"We are of the opinion that these authori-

ties are applicable in the present instance. It

distinctl}^ appears on this record that the funds

accumulated in the defendant bank were deposited

for a special purpose with the knowledge and con-

sent of the president of the bank; that the funds

could not be checked out by the president of the

furniture company without the signature of

J. L. Morrison, representative of the creditors'

committee. The fund thereby became a trust de-

posit for specific purposes with the knowledge and
consent of the bank and the latter had no right

of setoff in said fund against the bankrupt's in-

debtedness to the bank/'



151

XV.

THE ACTION OF THE OTHER BANKS IN RESTORING TO THE
RECEIVER THE CASH BALANCES AND CREDITS OF THE
RICHFIELD COMPANY IN THEIR POSSESSION, AND
IN FAILING TO EXERCISE THEIR BANKERS' LIENS IN

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGREEMENT OF APPELLANT
TO DO LIKEWISE, CREATED AN ESTOPPEL AGAINST AP-

PELLANT EFFECTUALLY PREVENTING IT FROM THERE-
AFTER EXERCISING ITS BANKER'S LIEN UPON BAL-

ANCES AND CREDITS IN ITS POSSESSION AT THE TIME
OF SUCH AGREEMENT.

In

Union Bank d Trust Co. v. Lohle, 14 Fed. (2(i)

116,

the plaintiff, with certain other creditors—prior to in-

solvency—agreed to refrain from pressing their claims

to the end that the husiness might continue and cer-

tain eastern creditors paid and that eventually they

too tvould he paid. This agreement was so far exe-

cuted that the business continued approximately five

or six weeks during which the bank honored all checks

of the bankrupt and paid out approximately $4700

but not to eastern creditors as it had agreed to do.

On January 25th, the date of adjudication, the bank

had on hand $8300, which it applied to the bankrupt's

note to the bank. The District Court said:

"Special or specific deposits do not create the

relation of debtor and creditor, but are in the

nature of a trust. The special contract by virtue

of which the bank receives them is inconsistent

with and avoids the otherwise right of lien and
set-off implied in the ordinary contract of de-

posits. * * * In so far as some thereof (de-

posits) were paid for current expenses and other

accounts, it was implied from the beginning, or



152

was a more or less necessary modification by con-

duct from time to time, to execute the agreement

and to continue the plan. * * * Moreover, the

law is equally well settled that he who secured

possession of property or money upon his agree-

ment to make certain disposition or application

of it, is obligated to perform accordingly or to

return the thing to him from whom possession is

received. He cannot lepudiate his contract, and

in advantage of his wrong, otherwise dispose of

the thing to his own benefit." (Hanover Bank v.

Suddath; Smith v. Sanborn State Bank, 126 N.

W. 779.)

In affirming the case, Union Bank & Trust Co. v.

LoUe, 20 Fed. (2d) 124, Judge Gilbert, writing the

decision for C. C. A., held that there was no fraudu-

lent preference.

"But a bank may so deal with a depositor as to

waive or be estopped to assert the right of setoff.

Michie, Banks and Banking, 1027. And the right

does not exist where the circumstances are in-

consistent with its exercise. (Citing cases.) Nor
where the principles of legal or equitable setoff

do not authorize it. (Citing cases.) On these

grounds we think the decision of the court below

is sustainable. While the money realized on the

special sale and deposited to bankrupt's current

account and subject to its check for general pur-

poses may not be said to come within the ac-

cepted definition of a special deposit so as to be

exempt from the bank's claim to the right of

setoff, we are inclined to the view that the cir-

cumstances under which the fund was created,

and the cooperation of the bank and the bankrupt

in its creation, were sufficient to so far impress
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upon it the character of trust fund that the bank
should be held estopped to assert a lien thereon

or the right of setoff. (Quoting from 16 F. (2d)

986, as follows:) 'It is moreover to be noted that,

before and at the time the bank applied these

amounts to its own use, it, the banki'upt, and the

other creditors were conferring as to the possi-

bility of keeping the bankrupt upon its feet as a

going concern by securing the general acceptance

of a scheme of reorganization which contemplated

the creditors taking less than was due them.

Under such circumstances the deposit by the

bankru]^t of large sums in the bank, which both

it and the bankrupt intended should be used for

the reduction of the former's debt, were ob-

viously not made in ordinary course, in any fair

sense of the phrase."

In

Ballow V. Farmers Bank etc., 45 S. W. (2d)

882,

where the facts are quite comparable to those in the

instant case, the court said:

''There is no doubt about the general rule that

when a depositor is indebted to a bank, and the

debts are mutual, that is, between the same par-

ties and in the same, the bank may apply the

deposit to the payment of the debt due it by the

depositor. However, the rule is subject to the

exception that set-off will not be allowed where

its natural consequence will be to give the bank
a preferential advantage over other creditors, or

where it is contrary to the agreement under which

the de])osit was made, or where the hank has

dealt with the depositor under circimistances in-
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consistent with the exercise of the right of set-off

and having the effect of estopping it from assert-

ing or maintaining the right. (Citing many cases.)
* * *

"In other words, defendant fully understood

that the funds deposited with it to the account

of the trustee were derived solely from the at-

tempted liquidation of Hopper's business; that

they were to be used in payment of the claims of

his creditors; and that they came into Thomas'

hands, and thence into the custody of the bank,

impressed with a trust for a specific purpose. It

knew as well as any one that the deposits, though

they represented sums realized from the sale of

Hopper's assets, were nevertheless not made in

the usual and ordinary course of Hopper's busi-

ness, for the usual and ordinary course of Hop-
per's business ceased when Thomas took charge

of it under the scheme for liquidation. The de-

posit of the trust funds pursuant to such scheme

created no relation of debtor and creditor between

the bank and Hopper, but rather between the

bank and the trustee; and any termination or

relinquishment of his trusteeship by Thomas did

not serve to change the original character of the

deposits.

A case largely on all fours with the one at bar

is to be found in the decision of the Supreme
Court of Arkansas, in Wimberley v. Bank of

Portia, 158 Ark. 413, 250 S. W. 334, 335, from

which we quote as follows:

'It is a general rule that funds deposited in

the bank for a special purpose known to the

bank cannot be withheld from that purpose to the

end that they may be set off by the bank against
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a debt due it from the depositor. In other words,

while it is true that a general deposit by a mer-

chant of money in a bank creates the relation of

debtor and creditor and authorizes the bank to

use the money as its own, such result does not ob-

tain when the deposit is made for a special pur-

pose; as, for example, to he paid to creditors. * * *

'Tested by this rule, we think that the learned

chancellor erred in finding in favor of the de-

fendant in this case. * * * A preponderance of

the evidence shows that the money w^as deposited

in a bank by A. L. Pickens as a trust fund to be

used by Z. C. Wimberley as his trustee in paying

off all of his creditors pi'o rata.
* * * ? J7

See also:

Merrimack v. Bailey, 289 Fed. 468;

In re Gams d Klein, 14 Fed. (2d) 116 (9th

Cir.).
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XVI.

THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF THE AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO

BETWEEN THE BANKS RESPECTING RESTORATION OF

BALANCES TO ENABLE THE RICHFIELD COMPANY
TO CONTINUE IN BUSINESS AND AVOID BANKRUPTCY
ARE INCONSISTENT WITH THE RIGHT OF THE BANK TO

EXERCISE ITS BANKER'S LIEN OR RIGHT OF SET-OFF.

In Union Bank etc. v. LohJe, 20 Fed. (2d) 124 (9th

Circuit, C. C. A.) it was held that

''Where a bank, with the knowledge of the bank-

rupt's failing- circumstances, suggested that bank-

rupt conduct a special sale to raise money to pay

certain creditors with a view to reorganizing and

continuing the business, the fund realized on such

sale and deposited in the bank, held impressed

with character of a trust fund so as to exempt

it from bank's claim to right of set-off against

debt owing it from bankrupt."

Union Trust Co. v. Peck, 16 Fed. (2d) 986 (C.

C. A.)

"It is, moreover, to be noted that before and at

the time the bank applied these amounts to its

own use, it, the bankrupt and the other creditors

were conferring as to the possibility of keeping

the bankrupt upon its feet as a going concern by

securing the general acceptance of a scheme of

reorganization which contemplated the creditors

taking less than was due them. Under such cir-

cmnstances the deposit b}^ the bankrupt of large

sums in the bank which both it and the bankrupt
intended should be used for the reduction of the

former's debt were obviously not made in the

ordinary course in any fair sense of that phrase.

Most men would feel that it is an implied term
of such negotiation that during their pendency
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nobody taking part in them shall do anything to

secure preferential rights in or over any assets

of the bankrupt which did not belong to it when
the conferences began, or upon which it did not

then have a prior lien."

Ballow V. Farmers Bank, 45 S. W. (2d)

''The general rule is subject to the exception

that set-off will not be allowed where its natural

consequences will be to give the bank a preferen-

tial advantage over other creditors or where it is

contrary to the agreement under which the de-

posit was made, or where the bank has dealt with

the depositor under circumstances inconsistent

with the exercise of the right of set-off and hav-

ing the effect of estopping it from asserting or

maintaining the right." (Citing cases.)
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XVII.

APPELLANT'S CLAIM THAT THE EVIDENCE INTRODUCED IN

THE LOWER COURT WAS LEGALLY INEFFECTIVE TO
ESTABLISH A WAIVER OF ITS BANKER'S LIEN AND
RIGHT OF SET-OFF IS LACKING IN MERIT, AND THE
AUTHORITIES RELIED UPON FAIL TO SUSTAIN ITS

POSITION.

The sufficiency of the evidence to sustain the find-

ings of the loAvei- court, as well as the legal effect of

the court's determination, has already received atten-

tion in the preceding pages of this brief. We believe

it propel', however, to briefly comment on some of

the contentions advanced by appellant under this title,

and to refer to a very few of the authorities upon

which it relies.

A. Status of drafts deposited

under acceptance agreements.

Appellee concedes that if the drafts here involved

were not deposited under the acceptance agreement,

but in the ordinary course of business, and in the

absence of any special agreement or the waiver of

January 16, 1931, aj^pellant would be entitled to sub-

ject such drafts and their proceeds to its statutory

banker's lien, or its contractual right of set-off. The

authorities cited by appellant undoubtedly support

this concession. It is not and never has been

challenged by appellee.

But if the drafts here in controversy were not

deposited under the acceptance agreement and the de-

cision of the lower court with respect to the so-called

Hall agreement is sustained by the evidence, and

it has the legal effect imputed to it by appellee, OR if

the evidence is sufficient to support the determination
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of the lower court that by its iigTeement of January

16, 1931, appellant waived its banker's lien, as well

as its right of set-oft' as to all drafts and their pro-

ceeds, excepting- those placed under the acceptance

agreement, then undoubtedly its banker's lien and

right of set-oft' which it otherwise could have exer-

cised, no longer existed, and its claim to the drafts

here involved and their x^roceeds, is lacking in founda-

tion.

B. Authorities cited by appellant

and its criticism of authorities

relied on by appellee.

In its brief appellant undertakes to analyze some

of the authorities cited by a])])ellee in the court below

in support of its claim that by the so-called Hall

agreement, as well as by the agreement of January

16, 1931, appellant's banker's lien and right of set-

off as to the long term drafts were waived. We will

not attem])t to comment upon such analysis because

many of the decisions are herein set forth and speak

for themselves. These cases enunciate a rule given

universal recognition which, applied to the proven

facts in this case, conclusively clothes the drafts herein

involved and their proceeds with the status which

effectively prevents appellant from exercising thereon

any alleged banker's lien or right of set-oif. They

apply with equal force to the agreement of January

16, 1931, entered into between the receiver and ap-

pellant, to which reference has already and will here-

after be made. The decisions cited in support of

appellant's contention are not out of harmony with

those cited by appellee.
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While, in the absence of any special agreement

or circumstances exempting the deposited funds from

the statutory lien privileges enjoyed by bankers, the

cases hold that such privileges are x)roperly enforce-

able, they specifically point out that when it has been

established, either by an express agreement or by

attending circumstances, that the deposit was not

made in the ordinary course of business or was

charged with the subservience of a special burden or

purpose, or constitutes a trust fund, that the right

to banker's lien or right of set-off no longer exists.

In

Goodtvin v. Barre Trust Co., 100 Atl. 34,

cited by appellant (p. 78), in holding that a motion

for a directed verdict was properly overruled, the

court said:

''But the plaintiff's evidence tended to show

that it was expressly agreed that the defendant

would not keep the money but would turn it over

to the bankrupt. Mr. Cutler testified that he

told Mr. Drew, when the latter came to him and

asked to have the two drafts here in question

turned over to the defendant for collection to

save expense, that he did not want to do it be-

cause he ^was afraid the hank would (johhle all

the money' and he wanted it to pay to the other

creditors; and that Mr. Drew assured him that

the bank would not keep the money but would
turn it over to him. Here, then, was an express

agreement not to assert a lien. Against such an
agreement a lien would not stand. A banker's

lien does not apply when there is a contract, ex-

pressed or implied, inconsistent with such lien.

(Citing 1 Jones on Liens, sec. 244.) The lien does
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not apply when the circumstances or a particular

mode of dealing are inconsistent with such lien."

(Citing cases.)

The case of

Minard v. Watts, 186 Fed. 245,

cited by appellant (pp. 97 and 98), is not in point

because it was there stipulated by the parties as fol-

lows:

''that there was not at any time any express

agreement or understanding between Henry
Minard or the Garrett Biblical Institute, or either

of them, on the one part and the First National

Bank on the other part, that the deposits or any

of them referred to in the bill of complaint in this

case were to be held or kept separate and distinct

from the general funds of the bank."

It was because of this stipulation that the court said:

"Therefore the transaction here involved, be-

ing one of deposit, the legal status of the parties

thus created must be either that of bailor or

bailee or of creditor or debtor, for no other legal

relation can arise out of the act of one depositing

money with a bank."

The court therefore concluded:

"As it is stipulated by the i^arties that there

was no express agreement or understanding be-

tween the parties in this case that the deposit

made should he considered as special, and as there

was nothing in the character of the transaction

had in this case from ivhich there may he found,

an implied agreement or understanding hetween
the parties to that effect, it must be held that the

deposits were made general and not special."
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In

Joyce V. Auten, 179 U. S. 591,

(cited by appellant, p. 78), the court said:

*'It is a familiar law that a bank receiving

notes for collection is entitled in the absence of

a contract, express or implied to the contrary to

retain them as security for the debt of the party

depositing the notes." (Citing cases.)

In

Garrison v. Union Trust Co., 102 N. W. 978,

(cited b}^ appellant, p. 78) the court quoted the fol-

lowing language with approval:

"A banker has a lien on all securities of his

debtor for the general balance of his account

unless such lien is inconsistent with the actual or

presumed intention of the parties."

One of the two principal cases quoted b}^ appellant

directly sustains the contention of appellee. The

other case is not in point. This becomes readily ap-

parent from an examination of these decisions.

In

America)} Surety Co. v. Bank of Italy, 63 Cal.

App. 149 (supra, p. 147),

the (luestion involved was whether a certain deposit

constituted a trust fund. Ernest Green, a building

contractor, received moneys from the owner of a

garage under construction to be used by him in pay-

ing the claims of laborers and materialmen. He de-

posited this fund in a bank with which he had been

doing business under the following designation,

''Ernest Green, Silva Garage". The lower court held

that the fund was a trust fund. The appellate court,
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however, held that the evidence was insufficient to

show that Green had entered into any agreement with

the bank respecting such deposit, or that the bank

knew the purjjose for which the deposit had been

created. The decision, liowever, I'ecognizes that un-

der evidence such as is found in the record in the

case at bar, appellant would not be authorized to

exercise its banker's lien or right of set-off upon

funds dei3ositod pursuant to such agreement. This is

clearly shown by the following language found at

page 157 of the decision:

''Such an agreement as the plaintiff claims the

evidence shows was made between Green and the

bank as to the account in dispute, while creating

in a sense a trust relation between the bank and

Green as to said account would, strictly, involve

merely an agreement on the part of the bank to

w^aive its right to appropriate the moneys de-

posited in the account as a setoff to any indebted-

ness of the depositor to it—that is, it would

amount only to a waiver of its right of lien. But,

be that as it may, no express agreement or rm-

derstanding between the bank and Ernest Green

that the moneys in question were to be used for

or appropriated to the payment of the claims of

such persons as furnished materials for use in

the construction of the Silva Garage and of

mechanics and laborers who bestowed labor on

said building is shown by the evidence. Nor is

there any direct evidence that Green gave the

bank instructions to the effect that the moneys
deposited in said account were to be appropriated

or applied to a special purpose. If then there was
such agreement or direction to the bank by Green
of the asserted special purpose of said account,
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it must be extracted from the circumstances un-

der which the account was opened and made."

And after showing that no such circumstance was

reflected by the evidence, the decision proceeds:

"It is true that the court found that the ac-

count in question was marked or designated as

indicated upon the suggestion of the officials of

the defendant. But that finding derives no di-

rect support from the evidence. There is testi-

mony showing that the 'Milliken' bridge account

was so designated on the suggestion of an officer

of the defendant, but there is no testimony, nor

does such fact appear in the statement of the

stipulated facts, that the 'ear marking' of the

account involved herein was suggested by any

ofi&cer of the bank."

That part of the decision in which the court says:

*'A banker is not required to go 'snooping'

about to learn from what source his depositors

obtain the moneys which they deposit in his

bank"

quoted by appellant in its brief is directed to the

jjroposition that the bank was put upon inquiry as

to the source from which Gri*een obtained the moneys

deposited in said account by the fact that the ac-

count was designated ''Ernest Green, Silva Garage".

In the concluding paragraph of the opinion, however,

the court cleaiiy makes manifest that if the facts

were as indicated by the record here the judgment of

the lower court would have been affirmed. There it

is said (p. 163)

:

"Counsel ask this court, if a reversal of the

judgment herein be ordered, to order the court



165

below to enter judgment upon its findings and

the agreed statement of facts for and in favor

of the defendant. This we think we should not

do. Upon a retrial a different state of facts might

be sho^vn upon the ({uestion of notice to the bank
or of an agreement between the latter and Ernest

Green that the account in question was opened

for the use and benefit of a special purpose."

An examination of the case of

TJpdyke v. Oakland Motor Car. Co., 53 F. (2d)

369,

(the remaining case referred to) will quickly disclose

that it is not in point.

There it was claimed that the Oakland Motor Car

Company had by an agreement waived its right of set-

off. In holding that the proof failed to measure up

to the claim the court said:

''But Stratton never claimed that Oakland, in

terms, promised not to exercise the right of set-

off or that the payment was to be a special de-

posit in Stratton's favor or was to be applied by

Oakland in some specific way."

It must be apparent that the facts in case just cited

are not at all comparable to those proven in the case

under discussion. At the time the agreement between

Hall and the bank was made the Richfield Company

was indebted to the bank in the sum of $625,000 which

was to shortly mature. It was to satisfy this very

indebtedness that the appellant herein exercised its

banker's lien and right of set-off. It was because of

this indebtedness, as well as to prevent the foreign

collections being utilized in its payment, that Hall



166

insisted that the agreement testified to by Hall and

Pope be made. That the agreement was in fact made

was proven not only by Hall and Pope, but by Lip-

man and Helhnan. If the agreement was in fact

made, its only purpose was to prevent the doing of

the acts which are here complained of. If the foreign

drafts were deposited pursuant to the so-called Hall

agreement, under the authorities heretofore cited by

appellee, they w^ere not deposited in the "ordinary

course of business" and therefore constituted a spe-

cial or trust deposit which was not subject to the

exercise of any banker's lien or right of set-off. Most

certainly the circumstances proven indicated a par-

ticular mode of dealing which was inconsistent with

the existence or the exercise of a banker's lien, or

right of set-off, and which under the authorities here-

inbefore cited, estopped appellant from asserting or

maintaining such claimed right.

C. Mechanics' liens not compa-

rable to bankers' liens.

We do not believe it at all essential to engage in a

discussion respecting the analogy between the present

case and cases involving a waiver of mechanics' liens.

In each of the cases cited by appellant the work for

which the lien was claimed was done in conformity

with a w^ritten contract in which was made no men-

tion of the alleged waiver of lien. In holding that

no waiver was shown, considerable reliance was had

upon the terms of the written agreement and the

circumstance that the waiver attempted to be shown

was inconsistent A\ith its language. The cases cited

either hold that the waiver could not be shown be-
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cause inconsistent with the language of the agree-

ment, or that in view of the language of the agree-

ment the alleged waiver had to be established by

clear and convincing evidence.

In the instant case it is not claimed that the so-

called Hall agreement in any way affected the collec-

tions deposited as security under the acceptance agree-

ment. The contention is that it related and applied

only to those drafts which were not deposited under

such acceptance agreement. Therefore, the rule de-

clared in the so-called mechanics' lien cases is with-

out application.

D. The transmission of proceeds

to receiver.

Under this heading it is asserted that appellee

seeks to aid his case for waiver by relying on the

act of appellant in crediting to the account of the

receiver proceeds of drafts previously deposited with

appellant.

In support of this statement it cites the case of

Bell V. Hutchison Lhr. Co., 145 S. E. 160, in which

it is held that the application of certain funds to

other indebtedness of a corporation does not amount

to a waiver or abandonment of a lien. Apparently

counsel for appellant fail to ap]3reciate the force or

effect of the evidence referred to by them or the

claim made by appellee with respect to such evidence.

It is not contended that the mere crediting of these

funds to the account of the receiver in and of itself

constituted a waiver. The claim is that the conduct

of appellant in voluntarily and without request de-
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positing to the credit of the receiver the proceeds of

drafts which appellant now claims were deposited

under the acceptance agreement and, therefore, sub-

ject to its provisions which, in the absence of such

waiver, could be offset to satisfy in part the indebted-

ness due to it, is convincing evidence, first, that the

drafts were not deposited mider the acceptance agree-

ment; and, secondly, that appellant had, as a matter

of fact, by its agreement of January 16, 1931, waived

any statutory or contractual lien that it might there-

tofore have had upon said drafts or proceeds. In

other words, it was conduct consistent only with the

claims advanced by appellee and entirely inconsistent

and at variance with the defense which it now asserts.
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XVIII.

APPELLANT'S CLAIM THAT THERE WAS NO CONSIDERATION
FOR A WAIVER OF LIEN BY APPELLANT AFTER THE
APPOINTMENT OF THE RECEIVER.

The claim made by appellant that there was no con-

sideration for the agreement of January 16, 1931, is

based upon a misconception of the status of the re-

ceiver and the effect of his appointment.

When a receiver is ai)pointed for a corporation, to

the extent to which the order appointing him confers

upon him power and authority, he stands in the shoes

of the corporation and acts as the representative not

only of the court but of the corporation, its creditors

and stockholders. While the effect of the appoint-

ment of an equitable receiver for a corporation is not

comparable to the latter 's dissolution, nevertheless to

the extent to which the receiver is empowered to act,

the functions of the corporation cease.

When a receiver is ai^pointed to take possession

of all property and assets of a corporation and to

carry on its business, and is further authorized to

institute such litigation as may be necessary to en-

force the provisions of the order and to collect all

outstanding claims, and an injunction is issued re-

straining interference with his powers by the corpo-

ration, its agents and all other persons, in performing

the duties and obligations thus imposed upon him, he

occupies the position previously occupied by the cor-

poration. While he takes its property and assets

subject to all outstanding liens and claims, he is

clothed with the power of asserting and enforcing all

rights that at the time of his appointment were pos-
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sessed by the corporation. In carrying on its business

he possesses the same power that would have been

possessed by the corporation had the receivership not

occurred, and, where authorized, he has the right to

enter into such contracts as in his judgment may be

necessary to carry on and conduct the business en-

trusted to his care.

It is obvious, therefore, that McDuffie's authority

extended to the making of the agreement of January

16, 1931, and we are thus brought to the proposition

as to whether such agreement was based upon a

valid consideration. The receivership was initiated to

enable the business of the Richfield Oil Company to

be carried forwai'd and to avoid bankruptcy. The

agreement on the part of appellee to continue as such

receiver and to carry on the business of the company

and thus avoid its bankruptcy, itself would be a suffi-

cient consideration for making the agreement claimed.

But it is a well-recognized principle of law that any

consideration received by a person making an agree-

ment, even though such consideration did not emanate

from the other party to the agreement, is itself suffi-

cient in law to support the agreement. This is made

manifest by Section 1605 of the Civil Code (Cal.)

which provides:

"Any benefit conferred or agreed to be con-

ferred upon the promisor by any other person

to which the promisor is not lawfullj^ entitled, or

any prejudice suffered or agreed to be suffered

by such person other than such as he is at the

time of consent lawfully bound to suffer as an

inducement to the promisor, is a good considera-

tion for a promise."
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The evidence without dispute shows that in consid-

eration of appellant's agreement of January 16, 1931,

certain other bank creditors restored cash balances

to Richfield which had already been offset, and agreed

not to exercise their right of offset as against cash

balances not already interfered with. The evidence

further proved that in reliance upon said agreement

of appellant, the Security Bank not only restored the

cash balances of the Richfield Company already offset

by it, but subsequently turned over to the receiver

collections aggregating $152,000 upon which it had

the legal right to exercise its banker's lien and right

of set-off.

While appellant, being a creditor of Richfield and

interested in its eft'orts to avoid bankruptcy, benefited

by what the other banks did, this element is not im-

portant because the other bank creditors actually suf-

fered a prejudice to the extent of the moneys relin-

quished by them to Richfield Company in considera-

tion of the agreement made by appellant.

Further discussion of this matter we deem non-

essential.
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XIX.

APPELLANT'S CLAIM THAT ESTOPPEL CAN BE RELIED ON
ONLY BY A PARTY TO THE ACTION.

Having demonstrated that the agreement of Jan-

uary 16, 1931, was based upon a good and enforceable

consideration, the question of estoppel becomes one

of no particular moment. If, however, the court is

of the opinion that the element of estoppel is at all

important, the proven facts in this case have estab-

lished an estoppel against appellant which would pre-

vent it from successfully asserting that the agreement

was unenforceable because of want of consideration.

The agreement of January 16, 1931, in legal effect

is a tri-party agreement. It was made immediately

following the date of the appointment and qualifica-

tion of the receiver. It was an agreement which, as

we have already shown, under his order of appoint-

ment the receiver had a right to make. It was made

by the receiver in his representative capacity for and

on behalf of the corporation whose assets, property

and business he represented, as well as the creditors

and stockholders interested therein. But aside from

these facts, while it was directly made between the

receiver and appellant, it also involved the agreements

of the various bank creditors, which latter agreements

depended upon the agreement of the appellant. Under

these circumstances the bank creditors were not only

beneficiaries of the agreement, but in legal effect, were

parties thereto.

It appears in evidence without dispute that in con-

sideration of and in reliance upon the appellant's

agreement, the receiver remained in his position and
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continued to cany on the business of the Richfield

Company. It also appears without dispute that in

consideration of and in reliance upon the agreement

with appellant, the other bank creditors actually per-

formed the things agreed to by them which, as to the

Security Bank, included the payment to the receiver

of the proceeds of the collections theretofore deposited

with it upon which, in the absence of the agreement,

it could—and probably would—have exercised a bank-

er's lien and right of set-off.

Assuming that any doubt could possibly exist with

respect to consideration, an estoppel in pais has been

demonstrated which effectually prevents appellant

from successfully asserting any such defense.

Seymour v. Oelrichs, 156 Cal. 782 at 794.

The principle that

''estoppels operate only between parties and
privies and the party who represents an estoppel

must be one who has in good faith been misled

to his injury"

may be conceded. The facts herein involved and

proven by the evidence, as above pointed out, bring

this case within the principle stated. Not a scintilla

of evidence was introduced which would justify the

assumption that either the receiver or the bank credi-

tors would have acted as they did except for the belief

that the agreement of January 16, 1931, was a valid

agreement and that appellant was equally bound with

them to measure up to its requirements and perform

the obligations with w^hich they were all burdened.

That the receiver, as such, is not entitled to enforce

this estoppel is equally untenable.
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If, as already pointed out, the receiver, for the pur-

poses of this litigation, represents the corporation as

well as those interested therein including its creditors,

then necessarily he is clothed with all of the rights that

could have been asserted and enforced by the corpora-

tion if the action had been instituted by the corpora-

tion. There can be no question but that after his

appointment the corporation itself could not institute

or maintain this action. There is likewise no doubt

but that after his appointment, considering the terms

and provisions of the order appointing him, he and he

alone could institute and maintain this action. It is

equally free from doubt that the pending action was

in fact brought by the receiver in a representative

capacity for and on behalf of the corporation and

those interested therein. This agreement, although

made with the receiver, was in fact entered into by

him on behalf of the cor])oration. It seems futile,

therefore, for appellant to argue that under such cir-

cumstances the rights possessed by the corporation

and the remedies available to it cannot be asserted and

pursued by the receiver, the only person authorized to

institute and maintain the action.

That the status of the receiver is as has been indi-

cated is clearly shoA^n by the authorities. In

Westiiu/h oti.fie etc. v. Bhighamptov E. Co., 255

Fed. 378, at 385,

it is said:

'^A receivership is for the benefit and protec-

tion of all interests, general creditors, secured

creditors (bondholders) and stockholders, and it

is the duty of the couii:, so far as reasonably

possible, to conserve and protect all interests."
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In

53 C. J., Sec. 163, page 137,

the rule is thus stated:

''So the acts of a receiver are the acts of the

court for which he acts, and, his appointment

'being for the benefit of all parties interested, he

holds and manages the property for the benefit of

those ultimately entitled, and not primarily for

the benefit of the party at whose instance the

appointment was made."

And in describing the capacity in which a receiver acts

in instituting and prosecuting an action, at

53 C. J., Sec. 537, page 324,

with reference to the status of a receiver in the prose-

cution of an action, it is stated:

''The general rule is that a receiver takes the

rights, causes and remedies which were in the

corporation, individual or estate whose receiver

he is, or which were available to those whose in-

terests he w^as appointed to represent. Where a

claim asserted by or against a receiver affects the

interests of all the parties in the property alike,

the receiver is the proper party to bring or de-

fend the action, and a receiver representing all the

parties to a subscription to a common purpose

may maintain an action against one of the persons

so represented for a sum due from that one to the

whole body represented, although defendant may
be ultimately entitled to a share of the proceeds

of such suit. And, subject to some qualifications

and exceptions, especially provided for by statute

or the rules of equity authorizing a receiver to

sue in the interests of creditors, he stands in the

shoes of such person or estate and can enforce

only such rights and contracts, or maintain only
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such action or defense as could be enforced or

maintained by any such person or estate."

A multitude of cases from many jurisdictions, both

federal and state, could be cited in support of these

principles, but we deem such citation unnecessary. An
examination of the cases cited by appellant to this

point will show that to no extent whatever does any

of them qualify the legal principles above set forth.
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THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ADMITTING TESTIMONY
REGARDING THE MEETINGS OF THE RICHFIELD BANK
CREDITORS AND THE COMMUNICATIONS PASSING BE-

TWEEN SUCH CREDITORS AND THE RECEIVER.

It is claimed by appellant that the lower court erred

in admitting in evidence the discussion which occurred

between Mr. McDuffie, receiver of the Richfield Com-

pany, and its bank creditors at the meeting which fol-

low'ed the ai)pointment of the receiver. The appoint-

ment was made on January 15, 1931, and the meeting

to which reference is made occurred the following day,

January 16, 1931. In its brief appellant states that

Mr. McDuffte and Mr. Nolan were allowed to testify

over the objection of appellant as to w^hat was said at

both of said meetings, (p. 165.) In this, however,

appellant is mistaken. With respect to the meeting

held on Januarv 14, 1931, the evidence merely dis-

closed the holding of the meeting and the persons

present. No inquiry was made res])ecting what was

said at such meeting. (R. 205.) In this connection it

might be proper to state that the meetings preceding

the one on January 16, 1931, were participated in by

the banker creditors to whom there w^as due in excess

of ten million dollars, evidently for the purpose of

bringing about the receivership. According to the

testimony of Mr. Nolan

''These meetings were held in connection with

the outstanding indebtedness for the pur]^ose of

protecting banks and the bank's depositors. I

recall that Mr. Eisenbach was present at one of

these meetings. The bankers were very much con-

cerned about Richfield." (R. 239.)
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Over appellant's objection, however, the court did

admit evidence disclosing what occurred at the meet-

ing held on January 16, 1931, as well as the telegrams

subsequently passing between the creditor banks and

the receiver. This evidence, however, was admitted for

the limited purpose

''of establishing a waiver and estoppel against

defendant with respect to its subsequent right to

exercise its alleged banker's lien and right of set-

off and conceded that said testimony would not be

binding on defendant except to the extent to which

information was afterwards commmiicated to

defendant respecting what occurred at said bank-

ers' meetings." (R. 240.)

The court wdll recall that the proposed receivership

was to protect and conserve the assets of Richfield and

enable the receiver to carry on its business for the

benefit of its creditors, among others, its banker credi-

tors. That at the meeting last above referred to the

receiver insisted that if he was to remain in that

capacity and conduct the receivership, all of the bank

creditors would have to agree that the funds and

credits in their possession belonging to the Richfield

Company should be available to the receiver and that

those that had exercised their banker's lien or right

of set-off as against such credits and deposits should

forthwith restore them and the remaining banks should

agree not to exercise such right ; otherwise the receiver

would retire and the company would become bankrupt.

During the course of the meeting and after the

receiver had stated its purpose, as well as his attitude

in the matter, the bank creditors who were present
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agreed to comply with the receiver's requirements,

provided compliance therewith was agreed to by all

other bank creditors. Thereupon the receiver's tele-

gram of January 16, 1931 (Plff's. Ex. 2), was pre-

pared by a committee of the bankers present and

transmitted to each of the banker creditors. There-

upon Mr. Nolan, at the request of Mr. McDuffie, tele-

phoned appellant and communicated to Mr. Eisen-

bach, its vice-president, one of its executives and chief

credit man, the substance of what had occurred at

the meeting. (R. 243.) Appellant thereupon pre-

pared and transmitted to the receiver its telegram in

response, also dated January 16, 1931. (Plff's. Ex.

3.) Each of the remaining bank creditors likewise

responded by wire or communication to the telegram

of the receiver acquiescina; in his requirements upon

the understanding that all other banks would do like-

wise.

It can readily be understood that this evidence was

not only important, but essential to establish

(a) Consideration for the agreement of appel-

lant to restore the bank balances of Richfield

which had already been offset by it, and its agree-

ment to waive its banker's lien and right of set-

off against the collections in its possession other

than those supporting the acceptance agreements.

(b) The fact that other banks had agreed to

do likewise; otherwise appellant's agreement

would not have been effective, and

(c) To establish that the remaining bank

creditors of Richfield relied upon the agreement

of each other, as well as of appellant, in restoring
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bank balances of Richfield and, as to the Security

Bank, in waiving its banker's lien and right of

set-off against the collections then in its possession.

In the absence of this evidence, limited exclusively

to the purposes hereinbefore indicated, appellant

might absolve itself from liability upon the asserted

grounds that no consideration existed for its agree-

ment and might successfully claim that the necessary

elements of estoppel and waiver had not been shown.

Appellant in its brief admits the purposes for which

this evidence was offered, (p. 165.) The record is

slightly confusing, however, for the reason that in the

court below Mr. McDuffie was withdrawn from the

stand in order to enable Mr. Nolan to testify. This

evidence was first introduced while Mr. Nolan was on

the stand. In the statement of evidence, however, the

evidence of Mr. McDuffie is reproduced as though he

had not been withdrawn. The limited purpose of the

evidence is shown in the testimony of Mr. Nolan (R.

240), which according to the record appears to have

been given after McDuffie testified, whereas in fact the

reverse occurred. The purpose having been stated

when the evidence was first offered, no subsequent

statement was made or was required. The court's

ruling, however, with respect to this evidence w^as

necessarily based upon the limitation placed upon it

by appellee.

Even assuming, however, that this evidence was

objectionable, no prejudice thereby was suffered by

appellant. If the so-called Hall agreement is estab-

lished, the existence or non-existence of the agreement
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of January 16, 1931, becomes immaterial. Further-

more, in the absence of this evidence, consideration

for the agreement would be presmned. (California

Civil Code, Sec. 1614.) Inasmuch as no evidence wsls

introduced by appellant establishing want of consid-

eration, the determination of the lower court would

necessarily have to be in accord with the presumption.
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CONCLUSION.

We believe we owe the court an apology for the

apparent undue length of this brief. We feel, however,

that the extent of our efforts may be justified not alone

because of our desire to assist the Court in reviewing

the evidence, both oral and documentary, but because

of the importance of this litigation to our client and

our conviction that if properly presented, the integrity

of the determination by the low^r court will be readily

made manifest.

We cannot help but be convinced that within the

pages of this brief we have established (a) that it was

definitely imderstood and agreed that the foreign col-

lections of the Richfield Companj^ deposited with ap-

pellant should be considered entirely separate and

apart from all other business transactions between

Richfield Company and the bank; (b) that only the

short-term drafts, and that none of the so-called long-

term drafts, including those involved in this appeal

and their proceeds, were deposited as security under

the acceptance agreements; (c) that the provisions of

the acceptance agreements conferring upon appellant

a contractual lien attach or fasten themselves only to

the drafts deposited thereunder; and (d) that the

agreement of January 16, 1931, was not only sup-

ported by an adequate consideration, but by its terms,

appellant agreed to waive whatever right it had to

exercise any lien, either contractual or statutory, upon

any drafts or their proceeds, excepting those deposited

as security under said acceptance agreements.

It is respectfully but earnestly submitted that the

evidence, both oral and documentary, the equities and
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justice of the controversy, the conduct of the parties

with respect to the matters herein involved, the statu-

tory law of this state and the adjudication of appellate

tribunals require that the judgment of the court below

should be affirmed.

Dated, San Francisco,

April 2, 1934.

Gregory, Hun^t & Melvin,

Wm. H. Hunt,

Ward Sullivan,

Sullivan, Roche, Johnson & Barry,

Theo. J. Roche,

Attorneys for Appellee.

(Appendix Follows.)
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Appendix

SCHEDULE A
(Comprising: 2 subdivisions)

Schedule of Drafts Claimed by Plaintiff to Have Been Deposited as

Security for Acceptances Totaling $155,000.

Subdivision No. 1

Date
Draft No Customer Amount Deposited Date Paid

103004 Birla Bros. Ltd. 63,950.00 10/ 8/30 12/16/30

103006A do 55,900.76 10/ 8/30 12/16/30

103009 Ricardo Velazquez 2,442.40 10/ 9/30 1/28/31

103010 Bottiger Trepp y Cia 11,031.14 10/10/30 12/31/30

103012 Buena y Cia 2,441.00 10/12/30 *

103023 Sociedad Automoviliaria 779.10 10/21/30 Unpaid

103026 Rafael Alvarez L. e Hijos 2,446.82 10/28/30 12/27/30

103029 The Nissho Co. 654.55 10/29/30 12/27/30

103030 Empres Dean 1,405.20 10/30/30 2/11/31

113001 Limon Trading Co. 1,209.40 11/ 6/30 2/3/31

113007 Julio Plesch & Co. 1,204.78 11/19/30 2/14/31

113010 J. C. Spedding 1,804.01 11/20/30 2/14/31

113011 Nottebohm Hermanos 103.12 11/20/30 12/13/30

113012 Bottiger Trepp y Cia 1,466.25 11/20/30 2/13/31

113013 Rafael Alvarez L. e Hijos 2,446.82 11/20/30 1/30/31

113014 The Nissho Co. 1,547.50 11/22/30 1/21/31

113017 J. C. Spedding 7,277.35 11/22/30 2/14/31

113019 Nottebohm Hermanos 291.50 11,^25/30 12/12/30

113020 Raymundo Diaz 1,200.00 11/25/30 12/18/30

159,600.50

i*2/24/31 $1500 net proceeds applied on acceptances.

4/7/31 470 '' paid to receiver.

5/11/31 471 '' " retained by Bank.
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Schedule Showing Drafts Claimed by Plaintiffs to Have Been Deposited

as Security for Each Acceptance or Group of Acceptances

Executed and Released.

Subdivision No. 2

Draft No. Date Deposited Amount

103004 10/8/30 $63,950.00

103006A 10/8/30 55,900.76 $119,850.76

Nine acceptances released Oct. 8, 1930, aggregating 115,000.00'

Surplus amount of above two drafts 4,850.76

103009 10/ 9/30 2,442.40

103012 10/12/30 2,441.00 4,883.40

Reserve for Acceptances 9,734.16

One acceptance released Oct. 15, 1930, in amount of

$5,000 against above reserve of $9,734.16 5,000.00

103010 10/10/30 11,031.14

One acceptance released Oct. 21, 1930, in amount of

$10,000 against above draft of $11,031.14 10,000.00
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Five drafts above specified, viz.

Deduct acceptances issued

63,950.00

55,900.76

2,442.40

2,441.00

11,031.14

135,765.30

130,000.00

kirplus of ab(ove five drafts 5,765.30

103023 10/21/30 779.10

103026 10/28/30 2,446.82

103029 10/29/30 654.55

103030 10/30/30 1,405.20

113001 11/ 6/30 1,208.40

113007 11/19/30 1,204.78

113010 11/20/30 1,804.01

113011 11/20/30 103.12

113012 11/20/30 1,466.25

113013 11/20/30 2,446.82

113014 11/22/30 1,547.50

113017 11/22/30 7,277.35

113019 11/25/30 291.50

113020 11/25/30 1,200.00

29,600.50

Four acceptances released Nov. 28, 1930, aggregating $25,000 against

above drafts commencing with No. 103023 and ending with No. 113020.



IV

SCHEDULE B

Schedule Eelating to Correspondence Authorizing Release of

Acceptances Aggreguting- $130,000 and Claimed by Plaintiff

to Show the Particular Drafts Deposited With Bank and

Upon Which Said Acceptances Were Executed and Re-

leased.

1. Letter dated Oct. 7, 1930, authorizing release of acceptances

totaling $115,000, all dated Oct. 8, 1930. (Deft's. Ex. A.)

Draft Amount

103004

103006A

63,950.00

55,900.76 $119,850.76

Acceptances released as follows: (Plff's. 'Ex. 17)

Date Amount Due Date

Oct. 8, 1930 25,000

25,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

5,000

Jan. 6, 1931

115,000.00

Amount of above two drafts deposited in

excess of acceptances totaling $115,000 $ 4,850.76



Letter dated Oct. 13, 1930, authorizing release of acceptance

for $5000. (Plff's. Ex. 28.)

Draft Amount

103009 2,442.40

103012 2,441.00 4,883.40

Total $9,734.16

Acceptance released as follows: (Plff's. Ex. 18)

Date Amount Due Date

Oct. 15, 1930 5,000 Jan. 13, 1931

3. Letters dated Oct. 20 and 21, 1930, authorizing release of

acceptance totaling $10,000. (Plff's. Exs. 30 and 31.)

Draft Amount

103010 $11,031.14

Acceptance released as follows: (Plff's. Ex. 19)

Date Amount Due Date

Oct. 21, 1930 10,000 Jan. 19, 1931



VI

SCHEDULE C

Schedule Showing Drafts Claimed by Plaintiff Not to Have

Been Deposited as Security for Acceptances Totaling $155,000.

A

Drafts Deposited on or Prior to Nov. 28, 1930

No. Amount
Date of

Deposit Keason

103005

103006B

103024

103025

103028

103027

113008

113009

113018

113021

113023

63,950.00

55,900.75

1,007.00

583.00

1,204.78

381.60

1,007.00

5,256.60

641.25

2,237.66

881.13

10/8/30

10/8/30

10/28/30

10/28/30

10/28/30

10/28/30\

11/19/30
(

11/19/30/

ll/23/30)

ll/25/30~i

11/28/30/

180 days' sight

Returned—goods not shipped

Paid to R. 0. Co. 11/15/30

Returned—goods not shipped

/Estimated that proceeds would

inot be received in San Fran-

/ Cisco prior to Feb. 26, 1931,

(maturity date of acceptances

for .$25,000.

/Deposited after request for

/ issuance of acceptances total-

ling $25,000.

B

Drafts Deposited Subsequent to Nov. 28, 1930

123007 1,007.00 12/23/30 Already sufficient drafts

under acceptance

123008 2,446.82 12/24/30
It

123009 3,418.90 12/24/30
It

123010 1,266.29 12/24/30
(<

123013 2,702.66 12/28/30
tt

123014 1,219.00 12/28/30
tt

123015 2,692.99 1/7/31
tt

13103 53.45 1/7/31
11

13106 11,107.50 1/9/31
ei

13107 23,607.50 1/9/31 180 days' sight "

13108 1,197.81 1/15/31
(I < ( < < ((
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SCHEDULE D
Schedule of Correspondence Claimed by Plaintiff to Show

Application by Wells Fargo Bank of Proceeds of Drafts to

Acceptances Totaling $155,000.

1. Letter dated Dec. 16, 1930: (Plff's. Ex. 93)

Draft No. 103004 $ 63,950.00
" " 103006A 55,900.76

119,850.76

Less Charges 224.71

Net Proceeds $119,626.05

Applied in anticipation of matiiring acceptances.

Letter dated Jan. 3, 1931: (PlfE's. Ex. 95)

Draft No. 103010 $ 11,031.14

Less Charges 40.07

Net Proceeds $ 10,991.07

Applied in anticipation of maturing acceptances.

Letter dated Jan. 26, 1931: (Plff's. Ex. 97)

Draft No. 113014 $ 1,547.50

Credit Interest 15.01

1,562.51

Less Charges 1.93

Net Proceeds $ 1,560.58

Applied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000

maturing Feb. 26, 1931.

4. Letter dated Jan. 26, 1931: (Plff's. Ex. 97)

Interest credit memo on acceptance for $5.00

credited to acceptance fund.
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5. Letter dated Jan. 28, 1931: (Plff's. Ex. 98)

Draft No. 103009 $ 2,442.40

Credit Interest 45.20

2,487.60

Less Charges 3.11

Net Proceeds $ 2,484.49

Applied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000

due Feb. 26, 1931.

6. Letter dated l^eb. 2, 1931 : (Plff's. Ex. 99)

Draft No. 113013 $ 2,446.82

Less Charges 3.05

Net Proceeds $ 2,443.77

Applied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000

due Feb. 26, 1931.

7. Letter dated Feb. 3, 1931: (Plff's. Ex. 100)

Draft No. 113001 $ 1,208.40

Less Charges 13.59

Net Proceeds $ 1,194.81

Applied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000

due Feb. 26, 1931.

8. Letter dated Feb. 4, 1931: (Plff's. Ex. 101)

Draft No. 113023 $ 881.13

Credit Interest 9.85

890.98

Less Charges 1.10

Net Proceeds $ 889.88

Applied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000

due Feb. 26, 1931.
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9. Letter dated Feb. 13, 1931: (Plff's. Ex. 103)

(a) Draft No. 113012 $ 1,466.25

Less Charges 6.17

Net Proceeds $ 1,460.08

(b) Draft No. 123007 $ 1,007.00

Credit Interest 14.10

1,021.10

Less Charges 1.28

Net Proceeds $ 1,019.82

;c) Draft No. 103030 $ 1,405.20

Less Charges 8.93

Net Proceeds $ 1,396.27

Applied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000

due Feb. 26, 1931.

10. Letter dated Feb. 14, 1931: (Plfe's. Ex. 104)

(a) Draft No. 113010 $ 1,804.01

Credit Interest 27.31

1,831.32

Less Charges 2.25

Net Proceeds $ 1,829.07

(b) Draft No. 113017 $ 7,277.35

Credit Interest 107.68

7,385.03

Less Charges 7.38

Net Proceeds $ 7.377.65

(c) Draft No. 113007 $ 1,204.78

Credit Interest 18.48

1,223.26

Less Charges 1.50

Net Proceeds $ 1,221.76

Applied in anticipation of acceptances for $25,000

due Feb. 26, 1931.



11. Letter dated Feb. 26, 1931 : (Plff's, Ex. 107)

(a) Draft No. 113009

Reduced as per letter of 2/7/31

Less Charges

$ 5,256.60

4,711.43

44.45

Net Proceeds

(b) Draft No. 113018

Credit Interest

4,666.98

641.25

9.62

Less Charges

650.87

.81

Net Proceeds

(e) Draft No. 123008

Less Charges

$

$

650.06

2,446.82

3.05

Net Proceeds

(d) Draft No. 103012

Paid on account

Less Charges

$

$

2,443.77

2,441.00

1,500.00

11.53

Net Proceeds $ 1,488.47

Recapitulation as to Proceeds of Drafts Referred

to in Item 11 (Supra).

Net Proceeds (a) $4,666.98

(b) 650.06

(c) 2,443.77

(d) 1,488.47

Total Net Proceeds $9,249.28

Balance due on Acceptances

of $25,000 1,499.70

Net Proceeds after payment
of acceptances in full $7,749.58

Held temporarily by Bank in accord with letter dated Feb.

26, 1931. (Plff's. Ex. 107.)

Subsequently restored to Receiver in accord with Bank's
letter of Mar. 5, 1931. (Plff's. Ex. 108.)



XI

SCHEDULE E

Recapitulation of Application of Net Proceeds of Drafts in

Payment of Acceptances Aggreg-ating $155,000 as Disclosed

by Foregoing Letters of Bank.

Item No. Amount

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 (a)

(b)

(c)

10 (a)

(b)

(c)

11 (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

$119,626.05

10,991.07

1,560.58

5.00

2,484.49

2,443.77

1,194.81

889.88

1,460.08

1,019.82

1,396.27

1,829.07

7,377.65

1,221.76

4,666.98

650.06

2,443.77

1,488.47

$162,749.58

Surplus Credits to Receiver 7,749.58

Total Applied in Full Payment

of Acceptances $155,000.00
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SCHEDULE F

Schedule of Drafts Deposited With Wells Fargo Bank Prior to

Receivership, Proceeds of Which Were Received by Bank

After Receivership and a Portion Thereof Applied to Ac-

ceptances and Balance Credited to Receiver.

Draft No. Customer

Date Proceeds

Amount Net Credited to

of Draft Proceeds Receiver

403012 Bueno y Cia 2,441.00 $1,488.47

113009 Limon Trading Co. 5,256.60 4,666.98

113018 Miguel Duenas 641.25 650.06

123008 Rafael Alvarez

L. e Hijos 2,446.82 2,443.77

Deduct balance due on

acceptance

9,249.28

1,499.70

Balance Credited Receiver $7,749.58 3/5/31
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SCHEDULE G

Schedule of Drafts Deposited With Wells Fargo Bank Prior to

Receivership, Proceeds of Which Were Received by Bank

Also Prior to Receivership and Credited to Account of

Richfield Oil Company Without Right of Offset.

Gross Net Date

Draft No. Amount Proceeds Deposited Date Paid

103025 $ 583.00 $ 576.12 10/27/30 11/15/30

103026 2,446.82 2,443.76 10/27/30 12/27/30

103029 654.55 660.68 10/28/30 12/27/30

113011 103.12 101.37 11/19/30 12/12/30

113019 291.50 287.78 11/24/30 12/12/30

113020 1,200.00 1,186.15 11/24/30 12/18/30

Total $5,278.99 $5,255.86



XIV

SCHEDULE H

Schedule of Drafts Deposited With Wells Fargo Bank Prior to

Receivership, Proceeds of Which Were Received by Bank

After February 26, 1931, and Credited to Account of Re-

ceiver Without Claim to Offset.

Gross Net Date

Draft No. Amount Proceeds Deposited Date Paid

13106 $11,107.50 $11,082.51 1/8/31 3/5/31

13108 1,197.81 1,209.81 1/15/31 3/23/31

*103012 2,441.00 468.05 10/11/30 4/7/31

103027 381.60 387.35 10/27/30 3/9/31

113008 1,007.00 1,019.47 11/18/30 3/19/31

113021 2,237.66 2,223.53 11/24/30 3/23/31

123009 3,418.90 3,382.54 12/23/30 3/24/31

123010 1,266.29 1,264.71 12/13/30 4/4/31

123013 2,702.66 2,743.94 12/27/30 3/30/31

123015 2,692.99

tal

2,682.22 12/27/30 4/22/31

To $26,464.13

*0n February 20, 1931, $1,500.00 was paid on account of this

draft, the net proceeds amounting to $1,488.47 being applied

towards payment of acceptances aggregating $25,000, as shown

in Schedule D.

On April 7, 1931, $468.05 was paid on account of the balance

due on this draft, $1,488.47 having been previously paid. This

sum was credited to the account of the receiver. Subsequently,

and on May 11, 1931, the balance, amounting to $471.00, was

paid, which was retained by the Bank under its alleged lien or

right of offset.
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SCHEDULE I

Schedule Showing Total Proceeds of Drafts Paid to Richfield

Oil Company and (or) to Receiver Without Claim of Offset.

Total proceeds of drafts paid to Richfield Oil Com-

pany, as per Schedule G $ 5,255.86

Surplus proceeds of four drafts paid to Receiver after

payment in full of acceptances, as per Schedule F 7,749.58

Total proceeds of remaining drafts paid to Receiver

after payment in full of acceptances, as per

Schedule H 26,464.13

Total $39,469.57
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SCHEDULE J

Schedule of Drafts Which PlaintiflF Claims Were Deposited as

Security for Acceptance Totaling $155,000 and Showing-

Proceeds of all Drafts Used to Liquidate Acceptances.

Gross Net Date

Draft No. Amount Amount Deposited Date Paid

103004 $ 63,950.00) $119,626.05 10/8/30 12/16/30

103006A 55,900.76) 10/8/30 12/16/30

103009 2,442.40 2,484.49 10/9/30 1/28/31

103010 11,031.14 10,991.07 10/10/30 12/31/30

103012 2,441.00 1,488.47 10/12/30 2/24/31

103023 779.10 10/21/30 Unpaid

103026 2,446.82 * 10/28/30 12/27/30

103029 654.55 * 10/29/30 12/27/30

103030 1,405.20 1,396.27 10/30/30 2/11/31

113001 1,208.40 1,194.81 11/6/30 2/3/31

113007 1,204.78 1,221.76 11/19/30 2/14/31

113010 1,804.01 1,829.07 11/20/30 2/14/31

113011 103.12 # 11/20/30 12/12/30

113012 1,466.25 1,460.08 11/20/30 2/13/31

113013 2,446.82 2,443.77 11/22/30 1/30/31

113014 1,547.50 1,560.58 11/22/30 1/21/31

113017 7,277.35 7,377.65 11/22/30 2/14/31

113019 291.50 * 11/25/30 12/12/30

113020 1,200.00 # 11/25/30 12/18/30

$159,600.50 $153,074.07
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*Proceeds paid to Richfield Oil Company of California.

**113009

**113018

**113023

**123007

**123008

Interest memorandum

1/19/31

Deduct acceptances

4,666.98

650.06

889.88

1,019.82

2,443.77

$ 9,670.51

153,074.07

$162,744.58

5.00

162,749.58

155,000.00

2/25/31

2/20/31

2/4/31

2/13/31

2/20/31

Surplus paid receiver

3/5/31 $ 7,749.58

**Note : Drafts claimed by plaintiff not to have been de-

posited as security for acceptances, but proceeds of which were

applied by Bank to payment of acceptances.
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SCHEDULE K

Schedule of Drafts and Proceeds of Drafts in Litigation.

Draft No. Customer

Net Date Date

Amount Deposited Paid

103005 Birla Bros. Ltd.) $119,512.54 10/7/30 6/10/31

103006B "
)

123014 Ricardo Velazquez 1,245.11 12/27/30 5/18/31

103012 Bueno y Cia 469.06 10/11/30 *

13107 Birla Bros. Ltd. 23,532.08 1/8/31 9/10/31

$144,758.79

*$1500 paid 2/24/31.

470 paid 4/7/31.

471 paid 5/1 1/31 but withheld by Bank.
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SCHEDULE L

Security-First National Bank of Los Angeles.

Schedule of Drafts—Not Discounted—Deposited Before Re-

ceivership, Proceeds of Which Were Paid and Credited to

the Receiver's Account.

Draft Face Date Date

No. Amount Deposited Paid Customer

93021 $ 37,138.50 9/17/30 5/21/31 Birla Bros. Ltd.

93026 1,038.80 9/21/30 4/22/31 Soeiedad Automoviliaria

103002 572.40 10/3/30 7/27/31

103018 53,941.49 10/18/30 4/7/31 H. C. Sleigh

13105 59,832.84 1/8/31 7/24/31 " " "

$152,524.03 Total Funds Received from Undiscounted

Collections
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Pae-.

Foreword )

I, The holding by this court that parol evidence was

confined to proof of the delivery of the bills of lading

alone is one of original impression by this court, in

conflict with the contention of both parties and the

admissions of appellant and was neither discussed

nor given consideration in the brief filed by either

of the parties hereto. By this holding, appellee has

been deprived of a judgment obtained by him upon

a theory with respect to which he has not been ac-

corded the opportunity of being heard 3

II. The determination by this court that parol evidence

was inadmissible to establish that the subject matter

of the acceptance agreement dated October 4, 1930,

and the consideration for the acceptances released

thereunder consisted solely of foreign drafts, and the

character of such drafts is in conflict with the theory

upon which the trial was conducted by both parties,

with the admissions of appellant, involves a miscon-

ception of the written evidence upon which such de-

termination was reached and lacks justification in

the record 10

(a) The printed acceptance agreement was a mere

form used to subserve the convenience of the

parties and was not the form of agreement

adaptable to the transaction being consummated 16

(b) The officials of Richfield were ignorant of the

use of acceptances and their mechanics 19

(c) Both parties recognized and conceded that drafts,

and drafts alone, constituted such security 20

(1) References to appellant's brief 21

(2) Appellant's evidence itself establishes that

the drafts alone constituted the subject-

matter of the agreement 25

(3) Appellee's contention 28



ii Subject Index

Pago

(d) Bills of lading delivered to appellant merely as

agent of appellee for delivery to consignee upon

acceptance of drafts 29

(e) The so-called Lyons' letter (Defs. Ex. A) is lack-

ing in evidentiary or controlling value 31

III. It is definitely proved that all foreign collections

should be deemed to be separate and apart from

other l)usiness of Richfield with, and its financial

obligations to, appellant bank 37

(a) Appellee does not claim that any distinction was

made between the two types of drafts in the

so-called Hall-Pope agreement 39

(b) The agreement between Hall and appellant of-

ficials that all drafts and their proceeds should

be deemed to be separate and apart from other

business of Richfield with, and its financial obli-

gations to, appellant constituted such drafts and

proceeds a special fund and a deposit against

which no banker's lien or right of set-off existed 42

IV. Appellant bank waived its banker's lien and right of

set-off as against all collections of Richfield excepting

those specifically deposited under the acceptance

agreements 51

Conclusion 65
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To the Honorable Curtis D. Wilbur, William H.

Sawtelle and Francis A. Garrecht, Judges of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit:

A rehearing of this controversy is respectfully, but

earnestly, requested by appellee. While the reasons

upon which this request is predicated are hereinafter

particularized, the i^rincipal ground urged by appellee

is that the decision of this controversy by this court

resulting in a reversal of the judgment entered by the

court below in favor of apj)ellee, is in our opinion

based upon an assumption of facts not justified by

the record, and a determination as to the law at

variance and inconsistent with legal principles, the



accuracy of which has been demonstrated by utter-

ances of appellate judicial tribunals of eminent au-

thority, including this court, and, in at least some in-

stances, expressly given recognition by appellant in

its brief.

The particular grounds upon which such rehearing

is requested are hereinafter discussed under ap-

propriate headings.

FOREWORD.

At the very threshold of this petition we respect-

fully draw the court's attention to the fact that al-

though the judge of the lower court made findings of

fact w^hich were addressed to the issues and bear

witness to the painstaking care with which he deter-

mined questions of fact based upon evidence to some

extent conflicting, given by witnesses whose conduct

and demeanor while testifying he personally observed,

no mention of or reference to these findings is made

in the statement of the case or in the opinion of this

court, but on the contrary this court has undertaken

to weigh the evidence and determine the facts as

though it were a trial court, and this without having

had the benefit of opportunities peculiarly possessed

by the trial judge.

If, as recognized by this court, this controversy

was instituted as a proceeding in equity, yet when

tried it took the form of an action at law and was

determined as such, it would follow that the findings

of the lower court based upon conflicting evidence are



controlling in this court. On the other hand, if the

proceeding when tried was still one in equity, unless

the decision of the lower court upon the questions of

fact involved was clearly erroneous, such determina-

tion ought not to be interfered with by an appellate

court.

This rule, heretofore consistently adhered to, has,

we insist, been ignored by this court in reversing the

judgment entered in favor of appellee in the court

below. We may therefore submit that appellee is

entitled to ask the careful consideration of this peti-

tion presented to this court as an appellate court

which has reversed judicial ascertaimnent of the facts

found by the trial court.

Our duty, therefore, to this court makes it obliga-

tory in this i^etition to refer somewhat at length to

the evidence. Our apology for the length of this

petition is traceable to this circumstance.

I.

THE HOLDING BY THIS COURT THAT PAROL EVIDENCE WAS
CONFINED TO PROOF OF THE DELIVERY OF THE BILLS

OF LADING ALONE IS ONE OF ORIGINAL IMPRESSION BY
THIS COURT, IN CONFLICT WITH THE CONTENTION OF
BOTH PARTIES AND THE ADMISSIONS OF APPELLANT
AND WAS NEITHER DISCUSSED NOR GIVEN CONSIDERA-
TION IN THE BRIEF FILED BY EITHER OF THE PARTIES
HERETO. BY THIS HOLDING, APPELLEE HAS BEEN DE-

PRIVED OF A JUDGMENT OBTAINED BY HIM UPON A
THEORY WITH RESPECT TO WHICH HE HAS NOT BEEN
ACCORDED THE OPPORTUNITY OF BEING HEARD.

In its opinion this court upon this subject used the

following language:



''It is agreed that the acceptance agreement,

although in writing, does not of itself sufficiently

identify the documents or security which was the

subject matter of the contract between the parties

without the consideration of parol evidence."

(p. 7.)

It is also stated:

"The appellee correctly contends that the writ-

ten agreements must be construed according to

their terms, and that these terms are conclusive

as to the agreement between the parties, hut that

the references therein to drafts and other docu-

ments may he explained by parol evidence/'

(p. 2.)

It is finally concluded that

:

"The transaction between the parties was evi-

denced with clarity and definiteness by the writ-

ten acceptance agreement, by the written docu-

ments accompanying the agreement, by the writ-

ten acceptances indorsed by the bank and by the

letters exchanged and by the credit released to

the Richfield Oil Company upon nine drafts pre-

sented to the bank for acceptance and needed no

additional parol evidence to identify the subject-

matter of the contract and establish its terms/'

(p. 8.)

As indicating what parol evidence was admissible to

identify the security, it is stated:

"But the delivery of the bills of lading clearly

identifies such consideration." (p. 7.)

The court's lack of authority to limit the introduc-

tion of parol evidence to the delivery of the bills of



lading", where parol evidence is admissible, will here-

after be discussed. Presently, however, we are alone

concerned with pointing out to the court that the

legal proposition involved in this portion of its deci-

sion was not discussed by counsel representing either

of the parties, and was given no attention whatever

by appellee, for the obvious reason that appellant in

its brief made no such contention, but on the contrary,

expressly and in appropriate language admitted that

because of the silence of the acceptance agreement

upon this subject, parol evidence was admissible to

prove what foreign drafts were under the acceptance

agreement; that is, whether, as claimed by it, all of

the drafts, or whether, as asserted by appellee, only

the so-called short term drafts had been so deposited.

That the statement just made by appellee is neither

extravagant or fanciful can be readily ascertained

from an examination of appellant's brief, where at

page 109 the following is made

:

"These cases (referring to cases cited by ap-

pellee) merely hold that where a contract is on

its face incomplete, extrinsic evidence of ex-

temporaneous parol agreements may be intro-

duced. They were cited by the court in support of

its conclusion that since the acceptance agree-

ment is blank as to the drafts deposited thereim-

der, parol evidence was admissible to prove which

drafts were, and which were not so deposited.

There can be no question about the correctness

of this ruling."

An examination of appellant's brief wdll disclose

that its argmnent was that in the conversations oc-

curring between Hall and Pope representing Richfield,



and Gilstrap and its other officials representing ap-

pellant, it was definitely understood that drafts should

be deemed as security for the acceptances. Statements

to this effect are so frequently repeated in appellant's

brief that their reproduction would occupy many

pages of this petition. For instance, in stating the

issues herein involved, it is said by appellant:

"There camiot possibly be other issues than

these

:

(1) Were the drafts, the proceeds of which

are the subject of this litigation, deposited under

the acceptance agreement ? * * * If they were,

the second question is no longer in issue. * * *"

(p. 11.)

In the statement of its position appellant states:

"Although appellant refused to advance to

Richfield by means of acceptances or otherwise

a sum in excess of the amount of certain sight or

short term drafts, appellant's contention is that

all drafts were nevertheless deposited as security

for acceptances issued and to he issued, and con-

sequently were deposited under and pursuant to

the acceptance agreements." (p. 12.)

Still further, appellant states

:

"If, in spite of the overwhelming evidence of

conversations, acts and records of both Richfield

Oil Company and appellant in support of the

contention that the drafts in dispute were de-

posited uyider the acceptance agreement it should

be determined that they were not so deposited,

then admittedly, they were at least deposited for

collection. * * *" (p. 13.)



Later on in its discussion under the title **all the

drafts in litigation were deposited by Richfield with

appellant under and subject to the acceptance agree-

ments, pursuant to the security for the general in-

debtedness of Richfield to it" is foimd the statement:

"The question presented by this phase of the

case can be answered only from necessary and
proper inferences to he drawn from, the facts and
circumstances for the record is barren of any ex-

press agreement between Richfield Oil Company
and appellant stating ivhether the drafts in ques-

tion were or were not to he placed under ac-

ceptance agreements/^ (p. 19.)

And still further along in its brief, appellant states:

"It is the contention of appellant that every

draft deposited with it during the period com-
mencing with October 8, 1930, and ending on

January 15, 1931, was deposited as security un-

der acceptances and consequently under the ac-

ceptance agreement." (p. 27.)

And in arguing why it was understood that the long

term drafts as well as the short term drafts were

placed under the agreement, appellant asserts:

"Furthermore, just because the acceptances

were actually paid as they matured from the pro-

ceeds of drafts is not evidence that appellant had
any guaranty at the inception of these trans-

actions that such would be the case. Conceivably,

a great number of the drawees of the drafts might

default, failing to pay entirely, or delaying pay-

ment for such a period of time that the ac-

ceptances would still be unsatisfied at the ma-

turity of the 180 day drafts. In any such event,
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these drafts would have had actual value as secu-

rity. These prohahilities were suffieieut to necessi-

tate the deposit of all drafts as security for all

acceptances, and they completely explain the

statement of Mr. Lipmau and Mr. Hall (herein-

before quoted) that appellant would be willing

to advance money on RicJifield's foreign drafts.

It is submitted that the foregoing argmnents

demonstrate that a real ancl substantial reason

existed for the dej^osit and acceptance of all the

drafts in question as security for all the accep-

tances. * * *" (p. 52.)

These quotations from appellant's brief must sat-

isfy this court that aj^pellant's position was, first,

that because of the silence of the acceptance agree-

ment upon the subject, parol evidence was admissible

to identify and define the character of the securities

by which the acceptance agreement and acceptances

were supported; and, second, that upon all of the

parol evidence introduced, including the negotiatio'iis

and declarations of the parties, as well as the corre-

spondence of appellant, it was proved that all of the

drafts and not, as contended by appellee and found

by the lower court, only the short term drafts were

deposited as such security. In view of these conces-

sions and argmnents on the part of appellant, it was

but natural that appellee should fail to anticipate the

position taken by this court that the only parol evi-

dence that was entitled to consideration was the

''delivery of the bills of lading". That no such dis-

cussion was engaged in is clearly shown by reference

to page 105 of appellee's brief where, mider the title



"the acceptance agreements being silent respecting

the securities to which they relate, parol evidence was

admissible for the purpose of identifying said securi-

ties and also to establish the agreement relating to

the remaining drafts" it is said:

''Imputing legal stability to these agreements,

notwithstanding such silence, it must be appar-

ent that parol evidence was admissible for the

purpose of identifying the securities to tvhich the

agreement related^ and upon tvhich its provisions

would become fastened. This must necessarily be

so because in the absence of such parol evidence

the agreements themselves would be entirely in-

nocuous and of no materiality in this contro-

versy. While in the court below this legal propo-

sition was disputed, or at least not conceded, ap-

pellant here admits that the rule is as stated

because in its brief it is stated :
* * *" (Italics

ours.

)

Then follows quotation from appellant's brief at page

109, hereinabove noted.

With great respect, but with equal earnestness, ap-

pellee insists that he is entitled to a rehearing of this

important controversy for this reason alone. He
ought not to be deprived of a judgment to which in

good faith he believes he is entitled without being

accorded the opportunity of discussing upon its mer-

its the legal proposition here given consideration.
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II.

THE DETERMINATION BY THIS COURT THAT PAROL EVI-

DENCE WAS INADMISSIBLE TO ESTABLISH THAT THE
SUBJECT MATTER OF THE ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT
DATED OCTOBER 4, 1930, AND THE CONSIDERATION FOR
THE ACCEPTANCES RELEASED THEREUNDER CONSISTED

SOLELY OF FOREIGN DRAFTS, AND THE CHARACTER OF

SUCH DRAFTS, IS IN CONFLICT WITH THE THEORY UPON
WHICH THE TRIAL WAS CONDUCTED BY BOTH PARTIES,

WITH THE ADMISSIONS OF APPELLANT, INVOLVES A
MISCONCEPTION OF THE WRITTEN EVIDENCE UPON
WHICH SUCH DETERMINATION WAS REACHED AND
LACKS JUSTIFICATION IN THE RECORD.

The bank in its brief concedes that the acceptance

agreement does not identify the securities, by which

it is to be supported, and that resort to parol evi-

dence was necessary to identify such securities. In its

argument it claimed that the parol e^ddence intro-

duced establishes that the long, as well as the short,

term drafts were deposited as such security. This

situation is given recognition by the court in its

opinion, where it states:

''It is agreed that the acceptance agreement,

although in writing, does not sufficiently identify

the documents or security which is the subject-

matter of the contract between the parties with-

out the consideration of parol evidence." (p. 7.)

Notwithstanding this concession, this coiu^t later

states

:

"The security given to the bank for such ac-

ceptance is not indicated by the written accep-

tance agreement alone, other than by the word
'merchandise' and 'goods'. But the delivery of

the bills of lading clearly identifies such goods.
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A consideration of the writings exchanged
without the aid of any oral evidence other than
the fact of delivery of such documents shows that

the security of the bank for its liability under
its acceptance of the drafts presented to it was
to be merchandise in transit on board the 'Silver

Hazel' and 'Silver Ray' which was described in

the acceptance agreement as 'merchandise' and
also as 'goods' and that in order to effect the

pledge of this cargo the Richfield Oil Company
transferred its hills of lading thereof, properly

assigned, to the hank, together with foreign bills

of exchange drawn upon the purchaser of the

goods represented by the bills of lading which

would enable the bank to realize upon the value

thereof by receiving from the purchaser the price

thereof." (p. 7.)
* * *****
"It is clear that during the voyage, by reason

of the possession of the bills of lading, and under

the terms of the acceptance agreement the bank

was secured by the entire value of the cargo. The
transaction between the parties was evidenced

v;ith clarity and definiteness by the w^ritten ac-

ceptance agreement, by the written docmnents

accompanying the agreement, by the w^ritten ac-

ceptance endorsed by the bank, and by the letters

exchanged and by the credit realized to the Rich-

field Oil Company upon nine drafts presented to

the bank for acceptance and needed no additional

parol evidence to identify the subject matter of

the contract and establish its terms." (p. 8.)

In reaching this conclusion just quoted, it is ob-

vious that the court inadvertently failed to appreciate

that, while the acceptance agreement signed by Rich-
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field was the usual form of acceptance agreement

utilized by appellant in transactions, to which such

form was applicable, it was not the form of agree-

ment which was adaptable or should have been used

to reflect the agreement actually negotiated by the

parties.

It also inadvertently failed to give consideration

to the uncontroverted evidence that the officials of

Richfield, participating in the negotiations, were en-

tirely unfamiliar with acceptances and acceptance

agreements and their mechanism, as well as the con-

ceded fact that the blanl-j; space reserved in the ac-

ceptance agreement for the description of the securi-

ties to be utilized was intentionally left blank, because

at the time of its execution and delivery, the parties

did not know what drafts were to be deposited, and

likewise because it was intended from time to time

to deposit additional drafts thereunder.

That there is no conflict whatever in the record

with respect to these matters can quickly be shown.

The error into which this court has unconsciously

crept is readily traceable to a misconception of that

portion of the acceptance agreement reserved for a

description of the securities by which it is to be sup-

ported and the court's omission to give effect to the

evidence showing that a ^'form of acceptance" was

used which was not at all adaptable to the transaction

which was negotiated and consiunmated. This mis-

' conception is undoubtedly due to the circimistance that

apj)ellee failed to present this phase of the contro-

versy in its fullness due to appellant's admission that
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''drafts" constituted the security for the execution

and release of the acceptances.

To uphold the determination reached by the court

with respect to the point under consideration would

be to substitute an agreement not contemplated by

the parties for one intended by them and into which

they actually entered. That the statement just made is

in accord with the evidence will quickly be demon-

strated by us.

That part of the acceptance agreement which is

herein involved reads as follows:

"To Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co.—
San Francisco.

Dear Sirs:

We hand you herewith, for acceptance, the fol-

lowing drafts:

Covering following

Number Date merchandise Amount

Oct. 6 $150,000

Marks Numbers Description

Payable in San Francisco to the order of our-

selves"

The proposed agreement was a printed form. It

will be observed that although executed the only inser-

tions were "Oct. 6" mider the word "Date" and

"$150,000" under the word "Amount". These inser-

tions refer to the drafts drawn by Richfield on itself
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delivered to the bank for acceptance. The agreement,

however, is entirely silent with respect to the security

for such acceptances. Nowhere are hills of lading

referred to, nowhere are even the drafts drawn upon

the consignees named in the bills of lading, mentioned.

This circumstance of itself is both persuasive and sig-

nificant. It tends strongly to establish that the trans-

action was not the one usually engaged in involvmg

the financing of shipments through acceptances, the

payment of which was secured by the shipping docu-

ments including the bills of lading and the drafts

drawn in connection therewith.

Inasmuch as no '^goods'' or ''merchandise" is re-

ferred to or described therein, no ground existed for

holding as against the evidence introduced by both

parties as well as the finding of the lower court, that

the "bills of lading" were deposited as such security;

and if by parol the appellant could establish (which

it did not do) that the bills of lading, as well as the

drafts, were deposited as such security, why appellee

could not, by the same character of evidence, estab-

lish that one or more drafts were agreed upon as

security and not the bills of lading or aU of the

drafts, is, we submit, incomprehensible to us. It would

seem that the mere statement of this proposition

demonstrates its own integrity.

But, aside from the silence of the acceptance agree-

ment just alluded to, a resort to the testimony will

prove conclusively:

(a) That the printed acceptance agreement

was a mere printed form used to subserve the
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convenience of the parties and was not the form

of agreement adaptable to the transaction being

consmnmated

;

(b) That the officials of Richfield were ig-

norant of the use of acceptances and their me-

chanics
;

(c) That both parties recognized and con-

ceded that drafts, and drafts alone, constituted

such security;

(d) That the evidence of both parties estab-

lished that drafts, and drafts alone, were to be

the subject-matter of such agreement;

(e) That the bills of lading, as stated in the

opinion, were never assigned to appellant, but

were delivered to it as appellant's representative

to be delivered to the consignee upon the ac-

ceptance of the drafts which were intended and

agreed should alone be such security; and

(f) That the so-called ''Lyons' letter" was

written by an official of Richfield having no

knowledge whatever of the details of the trans-

action; that it was not acted or relied upon by

appellant and that no comparable letter ever ac-

companied any of the other drafts or bills of

lading delivered to appellant.
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(a) The printed acceptance agree-

ment was a mere form used to

subserve the convenience of the

parties and was not the form of

agreement adaptable to the

transaction being consummated.

This subject-matter is given recognition in the

opinion of this court in the following language:
'

' This acceptance agreement was upon the form

used by the bank and most of the provisions

therein tvere 7io doubt printed." (p. 7.)

The fact is, as an examination of the original ac-

ceptance agreement will disclose, that the entire ac

ceptance agreement (with the exception of the signa-

ture of the party and the insertion of ''October 6th

—

$150,000") is printed, and excepting as to such in-

sertion none of the blanks therein set forth were filled

in.

W. J. Grilstrap, assistant manager of the Foreign

Department of appellant bank, who, on its behalf ne-

gotiated the agreement, upon this subject testified:

"This acceptance agreement contemplates a

description of the drafts presented to the bank

for acceptance. Nothing was filled in on the agree-

ment. The agreement also contemphxtes that

where documents are turned over to the bank as

security for acceptances the documents themselves

should be identified on the face of the agreement.

The agreement contemplates on its face that the

bank shall have in its possession, at the time the

agreement was signed and at the time the drafts

were accepted and released, the documents or the

the security, which securities shall be designated

upon the face of the agreement. * * *" (R. p.

403.)
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Emphasizing the reason why the securities were not

inserted in the acceptance agreement, Gilstrap further

testified

:

u* * * ^j^^^ ^j^g acceptance agreement did not

stipulate the exact amount of acceptance, that is

the exact amount for which each acceptance was
drawn, because we did not know, nor did they

know, nor did anyone know, in what amount the

acceptances would be issued and when they would
be issued. That would be dependent upon the col-

lections which later would be forwarded to us.

Likewise, no mention could be made, as I told

Mr. Pope, of the collections which were the se-

curity for this particular credit, because for the

same reason neither they nor we knew exactly

what collections would later be sent us. Rather

than have them have to execute a new acceptance

agreement each time that a new agreement was
asked for or each time that they sent us a new
collection, I explained to Mr. Pope that this one

agreement was expected to be a blanket one."

(R. pp. 371-2.)

And shortly thereafter he further testified:

''I also explained to Mr. Pope that if for any
reason the proceeds of the bills that may be de-

posited with us were not received by us in time

to meet any maturing acceptances the deficiency

that the Richfield Oil Company might have to

make good might be in part or in whole obtained

by renewal acceptances either against hills which

were originally put in as security for the original

acceptances, or against neiv hills which might

later have heen deposited; in other words, on re-

newal acceptances against some bills against

which the first 90 day acceptances were issued.
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or as against any later bills that might have been

deposited. * * *" (R. pp. 373-4.)

Mr. Homer E. Pope, one of the officials of Richfield

who participated in the negotiations upon this subject,

testified

:

'

' The first time I saw this acceptance agreement

(Plft*'s. Ex. 16) was a few daj^s before we came
u^) to San Francisco. I did not discuss its con-

tents with anyone. I did not make any inquiry as

to why there were blanks in the agreement. I

believe that subject came up during our conversa-

tion with Mr. Gilstrap. To the best of my memory
I believe something of this nature was said by

Mr. Gilstrap, 'As you will be depositing accep-

tances from time to time under this arrangement

and drafts under this arrangement, all of which

you can not identify now, it is impossible to fill

in those blanks at the present time.' We could

not give by number and reference on October 6th

or 7th drafts that we would deposit on October

10th or 12th. But none the less it might be that

drafts of October 10th or 12th were intended to

apply under the agreement.

As I remember it, something was said to the

effect that reference to specific drafts was left

blank in the acceptance agreement in order to

provide for the deposit of drafts in the future

thereunder, the numbers and description of which

were at the time of the execution of the agree-

ment unknown. I don't remember anything hav-

ing been said to the effect that the reason for the

blanks in the agreement was to avoid the neces-

sity of a new acceptance agreement every time

an acceptance was issued against certain drafts."

(R. pp. 313-4.)
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That the transaction was not the normal acceptance

transaction involving foreign commerce is likewise

shown by the evidence given by Gilstrap upon cross-

examination with respect to the ''Acceptance Regis-

ter" kept by appellant, his testimony being

"There is nothing in this acceptance register

indicating the chai'acter of the security that was
located under the acceptances or under the accep-

tance agreement." (R. pp. 393-4.)

(b) The officials of Richfield were

ignorant of the use of accep-

tances and their mechanics.

Prior to the transactions here being considered,

none of the foreign business engaged in by Richfield

had been based upon acceptances. The procedure in-

volving the use of acceptances as well as acceptance

agreements, was something with which the officials of

Richfield having its foreign business in charge were

entirely unfamiliar. That such lack of familiarity was

known to appellant is shown in its brief in which it

states

:

''Prior to this time Pope, who testified at the

trial of this action, was ignorant of the mechanics

of an acceptance credit. His visit was solely for

educational purposes so that he would be in a

position to introduce into the office of Richfield

the proper method of handling this method of

deposit drafts for collection." (Def's. Br. p. 22.)

That Hall was likewise unfamiliar with acceptances

is shown by the testimony of Gilstrap wherein he

states

:

"I suggested to Mr. Hall that if the business

was an extension of credit it might be more
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economically handled, from RichfiekUs point of

view, by means of bank acceptances rather than

by a direct discounting of foreign collections. I

am positive that I suggested that to Mr. Hall and

that Ml*. Hall did not suggest it to me." (R. p.

369.)

And further,

"On October 6th Mr. Hall, accompanied by Mr.

Pope, came to my desk. Mr. Hall told me that Mr.

Pope had been sent to educate himself with every

detail of the acceptance business; that it was en-

tirely new to him as it was also to the Richfield

Oil Company, and they wanted Mr. Pope to

familiarize himself with every detail of it so that

he could handle their end of the arrangement."

(R. p. 371.)

This evidence is corroborated by the evidence of

Pope (R. pp. 261-2) and Smile Luenberger (R. p.

430.)

(c) Both parties recognized and con-

ceded that drafts, and drafts

alone, constituted such security.

It would be impossible within the confines of a peti-

tion for rehearing to here reproduce the evidence

upon this subject. We will content ourselves, however,

with some of the many references upon this subject

contained in aj^pellant's brief, to some of the evidence

introduced during the trial elicited from witnesses

called by appellant bank and to references to appel-

lee's brief wherein it is contended that the evidence

sustains the finding of the lower court that only short

term drafts were deposited under the acceptances.
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(1) References to appellant's brief.

In its preliminary statement of the facts, appellant,

in describing the mechanics of the acceptance trans-

action, states:

"The mechanics of the acceptance method dif-

fer from those involved in the ordinary draft

collection transaction in that the customer bank
first executes an acceptance agreement which
specifies a smn up to which the customer may
draw upon the bank by means of acceptances

based upon drafts deposited for collection. There-

after, when the customer deposits drafts for col-

lection he draws acceptances (drafts) on the bank
in the amount agreed upon based upon the drafts.

* * * When the acceptances mature according to

their terms the bank pays the holders thereof

and reimburses itself from the proceeds of the

drafts ivhich have been deposited as aforesaid.

* * * Such an acceptance agreement in favor of

appellant was executed by Richfield Oil Com-
pany. * * *" (App's. Br. pp. 2-3.)

In its statement of the issues, appellant states:

'^ There cannot possibly be other issues than

these

:

(1) Were the drafts the proceeds of which

are the subject of this litigation, deposited under

the acceptance agreement and therefore subject

to the provisions hereinbefore quoted there-

fromf (App's. Br. p. 11.)

In stating its position the bank uses the following

language

:

''Although appellant refused to advance to

Richfield, by means of acceptances or otherwise,
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a sum in excess of the amount of certain sight or

short term drafts, appellant's contention is that

all drafts were nevertheless deposited as security

for the acceptances issued and to be issued and
consequently were dei)osited under and pursuant

to the acceptance agreements. These agreements

constituted a contract between Richfield Oil Com-
pany and appellant, under the express terms of

which appellant was entitled to hold all drafts

and the proceeds thereof deposited under the ac-

ceptance agreements * * *"

And again:

"If in spite of the overwhelming evidence of

conversations, acts and records of both Richfield

Oil Company and appellant in support of the

contention that the drafts in dispute were de-

posited under the acceptance agreement, it should

he determined that they were not so deposited,

then admittedly, they tvere at least deposited for

collection. * * *" (App's. Br. p. 13.)

Under the title **A11 the Drafts in Litigation were

Deposited by Richfield with Appellant Under and

Subject to the Acceptance Agreement Pursuant to

the Terms of Which Appellant Held the Drafts as

Security for the General Indebtedness of Richfield

to it" will be found the statement:

'*The question presented by this phase of the

case can be answered only fi'om necessary and

proper inferences to be drawn from the facts

and circumstances, for the record is barren of

any express agreement between Richfield Oil

Company and appellant stating whether the
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drafts in question were or were not to be placed

under acceptance agreements." (App's. Br. p.

19.)

Still later in its brief it is said:

"It is the contention of appellant that every

draft deposited with it during the period com-

mencing October 8, 1930, and ending on January

15, 1931, was deposited as security for acceptances

and consequently under the acceptance agree-

ment.

That this was the understanding of the officers

of appellant and that this understanding was

communicated to Hall at the inception of these

transactions is conclusively shown by the testi-

mony of both Mr. Lipman and Mr. Hellman cor-

roborated by Mr. Hall." (App's. Br. p. 27.)

And after quoting the evidence of the witnesses

referred to appellant, commenting upon its effect,

argues

:

"In all of this testimony of witnesses on both

sides, a line of credit based on foreign drafts

was referred to." (App's. Br. p. 28.)

And, as illustrating the extent to which appellant

was willing to go in order to substantiate its claim

that the drafts constituted such security, it further

argues

:

"At the time of the delivery of the first accep-

tance agreement on October 6, 1930, Richfield

Oil Company and appellant contemplated not one

transaction, but a continuous deposit of drafts

and issuance of acceptances during an indefinite

period of time, the limits of which were then
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unknown but, as far as could be ascertained,

inigiit well be for one, two or several years."

(App's. Br. p. 44.)

''With a continuous series of deposits of drafts

and issuance of acceptances under one agreement

contemplated by the parties to extend over a per-

iod of time probably far beyond the date of the

maturity of the 180 day drafts, the supposed im-

possibility of using these drafts as security for

acceptances becomes non-existent. On the con-

trary, the 180 day drafts on Brila Bros, stood

as effective and useful security for any accep-

tances or other obligations permitted or provided

for b}' the acceptance agreement. * * *" (App's.

Br. p. 44.)

And commenting upon the blank spaces found in

the acceptance agreement, appellant states:

"Each of the acceptance agreements is blank

as to the drafts and securities which were to be

deposited thereunder. Parol evidence was there-

fore admissible to prove what drafts were so de-

posited. There is no dispute with regard to this.

The very existence of these blanks, how^ever, is

mute evidence of the soundness of appellant's

contention that a revolving credit was intended,

for such an arrangement caused it to be imprac-

ticable and impossible to list the drafts deposited

or to be deposited under the acceptance agree-

ment." (App's. Br. p. 45.)

In conmienting upon the court's findings appellant

states

:

"Contrary to the court's findings, no distinc-

tion was ever made or intended to be made; all
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drafts were deposited as security for acceptances,

and all were under and part of the transaction

which commenced with the delivery of the ac-

ceptance agreement on October 6, 1930." (App's.

Br. p. 55.)

Its conclusion upon this subject is quite illmninating,

its statement being:

''There was only one transaction inaugiu'ated

by and under the acceptance agreement. All

drafts transmitted by appellant to Richfield Oil

Company were deposited under the agreement as

security for the acceptances; being thus deposited

they became by operation of the terms of the

agreement security for the general indebtedness

of Richfield to appellant." (App's. Br. p. 65.)

Without further quoting from appellant's brief we

direct the court's attention to the following pages

upon which comparable statements appear, (pp. 47,

51, 52, 53, 54, 58, 60, 62.)

These quotations from and references to the argu-

ment of appellant in the brief filed by its learned

comisel should themselves convince the court that

drafts alone, whether short term or long term, or both,

constituted the security for the acceptances.

(2) Appellant's evidence itself estab-

lishes that the drafts alone con-

stituted the subject-matter of the

agreement.

Frederick L. Lipman, president of appellant, in

testifying to the conversation occurring between him-

self and Hall, said:
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''This representative, Mr. Hall, stated that

there had been some prior discussion as to this

line of business, and I think I said something to

the effect that if these drafts were good security,

that is, if they tvere drawn on people tve had con-

fidence in, we would regard those as collateral

for an acceptance credit. This representative

assured me that the drafts were quite all right.

* * * I cannot make a credit for the bank without

putting a figure on it. I suggested that the credit

might be $150,000 or $250,000. We could not lay

much stress between one smn or another hecause

it IVas to he governed by these drafts/' (R. p.

449.)

Frederick J. Hellman, a vice-president of appel-

lant, and in charge of its foreign department, upon

the same subject, testified:

"To the best of my recollection I told Mr. Hall

that I thought that we, meaning the Wells Fargo
Bank, would be willing to go into such a transac-

tion advancing them on their collections, and that

I could see nothing that would stop us from do-

ing it, and as long as they had other lines in the

bank I would rather consult with Lipman first."

(R. p. 436.)

With respect to the conversation with Mr. Lipman
he further testified:

''We went into Mr. Lipman 's office and I said

to Mr. Lipman that Mr. Hall was representing

the Richfield Oil Company; that he was the man-
ager of their export department, and that they

had not been very well satisfied down in Los
Angeles, and that he had been discussing ad-
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vancing funds on their collections in the form

of an acceptance arrangement. * * * Mr. Hall

told Mr. Lipman * * * that all their collec-

tions, or practically all of their collections, were

paid without any trouble. Mr. Lipman said he

thought it would be all right to open the ac-

ceptance credit but he wanted it understood that

before we made any advance on their collections

we w^ould be able to check up through our foreign

correspondents on their foreign customers. * * *

Then the question came up of the amount of

credit. I believe Mr. Lipman said to Mr. Hall,

'We will advance you $150,000, $200,000, $250,000

on your foreign collections'. He said to Mr. Hall

that this credit was to remain in force until it

was cancelled by either side; that we did not

know whether it would work out or not; we did

not know what kind of foreign collections they

were handling and if it did not work out we re-

served the right to cancel the credit. (R. pp. 436-

439.)

The evidence of W. J. Gilstrap, assistant manager

of the Foreign Department of appellant bank, who

negotiated the acceptance agreement with Hall and

Pope, clearly shows that "drafts" were to constitute

the security for the acceptances. Upon this subject,

in detailing his conversation with Hall and Pope on

October 6, 1930, he testified

:

"I told him (Pope) * * * that the acceptance

agreement did not stipulate the exact amount of

acceptance; that is the exact amount for which

each acceptance was drawn, because we did not

know^, nor did they know, nor did anyone know
in what amount the acceptances would be issued
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and when they would be issued. That would he

dependent upon the collections which later would
be forwarded to us. likewise no mention could be

made, as I told Mr. Pope, of the collections which
were the security for this particular credit, be-

cause for the same reason neither they nor we
knew exactly what collections would later be

sent us. * * * I also explained to Mr. Pope that

if for any reason the proceeds of the hills that

might he deposited luith us were not received by
us and in time to meet any maturing acceptances

the deficiency that the Richfield Oil Company
might have to make good might be in part or in

whole obtained by renewal acceptances either

against bills which were originally put in as se-

curity for original acceptances or against new
bills which might later have been deposited; in

other words, on renewal acceptances against some

of the bills against which the first ninety day

acceptances were issued or as against any later

bills that might have been deposited. (R. pp.

371-374.)

(3) Appellee's contention.

While appellee contended that drafts were to con-

stitute the security for the acceptances, his position

was that under the agreement reached by the parties

the short term drafts alone should constitute such

security, the long- term drafts being deposited merely

for collection. This phase of the argmnent is given

exhaustive attention in the brief filed by appellee

(pp. 25 to 45), to which we respectfully refer the

court.
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(d) Bills of lading delivered to

appellant merely as agent of

appellee for delivery to con-

signee upon acceptance of drafts.

In its opinion this court, in referring to the bills of

lading deposited with appellant, states:

''In order to effect the pledge of its cargo the

Richfield Oil Company transferred its bills of

lading therefore, properly assigned, to the bank,

together with foreign bills of exchange drawn
upon the purchaser of the goods represented by

the bills of lading which would enable the bank

to realize upon the value thereof upon receiving

from the purchaser the price thereof."

This statement, in so far as it relates to the bills of

lading is inadvertently inaccurate. None of the hills

of lading ivere assigned by the Richfield Company

to the hank. It is the contention of appellee that

they were delivered to the bank as the agent of Rich-

field merely for transmission to its correspondent to

be delivered upon the acceptance of the drafts, one

of which, to-wit, the sight draft, being the security

under the acceptances. The documents in question,

including the bills of lading, and the drafts were de-

livered to appellant bank on October 8, 1930, by Mr.

Hall, each set of docmnents accompanied by a letter

addressed to appellant couched in the following lan-

guage:

''We are enclosing the follomng documents

covering shipments going forward to Calcutta

and Bombay per the (name of steamer)."
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After describing the documents the letter proceeded:

"provided these documents are found to be in

order please fortvard them to your correspondent

hank for collection requesting them to notify you

iimnediately by way of non-acceptance or non-

payment of draft at maturity." (R. pp. 266-269.)

The record is absolutely barren of a suggestion that

any of the bills of lading were assigned to appellant.

Proof of any such assignment, if made, would neces-

sarily have been produced by appellant. The letters

accompanying the docmnents themselves negative any

such inference. Upon delivery of the documents re-

ferred to in each letter a receipt was issued by the

bank to Richfield covering the drafts alone, which re-

ceipts were introduced in evidence. These receipts

are not reproduced in the record but their introduc-

tion is shown, (p. 271.)

While in the absence of any contrary showing, in

view of the judgment of the lower court appellee is

entitled to the inference that each receipt conformed

to the communication, as a matter of fact, which

appellant will undoubtedly concede, each of these re-

ceipts is in the following form

:

"We have received for collection your items as

listed below." (Italics ours.)

It will thus be seen that the trial judge was im-

pelled to construe this transaction and was justified

in holding that the evidence showed that appellant

acted as the agent of Richfield in transmitting the

drafts to its correspondent for collection and that they

transmitted the bills of lading to be delivered upon the
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acceptance of the drafts thus transmitted. Further-

more, there is nothing in any of this evidence tending

to prove that the bills of lading were delivered as

security for the acceptances.

(e) The so-called Lyons' letter (Defs.

Ex. A) is lacking in evidentiary

or controlling value.

The so-called Lyons' letter of October 8, 1930, by

Richfield 's controller is not controlling, is subject to

explanation and was fully explained by attendant cir-

cmnstances. It reads as follows:

"We are sending by Mr. Hall documents cover-

ing a shipment to Birla Bros., Ltd. at Calcutta,

India. Will you please release against this shii^-

ment $115,000 worth of acceptances made payable

at 90 days sight."

The e^ddence discloses that the writer of this com-

munication was entirely lacking in information re-

specting the transaction and that in writing such

letter he assmned, without having any knowledge upon

the subject, that the transaction was shaped as stated.

The letter was entirely unnecessary. The acceptance

agreement and acceptance to be released had already

been delivered to the bank. Hall had in his possession

for delivery the docmnents (including the drafts) ac-

companied by appropriate communications. The ac-

ceptances would have been delivered to him in con-

formity with the agreement without the communica-

tion from Lyons. Such communication could not avoid

the agreement already negotiated upon the strength



32

and in reliance of which the acceptance agreement

and acceptances had been and the documents and ac-

companying comnmnications were to be delivered. The

transaction in question was negotiated exclusively

by Hall and Pope. Lyons at no time participated

therein. At this time Richfield was in dire financial

distress and it was essential that funds be obtained

at the earliest possible moment. On the evening of

October 6th Hall and Pope returned to Los Angeles.

On the evening of the following day Hall left Los

Angeles for San Francisco bringing with him, among

other things, the four Birla Bros, drafts together with

two transmittal letters. Ordinarily these letters, with

the drafts and documents referred to therein, would

have been transmitted to appellant by mail. If such

had been the procedure the Lyons' letter would not

have been written. Hall came to San Francisco not

because it was necessary that the transmittal letters,

drafts and docmnents should be personally delivered,

but to enable him to forthwith obtain the $115,000

in order that it could be utilized in Los Angeles before

the night of that day. (R. pp. 347-8.) To permit such

use, upon the net proceeds of the acceptance being

credited to the account of Richfield the deposit slip

was telephoted to Los Angeles. Lyons was interested

in getting the $115,000 quickly and the letter was

written by him with this object alone in view. The

details of the transaction had already been agreed

upon. The letter did not undertake to restate such

details or to modify or restrict them in any manner,

nor did it undertake to change, modify or alter
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the agreement already made. It was the character

and type of letter that any one under like circum-

stances would have w^ritten, the writer never imag-

ining that it would subsequently be characterized

as illustrative of the agreement existing between the

parties. It could not act as a substitute for the

negotiations previously conducted by the parties as

w^ell as the agreement entered into between them

definitely fixing their rights and obligations.

That the appellant itself attached no importance to

the letter is evidenced by the circumstance that its

contents were never discussed by the officials of the

bank with any of the representatives of Richfield. A
conclusive reason why this communication is utterly

lacking as an important element in this case is that

while it refers to ''shipment" the evidence of all

the witnesses, including Gilstrap, proves conclusively

that the agreement related to drafts and nothing else.

That the Lyons' letter is of no importance and that

his understanding was exactly in accord with that

testified to by Hall and Pope and that he understood

that only short term drafts were being deposited as

security under the acceptances, the balance being

sent to the bank for collection, is conclusively proven

by the correspondence dictated by Pope but read and

signed by Lyons, the first written six days after the

letter (Def. Ex. A) and the second less than two

weeks thereafter. The first letter written by Lyons

to appellant after the transmission of Defendant's

Exhibit A w^as dated October 13, 1930, and read as

follows

:
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*'Our records show that we have in your good

bank a draft reserve for $9,734.16 against which

no acceptances have been issued.

If this information is correct please issue one

of the drafts which you now hold for $5,000 pay-

able in 90 days.

Thanking you for your courtesy in this mat-

ter." (Plfe. Ex. 28.)

This letter demonstrates that Lyons' understanding-

was not only that drafts, but that certain specified

drafts, had been deposited as security for the pay-

ment of the acceptances issued. No other construction

can be given to the letter. His subsequent letter of

October 20th, which was written while Mr. Oilstrap

was in Los Angeles and after he had conferred with

the officials of Richfield (R. p. 394) confirms the

statements just made. In this letter, because of the

absence of Gilstrap, addressed to Mr. Leuenberger,

Lyons states:

''In talking with Mr. Gilstrap Saturday he

informed us that we might use our collection No.

103010 as No. 46843 on La Paz, Bolivia, as re-

serve against acceptances. Lender these accep-

tances would you please issue an acceptance for

$10,000 to mature in 90 days? * * *" (Plff.

Ex. 30.)

These two letters were dictated by Pope and signed

by Lyons immediately follomng the institution of the

transactions involved when the parties had clearly in

mind the details of the agreement made and long

before any dispute or controversy arose over the sub-
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ject of the agreement, or what drafts were deposited

under the acceptance agreement.

With these two letters before us, regardless of all

other testimony upon the subject, the lack of impor-

tance of the Lyons letter becomes obvious.

We believe that the foregoing must convince this

court that its determination of this branch of the

case was unwarranted. There is, however, a legal

projDosition involved to which we desire to invite its

attention. If, as determined by this court, and as ad-

mitted by appellant, parol evidence was admissible

to identify the securities which the parties agreed

should support the acceptance agreement and the re-

lease and delivery of the "acceptances", what pos-

sible legal justification can exist for the court to hold

that only certain of such parol evidence should be

given consideration and that all remaining evidence

—

although admissible—was lacking in legal force or

stability?

If, as contended by appellee, the agreement between

the parties was that certain drafts, and none others,

were agreed to constitute such security, how can such

agreement, if established, be nullified merely because

in order to obtain the acceptance of such drafts it

was essential to deliver to appellant possession of the

bills of lading so that they in turn could be delivered

to the consignee upon the acceptance by such con-

signee of one or more of the drafts which, or the pro-

ceeds of which, according to the agreement, were to

be held by appellant as security for the acceptances ?
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If appellant bank agreed to act as the agent of

Richfield in obtaining the acceptance of certain drafts

drawn by Richfield on its foreign customers, and for

such purpose obtained possession of certain bills of

lading to be delivered by it to the consignee upon

acceptance of the drafts, and likewise agreed with

iRichfield that upon the delivery to it of the drafts

to be thereafter accepted, together with bills of lading,

it would execute and release certain acceptances upon

the understanding that the drafts or certain of the

drafts thus drawn upon Richfield 's foreign customers

was to constitute the security for such acceptances,

such transaction would unquestionably be free from

legal objection. It would be an agreement which the

parties had a legal right to enter into. It would be an

enforceable agreement if established. It would be an

agreement which could be established by parol, if not

evidenced by a writing. In the instant case it is

claimed by appellee that such an agreement was in

fact entered into between Richfield and appellant

bank and that inasmuch as the acceptance agreement

failed to specify the security to which it referred,

the character and identity of such security could be

properly established by parol.

If, by parol evidence, it could be proved that the

bills of lading constituted such security, it is incon-

ceivable why by the same character of evidence it

could not be proved that the drafts, or some of them,

were agreed to constitute such security in lieu of the

bills of lading.
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111 the case under consideration the appellant, con-

ceding the admissibility of parol evidence, offered

testimony in support of its claim that both drafts, to

be accepted upon delivery of the bills of lading, con-

stituted the security for the acceptances issued by it.

On the other hand, appellee clahned that only the

short term drafts were agreed to constitute such

security. Both parties, however, agreed that drafts,

and not the bills of lading, constituted such security.

The dispute between them was not whether drafts

constituted such security, but whether aU or only a

certain portion of these drafts were thus deposited.

Having conceded the admissibility of such parol

evidence, the court should not have laid down the

rule that only a part of such parol evidence can be

considered and that all of the other evidence upon

the subject must be rejected.

We submit that there is no justification for any

such legal declaration.

III.

IT IS DEFINITELY PROVED THAT ALL FOREIGN COLLEC-

TIONS SHOULD BE DEEMED TO BE SEPARATE AND
APART FROM OTHER BUSINESS OF RICHFIELD WITH
AND ITS FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS TO APPELLANT
BANK.

With respect to the proposition above entitled, this

court in its opinion states:

''The appellee contends that the agreement of

the bank, as testified to by Hall and Pope, to
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keep the account of the foreign business separate

was in effect a waiver of the banker's lien. This

arrangement was made according to the testi-

mony of Hall and Pope as a matter of conve-

nience because of Hall's agreement with Richfield

Oil Company concerning commissions. Nothing

was said at the time of the agreement to keep the

accounts separate about the banker's lien and

as we have already pointed out, the express

written agreement was that the proceeds of the

bills of exchange deposited under the acceptance

agreement should be available to apply to any

indebtedness due from the Richfield Oil Company
to the bank. This arrangement, instead of being

a w^aiver of the banker's lien, was an assertion

of a lien as to all collections covered by the ac-

ceptance agreement. In the general agreement

or arrangement testified to by Hall to keep the

foreign accounts separate from the other accounts

of the Richfield Oil Company there was no dis-

tinction between the bills of exchange which
matured in less than ninety days and those which
matured in more than ninety days, although he

testified that the former were and the latter

were not to be used as a basis for acceptances

after the expiration of ninety days. According
to Hall the agreement was that the foreign ex-

change business should be kept separate, not that

there should be two separate accounts in the

foreign exchange department, one on a short

term and the other on long term bills of exchange.

The two t^^pes of bills of exchange were separated
in their dealings solely because of the refusal of

the bank to issue acceptances upon bills of ex-

change which were not payable within ninety

days. There was no contract, express or implied,
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to treat the two types of bills of exchange dif-

ferently with relation to the banker's lien unless

it can be said that the express assertion of the

lien as to the bills of exchange included in the

acceptance agreement was an implied w^aiver of

the lien as to those not included. * * * A mere
separation of the deposit accounts in a bank as a

matter of convenience would not operate as a
waiver of the banker's lien, particularly where
there was no agreement or understanding as to

the disposition of the account."

We respectfully, but with confidence, submit that this

portion of the court's decision is based upon a mis-

conception of the evidence with respect to the so-

called Hall agreement, and a misunderstanding of

appellee's position with respect to the application of

the so-called Hall agreement to the two types of

draft. Such misconception illustrates the wdsdom of

the rule in favor of the presumption attaching to the

trial court's findings. To subserve the convenience

of the court and ourselves we will deal with these

two propositions in their inverse order.

(a) Appellee does not claim that

any distinction was made

between the two t3^es of

drafts in the so-called Hall-

Pope agreement.

Appellee's claim that the Hall-Pope agreement to

which reference will hereafter be made, absolved from

appellant banker's lien the proceeds of the long term

drafts, was not based upon the assumption

that any such distinction was either discussed or

reached with respect to the application of the agree-



40

ment to keep the foreign business entirely separate

and apart from Richfield 's other business and affairs

with the appellant bank. This agreement, as testified

to and as proved, related to and embraced all of Rich-

field's foreign business with appellant bank. The

reason why this latter agreement was not enforceable

as against the short term drafts, or their proceeds,

was solely because of the other agreement that these

short term drafts and their proceeds should constitute

the security for the acceptance agreement and the

acceptances released thereunder. The moment that

the short term drafts came under the acceptance agree-

ment, it of course was realized that they and their

proceeds became subject to its terms. One of its

terms was that the security actually deposited under

the acceptance agreement

"shall also be held by you as security for any

other liability from us to you whether then ex-

isting or thereafter contracted." (R. p. 253.)

These provisions of the acceptance agreement neces-

sarily created a contractual lien as against the drafts

and their proceeds supporting the acceptance agree-

ment which subjected them to the burden of paying

the general indebtedness due from Richfield to appel-

lant bank.

The legal effect of depositing the short term drafts

under the acceptance agreement, and as security for

acceptances, necessarily changed their status because

as and when deposited they innnediately became sub-

ject to the terms and provisions of the acceptance

agreement which removed them from the operation
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and effect of the agreement under and in reliance upon

which Richfield's entire foreign business was turned

over to apiJellant bank. It was never contended and

is not now asserted by appellee that in the agreement

mider which Richfield's foreign business was turned

over to appellant bank any distinction was made or

attempted to be made between the long term and the

short term drafts. No such distinction had to be made
or was contemplated because if the acceptance agree-

ment had not been negotiated the whole of the foreign

business, including all drafts, both short and long

term, would have been freed from the danger of the

exercise of a banker's lien because of any antecedent

indebtedness. As a matter of fact, at the time the

transfer of Richfield's foreign business to appellant

was first negotiated, acceptances were not only un-

known to but not thought of b}^ RicMeld or its offi-

cials. It was appellant's initiative upon this subject

that finally persuaded Richfield to obtain funds by

means of acceptances. Prior to that time it financed

itself hy discounting its foreign drafts. This is shown

by Mr. Gilstrap who testified:

''I suggested to Mr. Hall that if the business

was an extension of credit it might be more eco-

nomically handled from Richfield's point of view

by means of banker's acceptances rather than by

a direct discounting of foreign acceptances. I

am positive that I suggested that to Mr. Hall and

that Mr. Hall did not suggest it to me." (R. p.

369.)
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It will thus be seen that that portion of this court's

decisions relating to the subject-matter just discussed

is undoubtedly based upon a misunderstanding of ap-

pellee's position and a misconcej^tion of the evidence

relating thereto.

(b) The agreement between Hall

and appellant officials that

all drafts and their proceeds

should be deemed to be sep-

arate and apart from other

business of Richfield with

and its financial obligations

to appellant constituted such

drafts and proceeds a special

fund and a deposit against

which no banker's lien or

right of set-off existed.

Although this branch of the case was of the utmost

importance to appellee, but meager attention is given

to it in the opinion rendered by this court. Ap-

parently the court was of the opinion, as stated by it,

''that the agreement between the parties involved

a 'mere separation of the deposit accounts' (p. 12)

and that 'this arrangement was made according

to the testimony of Hall and Pope as a matter of

convenience because of Hall's agreement with

Richfield Oil Company concerning commissions'."

(p. 12.)

These statements we submit are unjustified by the

evidence. In reaching this conclusion the court has

entirely overlooked not alone the circumstances sur-

rounding the agreement and which induced and per-

suaded its making, but the agreement itself. The
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statement of Hall that he was entitled to commissions

from the foreign business of appellee was merely one

of the reasons why he was interested in keeping the

foreign business separate from all other business of

Richfield including its indebtedness to appellant. But

the real basis of the agreement which appellee claims

w^as proved by overwhelming and convincing evidence

and fomid by the lower court to have been entered

into, was Richfield 's immediate necessities to enable

it to carry on its business and survive. It could not

and would not have turned over its foreign business

to appellant unless it could be assured that the pro-

ceeds of its foreign business would not be endangered

by any attempt on the part of appellant to enforce

Richfield 's indebtedness to it by the exercise upon it

of its banker's lien.

While the evidence upon this subject is revealed in

appellee's brief (pp. 13 to 25) to which we respect-

fully refer the court, the importance of this contro-

versy to appellee impels us to recall to the court those

portions of the record clearly indicating that the

court's position with respect to this matter is in-

accurate. At the time this agreement was negotiated

Richfield ow^ed appellant an unsecured indebtedness

of $625,000 evidenced by a promissory note which was

to mature on October 10, 1930. In the absence of the

agreement referred to, the moment such imsecured

indebtedness matured appellant would have been

legally authorized to exercise its banker's lien upon

all of Richfield 's foreign business. The right of a

bank to exercise its banker's lien and right of set-off
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was known to all of the executives of Richfield in-

cluding Hall. (R. p. 341.) At this time Richfield was

and thereafter continued to be in dire need of funds.

(R. p. 341.) The profit upon its foreign business was

almost negligible in character and the cost of pur-

chasing and making ready its commodities for foreign

shipment, as well as the freight charges thereon, had

to be advanced. Faced with these conditions it could

ill alford to take the chance of depositing with appel-

lant its foreign collections involving large sums un-

less it was miderstood that neither the drafts them-

selves nor their proceeds when collected, could be

utilized by api^ellant in the extinguishment, either in

whole or in part, of an unsecured indebtedness far in

excess of the collections entrusted to it. The execu-

tive officials of Richfield, as well as Hall, knew that

many banks substantial in character existed in Cali-

fornia to w^hich no indebtedness was owed by Rich-

field and to w^hich its collections could readily be en-

trusted without being menaced by the possible exer-

cise of a banker's lien or right of set-off. That Rich-

field would deposit its foreign drafts for collection

with appellant in the absence of a special agreement

preventing the exercise of its banker's lien or right

of set-off is mithinkable. Aside from this situation.

Hall was interested in the financial success of the

foreign department of which he was manager because

he had not only built it up but upon such success

depended the amount of compensation to which he w^as

entitled. It would indeed be remarkable if imder the

proven circumstances Hall would have failed to insist

upon the agreement testified to by him. That the
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agreement was made is clearly shown by his evidence.

In August, 1930, during the first conference occurring

between him and Gilstrap, Hall testified

:

''I discussed with him the general situation,

Richfield Oil Company's collections, and stated

that I was contemplating turning over all of the

Richfield collections, being foreign collections, as

far as possible to them. I explained to him that

I would be responsible as far as possible for those

collections and watch them * * * / asked him
to remember that any transactions ivere to he con-

sidered separate from other transactions of the

Richfield Company—the entire transactions,

monetary, the collection of drafts for us or any
other business connected with the Foreign De-
partment of Richfield ComjDany." (R. p. 340.)

^'I stated to him that I had an interest in all

collections which were emanating from the For-

eigTL Department and that I wanted him to con-

sider that it was a separate business arrangement

from any other business which Richfield had with

Wells Fargo Bank. Mr. Gilstrap said that he

understood my position." (R. p. 341.)

After his preliminary conference with Gilstrap Hall

was taken by Mr. Hellman to Mr. Lipman, president

of the bank. As to what occurred upon this particular

subject Hall testified that he told Lipman
''* * * that I had a personal interest in the col-

lections of the Department, and I wanted it con-

sidered to be a separate transaction from any ob-

ligations or any transactions other than those of

the Foreign Department—Richfield obligations I

mean. Lipman then said, 'That is good' or 'that

is excellent'." (R. p. 343.)
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And upon cross-examination he reiterated that he

stated to Mr. Lipman

"that it was to be understood that this further

credit was to be kept separate and be a distinct

arrangement with the Foreign Department."

(R. p. 358.)

Upon the visit of Hall and Pope to the bank on the

morning of October 6, 1930, this arrangement was

again made the subject of discussion. According to

Hall, after Gilstrap, at the request of Pope, had tele-

phoned to Mr. McKee,

"I there reiterated my former conversation with

Mr. Gilstrap that if the acceptances were used

it must be definitely understood that it was a

separate transaction from any other transaction

in a monetary way which Richfield had with

Wells Fargo Bank. I was following orders in that

respect from Mr. McKee." (R. p. 346.)

Mr. McKee, whose orders Hall was following, was one

of the chief executives of appellee. The above testi-

mony is corroborated by Pope, who testified

:

"During the course of the conversation Mr.
Hall said he wanted the transaction with the

Foreign Department considered a thing apart

from the regular transactions of Richfield with

the bank."

And still later

"As I remember it, the substance of his state-

ment was that he wanted the Foreign Department
business of Richfield kept as a separate and dis-

tinct transaction from other business that Rich-
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field might do witli tlie Wells Fargo Bank." (R.

pp. 325-6.)

The testimony of Hall and Pope above quoted was

corroborated by Frederick Lipman, president of ap-

pellant, who was called as a witness on its behalf. He
was the officer to whom all of the other officials of the

bank referred in determining the credit which should

be extended to Richfield on its foreign collections. To

him Hall was brought after conferring with Gilstrap

and Hellman. Lipman 's testimony was:

"It seems to me that as the conversation came
to an end Mr. Hall said something to the effect

that he represented the ForeigTi Department and
not the general treasury relations with the com-

pany and he did not want the ttvo mixed up; he

tvmited them kept separately/'

This testimony of Mr. Lipman is corroborated by

Frederick J. Hellman, vice-president of appellant.

Testifying to the conversation between Hall and Lip-

man, he stated:

"As I remember it, we then stood up and were
going out of the door and Mr. Hall said to Mr.

Lipman, 'I want it understood'

—

No, not that.

He said, 'You must realize that I am not in the

financial end of the business; that I am only the

manager of the foreign department, and I will

have to get the consent of m}^ superior to put this

credit through.' He further said that he knew
we were giving them a line of credit of $625,000,

and if this acceptance credit was going to inter-

fere with the line doivnstairs, he knew they tvoidd

not consent to it, and he tvanted the acceptance
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credits separate from the loan downstairs." (R.

p. 438.)

On cross-examination Hellman testified:

''Mr. Hall said he wanted these acceptance

transactions to be considered separate from the

loan line. * * * He used the ivord 'separate',

and he referred to the loan of 1^625,000. The

essence of the statement is that he wanted it con-

sidered separate from the loan line of $625,000."

(R. pp. 445-6.)

Several months later, when appellant finally exer-

cised its banker's lien upon the drafts here involved,

Hall came to San Francisco and protested against

appellant's action. During the discussions which fol-

low^ed, one of the reasons given by Hall why the action

taken by the bank was without justification was that

it had made the agreement to keep these transactions

separate and apart from all other business with and

financial obligations of Richfield. He endeavored to

refresh the memories of Mr. Gilstrap and Mr. Eisen-

bach with respect to the agreement. (R. pp. 350-1;

364.) Not only were such statements not denied (R.

jj. 351) but Hall testified that Gilstrap said

''that Wells Fargo Bank was going to grab that

money. I asked him why and he said they w^ere

going to do it, exercising a lien on it for other

indebtedness owed the bank. I stated that I was

very surprised since they had agreed not to touch

any of the collections of the Foreign Department

with Richfield Oil Company. He said he was

sorry but that was the decision of the bank."

(R. p. 350.)
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But, aside from this conclusive evidence establishing

the making of the agreement, the subsequent conduct

of appellant clearly proves that mitil May 8, 1931,

when it attempted to seize the proceeds of some of the

drafts, the existence of the agreement was constantly

given recognition by it. As already stated, the promis-

sory note executed by Richfield evidencing its unse-

cured obligation to appellant, matured on October 10,

1930. In the absence of the agreement under discus-

sion, at any time after October 10, 1930, appellant

would have had a right to exercise its alleged bank-

er's lien upon the drafts deposited with it for collec-

tion, or its right of set-off against their proceeds. Not-

withstanding such alleged right, not only did appellant

fail to exercise said banker's lien or right of set-off

until May 8, 1931, but between October 10, 1930, and

May 8, 1931, it credited to the account of Richfield

and thereafter to the receiver, the net proceeds of cer-

tain drafts theretofore collected by it, totaling $39,-

469.53. Of these simis $31,719.99 was so credited

without any request of any kind emanating from aj)-

pellee or the receiver. (R. pp. 333-4.) The remain-

ing $7749.58 was deposited to the receiver's account in

accord with appellant's letter of March 5, 1931 (Ap-

pellant's Ex. 108) after the receiver had called its

attention to its wire of January 16, 1931. (Plffs.

Ex. 3.) * * * Appellant's failure to exercise its

banker's lien and right of set-off between October 10,

1930 and January 16, 1931, notwithstanding its

anxiety to obtain payment of the unsecured indebted-

ness due to it by appellee, is directly traceable to its

recognition of the so-called Hall agreement.
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It must be clear that the evidence to which we have

just invited the attention of the court establishes

something more than a mere "keeping upon the books

of separate accounts to subserve the convenience of

either Richfield or one of its employees." Any such

arrangement would have been readily acquiesced in

upon the request of Hall made to either Gilstrap or

one of the tellers of appellant. If an arrangement such

as that alone were contemplated, it would not have

been the subject-matter of discussion between Hall,

representing Richfield, and Gilstrap, and later

Hall and Mr. Lipman, president of appellant, and

Hall and Helhnan. Nor would it upon the subsequent

visit of Hall and Pope have again been the subject-

matter of conferences and negotiations between them

and Gilstrap.

Keeping in mind that the foreign collections of

Richfield were vital to its very existence and consti-

tuted part of its "life's blood" and that the purpose

of the agreement was to render available to it at all

times the proceeds of such foreign business, except

to the extent necessary to meet the acceptances and

protect such proceeds against being subjected to the

payment of the unsecured indebtedness due to appel-

lant, as well as the character of the negotiations oc-

curring between the parties, it is not logically possible

to reach any conclusion other than that the agreement

that the business of the Foreign Department including

the drafts and their i)roceeds should be deemed to

be separate and apart from other business with Rich-

field and its financial obligations to appellant, and

constituted such drafts and i^roceeds a special fund
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and deposit as against which no banker's lien or right

of set-off existed. If such was the agreement, then

under the authorities appellant was prohibited from

subjecting such foreign collections to its banker's lien

or right of set-off.

For a statement of the legal principles applicable

to and citation of the authorities in their support we
respectfully invite the court's attention to appellee's

brief, pp. 139 to 156.

In any event, the interpretation of the negotiations

and conversations between the parties, what the agree-

ment was and what was intended thereby were cjues-

tions of fact for the trial court and not the appellate

court to determine. The trial judge who patiently

listened to the evidence and observed the witnesses

testifying concluded that the agreement was as charac-

terized by appellee. Appropriate findings upon this

subject followed. (R. pp. 184-5.) Such determination

by the trial judge should be conclusive upon this

court.

lY.

APPELLANT BANK WAIVED ITS BANKER'S LIEN AND RIGHT
OF SET-OFF AS AGAINST ALL COLLECTIONS OF RICH-

FIELD EXCEPTING THOSE SPECIFICALLY DEPOSITED
UNDER THE ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENTS.

We cannot help but feel that the conclusion reached

by this court in determining the proposition above

entitled adversely to appellee must have been induced

by our apparent inability to picture to the coui^t the

situation existing at the time the telegrams were ex-
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changed, the information which was then in the pos-

session of apx)ellant bank, and the purpose intended

to be accomplished by such exchange of telegrams.

While we are convinced that these telegrams, read

in the light of the surrounding circumstances, demon-

strate a waiver of appellant banker's lien and right

of set-off as contended, we have no hesitation in stat-

ing that the best that can be said from the standpoint

of appellant is that there might exist a doubt as to

their construction and interpretation. x\ssmning such

to be the fact, however, the finding of the lower court

with respect to such construction and interpretation

based upon the communications themselves, as well as

all of the surrounding circumstances and facts, to-

gether with the subsequent conduct of the parties, is

conclusive upon this court and should not be avoided

on appeal.

The conceded situation existinc; at the time the

telegrams were sent, briefly stated, is as follows:

For some months prior to January 15, 1931, Rich-

field was involved in financial difficulties. It owed vari-

ous banks in excess of ten million dollars, no part of

which was secured. (R. p. 205.) It was indebted in a

large sum to a number of merchandise creditors, some

of whom were pressing for payment. It was only with

much difficulty that it was able to meet pay-rolls,

freight charges and current indebtedness due public

utilities which could not be delayed. Litigation was

threatened which, if commenced and pi'osecuted to

final judgment, would not only result in the sacrifice

of its properties but would prevent it from carrying
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on its business and in all probability force it into

bankruptcy. This distressing situation was known to

most of Richfield 's creditors but particularly to its

bank creditors including appellant.

To avoid bankruptcy a receivership was determined

upon by Richfield 's creditors including its bank-

creditors. Appellee was appointed receiver and on the

same date ancillary receiver in this district. (R. pp.

205-8.) Each of these orders appointed appellee re-

ceiver "of all the property, assets and business of

Richfield." (R. p. 90.) By the terms of each order

appellee was authorized

"forthwith to take and have complete and exclu-

sive control, possession and cusTody of all of the

property and assets of Richfield (R. p. 92) and
to continue, manage and operate the business of

the defendant * * * to the end that the operation

of the business of the defendant should not be

interfered with or interrupted." (R. pp. 93-4.)

It is quite apparent that the principal purpose

sought to be achieved by the appointment of the re-

ceiver teas to enable the biisiness of Richfield to be

carried on in the expectation that as a result of such

procedure the indebtedness, or a considerable part of

it, due to the creditors would ultimately be liquidated.

A copy of the order appointing appellee receiver was

immediately transmitted to the creditor banks of

Richfield, whereu.pon some of them in the exercise of

their right of set-off, applied the cash balances of

Richfield in partial payment of the indebtedness due

to them. (R. pp. 203-6.) Learning of such action and

realizing that unless there was made available to him
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all cash balances and all other credits belonging to

Richfield in the possession of said banks, it would be

impossible to carry on its business, a meeting was

called by the receiver for January 16, 1931, which

was attended by representatives of all of the creditor

banks excepting appellant and one other bank. (R.

p. 205.)

During this meeting the receiver explained to those

present its purpose and among other things said,

^^I told them that it tvas not only necessary that

I have the balance restored, but that I have their

assurance that the normal flow of business tvould

be aJlotved to go on. Collections tvere coming in,

of course, that if they merely restored, my bal-

ances that it tvould be obvious that it ivould be

impossible to carry on the business if collections

were seized. I asked them if they tvould not re-

store to me all funds that might be available.^'

(R. pp. 206-7.)

He also explained that the business of Richfield was

dependent upon the receiver having available

'^all of its funds; that is, all assets of every

character" * * *

so that the receiver might endeavor to continue the

business in some operating form and that without

funds such action was utterly impossible. (R. p. 228.)

According to the witness, Edward J. Nolan, chief

executive of the Bank of America, Richfield 's largest

creditor, the receiver also informed the bank that

"all the credits and all the funds and all the

assets, especially the current assets that belonged

to the company must be turned over to him;
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otherwise he could not carry on the affaii'S of

the company." (R. p. 241.)

That the drafts deposited with the bank for collec-

tion, as well as the collections themselves, were credits

and assets of Richfield to which, as well as to the cash

balances, the receiver was referring is likewise shown

by Mr. Nolan, his testunony upon this subject being:

"I understand balances in bank would be such

items as are deposited for credit and collected,

* * * I would regard foreign drafts deposited

with a bank for collection as credits and when
the drafts are collected and the money comes

into the possession of the bank I would regard

that as cash balances." (R. pp. 245-6.)

Upon cross-examination he testified

:

"Foreign drafts can be considered as credits."

(R. p. 246.)

And on redirect examination

:

"If a draft is deposited in a bank by a de-

positor or a merchant for collection I would re-

gard that as one of its credits/' (R. p. 247.)

It is therefore manifest that while the receiver was

directly concerned with the restoration of the cash

balances offset, and while he was insistent that other

banks should agree not to offset cash balances in their

possession, it was imperative for him to insist that

all bank credits should agree that all assets and credits

in their possession belonging to Richfield should be

made available to him, otherwise he would retire from

the receivership and the company w^ould go into

bankruptcy.
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At the time of this meeting, while some of the banks

had checks and credits in transit, the only banks

which had foreign drafts in their possession were

Security-First National Bank of Los Angeles and

appellant. (R. p. 216.) These facts were known by

the receiver and also by the representative of the

Security Bank. That appellant bank must have

known that the Security Bank had such collections

can clearly be iirferred from the fact that its credit

official constantly kept in intimate touch with its

financial condition and affairs. (R. pp. 451, 455.)

It was agreed by the bankers present—as to some

of them, however, subject to ratification by their

respective banks—that if those banks which had

offset the cash balances would restore such balances,

and if all banks would agree to make available to the

receiver all credits in their possession, none of the

banks would exercise their banker's lien or right of

setoff against funds or credits of the Richfield Com-

pany. (R. p. 432.) Accordingly, at the conclusion of

the meeting a telegram was prepared by some of the

bankers present, in cooperation with the receiver, to

be sent to each of the banks for the purpose of carry-

ing into effect the object sought to be accomplished

by the meeting. Among those participating in the

preparation of the telegram was the representative

of the Security Bank which, as already shown, had in

its possession foreign drafts not yet collected. (R. pp.

209-242.) This circumstance is important because his

understanding of the telegram sent (Plff's. Ex. 2)

and appellant's response (Plff's. Ex. 3) is shown by

the action of the Security Bank in making available
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to the receiver not only its cash balances hut all col-

lections subsequently made by it upon these foreign

drafts. The telegram which was prepared and trans-

mitted to appellant bank (Plffs. Ex. 2) reads as fol-

lows:

"As receiver I am ordered by federal court to

take over all assets including cash in hanks Stop
While you have undoubted right of offset such

right if exercised would seriously cripple re-

ceivers operations It is necessary therefore to

request that all banks restore to receiver full cash

balances Stop Please therefore transfer such

funds to a new account on your books in my name
as receiver Evidence of my authority and signa-

ture cards will follow by mail Stop Local banks

have indicated they tvill acquiesce in this pro-

gram.''

A reading of this telegram will disclose that the

program referred to was the taking over by the re-

ceiver of "all assets including cash in banks". The

right of offset referred to was the right of offset as

against "all assets including cash in banks". The

program in which "local banks have indicated they

will acquiesce" is the turning over to receiver of all

assets including cash in banks. The telegram there-

fore clearly indicated to appellant that the agreement

to be entered into was to turn over to the receiver

"all assets of the Richfield Company including cash

in its possession", and that as to such assets and cash

its right of offset should be waived.

At this point it may be well to direct the court's

attention to its decision wherein, with respect to the
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meeting which preceded the sending of the telegram

this court said:

''The appellee also introduced evidence to

show the subsequent conduct of the other banks

with relation to their waiver of the agreement.

Their conduct was not brought home to the ap-

pellant and is of no significance whatever, and

even if brought to the attention of the bank

after the transaction was closed would be with-

out significance. There was no estoppel." (p.

17.)

We submit there is no justification for such holding

because according to the uncontradicted testimony,

inmiediately upon the conclusion of the conference

and before any wires passed between the parties at

the request of the receiver and in order that appel-

lant might be fully cognizant with what had occurred,

Mr, Nolan telephoned to Mr. Eisenbach, vice-presi-

dent of appellant and in charge of its Credit De-

partment, and acquainted him fully with what had

occurred, his testimony being:

''During the course of my conversation with

Mr. Eisenbach I stated to him the substance of

what had occurred at the meeting of tJie hankers.

(p. 243.) * * * It was intended to be the agree-

ment with the banks with some amplification

* * *. The amplification was not that something

was desired besides the telegram itself, but to

explain to the banks not present the dire condi-

tion of the company and the importance and

necessity of returning the balances at once or

else the company would be forced into bank-

ruptcy." (R. p. 245.)
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Later on he testified:

u* * * J ^^j^ ^^, Eisenbach it would be nec-

essary that the receiver have all the funds of the

Richfield Oil Company for the purpose of con-

tinuing the business and to avoid bankruptcy.
* * * I tried to pass on to Mr. Eisenbach just

what took place at the meeting that morning."
(R. p. 246.)

And that appellant had notice of the action of the

other banks is shown by the receiver's telegram to

appellant dated January 22, 1931, and the answering

wire of appellant to receiver dated January 23, 1931,

which wires appear upon pages 13 and 14 of this

court's decision. In response to the receiver's wire

of January 16, 1931, appellant answered:

''Replying telegram we are willing to restore

in your name as receiver Richfield 's balance in

checking account provided we are notified by
you that all company's banks have taken simi-

lar action. We are holding certain collections as

security for acceptances Please understand we
continue to reserve aU our rights for bankers

lien against these collections." (Plffs. Ex. 3.)

It will be observed that this telegram was written

and sent by Julian Eisenbach, the very official with

whom Nolan had had his conversation. It will also

be observed that this telegram was not delivered to

the telegraph office until 6 P. M., which was long

after the Nolan-Eisenbach conversation occurred. It

should also be observed that if the receiver had

merely been interested in cash balances or if the Se-

curity Bank had not been interested in learning that
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the foreign collections in the possession of appellant

bank would be made available to the receiver, no

reason would have existed for the conversation be-

tween Nolan and Eisenbach.

It is impossible for us to appreciate how, under

the proven circmnstances, this court concluded that it

was justified in holding that by its telegram appellant

reserved its banker's lien on all credits and foreign

drafts in its possession, and that its sole purpose was

merely to agree to restore the offset balance of Rich-

field. At the tune of its preparation appellant had

before it the order appointing the receiver containing

the language above quoted. (R. p. 203.) It knew that

the receiver, to carry on the business of Richfield

which was the purpose of his appointment, had to have

available to him all credits of Richfield. It had before

it the receiver's wire prefaced with the statement:

''I am ordered by federal court to take over all

assets, including cash in banks"

and it had in mind the information given by Mr. Mc-

Duffie to the banks, as well as the discussions occur-

ring at that meeting, the substance of which had been

conveyed to it by Nolan. Furthermore, it had in its

possession certain" foreign collections as security for

the acceptances previously executed by it then out-

standing. The inclusion within its telegram of the

language

"We are holding certain collections as security

for acceptances Please understand that we con-

tinue to reserve all our rights for banker's lien

against these collections"
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would be both unnecessary and meaningless if its sole

intention was to agree to restore the offset balances.

That information had already, in apt language, been

conveyed by the wire.

That the receiver understood the telegram to mean
what is here contended is conclusively shown by his

testimony both upon direct and cross-examination.

(See appellee's brief, pp. 70-71.) That the telegTam

was so construed by the Security Bank is made mani-

fest by the fact that it not only abstained from exer-

cising any right of set-off as against the cash balance

of Richfield in its possession, but subsequently col-

lected and paid to the receiver $152,524.03.

As further emphasizing the understanding of the

remaining creditor banks with respect to the meaning

of appellant's wire, it was proved that when they

learned that appellant had appropriated the collec-

tions here involved, according to McDuffie

"Every one of them protested not only that

they felt there was no right in it, but also that

they, themselves, never would have restored their

balances had they thought Wells Fargo was re-

serving in its mind this character of right." (R.

p. 237^)

But in addition to what has here been said upon this

subject, appellant itself considered its telegram of

January 16, 1931, as reserving a lien only upon the

drafts under the acceptances. The receiver was ap-

pointed on January 15, 1931. On February 26, 1931,

the last group of acceptances aggregating $25,000 was

paid in full. On February 24th it had in its posses-
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sion $23,530, the proceeds of certain drafts collected

by it. Between February 14th and February 26, 1931,

it collected $9249.28 upon four drafts from which it

deducted $1499.70 which, with the funds previously

collected, paid the acceptances in full. Appellant then

had remaining in its possession $7749.58, the x)roceeds

of these foreign collections. With respect to this sum

it advised Richfield by letter (Plff's. Ex. 107)

:

"the remainder of the proceeds total $7,749.58,

we are holding in accordance with notice given

you in our wire of January 16th."

In view of the receiver's understanding of the wire

of January 16th and concluding that his recollection

of its contents was inaccurate, he requested appellant

to repeat such telegram, which was done. Upon re-

ceipt of this wire appellee undoubtedly compared it

with appellant's original telegram of January 16th

(Plff's. Ex. 3) and observing no difference in the

wires and being convinced as he always had been that

appellant was without authority to retain the pro-

ceeds of these drafts under its reservation contained

in such wdre, on March 3d wrote appellant the follow-

ing letter (Plff 's. Ex. 106) :

"Referring to your letter of February 26th,

advising us of pa^anent of certain drafts totaling

$9260.81, less certain charges amounting to $11.53,

leaving a balance of $9249.28 from which you

are taking $1499.70 to meet the balance due on

acceptances February 26th, leaving the sum of

$7749.58 to be credited to our account, and re-

ferring to your telegram of Jamiary 16th, I beg
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to inform you that all banks transferred the

total amount of deposit to the credit of Richfield

Oil Company of California on January 15th,

1931, to the credit of William C. McDuffie, Re-
ceiver. I will therefore appreciate it if you will

kindly credit the remainder of the proceeds so

mentioned ahoiit $7749.58 to the credit of Rich-

field Oil Company of California, William C. Mc-
Duffie, Receiver, and advise us as soon as this

transfer has been made."

Thereupon and on March 5, 1931, and without any

further communication passing between appellee and

appellant, appellant credited the receiver's account

with $7749.58 and wrote to appellee a communication

stating, among other things

:

''In accordance with your request we are

crediting the account of William C. McDuffie, Re-

ceiver Richfield Oil Company of California, with

the sum of $7749.58.

We are also crediting this account with

$11082.51 representing proceeds of collection No.

13106 of the Richfield Oil Company, particulars

as per memorandum attached." (Plft's. Ex. 108.)

It must be obvious that when the language of the

wire of January 16, 1931, was called to the attention

of appellant and when it recalled the circmiistances

under which it was prepared and the purpose sought

to be achieved by the receiver, as well as all bank

creditors of Richfield in negotiating the agreement,

it realized that the receiver was entitled to the

funds and that it had no claim against them. Further-
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more, it voluntarily and without any request from the

receiver, turned over to him the additional $11,082.51

referred to in the comnmnication.

Between February 26, 1931, and May 8, 1931, in

addition to the four drafts above mentioned and in

addition to the $11,082.51, the bank collected the pro-

ceeds of nine drafts, the net proceeds of which

amounted to $15,381.62, and deposited each of these

collections to the account of receiver and this with-

out any affirmative act or request upon the part of the

receiver or Richfield.

In connection with this situation it should be noted

that w^henever a draft was collected and its proceeds

credited to the receiver's account a written advice of

such action w^as transmitted by appellant to receiver,

and in no instance did appellant, by letter, wire or

word of mouth, assert, intimate or sugi^est that it

was reserving or claiming to reserve or had the right

to exercise any banker's lien or right of set-off as to

these drafts or their proceeds.

There is much additional evidence of surrounding

circmnstances and facts in the record which are

clearly pointed out in appellee's brief, but to which,

in order to avoid further prolonging this petition, no

reference is herein made. We have, however, in our

judgment reproduced sufficient of the record to estab-

lish that appellant not only waived, but intended to

w^aive its banker's lien as against all foreign collec-

tion in its possession excepting those deposited imder

the acceptance agreement.
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But, in any event, as we have had occasion to here-

tofore point out, the best that can be said in favor of

appellant upon this subject is that there might be some

ambiguity or uncertainty as to what was intended by

the passage of the telegrams, and that therefore re-

sort to extrinsic evidence consisting of the surround-

ing circmiistances and facts—including the construc-

tion placed upon the wires by the parties themselves

evidenced by their subsequent acts and conduct, was

legally proper. The interpretation to be placed upon

these telegrams, read in the light of the surrounding

circumstances, became a question of fact for the trial

court, and not a question of fact for the appellate

court. Such determination by the trial court should

be conclusive here.

CONCLUSION.

We believe we should apologize for the apparent

undue length of this petition for rehearing. Ordi-

narily in a petition of this character a discussion of

the evidence is unnecessary. In this controversy, how-

ever, because of the propositions determined by this

court, which involved the legal sufficiency of certain

of the evidence contained in the record, we had no

other alternative. We might justly add, however, that

the extreme importance of this litigation to our client,

to the Richfield Oil Company and to its creditors made

it imperative that this petition be presented in its

fullness.
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It is respectfully, but with great confidence insisted,

that for the reasons indicated a rehearing of this con-

troversy should be granted.

Dated, San Francisco,

July 6, 1934.

Gregory, Hunt & Melvin,

Wm. H. Hunt,

Ward Sullivan,

Sullivan, Roche, Johnson & Barry,

Theo. J. Roche,

Attorneys for Appellee

and Petitioner.

Certificate of Counsel.

I hereby certify that I am of counsel for appellee

and petitioner in the above entitled cause and that

in my judgment the foregoing petition for a rehearing

is well founded in point of law as w^ell as in fact and

that said petition for a rehearing is not interposed

for delay.

Dated, San Francisco,

July 6, 1934.

Theo. J. Roche,

Of Counsel for Appellee

and Petitioner.
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The extensive Petition for a Rehearing filed by

appellee in these proceedings involves in substance

only three points. First, that this Honorable Court

unduly narrowed the application of the parol evi-

dence rule in determining the subject matter of the

acceptance agreement dated October 4, 1930, and that

appellee did not have an opportunity to be heard with

respect to this phase of the Court's decision; second,

that at the beginning of the transactions involving

foreign collections the appellant bank, by agreement,

waived its banker's lien and right of set-off against

all of the foreign collections, and third, that appel-



lant, subsequent to the appointment of the Receiver,

waived its banker's lien and right of set-off.

It is prunarily to the first of these three points

(separated into two parts in appellee's petition), that

our reply will be directed because, in fairness to ap-

XDellee and to the skill and ability of his counsel, it

must be conceded that the arguments in support of

the waiver of the right of lien or set-off, either at the

inception of the transactions or after the appoint-

ment of the Receiver, were as skillfully and as thor-

oughly presented in the greater part of the 182 pages

of appellee's brief on appeal as was hmnanly pos-

sible under the facts and in view of the law.

But before considering appellee's first contention

we believe that the ''Foreword" of the petition should

be noted. It is there urged as the apology for the

length of the petition and as an explanation of the

duty of appellee's counsel in presenting the same,

that this Honorable Court failed to observe, if this

case be in law, that the findings of the trial Court,

based upon conflicting evidence, are controlling here-

in, or, if this case be in equity, that the decision of

the trial Court upon the questions of fact should not

be interfered with unless clearly erroneous. This ar-

gument is repeated throughout appellee's petition.

Counsel for petitioner adroitly leave in doubt whether

this appeal is in law or in equity and overlook the

cases cited by us in our reply brief on appeal,

Buscli V. Jones, 181 U. S. 598 (1901)

;

Carnegie Steel Co. v. Colorado Fuel c5 Iron

Co., 165 Fed. 195;



which hold that tvlien equitable jurisdiction once at-

taches it may not he lifted by subsequent conditions

which would have necessitated the filing of the action

at laiv if the action had not been filed until after the

occurrence of such subsequent conditions. This action

was commenced in equity at a time when an equitable

proceeding was proper and, under the doctrine enun-

ciated by the cited cases, still remains in equity. As
such, this Court may properly follow the rule appli-

cable to equity cases on appeal. In

Waterloo Min. Co. v. Doe et al., 82 Fed. 45,

the judges of this Circuit pertinently stated at page

51:

''It is further urged by appellees that this

court is bound by the findings of facts of the

Circuit Court, unless they are found to be clearly

and palpably erroneous. On an appeal in an
equity suit, the whole case is before the court,

and it is bound to decide the same, so far as it is

in a condition to be decided, on its merits."

But actually, whether this case is in law or in

equity makes no practical difference in the considera-

tion of the facts on appeal. It is fairly and properly

stated by this Court at page 18 of the printed opin-

ion:

''There is practicalh^ no dispute in the evi-

dence except with relation to the conversations

between Hall and Pope on behalf of the Rich-

field Oil Company and of the officers of the Bank
who participated in the same conversation."

The whole decision of the Court, as in fact of the

trial Court, is not based upon any conflict in the evi-



dence, namely, as to whether certain things were or

were not said or done, but as to the legal effect of the

evidence: (1) whether the drafts herein involved were

under the acceptance agreement; (2) whether the so-

called instructions from Mr. Hall to keep the foreign

transactions separate and apart amounted to a w^aiver

of appellant's contractual or banker's lien, and (3)

whether appellant's conduct after the receivership

was a waiver of its contractual or banker's lien.

These all are, in substance, questions of law to be

determined from subordinate facts, namely, the facts

upon which the conclusions are based. Obviously, this

Appellate Court is at least equally as well qualified

to draw such conclusions from the facts (which are

actually not in dispute) as was the trial Court, al-

though admittedly a trial Court is normally in a

better position to determine what the facts them-

selves are. Irrespective of the binding nature of the

trial Court's findings of fact or the extent thereof,

the Appellate Courts are not hound by the conclusions

and inferences dra/wn by the lotver Courts from such

subordinate facts. This distinction is recognized by

a host of cases. In

Dunn V. Trefry (1919), 260 Fed. (C. C. A.

First Circuit) 147,

at page 148, the Court said

:

"We recognize the rule that, where there is a

conflict of testimony and the credibility of wit-

nesses is involved, the finding of the District

Court is not to be disturbed, unless it is clearly

wrong. But where, as here, these circiunstances

are not present, and the finding is a conclusion



from admitted facts, tve do not think the rule

applies." (Italics ours.)

In Munroe v. Smith, 259 Fed. (C. C. A. First Cir-

cuit) 1, the Court said, at page 2:

"The case nuist turn upon the admitted facts,

the inferences therefrom, and upon the interpre-

tation of written evidence, in considering which,

of course, the District Court had no substantial

advantage over this court. The usual rule of

giving great iveight to the conclusions 'of the trial

Judge tvho observed the appearance and the man-
ner of the tvitnesses is not, therefore, to any sub-

stantial degree, applicable in this case. As we
are not able to adopt the views of the District

Judge it is necessary to deal in considerable de-

tail with the evidence and necessary inferences

therefrom." (Italics ours.)

In The Natal (1926), 14 Fed. (2) (Circuit Court of

Appeals, Ninth Circuit) 382, Judge Gilbert held, at

page 384:

''The rule that findings of fact are entitled to

great weight in an Appellate Court is modified

where, as here, they are based wholly upon depo-

sitions. But we do not regard the finding of fact

here as depending upon conflicting evidence or

the credibility of witnesses. It rather depends

upon admitted facts and the conclusions inferable

therefrom." (Italics ours.)

In Bender v. Bender (1917 Mo. App.), 193 S. W.
294, the Court stated, at page 295

:

''The trial court had the witnesses before it

and was able to note the candor and frankness of



each in testifying, and to note the willingness or

the hesitation in answering questions; the readi-

ness to volunteer matters that might appear
favorable to one side or the other, or to attempt

to hold back that which might prove prejudicial

to the case of the party for whom they have been

called as a witness * * * For these reasons the

Appellate Courts are strongly inclined to defer

to the findings of the trial courts in such cases.

However, it is elementary that the Appellate

Courts are not hound by the conclusions reached

by the trial court, but will examine the evidence

and determine tvhether the proper result has been

reached/^ (Italics ours.)

See also:

Bosenfield v. Wall (1920 Conn.), 94 Conn. 418,

109 Atl. 409

;

Eaftery v. Reilly (1918 R. I.), 41 R. I. 47, 102

Atl. 711;

Weifjell V. Gregg (1915 Wis.), 161 Wis. 413,

154 N. W. 645;

and many others.

From the foregoing it is obvious that appellee's

apology for the length of his petition herein is based

upon a false premise, namely, that this Court was

bound in any manner by the trial Court's conclusions

and inferences from the facts. Nonetheless, we will

consider seriatim the points urged in appellee's pe-

tition for rehearing.



APPELLEE URGES:

7

I.

"L

THE HOLDING BY THIS COURT THAT PAROL
EVIDENCE WAS CONFINED TO PROOF OF
THE DELIVERY OF THE BILLS OF LADING
ALONE IS ONE OF ORIGINAL IMPRESSION
BY THIS COURT, IN CONFLICT WITH THE
CONTENTION OF BOTH PARTIES AND THE
ADMISSIONS OF APPELLANT AND WAS
NEITHER DISCUSSED NOR GIVEN CON-

SIDERATION IN THE BRIEF FILED BY
EITHER OF THE PARTIES HERETO. BY
THIS HOLDING, APPELLEE HAS BEEN DE-

PRIVED OF A JUDGMENT OBTAINED BY
HIM UPON A THEORY WITH RESPECT TO
WHICH HE HAS NOT BEEN ACCORDED
THE OPPORTUNITY OF BEING HEARD."

The most ob\dous answer to this contention is that

the Court did not so hold. In support of this argu-

ment counsel cite from page 7 of the ojoinion to the

effect that the acceptance agreement does not suffi-

ciently identify the documents of security 'Svithout

the consideration of parol evidence", and from page 2

of the opinion, which supports appellee's own conten-

tion that the references in the written agreements

''may be explained by parol evidence." Counsel then

cite from the Court's opinion:

''The transaction between the parties was evi-

denced with clarity and definiteness by the writ-

ten acceptance agreement, by the written docu-

ments accom])anying the agreement, by the writ-

ten acceptance endorsed by the Bank and by the

letters exchanged and by the credit realized to
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the Richfield Oil Company upon nine drafts pre-

sented to the Bank for acceptance and needed

no additional parol evidence to identify the sub-

ject matter of the contract and establish its

terms." (p. 8.)

Counsel choose to consider—rather unfairly to the

Court, we believe—the foregoing language ''and

needed no additional parol evidence" as limiting "the

introduction of parol evidence to the delivery of the

bills of lading." (Petition for Rehearing, pp. 4 and

5.) There is nothing in this or any other language of

the Court which so limits the parol evidence. The

quotation from page 8 of the Court's opinion is itself

the answer to appellee's contention.

The Court concludes, as indeed have counsel for

appellee both in argmnent and in their brief on ap-

peal (Appellee's Brief p. 102) that the Bank, ha^dng

possession of the shipping docmnents, was secured

for the entire value of the cargo, and terminates its

discussion of this particular phase of the transaction

with the language on page 8 of the opinion (cited

at page 4 of the Petition for Rehearing, and pre-

viously quoted herein) to the effect that no further

parol evidence was needed to identify the subject

matter of the contract. It is unfair to the Court to

take, as counsel have throughout their petition, ex-

cerpts from various portions of the opinion, and

without correlating them, finding apparent weak-

nesses which actually do not exist if these same ex-

cerpts are considered, as they should be, with the

balance of the subject matter of which they are a



part. Thus, on page 4 of appellee's petition a quo-

tation is taken first from page 1, then from page 2,

then from page 8 and then from page 1, with no

effort made to consider them in any related or logical

sequence. But these very quotations which counsel

claim show that the Court held that the parol evidence

was confined to the proof of delivery of the bills of

lading defeat counsel's purpose, notwithstanding the

disarrangement of the sequence of the Court's decla-

rations. Thus, counsel misconstrue the statement of

the Court on page 8 that no additional parol evidence

was needed to mean that further parol evidence was

not admissible, and at the same time overlook the

fact that in the very next paragraph the Court quotes

verbatim appellee's contention as to the distinction

between the short-term and long-term drafts. Here,

as elsewhere in the opinion, the Court clearly indi-

cates the full consideration which it has given to all

of the many arguments presented by appellee.

Petitioner, in citing extensively from appellee's

Brief on Appeal (Petition pp. 5-8) to establish the

obvious fact that the question before the Court is as

to what drafts were or w^ere not security for the ac-

ceptances, attempts to distort the effect of these quo-

tations into an inconsistency with the Court's holding.

But nowhere in the opinion does the Court even in-

ferentially state that the parol evidence upon which

appellee most strongly relies, that is, the evidence to

the effect that the 180-day Birla Bros, drafts were not

to be considered as a basis for acceptances, was inad-

missible. The Court does tacitly hold that such parol

evidence, although admissible, did not amount to an
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agreement by which the 180-day drafts would not be

considered as security under the acceptance agreement.

Obviously, the drafts and the proceeds thereof were

security for the acceptances and in each case, delivered

to appellant with identical accompanying letters of

transmittal (Plaintife's Exhibits 22, 23, 26, 27, 40 to

83 inclusive. Record 266, 291, 292 and 293) which

referred to the enclosing therewith of invoices, insur-

ance policy and accompanying bills of lading.

The Court considered the evidence which was pre-

sented with respect to the 180-day Birla Bros, drafts,

including the letters of transmittal (one of which is

set forth on page 6 of the Opinion), the Lyons letter

delivered by Mr. Hall (Opinion p. 6), the acceptance

agreement (Opinion p. 4) and concludes that no addi-

tional evidence w^as needed to establish that the 180-

day Birla Bros, drafts, whose proceeds constitute

the principal items of this appeal, were deposited

under the acceptance agreement. The answer to peti-

tioner's first contention is, therefore, both obvious and

decisive. The Court did not hold that "parol evidence

was confined to proof of the delivery of the bills of

lading alone" but that the evidence presented and

considered by it, including the great voliune of parol

evidence introduced by appellee, was sufficient to estab-

lish that these drafts and their proceeds were security

for acceptances.
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II.

AS HIS SECOND POINT APPELLEE URGES:

"11.

THE DETERMINATION BY THIS COURT THAT
PAROL EVIDENCE WAS INADMISSIBLE TO
ESTABLISH THAT THE SUBJECT MATTER
OF THE ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT DATED
OCTOBER 4, 1930, AND THE CONSIDERA-
TION FOR THE ACCEPTANCES RELEASED
THEREUNDER CONSISTED SOLELY OF
FOREIGN DRAFTS, AND THE CHARACTER
OF SUCH DRAFTS, IS IN CONFLICT WITH
THE THEORY UPON "WHICH THE TRIAL
WAS CONDUCTED BY BOTH PARTIES,

WITH THE ADMISSIONS OF APPELLANT,
INVOLVES A MISCONCEPTION OF THE
WRITTEN EVIDENCE UPON WHICH SUCH
DETERMINATION WAS REACHED AND
LACKS JUSTIFICATION IN THE RECORD."

Much of what has been said by us in answer to ap-

pellee's first point is equally applicable to the second

and will not therefore be repeated unnecessarily. Like

the first point the second is based upon a false premise.

The Court did not hold that parol evidence was inad-

missible to establish the subject matter of the ac-

ceptance agreement. On the contrary (as noted in the

quotation from page 7 of the opinion, set forth on

page 10 of appellee's petition) the Court recognized

the necessity of establishing the subject matter by

parol evidence but held, with respect to the 180-day

drafts and the proceeds thereof, that in view of the

agreement itself, the w^ritten docmnents accompanying

it, the written acceptance endorsed by the Bank, the

letters exchanged, and the credit realized by Richfield
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on the nine drafts presented to the Bank, no additional

parol evidence was needed. (Opinion p. 8.) In attack-

ing this conclusion petitioner urges that the acceptance

agreement was a printed form not adaptable to the

instant transaction and that the Court failed to give

due recognition to the lack of familiarity of the Rich-

field officials with accej)tances and acceptance agree-

ment. Just how such use of a form or the ignorance

of officials could affect the decision of this Court it is

difficult for us to determine.

Comisel place most emphasis uj^on the reference in

the Court's opinion to the fact that the bills of lading

identified the ''goods" mentioned in the acceptance

agreement. They urge therefore that the Court's deci-

sion ignores or overlooks the numerous references, in

appellant's and appellee's briefs, to "drafts" as se-

curity for the acceptances, and substitutes ''bills of

lading". But counsel themselves overlook the fact

that the drafts in every instance were accompanied by

shipping documents and bills of lading ; that the drafts

were required to be secured; that throughout the rec-

ord there are niunerous references to the advances

made by appellant against shipments and to bills of

lading and shipping documents; counsel forget the

emphasis which they themselves placed upon the fact

that when the 90-day drafts covering one-half of each

of the Birla Bros, shipments were paid the remaining

180-day drafts would be without security, seeking to

conclude therefrom that the 180-day drafts were not

subject to the acceptance agreement. As stated at

page 41 of appellant's Brief on Appeal:
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"The first items transmitted subsequent to the

execution of the agreement are the four Birla

Bros, drafts, and the Richfield Oil Company has

on its own stationery, by its own officer, and in its

own language, requested appellant to 'please re-

lease against this shipment $115,000 worth of ac-

ceptances'. As the shipment was represented by
the sight and 180 day drafts, the release of ac-

ceptances was against them.'*

We believe that it was upon this theory, viz., of a

release of acceptances against shipments, that the

Court reached the inescapable conclusion that the two

180-day Birla Bros, drafts were deposited under the

acceptance agreement. In fact in an attempt to avoid

this result appellee himself stated at page 102 of his

Brief on Appeal

:

"Appellant undoubtedly satisfied itself that all

of these customers were financially responsible

except Birla Bros., Ltd., as to which certain ad-

verse information was received from its cor-

respondent in Calcutta. (R. 346.) As to the latter,

however, no objection could be urged against

sight drafts drawn by it for the reason that such

sight drafts had to he paid in full before the docu-

ments representing the shipment ivould he de-

livered. (R. 401.)" (Italics appellee's.)

That the question of the security for the drafts

(i. e. the goods shipped, represented by the bills of

lading) was fully appreciated by counsel for appellee

is illustrated not only by their brief on appeal but by

testimony developed by them with great care and for

some not entirely explained purpose. Thus, counsel
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on cross-examination urged Gilstrap to admit that

after payment of the 90-day Birla Bros, drafts the

companion 180-day drafts were unsecured by any mer-

chandise (R. 420), but that:

"If the sight drafts had not been paid, we would
then have had an advance to the Richfield Oil

Company on these acceptances of $115,000, and as

security for that, the shipment to Birla Bros."

(Redirect examination R. 421.)

Comisel throughout sought to establish that the Bank

was sufficiently secured by the 90-day drafts, with the

accompanying shipping docmnents and bills of lading

and did not need the added security of the 180-day

drafts. How, then, can counsel now criticize the opin-

ion of this Court because it adopted in substance the

language of Mr. Lyons, Comptroller of Richfield Oil

Company, as used in defendant's Exliibit "A", in find-

ing that the acceptances w^ere issued against and se-

cured by the Birla Bros, shipments f

In support of their second point

counsel urge:

" (a) The printed acceptance agree-

ment was a mere form used

to subserve the convenience

of the parties and was not

the form of agreement adapt-

able to the transaction being

consummated. '

'

As previously stated, the effect, if any, of this argu-

ment is difficult to understand. Both parties executed

an agreement which, even though printed and even
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though a form, was a binclmg obligation as between

them. With reference to the parol evidence which

might be introduced this Honorable Court upheld

appellee's own contentions in the following language:

*'The appellee correctly contends that the writ-

ten agreements must be construed according to

their terms and that these terms are conclusive

as to the agreement between the parties, but that

the references therein to drafts and to the docu-

ments may be explained by parol evidence"

(page 2),

but concluded that the 180-day drafts were subject

to the acceptance agreement and therefore that the

parol evidence rule excluded the introduction of evi-

dence that they were not to be subject to the express

terms of the written (printed) agreement.

Counsel next urge:

"(b) The officials of Richfield

were ignorant of the use

of acceptances and their me-

chanics.
'

'

Just how a recognition of the ignorance of the

officials of Richfield could influence the judgment of

this Court we confess our inability to understand,

unless it be for the purpose of avoiding the damagmg

effect of the Lyons letter. (Defendant's Exhibit ^'A".)

But the undisputed evidence does not support appel-

lee's contention as to the ignorance of the officials of

Richfield. There is no evidence that the use of ac-

ceptances was strange or unknown to Lyons or any
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of the other officials of Richfield. It is true, as set

forth in the quotation from the testimony appearing

on page 18 of appellee's Petition, that Pope was sent

to San Francisco to learn the mechanics of acceptance

agreements, but to attribute to the officials of Richfield

Oil Company ignorance regarding the substantial

features of the transaction into which they were about

to enter not only unjustly tars them with the brush

of incompetency, but at best assumes something not in

the record. Actually, Hall, with possibly a human

desire to emphasize his unportance m the transactions,

stated on direct examination that it w^as he who sug-

gested the use of acceptances. (R. 341.)

It is interesting to consider what possible success

counsel for appellee may have in avoiding the eifect

of the Lyons letter on the grounds that the officials of

Richfield were ignorant as to the nature of the trans-

action. Obviously counsel must get out from imder

the damaging effect of the word "shipment" as used

in defendant's Exhibit "A". Lyons admittedly wrote

the letter but coiuisel claim that Lyons was ignorant

of the transaction. Yet, the record belies the charge

of ignorance. Appellee's main witness. Hall, testi-

fied:

''Upon returning to Los Angeles on the night

of October 6th, I reported to Mr. McKee, the

vice president of Richfield, and Mr. Lyons, the

Comptroller, the result of my visit to San Fran-

cisco, and that this credit was in effect at San
Francisco and ready for operation. I then re-

turned to San Francisco and was entrusted with

three letters and drafts arid documents covering
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a shipment of goods to Birla Bros, at Calcutta,

India. I brought the letter, Defendant's Exhibit

'A'. The change in the maturity date of ac-

ceptances from 120 days to 90 days on this letter

is in my handwriting. I believe this change was
made in the Wells Fargo Bank when I delivered

the documents there." (R. 362.)

Not alone did Hall report to Lyons as to his visit

to San Francisco and the arrangements for the credit,

but he brought with him defendant's Exhibit '^A."

and changed the maturity date of the acceptances, as

stated therein, from 120 to 90 days. He initialed the

change but made no comment then or at any tune as

to the request in the letter "will you please release

against this sMpmeut $115,000 worth of acceptances

* * *." In fact, in Hall's own language quoted above

he stated that he returned with the letters, drafts and

documents

"covering a shipment of goods to Birla Bros."

and shortly thereafter testified wdth respect to the

same transaction:

"There would be four drafts, two on each ship-

ment presented at that time under the acceptance

agreement." (R. 362.)

Further in connection with this phase of the argu-

ment w^e respectfully call the Court's attention to

pages 36 to 41 of our Brief on Appeal.
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Petitioner next argues:

"(c) Both parties recognized and

conceded that drafts, and

drafts alone, constituted such

security.
'

'

It is true that throughout the briefs coimsel for

both appellant and appellee presented to this Honor-

able Court the issue as to whether the drafts or the

proceeds thereof were subject either to appellant's

contractual lien under the acceptance agreement or to

its banker's lien. At the time that the action w^as

filed appellee's Ancillary Bill of Complaint referred

to the drafts subject of this litigation and sought to

compel the defendant bank to release such of the

drafts as had not yet been collected and the proceeds

of others thereof which had been collected. Subse-

quently appellee's Amended Ancillary Bill of Com-

plaint sought recovery of the proceeds, all of the drafts

having been collected. While the drafts were in the

possession of the Bank or its correspondents they

and the merchandise securing them were either se-

curity to the Bank pursuant to the terms of the ac-

ceptance agreements or subject to its banker's lien

and right of set-off. Once the drafts were collected

the proceeds thereof occupied the same legal position.

Therefore, in pleadings, briefs and arguments the

whole question before the Court was, first as to the

drafts, and thereafter as to the proceeds bemg subject

to the Bank's claim. That this was fully and prop-

erly recognized by the Court is evidenced by its state-

ment at page 12 of the printed opinion:
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''We conclude that under the written acceptance

agreements the Bank had a lien equivalent to a

banker's lien upon the foreign bills of exchange

covering the cargo of the 'Silver Ray' and 'Silver

Hazel' and that under the law of California the

Bank had a banker's lien upon the other two bills

of exchange involved herein."

The Court considers and the exhibits and evidence

sustain, but counsel for appellee carefully overlook,

that had an}^ of the drafts supported by shipping docu-

ments not been collected the Bank would have been

compelled to realize on shipments, which were evi-

denced by shipping documents, particularly the bills

of lading. The shipments constituted "goods" and

"merchandise" and the bills of lading evidenced the

goods and merchandise. None of the drafts, at the

time of transmittal, were "clean paper" as referred

to in the testimony of Mr. Gilstrap, heretofore quoted,

in response to the hypothetical question as to what

w^ould have

"happened had the 90 day drafts been paid and
the 180 day drafts been unpaid." (R. 420.)

Counsel for appellee are in error in their state-

ments, pages 21 to 28 of their Petition, that the par-

ties were only considering drafts in determining the

security for the acceptances. This error is obvious

from a consideration of the numerous places in the

record where shipments, shipping dociunents and bills

of lading are referred to. Plaintiff's Exhibits 22, 23,

26, 27, 28 and 40 to 83 (R. 266, 268, 274, 275, 276, 277,

292 and 293) are the letters of transmittal which went
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forward from Richfield to the Bank. These letters

were in identical form to the letter of transmittal

which appears on page 6 of the opinion. In every

instance the heading of the letter shows the draft

nmnbers, the drawers thereof and the ship. The body

of each letter begins:

"We are enclosing the following emmierated

documents covering shipment going forward

Thereafter there is a description of the drafts, in-

voices, insurance policies and bills of Jading. The

drafts themselves (Plaintiff's Exhibits 22 and 23, R.

267 and 270) provide for release of "documents

against acceptance", and contain the invoice number

and the name of the ship. The acceptance register,

Plaintiff's Exhibit 122, should likewise be considered

(R. 394, et seq., 412, 413), in that it refers to the

drafts, ships, merchandise and shipping documents.

The letters of transmittal which went forward from

appellant to its foreign correspondents (Defendant's

Exhibit "F", R. 377 to 381, and Exhibit "G", R. 381)

refer specifically to the shipping documents and on

the copies retained by the Bank as its permanent rec-

ords describe the Birla Bros', shipments as "security

for acceptances." The Lyons letter. Defendant's Ex-

hibit "A", is a final link in the chain of dociunentary

evidence that the security for the acceptances was

shipments evidenced by drafts and shipping docu-

ments.

The record is replete with statements, both by plain-

tiff's witnesses and defendant's, wherein these ship-
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ments are referred to interchangeably with drafts.

See Pope's testimony with respect to defendant's

Exhibit ''A" (R. 316 and 317) ; Hall's testunony, page

362 and previously herein referred to, and Gilstrap's

testimony

:

''Either Mr. Hall or Mr. Pope then stated that

they were preparing a shipment to Birla Bros. I

believe that in some previous conversation Mr.

Hall had outlined to me in a general way the busi-

ness that he did with Birla Bros. They stated

that they wanted to raise as much money as pos-

sible against this particular shipment^ and asked

how^ much we would advance against the ship-

ment." (R. 374 and elsewhere on that page and
on page 376.)

In the light of the foregoing it is impossible to give

w^eight to petitioner's contention that the drafts alone

constituted the security for the acceptances or to the

complaint that appellee did not have a full oppor-

tunity, of which he availed himself with diligence and

ability, to urge to the Court that the drafts should be

separated, in legal consideration, from the shipping

documents and shipments supporting them.

Simply stated, the logical sequence is this: the ac-

ceptances were issued on the security of ''merchan-

dise" and "goods", represented by bills of lading;

the drafts were the evidence of the indebtedness owing

from Richfield 's foreign customers; when the mer-

chandise and bills of lading were released, the drafts

remained as security under the acceptance agreement.

When the drafts were collected the proceeds were

substituted.
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Appellee further urges:

"(d) Bills of lading delivered to

appellant merely as agent of

appellee for delivery to con-

signee upon acceptance of

drafts.
'

'

The answer to this contention is embodied in the

foregoing consideration of subdivision (c) of Part II

of appellee's Petition.

The fallacy in counsel's argument is in attempting

to separate the drafts and the shipping documents.

For example, counsel state and italicize for emphasis

"None of the bills of lading were assigned by

the Richfield Company to the Bank." (Petition

page 29.)

Yet counsel will not deny that the bills of lading ac-

companied the drafts and occupied the same status.

Counsel will not deny, and do not, that certain of the

drafts were security for acceptances. Indeed, at page

28 of the Petition, it is stated:

"While appellee contended that drafts were to

constitute the security for the acceptances, his

position was that under the agreement reached by
the parties the short term drafts alone should

constitute such security, the long term drafts

being deposited merely for collection.
'

'

Yet, on the evidence introduced by appellee the me-

chanics of all transactions were the same. In every

case the same form of letters of transmittal went for-

ward to the Bank, accompanied by invoices and ship-
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ping documents. (Plaintiff's Exhibits 22, 23, 26, 27,

28, 40 to 83, supra; R. 266, 268, 274, 275, 276, 277, 292

and 293.)

Counsel's final argument under

point II of their Petition is

that

"(e) The so-called Lyons

'

letter

(Defs Ex. A) is lacking- in

evidentiary- or controlling

value.
I

)

It has been incomprehensible to defendant and ap-

pellant throughout the trial, appeal and petition for

rehearing in this case, that counsel for petitioner seek

on the one hand to interpret the contract between

Richfield and the Bank by constant reference to state-

ments contained in correspondence emanating from

the Bank, and on the other hand to deny evidentiary

value or any effect to the all-important letter written

at the time Avhen the transaction was first consum-

mated by the Comptroller of Richfield Oil Company,

the so-called Lyons letter, defendant's Exhibit ''A".

As this Honorable Court has stated (Opinion p. 7)

the proposed acceptance agreement still remained in

the nature of an offer from the Bank to Richfield

until the acceptance thereof on October 8, 1930, by the

delivery of the transmittal letters dated October 7th,

the drafts and shipping docmnents therein described,

the Lyons letter of October 7th requesting the issuance

of $115,000.00 worth of acceptances against the ship-

ments, and the acceptance by the Bank thereafter of

the nine drafts for $115,000.00. Comisel's efforts to
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waive aside the effect of the Lyons letter and at the

same time to hold the Bank accoimtable for every

word appearing in any of its correspondence may be

commendable in the interests of their client, but

hardly proper as an attack upon this Court's decision.

How comisel can hold the Lyons letter as ''entirely

umiecessary" is difficult to understand, in view^ of the

fact that it was the letter which amiounced the con-

sent by Richfield to the acceptance agreement and the

request for the acceptance by the Bank of the first

$115,000.00 of drafts to be issued theremider.

This Court is told in the Petition for Rehearing

that the transaction had been negotiated exclusively

])y Hall and Pope and that Lyons at no time par-

ticipated therein and was ignorant of the transaction

and the nature thereof. We have herein previously

stated (supported by reference to the record) that

Lyons, the Comptroller and financial official of the

Company, was advised by Hall upon his return from

San Francisco, of the nature of the transaction. We
have likewise hereinbefore noted that Hall himself,

the so-called negotiator of the transaction, delivered

the Lyons letter, knew its contents and even Avent so

far as to change in his handwriting the reference

therein of 120, to 90 days, initialing the change. If

Lyons w^as ignorant of the transaction we must as-

sume that it was the type of ignorance which now

makes it ''folly to be wise".

Further in excuse of the language of the letter we

are told that Richfield was in dire need of funds and

Lyons w^as interested in getting the money quickly;
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that if Hall had not come to San Francisco the letter

would never have been sent; that subsequent letters

written by Lyons indicated his truer understanding'

of the agreement; that the transaction was consum-

mated at the time the letter was received and needed

no further communications between the parties. (Yet

immediately thereafter comisel argue that parol evi-

dence was admissible at all times to identify the sub-

ject matter of the contract.)

Without burdening the Court with too minute a

reply to these argmnents, which more or less defeat

themselves in their statement, it should be noted that

the record is silent as to Richfield 's need of fmids or

that the Bank knew of Richfield 's having any need of

funds, or that for any reason the Lyons letter should

not be interpreted as it was written, namely, as the

final act of acceptance of the proposed contract for

the financing of Richfield 's foreign transactions, writ-

ten by the financial official of the Company, delivered

and corrected by Hall, the head of the Foreign Depart-

ment and the negotiator of the transaction; that the

letter requested the acceptance of the first drafts

under the new agreement, $115,000.00 against two

Birla Bros, shipments, the drafts and shipping docu-

ments with reference thereto being delivered con-

temporaneously. To avoid the reference to "ship-

ment" in this letter counsel state at page 33 of their

Petition, that the evidence of all witnesses shows that

the agreement relates to drafts and nothing else. We
have previously referred to the Record, exhibits and

testimony to establish the fact that the word "ship-
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ment" was used throughout and that as stated by this

Court ill its opinion:

"the foreign bills of exchange * * * were m-
tended as a means of acquiring possession of the

proceeds deriA-ed from the sale of the goods and

substituting those proceeds for the goods them-

selves." (pp. 8 and 9.)

In closing this phase of our answer we respectfully

desire to mention that the effect of the Lyons letter

was presented at considerable length in our brief on

appeal, pages 36 to 42, and answered to the fullest

extent possible mider the circumstances by very able

comisel in appellee's brief, pages 91 to 97.

In concluding point II petitioner states that if by

parol evidence it could be proved that the bills of

lading constituted security under the acceptance agree-

ment, it is inconceivable why by the same character of

evidence it could not be proved that the drafts, or some

of them, were to constitute such security in lieu of

the bills of lading. This statement, we sincerely be-

lieve, is typical of the attempt by petitioner to confuse

the issue before this Court by over-emphasizing the

distinction between drafts and bills of lading. The

drafts were in all instances accompanied by shipping

documents and bills of lading which were to be re-

leased only against payment of the sight drafts and

acceptance of the time drafts. The drafts were

the means of acquiring possession of the proceeds de-

rived from the sale of the goods which during the
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shipment were represented by the bills of lading. To
state, as counsel do, that appellee has not been given a

full opportunity to show the subject matter of the con-

tract is mifair to this Court in view specifically of its

statement at page 2 of the opinion that

:

''The appellee correctly contends that the writ-

ten agreements must be construed according to

their terms and that these terms are conclusive as

to the agreement between the parties, hid that the

references therein to drafts and other documents
may he explained by parol evidence/' (Italics

ours.)

APPELLEE'S DILEMMA.

These two first points urged by appellee in his Peti-

tion for Rehearing and which have, in the foregoing

pages, been answered by us in detail, fail of their pur-

pose of establishing appellee's right to a rehearing for

an even sunpler and more obvious reason than any of

those heretofore advanced by us. If this Court were

to grant a rehearing and to permit appellee to argue

at length on these first two points, the utmost which

appellee could accomplish would be to persuade this

Court that it w^as in error in holding that the proceeds

of the two Birla Bros. 180-day drafts were pledged as

security not alone for the indebtedness of the ac-

ceptances but for

"any other indebtedness due from Richfield Oil

Company to the Bank, past, present and future"

(Opinion p. 9.)

But if appellee is successful in persuading the Court

that it was in error in its holding as to the 180-day
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drafts, the sole result accomplished would be to place

the proceeds of these drafts in exactly the same cate-

gory as the proceeds of the Ricardo Velasquez draft

in the amount of $1245.11 and the third Birla Bros,

draft in the amount of $23,352.08. We stated repeat-

edly, both before the trial Court and on appeal, that

defendant and appellant had been throughout con-

fronted with a dilemma:
'

' The drafts, the proceeds of which are the sub-

ject of this litigation, were either deposited mider

the acceptance agreement or they were not. If

mider the agreement, its language to the effect

that they are securit}^ not alone for the accep-

tances issued thereunder, but likewise for 'any

other liabilities from us (Richfield) to you
(bank), w^hether then existing or thereafter con-

tracted,' is controlling. The evidence is over-

whehning that the drafts were deposited under the

agreement." (Appellant's Brief pp. 166, 167.)
* * 4t * * * *

''But if, despite all this, it is believed that the

drafts here in question were not deposited under

the acceptance agreement, none the less, they are

all subject to appellant's banker's lien or right of

set-off." (Appellant's Brief p. 169.)

This Honorable Court has held that the proceeds of

the two 180-day Birla Bros, drafts were subject to the

acceptance agreement, but that the proceeds of the

other two drafts in litigation were not under the ac-

ceptance agreement. As stated by the Court at page 9

of its opinion

:

"Moreover, we have examined the oral evidence

concerning the arrangement between the parties

and find nothing threin justifying the conclusion
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that the bank intended to waive its banker's lien

upon the foreign bills of exchange deposited with

it by the Richfield Oil Company, as we will now
point out in comiection with the two other bills of

exchange involved in this appeal."

After considering- these two other bills of exchange

and the evidence with respect to them and related

drafts, the Court states at page 12 of the decision

:

"We conclude that mider the written accej)tance

agreements the bank had a lien equivalent to

banker's lien upon the foreign bills of exchange

covering the cargo of the * Silver Ray' and 'Silver

Plazel' and that under the law of California the

bank had a banker's lien upon the other two bills

of exchange involved herein."

It is pertinent to ask therefore: What will it avail

appellee if this Court agrees, in their entirety, with

the argmnents propounded in appellee's points I and

II, grants a rehearing and even modifies its opinion to

hold that the proceeds of these two 180-day drafts

were not subject to the acceptance agreement? Ap-

pellee will forthwith be impaled upon the other horn

of the dilemma, that the 180-day drafts and their

proceeds must be considered in the same manner as

the draft of Ricardo Velasquez and the third draft of

Birla Bros., and therefore subject to a banker's lien.

What does this avail appellee ? Only that appellant is

entitled to keep the proceeds on the theory of banker's

lien as recognized by the Court, instead of on the

theory of a contractual lien. How, therefore, can a

further hearing benefit appellee if the sole possible

result of such a hearing would be to permit him to
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establish that while he is entitled to recover the draft

proceeds on one theory nonetheless the Bank is en-

titled to retain them on another?

Of course, it is needless to state that we do not for

a moment admit that there was an}^ error in the

Court's decision that the 180-day drafts were subject

to the acceptance agreement. We urged, but this Court

did not agree, that all of the drafts, including the

Ricardo Velasquez draft and the third Birla Bros,

draft, were subject to the acceptance agreement. In

view of the evidence surromiding the delivery of the

180-day drafts, including particularly the Lyons' let-

ter, a different consideration of these particular drafts,

as determined by this Court, is entirely tenable.

In the foregoing argument we stated advisedly that

it would avail appellee nothing to have a rehearing

granted because the utmost he could hope for Avould

be a recession by the Court from its position that the

180-day drafts were subject to the acceptance agree-

ment, with the consequent necessary determination by

the Court that they were subject instead to appellant's

banker's lien. We made this statement advisedl}^ be-

cause, in all sincerity, Ave believe that the succeeding

two points urged by appellee, namely, (1) that the

foreign collections should be deemed separate and

apart from other business of Richfield and not subject

to banker's lien, and (2) that the appellant subse-

quently waived its banker's lien, present no argimients

which were not advanced in appellee's brief on appeal

and on oral argiunent and fully considered by the

Court in its decision. However, in substantiating this

statement we will briefly consider these last two points.
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III.

AS HIS THIRD POINT APPELLEE ARGUES:

"UL

IT IS DEFINITELY PROVED THAT ALL FOR-

EIGN COLLECTIONS SHOULD BE DEEMED
TO BE SEPARATE AND APART FROM
OTHER BUSINESS OF RICHFIELD WITH
AND ITS FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS TO
APPELLANT BANK."

Counsel attack, particularly, the language of the

Court at pages 11 and 12 of the Opinion and quote

the same at length. However, in their criticism of

the Court's conclusion that the separation of the ac-

counts did not operate as a waiver of banker's lien,

counsel neglect to comment upon the cases cited in

the opinion, particularly:

American Surety Company v. Bank of Italy

(1923), 63Cal. App. 149,

which, as set forth in our Brief on Appeal (pp.

91 to 95), presents such a strong analogy to this phase

of the instant matter.

We submit that this Honorable Court has not, as

counsel suggest, based its decision on a misconception

of the evidence with respect to the so-called Hall-

Pope agreement or a misunderstanding of appellee's

position as to the application of this agreement to the

two types of drafts. The Court has sustained in this

connection the position of appellant, argued in our

Brief on Appeal from pages 74 to 110, that to the ex-

tent that drafts were not deposited under the ac-

ceptance agreement they were subject to defendant's
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banker's lien and right of set-off, even though the

conclusion of the trial Court that Hall directed the

Bank to keep the transactions of the Foreign De-

partment separate and apart from the other transac-

tions of Richfield and the Bank, be accepted as true.

It should be noted that in accepting this conclu-

sion of the trial Court this Appellate Court has given

the fullest recognition required by the authorities

cited at the beginning of this Answer to the findings

of the trial Court. In other words, it is not incmnbent

upon the appeal tribunal to draw the same inferences

and conclusions of law from the findings of fact as

the trial Court did, but only to give recognition to its

factual conclusions upon conflicts in testimony.

In this phase of counsel's attack

upon the court's opinion, they

urge :

"(a) Appellee does not claim that

any distinction was made be-

tween the two types of drafts

in the so-called Hall-Pope

agreement.
'

'

When appellee argues that the so-called agreement

to "keep separate and apart" applied to all foreign

collections we submit that he is taking an illogical

position which must necessarily be fatal to him. The

Court has recognized this, particularly at pages 8 and

9 of the opinion, wherein it is emphasized that the

agreement to keep separate and apart, assmning that

it did exist, was an oral agreement and was in direct

conflict with the express language of the written ac-
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ceptance agreement. As appellee must and does

admit, at least some drafts were under the acceptance

agreement and subject to its terms. If the subject

matter of the oral agreement was, as counsel contend,

applicable to all drafts, it is in fact in conflict with

the written terms of the acceptance agreement; evi-

dence of such oral agreement is therefore, on ap-

pellee's own theory, inadmissible under the parol evi-

dence rule.

Throughout the trial we objected to the introduc-

tion of any evidence as to the purported agreement

negotiated by Hall to keep the Foreign Department

transactions separate and apart. (R. 264.)

Appellee insists that the so-called Hall-Pope agree-

ment

''related to and embraced all of Richfield 's

foreign business with appellant bank."

Appellee is however forced to admit that the Bank
had a right to apply against any other indebtedness

owing to it from Richfield the proceeds of any drafts

deposited under the acceptance agreement, notwith-

standing the so-called Hall-Pope agreement. Where,

however, the acceptance agreement did not apply, on

appellee's theory, the Hall-Pope agreement came into

effect. The extent to which able coimsel must go to

bring these two agreements into some form of con-

sistency is extremely interesting. Anal5^zed it is this

:

that there was an agreement between the Bank and

Richfield for all of the Foreign Department transac-

tions providing that they were to be kept separate and

apart from other transactions, but that within this
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larger circle of all transactions there ^Yas, at the same

time and negotiated by the same parties, another

agreement whereby certain of the Foreign Depart-

ment transactions were, by ^drtue of the operation of

the acceptance agreement, expressly subjected to any

other indebtedness of Richfield to the Bank. That

such conflicting transactions could not have been en-

tered into by reasonably thinking business persons

is obvious. Taking a position, as the Court did, most

liberal to appellee, the conclusion is ine^dtable: that

if the Hall-Pope agreement is applied to all of the

drafts it is in conflict with the written acceptance

agreement, but if it applies only to those drafts

which were not deposited under the acceptance agree-

ment its legal effect may then be properly considered,

and is that the transactions of the departments were

to be kept separate without however any express or

unplied waiver of banker's lien.

It should be noted in passing that counsel contend

that the acceptance form of transaction was entered

into upon the initiative of the Bank (appellee ap-

parently seeking thereby to explain the conflict be-

tween the written and oral agreements). As a matter

of fact. Hall himself claimed to have suggested this

form of transaction. He stated on direct examination

''Then I brought up the subject of the use of

acceptances." (R. 341.)

and on cross-examination

''At this conversation I believe I brought up
the question of acceptances, and told Mr. Gil-

strap I thought it was the best way of handling

the Richfield Oil Company's business." (R. 354.)
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Appellee next urges that

"(b) The agreement between Hall

and appellant officials that all

drafts and their proceeds

should be deemed to be sep-

arate and apart from other

business of Richfield with and

its financial obligations to ap-

pellant constituted such drafts

and proceeds a special fund

and a deposit against which no

banker's lien or right of set-

off existed."

In this phase of his argument appellee restates a

very substantial part of his Brief on Appeal, (pp. 13

to 25 and 139 to 156.) Inasmuch as appellant in its

Brief went into this matter at considerable length

(pp. 74 to 110) we hesitate to again burden the

Court with further comment. We desire to empha-

size, however, that our argument accepts the truth of

Hall's statement and gives full recognition to the trial

Court's finding of fact, that he urged upon the bank

officials that the transactions of the Foreign Depart-

ment were to be kept separate from the other trans-

actions of Richfield. In other words, he, having ap-

parently an interest, as this Court recognized, in

commissions, desired that for reasons of convenience

or otherwise the accounts be kept separate. This

does not, as we emphasized in our Brief, amount to

an agreement waiving a lien, either as a matter of

fact or as a matter of law. The very knowledge of

Hall and the other officials of Richfield, and which

counsel emphasize at page 44 of their Petition, as to
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the existence of a banker's lien and right of set-off,

defeats any attempt to imply such agreement from

general language to keep a transaction separate and

apart. If a lien or right of set-off was to be waived

the waiver should have been in express terms. This

is a matter of common sense. It is more than that

—

it is required by the law as noted in the cases cited

by this Court and in those set forth on pages 91 et

seq. of our Brief on Appeal. We desire to further

emphasize in passing that appellee assumes in his

Petition some facts which are not in evidence, namely,

as to the financial condition of Richfield and its ac-

tion in view of that condition. The only evidence as

to Richfield 's financial wants is a single statement by

Hall that he knew at the time that the Company was

pressed for ready cash. (R. 341.) On the other hand,

the Bank had, in Jul}^ of the same year, renewed the

Richfield loan and had increased it by $125,000.00.

The evidence indicates that the Bank thought Rich-

field's financial condition satisfactory. If, however, as

counsel contend, Richfield was known by its officials to

be tottering on the brink of economic disaster, and the

foreign collections were part of its "life blood", and

if by the same token Hall and the other officials, know-

ing of the bank's right of lien and set-off, and fearing

it, w^anted some assurance that the Bank would take

no action to enforce such lien or right of set-off,

why was not the so-called agreement express upon

that point? Instead only, as Mr. Hall testified, that

"any transactions were to be considered separate

from other transactions of the Richfield * * *"

(R. 340.)

The answer is quite obvious

:
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Neither Mr. Hall nor the officials of Richfield in-

tended an agreement to waive any of the bank's

rights of lien but desired the transactions kept sepa-

rate. We may assmne grave doubts as to whether this

or any other bank, dealing in the future, w^ould have

waived its banker's lien or right of set-off, espe-

cially if it knew^, as appellee suggests, of its debtor's

precarious financial status. Furthermore, we may
well doubt whether any practical benefits to Rich-

field would have resulted from a waiver of lien if we
bear in mind that even without a lien or right of

set-off the Bank might have conmienced an action on

the general indebtedness when the same became due

and attached or garnisheed the foreign collections.

In concluding this argument w^e desire again to

emphasize that this Honorable Court has given full

and complete recognition to the findings of fact of

the trial Court, ignoring only, as is proper, its erro-

neous inferences and conclusions unjustified in law.
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IV.

AS HIS FINAL CONTENTION APPELLEE
URGES:

"IV.

APPELLANT BANK WAIVED ITS BANKER'S
LIEN AND RIGHT OF SET-OFF AS
AGAINST ALL COLLECTIONS OF RICH-

FIELD EXCEPTING THOSE SPECIFICALLY
DEPOSITED UNDER THE ACCEPTANCE
AGREEMENTS."

As reluctant as we were to unduly burden this

Court with an over-lengthy reply to the other points

urged in the Petition for Rehearing, still more re-

luctant are w^e to again answer this final argument

at unnecessary length.

The Court in its opinion considered fairly and fully

all of the points urged by appellee on the appeal.

Pages 12 to 17 consider particularly the question as

to the waiver by appellant, by word or conduct, of

its right to apply the proceeds of the drafts herein

in question either under its contractual or banker's

lien. This Court considered the Receiver's request

for the restoration of the cash balances, the bank's

response and its action thereon; it considered the

language of the telegram of the Bank wherein it

reserved its right of lien against the collections which

were security for acceptances and its right to bank-

er's lien. It places the only possible reasonable in-

terpretation upon the exchange of letters and tele-

grams: that the Bank was willing to restore to the

Receiver the full cash balance and did restore ini-

tially in excess of $40,000.00. The Court noted, as
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we suggested in extenso in our Brief on Appeal, that

the Receiver was requesting a restoration of tile

"cash balances", and that the appellant Bank com-

plied with this request but as a matter of precaution

informed the Receiver in its telegraphic response that

it was reserving its rights against the foreign col-

lections. As the Court properly states, if we take the

Receiver's telegram by its four corners, it obviously

refers to the restoration of the checking account in

the Bank so that the Receiver would stand in the

shoes of the Richfield Oil Company. The reply is,

"We are willing to restore balance in checking ac-

count". This was an acceptance of the Receiver's

proposal subject to similar action by other banks.

As to the reserved rights, the Court concluded that

with respect to the 180-day drafts, the Bank ex-

pressly reserved its rights to them (being under the

acceptance agreement) irrespective of whether it was

obligated by law so to do. With respect to the pro-

ceeds of the remaining drafts subject of this litiga-

tion, the Bank reserved in its telegram, if construed

with "technical nicety", its "banker's lien on these

collections" or, if the telegram is construed from a

"broader view", it did not include them within the

checking account which it had been requested to

restore.

The Court thereafter considered the effect of the

Bank's conduct in subsequently returning to the Re-

ceiver additional sums and in filing its claim in the

receivership proceedings. From all of this it is prop-

erly concluded that there was neither in law or in

fact a waiver by the Bank nor was there any estoppel
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upon it to assert thereafter its proper legal rights.

The opinion itself presents the best and most de-

cisive answer to appellee's contentions.

We could be more detailed in our reply to each

of the statements made by counsel at pages 51 to

65 of the Petition, but in view of the language of

the opinion see no purpose in so doing. However,

we again call to the attention of this Court that

counsel's assumption that the appeal Court is bound

by the findings of the lower Court as to the effect

of the telegraphic exchange or conduct of the bank,

is in conflict with the cases cited in the earlier part of

this answer.

We likewise feel obliged to comment upon appel-

lee's citation from the opinion of the Court at page

17 as to the subsequent conduct of the other banks.

In criticising the Court's conclusion counsel em-

phasize the statement that

"Their conduct was not brought home to the

appellant and is of no significance whatever

and completely ignore the Court's subsequent lan-

guage :

u* * * g^,gj^ if bi-ought to the attention of the

bank after the transaction was closed would be

without significance. * * *"

In other words, just as counsel could obtain small

comfort from a reconsideration by this Court of its

determination that the 180-day Birla Bros, drafts

wxre subject to the acceptance agreement because even

if they were not they were still subject to appellant's
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banker's lien and rioht of set-oif, so here counsel could

obtain equally little comfort fi'oni a i-econsideration

by this C'ourt as to whether the subsequent conduct

of the other banks was brought home to the appel-

lant because, even if brought home, it would be with-

out significance.

But a reconsideration is, we submit, not necessary.

While it would be presunqjtuous upon our part to

remark that the (^ourt's opinion is sound and well

reasoned, we cannot refrain from stating in con-

cluding this brief, that on few occasions do counsel

on both sides experience the satisfaction of having

an appeal Court, in its decision, review the volumi-

nous evidence and the extensive arguments with such

care and thoroughness as in the instant matter.

We submit, therefore, that the petition for a re-

hearing should be denied.

Dated, San Francisco,

August 15, 1934.

Respectfully submitted,

Sidney M. Ehrman^

LloydW . Dinkelspiel,

Lawrence C. Baker,

Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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MESSRS. BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
Attorneys for Appellant,
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MESSRS. ANTHONY SAVAGE and

HA^LLET P. DODD,
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United States District Court, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division.

No. 20730

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
a foreign corporation.

Defendant.

COMPLAINT.

The plaintiff, the United States of America, re-

spectfully shows to this Honorable Court as follows

:

I.

That the plaintiff, the United States of America,

is a corporation sovereign.

•Page numbering appearing at the foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Becord.



2 Canadian Pacific By. Co.

II.

That the defendant is a foreign corporation en-

gaged in the railway and steamship business, oper-

ating in particular a fleet of passenger boats between

Canadian ports and American ports in the Puget

Sound area for several years last past, including

all times mentioned in other paragraphs of this

complaint, including among others the following

steamships, to-wit: The Princess Louise, Princess

Charlotte, Princess Marguerite, Princess Kathleen,

Princess Patricia, and the Nootka.

III.

That there was enacted by the 71st Congress of

the United States an Act providing for extra com-

pensation for overtime service performed by Immi-

grant Inspectors and other employees of the Immi-

gration Service in particular as fol- [2] lows,

to-wit

:

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of

Representatives of the United States of

America in Congress assembled. That the Sec-

retary of Labor shall fix a reasonable rate of

extra compensation for overtime services of in-

spectors and employees of the Immigration Ser-

vice who may be required to remain on duty

between the hours of five o'clock postmeridian

and eight o'clock antemeridian, or on Sundays

or holidays, to perform duties in connection

with the examination and landing of passengers

and crews of steamships, trains, airplanes, or
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other vehicles, arriving in the United States

from a foreign port by water, land, or air, such

rates to be fixed on a basis of one-half day's ad-

ditional pay for each two hours or fraction

thereof of at least one hour that the overtime

extends beyond five o'clock postmeridian (but

not to exceed two and one-half days' pay for

the full period from five o'clock postmeridian

to eight o'clock antemeridian) and two addi-

tional days' pay for Sunday and holiday duty;

in those ports where the customary working

hours are other than those heretofore mention-

ed, the Secretary of Labor is vested with au-

thority to regulate the hours of immigration

employees so as to agree with the prevailing

w^orking hours in said ports, but nothing con-

tained in this section shall be construed in any

manner to affect or alter the length of a work-

ing day for immigration employees or the over-

time pay herein fixed.

Sec. 2. The said extra compensation shall be

paid by the master, owner, agent, or consignee

of such vessel or other conveyance arriving in

the United States from a foreign port to the

Secretary of Labor, who shall pay the same to

the several immigration officers and employees

entitled thereto as provided in this Act. Such

extra compensation shall be paid if such officers

or employees have been ordered to report for

duty and have so reported, whether the actual
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inspection or examination of passengers or crew

takes place or not; Provided, That this section

shall not apply to the inspection at designated

ports of entry of passengers arriving by inter-

national ferries, bridges, or tunnels, or by air-

craft, railroad trains, or vessels on the Great

Lakes and connecting waterways, when oper-

ating on regular schedules.

Approved, March 2, 1931.

ly.

That pursuant to said authority vested in law, the

Immigration Service in the Western District of

Washington and British Columbia earned for over-

time service in connec- [3] tion with the operation

of defendant's steamers from May 1, 1931, to Sep-

tember 30, 1932, inclusive, a total balance of Four

Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-one and 13/100

($4331.13) Dollars, as set forth in Exhibit "A"
which is attaclied hereto and by reference made a

part hereof.

V.

That damage has been made upon this defendant

for the bills as rendered from time to time and in

the various totals as they have accumulated from

time to time, and at all times defendant has refused

to settle and pay said account or any part thereof.

WHEREFOEE, plaintiff prays for judgment in

the amount of Four Thousand Three Hundred

Thirty-one and 13/100 ($4331.13) Dollars, together
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with costs and for siicli other and further relief as

to the Court may seem proper in the premises.

WILLIAM D. MITCHELL
Attorney General of the United States

By ANTHONY SAVAGE
United States Attorney

HAMLET P. DODD
Assistant United States Attorney [4]

# 20730 1 Admitted on

Ptffs.
J Avritten stipulation.

EXHIBIT ^'A"

STATEMENT OF OVERTIME SERVICES RENDERED TO THE
CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY

in the examination of passengers and crews of its steamers listed below.

Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS LOUISE
28-016 at Seattle, Washington

2-10-32

5-25-31 8p lOp $ 7.50 PR$ 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

TOTAL $ 3.75

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-022 at Seattle, Wash.,

2-10-32

5-13-31 8p lOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75

5-17-31 8p lOp 7.50 3.753.75 Walter P. Harris

TOTAL $ 7.50



Canadian Pacific Ry. Co,

Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount
Service From To per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No.

28-023

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.,

2-10-32

5- 3-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 $13.88 P. G. Hall

5-10-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88 Emerson E. David

5-17-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88 S. G. Nelson

5-17-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88 Ira L. Hazleton

5-24-31 8p lOp 6.94 6.94 S. G. Nelson

TOTAL $62.46

BiU No.

28-024

2-10-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.,

5-30-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 $13.88

5-30-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00

5-24-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

5-31-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

TOTAL $56.64

Emerson E. David

Walter P. Harris

P. G. Hall

Emerson E. David

Bill No.

28-038

2-24-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
At Seattle, Wash.

6- 7-31 7.15a 9.15a

6-10-31 8.30p lO.OOp

6-28-31 7.15a 9.15a

6-29-31 8.00p 9.30p

$ 6.39 $12.78 Leonard I. Cornell

7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

6.94 PR 6.94 Howard E. Norwood

7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

TOTAL $27.22

I
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
par Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No.

28-039

2-23-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
At Seattle, Wash.,

6- 7-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 PR$ 7.50

6-14-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 6.94

6-14-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 9.72

6-21-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.89 PR 5.93

6-21-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

6-28-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 5.00

TOTAL $42.59

John P. Boyd Sr.

Purley G. Hall

Bela E. Gowen

Thomas W. Lynch

Arba D. H. Jackson

Louis M. Persons

[6]

Bill No.

28-062

2-25-32

7-23-31

NOOTKA
at Seattle, Wash.

Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

7.30p 8.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Charles W. Durkee J.

TOTAL $ 3.75

Bill No.

28-063

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

2-25-32

7- 4-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 8.33 PR$ 8.33

7- 4-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

7- 5-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

7- 5-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 6.48

7-12-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 6.94

7-12-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

7-19-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 6.94

7-26-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

7-26-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 3.47

James P. Sanderson

Herman F. Schwandt

John P. Boyd Jr.

Joseph E. Spengler

Emerson E. David

Charles W. Durkee Jr.

Ira L. Hazleton

Roy C. Matterson

Si^vald G. Nelson

TOTAL $62.16



8 Canadian Pacific Ry. Co.

Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No.

28-063A

2-25-32

7- 4-31

PRINCESS PATRICIA
at Seattle, Wash.

Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

7.00a 8.00a $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Herman F. Seliwandt

7- 4-31 lO.OOp 12.00MN$ 7.50 $ 3.75 Herman F. Sehwandt

7- 4-31 lO.OOp ll.lSp

TOTAL

8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

$11.66

BiU No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-064 at Seattle, Wash.

2-25-32

7- 5-31 7.30p 8.45p $ 9.72 $ 4.86

7-19-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

7-28-31 5.00p 12.00MN 7.50 PR 5.00

TOTAL

$ 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

Walter P. Harris

Charles W. Durkee Jr.

$17.36

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-097 at Seattle, Wash.

3-2-32

8- 2-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00

8- 2-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00

8- 9-31 7.15a 9.15a 5.83 n.66

8-16-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.39 12.78

8-16-31 7.15a 9.15a 833. PR 8.33

8-23-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

8-23-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 14.58

8-30-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

8-30-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.89 17.78

Roy M. Porter

John H. Zumwalt

Ray S. Steele

Leonard I. Cornell

John P. Boyd Sr.

Purley G. Hall

Bela E. Gowen

Arba D. H. Jackson

Thomas W. Lynch

TOTAL $116.51
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

Bill No.

28-0122

3-4-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

8- 9-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 8.33 $16.66 Alfred P. Smith

(Supplemental to Bill No. 28-097)

TOTAL $16.66 [7]

Bill No.

28-098

3-2-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

8-13-31 9.30p 12.00p $ 6.94

8-20-31 9.30p 12.00p 7.50

8-27-31 9.30p 12.00p 6.94

TOTAL

$ 3.47 John C. Bailey

3.75 John A. Wallman

3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

$10.69

Bill No.

28-0134

3-7-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

9-14-31 7.45p lO.OOp $ 8.33

9-14-31 7.45p lO.OOp 8.33

$ 4.16 James P. Sanderson

4.16 John P. Boyd Sr.

TOTAL $ 8.32
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-0135 at Seattle, Wash.

3-7-32

9- 6-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 PR$ 7.50 Howard E. Norwood

9- 6-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50 L. M. Persons

9- 7-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

9- 7-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 16.66 Alfred P. Smith

9-13-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 John P. Boyd Jr.

9-13-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 6.48 Bela E. Gowen

9-20-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 Herman F. Schwandt

9-20-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 16.66 John P. Boyd Sr.

9-27-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 19.44 Joseph E. Spengler

TOTAL $111.74

Bill No.

28-0147

3-7-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

9- 3-31 9.30p 11.50p $ 7.50

9-10-31 9.30p 12.00p 6.94

9-17-31 9.30p 11.45p 7.50

9-24-31 9.30p 11.45p 6.94

TOTAL

$ 3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

3.75 John A. Wallman

3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

$14.44

Bill No.

28-0149

3-7-32

9- 8-31

PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
at Tacoma, Wash.

Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

12.01a 1.30a $ 8.33 $ 4.16 Alfred Voligny

TOTAL $ 4.16
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

Bill No. NOOTKA
28-0151 at Tacoma, Wash.

3-7-32 Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

9- 6-31 10.00a 11.00a $ 6.94 PR$ 6.94 Wm. G. McNamara

TOTAL $ 6.94 [8]

Bill No.

28-0159

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

3-11-32

10- 4-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00

10- 4-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 16.66

10-11-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

10-11-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

10-18-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

10-18-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 6.48

10-25-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 6.94

10-25-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00

Howard E. Norwood

James P. Sanderson

Sigvald G. Nelson

Herman F. Schwandt

Charles W. Durkee Jr.

Joseph E. Spengler

Emerson E. David

John P. Boyd Jr.

TOTAL $88.96

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-0160 at Seattle, Wash.

3-11-32

10- 1-31 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75

10-25-31 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86

Charles W. Durkee Jr.

Bela E. Gowen

TOTAL $ 8.61
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-0162 at Vancouver, B.C.

3-11-32

10- 1-31 9.30p 12.00p $ 6.94 $ 3.47

10- 5-31 9.30p 12.00p 6.94 3.47

10- 8-31 9.30p 12.00p 7.50 3.75

10-15-31 9.30p 11.45p 6.94 3.47

10-22-31 9.30p 11.45p 5.83 2.91

10-29-31 9.30p 12.15a 7.50 3.75

TOTAL $20.82

Alpheus M. lllman

John C. Baile}'

Henry T. Rowbottom

John C. Bailey

Richard Montfort

John A. Wallman

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-0184 at Seattle, Wash.

3-14-32

11- 1-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00

11- 1-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

11- 8-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

11- 8-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00

11-15-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 PR 8.33

11-15-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00

11-22-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 9.72

11-22-31 7.15a 9.15a 5.83 11.66

11-26-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

11-26-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 6.94

11-29-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

11-29-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

Walter P. Harris

Ira L. Hazleton

Sig'vald G. Nelson

Roy C. Matterson

James P. Sanderson

Roy M. Porter

Joseph E. Spengler

Ray S. Steele

Leonard I. Cornell

Emerson E. David

Purley G. Hall

Walter P. Harris

TOTAL $144.67
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.28-0185

3-14-32

11- 5-31 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50

11-20-31 8.30p 10.30p 6.94

TOTAL

$ 3.75 Charles W. Diirkee Jr.

3.47 Siffvald G. Nelson

$ 7.22 [9]

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-0187 at Vancouver, B.C.

3-14-32

11- 5-31 9.30p 11.45p $ 7.50 $ 3.7S

11-12-31 9.30p 11.45p 6.94 3.4'/

11-19-31 9.30p 11.30p 6.94

$ 3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

3.47 John C. Bailey

3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

TOTAL $10.69

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-0202 at Seattle, Wash

3-16-32

12- 6-31 7.15a 9.15a $ 8.89 $17.78 Thomas W. Lynch

12- 6-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 Roy C. Matterson

12-13-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 Roy M. Porter

12-13-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50 Louis M. Persons

12-20-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 16.66 Alfred P. Smith

12-20-31 7.15a 9.15a 5.83 PR 5.83 Ray S. Steele

12-25-31 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 16.66 John P. Boyd Sr.

12-25-31 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50 Arba D. H. Jackson

12-27-31 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88 Purley G. Hall

12-27-31 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 9.72 Bela E. Gowen

TOTAL $125.53



14 Canadian Pacific By. Co.

Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-0208 at Vancouver, B.C.

3-16-32

12- 3-31 9.30p 11.30p $ 5.83 $ 2.91

12- 9-31 9.30p 11.45p 7.50 3.75

12-16-31 9.30p 11.45p 6.94 3.47

12-17-31 9.30p 11.30p 7.50 3.75

12-23-31 9.30p 11.30p 5.83 2.91

12-24-31 9.30p 11.30p 5.83 2.91

12-30-31 9.30p 11.45p 7.50 3.75

12-31-31 9.30p 11.30p 6.94 3.47

Richard Montfort

Henry T. Rowbottom

Alpheus M. Illman

John A. Wallman

Richard Montfort

Richard Montfort

Henry T. Rowbottom

Alpheus 'M. Illman

TOTAL $26.92

Bill No.

28-0225

3-16-32

12-

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

8-31 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Roy M. Porter

TOTAL $ 3.75 [lOJ

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-1 at 1Seattle, Wash.,

1-18-32

1-10-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 9.72 $4.86

1-10-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.17

1-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86

1-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

1-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86

1-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

1-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86

1-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

1-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86

Jos. E. Spengler

Alfred P. Smith

Bela E. Gowen

Roy C. Matterson

Bela E. Gowen

Roy C. Matterson

Bela E. Gowen

Roy C. Matterson

Bela E. Gowen
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

A.mount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

PRINCESS MARGUERITE (Cont.)

1-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

1-15-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

1-15-32 8.30p ]0.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

1-16-32 8.30p l().30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

1-16-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

1-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 PR 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

1-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 PR 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

TOTAL $69.30

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-2 at Seattle, Wash.

1-21-32

1-- 1-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 8.89 PR$ 8.89 Thomas W. Lynch

1-- 1-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88 Leonard I. Cornell

1-- 3-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 How^ard E. Norwood
1-- 3-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 Louis M. Persons

1--10-32 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 PR 8.33 Alfred P. Smith

1--10-32 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 19.44 Joseph E. Spengler

1--17-32 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 7.29 Bela E. Gowen
1--17-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

TOTAL $91.58



16 Canadiayi Pacific By. Co.

Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-16 at Seattle, Wash.

1-18-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 8.33 $ 4.17 John P. Boyd Sr.

1-18-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

1-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.17 John P. Boyd Sr.

1-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

1-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.17 John P. Boyd Sr.

1-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

1-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.17 John P. Boyd Sr.

1-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

1-22-32 S.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.17 John P. Boyd Sr.

1-22-32 S.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

1-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.17 John P. Boyd Sr.

1-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

1-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.17 John P. Boj^d Sr.

1-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

TOTAL $55.44 11]

Bill No.

28-17

1-27-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

1-24-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 8.33 PR$ 8.33 John P. Boyd Sr.

1-24-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50 Walter P. Harris

TOTAL $15.83
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Date of
Service

Time Ch
From

arged
To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-23 at iSeattle, Wash.

2- 5-32

1-25-32 S.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

1-25-32 b-.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

1-26-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

1-26-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

1-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

1-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

1-28-32 9.00p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

1-28-32 9.00p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

1-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

1-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

1-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

1-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

TOTAL $43.32

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-24 at Seattle, Wash.

2-5-32

1-31-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 PR$ 7.50

1-31-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

TOTAL $21.38

A. D. H. Jackson

Emerson E. David

Bill No.

28-25

2-5-32

1-31-32

1-31-32

PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
at Seattle, Wash.

.30p 10.30p

.30p 10.30p

$ 7.50

6.94

3.75

3.47

A. D. H. Jackson

Emerson E. David

TOTAL $ 7.22



18 Canadian Pacific Ry. Co.

Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of I nspectors
Service From To per Diem Diie and other employees

Bill No.

28-28

2-5-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Victoria, B.C.

1- 1-32 3.00p S.OOp $ 6.9-1 PR$ 6.94 Earl F. Brakke

TOTAL $ 6.94

Bill No.

28-53

2-17-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

1- 6-32 10.30p 11.45p $ 6.94 $ 3.47 John C. Bailey

1- 7-32 10.30p 11.45p 6.94 3.47 John C. Bailey

1-13-32 10.30p 11.45p 7.50 3.75 John A. Wallman

1-14-32 10.30p 11.45p 7.50 3.75 John A. Wallman

1-20-32 10.30p 11.45p 6.94 3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

1-21-32 10.30p 11.45p 6.94 3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

1-27-32 10.30p 11.45p 5.83 2.91 Richard Montfort

1-28-32 10.30p 11.45p 5.83 2.91 Richard Montfort

TOTAL $27.20 [12]

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-46 at Seattle, Wash.

2-15-32

2- 1-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75

2- 1-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 2-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 2-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 3-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 3-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 4-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 4-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 5-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2- 5-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

Roy M. Porter

Herman F. Schwandt

Roy M. Porter

Herman F. Schwandt

Roy M. Porter

Herman F. Schwandt

Roy M. Porter

Herman F. Schwandt

Roy M. Porter

Herman F, Schwandt
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

2- 6-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50

2- 6-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50

2- 7-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50

2- 7-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50

TOTAL

3.75 Roy M. Porter

3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

3.75 Roy M. Porter

3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

$52.50

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-47 at Seattle, Wash.

2-15-32

2- 7-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00

2- 7-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00

TOTAL $30.00

Herman F. Schwandt

Rov M. Porter

Bill No.

28-50

2-15-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

2- 3-32 9.30p 11.45p $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

2- 4-32 9.30p 11.45p 6.94 3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

TOTAL $ 6.94
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-64 at Seattle, Washington

2-20-32

2- 8-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

2- 8-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

2- 9-32 S.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

2- 9-32 &.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

2-10-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

2-10-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

2-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

2-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

2-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

2-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

2-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

2-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

2-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

2-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

TOTAL $46.62

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-66 at Seattle, Wash.

2-23-32

2-14-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00

2-14-32 7.15a 9.15a 5.83 11.66

TOTAL $26.66

Howard E. Norwood

Ray S. Steele

[13J

Bill No.

28-69

2-23-32

PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
at Seattle, Wash.

2-15-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50

2-15-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94

2-16-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50

$ 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other einployees

2-16-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

2-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

2-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.9-4 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

2-18-32 8.30p lO.SOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Dnrkee Jr.

2-18-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

2-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

2-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

2-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

2-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

2-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

2-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

TOTAL $54.71

Bill No.

28-70

2-23-32

2-21-32

2-21-32

7.15a

7.15a

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

9.15a

9.15a

TOTAL

$ 9.72 PR$ 9.72 Joseph E. Spengler

7.50 PR 5.00 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

$14.72

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-88 at 1Seattle, Wash.

2-29-32

2-22-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47

2-22-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

2-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

2-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

2-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

2-26-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

2-26-32 S.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

2-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

2-28-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

2-28-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

TOTAL $50.54

Parley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

Bill No. PRINCESS5 KATHLEEN
28-89 at Seattle , AYashington

3-1-32

2-22-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 PR$ 6.94

2-22-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

2-28-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88

2-28-32 7.15a 9.15a

TOTAL

7.50 15.00

$43.32

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-92 at Seattle, Wash.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd Jr.

[14]

2-29-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Ira L. Hazleton

2-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Joseph E. Gee

TOTAL $ 7.63

Bill No.

28-65

2-23-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

2-10-32 9.30p 11.45p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

2-11-32 9.30p 11.30p 7.50

2-17-32 9.30p 11.45p 6.94

2-18-32 9.30p 11.30p 6.94

3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

3.47 John C. Bailey

3.47 John C. Bailey

TOTAL $14.44
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay Amount
per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No.

28-123

3-21-32

2- 9-32

2-24-32

2-25-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

9.30p 11.45p $ 5.83

9.30p 11.45p 7.50

9.30p 11.30p 7.50

TOTAL

$2.91 Richard Montfort

3.75 John A. Wallman

3.75 John A. Wallman

$10.41

Bill No.

28-121

3-21-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

3- 2-32 9.30p 11.45p $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

TOTAL $ 3.47

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-93 at iSeattle, Wash.

3-9-32

3- 1-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47

3- 1-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16

3- 2-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 2-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16

3- 3-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 3-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16

3- 4-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 4-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 5-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 5-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 6-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 6-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph H. Gee

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph PI. Gee

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph H. Gee

Ira L. Hazleton

Leonard I. Cornell

Ira L. Hazleton

Leonard I. Cornell

Ira L. Hazleton

Leonard I. Cornell

TOTAL $43.71
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Date of
Service

TimeCh
From

arged Basic pay Amount
To per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-94 at Seattle, Wash.

3-9-32

3- 6-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 PR$ 6.94 Leonard I. Cornell

3- 6-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 4.63 Ira L. Hazleton

TOTAL $11.57 [15]

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-118 at Seattle, Wash.

3-21-32

3- 7-32 8.30p 10.30p $ (;.i)4 $ 3.47

3- 7-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3- 8-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 8-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3- 9-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3- 9-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3-10-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3-10-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

3-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

Sigvald G. Nelson

Louis M. Persons

Sigvald G. Nelson

Louis M. Persons

Sigvald G. Nelson

Louis M. Persons

Sigvald G. Nelson

Louis M. Persons

Sigvald G. Nelson

Louis M. Persons

Sigvald G. Nelson

Louis M. Persons

Sigvald G. Nelson

Louis M. Persons

TOTAL $50.54

Bill No.

28-117

3-21-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

3-13-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 PR$ 6.94 Sigvald G. Nelson

3-13-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 Louis M. Persons

TOTAL $21.94
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-136 at Seattle, Wash.

3-22-32

3-14-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 8.33 $ 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

3-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

3-15-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

3-15-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

3-16-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

3-16-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

3-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith
'3-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

3-18-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

3-18-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

3-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

3-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

3-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

3-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

TOTAL $58.24

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-135 at Seattle, "Wash.

3-22-32

3-20-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 8.33 PR$ 5.55

3-20-32 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 PR 8.33

James P. Sanderson

Alfred P. Smith

TOTAL $13.88 [16]



26 Canadian Pacific Ry. Co.

Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-149 at Seattle, Wash.

3-29-32

3-21-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Walter P. Harris

3-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

3-22-32 &.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

3-22-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

3-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

3-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

3-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

3-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

3-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

3-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

3-26-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

3-26-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

3-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

3-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

TOTAL $57.47

Bill No.

28-148

3-29-32

3-27-32

3-27-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

7.15a

7.15a

9.15a

9.15a

TOTAL

$ 9.72 PR$ 9.72 Joseph E. Spengler

7.50 15.00 Walter P. Harris

$24.72

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-150 at Vancouver, B.C.

4-4-32

3-16-32 9.30p 11.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47

3-23-32 9.30p 11.45p 5.83 2.91

3-30-32 9.30p 11.45p 7.50 3.75

Alpheus M. Illman

Richard Montfort

Henry T. Rowbottom

TOTAL $10.13
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-165 at Seattle, Wash.

4-7-32

3-28-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75

3-28-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16

3-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16

3-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16

3-31-32 8.50p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

3-31-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16

TOTAL $31.64

A. D. H. Jackson

John P. Boyd, Sr.

A. D. H. Jackson

John P. Boyd, Sr.

A. D. H. Jackson

John P. Boyd, Sr.

A. D. H. Jackson

John P. Boyd, Sr.

[17]

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-166 at Seattle, Wash.

4-7-32

4- 1-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

4- 1-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 John P. Boyd, Sr.

4- 2-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

4- 2-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 John P. Boyd, Sr.

4- 3-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 A. D. H. Jackson

4- 3-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 John P. Boyd, Sr.

TOTAL $23.73

Bill No.

28-159

4-7-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

4- 3-32 7.30a 9.15a $ 8.33

4- 3-32 7.30a 9.15a 7.50

$16.66 John P. Boyd, Sr.

15.00 A. D. H. Jackson

TOTAL $31.66
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

Bill No.

28-177

4-12-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Vancouver, B.C.

4- 6-32 9.30p 11.45p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 John A. Wallman

TOTAL $ 3.75

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-168 at Seattle, Wash.

4-12-32

4- 4-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 9.72 $ 4.S6 Bela E. Gowen

4- 4-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

4- 5-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

4- 5-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

4- 6-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

4- 6-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

4- 7-32 S.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

4- 7-32 &'30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

4- 8-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

4- 8-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

4- 9-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

4- 9-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

4- 10-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

4- 10-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy C. Matterson

TOTAL $60.27

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-169 at Seattle, Wash.

4-12-32

4-10-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00

4-10-32 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 19.44

Roy C. Matterson

Bela E. Gowen

TOTAL $34.44 [18]
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-180 at 1Seattle, Wash.

4-21-32

4-11-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Howard E, Norwood
4-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

4-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood
4-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

4-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

4-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

4-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood
4-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

4-15-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

4-15-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

4-16-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

4-16-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

4-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

4-17-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

TOTAL $50.54

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-179 at Seattle, Wash.

4-21-32

4-17-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 PR$ 7.50 Howard E. Norwood

4-17-32 7.15a 9.05a 6.94 PR 6.94 Emerson E. David

TOTAL $14.44



30 Canadian Pacific Ry. Co.

Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No ]PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
28-197 at Seattle, Wash.

5-4-32

4-18-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Roy M. Porter

4-18-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman P. Schwandt

4-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

4-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

4-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

4-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

4-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

4-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

4-22-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

4-22-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

4-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

4-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

4-24-32 S.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

4-24-32 S.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

TOTAL $52.50

Bill No.

28-196

5-4-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

4-24-32 7.15a 5.00p $ 7.50 PR$ 7.50 Herman F. Schwandt

(prorated)

4-24-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 Roy M. Porter

TOTAL $22.50 [19]

Bill No.

28-198

5-4-32

PRINCESS CHARLOTTE
at Seattle, Wash.

4-25-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

4-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

TOTAL $ 6.66
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS NORAH
28-201 at Seattle, Wash.

5-4-32 Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

4-26-32 5.00p 12.30a $ 5.83 PR$ 3.89 Ray S. Steele

(prorated)

4-26-32 10.30p 12.30a 7.50

TOTAL

3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

$ 7.64

Bill No. PRINCES3S MAE:gueRITE
28-195 at Seattle,

'

Wash.

5-4-32

4-26-32 8.30p 12.30a $ 7.50 PR$ 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

(prorated)

4-26-32 S.OOp 12.30a

(prorated)

5.83 PR 3.89 Ray S. Steele

4-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr,

4-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

4-28-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

4-28-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

4-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

4-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

4-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

4-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 5.83 2.91 Ray S. Steele

TOTAL $34.28

Bill No.

28-199

5-4-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

5- 1-32 7.15a 5.00p $ 7.50 PR$ 5.00 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

(prorated)

5- 1-32 7.15a 9.15a 5.83 11.66 Ray S. Steele

TOTAL $16.66
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No.

28-200

5-4-32

5- 1-32

5- 1-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

O.OOp 11.30p $ 5.83

9.00p 11.30p 7.50

TOTAL

$ 2.91 Ray S. Steele

3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

$ 6.66 [20]

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-218 at g5eattle, Wjash.

5-10-32

5- 2-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Louis M. Persons

5- 2-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 John P. Boyd Jr.

5- 3-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

5- 3-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 John P. Boyd Jr.

5- 4-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

5- 4-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 John P. Boyd Jr.

5- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

5- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 John P. Boyd Jr.

5- 6-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

5- 6-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 John P. Boyd Jr.

5- 7-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

5- 7-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 John P. Boyd Jr.

5- 8-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

5- 8-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 John P. Boyd Jr.

TOTAL $52.50

Bill No.

28-219

5-10-32

-32 7.15a

-32 7.15a

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Washington

9.15a $ 7.50

9.15a 7.50

$15.00 Louis M. Persons

15.00 John P. Boyd, Jr.

TOTAL $30.00
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-232 at Seattle, Wash.

5-18-32

5- 9-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 9.72 $ 4.86

5- 9-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

5-10-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

5-10-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

5-11-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

5-11-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

5-12-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

5-12-32 9.00p ll.OOp

(prorated) 6.94 PR 2.31

5-13-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

5-13-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

5-14-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

5-14-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

5-15-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

5-15-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

Joseph E. Spengler

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph E. Spengler

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph E. Spengler

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph E. Spengler

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph E. Spengler

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph E. Spengler

Ira L. Hazleton

Joseph E. Spengler

Ira L. Hazleton

TOTAL $57.15

Bill No.

28-233

5-18-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

5-15-32 7.15a 5.00p $ 9.72 PR$12.96 Joseph E. Spengler

(prorated)

5-15-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 13.88 Ira L. Hazleton

TOTAL $26.84 [21]



34 Canadian Pacific Ry. Co.

Service
Date of

From To
Time Charged

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

BiU No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-252 at Seattle, Wash.

5-24-32

5-16-32 O.OOp ll.OOp $ 8.33 $ 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

5-16-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

5-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

5-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

5-18-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

5-18-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

5-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

5-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

5-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

5-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

5-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

5-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

5-22-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

5-22-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

TOTAL $53.41

Bill No.

28-253

5-24-32

5-22-32

5-22-32

7.15a

7.15a

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, "Wash.

9.15a $ 8.33 PR$11.11 Joseph H. Gee

9.15a 6.94 13.88 Leonard L Cornell

TOTAL $24.99
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No.

28-254

5-24-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

5- 1-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47

5- 7-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50 3.75

5- 8-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94 3.47

5-14-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94 3.47

5-15-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94 3.47

5-21-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94 3.47

5-22-82 6.30p 7.30p 6.94 3.47

TOTAL $24.57

Alpheus M. Illman

Henry T. Rowbottom

Walter E. Ainsley

John C. Bailey

John C. Bailey

Walter E. Ainsley

Walter E. Ainsley

Bill No.

28-277

6-2-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE

I

at S»eattle, Wash.

5-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 8.33 $ 4.16 James P. Sanderson

5-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Purley G. Hall

5-25-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

5-25-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Purley G. Hall

5-26-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

5-26-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Purley G. Hall

5-27-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

5-27-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Purley G. Hall

5-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

5-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Purley G. Hall

5-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 James P. Sanderson

5-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Purley G. Hall

TOTAL $45.78 [22]
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No.

28-276

6-2-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

5-29-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 $13.88 Purley G. Hall

5-29-32 7.15a 9.15a

TOTAL

8.33 16.66 James P. Sanderson

$30.54

Bill No.

28-261

6-2-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, "Wash.

5-30-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 9.72 $ 4.86

5-30-32 9.00p 11.30p 6.94 3.47

5-30-32 9.00p 11.30p 8.33 4.16

5-31-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

5-31-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16

TOTAL $20.12

Joseph E. Spengler

Sigvald G. Nelson

Alfred P. Smith

Sigvald G. Nelson

Alfred P. Smith

Bill No.

28-262

6-2-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

5-30-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 8.33 $16.66 Alfred P. Smith

5-30-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 6.94 Sigvald G. Nelson

TOTAL $23.60

Bill No. PRINCESS LOUISE
28-265 at Taeoma, Wash.

6-2-32 Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

5-30-32 6.15a 8.00a $ 6.94 $ 3.47 William G. McNamara

5-31-32 1.30a 2.45a 6.94 3.47 Leslie A. Sherby

5-31-32 1.30a 2.45a 8.33 4.16 Alfred Voligny

TOTAL $11.10
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

BiU No.

28-278

6-3-32

PRINCESS ADELAIDE
at Seattle, Wash.

5-24-32 lO.OOp 12.00p $ 8.33

5-24-32 lO.OOp ]2.{)0p G.94

TOTAL

$ 4.16 James P. Sanderson

3.47 Purley G. Hall

$ 7.63

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-290 at Vancouver, B.C.

6-3-32

5-28-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 5.83 $ 2.91

5-29-32 6.30p 7.30p 5.83 2.91

5-30-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50 3.75

TOTAL $ 9.57

Richard Montfort

Richard Montfort

John A. Wallman

[23]

BiU No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-295 at ^Seattle, Wjash.

6-6-32

6- 1-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 8.33 $ 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

6- 1-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Sigvald G. Nelson

6- 2-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

6- 2-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Sigvald G. Nelson

6- 3-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

6- 3-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Sigvald G. Nelson

6- 4-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

6- 4-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Sigvald G. Nelson

6- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

6- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Sigvald G. Nelson

TOTAL $38.15
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Date of
Service

Time Charged Basic pay Amount
From To per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-296 at Seattle, "Wash.

6-6-32

6- 5-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 PR$10.41 Sigvald G. Nelson

6- 5-32 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 PR 8.33 Alfred P. Smith

TOTAL $18.74

Bill No.

28-305

6-16-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

6- 6-32

6- 6-32

6- 7-32

6- 7-32

6- 8-32

6- 8-32

6- 9-32

6- 9-32

6-10-32

6-10-32

6-11-32

6-11-32

6-12-32

6-12-32

9.00p

9.00p

7.20p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

9.00p

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

ll.OOp

TOTAL

$ 6.94

9.72

6.94

9.72

6.94

9.72

6.94

9.72

6.94

9.72

6.94

9.72

6.94

9.72

PR

$ 3.47

4.86

2.31

4.86

3.47

4.86

3.47

4.86

3.47

4.86

3.47

4.86

3.47

4.86

$57.15

Emerson

Bela E.

Emerson

Bela E.

Emerson

Bela E.

Emerson

Bela E.

Emerson

Bela E.

Emerson

Bela E.

Emerson

Bela E.

E. David

Gowen

E. David

Gowen

E. David

Gowen

E. David

Gowen

E. David

Gowen

E. David

Gowen

E. David

Gowen

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-308 at Seattle, Wash.

6-16-32

6-12-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 PR 6.94

6-12-32 7.15a 9.15a 9.72 PR 9.72

Emerson E. David

Bela E. Gowen

TOTAL $16.66 [24]
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-345 at Seattle, Wash.

6-29-32

6-13-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

6-13-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

6-14-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

6-14-32 9.00p ll.OOp G.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

6-15-32 9.00p 12.00MN 7.50 PR 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

6-15-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

6-16-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

6-16-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

6-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

6-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

6-18-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

6-18-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

6-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

6-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

TOTAL $51.66

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-344 at Seattle, Wash.

6-29-32

6-19-32 7.15a S.30a $ 7.50 PR$ 7.50

6-19-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50

Louis M. Persons

Howard E. Norwood

TOTAL .^5.00



40 Canadian Pacific Ry. Co.

Date of
Service

Time Charged Basic pay Amount
From To per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-309 at Vancouver, B.C.

6-16-32

6- 4-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 John A. "Wallman

6- 5-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50 3.75 John A. Wallman

6-11-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94 3.47 Alpheus M. lUman

6-12-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94 3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

TOTAL $14.44

Bill No.

28-331

6-22-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

6-18-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

6-19-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50

TOTAL

3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

$ 7.50

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-360 at Sleattle, "W{ish.

6-8-32

6-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75

6-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-22-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-22-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-24-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-24-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-25-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

Herman F. Schwandt

Louis M. Persons

Herman F. Schwandt

Louis M. Persons

Herman F. Schwandt

Louis M. Persons

Herman F. Schwandt

Walter P. Harris

Herman F. Schwandt

Walter P. Harris

Herman F. Schwandt
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

6-25-32 9.00p U.OOp 7.50

6-26-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50

6-26-32 O.OOp ll.OOp 7.50

TOTAL

3.75 Walter P. Harris

3.75 Herman P. Schwandt

3.75 Walter P. Harris

$52.50 [25]

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-362 at Seattle, Wash.

7-8-32

6-26-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00

6-26-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00

TOTAL

$15.00 Walter P. Harris

Herman F. Schwandt

$30.00

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-361 Seattle, Wash.

7-8-32

6-27-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75

6-27-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-30-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

6-30-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Bela E. Gowen

TOTAL $31.11

Bill No. PRINCESS KAI'HLEEN
28-468 at Vancouver, B.C.

7-28-32

6-25-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 5.83 $ 2.91

6-26-32 6.30p 7.30p 5.83 2.91

Richard Montfort

Richard Montfort

TOTAL $ 5.82
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS JOAN
28-469A at Vancouver, B.C.

7-29-32 Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

6-22-32 10.40p 11.40p $ 5.83 $ 2.91 Richard Montfort

TOTAL $ 2.91

Bill No. r•RINGED5S MAI1LGUERITE

28-363 at Seattle, Wash.

7-8-32

7- 1-32 9.00p ll.OOp $• 7.50 $ 3.75 Arba D. H. Jackson

7- 1-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

7- 2-32 9.00p 12.00p 7.50 PR 3.75 Arba D. H. Jackson

7- 2-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

7- 3-32 6.30p 11.30p 7.50 PR 3.75 Arba.D. H. Jackson

7- 3-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86 Bela E. Gowen

TOTAL J5.83

Bill No.

28-359

7-8-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

7- 3-32 7.15a 5.00p $ 7.50 PR$ 5.00 Arba D. H. Jackson

(prorated)

7- 3-32 7.15a 5.00p 9.72 PR 14.58 Bela E. Gowen

TOTAL $19.58 [26]

Bill No.

28-364

7-8-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

7- 2-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 John A. Wallman

7- 3-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50 3.75 John A. Walhnan

TOTAL $ 7.50
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

A mount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-409 at Seattle, Washington

7-14-32

7- 4-32 9.0Gp ll.OOp $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Ira L. Hazleton

7- 4-32 9.00p n.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 4-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 PR 2.08 Joseph H. Gee

7- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 PR 2.08 Joseph H. Gee

7- 6-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 6-32 9.00p ll.OOp S.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

7- 7-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 7-32 9.00p 12.30a 8.33 PR 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

7- 8-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 8-32 9.00p ll.lSp 8.33 PR 2.08 Joseph H. Gee

7- 9-32 9.00p ll.lSp 7.50 PR 2.50 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 9-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

7-10-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 10-32 8.00p 11.30p 8.33 PR 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

TOTAL $51.35

Bill No.

28-413

7-14-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

7- 4-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 6.94

7- 9-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94

7-10-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94

$ 3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

TOTAL $10.41
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-408 at Seattle, Wash.

7-14-32

7- 4-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50 $15.00 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7- 4-32 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 PR 12.50 Joseph H. Gee

7-10-32 7.15a 9.15a 7.50 PR 7.50 Charles W. Durkee Jr.

7-10-32 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 16.66 Joseph H. Gee

TOTAL $51.66

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-464 at Seattle, Wash.

7-26-32

7-11-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 8.33 $ 4.16

7-11-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-12-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16

7-12-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-13-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16

7-13-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-14-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16

7-14-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-15-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16

7-15-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-16-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16

7-16-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16

7-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

Alfred P. Smith

John P. Boyd Jr.

Alfred P. Smith

John P. Boyd Jr.

Alfred P. Smith

John P. Boyd Jr.

Alfred P. Smith

John P. Boyd Jr.

Alfred P. Smith

John P. Boyd Jr.

Alfred P. Smith

John P. Boyd Jr.

Alfred P. Smith

John P. Boyd Jr.

TOTAL $55.37 [27]
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Date of Time Charged
Service From To

Basic pay Amount Names of I nspectors
per Diem Due and other employees

Bill No.

28-465

7-26-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

7-17-32 7.1.5a 5.00p $ 7.00 $15.00 John P. Boyd Jr.

7-17-32 7.15a 5.00p S.33 PR 12.50 Alfred P. Smith

TOTAL $27.50

Bill No.

28-430

7-25-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

7-16-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 6.94

7-17-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94

TOTAL

$ 3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

$ 6.94

BiUNo. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-474 at Seattle, WashI.

8-4-32

7-18-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 6.94 $ 3.47

7-18-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

7-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

7-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

7-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

7-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp 9.72 4.86

7-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

7-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

7-22-32 lO.OOp 11.59p 6.94 3.47

7-22-32 lO.OOp 11.59p 6.94 3.47

7-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

7-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

7-24-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

7-24-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

Ira L. Hazleton

Bela E. Gowen

Ira L. Hazleton

Bela E. Gowen

Ira L. Hazleton

Bela E. Gowen

Ira L. Hazleton

Leonard I. Cornell

Ira L. Hazleton

Leonard I. Cornell

Ira L. Hazleton

Leonard I. Cornell

Ira L. Hazleton

Leonard I. Cornell

TOTAL $52.75
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Date of
Service

Time Charged Basic pay Amount
From To per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-473 at Seattle, Wash.

8-4-32

7-24-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 6.94 PR$10.41 Leonard I. Cornell

7-24-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94 PR 6.94 Ira L. Hazleton

TOTAL $17.35 :28]

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-481 at Seattle, Wash.

8-10-32

7-25-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75

7-25-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-26-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-26-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-27-32 9.00p 12.00MN 7.50 PR 3.75

7-27-32 7.00p ll.OOp 7.50 PR 3.75

7-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-30-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-30-32 Q.OGp ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-31-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

7-31-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

Arba D. H. Jackson

Walter P. Harris

TOTAL $52.50

Bill No.

2&-480-A

8-10-32

7-31-32

7-31-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

7.15a 5.00p $ 7.50 PR$ 7.50 Arba D. H. Jackson

7.15a 9.15a 7.50 15.00 Walter P. Harris

TOTAL $22.50
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Date of
Service

Time Ch
From

arged
To

Basic pay Amount
per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-483 at Vancouver, B.C.

8-10-32

7-23-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 5.83 $ 2.91 Richard Montfort

7-24-32 6.30p 7.30p 5.83 2.91 Richard Montfort

7-30-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50 3.75 John A. Wallman

7-31-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50 3.75 John A. Wallman

TOTAL $13.32

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-530 at Seattle, Wash.

8-12-32

8- 1-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75

8- 1-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

8- 2-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

8- 2-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

8- 3-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

8- 3-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

8- 4-32 6.50p ll.OOp 7.50 PR 3.75

8- 4-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

8- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

8- 5-32 g.OOp ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

8- 6-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

8- 6-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47

8- 7-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

8- 7-32 8.00p ll.OOp 6.94 PR 3.47

Herman F. Schwandt

Piirley G. Hall

Herman F. Schwandt

Purley G. Hall

Herman F. Schwandt

Purley G. Hall

Herman F. Schwandt

Purley G. Hall

Herman F. Schwandt

Purley G. Hall

Herman F. Schwandt

Purley G. Hall

Herman F. Schwandt

Purley G. Hall

TOTAL $50.54 [29]
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

Bill Xo.

28-529

8-12-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle. "Wash.

8- 7-32 7.15a 9.15a $ 7.50

8- 7-32 7.15a 9.15a 6.94

TOTAL

$15.00 Herman F. Schwandt

13.88 Purlev G. Hall

$28.88

Bill No.

28-512

8-11-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

8- 6-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

8- 7-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50 3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

TOTAL $ 7.50

Bill No.

28-534

8-22-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

8- 8-32

8- 8-32

8- 9-32

8- 9-32

8-10-32

8-10-32

8-11-32

8-11-32

8-12-32

8-12-32

8-13-32

8-13-32

8-14-32

7.15p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

$ 6.94

7.50

6.94

7.50

6.94

7.50

6.94

5.83

6.94

7.50

6.94

7.50

6.94

8-14-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50

PR$ 3.47

3.75

3.47

3.75

3.47

3.75

3.47

2.91

3.47

3.75

3.47

3.75

3.47

3.75

Ira L. Hazleton

John P. Boyd, Jr.

Ira L. Hazleton

John P. Boyd, Jr.

Ira L. Hazleton

John P. Boyd, Jr.

Ira L. Hazleton

Ray S. Steele

Ira L. Hazleton

John P. Boyd, Jr.

Ira L. Hazleton

John P. Boyd, Jr.

Ira L. Hazleton

John P. Boyd, Jr.

TOTAL $49.70
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Date of
Service

Time Charged Basic pay Amount
From To per Diem Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-535 at Seattle, Wash.

8-22-32

8-14-32 7.15a 5.00p $ 6.94 PR$10.41 Ira L. Hazleton

8-14-32 7.15a 5.00p 7.50 PR 5.00 John P. Boyd, Jr.

TOTAL $15.41

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-583 at Seattle, "Wash.

8-24-32

8-15-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

8-15-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

8-16-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

8-16-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W, Durkee, Jr.

8-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

8-17-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

&--18-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

8-18-32 9.00p 12.00p 7.50 PR 2.50 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

8-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

8-19-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

8-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

8-20-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr,

8-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Leonard I. Cornell

8-21-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Charles W. Durkee, Jr,

TOTAL $49.29 [30]

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-582 at Seattle, Wash.

8-24-32

8-21-32 7.15a 5.00p $ 6.94 PR$ 6.94

8-21-32 7.15a 5.00p 7.50 PR 7.50

Leonard I. Cornell

Charles W. Durkee, Jr.

TOTAL $14.44
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of Inspectors
Service From To per Diem Due and other employees

BiU No.

28-551

8-23-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

8-13-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

8-14-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94

TOTAL

3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

$ 6.94

Bill No.

28-563

8-23-32

8-11-32

PRINCESS PATRICIA
at Tacoma, Wash.

Stricken hy stipulation—Faid

7.00a 8.00a $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Leslie A. Sherby

8-11-32 lO.OOp ll.OOp 6.94

8-11-32 lO.OOp ll.OOp 6.94

TOTAL

3.47 Leslie A. Sherby

3.47. William G. McNamara

$10.41

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-571 at Vancouver, B.C.

8-24-32

8-20-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 5.83 $ 2.91

8-21-32 6.30p 7.30p 5.83 2.91

TOTAL $ 5.82

Richard Montfort

Richard Montfort

Bill No.

28-607

9-12-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash,

8-22-32 6.40p ll.OOp $ 8.33 PRif

8-22-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50

8-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33

8-23-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50

8-24-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33

PR$ 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

3.75 Louis M. Persons

4.16 Joseph H. Gee

3.75 Louis M. Persons

4.16 Joseph H. Gee
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
par Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

8-24-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

8-25-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

8-25-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

8-26-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

8-26-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

8-27-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

8-27-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

8-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Joseph H. Gee

8-28-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Louis M. Persons

TOTAL $55.37

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-606 at Seattle, Wash.

9-12-32

8-28-32 7.15a 5.00p $ 8.33 $16.66 Joseph H. Gee

8-28-32 7.15a S.OOp 7.50 PR 5.00 Louis M. Persons

TOTAL $21.66 [31]

Bill No. PRINCESS ALICE
28-599 at Tacoma, "Wash.

9-12-32 Stricken by stipulation—Paid

8-25-82 6.45a 8.00a $ 8.33 $ 4.16 Alfred Voligny

8-25-32 11.30p 12.30a 6.94 3.47 Leslie A. Sherby

8-25-32 11.30p 12.30a 6.94 3.47 William A. McNamara

TOTAL $11.10
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

BiU No.

28-602

9-12-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

8-27-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

8-28-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94

TOTAL

3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

$ 6.94

BiU No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-604 at !Seattle, Wash.

9-12-32

8-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp $ 7.50 $ 3.75

8-29-32 9.00p ll.OOp b.33 4.16

8-30-32 9.00p 11.30p 7.50 PR 1.87

8-30-32 9.00p ll.OOp &-.33 4.16

8-31-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75

8-31-32 9.00p ll.OOp S.33 4.16

Howard E. Norwood

Alfred P. Smith

Howard E. Norwood

Alfred P. Smith

Howard E. Norwood

Alfred P. Smith

TOTAL $21.85

BiU No.

28-618

9-12-32

1-32

1-32

2-32

9- 2-32

9- 3-32

9- 3-32

9- 4-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

9.00p ll.OOp

$ 8.33

7.50

8.33

7.50

8.33

7.50

8.33

$ 4.16

3.75

4.16

3.75

4.16

3.75

4.16

Alfred P. Smith

Howard E. Norwood

Alfred P. Smith

Howard E. Norwood

Alfred P. Smith

Howard E. Norwood

Alfred P. Smith

9- 4-32 9.00p ll.OOp 7.50 3.75 Howard E. Norwood

TOTAL $31.64
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Date of Time Charged Basic pay Amount Names of I nspectors
Service From To per Diern Due and other employees

Bill No.

28-619

9-12-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

9- 4-32 7.15a S.OOp $ 7.50 PR$11.25 Howard E. Norwood

(prorated)

9- 4-32 7.15a 9.15a 8.33 16.66 Alfred P. Smith

TOTAL $27.91

Bill No.

28-622

9-12-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

9- 3-32 6.30p 7.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

9- 4-32 6.30p 7.30p 7.50

9- 5-32 6.30p 7.30p 6.94

TOTAL

3.75 Henry T. Rowbottom

3.47 Walter E. Ainsley

$10.97 [32]

Bill No. SS NOOTKA
28-627 at Tacoma, Wash.

9-13-32 Stricken hy stipulation—Paid

9- 4-32 8.00a 9.00a $ 8.33 $16.66 Alfred Voligny

TOTAL $16.66

Bill No.

28-686

9-28-32

PRINCESS MARGUERITE
at Seattle, Wash.

9- 5-32 9.00p 12.45a $ 9.72 PPt$ 4.86 Joseph E. Spengler

9- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 8.33 4.16 Alfred P. Smith

9- 5-32 9.00p ll.OOp 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

9- 6-32 9.00p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

9- 6-32 S.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

9- 7-32 8.30p lO.SOp 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

9- 7-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

9- 8-32 7.30p 10.30p 6.94 PR 3.47 Emerson E. David

9- 8-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

9- 9-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

9- 9-32 8.30p 11.30p 7.50 PR 3.75 Walter P. Harris

9-10-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Emerson E. David

9-10-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

9-11-32 S.OOp 10.30p 6.94 PR 3.47 Emerson E, David

9-11-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Walter P. Harris

TOTAL $55.81

Bill No.

28-683

9-28-32

9- 5-32

9- 5-32

9-11-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Seattle, Wash.

7.15a 5.00p

(prorated)

7.15a 5.00p

8.00a 5.00p

$ 8.33 PR$11.10 Alfred P. Smith

6.94

6.94

9-11-32 8.00a 5.00p 7.50

TOTAL

PR 10.41

PR 10.41

$39.42

Emerson E. David

Emerson E. David

7.50 Walter P. Harris

Bill No. IPRINCE!3S MAELGUERITE
28-688 at Seattle, Wash.

9-28-32

9-12-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Purley G. Hall

9-12-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 John P. Boyd, Sr,

9-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47 Purley G. Hall

9-13-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 John P. Boyd, Sr,

9-14-32 7.00p 10.30p 6.94 PR 3.47 Purley G. Hall

9-14-32 8.30p 10.30p 8.33 4.16 John P. Boyd, Sr.
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

9-15-32

9-15-82

9-16-32

9-16-32

9-17-32

9-17-32

9-18-32

9-18-32

8.30p

8.30p

8.30p

8.30p

8.30p

8.30p

S.OOp

8.30p

10.30p

10.30p

10.30p

10.30p

10.30p

10.30p

10.30p

10.30p

TOTAL

Basic pay
per Diem

6.94

8.33

6.94

8.33

6.94

8.33

6.94

8.33

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

PR

3.47

4.16

3.47

4.16

3.47

4.16

3.47

4.16

$53.41

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd, Sr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd, Sr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd, Sr.

Purley G. Hall

John P. Boyd, Sr.

[33]

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-687 at Seattle, Wash.

9-28-32

9-18-32 8.00a S.OOp $ 6.94 PR$10.41 Purley G. Hall

9-18-32 8.00a 5.00p 8.33 16.66 John P. Boyd, Sr.

TOTAL $27.07

Bill No.

28-682

9-28-32

PRINCESS KATHLEEN
at Vancouver, B.C.

9-17-32 10.15p ll.lSp $ 6.94 $ 3.47 Alpheus M. Illman

TOTAL $ 3.47

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-685 at Seattle, Wash.

9-28-32

9-19-32 8.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 Roy M. Porter

9-19-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

9-20-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

9-20-32 8.30p lO.SOp 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

9-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
per Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

9-21-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Sclnvandt

9-22-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

9-22-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Scliwandt

9-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

9-23-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F, Scliwandt

9-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

9-24-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Scliwandt

9-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Roy M. Porter

9-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75 Herman F. Schwandt

9-25-32 8.30p 10.30p 9.72 4.86 Joseph E, Spengler

TOTAL $57.36

Bill No. PRINC
28-684 at

9-28-32

9-25-32 8.00a 5.00p

9-25-32 8.00a 5.00p

at Seattle, Wash.

7.50 PR$ 7.50 Herman F. Schwandt

7.50 PR 15.00 Roy M. Porter

TOTAL $22.50

Bill No. PRINCESS KATHLEEN
28-715 at Vancouver, B.C.

10-14-32

9-24-32 10.15p 11.15p $ 7.50 $ 3.75 John A. Wallman

9-25-32 9.40p 11.40p 7.50 3.75 John A. Wallman

TOTAL $ 7.50 [34]
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Date of
Service

Time Charged
From To

Basic pay
psr Diem

Amount
Due

Names of Inspectors
and other employees

Bill No. PRINCESS MARGUERITE
28-717 at iSeattle, Wash,

10-14-32

9-26-32 S.30p 10.30p $ 7.50 $ 3.75

9-26-32 S.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

9-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

9-27-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

9-28-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

9-28-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

9-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

9-29-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

9-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 7.50 3.75

9-30-32 8.30p 10.30p 6.94 3.47

Howard E. Norwood

Ira L. Hazleton

Howard E. Norwood

Ira L. Hazleton

Howard E. Norwood

Ira L. Hazleton

Howard E. Norwood

Ira L. Hazleton

HoAvard E. Norwood

Ira L. Hazleton

TOTAL $36.10

Total amount Due to September 30, 1932

$4331.13

Paid— 86.33

Revised total by Stipulation $4244.80

[Endorsed] : Filed in the United States District Court, Western District

of Washington, Northern Division. Nov. 23, 1932. Ed. M. Lakin, Clerk,

by S. Cook, Dputy. [35]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ANSWER.

Comes now the defendant, Canadian Pacific Rail-

way Company, a foreign corporation, and in answer

to the plaintiff's complaint, admits, denies and

alleges as follows:

I.

The defendant admits the allegations in Para-

graphs I, II and III of plaintiff's complaint.

II.

Defendant denies each and every allegation in

Paragraph IV of plaintiff's complaint and particu-

larly denies that $4,331.13 or any other sum has

been earned as therein alleged.

By way of AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE to plain-

tiff's complaint, the defendant alleges as follows:

I.

That it is provided in said act set forth in plain-

tiff's complaint that the same shall not apply to the

inspection at designated ports of entry of passen-

gers arriving by international ferries when oper-

ating on regular schedules. That the vessels men-

tioned in plaintiff's complaint were at all [36] times

in plaintiff's complaint mentioned and are now
operated on regular schedules on the connecting

waterway of Puget Sound and adjacent waters be-

tween ports in British Columbia and the port of

Seattle and other ports in the State of Washing-

ton, designated as ports of entry, carrying passen-

gers and automobiles as international ferries, and
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that the defendant and said vessels are exempt from

the overtime provisions of said act.

WHEREFORE, defendant prays that plaintiff

take nothing and that this action be dismissed, and

that judgment be entered for the defendant's costs

and disbursements herein to be taxed.

BOGLE, BOOLE & GATES
Attorneys for Defendant. [37]

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 4, 1933. [38]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

REPLY.

Comes now the plaintiff and for reply to the

Affirmative Defense of the Answer, alleges as fol-

lows :

I.

Answering Paragraph I, plaintiff denies each and

every allegation therein contained and the whole

thereof.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for relief as

prayed for in the original complaint.

ANTHONY SAVAGE
United States Attorney

HAMLET P. DODD
Assistant United States Attorney.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington,

Northern Division.—ss.

HAMLET P. DODD, being first duly sworn, on

oath deposes and says: That he is an Assistant
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United States Attorney for the Western District of

Washington, and as such makes this verification for

and on behalf of the United States of America,

plaintiff herein; that he has read the foregoing

Reply, knows the contents thereof and believes the

same to be true.

HAMLET P. DODD
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9 day of

February, 1933.

JEFFREY HEIMAN
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington.

Copy Received Feb. 9, 1933.

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 10, 1933. [39]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION WAIVING JURY TRIAL.

WITNESS the within stipulation entered into

this day by and between the LTnited States of

America, plaintiff herein, by Anthony Savage,

United States Attorney for the Western District of

Washington, and Hamlet P. Dodd, Assistant United

States Attorney for said District, and defendant

Canadian Pacific Railway Company, by its attor-

neys. Bogle, Bogle & Gates by Norman M. Littell,

whereby IT IS AGREED that trial by jury in the

above entitled cause be waived, and that said cause

be tried to the Court.
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DATED at Seattle, Washington, this 26 day of

September, 1933.

ANTHONY SAVAGE
United States Attorney

HAMLET P. DODD
Assistant United States Attorney

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES
NORMAN M. LITTELL

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed]: Filed in Open Court at Time of

Trial. Ed. M. Lakin, Clerk. By S. E. Leitch, Deputy

[Endorsed]: Filed Sep. 26, 1933. [40]

United States District Court, Western District of

Washington, Northern Division.

No. 20730

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
a foreign corporation.

Defendant.

JUDGMENT.

This cause coming on to be heard before the above

entitled Court, the plaintiff being represented by

Anthony Savage, United States Attorney for the

Western District of Washington, and Hamlet P.
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Dodd, Assistant United States Attorney for said

District, and the defendant by Bogle, Bogle &
Gates and Norman M. Littell, and the evidence

having been presented, and the Court being duly

advised in the premises; now, therefore, it is

ORDERED, DECREED and ADJUDGED that

the defendant pay to the plaintiff herein FOUR
THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY-FOUR
and 80/100 ($4244.80) DOLLARS, same being over-

time wages on various vessels of the defendant as

shown in the complaint, together with the costs in

said cause.

To the foregoing order and each and every part

thereof, the defendant excepts and its exceptions

are allowed.

DONE IN OPEN COURT this 6 day of Novem-

ber, 1933.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
United States District Judge.

Approved

:

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
NORMAN M. LITTELL,

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 6, 1933. [41]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME FOR FILING
BILL OF EXCEPTIONS.

This matter having come on regularlj^ for hearing

upon the motion of attorneys for the defendants,

Messrs. Bogie, Bogie & Gates, for an order extend-
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ing the time within which to file its bill of excep-

tions to the decision and ruling of the court in the

above entitled cause, and good cause being shown

therefor, and the court being duly advised in the

premises; now, therefore,

IT IS ORDERED that the time for signing,

allow^ance, and filing of the bill of exceptions of the

above named defendant is hereby extended to the

20th day of December, 1933 ; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that the present

term of this court be and the same hereljy is ex-

tended for said purposes and all other purposes in-

cident or necessar}^ to perfecting defendant 's appeal

until the expiration of said extended time.

Dated this 6th day of November, 1933.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge.

Approved for entry:

ANTHONY SAVAGE,
HAMLET P. DODD,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 6, 1933. [42]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS.

BE IT REMEMBERED: That heretofore,

to-wit, on the 12th day of October, 1933, the above

entitled cause came on for trial at Seattle, Wash-
ington, in the United States District Court for the
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Western District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion, upon the issues joined herein before the Hon-

orable Jeremiah Neterer, sitting as Judge of said

court, without a jury, a jury having been duly

waived by the parties b.y a written stipulation. [43]

Whereupon the plaintiff presented the following

stipulation between the parties:

"1. That Exhibit "A" attached to the plain-

tiff's complaint is a true and correct statement of

the overtime charges at issue in this case and may
be admitted in evidence as such, it being understood

and agreed however that all special or excursion

trips by the defendant's vessel for which overtime

inspection service was required should be deemed

to be stricken from Exhibit "A" on the grounds

that all charges for such trips have been paid, the

excursion or special trips referred to are set forth

on Exhibit "B" hereto attached and by this refer-

ence made a part hereof, the charges shown thereon

having been paid by the defendant and shall be

so marked Exhibit "A" in the original complaint.

2. That Exhibit "C", to-wit, a statement fur-

nished by the Department of Labor, Bureau of Im-

migration, relative to immigration ports of entry in

the United States, be admitted as the true and cor-

rect testimony of H. R. Landis, Special Supervisor,

Bureau of Immigration, Department of Labor.

3. That a report from the Acting Commissioner

of Immigration, Immigration District No. 28, rela-

tive to pages 12 and 13 of Exhibit "C", enlarging,

correcting and supplementing the report of this Dis-

trict charges, be admitted as the true and correct
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testimony of said Acting" Commissioner of Immi-

gration, said Exhibit )3eing marked ''C-1".

4. That the photographs marked "Exhibit D"
and plans of the vessels involved in this case marked

"Exhibit E", and steamship [44] schedule marked

"Exhibit F", he admitted as true and correct rep-

resentations of said vessels.

5. That steamship schedules marked Defendant's

Exhibit 1, showing scheduled service of the defend-

ant between Seattle, Vancouver and Victoria from

April 17, 1931, to December, 1932, inclusive, may be

admitted in evidence as a true and correct state-

ment of said schedules during said period, and that

the arrivals and departures circled in red ink indi-

cate points at which overtime charges were made.

6. That Defendant's Exhibits No. 2, 3, and 4,

representing the schedules of the Puget Sound Navi-

gation Company's operations covering respectively

the Bellingham-Victoria Service, the Bellingham-

Anacortes and Sydney, B. C. service, and the

Seattle-Victoria service, may be admitted in evi-

dence as true and correct statements of the services

set forth therein and of arrivals and departures at

which overtime charges have been made, without

prejudice to plaintiff's right to formal objection on

the materiality of such evidence.

7. That Defendant's Exhibits No. 5 and 6, repre-

senting respectively the schedules of the Great

Northern Railroad between Vancouver and Seattle

and the North Coast Transportation Company mo-
tor coach schedule between the same points, may be

admitted in evidence as true and correct statements
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of the schedules therein shown, together with the

arrival and departure points at which overtime ser-

vice is rendered without charge for overtime service

by the Immigration Inspection Service, without

prejudice to plaintiff's right to formal objection on

the materiality of such evidence.

8. That there may be introduced in evidence by

counsel for the defendant folders or schedules and

statements of steamship or ferry services, hereinbe-

fore referred to in Plaintiff's Exhibit "C", as true

and correct statements of the services therein [45]

rendered and as correct statements and descriptions

of the vessels rendering said services as to type

of vessel, schedules, hours and other similar data

which said schedules may contain.

9. That there ma}^ be introduced in evidence by

counsel for the defendant any standard map of the

United States or map showing the border line be-

tween Canada and the United States showing the

ports of entry or other information stated in Plain-

tiff's Exhibit "C"." [46]

Thereupon, the plaintiff, to maintain the issue

upon its part, introduced the following evidence,

to-wit

:

In pursuance of the foregoing stipulation, the

following exhibits were presented by the plaintiff

and admitted in evidence without objection:

Plaintiff's Exhibits A and B: Exhibit A is a

true and correct statement of the charges made

against the defendant in this suit for overtime
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immigration inspection services rendered in exam-

ining passengers entering the United States from

Vancouver or Victoria, B. C on the defendant's ves-

sels, excepting only those items marked "Stricken"

on Exhibit A and enumerated in Exhiint B, repre-

senting charges for special trips or excursions of

defendant's vessels while not operating on regular

schedules. Charges stated on Exhil)it B were con-

fessed and paid by the defendant.

Plaintiff's Exhibits C and C-1: Statement fur-

nished by the Department of Labor, Bureau of

Immigration, of which Exhibit C-1 is a supplemental

statement correcting and enlarging the statement of

Exhibit C as to Immigration District No. 28, em-

bracing ports of entry in the Puget Sound area.

These statements describe the services rendered hy

the United States Immigration Inspection Service

and overtime charges, if any, at all ports of entry

into the United States along the Canadian or ^lexi-

can border lines, and were admitted as the true and

correct testimony of H. R. Landis, Special Super-

visor, Bureau of Immigration, Department of Labor.

It was stipulated that testimony in regard to ports

of entry on the Mexican border had no material

bearing on the case and it is therefore omitted from

the record. This statement covers the tiscal year

ending June 30, 1932, and shows the following

facts

:

ImmigTation inspection service is maintained at

all ports [47] of entry along the border between

Canada and the United States, a total of 108 in

number, the location of said ports being indicated on

the map admitted in evidence as defendant's Ex-
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hibit 7, x>i'inted for convenience on tlie succeeding-

page. That all forms of transportation moving be-

tween Canada and the United States passed through

the various ports of entry shown on the said map,

and that all vehicles carrying passengers to the

United States, to-wit, railroad trains, auto stages,

private vehicles of all sorts, airplanes and vessels on

the Great Lakes and connecting waterways, are met

at i3orts of entry w^here they arrive and passengers

thereon are examined by United States Immigration

Inspectors before admission to the United States, to

determine their qualifications for entry into this

country.

That the hours of service of the United States

Immigration Inspectors maintained at said ports of

entry vary from eight to twenty-four hours per day,

with one, two, or three shifts of inspectors at each

port. That the number of working hours main-

tained at each port by Immigration Inspection

Service, the type of traffic examined and the niun-

ber of applicants examined for the fiscal year ending

June 30, 1932, are as follows (including services

maintained in five offices in Dominion of Canada,

also given in Exhibit C) :
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Port of Entry Hours of Service Traffic Examined

Applicants
Examined,

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, 1932

Dist. No. 3

Yarmouth, N. S. 24 or 16 hours

Halifax, N. S.

St. Johns, N. B.

Eastport, Me.

Time not stated

16 or 24 hours

Time not stated

Calais 24-hr. service

Vanceboro 24-hr. service

Houlton 24-hr. service

Fort Fairfield 16-hr. service

Limestone 16-hr. service

Van Buren 24-hr. service

IMadawaska 24-hr. service

Fort Kent 16-hr. service

Jackman 24-hr. service

Arnold Pond 8-hr. service

Pre-oxamination

passengers Eastern

Steamship Lines to

New York and Boston

on Dominion-Atlantic

Railway trains to

Yarmouth

Pre-examination

trans-Atlantic passengers

to U. S.

Pre-examination

steamship passengers to

New York and Boston

Steamers to and from

Grand Manan Island,

3 ferries daily from
Campo Bello Island,

private boats

4 international bridges

railroad trains

Free bridge; rail-

road trains

railroad train;

mostly liighway tratfic

railroad trains;

mostly highway traffic

all highway traffic

Free bridge traffic

Free bridge traffic

Free bridge traffic

Railroad trains and

highway traffic

Highway traffic

[48]

23,373

40,316

1,838,384

103,304

335,700

109,190

45,704

323,859

544,659

166,086

134,525

14,510
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Port of Entry Hours of Service Traffic Examined

Dist. No. 1 (Headquarters, Newport, Vt.)

Beecher Falls, Vt.

Island Pond and

Norton, Vt.

Derby Line, Vt.

Newport, Vt.

North Troy, Vt.

East Richford, Vt.

Richford, Vt.

West Berkshire, Vt.

Franklin, Vt.

Swanton, Vt.

St. Albans, Vt.

Alburg, Vt.

Rouses Point, N. Y.

16-hr. service

24-hr. service

24-hr. service

24-hr. service

24-hr. service

May to

November

inclusive

;

16-hr. service

December

to April

8-hr. service

16-hr. service

8-hr. service

8-hr. service

24-hr. service

16-hr. service

24-hr. service

16-hr. service

Champlain, N. Y.

Mooers, N. Y.

Chateaugay, N. Y.

JMalone, N. Y.

24-hr. service

16-hr. service

16-hr. service

16-hr. service

Trout River, N. Y. 24-hr. service

Port ("ovington, N. Y. 16-hr. service

Nyando, N. Y.

(Cornwall, Ont.)

Louisville Landing,

N. Y.

Waddington, N. Y.

8-hr. service

8-hr. service

14-hr. service

Highway traffic

Railway trains and

highway traffic

Highway traffic

Railroad trains

Railway trains and

highway traffic

Applicants
Examined,

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, 1932

208,743

Not stated

357,870

[49]

59,270

108,067

Highway traffic 35,375

Highway traffic 113,234

Highway traffic 28,698

Highway traffic 21,671

Highway traffic 381,381

Railway trains 60,857

Highway traffic 62,864

Railway and highway 440,134

traffic, freight steamers and

private boats and airplanes

Highway traffic 184,840

Highway traffic 40,648

Highway traffic 40,897

Railroad trains 26,809

Highway traffic 171,553

Highway and railroad

traffic 75,638

Railroad trains 67,197

Ferry service 11,350

Ferry service 29,895
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Port of Entry Hours of Service Traffic Examined

Applicants
Examined,

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, 1932

Ogdensburg, X. Y. 18-hr. service

Morristown, N. Y. 16-hr. service

Alexandria Bay, N. Y. 8-hr. service

Ferry service

Ferry servit-e

Ferrv service

Clayton, N. Y. 8-hr. service

199,678

62,616

137,858

[50]

52,438Ferry service and private

boats

Ferry service 14,971

J-*re-examiiiation of Not stated

residents of Canada and
trans-Atlantic passengers

to U. S.

Pre-examination of Not stated

Canadian residents and

trans-Atlantic passengers

Dist. No. 4 (Headquarters at Ellis Island, N. Y.)

Albany, N. Y. Not stated Mail and passenger

plane service

Dist. No. 5 (Headquarters at Buffalo, N. Y.)

Cape Vincent, N. Y.

^lontreal, Que.

Quebec, Que.

8-hr. service

Not stated

Not stated

Not stated

Rochester, N. Y. 8-hr. service

Niagara Falls, N. Y. 14-hr. service

Buffalo, N. Y.

Erie, Pa.

Cleveland, 0.

Dist. No. 11

Sandusky, 0.

Detroit, Mich.

16-hr. service

24-hr. service

8-hr. service

July to Sept.

(Headquarters at Detroit, Mich.)

Not stated

24-hr. service

Steamships, passenger 22,205

and freight, also

ferry traffic

Railway trains, high- Not stated

way traffic and air-

planes, 2 bridges

Railway trains, high- 3,714.823

way traffic and air-

planes. 1 bridge

Steam.ships, passenger 15,502

and freight

Steamship traffic 6,849

t, Mich.)

Fishing boats and Not stated

passenger vessels

Railway trains, ferries 6,778,683

planes and freight steamers

51]
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Port of Entry Hours of Service Traffic Examined

Applicants
Examined,

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, 1932

Algonac, Mich. 14-hr. service Ferry service 44,603

Roberts Landing, 14-hr. service Ferry service 33,093

Mich.

Marine City, Mich. 14-hr. service Ferry service 23,729

St. Clair, Mich. 14-hr. service Ferry service 15,668

Port Huron, Mich. 18-hr. service Railroad trains and ferry 562,342

Sanlt Ste. Marie,

I\Iich. 8-hr. service Railway trains, ferries

and freight steamers

Not stated

Dist. No. 14 (Headquarters at Chicago, III.)

Gary, Ind. Not stated Freight steamers

Chicago, 111. Not stated Freight steamers

Milwaukee, Wis. Not stated Freight steamers

Dist. No. 18 (Grand Forks, N. D.)

Duluth, Minn. Not stated Freight steamers

Sunday and holiday

passenger steamers

4,092

Mineral Center, Not stated Highway traffic. 50,764

INIinn. (Pigeon River passenger and freight

Bridge) steamers

Ranier, Minn. 14-hr. service Railway trains and

ferry. Pedestrians on

railroad bridge

11,998

International Falls, 24-hr. service Toll bridge 273,197

Minn.

Bandette, Minn. Not stated Railway traffic and ferry 35,894

Warroad, Minn. 18-hr. service Railway trains and

highway traffic

19,079

Richardson 's Bridge, 8-hr. service Highway traffic 2,971

Minn. [52]

Pine Creek, Minn. 8-hr. service Highway Traffic 6,248

Noyes, Minn. 24-hr. service Highway traffic and 102,875

Pembina, N. D. 24-hr. service

railroad trains

Highway traffic, trains

and airplanes

63,046
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Applicants
Examined,

Fiscal Year
CmH nn

Port of Entry Hours of Service Traffic Examined
cnaing

June 30, 1932

Neehe, N. D. 16-hr. service Highway and railroad

train traffic

32,830

Walhalla, N. D. 8-hr. service Railroad and highyay

traffic

7,109

Hannah, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 5,915

Sarles, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 3,954

St. John, N. D. 16-hr. service Railroad and highway

traffic

14,331

Diinseith, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 4,523

Carbiiry, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 3,906

Westhope, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 7,278

Sherwood, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 34,469

Porta], N. D. 14-hr. service Railroad and highway

traffic

99,328

Noonan, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 14,831

Ambrose, N. D. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 15,834

Westby, Mont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 3,155

Kaymond, jMont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 3,433

Whitetail, Mont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 3,790

Scobey, Mont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 5,649

Opheim, Mont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 2,644

Winnepeg, Man. Not stated Railroad traffic 13,608

Turner, IMont. Not stated Railroad traffic 2,015

Havre, Mont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 2,784

Sweetgrass, 16 to 24 hr . service Railroad and highway 112,046

Mont. traffic [53]

Babb (Piegan), Mont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 20,037

Rooseville, Mont. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 4,960

Gateway, Mont. 8-hr. service Railroad and highway

traffic

5,310

Eastport, Ida. 12 to 24 hour Railroad and highway 24,466

service traffic

Porthill, Ida. 8-hr. service Highway traffic 14,938

Metaline Falls, Wash . 8-hr. service Highway traffic 11,646

Northport, Wash. 8-hr. service Hio'hvray and railroad

traffic

10,395
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Applicants
Examined,

Fiscal Year

Port of Entry Hours of Service Traffic Examined
Ending

June 30, 1932

Laurier, Wash. 8-hr. service Railroad and highway

traffic

8,562

Danville, Wash. 8-hr. service Railroad and highway 8,562

Ferry, Wash. Not stated Highway traffic 2,370

Oroville, Wash. 16-hr. service Highway traffic 28,090

Spokane, Wash. 8-hr. service Airplane traffic Not stated

Blaine, Wash. Peach Arch, 16-hr. Highway traffic and 468,166

service, Pacific railroad trains

Highway 24 hours

Slimmer and 18

hours winter

Lynden, Wash. 15-hr. service Highway traffic 24,887

Sumas, Wash. 16-hr. service Railroad trains and 169,564

Port Angeles, Wash. 10-hr. service

Anacortes, Wash. 8-hr. service

Bellingham, Wash. 8-hr. service

highway traffic

Ferry service to 23,058

Sydney, B. C.

(Overtime charged

against PSN Co.

ferries operating

daily on regular

schedule)

Steamers and PSN 6,582

Co. ferries to

Sydney, B. C.

(Overtime charged

against PSN Co.

ferries operating

daily on regular

schedule)

[54]

Miscellaneous steamer- 7,857

ers and Bellingham-

Victoria ferry service

of PSN Co.

(Overtime charged

against PSN Co.

ferries operating

daily on regular

schedule)



vs. United States of America 75

Port of Entry Hours of Service Traffic Examined

Applicants
Examined,
Fiscal Year

Ending
June 30, 1932

Aberdeen, Wash. 8-hr. service Ocean steamers Not stated

Taconia, Wash. 8-hr. service ^liscellaneous ocean

traffic

Not stated

Seattle, Wash. 8-hr. service Canadian Pacific (defend- 71,540

ant's) vessels from

Victoria and Vancouver,

N. C.

P. S. N. Co. 7,119

All others 147

That across the entire border line at all of the

foregoing ports, no overtime charges are collected or

demanded by the Immigration Inspection Service

for overtime services rendered in examining passen-

gers arriving in the United States upon railroad

trains^ automobile stages, aircraft, vessels on

the Great Lakes and connecting waterways oper-

ating on regular schedules, or for overtime services

rendered in examining passengers arriving through

tunnels or over bridges connecting Canada and the

United States. That the only ports of entry at which

charges have been made for inspection services on

carriers running on regular schedules between

Canada and the United States having arrivals at

Footnote^ : Excluded from consideration as imma-
terial in the case are the charges for overtime ser-

vices rendered by inspectors who go up into Canada
to make inspections while riding on railroad trains

bound for the United States, such extra services

being for accommodation of carriers and passengers

to prevent delay at ports of entry and not included

herein.
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ports of entry after 5 P. M. and before 8 A. M. are

(1) the ports on Puget Sound, to-wit, Port Angeles

(Victoria, B. C.-Port Angeles ferries), Anacortes

(Sidney, B. C.-Anacortes ferries), Bellingham (Sid-

ney, B. C.-Bellingham ferries), and Seattle; (2)

ports on the east coast of the United States where

coastwise vessels ply between Yarmouth and Hali-

fax, [55] N. S., St. Johns, X. B., and Boston and

New York. That the vessels last referred to are

those of the Eastern Steamship Company leaving

Yarmouth and Halifax, N. S. daily during the

three months tourist season, and from two to four

times a week during the remaining nine months of

the year, and leaving St. Johns for Boston and New
York three times a week during the tourist season

and twice a week for the balance of the year.

That all of the regular scheduled arrivals at the

ports in the Puget Sound area first mentioned above,

to-wit, Port Angeles, Anacortes, Bellingham and

Seattle, are arrivals of Puget Sound Navigation

Company ferries plying between such ]3orts and

Victoria or Sidney, B. C. on Vancouver Island, with

the exception of the arrivals of defendant's vessels

at the Port of Seattle from Victoria or Vancouver,

B. C.

Plaintiff's Exhibit D: Photographs of defend-

ant's vessels operating on Victoria-Seattle schedule.

Plaintiff's Exhibit E: Plans of defendant's ves-

sels operating on Victoria-Seattle schedule.

Plaintiff's Exhibit F: Schedule of operations of

defendant's vessels operating on Victoria-Seattle-

Vancouver-Seattle schedules, showing the gross ton-

nage, passenger capacity and number of state-

rooms. [56]
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Whereupon the plaintiff called

OSCAR W. DAMM,

Deputy Collector of Customs at the Port of Seattle,

who testified that the three vessels of the defendant

involved in this suit, the "PRINCESS MAR-
GUERITE", "PRINCESS KATHLEEN" and

"PRINCESS CHARLOTTE", were daily entered

and cleared by the witness as they came in and

went out of the Port of Seattle. Mr. Damm testified

that the vessels were classified by the Steamboat

Inspection Service as foreign passenger vessels.

Whereupon the plaintiff rested and the defendant,

to sustain the issues on its part, introduced the

following evidence

:

In pursuance of the stipulation appearing above

defendant introduced the following exhibits, which

were admitted without objection:

Defendant's Exhibit 1: Schedules of the "PRIN-
CESS MARGUERITE", "PRINCESS KATH-
LEEN", and "PRINCESS CHARLOTTE" run-

ning between Seattle and Victoria, B. C. With

slight and immaterial changes in the time of de-

parture and arrival, the said vessels operated dur-

ing all of the period in controversy on the schedules

stated below, the arrivals FOR WHICH OVER-
TIME IS CHARGED against the defendant being

shown in Italics:

Lv. Victoria, B. C. 4:30 P.M. Lv. Vancouver, B. C. 11:30 P.M.

Arr. Seattle 9:00 P.M. J rr. Seattle 8:00 A.M.

Lv. Seattle 9 :00 A. M. Lv. Seattle 11 :30 P. M.

Arr. Victoria, B. C. 1:15 P.M. Arr. Vancouver, B. C. 8:00 A.M.

[57]
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Defendant's Exhibit 2: Puget Sonncl Naviga-

tion Company's schedule of ferry service between

Bellingham, Washington, and Victoria, B. C, and

between Port Angeles, Washington, and Victoria,

B. C, the daily arrival at Port Angeles requiring

overtime inspection service and FOR WHICH
OVERTIME IS CHARGED against the Naviga-

tion Company being shown in Italics:

Lv. Victoria, B. C. 8 :00 A. M.

Arr. Bellingham 12:00 Noon

Lv. Bellingham 12:30 P. M.

Arr. Victoria 4:30 P.M.
Lv. Victoria 5 :00 P. M.

Arr. Port Angeles 6:40 P.M.
Lv. Port Angeles 7:15 P.M.

Arr. Victoria 8 :55 P. M.

Defendant's Exhibit 3: Puget Sound Naviga-

tion Company schedule for ferry service between

Bellingham, Anacortes and Sidney, B. C, showing

that the ferries "CITY OF ANGELES" and

"ROSARIO" depart from Anacortes and Belling-

ham each morning at 6:30 A.M. and 10:15 A.M.,

respectively, for Sidney, B. C. and leave Sidney,

B. C. at 11:15 A.M. and 4:30 P.M., respectively,

and arrive at the port of entry, Anacortes, at 2:35

P. M. and 9 :00 P. M., respectively, daily, the last ar-

rival requiring overtime immigTation inspection ser-

vice, FOR WHICH OVERTIME IS CHARGED.
Defendant's Exhibit 4: Puget Sound Naviga-

tion Company schedule of Seattle-Victoria service

of the S. S. ''IROQUOIS", showing a daily de-
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parture from Seattle for Victoria at midnight, and

a daily departure from Victoria, B. C. for Seattle

at 10:15 A.M. and arrival in Seattle daily at or

about 6:00 P. M., which said arrival requires over-

time immigration inspection service FOR WHICH
OVERTIME IS CHARGED against the aforesaid

company. [58]

Defendant 's Exhibit 5 : Showing Great Northern

Railroad schedule of trains between Seattle and

Vancouver, showing two trains daily to Vancouver

from Seattle and two trains daily from Vancouver

at 8 :30 A. M. and 5 :30 P. M. respectively, arriving

at port of entry, Blaine, at 9 :55 A. M. and 6:55 P. M.

respectively, the last arrival requiring overtime

immigration inspection service FOR WHICH NO
OVERTIME HAS EVER BEEN CHARGED
against the Great Northern Railroad Company.

Defendant's Exhibit 6: Schedule of the North

Coast Transportation Company operating auto

stages between Vancouver and Seattle, Washington,

showing six passenger stages per day from Seattle

to Vancouver and six stages from Vancouver to

Seattle, operating on regular schedules, three of

which arrive at port of entry, Blaine, Washington,

after 5:00 P. if., requiring overtime immigration

inspection service, FOR WHICH NO OVERTIME
HAS EVER BEEN CHARGED against the North

Coast Transportation Company.

Defendant's Exhibit 7: Map of the United

States-Canadian border line, with the locations of

ports of entry mentioned in plaintiff's Exhibits C

and C-1, the ports at which NO OVERTIME IS
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CHARGED against carriers operating on re^^iilar

schedules and arriving after 5:00 P.M. and before

8 :00 A. M. being shown by red marks, and ports

of entry at which OVERTIME IS CHARGED
being shown by a bhie circle. [59]

Defendant's Exhibit 8: A chart of Puget Sound,

showing Vancouver Island and the main highway

thereof terminating at Victoria, B. C, and the route

of the defendant's vessels to Seattle from Victoria;

showing also the runs of the Puget Sound Naviga-

tion Company ferries mentioned in Exhibits 2, 3

and 4; also the Great Northern Railway and North

Coast Transportation Company route between Van-

couver and Seattle.

Defendant's Exhibit 9: Showing schedules of

steamship services on the Great Lakes and connect-

ing waterways, Canadian steamship lines, Cleveland

& Buffalo SteamshiiD Line, Northern Navigation

Company; showing vessels arriving at ports of en-

try on the Great Lakes, mentioned in plaintiff's

exhibits C and C-1, for which no overtime charge is

made for inspection of passengers against vessels

operating on regular schedules, and showing routes

of vessels from Canadian ports to American ports

of entry, varying from 196 miles over Lake Superior

from Port Arthur, Ontario, to Duluth, Minnesota,

to 42 miles over Lake Ontario from Toronto, On-

tario, to Buffalo, New York.

Defendant's Exhibit 10: Eastern Steamship Com-

pany schedules showing vessels and services men-

tioned in plaintiff's exhibits C and C-1, testimony of

H. R. Landis, showing ocean-going coastwise vessels
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operating between Halifax and Yarmouth, Nova
Scotia, and St. Johns, New Brunswick, the distances

traveled being* as follows:

Yarmouth, N. S. to New York 461 miles

Yarmouth, N. S. to Boston 237 miles

St. Johns, N. B. to Boston 286 miles

and the vessels rendering the service being of the

following sizes and capacities: [60]

Number
Displacement of

Name Tonnage Berths

S. S. "ACADIA" 10,000 Tons 750

S. S. '^YARMOUTH" 7,000 Tons 750

S. S. "EVANGELINE" 7,000 Tons 750

S. S. "SAINT JOHN" 10,000 Tons 750

This exhibit also shows scores of coast towns at

which the vessels of the line stop along the route,

showing the coastwise character of the service.

Defendant's Exhibit 11: Committee reports in

the House of Representatives and United States

Senate (S. 1126; H. R. 3309), reporting favorably

on Overtime Act and showing the purpose thereof,

to wit, that the act was aimed at the arrival of an

increasing number of ocean vessels and passengers

thereon at irregular, unanticipated hours after 5 :00

P. M. and before 8 :00 A. M., requiring special over-

time service from United States Immigration In-

spectors, both reports citing the following figures,

among others

:

"The following summary for the month of

March, 1930, at the Port of New York, is both
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recent and informative on the subject of over-

time

—

Arriving passenger steamers from

foreign ports requiring assignment

of immigration inspectors 278

Number of same requiring over-

time duty 41

Number of inspectors performing

overtime, each occasion 1 to 16

Total number of overtime hours in

which inspection occurred 130

Grand total hours of overtime of

all inspectors 833"

Defendant's Exhibit 12: Regulations of the De-

partment of Labor, Bureau of Immigration, per-

taining to administration of the Overtime Act at

issue, and Comptroller General's decision constru-

ing the same.

Defendant's Exhibit 13: Pictures of defendant's

vessels [61] used on Seattle-A^ictoria run, showing

handling of vehicular traffic and deck space there-

for and method of ingress and egress.

Defendant's Exhibit 14: Plans of automobile

decks showing accommodations for vehicular traffic

on each vessel.

Defendant's Exhibit 15: Showing the following

traffic carried between Victoria and Seattle and

Vancouver and Seattle between March 1, 1932, and

February 28, 1933:
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PASSENGERS C^ARRIED

Month 4:30 PM 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:40 PM 1:00 AM 11:30 PM
Vic. Sea. Sea. Vic. Sea. Van. Van. Sea. Vic. Sea. Sea. Van.

March 1932 1,358 1,048 322 833 943

April 1932 1,412 1,249 377 656 — 970

May 1932 2,577 2,403 584 499 707 939

June 1932 2,490 2,332 1,979 664 610 1,299

July 1932 4,534 4,721 2,504 788 826 1,410

August 1932 3,789 3,917 3,870 741 902 1,571

Sept. 1932 3,614 3,118 1,254 865 286 1,276

Oct. 1932 1,463 1,234 522 744 — 824

Nov. 1932 1,247 1,120 211 579 — 875

Dec. 1932 1,336 1,282 181 542 — 776

Jan. 1933 1,001 805 172 617 — 700

Feb. 1933 709 602 165 483 — 561

Totals 25,530 23,831 12,141 8,011 3,331 12,144

Total passengers from Vancouver and Victoria to Seattle 45,387

Total passengers from Seattle to Vancouver and Victoria 48,116

AUTOMOBILES CARRIED

Month 4:30 PM 9:00 AM 9:00 AM 11:40 PM 1:00 AM 11:30 PM
Vic. Sea. Sea. Vic. Sea. Van. Van. Sea. Vic. Sea. Sea. Van.

March 1932 49 37 — 5 11

April 1932 73 54 3 11 — 11

May 1932 131 110 1 9 45 6

June 1932 129 96 2 7 40 13

July 1932 247 192 4 15 53 9

Aug. 1932 231 195 10 7 86 13

Sept. 1932 219 138 2 15 26 13

Oct. 1932 88 6S 3 12 — 5

Nov. 1932 45 44 — 14 — 7

Dec. 1932 38 34 — 5 — 3

Jan. 1933 29 15 — 12 — 9

Feb. 1933 31 21 — 9 — 3

Totals 1,310 1,004 25 121 250 103

[62]

Total automobiles from Vancouver and Victoria to Seattle 1,498

Total automobiles from Seattle to Vancouver and Victoria 1,132
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Defendant's Exhibit 16: Defendant's folder ad-

vertising ferry service in the waters of Puget Sound,

said folder showing, among other things, a map with

"Ferry Routes" marked thereon, to and from Van-

couver Island and the mainland on the Canadian and

the American sides. Said folder invites travelers to

"drive your car on board", states the schedules

shown in defendant's Exhibit 1, and show^s the auto-

mobile rates from Seattle to Victoria, Seattle to

Vancouver, and betw^een other points.

Defendant's Exhibit 17: Schedule showing the

relation of overtime charges to revenues derived

from the passenger business of the defendant's ves-

sels from January to June inclusive of 1932. [63]

Said schedule shows the following totals:

Total passengers from Victoria and

Vancouver, B. C. to Seattle 19,659

Total passenger revenues $46,465.55

Total overtime bills $ 2,127.53

Ratio, overtime charges to gross

revenue 4%%

Defendant's Exhibit 18: Pictures of Puget Sound

Na^dgation Company vessels referred to in Ex-

hibits 2, 3 and 4, to-wit, Puget Sound Navigation

Company ferries, plying between Bellingham and

Victoria and Port Angeles and Victoria, between

Anacortes and Sidney, B. C, and betw^een Seattle

and Victoria.



vs. United States of America 85

Defendant's Exhibit 19: Rules and regulations

of the Board of Supervising Inspectors

—

Bays, Sounds and Lakes, other than tlie Great

Lakes (March 2, 3931).

This book of regulations issued ]:)y the L^nited

States Department of Commerce for the Steam-

boat Inspection Service contains in Rule VII, page

126, the entire regulations in regard to "Ferry

Boats". The only requirement specified for the

qualification of a vessel as a "ferry" is that

—

"All ferry boats of more than seventy-five

gross tons carrying passengers for hire, the

construction of which is commenced after

March 31, 1913, shall be supplied with a suf-

ficient number of water-tight bulkheads to float

the vessel if any compartment is flooded."

The balance of the regulation provides that life-

sa^dng equipment shall be aioproved b}^ the Steam-

boat Inspectors, that there shall be life preservers

on board for all persons, that fire apparatus shall

be provided as on any passenger steamer of equal

size.

Whereupon the defendant called

Captain CYRIL NEROUTSOS,

who being first duly sworn on oath said that he was

the [64] manager of the British Columbia Steam-

ship Service of the Canadian Pacific Railway Com-
pany, operating the vessels involved in this case.

Captain Neroutsos, after testifying as to the fore-
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going position and his services for the company

since 1911, as either Marine Superintendent or

General Manager, testified as follows

:

That defendant's Exhibit 1 is a true statement of

the schedules of the defendant's vessels operating

in Puget Sound during the period involved in this

controversy. That the -direct run from Victoria,

B. C. to Seattle and return, leaving Victoria at

about 4:30 P. M. and arriving at Seattle at 9:00

P. M., had been established in 1903 and had been

maintained ever since as a daily schedule with

slight variations in the hour of departure and

arrival. That defendant's exhibit 13 includes pic-

tures of the defendant's vessels "PRINCESS
CHARLOTTE ", "PRINCESS KATHLEEN '

',

and "PRINCESS MARGUERITE", as sho\\m

thereon, showing the main deck or automobile deck,

and the approach and method by which automobiles

are embarked and disembarked at Victoria and Se-

attle. That the "PRINCESS KATHLEEN" and

"PRINCESS MARGUERITE" were built for this

particular purpose of carrying a large nimiber of

passengers and their automobiles, if any, and to

operate in the inland waters of Puget Sound, parti-

cularly between Seattle and Victoria. That said

vessels receive the automobile traffic from Victoria

on Vancouver Island and transport the same to

Seattle and vice versa. That the traffic is a part

of the current of passenger and automobile traffic

from the mainland to Nanaimo on Vancouver Island,

down the highway to Victoria and thence to Seattle
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or vice versa from Vancouver down the mainland

to Seattle and thence to Victoria and up the Van-

couver Highway.

That in reference to the charts of Puget Sound

waters (defendant's Exhibit S), all points sliown

on the charts, to-wit, [65] Bollingham, Anacortes,

Seattle and Port Angeles on the American side of

the border line, and Victoria, Sidney and Nanaimo

on Vancouver Island and Vancouver on the main-

land, were all connections of the varioiLs routes

operated in the district on the waters of Puget

Sound, and that the Puget Sound Navigation Com-

pany routes and those of the defendant were inter-

locking routes. That the companies operating over

these routes between the various points interchange

tickets and passengers with each other, to the end

that they are linked one with he other, rendering

the same automobile ferry service to and from all of

the points named by means of the vessels pictures

in plaintiff's Exhibit D and defendant's exhibits

13, 14 and 18.

That the defendant had a cooperating arrange-

ment with the Puget Sound Navigation Company
in the operation of these international services and

that the defendant had transported passengers and

their cars from Victoria to Seattle during all the

years since the service was put into effect in 1903,

although the automobile traffic had greatly increased

in recent years. That the automobiles of passengers

were handled by driving the car on the defendant's

vessels, the passenger being given a baggage check
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therefor. That the automobiles are handled as the

personal baggage of the owner. That the car enters

the ships of the deefndant just as it left the high-

way, with gasoline in the car, and wdth the ignition

of the car not disconnected.

That the customary method of handling automo-

l)iles on ocean-going vessels is to have the car

drained of gasoline, hoisted up and lowered into

the ship's hold and booked as freight, and not as

passenger baggage. That a bill of lading is usually

issued for such a shipment and in many cases the

cars are crated.

That in respect to the vessels of the Eastern

Steamshi}) [^QG^ Company, referred to in defend-

ant's Exhibit 10, operating between Halifax and

St. Johns, New Brunswick, and Yarmouth, Nova

Scotia, and coast ports of the United States, these

vessels were steamships built of a heavy structure

forward for ocean-going travel; that the bulkhead

from the forecastle head to the passenger accom-

modations were built of heavy steel construction to

resist heavy seas, just as in the case of trans-

Atlantic vessels. That the Eastern Steamship Com-

pany vessels, "YARMOUTH" and ''EVANGE-
LINE" (7,000 tons displacement), and the "ST.

JOHNS" and "ARCADIA" (10,000 tons displace-

ment) were built for and operated in ocean-going

oi:)erations, whereas the vessels of the defendant

here at issue are an evolution of the steamboat or

small steamers which formerly operated in Puget

Sound, side-wheelers and stern-wheelers which did

not have to suffer any great stress of weather and
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ran on short routes. That the vessels of the de-

fendant are constructed for inland waters only and

that the vessels are constructed with open salon

decks opening out on the main deck and surrounded

by glass windows looking out over the fore deck.

That said construction could never stand heavy seas

but was for sheltered inland waters and short runs.

That furthermore, the vessels of the defendant com-

pany were from 2,000 to 3,000 tons smaller than

the vessels of the Eastern Steamship Company ply-

ing in the North Atlantic. The latter vessels have

750 berths, whereas the defendant's vessels have

from 206 to 290 berths. That the defendant's

vessels, constructed in Scotland, had to be brought

to this port under a special permit, were not per-

mitted to carry passengers, and that the window and

forward bulkhead had to ])e protected with steel

and heavy lumber to protect them from the sea dur-

ing the voyage from Scotland to this port.

That the plans contained in the folio marked
"Exhibit 14" [67] show the main deck plans of the

defendant's vessels for the accommodation of auto-

mobiles.

Whereupon the defendant called

Mr. H. W. SCHOFIELD,

who testified as follows; after being first duly

sworn

:

That he was the District Passenger Agent for the

Canadian Pacific Railway Company and the British
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Columbia Coastal Steamship Service and had oc-

cupied that position since 1926 and prior to that

time had served as chief clerk, same department,

where he had been employed by the defendant com-

pany for 21 years. That Exhibit 15 had been pre-

pared under his supervision and instruction and

Avas a correct statement of the automobile and

passenger traffic between Seattle and Victoria, B. C.

and correctly represented all other information con-

tained in said exhibit.

That Exhibit 16 represented a schedule of the de-

fendant offered to the public showing its various

services on Puget Sound and inviting the public

to use the ferrv service provided for automobiles

and passengers to points indicated therein. That

said advertising matter as well as other forms of

advertising matter were distributed and broadcast

throughout the Pacific Coast region.

That defendant's Exhibit 17 showing the passen-

ger revenues from January to June, 1932, on de-

fendant's vessels from Victoria and Vancouver to

Seattle, compared to the overtime charges made as

charged in this suit, showed the overtime charges

to be four and one-half per cent of the gross

revenues.

Whereupon the defendant called

Captain A. M. PEABODY,
who testified as follows, after being first duly

sworn: [68]
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That he was the President of Piiget Sound Navi-

gation Company and had served in that capacity

since 1929, and prior thereto had been Vice-Presi-

dent and Secretary of the company since 1926. That

the witness had l)een at sea al.'out ten years prior

thereto and had an unlimited master's license.

That the Puget Sound Navigation Company was

entirely separate and independent of and competi-

tive with the defendant company but that both com-

panies rendered similar services in the same terri-

tory and performed the same service to the public.

That the tickets of the defendant company and the

Puget Sound Navigation Company were inter-

changeable, so that passengers could travel on either

line of vessels.

That defendant's Exhibits 2, 3 and 4 correctly

represented the operating schedules of the Puget

Sound Navigation Company ferries between Ana-

cortes, Bellingham and Sidney, Port Angeles and

Victoria, Seattle and Victoria.

That Exhibit 18 showed the ferries "ROSARIO",
''CITY OF ANGELES", "PUGET", "IRO-
QUOIS" and "OLYMPIC", built to render ferry

service between the points indicated in British

Columbia and Puget Sound ports; that the routes

marked in blue pencil on defendant's Exhibit 8

were those representing international ferry opera-

tions of Puget Sound Navigation Company. That

the Puget Sound Navigation Company advertised

to the public that ferry service for passengers and

vehicles would be supplied to and from all of said

points.
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That the aforesaid vessels of the Puget Sound

Navigation Company were classified as ''ferry

vessels" by the United States Steamboat Inspection

Service and that the witness was familiar with the

requirements of United States Steamboat Inspection

Service for classifying vessels as ferries; that the

Puget Sound Navigation Company had had vessels

changed from the classification of [69] "passenger

vessels" to that of "ferry vessels" in pursuance of

Rule VII of the Regulations of the Steamboat In-

spection Service (Ex. 19, p. 126). That the only re-

quirement of the Steamboat Inspection Service in

changing a vessel from passenger vessel to ferry

vessel was that the vessel have water-tight com-

partments so that any one of the compartments

could be filled with water and the vessel would re-

main afloat, and that an inspection was made to

determine whether the bulkheads dividing the

vessel were water-tight in accordance with these

regulations. That in lieu of bulkheads the Steam-

boat Inspection Service permitted air tanks for

buoyancy to be placed in the ship and would still

classify it as a ferry vessel. That there is no re-

quirement whatsoever as to the form, shape, con-

struction of the vessel (except as to the bulkheads

mentioned) or as to the manner of ingress or egress

of vehicular traffic. That practically all of the

vessels of the Puget Sound Navigation Company
w^ere formerly passenger vessels and were converted

to ferry vessels which in some cases necessitated the

additional bulkhead to meet the requirements of
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the ferry classitication, but that these were the only

requirements.

That the witness was familiar with the vessels of

the defendant company rendering the services above

described on Puget Sound and that there was noth-

ing in the United States Steamboat Inspection

Service regulations which would prevent the classi-

fication of said defendant's vessels as ferries if they

were owned by an American owner and application

was made to the United States Steamboat Inspec-

tion Service for classification as ferries. That said

vessels could be classified as ferries without any

doubt, providing they satisfied the bulkhead require-

ment.

That Exhibit 19 was a true and correct statement

of the traffic carried by Puget Sound Navigation

Company on the run [70] indicated between Puget

Sound ports and Victoria and Sidney, B. C, in-

dicated in Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4. That the defendant

and the Puget Sound Navigation Company have a

cooperative arrangement whereby the tickets of each

company can be used on the vessels of either com-

pany going to and from Puget Sound ports to the

British Columbia ports named by whichever route

the passenger prefers, but that there is no inter-

locking ownership at all between the two companies,

that the businesses are highly competitive, and that

the Puget Sound Navigation Company gets all the

business it can at all times.



94 Canadian Pacific Ry. Co.

Whereupon the defendant rested and the plaintiff

stated that it had no further testimony to offer.

Thereupon the defendant made the following mo-

tion:

''MOTION FOR SPECIAL FINDINGS AND
CONCLUSIONS OR, IN THE ALTERNATIVE,
FOR JUDGMENT.

"Comes now the defendant and moves the court

to find specially that the operations carried on by

the defendant in connection with which overtime of

immigration inspectors is sought to be collected con-

stitutes the operation of international ferries ex-

empted from lability for such overtime pursuant to

the proviso of Title 8, U. S. C. A., Section 109B,

and to find therefrom that the defendant is not

liable for the overtime of immigration inspectors

sought to be recovered in this action.

In the alternative, that the court grant judgment

in favor of the defendant."

Whereupon the court denied the defendant's mo-

tion to enter special findings, and denied the de-

fendant's motion in the alternative for judgment in

its favor, to which rulings and each and every part

thereof the defendant excepted and its exception

was allowed.

Whereupon the court took the case under advise-

ment until October 9, 1933, on which date the court

entered its memorandum decision as follows, to-

wit: [71]
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In the United States District Court for the West-

ern District of Washington, Northern Division.

No. 20730

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs.

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
a foreign corporation,

Defendant.

October, 1933.

DECISION.
The plaintiff has brought this action to recover

compensation for overtime service performed by em-

ployees of the immigration service, as provided by

Act approved March 2, 1931 (8 USCA 109a, b, and

Department of Labor General Order 175, issued

April 27, 1931.

The court finds the following facts

:

The defendant is a foreign corporation operating

a \\en of steamships on the waters of Puget Sound,

the Gulf of Georgia, Straits of De Fuca, and the

Pacific Ocean, and operates a triangular service

between Seattle, Victoria and Vancouver, B. C, over

waters classified by the United States Department

of Commerce by the Pilot Rules for Inland Waters

as a portion of the high seas. (Page 14), two

steamers going in opposite directions: Victoria,

Seattle and Vancouver; and Victoria, Vancouver

and Seattle, on regular daily schedule. Day service

:

Leave Vancouver 10:30 A.M., arrive Victoria 3
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P.M., leaving Victoria 3:45 P.M., arrive Seattle

8:30 P.M.; Leave Seattle 9 A.M., arrive Victoria

2 P.M., arrive Vancouver 6:30 P.M. [72] Night

service: Leave Seattle 11:30 P. M., arrive Van-

couver 8 A.M. ; leave Vancouver 1 P.M., arrive Se-

attle 7:30 A.M. The service between Victoria and

Seattle was inaugurated in 1903, and the triangular

service in 1908.

It is testified that the vessels used were designed

and constructed for this particular service to
'

' carry

a large number of passengers and accommodate the

automobiles and passengers that traveled with them,

and some mail and minor shipments of cargo in

the way of small shipments of perishables; but, in

the main, they are passenger steamers and carry a

large number of passengers, and of recent years the

growth of automobile traffic necessitated further

development of that type, and the Princess Mar-

guerite and the Princess Kathleen are the outgrowth

of this development."

Defendant has no license or franchise to operate

a ferry line with these vessels. The defendant is

operating regular ferry lines between Nanaimo and

Vancouver; Sidney and Anacortes; Victoria and

Port Angeles, but on these ferry routes the conven-

tional open-end type of ferry boats are used.

The vessels, for the examination of the passengers

and crews of which overtime pay is sought, are:

Princess Kathleen, tonnage 2875.12, passengers

1280; berths 290; Princess Charlotte, tonnage

3924.74, passengers 600, berths 230 ; Princess Louise,

tonnage 4031.92, passengers 400, berths 262; Prin-
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cess Adelaide, tonnage 3061, passengers 400, berths

206; Princess Marguerite, tonnage, passengers and

l^erths not given. Each vessel, also, has a spacious

dining room. In the advertising matter of the de-

fendant, these vessels are referred to as ''Princess

Liners", and are classified by the United States

Steamboat Insi)ection Service as foreign passenger

steamers. The distance from Victoria to Vancouver

is approximately 85 miles; from Victoria to Seattle,

81 miles; from Vancouver to Seattle, 145 miles.

Vancouver is approx- [73] imately 25 miles north

of the International Boundary, and Seattle is ap-

proximately 120 miles south of it. The route from

Seattle to Vancouver crosses the waters of Puget

Sound, Straits of Georgia and a part of the high

sea, and is in a general parallel course to the coast

line and shore line of the Great Northern Railway

running from Seattle to Vancouver. The Puget

Sound Navigation Company operates an interna-

tional passengers, etc., ferry service, but its vessels

are all built upon the conventional ferryboat lines,

with open end for embarking and de^^arking auto-

mobiles and passengers.

During the period from March 1, 1932, to Feb-

ruary 28, 1933, the defendant carried from Van-

couver and Victoria to Seattle, 45,387 passengers;

from Seattle to Vancouver and Victoria, 48,116;

1498 automobiles from Vancouver and Victoria to

Seattle, and 1133 automobiles from Seattle to Van-

couver and Victoria. Automobiles are embarked and

debarked from the defendant's vessels at side port

or gangway. Some of the older vessels had to have
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the gangway opened wider to accommodate the

automobiles.

Overtime charges amomit to $4248.80.

From the foregoing facts the conchision must

follow

:

That the defendant's boats in issue are not in-

ternational ferries within the exception of section

109b, Title 8 USCA:

"Provided, that this section shall not apply

to the inspection at designated ports of entry

of passengers arriving by international ferries,

bridges or tunnels, or by aircraft, railroad

trains, or vessels on the Great Lakes and con-

necting waterways, when operating on regular

schedules (March 2, 1931, c. 368, sec. 2, 46

Stat. 1467).

ANTHONY SAVAGE, U. S. Attorney,

HAMLET P. DODD, Asst. U. S. Atty.,

For Plaintiff;

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
For Defendant. [74]

NETERER, District Judge:

A ferry line is a creation of local franchise after

finding of necessity, after notice and formal hear-

ing by local authority, and may be intrastate, inter-

state, and by the same token, international. Vol. 6,

Title 32, sees. 5462-5486, Rem. Comp. Stat, of Wash-
ing-ton. The type of the vessels and the service ren-

dered, aside from the local license or franchise, ob-
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viously determine the character of the service. The

vessels are of the ocean liner type, with a deck

arrangement for automobiles with other cargo, all

embarking and debarking at the side port or gang-

way. The spacious dining room service and berths

and sleeping apartments indicates comfort and

service, other than ferry service. A ferry is a service

of necessity, for the common good, to reach a point

across a stream, lagoon or lake, or bay. The service

of the vessels in issue predominates in no such

service, but rather offers a privilege to view the

scenic beauties afforded by the many islands of the

San Juan Archipelago of Puget Sound, pronounced

by tourists to equal the beauties of the Thousand

Islands of the Gulf of St, Lawrence, and is said the

picturesque sunset is not surpassed by the sunset

of the Bay of Naples, and give, instead of a ferry

service, a delightful scenic service and service com-

petitive—not necessary—with the almost parallel

line of the railway and the Pacific Highway, a

public thoroughfare between Seattle and Vancouver,

B. C, for a distance of approximately 145 miles.

Nor does the service furnish a connecting link for

highway traffic. (Of course, highways emanate from

each city terminus of the steamship line where the

ships berth at the ocean docks.) A ferry may be

said to be a necessary service by specially con-

structed boat to carry passengers and property

across rivers or bodies of water from a place on one

shore to a point conveniently opposite on the other

shore and in continuation of a highway making con-

nections [75] with a thoroughfare at each terminus.
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Anciently, a ferry performed the same service of

carry people and cargo across a river small lagoon

or narrow lake on tlie watercraft as was later, and

is, carried by a bridge structure above the water.

This service was extended to larger lakes and other

larger bodies of water in extension of, or forming

a connecting link to highways.

The distance from Seattle to Vancouver over the

defendant's route and the distance between the same

points over the line of railway and public highway

are approximately the same. The court judicially

knows that the Pacific Highway is a construction ac-

cording to the modern scientific conception of hard

surface highway, with the distance approximately

the same as the railway or the steamboat route.

Defendant has no license or franchise to operate

a ferry within the boundaries of the state of Wash-
ington. The police power of the state, no doubt, ex-

tends to regulation of a ferry operating in and

into the state, if interstate or foreign commerce is

not directly burdened. St. Claire Co. v. I. S. & C. T.

Co., 192 US 454. Nor has the Congress the power

to interfere with police regulation relating exclu-

sively to internal affairs. Regulation of operation

of international ferries within the state is feasible

without violation of international custom or law.

United States v. UeWitt, 76 US 41 (9 AVall.). Nor
is the United States concerned with conditions in

which internal trade may be carried on. The Trade-

mark Cases, 100 U.S. 82. Nor to the reasonable

regulation of wharves, piers, docks, boat lands, etc.

Cannon v. New Orleans, 87 U.S. 577 (20 Wall.)
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Nor establishment of ferries. Conway v. Taylor's

Executors, 1 Black 603.

It is o])vioiis from the conventional seagoing con-

struction of the vessels, the character of the service

rendered and absence of compliance or attempt to

comply with local ferry laws, the defendant was not

and is not operating the vessels in issue as an [76]

international ferry, and therefore within the excep-

tion 109b, Title 8, USCA; and judgment must fol-

low for the plaintiff.

United States District Judge. [77]

and the court ordered that said memorandum de-

cision be entered as its findings of fact and con-

clusions of law, and the defendant took exception

to said memorandum decision and each and every

part thereof and to said order adopting the court's

decision as its findings of fact and conclusions of

law, and each and every part thereof, which ex-

ceptions were duly allowed. Thereupon the court

entered its order and judgTnent for the plaintiff, to

which order and each and every part thereof, the

defendant excepted and its exceptions were allowed.

Each of said exceptions of the defendant were based

upon the grounds set forth by said defendant in its

memorandum of authorities in support of its mo-

tion for judgment in its favor, to-wit, upon the

ground that the defendant was entitled to have

judgment entered in its favor dismissing the plain-
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tiff's action as a matter of law and on the ground

that the statutes authorizing the Bureau of Immi-

gration, Department of Labor, to collect overtime

pay from certain carriers for the examination of

passengers arriving at ports of entry of the United

States after 5 :(X) P. M. and before 8 :00 A. M. does

not apply to the defendant or to the examination

of passengers arriving by its vessels described in

this suit, and on the gTOimd that the proviso of the

act authorizing pa^T^nent of overtime to Immigra-

tion Inspectors specifically exempts from such

charges the defendant's vessels operating as inter-

national ferries, and on the ground that the vessels

of the defendant described in this suit are interna-

tional ferries within the meaning of the aforesaid

proviso, and on the ground and for the reason that

the rulings of the court disregarded the intent and

purpose of the aforesaid act and the intent and pur-

pose of the proviso thereof exempting regular sched-

uled traffic between the United States and Canada,

and on the ground that the court's rulings and the

aforesaid con- [78] struction of said statute effect

an unjust discrimination against the defendant

which would render the aforesaid statute uncon-

stitutional.

At the trial of said cause plaintiff's Exhibits ''A"

to "F" inclusive and defendant's Exhibits 1 to 20

inclusive were admitted in evidence, said Exhibits

being attached hereto.

And at the trial of said cause such proceedings

were had and such evidence was offered and such

motions and such rulings by the court were made,
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and such exceptions were taken and saved at the

respective times of the several rulings and actions

excej^ted to as herein indicated in the foregoing

pages. Inasmuch as the matters and things above

set forth do not fully appear of record, the said

defendant, the Canadian Pacific Railway Company,

tenders and presents the foregoing as its Bill of

Exceptions in said cause and prays that the same

may be settled, allowed, signed and sealed and made
a part of the record in said cause by this Honorable

Court pursuant to law in such cases.

Which is accordingly done and ordered by the

court on this 20th day of December, 1933, in term.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
District Judge.

Now in furtherance of justice and that right may
be done, the defendant tenders and presents the

foregoing as its bill of exceptions in the above en-

titled cause and prays that the same may be settled,

allowed, signed and certified as provided by law.

BOGLE, BOGLE AND GATES,
Attorneys for Defendant.

The foregoing bill of exceptions is approved as

to form: QMmmd for Entry.
^>**^**^ ANTHONY SAVAGE

By HAMLET P. DODD
[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [79]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR APPEAL.

To the Honorable Jeremiah Neterer, District Judge

:

The above named defendant feeling aggTieved by

the judgment entered against it herein in the above

entitled cause on the 6th day of November, 1933,

does hereby appeal from said judgment and each

and every part thereof, and from each and every

adverse ruling made in the above entitled cause, to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, for the reasons set forth in the as-

signment of errors filed herewith, and it prays that

its appeal be allowed, and that citation be issued

as provided by law and that a transcript of the

record, proceedings and documents upon which said

judgment was based, duly authenticated, l)e sent to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, under the rules of said court in such

cases made and provided.

And your petitioner further jorays that the proper

order relating to the required security to be required

of it be made.

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
a corporation, defendant and appellant.

By Bogie, Bogle & Gates,

Its Attorneys [80]

Appeal allowed, to operate as a supersedeas,

upon the petitioner filing a bond in the sum of
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$7500.00, with sufficient surety, to be conditioned as

required by law.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
District Judge.

Copy received Dec. 20, 1933.

HAMLET P. DODD,
Asst. U.S. Atty.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [81]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

Comes now the defendant in the above entitled

cause and files its assignments of error upon which

it relies upon the prosecution of the appeal in the

above entitled cause from the judgment entered

herein by this Honorable Court on the 6th day of

November, 1933:

1. That the United States District Court for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Div-

ision, erred in entering judgment for the plaintiff

against the defendant for wages claimed by the

plaintiff to be due and payable to United States

Immigration Inspectors on account of overtime

immigration inspection service rendered to passen-

gers on the defendant's vessels arriving at Seattle,

Washing-ton, daily on regular schedules, after 5:00

P. M. and before 8 :00 A. M.

2. That the said court erred in holding that de-

fendant's vessels operating on regular schedules
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between Vancouver, B. C. and Seattle, and Vic-

toria, B. C. and Seattle, were subject to the over-

time innnigration inspection service charges as pro-

vided in the Act of March 2, 1931 (8 U. S. C. A.

109a, b) and in failing to hold that said vessels were

exempt from the said overtime immigration inspec-

tion service charged by reason of the following

proviso of the above quoted act: [82]

"Provided that this action shall not apply to

the inspection at designated ports of entry of

passengers arriving by international ferries,

bridges or tunnels, or by aircraft, railroad

trails, or vessels on the Great Lakes or connect-

ing waterways, and operating on regular sched-

ules."

3. That the said court erred in failing to find

that Congress intended, in adopting the foregoing

proviso of the Overtime Act, to exempt from the

pa^Tiient of overtime charges all vessels rendering

international ferry service on regular schedules

across the border line between Canada and the

United States, and in failing to find that the defend-

ant 's vessels between Victoria and Seattle and Van-

couver and Seattle were rendering such services,

and in failing to enter the defendant's proposed

findings of fact and conclusions of law.

4. That the said court erred in holding that the

said vessels of the defendant were not '^ interna-

tional ferries" within the meaning of the foregoing

proviso because the defendant had no franchise to

operate international ferries and because the de-

fendant's vessels had ''side ports" for the ingress
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and egress of vehicular traffic instead of entrances

at the bow and stern of said vessels, as is usual in

the ''conventional ferry boats"; and in holding that

the design and construction of said vessels deter-

mine whether or not they are "international

ferries" within the meaning of the proviso, and in

failing to hold that the character of the service

rendered and not the design of the vessels deter-

mines their status under the act and their right to

exemption from overtime charges.

5. That said court erred in failing to hold that

the construction placed upon the aforesaid act by

the Bureau of Immigration, Department of Labor,

in holding that defendant's vessels operating be-

tween Victoria and Seattle and Vancouver and

Seattle were [83] were not "international ferries"

entitled to exemption from overtime immigration

inspection service charges, constituted an arbitrary

and unlawful construction of said act which renders

the same unconstitutional, in that said construction

of the act constitutes an unlawful and arbitrary

discrimination against this defendant and in favor

of common carriers of passengers competing with

the defendant and rendering the same or similar

services between Canada and the United States.

6. That the said court erred in failing to enter

judgment of dismissal.

7. That the said court erred in denying defend-

ant's and appellant's motion to judgment in its

favor.

WHEREFORE, the defendant and appellant

prays that the said judgment of the said District
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Court may be reversed, and that the said court be

ordered to enter judgment of dismissal, and for

such other and further relief as to the court may-

seems just and proper.

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
Attorneys for Defendant and Appellant.

Copy received 12/20/33.

HAMLET P. DODD.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [84]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL.

TO: ANTHONY SAVAGE, UNITED STATES
ATTORNEY, AND TO HAMLET P. DODD,
ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTOR-
NEY:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the defend-

ant and appellant Canadian Pacific Railway Com-

pany hereby appeals to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the

judgment of dismissal entered herein on the 6th

day of November, 1933, and from each and every

part thereof, and from each and every adverse rul-

ing in the above entitled cause.

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY
COMPANY

By BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
Its Attorneys.

Copy Received Dec. 20th, 1933.

HAMLET P. DODD.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [85]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

SUPERSEDEAS AND COST BOND ON
APPEAL.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That we, CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY

COMPANY, a corx3oratioii organized and existing

under and by virtue of the laws of the Dominion of

Canada, licensed to do business in the State of

Washington, as principal, and PACIFIC IN-

DEMNITY COMPANY, a corporation, duly in-

corporated under the laws of the State of Cali-

fornia and authorized to transact the business of

surety in the State of Washington, as surety, are

held and firmly bound unto the United States of

America, plaintiff in the above entitled cause, in

the full sum of Seven Thousand five hundred dol-

lars ($7500.00) lawful money of the United States

to be paid to it, to which payment well and truly

to be made we bind ourselves jointly and severally,

and our successors and assigns, by these presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated this 20th day of

December, 1933.

WHEREAS, the above named principal has

prosecuted an appeal to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to reverse

the judgment of the United States District Court

for the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, made and entered on the 6th day of

November, 1933. [86]

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this ob-

ligation is such that if the above named principal

shall prosecute its said appeal to effect, and if it fail
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to make ite plea good shall answer all damages and

costs, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise

to remain in full force and effect.

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY
COMPANY, a corporation,

By bogle, bogle & GATES,
PRINCIPAL.

PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY,
[Seal] a corporation,

By CASSIUS E. GATES,
Attorney in Fact

SURETY.

The foregoing bond and the sufficiency of the

surety thereon are approved as a supersedeas bond

on appeal.

Dated this 20th day of December, 1933.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
District Judge.

Received copy of the foregoing bond this 20th day

of December, 1933.

ANTHONY SAVAGE,
United States District Attorney.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [87]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and be-

tween the parties hereto, acting through their re-

spective coimsel, as follows:
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WHEREAS the defendant is appealing from the

decision of the District Court for the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division, and judg-

ment entered in favor of the plaintiff in the above

entitled cause, and it is the desire of both parties

to stipulate for the omission of certain matter from

the transcript of record and for tlie printing of

certain exhibits as a part of the transcript of record

on appeal;

NOW, THEREFORE the parties stipulate as

follows

:

1. In respect to plaintiff's Exhibit C and C-1,

it is stipulated that that portion of the said ex-

hibits v^hich refers to ports of entry along the

Mexican borderline of the United States has no

material bearing upon this cause of action in any

way and may be omitted from the transcript of

record, to-wit, that portion of said statement in Ex-

hibit C which relates to immigration districts Nos.

10, 22, 25, and 31, beginning on page 13 of said

statement and concluding on page 16 thereof.

That plaintiff's Exhibits C and C-1 by error and

inadvertence failed to give the number of ap-

plicants for admission to the United [88] States at

the ]Jort of Seattle during the fiscal year ending

June 30, 1932, and that such statement be and the

same hereby is deemed to be amended to include

and show the following applicants for admission at

the port of Seattle, and to show the steamship line

landing said passengers at Seattle, for the fiscal

year ending June 30, 1932:
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Passengers arriving by Canadian Pacific

Railway (defendant's) vessels 71,540

Passengers arriving by Puget Sonnd Naviga-

tion Company vessels 7,119

Passengers arriving by Pacific Steamship

Company, Grace Line and other vessels 147

Total 78,806

2. That the following exhibits shall be printed

as a part of the transcript of record and that all

other exhibits shall not be printed but shall be

referred to the Circuit Court of Appeals:

Plaintiff's Exhibit 1) and that much of Exhibit F
which shows the name, size and capacity of

defendant 's vessels

;

Defendant's Exhibits 7, 13 and 18.

ANTHONY SAVAGE
HAMLET P. DODD

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
By Norman M. Littell

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [89]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER REGARDING PRINTING AND
TRANSMITTING EXHIBITS.

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DE-
CREED that the following exhibits in this cause

shall be printed and that all other exhibits be trans-
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mitted to the Circuit Court of Appeals with the

transcript of record on appeal:

Plaintiff's Exhibit D and that much of Exhibit

F which shows the name, size and capacity

of defendant's vessels:

Defendant's Exhibits 7, 13 and 18.

Done in open court this 20th day of December,

1933.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
District Judge.

Copy received and approved Dec. 20, 1933.

HAMLET P. DODD.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [90]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
ON APPEAL.

To the Clerk of the above entitled Court:

You will please prepare the record on appeal to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit in the above cause, to consist of all

necessary papers, including the following:

1. Complaint

;

2. Answer to complaint; and reply.

3. Stipulation waiving jury;

4. Judgment of dismissal;

5. Order extending time for filing bill of excep-

tions, and extending term of court;

6. Bill of exceptions;
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7. Petition of appeal and order allowing ap-

peal;

8. Assignments of error;

9. Citation on appeal;

10. Notice of appeal;

11. Stipulation regarding contents of transcript

of record;

12. Order transmitting exhibits;

13. Supersedeas bond on appeal and order of ap-

proval; [91]

14. This praecipe;

15. Clerk's certificate.

You are requested, except upon this praecipe, to

omit all captions except names of papers, to omit

all acceptances of services except instruments Nos.

6, 9, 10 and 15, to omit verifications on instruments

Nos. 1 and 2, and to omit filing endorsements ex-

cept the date thereof.

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
Attorneys for Defendant.

Received copy of the above praecipe this 20th

day of December, 1933.

HAMLET P. DODD,
United States District Attorney.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [92]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington.—ss.

I, Ed. M. Lakin, Clerk of the above entitled Court

do hereby certify that the foregoing typewritten

transcript of record, consisting of pages numbered

from 1 to 92, inclusive, is a full, true and complete

copy of so much of the record, papers and other

proceedings in the above and foregoing entitled

cause, as is required b}" praecipe of counsel filed

and shown herein, as the same remain of record

and on file in the office of the Clerk of the said Dis-

trict Court at Seattle, and that the same constitute

the record on appeal herein from the judgment of

said United States District Court for the Western

District of Washington to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

I further certify that the following is a true and

correct statement of all expenses, costs, fees and

charges incurred in my office by or on behalf of

the appellant for making record, certificate or re-

turn to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit, to wit: [93]

Clerk's fees (Act of Feb. 11, 1925) for mak-
ing record, certificate or return, 232 folios

at 15^ per folio, $34.80

Appeal fee (Sec. 5 of Act) 5.00

Certificate of Clerk to Transcript of Record .50

Certificate of Clerk to Original exhibits .50

Total $ 40.80
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I further certify that the above cost for prepar-

ing and certifying record, amounting to $40.80, has

been paid to me by the attorneys for the appellant.

I further certify that I transmit herewith the

original citation issued in the above entitled cause.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set

my hand and affixed the official seal of the said Dis-

trict Court, at Seattle, in said District, this 3d day

of January, 1934.

[Seal] ED. M. LAKIN,
Clerk of the United States District Court,

Western District of Washington,

By T. W. Egger, Deputy Clerk. [94]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

CITATION ON APPEAL.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington,

County of King.—ss.

To: THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
plaintiff and appellee, and to ANTHONY
SAVAGE, United States District Attorney, its

attorney

:

GREETING:
YOU AND EACH OF YOU are hereby cited and

admonished to be and appear at the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in

the City of San Francisco, State of California,

thirty days from and after the day this citation

bears date, pursuant to an order allowing an appeal
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filed and entered in the Clerk's office in the District

Court of the United States for the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division, from a

judgment against the defendant, signed, filed and

entered on the 6th day of November, 1933, in that

certain suit being at law No. 20730, wherein the

Canadian Pacific Railway Company is defendant

and appellant, and you are plaintiff and appellee,

to show cause, if any there be, why the judgment

rendered against the said defendant and appellant

should not be corrected and why justice should

not be done to the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS the Honorable Jeremiah Neterer,

United States [95] District Judge for the Western
District of Washington, Northern Division, this 20

day of December, 1933.

[Seal] JEREMIAH NETERER
Copy received this 20 day of December, 1933.

ANTHONY SAVAGE
United States District Attorney.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 20, 1933. [96]
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[Endorsed]: No. 7366. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Canadian

Pacillc Railwa}^ Company, a foreign corporation,

Appellant, vs. United States of America, Appellee.

Transcript of Record. Upon Appeal from the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Western

District of Washington, Northern Division.

Filed January 5, 1934.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

No. 7366

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
a foreign corporation.

Appellant,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Ap]3ellee.

STIPULATION.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and be-

tween the parties hereto, acting through their re-

spective undersigned counsel, that the following ex-

hibits shall not be printed in the transcript of re-

cord on appeal, but may be inspected by the court

in their original form:
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Plaintiff's Exhibit "D" (photographs of vessels)

Defendant's Exhibit 7 (map of the United States

border showing ports of entry)

Defendant's Exhibit 13 (pictures of the defend-

ant's vessels)

Defendant's Exhibit 18 (pictnres of tlie Paget

Sound Navigation Company ferries).

Plaintiff's Exhibit ''F" (Steamship schedules)

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
Attorneys for Appellant.

ANTHONY SAVAGE,
United States Attorney.

By HAMLET P. DODD,
Assistant United States Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 16, 1934. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

No. 7366

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
a foreign corporation.

Appellant,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellee.

ORDER.
It appearing to the court upon stipulation of the

parties hereto that the exhibits enumerated below
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need not be printed in the transcript of record, and

it appearing to the court that the cost of printing

said exhilnts would be a considerable sum burden-

some of the party paying the costs herein; now,

therefore, it is

ORDERED that Plaintiff's Exhibit ''D" and

*'F'\ Defendant's Exhibit 7, Defendant's Exhibit

13, and Defendant's Exhibit 18 be not printed in

the transcript of record, and that said exhibits may
be examined by the court in their original form.

Dated this 16th day of January, 1934.

CURTIS D. WILBUR, ,

Senior U. S. Circuit Judge.

Approved for entry:

BOGLE, BOGLE & GATES,
Attorneys for Appellant.

ANTHONY SAVAGE,
United States Attorney

By HAMLET P. DODD,
Assistant United States Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 16, 1931. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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Canadian Pacific Railway Company,
a foreign Corporation,
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—

United States of America,
Appellee.

^No. 7366

Upon Appeal from the United States District Court

FOR THE Western District of Washington,

Northern Division

Hon. Jeremiah Neterer, Judge

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. Proceedings below.

This action was brought to collect compensation

alleged to be payable pursuant to Sec. 109 a, b, Title 8,

U. S. C. (Appendix A), for overtime immigration inspec-

tion service rendered from May 1, 1931 to September

30, 1932, to passengers arriving in the United States

on appellant's daily vessels from Victoria, and Vancouver,



B. C. The appellant denied liability on the grounds

that it was exempt from the payment of overtime charges

by reason of the following proviso of the above act:

***** Provided, That this section shall not apply
to the inspection at designated ports of entry of

passengers arriving by international ferries, bridges,

or tunnels, or by aircraft, railroad trains, or vessels

on the Great Lakes and connecting waterways,
when operating on regular schedules. (Mar. 2, 1931,

c. 368, §2, 46 Stat. 1467)."

The District Court entered judgment for the plaintiff

(R. 61), from which this appeal is prosecuted. The

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R. 95, 101),

hold that the appellant's vessels are not "international

ferries."

II. The Facts.

The appellant company, from 1903 until the present

date, has operated vessels daily between Victoria, Van-

couver Island, B. C, and Seattle, Washington, and

since 1908 from Vancouver, B. C, to Seattle, Wash-

ington, on regular schedules, the vessels from Victoria

arriving at Seattle at 9:00 P. M. and the ones from

Vancouver arriving at 7:45 A. M. (disregarding slight

and immaterial changes in arrival time). The vessels

carried vehicles and passengers, the vehicular traffic

being driven aboard ship in the same manner as such

traffic is handled on all ferry vessels, except that the

entrance to the appellant's vessels is through side ports

and not through openings in the bow and stern of said

vessels. (Exh. 13, 14) (R. 82).

The operations of the appellant's vessels are part of

a network of communications between Vancouver Island



and the mainland on the American side of the borderline,

the remaining services being maintained by the Puget

Sound Navigation Company, a Washington corporation,

operating ferries between the mainland and San Juan

Island points, between Port Angeles, Washington, and

Victoria, B. C, and between Anacortes and Bellingham,

Washington, and Sidney, B. C. (R. 78, 79, Exh. 18,

R. 84, pictures of Puget Sound Navigation Company's

ferries; Exh. 2, 3, 4, R. 77, 78, ferry schedules, and

Exh. 8, R. 80, chart of the Puget Sound region showing

routes of services referred to). The District Court found

these vessels to be ferries because "on these ferry routes

the conventional open-end type of ferry boats are used"

(R. 96, 97).

Passenger tickets issued by the appellant and by the

Puget Sound Navigation Company are interchangeable,

so that passengers may reach Vancouver Island or the

City of Vancouver, B. C, by any one of a number of

routes. They can drive their cars aboard the appellant's

vessels at Seattle and proceed directly to Victoria or to

Vancouver or they can drive to Anacortes or Bellingham

or Port Angeles on the American side of the border,

and there go aboard the Puget Sound Navigation Com-

pany's ferries and proceed to Victoria or Sidney, B. C,

located a few miles north of Victoria on Vancouver

Island. There is no interlocking ownership, management,

or identity of interests between the two companies, the

above arrangement being purely cooperative. The com-

panies are in all respects competitive. •

There are regular currents of traffic in each direction



to and from Seattle, the flow being about equal in each

direction. Thus, during the year from March 1, 1932, to

February 28, 1933, the appellant carried 45,387 passengers

and 1,498 automobiles from Vancouver and Victoria to

Seattle, and 48,116 passengers and 1,132 automobiles

from Seattle to Vancouver and Victoria (R. 82, 83,

Exh. 15).

All inbound traffic arriving at ports of entry on Puget

Sound is examined by United States Immigration In-

spectors before passengers are admitted into this country.

This examination has been made without charge to the

carriers until the passage of the act of March 2, 1931,

Sec. 109 a, b, Title 8, U. S. C, providing that carriers

landing passengers in ports of entry of the United States

after 5:00 P. M. and before 8:00 A. M. should pay to

the Government the amount of compensation specified

in the act for overtime immigration inspection service.

This compensation is then paid to the inspectors who

render the services. As is hereinafter shown, the act was

designed to meet the rising demand for overtime immi-

gration inspection service for trans-Atlantic carriers arriv-

ing at ports of entry at unanticipated hours, and the above

quoted proviso was added to the act to exempt from its

provisions the carriers named WHEN OPERATING
ON REGULAR SCHEDULES over the Canadian border.

The testimony offered by the Government (R. 69, 75,

Exh. C,R. 67, Exh. C-1, R.67), shows that over 20,000,000

people were examined and admitted at ports of entry

across the entire Canadian borderline during the fiscal

year ending June 30, 1932, at 110 ports of entry, and

that all carriers across the border (railroad trains, bridges.
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SPECIFICATIONS OF ERRORS

The errors assigned (R. pages 105-107) and which

are rehed upon on this appeal, charge that the judgment

appealed from is erroneous in that:

1. That the United States District Court for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Division,

erred in entering judgment for the plaintiff against the

defendant for wages claimed by the plaintiff to be due

and payable to United States Immigration Inspectors

on account of overtime immigration inspection service

rendered to passengers on the defendant's vessels arriving

at Seattle, Washington, daily on regular schedules, after

5:00 P. M. and before 8:00 A. M.



2. That the said court erred in holding that de-

fendant's vessels operating on regular schedules between

Vancouver, B. C, and Seattle, and Victoria, B. C, and

Seattle, were subject to the overtime immigration in-

spection service charges as provided in the Act of March

2, 1931 (8 U. S. C. A. 109 a, b), and in failing to hold

that said vessels were exempt from the said overtime

immigration inspection service charged by reason of the

following proviso of the above quoted act:

"Provided that this section shall not apply to

the inspection at designated ports of entry of pas-

sengers arriving by international ferries, bridges or

tunnels, or by aircraft, railroad trains, or vessels on
the Great Lakes or connecting waterways, and
operating on regular schedules."

3. That the said court erred in failing to find that

Congress intended, in adopting the foregoing proviso of

the Overtime Act, to exempt from the payment of over-

time charges all vessels rendering international ferry

service on regular schedules across the border line between

Canada and the United States, and in failing to find that

the defendant's vessels between Victoria and Seattle and

Vancouver and Seattle were rendering such services, and

in failing to enter the defendant's proposed findings of

fact and conclusions of law.

4. That the said court erred in holding that the said

vessels of the defendant were not "international ferries"

within the meaning of the foregoing proviso because the

defendant had no franchise to operate international

ferries and because the defendant's vessels had "side

ports" for the ingress and egress of vehicular traffic

I



instead of entrances at the bow and stern of said vessels,

as is usual in the ''conventional ferry boats"; and in

holding that the design and construction of said vessels

determine whether or not they are "international ferries"

within the meaning of the proviso, and in failing to hold

that the character of the service rendered and not the

design of the vessels determines their status under the

act and their right to exemption from overtime charges.

5. That said court erred in failing to hold that the

construction placed upon the aforesaid act by the Bureau

of Immigration, Department of Labor, in holding that

defendant's vessels operating between Victoria and Seattle

and Vancouver and Seattle were not "international

ferries" entitled to exemption from overtime immi-

gration inspection service charges, constituted an arbi-

trary and unlawful construction of said act which renders

the same unconstitutional, in that said construction of

the act constitutes an unlawful and arbitrary discrimina-

tion against this defendant and in favor of common
carriers of passengers competing with the defendant and

rendering the same or similar services between Canada

and the United States.

6. That the said court erred in failing to enter judg-

ment of dismissal.

7. That the said court erred in denying defendant's

and appellant's motion to judgment in its favor.





tunnels, auto stages, ferries and vessels on the Great

Lakes and connecting waterways) were exempt from the

payment of overtime compensation for arrivals after 5:00

P. M. and before 8:00 A. M. when operating on regular

schedules, except the vessels of the Puget Sound Navigation

Company and those of the appellant. These vessels (Exh.

13, R. 82, Exh. 18, R. 84), are charged with overtime

compensation on the ground that they are not "inter-

national ferries."

III. The Issue.

The foregoing facts and proceedings below give rise

to one issue:

IS THE APPELLANT STEAMSHIP COM-
PANY EXEMPT FROM THE PAYMENT OF
COMPENSATION FOR OVERTIME IMMIGRA-
TION INSPECTION SERVICE RENDERED TO
PASSENGERS ARRIVING AT SEATTLE ON
ITS VESSELS FROM VICTORIA AND VAN-
COUVER, B. C, AT 9:00 P. M. AND 7:45 A. M.
RESPECTIVELY EACH DAY UNDER THE
PROVISO OF SECTION 109 B, TITLE 8, U. S.

C?

ARGUMENT
I. CONSTRUCTION OF THE ACT

1. Authorities and rules of construction; error of the

District Court.

Before determining the meaning and purpose of the

proviso above quoted, it should be noted that the decision

of the District Court is squarely opposed to a decision

of the Supreme Court not cited by the lower court.

Judgment against the appellant was based primarily

upon the grounds that a ferry line is "a creation of local



franchise after finding of necessity" and that the "de-

fendant has no license or franchise to operate a ferry

within the boundaries of the State of Washington."

The Supreme Court in Sault Ste. Marie v. International

Transit Co. (1914), 234 U. S. ?>?>?>, 58 L. ed. 1337, held

to the contrary that a state has no power to issue a

franchise for international ferries. An ordinance of the

City of Sault Ste. Marie required that anyone operating

a ferry should secure a license. The operator of one of

the International Transit Company's ferry boats operat-

ing between Michigan and Canada was arrested for

failure to secure a license. The Supreme Court, speaking

through Mr. Justice Hughes, said, at page 340:

"The ordinance requires a municipal license; and
the fundamental question is whether, in the circum-

stances shown, the state, or the city, acting under
its authority, may make its consent a condition

precedent to the prosecution of the business. If the

state, or the city, may make its consent necessary,

it may withhold it. * * * Has the state of Michigan
the right to make this commercial intercourse a

matter of local privilege, to demand that it shall

not be carried on without its permission, and to

exact as the price of its consent—if it chooses to

give it—the payment of a license fee? This question

must be answered in the negative."

And at page 341

:

"The fundamental principle involved has been
applied by this court in recent decisions in a great

variety of circumstances, and it must be taken to be
firmly established that one otherwise enjoying full

capacity for the purpose cannot be compelled to

take out a local license for the mere privilege of

carrying on interstate or foreign commerce."



See also:

Port Richmond Ferry Co. v. Freeholders of H. County

(1914), 234 U. S. 317, 58 L. ed. 1330.

The foregoing decisions render erroneous the principal

finding of the District Court upon which judgment was

predicated. The secondary grounds for the court's

decision was the size and construction of the appellant's

vessels which the court held precluded them from being

ferries (R. 99).

Before showing that the District Court was equally

in error in its secondary reasons for judgment against

the appellant, it should be noted that the phrase "inter-

national ferry" is new in the law, and is not defined in

the act nor in any decision which either counsel could

discover. The word "ferry" itself has been subject to

a wide variety of definitions, the narrowest of which,

adopted by the District Court, defeats the evident pur-

pose of the act.

What then did Congress mean in the above quoted

proviso by referring to "international ferries?"

Rules of statutory construction were clearly laid down

in the case of Church of the Holy Trinity v. United States

(1891), 143 U. S. 457. There the question was whether

an act "to prohibit the importation and migration of

foreigners and aliens under contract or agreement to

perform labor in the United States" applied to a contract

between a rector or minister and an incorporated American

religious society, whereby the former was to be engaged

as the minister of the latter society. The act excluded any

foreigners who were "to perform labor or services of
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any kind in the United States" under contract. The

court said, at page 459:

"It is a familiar rule, that a thing may be within

the letter of the statute and yet not within the

statute, because not within its spirit, nor within the

intention of its makers. This has been often asserted,

and the reports are full of cases illustrating its appli-

cation. This is not the substitution of the will of

the judge for that of the legislator, for frequently

words of general meaning are used in a statute,

words broad enough to include an act in question,

and yet a consideration of the whole legislation, or

of the circumstances surrounding its enactment, or

of the absurd results which follow from giving such
broad meaning to the words, makes it unreasonable
to believe that the legislator intended to include

the particular act."
* * *

And at page 463 :

''Again, another guide to the meaning of a statute

is found in the evil which it is designed to remedy;
and for this the court properly looks at contem-

poraneous events, the situation as it existed, and as it

was pressed upon the attention of the legislative body.''
* * *

And again at page 464

:

'*It appears, also, from the petitions, and in the

testimony presented before the committees of Con-
gress, that it was this cheap unskilled labor which
was making the trouble, and the influx of which
Congress sought to prevent. It was never suggested

that we had in this country a surplus of brain toilers,

and, least of all, that the market for the services

of Christian ministers was depressed by foreign

competition. Those were matters to which the

attention of Congress, or of the people, was not

directed. So far, then, as the evil which was sought to be



remedied interprets the statute, it also guides to an
exclusion of this contract from the pe?ialties of the act.

"A singular circumstance, throwing light upon
the intent of Congress, is found in this extract from
the report of the Senate Committee * * * ."

The rules laid down in the above decision have been

repeatedly applied to accomplish the aims of the legis-

lature. Thus, in Omaha & Council Bluffs Street Railway

Co. V. Interstate Commerce Commission (1912), 230 U. S.

323, 57 L. ed. 1501, the question was whether or not the

word ''railroad" applied to a street railway chartered as

such under the laws of Iowa and operating lines across

the Missouri River from Council BluiTs to Omaha. The

Interstate Commerce Commission ordered a reduction

in rates. The company sought to enjoin enforcement of

the order. The court pointed out the conflict of authorities

as to the meaning of the word ''railroad," some having

applied the term solely to steam railroads and others to

street railroads, and said, at page 334:

"But all the decisions hold that the meaning of

the word is to be determined by construing the

statute as a whole. If the scope of the act is such as

to show that both classes of companies were within

the legislative contemplation, then the word 'rail-

road' will include street railroad. On the other hand,

if the act was aimed at railroads proper, then street

railroads are excluded from the provisions of the

statute."

The court pointed out that the various provisions of

the Interstate Commerce Act applied peculiarly to rail-

roads hauling passengers between states and not to

street railways, and then held that, "street railroads not
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being guilty of the mischief sought to be corrected" and

"the remedial provisions of the statute not being applic-

able to them," they were not intended to be within the

meaning of the word "railroad."

On the contrary, the word "railroad" was held to in-

clude street railways within the intent and purpose of a

provision of the Bankruptcy Act, barring certain enter-

prises from its benefits in the case of In re Columbia

Railway, Gas & Electric Company (1928), 24 F. (2d) 828.

The court said, at page 831:

"If the scope of the act is such as to show that

both classes of companies were within the legis-

lative contemplation, then the word 'railroad' will

include street railroads. On the other hand, if the

act was aimed at railroads proper, then street rail-

roads are excluded from the provisions of the statute.

Omaha St. Ry. Co. v. Interstate Commerce Comm.,
230 U. S. 324, 335, ZZ S. Ct. 890, 57 L. ed. 1501.

* * *

" * * * It is obvious that, if railroads were allowed

to become bankrupts, many and serious difficulties

would arise as to their right to be freed from their

obligations as public servants, and large communities
that depended upon them would be put to great

inconvenience, if not to absolute disaster. Every
consideration which applies to railroads generally

in this respect applies also to street railways. The
consequences would be different in degree and
intensity merely, not in quality or kind. * * * ,"

In the case of W. 0. Johnson v. Southern Pacific Com-

pany (1904), 196 U. S. 1, 49 L. ed. 363, an act requiring

automatic couplers to be provided for all cars and making

it unlawful for any carrier to haul on its line "any car"

not equipped with such couplers was construed. The
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question was whether a locomotive was in fact a "car"

within the meaning of the last quoted phrase. The

Supreme Court said in quoting Mr. Justice Story, at

page 18:

"I agree to that rule in its true and sober sense;

and that is, that penal statutes are not to be en-

larged by implication, or extended to cases not

obviously within their words and purport. But
where the words are general, and include various

classes of persons, I know of no authority which
would justify the court in restricting them to one
class, or in giving them the narrowest interpre-

tation, where the mischief to be redressed by the

statute is equally applicable to all of them. And
where a word is used in a statute which has various

known significations, I know of no rule that requires

the court to adopt one in preference to another

simply because it is more restrained, if the objects

of the statute equally apply to the largest and
broadest sense of the word. In short, it appears to

me that the proper course in all these cases is to search

out and follow the true intent of the legislature, and to

adopt that sense of the words which harmonizes best

with the context, and promotes in the fullest manner
the apparent policy and objects of the legislature^"^ * *

"The risk in coupling and uncoupling was the evil

sought to be remedied, * * * ."

"That this was the scope of the statute is con-

firmed by the circumstances surrounding its enact-

ment, as exhibited in public documents to which we
are at liberty to refer."

The rules of construction as contended for above were

reviewed in the recent decision of Sorrels v. United States

of America (1932), 287 U. S. 435, 77 L. ed. 413, in which

the court said, at page 419, quoting from U. S. v. Kirby,

7 Wall 482:
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^'Literal interpretation of statutes at the expense of
the reason of the law and producing absurd conse-

quences or flagrant injustice has frequently been con-

demned. * * * 'Jt -mill always therefore be presumed
that the legislature intended exceptions to its language

which would avoid results of this character. The reason

of the law in such case should prevail over its letter.'
"

As stated in Stevens v. Nave-M'Cord Mercantile Co.,

(C. C. A. 8, 1906), 150 Fed. 71, at page 75:

" * * * Cardinal rules for the construction of a
statute are that the intention of the legislative body

which enacted it should be ascertained and given effect,

if possible, regardless of technical rules of construction

and the dry words of the enactment; that that intention

must be deduced not from a part but from the entire

law; that the object which the enacting body sought to

attain and the evil which it was endeavoring to remedy
may always be considered for the purpose of ascertain-

ing its intention; that the statute must be given a
rational, sensible construction; and that, if this

be consonant with its terms, it must have an inter-

pretation which will advance the remedy and repress

the wrong."

There are two main sources of determining the intent

of the legislature: (1) debates in Congress and (2) com-

mittee reports. There is no longer any question whatsoever

but that the court may resort to the reports of com-

mittees to determine the evil aimed at and the intent of

Congress in the passing of an act.

U. S. V. St. Paul M. &> M. Ry. Co. (1917), 247 U. S.

310, 62 L. ed. 1130;

Omaechevarria v. Idaho (1918), 246 U. S. 343, 62

L. ed. 763 at page 769, note 12;

McLean v. United States (1912), 226 U. S. 374, 57

L. ed. 260;
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Oceanic Steam Navigation Co. v. Stranahan (1909),

214 U. S. 320, 53 L. ed. 1013, at 1019;

Northern Pacific Railway Co. v. Washington (1911),

222 U. S. 370, 56 L. ed. 237;

Duplex Co. V. Deering (1921), 254 U. S. 443, 474,

475, 65 L. ed. 349.

As said in Binns v. United States (1904), 194 U. S. 486,

48 L. ed. 1087, at page 495:

"We have examined the reports of the committees
of either body with a view of determining the scope

of statutes passed on the strength of such reports."

In respect to debates in Congress it is now firmly

estabHshed that debates may be resorted to where sub-

stantial unanimity of purpose is expressed. As stated in

Federal Trade Commission v. Raladam Co. (1931), 283

U. S. 643, 75 L. ed. 1324, at page 650:

"The fact that throughout the consideration of

this legislation there was common agreement in

the debate as to the great purpose of the Act may be
properly considered in determining what that pur-

pose was and what were the evils sought to be
remedied."

Examination of the debates in Congress on the bill

here considered shows a clear unanimity of opinion and

desire to exempt the regular scheduled traffic between

Canada and the United States from the provisions of

the overtime law. We refer to the committee reports

and debates in Congress.

2. Intention of Congress; purpose of the Act and

Proviso.
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There are six specific exemptions from the overtime

act by force of the proviso at issue in this case:

1. International ferries,

2. Bridges,

3. Tunnels,

4. Aircraft,

5. Railroad trains,

6. Vessels on the Great Lakes and connecting water-

ways
;

when operating on regular schedules.

Before showing that the defendant's service is in fact

an international ferry service and that the construction

placed upon the act by the Immigration Service in effect

repeals the first exemption named above, by refusing to

recognize any service as international ferry service, we

note the history and purpose of the act.

For many years the Customs Service has collected

overtime charges from certain carriers (Sec. 267, Title

19, U. S. C), but there is no proviso in the Customs

Law such as that quoted above. An act almost identical

with that of the Customs Overtime Act was introduced

by Senator Reed of Pennsylvania, in the Senate on May
14, 1929 (S. R. 1126, Exh. 11, R. 81), and on May 24,

1929, an identical bill was introduced in the House

(H. R. 3309, Exh. 11, R. 81), and both bills were referred

to the Senate and House Committees on Immigration.

In the House, the bill was reluctantly given a favorable

report by the Committee, Representative Johnson of

Washington, explaining, when the matter was first
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opened for debate on June 9, 1930 (Congressional Record

10320), that:

"Our Committee finally came to the conclusion
that if it is paid in the Customs Service it should
be applied to this service also. We do not like the
system at all. The government is able to pay its

inspectors in all services. But we cannot get rid of

the privately paid overtime in the great, big Customs
Service, so our Committee asks that you let the
smaller Immigration Service 'hook on' to their

system."

The matter was continued without further debate

until June 16, 1930, when the bill again came up for

discussion (Congressional Record 10907), and Represen-

tative Jenkins, who had introduced the bill, explained it

as follows:

Mr. Jenkins: " * * * It is identical with the
Customs law."

Mr. Crampton: "Well, there is quite a question

about the Customs situation, whether that is the

way it ought to be or not."

Mr. Jenkins: "That is true, and because of that

it is thought wise to insert an amendment in the bill

restricting and controlling immigration across inter-

national bridges, I have such an amendment pre-

pared, and if that is the only objection the gentleman
has I will be glad to introduce the amendment,
because I think it will clarify the whole situation."

* * *

Mr. Crampton: " * * * But what about inter-

national ferries? They run regularly; it is not an
emergency but it is a regular thing."

A proviso was then read providing that the overtime

act should not apply to international bridges, ferries, or
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railroad trains operating on regular schedules, after

which the following discussion took place, Mr. La Guardia

referring to the proviso:

Mr. La Guardia: "It would not apply to ocean
steamers."

Mr. Stafford: "No. I wish this law to apply to

ocean steamers, and I want to limit it to ocean
traffic conditions."

Mr. Crampton: " * * * If we have an amendment
that the provisions of this act relating to extra com-
pensation shall not apply to international bridges or

ferries or railroad trains operating on regular sche-

dules, it would seem to me that would reach the

whole thing."

Mr. Stafford: "Not only the railroad train

crossing the border is concerned but any regular

established service across the border, and these men
should not be privileged to exact two and one-half

times their salary for just an hour's additional work.
It is only intended to apply to ocean service and that is

the main consideration ' (Congressional Record 10908).

(< ^ sH H:

Mr. La Guardia: "Mr. Speaker, I want to ask

the gentleman from Wisconsin if the purpose of the

gentleman's amendment is to eliminate the extra time,

particularly on the border, where the regular schedule

is in operation?

Mr. Stafford: "That is the purpose."

Mr. La Guardia: "There is nothing in the

amendment which in any way changes the purpose
of the bill in its application to general steamship
lines?"

Mr. Stafford: "No." (Congressional Record
10909).

That the bill was aimed at ocean-going vessels putting
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into port at irregular hours and requiring the services of

United States immigration inspectors after 5 P. M. and

before 8 A. M. is clearly shown by the report of Mr.

Gould from the Committee on Immigration in the House

(Report No. 1720, Exh. 11, R. 81), in which the bill

with amendment was finally reported to the House on

February 21, 1931, with all of the exemptions first listed

above incorporated therein. This report recites the facts

in regard to increased overtime services as follows:

"The committee has found that overtime duty of

immigration officers has increased steadily in recent

years. The following figures show the steady, sub-

stantial increase in the work at the port of New York
during the past five years:

1925 1926 1927 1928 1929

Ships boarded 4,961 5,204 5,369 5,426 5,640
Passengers and seamen
examined 894,338 1,016,954 1,119,466 1,198,261 1,208,123

"The first nine months of the current fiscal year
show an increase at the same port over the corre-

sponding period of last year in the number of persons

inspected of 41,575. Naturally, with increased volume
of arrivals have come increased demands for over-

time services.

"The following summary for the month of March,
1930, at the port of New York, is both recent and
informative on the subject of overtime:

"Arriving passenger steamers from foreign

ports requiring assignment of immigration
inspectors 278

"Number of same requiring overtime duty 41

"Number of inspectors performing overtime,

each occasion 1 to 16

"Total number of overtime hours in which
inspection occurred 130

"Grand total hours of overtime of all in-

spectors 833"



18

It is quite impossible to bring the appellant's service

within the mischief aimed at by the overtime act. Appel-

lant's vessels do not operate in transoceanic traffic; they

do not arrive at unexpected hours; and they have caused

no increase in the overtime services required for the past

sixteen to twenty years. The two daily arrivals have

remained as follows (except for minor and immaterial

changes)

:

Victoria boat, daily since 1903—9:00 P. M.

Vancouver boat, daily since 1908—7:45 A. M.
(until September, 1932, when arrival was changed
to 8:00 A. M. to avoid overtime charge).

The evil aimed at in the act, as revealed by the above

quoted committee reports and debates in the House

and Senate, was the increasing number of overtime

inspection hours rendered to passenger vessels from

foreign ports

—

a total of 130 hours of service in March,

1930, in New York, rendered to 278 vessels from foreign

ports. These were the ocean steamers referred to by Mr,

Stafford arriving at unexpected hours, and not the

"regular established service across the border" such as

that of the defendant, which has been carried on un-

changed for years without increase in the amount of overtime

and with the same vessels arriving at the same hour, each day.

Of the numerous transportation services across the

Canadian border described in appellee's testimony (Exh.

C, C-1), there are many schedules which have more than

two overtime arrivals per day, requiring much more

than 130 hours of inspection service per day for many

ports of entry, but this service is supplied as it is in any
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private industry requiring night work, by arranging the

working day of certain inspectors to meet the regular sche-

duled traffic arriving after 5:00 P. M. This is the spirit

and intention of the proviso at issue, as manifest by the

Immigration Department's own instructions (Exh. 12,

p. 4, par. (n), R. 82):

"Commissioners and district directors of immi-
gration will arrange schedules and working hours of
inspectors and employees of the Immigration Service
so as to avoid overtime within this order, as far as
possible consistent with the due enforcement of the
Immigration Law and the convenience of persons
arriving in the United States * * * ."

These instructions from the Department are perfectly

in accord with the statements of Senator Reed, of Penn-

sylvania, explaining the act before the Committee on

Immigration in the United States Senate (S. R. 1126,

Exh. 11, p. 3, R. 81):

" * * * Where you are inspecting ocean liners that
come in on a schedule only they are exempt. But
there are other vessels nobody can tell whether they
will get in at 3 o'clock in the afternoon or at 11

o'clock in the evening. There the Government cannot
be expected to keep on several shifts on a chance the

steamer will come in that way, and we cannot
reasonably expect the Government, and it is not
economical, to keep the two shifts on. But where
you have a situation as we have it at Detroit, Mich.,

with trains coming across the border all night long

on regular schedules, that is one kind of situation.

"In the first place, it is not reasonable to expect

men to work overtime every day, and in the next

place the Government knows the trains are coming
in in the middle of the night, and it ought to run
two shifts of men. It seems to me that is the situation
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there, and it is not fair to force the railroad company
to pay the overtime required for these regular

scheduled trains, while it is fair to assess it upon
steamships arriving irregularly, if they want to get

rid of their passengers.

H ii: ^ ^

"The steamships do not have to pay overtime,

because if they do not want to they can keep the

ship at quarantine and take it into dock the next

day."

By ignoring the avowed and repeatedly expressed

purpose of the proviso, recognized even in the Immi-

gration Department's own regulations quoted above, and

by standing upon a technical and narrow definition of

the word "ferry," to be hereinafter discussed, the Depart-

ment of Immigration has held that of all the regular

scheduled trafhc across the border between the United

States and Canada, the vessels of the appellant (Exh.

13, 14, R. 82) and of the Puget Sound Navigation Com-

pany (Exh. 18, R. 84) are not "international ferries"

and are therefore not entitled to the exemption.

Note the absurdity in which this construction results:

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 1932, a part of the

period in controversy, the following applicants were

admitted at the Port of Seattle from the steamship

companies named below:

Canadian Pacific Railway Company (appel-

lant) vessels from Victoria and Vancouver 71,540

Puget Sound Navigation Company vessels 7,119

All other vessels 147

78,808

(R. 75).
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Inasmuch as the only vessels of the appellant arriving

in Seattle during the period at issue were the two arrivals

at 9:00 P. M. and 7:45 A. M., and inasmuch as the Puget

Sound Navigation Company has only one vessel arriving

from Victoria, at about 6:00 P. M. (Exh. 4, R. 78),

all of the above applicants arrived during overtime hours

except for arrivals on three excursion trips (for which

appellant paid (Exh. B, R. 66), and except for 149 arrivals

on all carriers other than the Puget Sound Navigation

Company and the appellant.

Thus 90% of the entire work of the Immigration

Service at the Port of Seattle for the fiscal year ending

June 30, 1932, was rendered to the vessels of the appel-

lant. Of these vessels all but three on excursion trips

arrived after 5:00 P. M. and before 8:00 A. M. If the

judgment below is sustained, the appellant, a foreign

steamship company, will be compelled to pay at the

high rate of overtime pay for approximately 90% of the

immigration inspection work done at the Port of Seattle.

Thus the exercise of an important prerogative of

government, that of supervising and controlling the entry

into the country of all persons seeking admission, would

be subsidized at the Port of Seattle by two corporations,

the appellant Canadian Pacific Railway Company, and

the Puget Sound Navigation Company which would have

to pay for approximately 9% of such work. The Govern-

ment apparently would pay for only 1% of the work

done, based upon the figures for the fiscal year ending

June 30, 1932.

Note, too, how oppressive and unreasonable the result
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is when the amount of overtime charge is compared to

the passenger revenues received by the appellant from

January, 1932, to the end of June, a period of six months:

Passengers carried to Seattle 19,659

Gross revenues from passenger tickets $46,465.55
Overtime charge $2,127.53
Percentage of overtime charges to gross

revenue 4J^%
(Exh. 17, R. 84).

If the percentage were figured on net instead of gross

income, the charge would amount to a substantial income

tax.

Is it reasonable to suppose that Congress intended to

impose such a burden on two carriers only along the

Canadian-American border line, when competing carriers

serving the same territory and the same traffic, rendering

the same or similar service, to-wit, the railroads, auto

stages and airplanes traveling to and from Vancouver

and Seattle or Victoria and Seattle, are exempt from

such charges?

It is submitted that the construction placed upon the

proviso by the District Court squarely opposes the

intention of Congress and the evident purpose of the

overtime act, violates established rules of statutory con-

struction and results in absurd and inequitable conse-

quences.

3. Meaning of the words "International Ferry."

For all of the foregoing reasons the appellant's vessels f

come clearly within the spirit and purpose of the act
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exempting regular scheduled service from payment of

overtime charges, but can they be brought within the

letter of the law?

As has been pointed out above, the words international

ferry are new in the law and undefined, but voluminous

authorities have defined the word ferry. Without referring

to any of the latter, the District Court laid down three

requirements for a "ferry" (R. 95, 101):

1. Franchise: There must be a franchise or
license to operate.

2. Character of Service: The ferry must offer

a "service of necessity" for common good, in con-
tinuation of a highway across rivers or bodies of
water.

3. Construction: The ferry boat must be especi-

ally constructed with open ends to admit vehicular
traffic.

THE FRANCHISE

In respect to the first point, the District Court is

entirely correct. The franchise is the most essential

element in the definition of "ferry," It is said in many
decisions that a ferry is a franchise. At common law a

ferry could not operate without a franchise from the

king. (1).

See: "Original and Monopoly Rights of Ancient

Ferries," 63 U. of Penn. L. R. 718-53.

(1) The modern definition in England, as given in "The Laws of England"
by the Earl of Halsbury, Vol. 14, page 555, is restricted as follows: "A public
ferry is a public highway of a special description whose termini must be in places
where the public have rights, such as towns or vills, or highways leading to towns
or vills. In the one case, the grantee of the ferry has the exclusive right to carry
passengers, animals, or goods over a river or arm of the sea from town to town;
in the other he has a similar right to carry from one point to the other all who
are going to use the highway to the nearest town or vill to which the highway
leads on the other side. * * * A ferry is created by Royal grant, or in modern
days by Act of Parliament, or exists by prescription, which implies a Royal
Grant" (page 557). See also Meir's Digest of English Case Law, Vol. 9, page 858,
and The English v. Empire Digest, Vol. 24, page 968.
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In this country the grant of a franchise by the state or

municipahty has always been the foundation of ferry

rights. As stated in Fort Richmond and B. P. Ferry Co. v.

Board of Freeholders (1914), 234 U. S. 317, 58 L. ed. 1330,

at page 321:

"At common law, the right to maintain a public

ferry lies in franchise; in England such a ferry

could not be set up without the King's license; and
in this country the right has been made the subject

of legislative grant."

The element of exclusive franchise is fundamental in

all definitions of a ferry.

As stated in Mills v. St. Clair Co., 7 111. 197:

"The grant of a ferry franchise by the sovereign

is of very ancient origin, and it has always been the

rule that the privilege was exclusive. No one is per-

mitted to run another ferry within a prescribed or

reasonable distance from the ferry established by
franchise, and one so doing in injury to the business

of the franchised ferry will be enjoined."

It is virtually impossible to define a "ferry" without

reference to a franchise or license to operate. To attempt

to do so is like defining a railroad without reference to

the railroad track. The track in the one case and the

franchise in the other is the foundation of the definition.

See 59 L. R. A. 513-56; L. R. A. 1916-D 832, for

exhaustive annotations regarding ferries.

In bringing innumerable definitions of the word

"ferry" to aid in determining what is an "international

ferry," we are therefore completely at loss, inasmuch as
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there can be no franchise for a ferry operating from one

of the United States to Canada. As stated by the Supreme

Court, in holding that a franchise could not be granted

by the State of Michigan for operating a ferry to and

from Canada at Sault Ste. Marie:

"Has the State of Michigan the right to make
this commercial intercourse a matter of local privilege

to demand that it shall not be carried on without
its permission, and to exact as the price of its consent
—if it chooses to give it—the payment of a license

fee? This question must be answered in the negative."

{Sault Ste. Marie v. International Transit Co. (1914),

234 U. S. 333, 58 L. ed. 1337.

The act at issue here was passed after the foregoing

decision had established the law for 17 years on the sub-

ject of ferries operating between Canada and the United

States. In view of this decision. Congress could not have

intended to embrace in the words "international ferries"

the ancient and accepted definition of a "ferry" as a

franchise right. What, then, is left in the definition of

the word "ferry" which could sustain the conclusions of

the District Court or assist in determining the meaning

of the words "international ferry."

CHARACTER OF SERVICE RENDERED;
TYPE OF VESSEL

The word "ferry" has not been narrowly defined in this

country as in England, possibly due to the presence of

larger bodies of water than were common in England.

Thus, in Washburn on Real Property (5th Ed., Vol. 2,

p. 305), ferries are defined as:
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"The right of carrying passengers across streams,
or bodies of water, or arms of the sea, from one
point to another, for a compensation paid by way
of a toll."

As stated in the frequently cited leading case of Mayor

of the City of New York v. Starin (1887, Ct. of App. N. Y.),

106 N. Y. 11, 12 N. E. 631, at page 632:

"A ferry is a continuation of the highway from one
side of the water over which it passes to the other

and is for the transportation of passengers or of

travelers with their teams and vehicles, and such
other property as they may carry or have with them."

Broadnax v. Baker (1886), 94 N. C. 675, 55 Am.
Rep. 633, cited with approval in County of St.

Clair V. Interstate Sand &" Car Transfer Company
(1903), 192 U. S. 453, 48 L. ed. 519 at 524.

It was further stated on page 632 in the Starin case

that:

"In a strictly ferry business, property is always
transported only with the owner or custodian thereof;

the ferry-men who do nothing but a ferry business,

and have nothing but a ferry franchise, are bound
to transport no other property; and, in the trans-

portation of persons with their property, they are

not under the obligations of a common carrier, but
are bound only to due care and diligence. Wyckoff v.

Queens Co. Ferry Co., 52 N. Y. 32. But they may
combine, and usually do combine, with the ferry

business the business of a common carrier, carrying

freight and merchandise without the presence of the

owner or custodian, like other carriers engaged in

the transportation of such freight; and as to such

freight, they are under the duties and obligations

of a common carrier. As ferry-men they are under a

public duty to transport, with suitable care and
diligence, all persons with or without their vehicles

and other property; and as common carriers it is
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their duty to carry all freight and merchandise
delivered to them."

Bouvier's Law Dictionary defines a ferry as:

"A liberty to have a boat upon a river for the
transportation of men, horses, and carriages with
their contents for a reasonable toll. * * * Ferries
properly mean the place of transit across a river or
arm of the sea; but in law it is treated as a franchise,
and defined as the exclusive right to carry passengers
across a river or arm of the sea from one vill to
another, or to connect a continuous line of road lead-
ing from one township or vill to another."

Alexandria Warsaw &' Keokuk Ferry Co. v. Wisch,
(1881), 39 Am. Rep. 535, 73 Mo. 655.

As was stated in Broadnax v. Baker (1886), 94 N. C.

675, 55 Am. Rep. 633:

"A ferry is defined by Mr. Webster, in words
borrowed from legal authorities, to be *a liberty

to have a boat for passage upon a river, for the
carriage of horses and men for a reasonable toll,'

adding 'it is usually to cross a large river.' Tomlin
Law Diet.

''It has now a wider application, and has been

sometimes used to designate transportation over a wide
expanse of water, the essential idea of passing from
one shore to an opposite shore being retained."

The broader definition of the American Courts is also

reflected in the statutory definition of the California

Political Code, Section 3643, in which a ferry is defined as:

''A vessel traversing across any of the waters of

the State between two constant points regularly

employed for transfer of passengers and freight,

authorized by law to do so * * * ."

It is clear that a ferry may operate between three

points as well as two.
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Mayor of the City of New York v. New Jersey Steam-

boat Transportation Company (1887, Court of

Appeals of New York), 106 N. Y. 28, 12 N. E. 435.

In none of the definitions of "ferry" just stated is there

any limitation upon the size of the body of water crossed,

so long as it be inland, lake, bay or arm of the sea. By

the very nature of the service required of a ferry there

could be no arbitrary limitation. The raison d'etre of a

ferry arises from the geography of the country. A glance

at Exh. 8, R. 80, shows the Puget Sound region to be

severed and broken up by an inlet of the sea completely

embraced by land. There is a network of communication

by ferries back and forth across the sound, and among the

San Juan Islands, and between the mainland and Van-

couver Island.

The District Court recognized that these services of

the Puget Sound Navigation Company constitute inter-

national passenger ferry service (Exh. 13, R. 82, Exh.

18, R. 84, 96, 97), and that the appellant's vessels

between Nanaimo and Vancouver Island were ferry

vessels, but held that appellant's vessels from Victoria

to Seattle were not ferries. The Puget Sound Navigation

Company vessel operating from Port Angeles to Sidney,

B. C, is held to be a "ferry" (R. 96, 97), but the same

vessel operates between Seattle and Victoria. Does it

cease to be a "ferry" on the latter run merely because

the distance is greater, and if so at what point on the course

does the metamorphosis take place?

It is also said that the runs between Seattle and Victoria

are merely "scenic" passenger trips (R. 99). Every ferry

on Puget Sound offers a scenic passenger trip, particularly
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the Puget Sound Navigation Company trips through the

San Juan Islands to Sidney, B. C, which the District

Court admitted were ferry services. There is no substance

in the court's objection that the trip is a scenic one.

Lastly, the District Court's requirement that vessels

be "specially constructed" (R. 99) with open ends (R. 96)

is not sustained by any authority whatsoever. In none of

the decisions or annotations referred to above is there

any suggestion as to the style of construction of a ferry

vessel. The character of the service rendered and not the

design of the vessel is the determining feature. Whether the

vessel opens at the end or on its side is entirely immaterial,

so long as passengers, their baggage and vehicles are

transported from one point to another across a body of

water.

Nor is it suggested in any of the foregoing decisions

that the ferry is "a way of necessity," although this

phrase appears in some of the very early decisions dealing

with ferries across rivers or streams. The phrase is clearly

obsolete; otherwise the presence of numerous bridges

across the Hudson river in New York City would divest

all of the ferries of their status as ferries because they

were no longer "ways of necessity" across the water.
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CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that the operations of

the appellant came within both the letter and spirit of

the exempting proviso of Sec. 109 b, Title 8, U. S. C.

and being thus exempt from immigration overtime

payments the judgment appealed from should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

Bogle, Bogle & Gates,
Norman M. Littell,

Edward G. Dobrin,
Attorneys for Appellant.
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APPENDIX "A"

§109a, Title 8, U. S. C. Officers and employees;

overtime services; extra compensation; length of working

day. The Secretary of Labor shall fix a reasonable rate

of extra compensation for overtime services of inspectors

and employees of the Immigration Service who may be

required to remain on duty between the hours of five

o'clock postmeridian and eight o'clock antemeridian, or

on Sundays or holidays, to perform duties in connection

with the examination and landing of passengers and crews

of steamships, trains, airplanes, or other vehicles, arriving

in the United States from a foreign port by water, land,

or air, such rates to be fixed on a basis of one-half day's

additional pay for each two hours or fraction thereof of

at least one hour that the overtime extends beyond five

o'clock postmeridian (but not to exceed two and one-half

days' pay for the full period from five o'clock post-

meridian to eight o'clock antemeridian) and two addi-

tional days' pay for Sunday and holiday duty; in those

ports where the customary working hours are other than

those heretofore mentioned, the Secretary of Labor is

vested with authority to regulate the hours of immigration

employees so as to agree with the prevailing working

hours in said ports, but nothing contained in this section

shall be construed in any manner to affect or alter the

length of a working day for immigration employees or

the overtime pay herein fixed. (Mar. 2, 1931, c. 368, §1,

46 Stat. 1467).

§109b. Same; extra compensation; payment. The

said extra compensation shall be paid by the master,

owner, agent, or consignee of such vessel or other con-
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veyance arriving in the United States from a foreign

port to the Secretary of Labor, who shall pay the same to

the several immigration ofificers and employees entitled

thereto as provided in section 109a of this title. Such

extra compensation shall be paid if such officers or em-

ployees have been ordered to report for duty and have

so reported, whether the actual inspection or examination

of passengers or crew takes place or not: Provided, That

this section shall not apply to the inspection at de-

signated ports of entry of passengers arriving by inter-

national ferries, bridges, or tunnels, or by aircraft, rail-

road trains, or vessels on the Great Lakes and connecting

waterways, when operating on regular schedules. (Mar.

2, 1931, c. 368, §2, 46 Stat. 1467).
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Court of the United States for the Western District

of Washington, Northern Division, for the purpose



of enforcing the payment by the present appellant

corporation of the sum of four thousand, three

hundred and thirty-one dollars and thirteen cents

($4331.13) for "overtime" services rendered by in-

spectors and employees of the United States Immi-

gration Service in connection with the examination

and landing of passengers and crews of the said

coi*poration's steamships, from May ,3, 1931, to

September 30, 1932, inclusive. Prior to the trial,

the sum of $86.33 was paid by the said corporation

for such "overtime" services as had been performed

by said inspectors and employees in connection with

the inspection of certain of its steamships which

were not running on regular schedules. No question

was raised as to the accuracy of the account (pp.

5-57, Transcript), but the said corporation disclaim-

ed liability for any other part of same on the ground

that the other steamships involved were operated

on regular schedules and were carrying passengers

and automobiles as international ferries, and that,

for that reason, it and the said steamships weie

exempt from such "overtime" charges. The District

Court held that the steamers in question were not

"international ferries" and rendered judgment in

favor of the plaintiff for $4244.80, the full amount

claimed. The case now comxes before this court on

appeal from the said judgment.



ARGUMENT

Action was brought under the Act approved

March 2, 1931 (c.368, sees. 1 and 2, 46 Stat. 1467;

8 USCA, Sees. 109a and 109b), entitled: *'An act

To provide extra compensation for overtime service

performed by immigrant inspectors and other em-

ployees of the Immigration Service", which reads

as follows:

"The Secretary of Labor shall fix a reason-

able rate of extra compensation for overtime
services of inspectors and employees of the Im-
migration Service who may be required to re-

main on duty between the hours of five o'clock

postmeridian and eight o'clock antemeridian, or

on Sundays or holidays, to perform duties in

connection with the examination and landing of

passengers and crews of steamships, trains, air-

planes, or other vehicles, arriving in the United
States from a foreign port by water, land, or

air, such rates to be fixed on a basis of one-

half day's additional pay for each two hours or

fraction thereof of at least one hour that the

overtime extends beyond five o'clock postmeridian

(but not to exceed two and one-half days' pay
for the full period from five o'clock postmeridian

to eight o'clock antemeridian) and two addition-

al days' pay for Sunday .and holiday duty; in

those ports where the customary working hours

are other than those heretofore mentioned, the

Secretary of Labor is vested with authority to

regulate the hours of immigration employees so

as to agree with the prevailing working hours



in said ports, but nothing contained in this Sec-

tion shall be construed in any manner to affect

or alter the length of a working day for immi-
gration employees or the overtime pay herein
fixed."

Sec. 2. "The said extra compensation shall

be paid by the master, owner, agent, or con-

signee of such vessel or other conveyance ar-

riving in the United States from a foreign port

to the Secretary of Labor, who shall pay the

same to the several immigration officers and
employees entitled thereto as provided in this

Act. Such extra compensation shall be paid if

such officers or employees have been ordered to

report for duty and have so reported, whether
the actual inspection or examination of passen-

gers or crew takes place or not: Provided^ That
this section shall not apply to the inspection at

designated ports of entry of passengers arriv-

ing by international ferries, bridges, or tunnels,

or by aircraft, railroad trains, or vessels on
the Great Lakes and connecting waterways, when
operating on regular schedules."

Department of Labor General Order No. 175,

issued April 27, 1931, under authority of the fore-

g-oing Act (Defendant's Exhibit 12) provides as

follows

:

**(a) Overtime shall be understood to mean
time on duty in addition to the number of hours
fixed administratively as the regular work day
of inspectors and employees. To constitute over-

time for the purpose of the foregoing Act there

must exist two factors, to wit, (1) time on duty



in addition to the number of hours fixed ad-
ministratively as the regular work day of inspec-

tors and employees, and (2) time on duty for

at least one hour between 5 p.m. and 8 a.m. on
any day."

''(b) No distinction is to be made between
week days, Sundays and holidays so far as em-
ployment between the hours of 5 p.m. and 8 a.m.

is concerned."

**(d) For duties performed on Sundays
and holidays between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5

p.m. employees shall be entitled to two days' pay
in excess of their regular pay. The term "holi-

day" shall include only national holidays, vi?:.

:

January 1, February 22, May 30, July 4, the

first Monday in September, Thanksgiving Day
(when designated by the President), December
25, and such other days as may be made nation-

al holidays by Act of Congress."

"(e) For each two hours or fraction there-

of of at least one hour that such duties are

performed in excess of the regular shift of duty

between 5 p.m. of any day and 8 a.m. of the

following day, employees shall be entitled to

one half day's pay in excess of his regular pay.

Where in any unit of time beginning at 5 p.m.

and ending at the following 8 a.m. such duties

are performed in broken periods and less than

two hours intervene between such periods they

shall be combined, otherwise each period of such

unit shall be considered separately. The maxi-

mum amount which shall be paid to any em-



ployee for the purpose of such duties between
5 p.m. and the following 8 a.m. shall not exceed

two and one-half days* pay in excess of the

regular pay. After that amount is earned no
further compensation can be paid for any serv-

ices up to 8 a.m. of the same inspector or em-
ployee."

"(f) This order shall likewise apply to the

tim.e on duty after reporting for duty pursu-
ant to order to do so and regardless of whether
or not actual inspection or examination of pas-

sengers or crews takes place in those cases in

which the government is not liable for the over-

time."

"(g) For the purpose of this order, a

day's pay in the case of inspectors or employees
receiving compensation per annum shall be one
three hundred and sixtieth of the regular annual
salary, and in the case of inspectors and em-
ployees receiving compensation per month shall

be one-thirtieth of the regular monthly salary."

''(i) The customary working hours of in-

spectors and employees engaged in the examina-
tion and landing of passengers and crews shall

be, as far as practicable, within the time be-

tween 8 a.m.. and 5 p.m.."

"(j) Liability for payment of overtime
compensation shall not apply to the examination
and inspection of passengers at designated ports

of entry arriving on or by international ferries,

bridges, tunnels, aircraft, railroad trains or ves-



sels on the Great Lakes and connecting water-
ways, when operating on regular schedules filed

with the immigration officer in charge at such
designated port of entry. Examination and in-

spection at such designated ports of entry shall

mean such examination and inspection actually
performed at the record port of entry. Over-
time compensation for which the government is

not liable shall be prorated among the various
vessels and conveyances according to the aggre-
gate of the total overtime of each inspector and
employee in connection with the examination and
inspection between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. on Sun-
days and holidays, of the crew of each vessel

or conveyance concerned, and also of the pas-
sengers on such vessel or conveyance, unless

under this paragraph there is no liability with
respect to inspection and examination of pas-
sengers. Such liability for overtime on all days
between 5 p.m. and 8 a.m. is to be prorated in

the same manner."

"(k) Payment on the part of vessels or

other conveyances of overtime compensation shall

be made by postal money order or certified check

(including any charge for collection or exchange)
payable to the Disbursing Clerk, Department of

Labor, and forwarded to the Commissioner Gen-
eral of Immigration. Payment by the Disburs-

ing Officer of the Department to the inspector

or employee concerned of extra compensation

for which the master, owner, agent, or consignee

is liable can be made to the extent only that

collection is made from such master, owner, agent,

or consignee and received by the Disbursing

Clerk, Department of Labor."



"(n) Commissioners and District Directors

of Immigration will arrange schedules and work-
ing hours of inspectors and employees of the

Immigration Service so as to avoid overtime
within this order, as far as possible consistent

with the enforcement of the immigration laws
and the convenience of persons arriving in the

United States, and also as far as practicable

cause any overtime work within the terms of

this order to be equally alternated among the

inspectors and employees engaged at the same
port in the inspection and examination of arriv-

ing passengers and crews."

The provisions of the foregoing statute and Gen-

eral Order are practically identical with the laws

providing for and governing ^'overtime" pay for

officers of the U. S. Customs Service (Act of Feb-

ruary 13, 1911, sec. 5, 36 Stat. 901, as amended by

the Act of February 7, 1920, 41 Stat. 402, Comp.

Stat. Ann. Supp. 1923, sec. 5571, and Tariff Act

of September 21, 1922, 42 Stat. 858). The only dif-

ference material to this cause is that the require-

ment of payment for overtime services to immi-

gration inspectors and other employees does not apply

to inspection and examination at designated ports of

entry of passengers arriving at such ports via inter-

national ferries.

The requirement of pa^nnent to officers of the



Customs Service for overtime v^^ork has been upheld

by the courts on various occasions, notably:

Port Huron & Sarnia Ferry Co. v. Lawson,
(D. C. Mich. August 6, 1923), 292 F. 216;

Mellon V. Minneapolis, St. P. & S. S. M.
Ry. Co. (Court of Appeals District of Columbia,
Feb. 1, 1926), 11 F. (2d) 332.

Ferguson v. Port Huron & Sarnia Ferry
Co, (D. C. Mich. J.une 4, 1926), 13 F (2d) 489.

For many years, the appellant corporation has

been paying for overtime work by the officers of

the said Service at the port of Seattle and, during

the period involved in the present case, it was pay-

ing for such work performicd by the said officers

in connection with the arrival of the same steamers

for the inspection, examination and landing of the

passengers and crews of which it refused to pay the

officers of the Immigration Service.

It was the duty of the immigration officers to

examine and inspect the passengers and crews of

the steamers in question upon their arrival at the

port of Seattle (Section 15, Act of February 5,

1917, 8 USCA, Sec. 151), and that, regardless of

the fact that there may have been pre-examination
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of said passengers in Canada prior to their embarka-

tion for said port (General Order No. 133, Depart-

ment of Labor, May 4, 1929). It also was proper

that the passengers and crews of the said steamers

should be examined by two immigrant inspectors

(Section 16, Act of February 5, 1917, 8 USCA,

Sec 152).

In view of the foregoing, the only point at issue

is whether or not, in holding that the appellant cor-

poration was not operating the steamers in question

as "ferry-boats^' of an "international ferry", the

District Court misconstrued the law.

Webster^s New International Dictionary (1923

edition) defines a "ferry" as: (1) '*A place of cross-

ing"; (2) "A place or passage where persons or

things are carried across a river, arm of the sea,

etc. in a boat"; (3) ''A vessel in which passengers

and goods are conveyed over narrow waters"; (4)

"A franchise or right to carry passengers or goods,

or both, from shore to shore across a river, channel

or narrow body of water, charging tolls"; also as:

"A continuation of the highway and under the same

general control". It also defines a ^'ferry-boat" as:

"A vessel for conveying passengers, merchandise,

etc. across a river or other narrow water."
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other definitions of, and requirements for the

establishment and maintenance of, ferries are as

follows

:

"A ferry is the right of carrying passengers
across streams or bodies of water or arms of the
sea from one point to another for a compensa-
tion by way of a toll. New York v. Starin, 8
N.Y. St. Rep. 655, 659."

"Bouvier defines a ferry to be a place where
persons and things are taken across a river or
stream in boats or other vessels for hire."

''A ferry, in a general sense, is a highway
over narrow waters, and is a continuation of
the highway from one side of the water over
which it passes to the other, and is for the trans-
portation of passengers or of travelers, with their

teams and vehicles, and such other property as
they may carry or have with them."

*'A ferry, says Dane (Vol. 2, p. 683) forms
a part of a public passage or highway where
rivers or waters are to be passed in boats."

Words and Phrases, Vol. 3, p. 2749.

"The essential element in a ferry is the

transportation over intervening water—a crossing

from shore to shore at points conveniently oppo-

site, and forming connection with thoroughfares

at each terminus. A ferry is defined by Mr.
Webster, in words borrowed from legal authori-

ties, to be 'a liberty to have a boat for passage
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upon a river for the carriage of horses and men
for a reasonable toll', adding, 'It is usually to

cross a large river/ It has now a wider appli-

cation, and has been sometimes used to designate

transportation over a wide expanse of water; the

essential idea of passing from one shore to an
opposite shore being retained." (Italics ours).

Words and Phrases, Vol. 3, pp. 2749, 2750.

"A ferry is a franchise granted by the State

and regulated by statute. It may be defined as

a right to transport persons and property across

a water course and land within the jurisdiction

granting the franchise, and to receive tolls or

pay therefor." Einstrrmyi v. Black, 14 111. App.
381, 383, 384; Words and Phrases, Vol 3, p.

2750.

a* * * ^ ferry franchise is property and an
incorporeal hereditament."

Words and Phrases, Vol 3, p. 2751.

'Terries— that is, rights of carrying pas-

sengers across streams or bodies of water or

arms of the sea, from one point to another for a
compensation paid by way of a toll— are by
common law deemed to be franchises, and can-

not, in England, be set up without the King's

license, and in this country without a grant of

the legislature, as representing the sovereign

power." Cittj of Neiv York v. Starin, 12 N. E.

631, 632; 106 N. Y. 1; Words and Phrases, Vol.

3, p. 2751.
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A ferry necessarily implies transportation
for a short distance, almost invariably between
two points only, and unrelated to other trans-
portation. Port Richmond Ferry Co, v. Free-
holders of Hudson County

J
234 U. S. 317.

"A ferry license is a privilege of highway,
and the right to grant such a franchise belongs
to the State. It may be granted or withheld, and
the right to prohibit undoubtedly carries with it

the right to impose conditions." State v. Sick-

manny 65 Mo. App. 499, 501 ; Words and Phrases,

Vol. 3, p. 2751.

**The essential element in a ferry franchise

is the exclusive right to transport persons and
horses, and vehicles with which they travel, as

well as such personal goods as accompany them,

from one shore to the other, over the interven-

ing water, for the toll." Broadrmx v. Bakery 94
N. C. 675, 681, 55 Am. Rep. 633; Words and
Phrasesy Vol. 3, p. 2752.

"The grant of a ferry franchise necessarily

implies a right to exercise exclusive privileges

within prescribed limits, and on certain condi-

tions."

Words and PhraseSy Vol. 3, p. 2752.

"A ferry is a liberty to have a boat upon
a stream, river, arm of the sea, lake, or other

body of water, for the transportation of men,
horses, and vehicles with their contents, for a
reasonable toll. The term is also used to desig-

nate the place where the right is exercised, and
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sometimes as limited to the landing place.

Ferries are frequently referred to or regarded

as public highways, being continuations of the

highways with which they connect, and serving

the purpose of a bridge where a bridge is im-

practicable. But the terms 'ferry' and 'bridge'

are not ordinarily capable of use as synony-

mous terms, and it has been denied that ferries

are highways in a strict sense. There are some
authorities holding it to be essential that a

public feriy must be in continuation of a public

highway. The limits of the ferry proper are the

high water mark at either terminus. There is

nothing in the nature of a ferry which requires

that it should be operated from, but one place on
one shore to a single point on the opposite shore

;

nor is there any particular lim.it to the distance

over which it may be operated, provided only

the intervening ivaters are not wide and can
be traversed at regular and brief intervals bij

boats adapted to a ferry business * * *"

"Private and public ferries distinguished

—

'*A distinction is made between private

ferries, which riparian owners may under cer-

tain restrictions establish for their own con-

venience, and public ferries which are franchises

that cannot be exercised without the consent of

the State and must be based upon grant, license,

or prescription." (Italics ours) 25 C. J. 1048-

1050.

The term "ferry" does not apply to a line of

steamboats from Albanv to New York. "To speak
of a ferry from New York to Albany is as great

an abuse of terms as to talk of a ferry from New
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Orleans to St. Louis or Pittsburg, and even from
New York to Liverpool." North River Steamboat
Co. V. Livingston, 3 Cow. (N. Y.), 713, 748; 3
Wheel. Cr. 483; 25 C. J. 1050.

"The right to establish and maintain a public
ferry is a franchise which cannot be exercised
without consent of the State, and no person, al-

though he may own the land on both sides of a
stream, may establish such a ferry unless author-
ized to do so by the proper public authority."
25 C. J. 1051.

"In the United States the power of granting
ferry franchises is vested in the legislative au-
thority of the States. It never has been exercised
by the federal government." 25 C. J. 1052.

"This power has, in many States, been
delegated to certain inferior bodies by general
acts of the legislatures." 25 C. J. 1053.

"The States * * * have authority to establish

ferries upon waters forming a boundry * *

between a state and a foreign country." 25 C, J,

1055.

"The State may, through the proper author-

ities, require the payment of a license fee from
ferries operating within its jurisdiction * * *

and fix the rates of ferriage * * *." 25 C. J.

1073.

The steamers for the examination and inspection
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of the passengers and crews of which the "over-

time" pay is sought by the immigration officers,

are the "Princess Kathleen", "Princess Marguerite",

"Princess Louise", "Princess Charlotte", and "Prin-

cess Adelaide". Their descriptions, according to the

appellant corporation's advertising folders, are as

follows

:

No. No. of Dining-

Gross Passenger of State- room
Tonnage Capacity Beds rooms Capacity

Princess Kathleen 5875 1500 290 136 166

Princess Marguerite 5875 1500 290 136 166

Princess Louise 4200 1200 262 132 129

Princess Charlotte 3924 1200 230 118 118

Princess Adelaide 3060 1200 206 103 84

All of the above are constructed on the general

lines of regular deep-sea steamships and bear no

resemblance whatever to the ordinary type of "ferry-

boat". All are equipped with wireless apparatus and

carry wireless operators, and it is understood that

all except the "Princess Louise" were built in Scot-

land and crossed the Atlantic ocean under their own

power, and also came up the Pacific ocean to Van-

couver, B. C. before being placed on the route be-

tween that city and Seattle. It also is well known

that, when not running between said ports, they

frequently have run on other routes of the appellant
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corporation, and that some of them, if not all, have

made trips to Alaska on various occasions. As shown

above, all have spacious dining-rooms and sleeping

accomodations for hundreds of passengers. They are

referred to in the appellant corporation's advertis-

ing matter as "Princess Liners'', and are classified

by the United States Steamboat Inspection Service

as "Foreign Passenger Steamers" (Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit G). Those which arrive at Seattle in the even-

ing leave Vancouver, B. C. in the forenoon, go from

there to Victoria, B. C, a distance of 85 miles, re-

main in Victoria from one to one and one half hours,

and then proceed to Seattle, a distance of 81 miles,

arriving at the said port at 9 p.m. or thereabouts.

Those arriving at Seattle, at, or about, 7:30 a.m.,

as a general rule, go direct from Vancouver, a dist-

ance of approximately 145 miles. They leave Van-

couver at, or about, 11 p.m. The distance from Van-

couver direct to Seattle is almost exactly the same as

that from New York to Albany, the absurdity of

speaking of a "ferry" between which cities was

stated by the Court in North River Steamboat Co.

V. Livingston, supra. The passenger fares from Van-

couver and Victoria to Seattle are $4.25 and $2.50,

respectively, exclusive of meals and berth, and the

rates charged for automobiles are shown by aoDel-
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lant's advertising folders to be from $6.00 to $8.00

from Vancouver, and from $4.00 to $6.00 from Vic-

toria. The testimony at the trial shows that bag-

gage checks for their automobiles are given to pas-

sengers having same v^ith them. In addition to

passengers and automobiles, these steamers carry

mail and some freight between Vancouver and Vic-

toria and Vancouver and Victoria and Seattle. The

main part of their business, however, is carrying

passengers. The proportion of automobiles carried

is one to thirty or forty passengers (p. 4, Brief).

Vancouver is approximately 35 miles north of

the intematio')ial boundary between Canada and the

United States, and Seattle is about 120 miles south

of the said boundary. The route followed by the

steamers in question does not cross any river or

stream forming any part of the said international

boundary, but is through the Gulf of Georgia,

Straights of Juan De Fuca, Puget Sound, and waters

classified by the United States Department of Com-

merce Pilot Rules as a portion of the high seas.

On page 3 of their Brief counsel attempt to liken

the operations of appellant's vessels in question to

the serv^ices between the mainland and San Juan

Island points, between Port Angeles, Washington,
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and Victoria, B. C, and between Anacortes, Wash-

ington, and Bellingham, Washington, and Sidney,

B. C, maintained by the Puget Sound Navigation

Company, a Washington corporation. There is no

reasonable comparison whatever. The distances tra-

versed by the latter vessels between Port Angeles

and Victoria and Bellingham and Sidney are only

a fraction of the distances traversed by the appel-

lant's steamers, and the said points are conveniently

opposite each other on the shores of the United

States and Canada. The said vessels also perform a

practically necessary service. The fact, however, that

the District Court conceded said routes to be "ferry-

lines", in its finding of facts, is not conclusive that

they are such as a matter of law, as their status as

such was not an issue at the trial of this cause, and

the court's statement is consequently only dictum.

The service maintained by appellant's vessels com-

pares much more favorably with that afforded by

those plying between Yarmouth and Halifax, N.

S., St. Johns, N. B., and Boston and New York,

except that the latter are somewhat larger, cover a

longer distance, and arrive more infrequently out-

side of the sum.mer tourist season. These vessels are

subject to "overtime" charges whenever they arrive

at Boston or New York between 5 p.m^. and 8 a.m.

(pp. 75, 76, Transcript).
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Counsel criticize (pp. 5, 6) the District Court's

holding that appellant's steamers in question are not

"ferries" on the ground that appellant has no fran-

chise, or license, to operate a ferry within the bound-

aries of the State of Washington, and cite Sault Ste.

Marie v. Inteniatioiml Transit Co., 234 U. S. 333, as

authority for such criticism, claiming (p. 6) that,

in said case, the Supreme Court held that a state has

no power to issue a franchise for international ferries.

They also state (pp. 24, 25), after having previous-

ly conceded (pp. 23, 24) that a franchise, or license

to operate, is the most essential element in consti-

tuting a ^'ferry^\ that they are entirely at a loss in

determining what is an international ferry, inas-

much as there can be no franchise for a ferry operat-

ing from one of the United States to Canada, and

cite the same case as authority, claiming that it held

to that effect. The Court made no such ruling. The

decision shows that the International Transit Co. was

a foreign corporation having its domicile in Canada,

and was engaged in commerce between Canada and

the United States; also that it had a license, or fran-

chise, from the Canadian Government to operate a

ferry between Sault Ste. Marie, Ont. and Sault Ste.

Marie, Mich., which prescribed the frequency of the

rervico, the rates to be charged, etc. and provided that
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the said company should not infringe on any laws,

by-laws or regulations of the United States, the State

of Michigan, or the town of Sault Ste. Marie, ap-

plicable to said ferry. The sole question before the

Court was whether or not, under these circumstances,

and under a local ordinance, the said transit company

could be compelled to take out a municipal license

and pay a license fee to the city of Sault Ste. Marie,

Mich, for the privilege of continuing to operate said

ferry. The Court held that it could not, and that

such matters were within the scope of National,

rather than State, legislation. The Court said (p.

342)

:

"Assuming that * * * there exists in the

absence of Federal action a local "protective power
to prevent extortion in the rates charged for fer-

riage from the shores of the States, and to pre-

scribe reasonable regulations necessary to secure

good order and convenience, we think that the ac-

tion of the city in the present case in requiring the

appellant to take out a license and to pay a license

fee, for the privilege of transacting the business

conducted at its wharf, was beyond the power
which the State could exercise either directly

or by delegation.'' (Italics ours).

In Port Richmoivi Ferry Co. v. Freeholders of

Hudson County, 234 U. S. 317, also cited by appel-

lant, the Supreme Court said (pp. 321, 328, 332)

:
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"At common law the right to maintain a
public ferry lies in franchise. * * * the privilege

of keeping a ferry, with a right to take toll for

passengers and freight, is a franchise grant-

able by the State, to be exercised within such
limits and under such regulations as may be
required for the safety and convenience of the

public. * * * In the absence of action by Con-
gress re interstate ferries, the states have power
to regulate. One state, however, cannot dero-

gate from the powers of another state. * * *"

The power of a State extends to regulation of

ferries in and into the State, if interstate or foreign

commerce is not directly burdened: St. Claire Co.

V. I. S. & C. T. Co., 192 U. S. 454. Regulation of

operation of international ferries within the State

is feasible without violation of international custom

or law: United States v. DeWitt, 76 U. S. 41 (9

Wall.) ; nor is the United States concerned with the

reasonable regulation of wharves, piers, docks, etc.:

Cannon v. Neiv Orleans, 87 U. S. 577 (20 Wall.),

or establishment of ferries: Conivay v. Taylor's Ex-

ecutors, 1 Black, 603.

The appellant has no feriy license, or franchise,

as required by the laws of the State of Washington

(Remington's Revised Statutes of Washington, Vol.

6, Title 32, sees. 5462-5483) and has produced no

evidence to show that it has, or ever had, any license
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or franchise from the Canadian Government to oper-

ate a ferry between Vancouver or Victoria, B.C.

and Seattle. The route traversed by appellant's

steamers is entirely at variance with the popular

conception of a "ferry", and with the definitions

of that term above cited. As heretofore stated, its

steamers bear no resemblance whatever to the con-

ventional type of
*

'ferry-boat", and they are per-

forming a competitive, rather than a necessary serv-

ice. They also are required to ''enter" and "clear"

on each trip which they make to Seattle (See testi-

mony of Oscar W. Damm, Deputy Collector of Cus-

toms at Seattle, p. 77, Tr.), while "ferry-boats" are

not required to pay clearance fees (R. S. 2792).

Counsel state (p. 4 of their Brief) that the

"overtime" law in question was designed to meet

the rising demand for overtime immigration inspec-

tion sei-vice for trans-Atlantic carriers arriving at

ports of entry at unanticipated hours, and that the

proviso which they cite on page 2 was added to

the Act to exempt from its provisions the carriers

named when operating on regular schedules over

the Canadian border, and (p. 25) contend that Con-

gress could not have intended to embrace in the

words "international ferries" the ancient and ac-

cepted definition of a "ferry" as a franchise right.
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The original design of the bill may be correctly stated,

inasmuch as Congressional Record No. 10909, June

16, 1930, shows that same, as it first passed the

House of Representatives, contained the following:

"Provided, however, that the provisions of

this Act relating to extra compensation shall

not apply to international bridges, or to ferries

and railroad trains operating on regular sched-

ules."

The report of the Senate Committee on Immi-

gration (No. 1720), which forms a part of ''De-

fendant's Exhibit No. 11", contains the foilowinfy:

"The bill as amended in the House limited

the application of overtime to ocean ports of

entry. Your committee is of the opinion that

certain conditions at tho international border?

are equally meritorious, and has therefore pro-

vided that overtime shall apply to the internation-

al boundary as ivcll as to ocean ports, except

under the following conditions:

'Overtime shall not apply to international

ferries, biidges or tunnels.

'Nor shall aircraft, railroad trains, or vessels

on the Great Lakes and connecting waterways be
subject to assessments for overtime duties per-

formed by immigration employees when they

are operating on their regular schedules.
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*One of the best reasons for favoring this

legislation is that for many years the customs
employees have had a similar overtime provision
to that proposed in this bill, while the immi-
gration officers working side by side with them
in the performance of their duties have been,

so far, discriminated against.

'It is the opinion of the committee that the

bill is justified by the principle that the trans-

portation companies should reimburse the Gov-
ernment for special services at unusual hours
that advance their own interests. * * * ' " (Italics

ours).

The House of Representatives concurred in the

Senate amendments and the law was passed in its

present form, supra. From the foregoing we must

conclude that it was designed to apply to the Cana-

dian border and also to place the immigration in-

spectors and other employees on at least a partial

parity with the officers of the Customs Service.

Counsel devote several pages of their Brief to

citations of, and quotations from, decisions of the

Supreme and other courts respecting the construc-

tion of laws, and argue that, under the said deci-

sions, the appellant's vessels are included in those

exempted from the operation of this law.
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While it is a general rule of law that statutes

be strictly construed, it unquestionably is also good

law that, when the language of a statute is ambigu-

ous or uncertain, it is open to construction as to

its actual meaning and intent. There is nothing

ambiguous or uncertain here, however. The classes

of carriers exempted from overtime charges are

clearly stated. Had Congress had any conception

that vessels on the Great Lakes and connecting-

waterways fell within the category of "international

ferries", what was the object of making a specific

exception of such vessels under a special classifica-

tion when provision already had been made for such

ferries? The fact that it did so shows conclusively

that it had no such conception. How, then, can it

be assumed that there was any intention on the

part of Congress to exempt the vessels of this ap-

pellant, which traverse a much greater distance

than most of same, start from a point in Canada

approximately 35 miles north of the international

boundary, and do not land in the United States

until they are more than 100 miles south of said

boundary, in the absence of any mention whatever

of them in the law? If Congress had any such in-

tention, why did it not say so, as in the case of the

Great Lakes steamers? We see nothing in any of
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the decisions cited to support appellant's argument.

On pages 20 and 22 of their Brief, counsel

submit statements as to the number of passengers

carried from Vancouver and Victoria to Seattle

during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1932, and

the number of passengers carried to Seattle in the

first six months of 1932, the amount of revenue

derived from such passengers' tickets, and the per-

centage of '^overtime" charges to such revenue and,

on page 21, make the statement that 90 per cent

of the entire work of the Immigration Service at

the port of Seattle for the fiscal year stated was

performed in connection with the inspection of its

vessels; also that, if the judgment of the District

Court is sustained, appellant will be compelled to

pay at the high rate of "overtime" pay, for approxi-

mately 90 per cent of the immigration inspection

work done at the said port, thus apparently attempt-

ing to convey the impression that the inspection of

its steamers constitutes practically all the work done

by the immigration inspectors at that port, when,

as a matter of fact, out of approximately twenty such

inspectors, all inspection of appellant's steamers is

performed by only two assigned to said work at any

one time, the others being assigned to the inspection

of many other arriving steamers and to various other
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duties of inspectors. In this connection it may be

stated that the account submitted does not appear

to show any charges for the inspection of appellant's

steamers which arrived at Seattle in the mornings

(except a few made for inspection at Vancouver,

B. C), with the exception of those arriving on Sun-

days and holidays. Consequently, with the exception

of such days, and such services at Vancouver, the

only "overtime" services for which appellant was

charged was the inspection at Seattle of its steamers

which arrived about 9 p.m. We are unable to see

that the number of passengers carried on appellant's

steamers, the revenue derived therefrom, the per-

centage of same required to pay charges for inspec-

tion during overtime hours, or the proportion of ap-

pellant's passenger business to the total for the port

of Seattle, has any material bearing on the legal

aspects of this case.

The United States Government surely cannot be

held responsible for the fact that the appellant's even-

ing steamers were, and still are, scheduled to arrive

at Seattle during the "overtime" period. The remedy

for this situation appears to be in appellant's own

hands. It can either bring such steamers into Se-

attle before the beginning of the said period or can

discontinue this part of its service to Seattle, and
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land its passengers at some other United States port

which conveniently can be reached during the regular

inspection period. Such action, no doubt, would be

inconvenient, but would be quite possible, and would

result in avoidance of the charges to which appellant

objects.

On page 19 of their Brief, counsel quote from

Department of Labor General Order No. 175, which

directs (par. n.) that Commissioners and District

Directors of Immigration arrange schedules and

working hours of inspectors and other employees of

the Immigration Service so as to avoid overtime with-

in said Order, as far as possible consistent with the

due enforcement of the Immigration Law, etc., and

contend that, under said general order, arrangement

should have been made for inspection of its steamers

without overtime charges. No doubt such an arrange-

ment would have been made by the Commissioner

of Immigration at Seattle, pursuant to this order,

had it been possible without affecting or altering

the length of the regular working day of the inspec-

tors concerned, which is expressly forbidden by sec-

tion 109a, Title 8 USCA, supra. Consequently we

must assume that, under the circumstances prevail-

ing during the period involved (no doubt an insuffi-
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cient number of inspectors) such arrangement was not

possible without infraction of said section.

Even were it conceded that appellant's steamers

in question constitute an "international ferry", it

does not appear that appellant would be exempted

from liability to pay overtime charges for the exam-

ination and inspection of the crews of same, as the

exemption in the proviso contained in section 109b,

8 USCA, supra, extends only to passengers, and it

would be physically impossible for the immigration

inspectors to go from the Immigration Station to

said steamers, make inspection of said crews required

by law (see 8 USCA, sees. 151, 152, and Department

of Labor General Order No. 133, supra), and get

back to the Immigration Station inside of an hour.

It appears that the appellant corporation has

been dealt with very leniently by the Immigration

Service as to the amount of overtime pay claimed,

as, according to the wording of the statute, it appears

that such pay could have been claimed for the entire

period from 5 p.m. until the inspection was complet-

ed, and it was so ruled in the case of the Customs

officers in Ferguson v. Port Huron & Sarnia Ferry

Co., supra.
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CONCLUSION

The District Court did not commit error in

awarding judgment to the plaintiff in the amount

claimed, and said judgment should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

J. Charles Dennis,

United States Attoiniey

John Ambler,

Assistant United States Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee.












